
School Board of Clay County
Teacher Inservice Center (Fleming Island High), 2233 Village Square Parkway, Fleming Island, FL

June 24, 2021 - Regular School Board Meeting

Date: Jun 24 2021 (6:00 p.m.)

Student Showcase

Invocation (Dr. Charles Lever, Orange Park United Methodist Church)

Pledge of Allegiance

Call to Order

Recognitions and Awards

1. Recognize 2020-2021 Retirees

Presenters

School Showcase

Presentations from the Audience (Public Comment)

Consent Agenda

Superintendent

2. C1 - Minutes of Workshop and Special Meeting on May 25, 2021; Student Hearings and Regular Meeting on June 3.
2021

2021 May 25 Special Mtg.pdf

2021 May 25 Workshop.pdf

2021 Jun 3 Student Hearings.pdf (Confidential)

2021 June 3 Regular Mtg.pdf

3. C2 - Payment of Annual Membership Dues for 2021-2022 to Florida Association of District School Superintendents

Information Technology Services

4. C3 - Blackboard OneClay Website, OneClay App, and Callout Services

210115 Blackboard FINAL.pdf

Human Resources

5. C4 - Personnel Consent Agenda

Personnel Consent Agenda 6 24 2021.pdf

Page 1 of 962

DRAFT

http://agenda.oneclay.net/agendaitem/publishagendaitem?agendaitemid=38042
http://agenda.oneclay.net/agendaitem/publishagendaitem?agendaitemid=36982
http://agenda.oneclay.net/agendaitem/publishagendaitem?agendaitemid=36982
http://agenda.oneclay.net/content/files/2021-may-25-special-mtg.pdf
http://agenda.oneclay.net/content/files/2021-may-25-workshop.pdf
http://agenda.oneclay.net/content/files/2021-june-3-regular-mtg.pdf
http://agenda.oneclay.net/agendaitem/publishagendaitem?agendaitemid=35969
http://agenda.oneclay.net/agendaitem/publishagendaitem?agendaitemid=38045
http://agenda.oneclay.net/content/files/210115-blackboard-final.pdf
http://agenda.oneclay.net/agendaitem/publishagendaitem?agendaitemid=38038
http://agenda.oneclay.net/content/files/personnel-consent-agenda-6-24-2021_1.pdf


Instruction-Academic Services

6. C5 - Daily Hours for Teachers and Students for School Year 2021-22

Updated School-hours-2021-22.pdf

7. C6 - 2021-22 Interagency Agreement Between the School Board of Clay County, Florida and the Department of
Military Affairs; State of Florida

210124 Florida Youth Challenge Academy.pdf

8. C7 - Contract between Pace Center for Girls, Inc. and School Board of Clay County

210126 PACE.pdf

9. C8 - Agreement between the School Board of Clay County and AMI Kids

210125 AMI Kids.pdf

10. C9 - Approve Interlocal Agreement Between The School Board of Clay County, Florida and Rolling Hills Community
Development District Regarding Usage of District’s Amenity Complex Facilities.

Clay High School Swim Team Pool Use Agreement.pdf

Instruction-Climate and Culture

11. C10 - 7 Mindsets Social Emotional Learning Curriculum

7 Mindsets 21-22 Contract Pending Board Approval.pdf

12. C11 - Navigate 360 curriculum Suite360: Mental Health & Prevention

Business Affairs

13. C12 - Approve the 2021-2022 District's Property/Casualty/Active Assailant Insurance renewal submitted by Arthur J.
Gallagher & Co. (broker)

14. C13 - Approve uniform pricing  for ”Before and/or After School Enrichment Programs” offered by “outside”
organizations.

Before and After Pricing.pdf

15. C14 - Proposed Allocation Changes for 2021-2022

Allocation Summary 2021-2022 - June 24, 2021   .1   .pdf

Business Affairs-Accounting

16. C15 - Monthly Financial Reports for May, 2021

May Monthly Board Financial Report.pdf

May Monthly Board Property Report.pdf

Contracts 50 Thousand and Greater.pdf

17. C16 - Budget Amendment for Month Ending May 31, 2021

Budget Amendment May 2021.pdf

Business Affairs-Property

18. C17 - Deletion of Certain Items Report - June, 2021

Page 2 of 962

DRAFT

http://agenda.oneclay.net/agendaitem/publishagendaitem?agendaitemid=38024
http://agenda.oneclay.net/content/files/updated-school-hours-2021-22_1.pdf
http://agenda.oneclay.net/agendaitem/publishagendaitem?agendaitemid=38010
http://agenda.oneclay.net/agendaitem/publishagendaitem?agendaitemid=38010
http://agenda.oneclay.net/content/files/210124-florida-youth-challenge-academy.pdf
http://agenda.oneclay.net/agendaitem/publishagendaitem?agendaitemid=38012
http://agenda.oneclay.net/content/files/210126-pace.pdf
http://agenda.oneclay.net/agendaitem/publishagendaitem?agendaitemid=38011
http://agenda.oneclay.net/content/files/210125-ami-kids.pdf
http://agenda.oneclay.net/agendaitem/publishagendaitem?agendaitemid=38018
http://agenda.oneclay.net/agendaitem/publishagendaitem?agendaitemid=38018
http://agenda.oneclay.net/content/files/clay-high-school-swim-team-pool-use-agreement.pdf
http://agenda.oneclay.net/agendaitem/publishagendaitem?agendaitemid=38028
http://agenda.oneclay.net/content/files/7-mindsets-21-22-contract-pending-board-approval.pdf
http://agenda.oneclay.net/agendaitem/publishagendaitem?agendaitemid=38029
http://agenda.oneclay.net/agendaitem/publishagendaitem?agendaitemid=38016
http://agenda.oneclay.net/agendaitem/publishagendaitem?agendaitemid=38016
http://agenda.oneclay.net/agendaitem/publishagendaitem?agendaitemid=38015
http://agenda.oneclay.net/agendaitem/publishagendaitem?agendaitemid=38015
http://agenda.oneclay.net/content/files/before-and-after-pricing.pdf
http://agenda.oneclay.net/agendaitem/publishagendaitem?agendaitemid=36988
http://agenda.oneclay.net/content/files/allocation-summary-2021-2022-june-24-2021-1.pdf
http://agenda.oneclay.net/agendaitem/publishagendaitem?agendaitemid=38037
http://agenda.oneclay.net/content/files/may-monthly-board-financial-report.pdf
http://agenda.oneclay.net/content/files/may-monthly-board-property-report.pdf
http://agenda.oneclay.net/content/files/contracts-50-thousand-and-greater.pdf
http://agenda.oneclay.net/agendaitem/publishagendaitem?agendaitemid=38017
http://agenda.oneclay.net/content/files/budget-amendment-may-2021.pdf
http://agenda.oneclay.net/agendaitem/publishagendaitem?agendaitemid=38025


Deletion Report-June, 2021.pdf

Business Affairs-Purchasing

19. C18 - BID Renewal

20. C19 - BID to be Awarded

Operations

21. C20 - Maintenance Service Agreement for Six Schools (MRE, KHE, KHS, WES, WJH, CHE)

Trane Service Agreement Vendor Performance Evaluation.pdf

Maintenance Service Agreement - Trane.pdf

22. C21 - 2021-2022 School Safety Interlocal Agreement among the School Board of Clay County, Florida, City of Green
Cove Springs Florida and Green Cove Springs Police Department

City of GCS 2021-2022.pdf

23. C22 - 2021-2022 School Safety Interlocal Agreement among the School Board of Clay County Florida and Town of
Orange Park and the Town of Orange Park Police Department

town of OP SRO 2021-2022.pdf

24. C23 - Cenergistic Maintenance Agreement

Cenergistic Maintenance Agreement 6.24.21.pdf

Operations-Facilities

25. C24 - New Elementary School “R” Naming Committee Member Selection

New Elementary School R Naming Committee.pdf

26. C25 - Change Order #3 (Direct Purchasing) for Tynes Elementary School New Classroom Addition

TES Classroom Addition CO 3.pdf

27. C26 - Pre-Qualification of Contractors

Table for Board Backup Contractor Prequal, 6.24.21.pdf

28. C27 - Five Year Educational Plant Survey (2021)

Clay Recommend 2021.pdf

Complete Survey 2021.pdf

Adoption of Consent Agenda

CCEA Update

CESPA Update

Superintendent's Update and Presentations

Discussion Agenda

School Board Member

Page 3 of 962

DRAFT

http://agenda.oneclay.net/content/files/deletion-report-june-2021.pdf
http://agenda.oneclay.net/agendaitem/publishagendaitem?agendaitemid=38035
http://agenda.oneclay.net/agendaitem/publishagendaitem?agendaitemid=38036
http://agenda.oneclay.net/agendaitem/publishagendaitem?agendaitemid=38033
http://agenda.oneclay.net/content/files/trane-service-agreement-vendor-performance-evaluation.pdf
http://agenda.oneclay.net/content/files/maintenance-service-agreement-trane_1.pdf
http://agenda.oneclay.net/agendaitem/publishagendaitem?agendaitemid=38040
http://agenda.oneclay.net/agendaitem/publishagendaitem?agendaitemid=38040
http://agenda.oneclay.net/content/files/city-of-gcs-2021-2022_1.pdf
http://agenda.oneclay.net/agendaitem/publishagendaitem?agendaitemid=38041
http://agenda.oneclay.net/agendaitem/publishagendaitem?agendaitemid=38041
http://agenda.oneclay.net/content/files/town-of-op-sro-2021-2022.pdf
http://agenda.oneclay.net/agendaitem/publishagendaitem?agendaitemid=38048
http://agenda.oneclay.net/content/files/cenergistic-maintenance-agreement-62421.pdf
http://agenda.oneclay.net/agendaitem/publishagendaitem?agendaitemid=38031
http://agenda.oneclay.net/content/files/new-elementary-school-r-naming-committee.pdf
http://agenda.oneclay.net/agendaitem/publishagendaitem?agendaitemid=38034
http://agenda.oneclay.net/content/files/tes-classroom-addition-co-3.pdf
http://agenda.oneclay.net/agendaitem/publishagendaitem?agendaitemid=38043
http://agenda.oneclay.net/content/files/table-for-board-backup-contractor-prequal-62421.pdf
http://agenda.oneclay.net/agendaitem/publishagendaitem?agendaitemid=38046
http://agenda.oneclay.net/content/files/clay-recommend-2021.pdf
http://agenda.oneclay.net/content/files/complete-survey-2021.pdf


29. D1 - Appoint One Board Member and One Citizen Member to Serve on the 2021 Value Adjustment Board (Mrs.
Bolla)

30. D2 - Appoint One Board Member to Serve as Florida School Boards Association Advocacy Committee
Representative and One Board Member to Serve as Advocacy Committee Alternate (Mrs. Bolla)

Human Resources

31. D3 - Human Resources Special Action A

Operations-Facilities

32. D4 - 2020-21 S.R.E.F. Casualty, Safety, Sanitation, Relocatable, and Fire Safety Inspection

Elementary SREF Inspections (Buildings).pdf

Elementary SREF Inspections (Portables) Cont..pdf

Elementary SREF Inspections (Portables) Cont. 2.pdf

Jr. High SREF Inspections (Buildings).pdf

Jr. High SREF Inspections (Portables).pdf

High School SREF Inspections (Buildings).pdf

High School SREF Inspections (Portables).pdf

High School SREF Inspections (Portables) Cont..pdf

County Offices & Buildings SREF Inspections.pdf

School Board Attorney Remarks

School Board Member Remarks

Adjournment

Page 4 of 962

DRAFT

http://agenda.oneclay.net/agendaitem/publishagendaitem?agendaitemid=37004
http://agenda.oneclay.net/agendaitem/publishagendaitem?agendaitemid=37004
http://agenda.oneclay.net/agendaitem/publishagendaitem?agendaitemid=38013
http://agenda.oneclay.net/agendaitem/publishagendaitem?agendaitemid=38013
http://agenda.oneclay.net/agendaitem/publishagendaitem?agendaitemid=38039
http://agenda.oneclay.net/agendaitem/publishagendaitem?agendaitemid=38044
http://agenda.oneclay.net/content/files/elementary-sref-inspections-buildings.pdf
http://agenda.oneclay.net/content/files/elementary-sref-inspections-portables-cont.pdf
http://agenda.oneclay.net/content/files/elementary-sref-inspections-portables-cont-2.pdf
http://agenda.oneclay.net/content/files/jr-high-sref-inspections-buildings.pdf
http://agenda.oneclay.net/content/files/jr-high-sref-inspections-portables.pdf
http://agenda.oneclay.net/content/files/high-school-sref-inspections-buildings.pdf
http://agenda.oneclay.net/content/files/high-school-sref-inspections-portables.pdf
http://agenda.oneclay.net/content/files/high-school-sref-inspections-portables-cont.pdf
http://agenda.oneclay.net/content/files/county-offices-buildings-sref-inspections.pdf


School Board of Clay County

June 24, 2021 - Regular School Board Meeting

Title
Recognize 2020-2021 Retirees

Description
The Clay County School Board recognizes district employees who retired in the 2020-2021 school year by offering
congratulations and expressing appreciation for their years of faithful service to the district.

Gap Analysis
N/A

Previous Outcomes
N/A

Expected Outcomes
For recognition only.

Strategic Plan Goal
N/A

Recommendation
Recognition.  No action required.

Contact
Brenda G. Troutman, Assistant Superintendent for Human Resources, (904) 336-6701, brenda.troutman@myoneclay.net

Financial Impact
NONE

Review Comments

Attachments

Page 5 of 962

DRAFT



School Board of Clay County

June 24, 2021 - Regular School Board Meeting

Title
C1 - Minutes of Workshop and Special Meeting on May 25, 2021; Student Hearings and Regular Meeting on June 3. 2021

Description
Florida Statute 1001.42(1) requires the superintendent, as secretary, to keep such minutes and records as are necessary to set
forth clearly all actions and proceedings of the school board.  The minutes of each meeting shall be reviewed, corrected if
necessary, and approved at the next regular meeting; provided that this action may be taken at an intervening special meeting if
the board desires.

Gap Analysis

Previous Outcomes

Expected Outcomes

Strategic Plan Goal

Recommendation
Approve minutes as submitted.

Contact
David S. Broskie, Superintendent of Schools, david.broskie@myoneclay.net; Bonnie O'Nora, Board Assistant

Financial Impact
None

Review Comments

Attachments

2021 May 25 Special Mtg.pdf

2021 May 25 Workshop.pdf

2021 Jun 3 Student Hearings.pdf (Confidential)

2021 June 3 Regular Mtg.pdf

Page 6 of 962

DRAFT

http://agenda.oneclay.net/content/files/2021-may-25-special-mtg.pdf
http://agenda.oneclay.net/content/files/2021-may-25-workshop.pdf
http://agenda.oneclay.net/content/files/2021-june-3-regular-mtg.pdf


Page 7 of 962

DRAFT



Page 8 of 962

DRAFT



Page 9 of 962

DRAFT



Page 10 of 962

DRAFT



Page 11 of 962

DRAFT



Page 12 of 962

DRAFT



Page 13 of 962

DRAFT



Page 14 of 962

DRAFT



Page 15 of 962

DRAFT



Page 16 of 962

DRAFT



School Board of Clay County

June 24, 2021 - Regular School Board Meeting

Title
C2 - Payment of Annual Membership Dues for 2021-2022 to Florida Association of District School Superintendents

Description
Membership dues to the Florida Association of District School Superintendents (FADSS allows participation and networking
with superintendents statewide.  FADSS is the support and training organization for superintendents, as well as an effective and
persistent voice on the issues that are important to Florida school districts.  The school district reaps benefits by participating in
the Association, including state-of-the-art leadership training.

Gap Analysis

Previous Outcomes

Expected Outcomes

Strategic Plan Goal

Recommendation
Budgeted item - for information only

Contact
David S. Broskie, Superintendent of Schools; david.broskie@myoneclay.net

Financial Impact
Budgeted item - awaiting invoice
20/21 expense was $15,897.00

Review Comments

Attachments

Page 17 of 962

DRAFT



School Board of Clay County

June 24, 2021 - Regular School Board Meeting

Title
C3 - Blackboard OneClay Website, OneClay App, and Callout Services

Description
Blackboard provides hosting, templates, and the structure for the OneClay.net website, all school websites, and the OneClay
Mobile app. In addition, we use Blackboard’s Mass Notification Service for phone callouts. This year’s cost is $31,843.52 less
than previous years due to services that are being replaced by the new Student Information System, Synergy.

Gap Analysis
This is a continuation of our previous contract with a reduction in services. Approval will ensure the continuation of the
OneClay.net website and the other services listed above. This year’s cost is $31,843.52 less than previously due to the Teacher
Communication service that is being replaced by the new Student Information System, Synergy.

Previous Outcomes
Clay County District Schools has used Blackboard since 2017 for the services listed above as well as Teacher Communication
and Social Media Manager. 

Expected Outcomes
Upon approval, Clay County District Schools will continue with all services except for Teacher Communication and Social
Media Manager. Teacher Communication is being replaced by Synergy Mail which is included in the cost of Synergy. 

Strategic Plan Goal
Strategy 2.1 Improve Technology on all Classrooms and District Buildings.

Recommendation
Approve the proposal in its entirety.

Contact
Ethan Caren, Director of Information and Technology Services

Financial Impact
$105,661.65 per year, renewable for 3 years for a potential total 3 year total of $316,984.95, funded via General Funds

Review Comments

Attachments

210115 Blackboard FINAL.pdf

Page 18 of 962

DRAFT

http://agenda.oneclay.net/content/files/210115-blackboard-final.pdf


Page 19 of 962

DRAFT



Page 20 of 962

DRAFT



  
       

  

2021 - BLACKBOARD PROPRIETARY AND CONFIDENTIAL ([894581623-341496 v2 / R2020-236600-06 /  CNT000072369) 
(SC043021)                                                                                                                         1   of     6  

  
  VOID IF EXECUTED AFTER: June 30, 2021

CUSTOMER: Clay County School District 
 

  

 
This Blackboard Order Form (“Order Form”) by and between Blackboard Inc.  (“Blackboard”, “Vendor”, “Contractor” or “Seller”) 
and Clay County School District (“Customer” or “District”) details the terms of Customer’s use of the products and services set 
forth below (“Product and Pricing Summary”). This Order Form, together with the Cooperative Purchasing Agreement between The 
Interlocal Purchasing System (“TIPS”) and Blackboard effectively dated June 26, 2019 (Contract #181204) and October 9, 2019 
(Contract #190701) and incorporated by this reference, form the entire agreement between the parties in respect of the products 
and services set forth in the Product and Pricing Summary.  
 
Notwithstanding anything to the contrary in any purchase order or other document provided by Customer, any product or service 
provided by Blackboard to Customer in connection with a purchase order related to this Order Form is conditioned upon Customer's 
acceptance of this Order Form and the Blackboard Master Agreement. Any additional, conflicting or different terms 
subsequently proffered by Customer after the effective date of this Order Form in a purchase order or otherwise shall 
be deemed null and void. Each of the individuals executing this Order Form represent and warrant that he or she is authorized to 
execute the Agreement on behalf of Customer or Blackboard, as applicable. 
  
In consideration of the promises set forth herein, and other good and valuable consideration, the receipt of which are hereby 
acknowledged, the parties hereby agree as follows: 

                           |      A. Software & Services Product and Pricing Summary                                                                       
 

Qty 
  Product Code 

  Product or Service 
   Initial Term 

Period #1 
Effective Dates 

 
  

Initial Term 
Period #1 

(USD) 
  

Initial Term 
Period #2 

01-Jul-2022 
-- 

30-Jun-2023 
(USD)  

Initial Term 
Period #3 

01-Jul-2023 
-- 

30-Jun-2024 
(USD)  

35812
  

  
BC-MN   

   BLACKBOARD MASS 
NOTIFICATIONS  

  
01-Jul-2021 

-  
 30-Jun-2022 

$50,136.80 
 

  
$50,136.80

  
  

$50,136.80 
 

  

44  
  WCM-ADVG   

   BLACKBOARD WCM 
ADVANTAGE PER SITE  

  
01-Jul-2021 

-  
 30-Jun-2022 

$23,418.85 
 

  
$23,418.85

  
  

$23,418.85 
 

  

1  
  WCM-ALY-

CE   
  

 ALLY FOR WEB 
COMMUNITY 
MANAGER, More than 
100,000 Users  

  

01-Jul-2021 
-  

 30-Jun-2022 
  

$14,000.00 
 

  
$14,000.00

  
  

$14,000.00 
 

  

35812
  

  
MCA-APP   

   BLACKBOARD MOBILE 
COMMUNICATIONS APP  

  
01-Jul-2021 

-  
 30-Jun-2022 

$17,906.00 
 

  
$17,906.00

  
  

$17,906.00 
 

  

1  
  MCA-APP-

MAINT   
  

 MOBILE 
COMMUNICATIONS APP 
MAINTENANCE  

  

01-Jul-2021 
-  

 30-Jun-2022 
 

$200.00 
 

  
$200.00

  
  

$200.00 
 

  

      
 Total  

  
$105,661.65 

  $105,661.65 
 

$105,661.65 
 

  

                                |                                   B. Terms                                                                                                                       
 

1. 
  The Initial Term of this Order Form shall be as specified in the Product and Services Pricing Summary above. 

  
2. 
  Unless otherwise specified in the Product or Service Description above, this Order Form shall be renewed automatically for 

successive periods of one (1) year (each a “Renewal Term”) after the expiration of the Initial Term and any subsequent Renewal 
Term, unless Customer provides Blackboard, or Blackboard provides Customer, with a written notice to the contrary thirty (30) 
days prior to the end of the Initial Term or Renewal Term, as applicable. 
  

3. 
  Effective Date: July 01, 2021  

  
  

 

Page 21 of 962

DRAFT



  
       

  

2021 - BLACKBOARD PROPRIETARY AND CONFIDENTIAL ([894581623-341496 v2 / R2020-236600-06 /  CNT000072369) 
(SC043021)                                                                                                                         2   of     6  

 

                       |                                         C. Payment Terms                                                                                                       
1. All initial and subsequent payments shall be due pursuant to the Local Government Prompt Payment Act. Unless otherwise stated, 
all prices are in United States currency. 
 
2. Sales Tax: If applicable, a copy of your Sales Tax Direct Pay Certificate or your Sales Tax Exemption Certificate must be returned 
with this Order Form. 

                          |                                   D. Special Provisions                                                                                                     
 

1. 1. The parties agree that the relevant products in this Order Form are pursuant to the Interlocal 
Purchasing System ("TIPS") contract numbers 190701 and 181204 between Blackboard and TIPS. 
a. Contract #190701 - Web Hosting, Services or Content Management Products included: WCM, Collab, Ally 

 
b. Contract #181204 Notification Systems 

Products included: WCM, Mobile App, Mass Notification, Ally, Collab, Learn, PL bundle, Authentica, 
training and services 

 
2. The following Exhibits are attached hereto and Incorporated herein by this reference: 

 
a. Exhibit A- Additional terms and conditions 

 
b. Exhibit B- Clay County School District Purchasing Conditions. For purposes of clarification, the 

following provisions shall be amended as follows: 
 

6. Does not apply and therefore deleted in its entirety. 
 

8. Background Investigation- Does not apply and therefore deleted in its entirety. 
 

ACCESS TO RECORDS is hereby deleted and replaced with the following: 
 
Blackboard maintains applicable books and records in Reston, Virginia and those books and 
records shall be subject to a reasonable audit or inspection provided that: a) such audit or 
inspection occurs no more than once per year; b) such audit or inspection is limited solely to records 
and data directly applicable to the District and or solely to Vendor employees rendering services to the 
District, and does not entitle the District to access information related to any other customer; c) such 
audit or inspection does not include a record reproduction right with respect to Vendor confidential 
information; and d) such audit or inspection is at the Districts sole cost and expense. 

Page 22 of 962

DRAFT



  
       

  

2021 - BLACKBOARD PROPRIETARY AND CONFIDENTIAL ([894581623-341496 v2 / R2020-236600-06 /  CNT000072369) 
(SC043021)                                                                                                                         3   of     6  

Sales Approved: [[Rep Name]]  
  
  

  

  

Initial: [[Rep Initial]] 
  
  

  

  

 
Customer: Clay County School District 
  
  

  

 

Blackboard Inc. 

  
  

Signature: 
Signature: [[ethan.caren@myoneclay.net]] 

  

 

Signature: 

 

Name: [[Ethan Caren]] 
  
  

  

 

Name: Bill Jones
  
  

Title: [[Title]] 
  
  

  

 

Title: Deputy General Counsel 
  

Date: [[Date]] 
  
  

  

 

Date: June 8, 2021
  
  

          
  

  

Blackboard does not require a PO for the purchase or payment of the products on this Order Form. If your organization 
requires a PO in addition to this signed contract, please provide all known information here. If a PO will be issued after 
signature, indicate “Pending” in the PO Number field. 
  

  
PO Number: [[PO Number]]                                PO Amount: [[PO Amount]]

  
Attach PO or send PO to Operations@blackboard.com (Optional):[[POAttachment]]               
Attach Tax Exemption (Optional): [[TaxAttachment]] 

  
Invoicing 
  
Send Invoices via email to: 
1.   Name: [[InvoiceName1]]                              Email: [[InvoiceEmail1]] 
2.   Name: [[InvoiceName2]]                              Email: [[InvoiceEmail2]] 
3.   Name: [[InvoiceName3]]                              Email: [[InvoiceEmail3]] 
  
  

  
  
  
  

Page 23 of 962

DRAFT



  
       

  

2021 - BLACKBOARD PROPRIETARY AND CONFIDENTIAL ([894581623-341496 v2 / R2020-236600-06 /  CNT000072369) 
(SC043021)                                                                                                                         4   of     6  

EXHIBIT A 
Additional terms and conditions 

 
Notwithstanding any contrary contractual language, nothing in any agreement shall be construed or interpreted to increase the 
scope or dollar limit of the School’s or School Board’s liability beyond that which is set forth in 768.28 Fla. Stat , or to otherwise 
waive School’s or School Board’s sovereign immunity, or any rights to liability existing under section768.28, Fla. Stat. 
 
All Public Records Request shall be administered by the District Records Office at 900 Walnut Street, Green Cove Springs, Florida 
32043, phone 904.284.6507, or by email at: PRR@myoneclay.net The Public Records Request Procedure form is available online at 
https://drive.google.com/a/myoneclay.net/file/d/0B5jVR- olGoaBbnVRV2hYZ25PRnc/view?usp=sharing 

 
Vendor must provide a Certificate of Insurance. Certificate of Insurance must have an A- or better rating and carry General Liability 
and Workers’ Compensation. Certificate of Insurance must make the School Board of Clay County an additionally insured as well as 
the Certificate Holder. 

 
GOVERNMENT FUNDING / FEDERAL GRANTS: Funding for the applicable Order From may be provided in whole or in part by one 
or more Government funding agencies (Federal, State, Local). As a result, Seller shall comply with applicable Laws, Regulations, 
Executive Orders, and Governmental Agency Rules and Policies included but not limited to Florida Department of Education (DMS, 
SREF); Florida Statutes Chapter 287, 489; Code of Federal Regulations Titles: 2 – Grants and Agreements (2 C.F.R. §200), Title 
7 – Agriculture (NSLP), Title 34 – Education (EDGAR, FERPA), Title 44 – Emergency Management and Assistance (FEMA); U.S. 
Code Titles: 20, 31, 40, 41. By fulfilling this order, Seller agrees that it is and will continue to be in compliance with said terms 
and conditions of this section for the term of the purchase. 
 
E-VERIFY: For the purposes of this Order Form. the Contractor named herein, and its subcontractors, if any, are required to 
register with and use the U.S. Department of Homeland Security’s (DHS) E-Verify system to verify the work authorization status of 
all newly hired employees. By executing this Contract, the Contractor certifies that it, and any sub-contractors with which it 
contracts, are registered with, and use, the E-Verify system for all newly hired employees and acknowledges that it must obtain an 
affidavit from its subcontractors in accordance with section 448.095(2)(b) Fla. Stat. that the subcontractor does not employ, 
contract with or subcontract with any unauthorized alien. The Contractor must maintain a copy of such affidavit for the duration of 
the Contract. This section serves as notice to the Contractor that, pursuant to the terms of section 448.095(2)(c)1 and 2, Florida 
Statutes, the School Board shall terminate this Contract if it has a good faith belief that the Contractor has knowingly violated 
section 448.09(1), F.S.. If the School Board has a good faith belief that the subcontractor, without the knowledge of the Contractor, 
has knowingly violated section 448.09(1) or 448.095(2), F.S., School board shall notify the Contractor and order the Contractor to 
immediately terminate the contract with the subcontractor. If the School Board terminates a contract with a Contractor pursuant to 
sec. 448.095(2)(c), F.S., the Contractor will not be awarded a public contract for at least one year after the date of such 
termination. 
 
FERPA: To the extent services provided hereunder pertain to the access to student information, Seller shall adhere to all standards 
included in the Family Educational Rights and Privacy Act (FERPA) and Sections 1001.41 and 1002.22, Florida Statutes (the Protection of 
Pupil Privacy Acts), and other applicable laws and regulations as they relate to the release of student information. 
 
PUBLIC RECORDS:  IF CONTRACTOR HAS QUESTIONS REGARDING THE APPLICATION OF CHAPTER 119, FLORIDA 
STATUTES, OR CONTRACTOR’S DUTY TO PROVIDE PUBLIC RECORDS RELATING TO THIS CONTRACT, CONTRACTOR SHALL 
CONTACT THE SCHOOL DISTRICT’S CUSTODIAN OF PUBLIC RECORDS AT 900 WALNUT STREET, GREEN COVE SPRINGS, 
FLORIDA 32043, OR AT 
904-336-6500, OR AT: PRR@myoneclay.net 
 
SOVEREIGN IMMUNITY: No provision or language in the underlying contract shall be construed or interpreted to increase the 
scope or dollar limit of the SBCC’s liability beyond that which is set forth in section 768.28 of the Florida Statutes. Nor shall any 
such language be construed or interpreted to waive the SBCC’s sovereign immunity from suit. The SBCC expressly reserves all 
other protections and privileges related to its sovereign immunity. 
  

Page 24 of 962

DRAFT



Page 25 of 962

DRAFT



Page 26 of 962

DRAFT



Page 27 of 962

DRAFT



Page 28 of 962

DRAFT



Page 29 of 962

DRAFT



Page 30 of 962

DRAFT



Page 31 of 962

DRAFT



Page 32 of 962

DRAFT



Page 33 of 962

DRAFT



Page 34 of 962

DRAFT



Page 35 of 962

DRAFT



Page 36 of 962

DRAFT



Page 37 of 962

DRAFT



Page 38 of 962

DRAFT



Page 39 of 962

DRAFT



Page 40 of 962

DRAFT



Page 41 of 962

DRAFT



Page 42 of 962

DRAFT



Page 43 of 962

DRAFT



Page 44 of 962

DRAFT



Page 45 of 962

DRAFT



Page 46 of 962

DRAFT



Page 47 of 962

DRAFT



Page 48 of 962

DRAFT



Page 49 of 962

DRAFT



Page 50 of 962

DRAFT



Page 51 of 962

DRAFT



Page 52 of 962

DRAFT



Page 53 of 962

DRAFT



Page 54 of 962

DRAFT



Page 55 of 962

DRAFT



Page 56 of 962

DRAFT



Page 57 of 962

DRAFT



Page 58 of 962

DRAFT



Page 59 of 962

DRAFT



Page 60 of 962

DRAFT



Page 61 of 962

DRAFT



Page 62 of 962

DRAFT



Page 63 of 962

DRAFT



School Board of Clay County

June 24, 2021 - Regular School Board Meeting

Title
C4 - Personnel Consent Agenda

Description
Florida Statutes, State Board Rules and Clay County School Board Policies require Board notification and/or action regarding
decisions and recommendations of the Superintendent related to Personnel matters.  Actions regarding personnel have been
recommended by Supervisors, approved by the Superintendent and are being forwarded to the Board for action or, if appropriate,
for information.  Personnel Actions, Transfer Requests, Pre-employments, Leave Forms or Directives from the Superintendent
are available for review in the Human Resources Division.

Gap Analysis
These personnel actions are necessary for the effective operation of the school district.

Previous Outcomes
The Clay County School Board has approved each month a Personnel Consent Agenda which contains appointments, re-
appointments, transfers, redesignations, retirements, resignations, and conclude employments.

Expected Outcomes
Approval of the Personnel Consent Agenda.

Strategic Plan Goal
Goal 5:  Develop and support great educators, support personnel, and leaders.
 
Initiative 5.1.1 - Recruit and retain highly skilled, qualified, and diverse educators, leaders, and support staff.

Recommendation
To approve the Personnel Consent Agenda.

Contact
Brenda G. Troutman, Assistant Superintendent for Human Resources.  (904) 336-6701 Brenda.Troutman@myoneclay.net

Financial Impact
Personnel changes involving already-allocated positions will result in salary impact per the current Board-approved Salary
Schedule.  This also includes supplemental positions.  See current backup for allocation changes for impact of new positions.

Review Comments

Attachments

Personnel Consent Agenda 6 24 2021.pdf

Page 64 of 962

DRAFT

http://agenda.oneclay.net/content/files/personnel-consent-agenda-6-24-2021_1.pdf


Page 65 of 962

DRAFT



Page 66 of 962

DRAFT



Page 67 of 962

DRAFT



Page 68 of 962

DRAFT



Page 69 of 962

DRAFT



Page 70 of 962

DRAFT



Page 71 of 962

DRAFT



Page 72 of 962

DRAFT



Page 73 of 962

DRAFT



Page 74 of 962

DRAFT



Page 75 of 962

DRAFT



Page 76 of 962

DRAFT



Page 77 of 962

DRAFT



Page 78 of 962

DRAFT



Page 79 of 962

DRAFT



Page 80 of 962

DRAFT



Page 81 of 962

DRAFT



Page 82 of 962

DRAFT



Page 83 of 962

DRAFT



Page 84 of 962

DRAFT



Page 85 of 962

DRAFT



Page 86 of 962

DRAFT



Page 87 of 962

DRAFT



Page 88 of 962

DRAFT



Page 89 of 962

DRAFT



Page 90 of 962

DRAFT



Page 91 of 962

DRAFT



Page 92 of 962

DRAFT



Page 93 of 962

DRAFT



Page 94 of 962

DRAFT



Page 95 of 962

DRAFT



Page 96 of 962

DRAFT



Page 97 of 962

DRAFT



Page 98 of 962

DRAFT



Page 99 of 962

DRAFT



Page 100 of 962

DRAFT



Page 101 of 962

DRAFT



Page 102 of 962

DRAFT



Page 103 of 962

DRAFT



Page 104 of 962

DRAFT



Page 105 of 962

DRAFT



Page 106 of 962

DRAFT



Page 107 of 962

DRAFT



Page 108 of 962

DRAFT



Page 109 of 962

DRAFT



Page 110 of 962

DRAFT



Page 111 of 962

DRAFT



Page 112 of 962

DRAFT



Page 113 of 962

DRAFT



Page 114 of 962

DRAFT



Page 115 of 962

DRAFT



Page 116 of 962

DRAFT



Page 117 of 962

DRAFT



Page 118 of 962

DRAFT



Page 119 of 962

DRAFT



Page 120 of 962

DRAFT



Page 121 of 962

DRAFT



Page 122 of 962

DRAFT



Page 123 of 962

DRAFT



Page 124 of 962

DRAFT



Page 125 of 962

DRAFT



Page 126 of 962

DRAFT



Page 127 of 962

DRAFT



Page 128 of 962

DRAFT



Page 129 of 962

DRAFT



Page 130 of 962

DRAFT



Page 131 of 962

DRAFT



Page 132 of 962

DRAFT



Page 133 of 962

DRAFT



Page 134 of 962

DRAFT



Page 135 of 962

DRAFT



Page 136 of 962

DRAFT



Page 137 of 962

DRAFT



Page 138 of 962

DRAFT



Page 139 of 962

DRAFT



Page 140 of 962

DRAFT



Page 141 of 962

DRAFT



Page 142 of 962

DRAFT



Page 143 of 962

DRAFT



Page 144 of 962

DRAFT



School Board of Clay County

June 24, 2021 - Regular School Board Meeting

Title
C5 - Daily Hours for Teachers and Students for School Year 2021-22

Description
Clay County District Schools establish student and teacher reporting hours on an annual basis. Additionally, common planning
time is delineated for each school on a weekly basis. Common planning provides structured time during the school day for
teachers to share instructional challenges, and best practices, as well as participate in sustained development activities. 

Gap Analysis
The use of Common planning time links collaboration among adults in schools with higher levels of teacher commitment,
satisfaction, efficacy, and improved student outcomes. Common planning time has the potential to advance student achievement,
teacher efficacy, and sustain effective learning environments.

Previous Outcomes
Clay County District Schools establishes daily school hours on an annual basis to accommodate the adjustments made for weekly
common planning time. 

Expected Outcomes
Grade levels and departments within schools will set and monitor student engagement and achievement goals and
practices.

1.

Common Planning time will serve to assist teams of teachers to implement the district's instructional frameworks,
curriculum guides, and new resources. 

2.

Common Planning time will serve schools and grade-levels/content teams to identify and use interventions that touch all
students (e.g., positive behavior and incentive systems, active instruction, college/career awareness). 

3.

Strategic Plan Goal
Goal 1: Develop Great Educators and Leaders.  -
Strategy 1.1: Develop a high quality and aligned instructional system.-

Recommendation
That the Clay County School Board approve the 2021-22 School Hours as submitted. 

Contact
Roger Dailey, Chief Academic Officer, roger.dailey@myoneclay.net, 904.652.3066

Financial Impact
None

Review Comments

Attachments

Updated School-hours-2021-22.pdf

Page 145 of 962

DRAFT

http://agenda.oneclay.net/content/files/updated-school-hours-2021-22_1.pdf


Clay County District Schools School Hours
2021-2022

SCHOOL
TEACHER

REPORTING
TEACHER
LEAVING

STUDENT
REPORTING

STUDENT
LEAVING

PLCs/COMMON
PLANNING SCHOOL

TEACHER
REPORTIN
G

TEACHER
LEAVING

STUDENT
REPORTING

STUDENT
LEAVING

PLCs/COMMON
PLANNING

Argyle Elementary
(Wednesday only)

8:00
8:15

3:30
3:45

8:30 2:42 2:45-3:45
Wednesday

Middleburg High 7:00 2:30 7:20 1:40
1:20

1:30-2:30
Wednesday

Bannerman Learning Center

(Wednesday Only)

6:45
7:00
7:30

2:15
2:30
3:00

6:45
7:45

1:10
2:02

1:15-2:15
2:05-3:00

Wednesday

Montclair Elementary
(Wednesday Only)

7:45
8:00

3:15
3:30

8:30 2:42 2:50-3:30
Wednesday

C.E. Bennett Elementary 7:50 3:40 8:10 2:50 1:30-2:40
Monday

Oakleaf Junior High 8:20 3:50 9:30 3:42 8:30-9:15
Thursdays

Clay Hill Elementary 7:30 3:00 8:30 2:42 7:30-8:15
Thursday

Oakleaf Village Elementary
(Wednesday Only)

7:50
8:15

3:20
3:45

8:30 2:42 2:45-3:45
Wednesday

Clay High 7:00 2:30 7:20 1:40
1:20

1:30-2:30
Wednesday

Orange Park Elementary
(Wednesday Only)

7:10
7:30

2:40
3:00

7:45 1:57 2:15-3:00
Wednesday

Coppergate Elementary
(Wednesday Only)

7:50
7:25

3:20
3:05

8:30 2:42 7:25-8:10
Wednesday

Orange Park Junior High 8:20 3:50 9:30 3:42 8:30-9:15
Thursday

Discovery Oaks Elementary
(Tuesdays Only)

7:50
8:10

3:20
3:40

8:30 2:42 2:50- 3:40
Tuesday

Orange Park High 7:00 2:30 7:20 1:40
1:20

1:30-2:30
Wednesday

Doctors Inlet Elementary
(Wednesday Only)

7:40
8:15

3:10
3:45

8:30 2:42 2:45-3:45
Wednesday

Paterson Elementary 8:00 3:30 8:30 2:42 2:50-3:30
Tuesday

Fleming Island Elementary
(Wednesday Only)

7:45
8:10

3:15
3:40

8:30 2:42 2:45-3:40
Wednesday

Plantation Oaks Elementary
(Tuesday Only)

7:45
7:25

3:15
2:55

8:30 2:42 7:25-8:25
Tuesday

Fleming Island High
(Wednesday Only)

7:00 2:30 7:20 1:40
1:20

1:30-2:30
Wednesday

RideOut Elementary
(Tuesday Only)

7:50
8:10

3:20
3:40

8:20 2:32 2:40-3:40
Tuesday

Green Cove Springs Jr High
(Thursdays Only)

8:25
8:20

3:55
3:50

9:30 3:42 8:30-9:15
Thursday

Ridgeview Elementary
(Wednesday Only)

7:45
8:00

3:15
3:30

8:30 2:42 2:50--3:30
Wednesday

Grove Park Elementary
(Tuesday Only)

7:45
8:00

3:15
3:30

8:30 2:42 2:50-3:30
Tuesday

Ridgeview High 7:00 2:30 7:20 1:40
1:20

1:30-2:30
Wednesday

Keystone Heights
Elementary
(Wednesday Only)

8:00
7:30

3:30
3:00

8:35 2:47 7:30-8:30
Wednesday

S.B. Jennings Elementary
(Tuesday Only)

7:30
8:00

3:00
3:30

8:30 2:42 2:45 - 3:30
Tuesday

Keystone Heights Jr/Sr High 7:00 2:30 7:20 1:40
1:20

1:30-2:30
Wednesday

Shadowlawn Elementary
(Tuesday Only)

7:45
8:05

3:15
3:35

8:20 2:32 2:45-3:35
Tuesday

Lake Asbury Elementary
(Wednesday Only)

7:40 3:10 8:30 2:42 7:40-8:20
Wednesday

Swimming Pen Creek
Elementary .

7:30 3:00 8:30 2:42 7:30-8:10
Thursday

Lake Asbury Junior High 8:20 3:50 9:30 3:42 8:30-9:15
Thursday

Thunderbolt Elementary
(Tuesday Only)

7:40
7:30

3:10
3:00

8:30 2:42 7:30-8:10
Tuesday

Lakeside Elementary
(Thursday Only)

7:40
7:25

3:10
2:55

8:30 2:42 7:25-8:25
Thursday

Tynes Elementary
(Thursday Only)

7:40
7:30

3:10
3:00

8:30 2:42 7:30-8:10
Thursday

Lakeside Junior High 8:20 3:50 9:30 3:42 8:30-9:15
Thursday

W.E. Cherry Elementary
(Tuesday Only)

8:00
8:15

3:30
3:45

8:30 2:42 2:45-3:45
Tuesday

McRae Elementary
(Thursday Only)

7:45
7:30

3:15
3:00

8:45 2:57 7:30-8:30
Thursday

Wilkinson Elementary
(Wednesday Only)

7:30
7:20

3:00
2:50

8:30 2:40 7:20-8:00
Wednesday

Middleburg Elementary
(Wednesday Only)

7:45
8:15

3:15
3:45

8:30 2:42 2:45-3:45
Wednesday

Wilkinson Junior High 8:20 3:50 9:30 3:42 8:25-9:20
Thursday

Page 146 of 962

DRAFT



School Board of Clay County

June 24, 2021 - Regular School Board Meeting

Title
C6 - 2021-22 Interagency Agreement Between the School Board of Clay County, Florida and the Department of Military Affairs;
State of Florida

Description
A collaborative agreement between the National Guard (DMA) and the School Board of Clay County for the  purpose of
providing an alternative educational environment for students from the state of Florida.  The 2021-22 agreement allows for the
continuation of a longstanding relationship between the two organizations (since 2001).  Students from all 67 districts are eligible
to attend FLYCA and either obtain a GED, participate in credit recovery courses (K-12), and/or obtain a high school diploma. 
This agreement outlines the roles and responsibilities of the two organizations.

Gap Analysis
Through the intentional work and collaboration of the two organizations, the program averages 150+ graduates a class (2 classes
per year).  The program seeks to increase the passage rate each year of the GED candidates AND allows "Track 1" students to
earn credit recovery opportunities in order to move toward their diplomas when they return to their home school.  For the vast
majority of the cadets, without this program the student would be considered as dropouts.
 

Previous Outcomes
In the 2020-21 classes (2 per year), GED eligible students (Track 2 students) recorded a 81% passing rate.  This is a 1% increase
from last year.  "Track 1" students have recovered/earned 95 high school credits from the Edgenuity software program being
utilized.
 

Expected Outcomes
Cadets entering the program will continue to earn credit recovery grades in order to return to their home schools.  The goal is for
each cadet to earn at least 3 high school credits via their participation.  The goal for passage of the GED (4 sections) is 88% of
"Track 2" students.  Of the students who enter the program, FLYCA expects 93% to complete the entire program from beginning
to end.
 

Strategic Plan Goal
FLYCA provides an alternative setting for students who are behind in credits or who have difficulties functioning in a traditional
school setting. The program is a voluntary program that lasts for 5 1/2 months in the residential phase and then an additional 12
months in the post-residency phase.  This program provides an opportunity for students to get back on track with their
educational career and future career goals.

Recommendation
Approval of the 2021-22 Agreement

Contact
Roger Dailey, Chief Academic Officer, roger.dailey@myoneclay.net, 904-336-6905
Treasure Pickett, Director of K-12 Academic Services, treasure.pickett@myoneclay.net, 904-336-6918

Financial Impact
$575,000 will be paid by FLYCA to the District along with FTE generated funds

Review Comments

Attachments

210124 Florida Youth Challenge Academy.pdf

Page 147 of 962

DRAFT

http://agenda.oneclay.net/content/files/210124-florida-youth-challenge-academy.pdf


Page 148 of 962

DRAFT



Page 149 of 962

DRAFT



Page 150 of 962

DRAFT



Page 151 of 962

DRAFT



Page 152 of 962

DRAFT



Page 153 of 962

DRAFT



Page 154 of 962

DRAFT



Page 155 of 962

DRAFT



Page 156 of 962

DRAFT



School Board of Clay County

June 24, 2021 - Regular School Board Meeting

Title
C7 - Contract between Pace Center for Girls, Inc. and School Board of Clay County

Description
A collaborative agreement between the School Board of Clay County and Pace Center for Girls, Inc., to address the needs of
female students in Clay County.  This program works in conjunction with the Department of Juvenile Justice, to provide an
educational program and related services for eligible female students (up to 44 students).  This program focuses on student needs
dealing with specialized counseling, credit recovery services, life skills, positive gender identification, community service
learning projects, and career exploration.  Students attend the program for approximately 1 year.  The collaboration between the
two organizations has allowed students to seek an alternative setting to a previously unsuccessful environment. 

Gap Analysis
The district monitors the program and their intervention strategies in order to yield positive results in the areas of academics,
social behavior, and the number of students who successfully return to their home school.

Previous Outcomes
Pace earned a school accountablilty rating of "Commendable", which is the highest rating possible, in the 2020-21 DJJ
Accountablity Report.  
 

Expected Outcomes
By continuing the collaboration with Pace Center for Girls, Inc, it is expected that students will be identified by the secondary
schools, Bannerman Learning Center, recommended by parents, and/or the student volunteers for the program.  Pace Center for
Girls, Inc. is notified by any of these sources and students are oriented to the program.  Once the students are enrolled, they begin
the counseling program offered and then the credit/course recovery program begins.  Periodic meetings take place to review
outcomes and to communicate with the District on proposed return dates of the students.  Through the District plan, students are
able to recoup credits and, therefore, remain on track to either be promoted or to earn the necessary credits towards graduation. 
Curriculum deficiencies are addressed, counseling and behavior therapy takes place, increasing the likelihood of success for the
students.

Strategic Plan Goal
Goal 3: Establish a respectful climate and culture that provides equity and access to all.
Strategy 3.1: Engage stakeholders to strengthen and build a collaborative and constructive environment that encourages high
expectations for all.

Recommendation
That the Clay County School Board approve the contract between Pace Center for Girls, Inc. and the School Board of Clay
County.

Contact
Roger Daily, Chief Academic Officer; roger.dailey@myoneclay.net, 904-336-6905
Treasure Pickett, Director of K-12 Academic Services; treasure.pickett@myoneclay.net, 904-336-6918

Financial Impact
Clay County allocates 95% of an FTE to Pace Center for Girls, Inc.; 5% of an FTE is allocated to the School Board of Clay
County.

Review Comments

Attachments

210126 PACE.pdf

Page 157 of 962

DRAFT

http://agenda.oneclay.net/content/files/210126-pace.pdf


FC'U.OW.All PROCEDURES ON BACK OF THIS FORM 

CONTRACT REVIEW 

Date Submitted: S 
Name of Contract lniti 

School/Dept Submitti Cost Center # 

Vendor Name: ,, 

Contract Title: 

Contract Type: 

Contract Term, 

Contract Cost: [) 

0 BUDGETED FUNDS - SEND CONTRACT PACKAGE DIRECTL V TO PURCHASING DEPT 

Contract# ?, 1 Q 11 lo 
Number Assigned by Purchasing Dept. 

BOARD MEETING DATE: 

WHEN BOARD APPROVAL IS REQUIRED DO 
N0TPLACE ITEM ON AGENDA UNTIL 

REVIEW IS COMPLETED 
OMust Have Board Approval over $100,00.00 

Funding Source: Budget Line # ____________________ ____ __ _ 
Funding Source: Budget Line # ___ ________________ ______ _ _ 

0 NO COST MASTER (COUNTY WIDE) CONTRACT - SEND CONTRACT l>ACl(AGE DIRECTLY TO PURCHASING DEPT 

0 INTERNAL ACCOUNT - IF FUNDED FROM SCHOOL IA f UNDS - SEND CONTRACT PACl(AGE OIRECTL V TO SBAO 
REQUIRED DOCUMENTS FOR CONTRACT REVIEW PACKAGE (when appficable); 

ft Completed Contract Review Form 
. SBA0 Template Contract or other Contract {NOT SIGNED by District/ School) 

SIGNED Addendum A (If not an SBAO'Template Contract}* 
•This Statement MUST BE Included In the body of the Contract: 
'1The terms and condltfons of Addendum A are hereby fncorporated Into this Agreement and the same shall 
govern and prevail over any tXJnf/lcting terms and/ or conditions herein stated. " 

__Q_ Certificate of lnsurance.(C0I) for General Liability & Workers' Compensation that meet these requirements: 
COi must /!st the Schoo/Board of Clay County, Florida as an Addltlonallnsured and Certificate Holder. Insurer must be rated ask or better. 

General Uabillty~ $1, 00D,000 Eoch Occurrence & $2,000,000 General Aggregate, 
Auto Llabl/lty = $1,000,000Comblned Single limit {$5,000,000 for Charter Buses). 
Workers' Compensation= $100,000 Minimum 

[If exempt from Workers' Campsnsationlnsurance, vendor/contractor must sign aRe/ease·andHold Harmless Form. If not exempt, vendor/contractor 
must provide Workers' Compensation coverage], 

_Q_ State of Florida Workers Comp Exemption {https://apps.fldfs.com/bocexempt/l ( If Applicable) 

_Q_ C0VID·19 Waiver (If Applicable) 

_il_ Release and Hold Harmless {If Applicable) 

CONTRACT REVIEWED BY: 
Purchasing Department 

B~ 
Review Date VJ j, / z.o 21 
School Board Attornes-b 

Review Date crl te LO · 
Other Dept. as Necessary 

Review Date 

PENDING STATUS: □YES □NO 

FINAL STATUS 

**AREA BELOW FOR DISTRICT PERSONNEL ONLY ** 
COMMENTS BELOW BY REVIEWING DEPARTMENT 

Ho+ C\ {};sf N ff P,ute- aslr1 {f\O U l>o \:?Gi t;'iM ~, te, , 
'3vf~'"', ~ o. S.i5r,1<k ~ tr#e I I 

fs Corihot!.+ Re la&& LiArrenf t on a 130 ! 
,"00.te 'Su(e (.,)ecu') Cort (w,\-ht ui St-,;tc:.-\hr~~ j 50 }o bO J 

IF YES, HIGHLIGHTED COMMENTS ABOVE MUST B.E CORRECTED BY INITIATOR 

Received - Done

Page 158 of 962

DRAFT



PACE Contract Changes - (in red) 

Dates changed throughout contract- July 2021 -June 2022 

ll. delete "of instructional materials categorical" per Legutko 
#5. Change "No Child Left Behind" to "Every Student Succeeds Act" 
#9. - Insert verbiage regarding PACE utilizing Clay County Kelly Services for substitute 

teachers 

#10. Change FOCUS to Synergy 
Added #17. SSO information 
#29. Verbiage changed with instructional calendar days 

#36. Information from Derald Sweat in reference to transportation 

r . 
I 

Page 159 of 962

DRAFT



Page 160 of 962

DRAFT



Page 161 of 962

DRAFT



Page 162 of 962

DRAFT



Page 163 of 962

DRAFT



Page 164 of 962

DRAFT



Page 165 of 962

DRAFT



Page 166 of 962

DRAFT



Page 167 of 962

DRAFT



"ADDENDUM A" 
TO CONTRACT WITH 

THE SCHOOL BOARD OF CLAY COUNTY, FLORIDA 

Notwithstanding any contractual language to the contrary, the terms and conditions of this "Addendum A" shall govern 
and prevail over any conflicting or inconsistent terms and conditions in the underlying contract to which this "Addendum 
A" is attached and/or otherwise incorporated. All references herein made to the School Board of Clay County, Florida 
("SBCC") shall be interpreted to include the School Board of Clay County, Florida, Clay County District Schools 
("District"), and all Board officers and employees. 

I. The Company, Vendor, Agency, or Consultant, of Contract with the School Board of Clay County, hereafter 
collectively and individually referred to as the "Contractor". 

2. CONTRACTOR represents that it is an independent contractor and that it requires that the SBCC treat it as such. 
CONTRACTOR agrees: 
a. That it has no rights to any benefits extended by the SBCC to its employees [including without limitation, sick 

leave, vacation time, insurance coverage, etc.]; 
b. That it wiJI not take a position contrary to their status as an independent contractor, and agrees to accept the 

responsibilities placed on independent contractors by federal and state law accordingly, the SBCC will not make 
the deductions or contributions that an employer may be required to make with respect to its employees, and the 
undersigned will be responsible for all federal and state tax and fund obligations, including without limitation, 
income tax, Social Security, unemployment compensation, etc.]; 

c. CONTRACTOR agrees, as an independent contractor and not an employee of the SBCC, it is responsible for 
providing their own Worker's Compensation Insurance and social security/self-employment contributions. 

3. CONTRACTOR acknowledges and accepts responsibility for all risks of injury and loss associated with the 
performance of this Agreement. In addition to any other statutory or common law obligation to indemnify and defend 
the SBCC, CONTRACTOR shall indemnify, defend, and hold harmless the SBCC, its officers, and employees from 
any claim, loss, damage, penalty, or liability arising from the negligent acts, omissions, misfeasance, malfeasance, or 
intentionally wrongful conduct of CONTRACTOR, its employees, or agenls relating to the performance of duties 
imposed upon CONTRACTOR by this Agreement. Such indemnity shall not be limited by benefits payable by or for 
CONTRACTOR under worker's compensation, disability, or any other employee benefits or insurance programs or 
policies. Contractor shall timely provide to the SBCC written notice of any claim, complaint, or demand asse1ted 
against CONTRACTOR related to the perfomiance of this Agreement. CONTRACTOR's obligations under this 
section shall survive the termination of this Agreement. 

4. CONTRACTOR agrees to be bound by, and at its own expense comply with, all federal, state, and local laws, 
ordinances, and regulations applicable to the services. CONTRACTOR shall review and comply with the 
confidentiality requirements of federal and state law and the SBCC policy regarding access to and use of records. 

5. Reservation of Sovereign Immunity: No provision or language in the underlying contract shall be construed or 
interpreted to increase the scope or dollar limit of the SBCC's liability beyond that which is set forth in Section 768.28 
of the Florida Statutes. Nor shall any such language be construed or interpreted to waive the SBCC's sovereign 
immunity from suit, or to require the SBCC to indemnify CONTRACTOR or any other person, corporation or legal 
entity of any kind or nature whatsoever for injury or loss resulting from any acts or omissions other than those which 
arise from the actionable negligence of the SBCC. The SBCC expressly reserves all other protections and privileges 
related to its sovereign immunity. 

6. CONTRACTOR will perfonn the services in a thorough, efficient, and professional manner, promptly and with due 
diligence and care, and in accordance with the best practices of the profession, utilizing qualified and suitable 
personnel, equipment and materials. CONTRACTOR warrants and represents to the SBCC that it possesses the 
expertise, capability, equipment and personnel to properly perform the services and that it is properly and legally 
licensed to perform the services. CONTRACTOR acknowledges that the SBCC is relying on the warranties and 
representations made by CONTRACTOR. 

SBAO (3/15/2021) - "Ad<len<lmn A" To Contract With The SRCC Page 1 of14 

Page 168 of 962

DRAFT



7. Method of Payment (if applicable): Services and/or Products satisfactorily received shall be compensated in 
accordance with Attachment A and the following terms: 
a. Procurement is performed in accordance with applicable law, State Board of Education Rules, Clay County School 

Board Policy and other applicable rules and regulations which govern. CONTRACTOR shall be paid in accordance 
with the Local Government Prompt Payment Act (218.70, et seq., Florida Statutes) upon submission of detailed 
invoices to the appropriate location listed on the District Purchase Order and/or the School Internal Account 
Purchase Order, and only after delivery and acceptance of the services and/or products provided. 

b. Services and/or Products, as authorized and approved by SBCC, shall be compensated by Hour Rate (cost per 
hour)/ Fixed Fee (includes direct and indirect costs) /Flat Rate (costfor scope of work) I etc. 

c. Direct reimbursement for travel expenses, as authorized by and listed in Attaclunent A, shall be made in accordance 
with the requirements and rates found at F.S. 112.061 and any applicable the SBCC policies. 

d. Incurrence of other direct expenses, if any, must be pre-approved in writing by the SBCC. 
e. Unless otherwise required by law, the SBCC's payment obligations (if any) arising from the underlying Agreement 

are contingent upon an annual appropriation by the School Board and the availability of funds to pay for the 
contracted services and/or products provided. If such funds arc not appropriated for the underlying Agreement and 
results in its termination, such conditions/events shall not constitute a default by the SBCC. 

8. The SBCC and CONTRACTOR have mutual rights to terminate this Agreement with or without cause and without 
penalty or fmther payment, at any time upon thirty (30) days written notice to the other patty. However, if it is 
determined by the SBCC that the work is not being performed as agreed herein, CONTRACTOR shall be deemed to 
be in default, and the SBCC reserves the right to cancel this Agreement immediately. 

9. Force Majeure: Neither party to this Agreement shall be liable for delays or failures in performance under this 
Agreement ( other than obligations relating to payment, confidentiality, and protection of ownership and intellectual 
property rights) resulting from acts or events beyond the reasonable control of such pmiy (a "Force Majeure Event"), 
including acts of war, terrorism, acts of God, earthquake, flood, embargo, riot, sabotage, labor dispute, wide spread 
outbreak of disease or pandemic, governmental act, failure of the internet, power failure, or energy, utility, or 
telecommunications interruptions, provided that the delayed party: (i) gives the other party prompt notice of such 
cause; and (ii) uses its reasonable commercial efforts to promptly correct such failure or delay in performance. In the 
event that a Force Majcure Event lasts for more than 90 days, and the party experiencing the initial delay cannot 
correct its failure or delay in performance during that period of time, despite using its reasonable commercial efforts 
to do so, the other party may terminate the affected portions of this Agreement. 

I 0. This Agreement shall not be modified or amended except in writing, duly agreed to and executed by the parties. 

11. CONTRACTOR shall not assign this Agreement in whole or in part, without the express written consent of the SBCC 
Purchasing Department. 

12. Th is Agreement shall be governed by and construed in accordance with the laws of the State of Florida and venue 
shall be in Clay County, rlorida. 

13. No other representations or promises shall be binding on the parties hereto except those representations or promises 
contained herein. 

14. In the event that any part, term, or provision of this Agreement is, in a court of competent jurisdiction, found to be 
illegal or unenforceable, the validity of the remaining portions and provisions will not be affected, and the rights and 
obligations of the parties shall be construed and enforced as if this Agreement did not contain the pmiicular part, term, 
or provision held to be so invalid. 

15. Should any litigation be commenced in connection with this Agreement, the prevailing party shall be entitled to 
reasonable attorney fees and court costs. 

16. The pmiics hereto represent that they have reviewed this Agreement and have sought legal advice concerning the legal 
significance and ramifications of this Agreement. 

17. CONTRACTOR shall retain records associated with the services and/or products provided herein for a period of three 
years following final payment. CONTRACTOR shall, with reasonable notice, provide the SBCC access to these 
records during the above retention period. 

SBAO (3/15/2021 )- "Addendum A" To Contract With The SBCC Page 2 of 14 

Page 169 of 962

DRAFT



18. Jessica Lunsford Act: SBCC is required to conduct background screening of CONTRACTOR (including its 
employees, agents, and sub-contractors) (go to Clay County District Schools website for :fingerprinting procedures). 
CONTRACTOR represents and warrants to the SBCC that CONTRACTOR is familiar with Sections 1012.32, 
1012.321, 1012.465, 1012.467, and 1012.468 of the Florida Statutes regarding background investigations. 
CONTRACTOR covenants to comply with all requirements of the above-cited statutes at CONTRACTOR's sole 
expense and shall provide the SBCC proof of such compliance upon request. 

Certification: By executing this Agreement, CONTRACTOR swears and affirms under penalty ofper:jury that all of 
its employees, agents, and subcontractors will comply with these procedures, the requirements of the Jessica Lunsford 
Act, SBCC's finger printing procedures, and the laws of the State of Florida. Failure to comply with these procedures, 
the Act, SBCC's finger printing procedures, and the law of the State of Florida shall constitute a material breach of 
the Agreement, and SBCC may avail itself of all remedies pursuant to law. CONTRACTOR agrees to indemnify and 
hold harmless SBCC, its officers, employees, and agents, from and against any and all claims or causes of action, 
including without limitation those for personal injury, death, property damages, and attorney fees, arising out of or 
relating to CONTRACTOR's failure to comply with any of the above. 

19. E-Verify: CONTRACTOR named herein, and its subcontractors, are required to register with and use the U.S. 
Department of Homeland Security's (OHS) E-Veri:fy system to verify the work authorization status of all newly hired 
employees. By executing this Agreement, the CONTRACTOR ce11ifies that it, and any sub-contractors with which it 
contracts, are registered with, and use, the E-Verify system for all newly hired employees, and acknowledges that it 
must obtain an affidavit from its subcontractors in accordance with Section 448.095(2)(b) Fla. Stat. that the 
subcontractor does not employ, contract with or subcontract with any unauthorized alien. The CONTRACTOR must 
maintain a copy of such affidavit for the duration of the Agreement. This section serves as notice to the 
CONTRACTOR that, pursuant to the terms of Section 448.095(2)(c) l and 2, Florida Statutes, the SBCC shall 
terminate this Agreement if it has a good faith belief that the CONTRACTOR has knowingly violated Section 
448.09(1), F.S .. If the SBCC has a good faith belief that the subcontractor, without the knowledge of the 
CONTRACTOR, has knowingly violated Section 448.09(1) or 448.095(2), F.S., the SBCC shall notify the 
CONTRACTOR and order the CONTRACTOR to immediately terminate the contract with the subcontractor. If the 
SBCC terminates an Agreement with a CONTRACTOR pursuant to sec. 448.095(2)(c), f.S., the CONTRACTOR 
will not be awarded a public contract for at least one year after the date of such termination. 

20. The CONTRACTOR certifies that CONTRACTOR is in compliance with the requirements of law regarding 
equal employment oppottunity for all persons without regard to age, race, color, religion, sex, national origin, or 
disability and is not on the Discriminatory Vendor List pursuant to Florida Statute 287.134. 

21. CONTRACTOR shall, at CONTRACTOR's sole expense, procure and maintain during the tenn of this Agreement, 
at least the following minimum insurance coverage, which shall not limit the liability of CONTRACTOR: 

General Liability Policy: 

$1,000,000.00 per occurrence 

$2,000,000.00 aggregate 

Auto Liability Policy: 

$1,000,000.00 combined single limit 

$5,000,000.00 (if charter or common carrier) 

Worker's Compensation Policy: 

$100,000 

*Exempt, need signed WCAF 

*ff the CONTRACTOR is exempt from Worker's Compensation insurance obligations, the CONTRACTOR must sign 

the Worker's Compensation Acknowledgment Form (WCAJi) attached hereto as Exhibit# I. 

All policies of insurance shall be rated "A-" or better by the most recently published A.M. Best Rating Guide and 
shall be subject to the SBCC approval as to form and issuing company. The SBCC shall be named as certificate holder 
and as an additional insured in the comprehensive general (including property damage) liability policy within five (5) 
days alter execution of this Agreement. CONTRACTOR shall furnish the SBCC's Representative copies of insurance 
certificates evidencing that it maintains at least the insurance coverage required hereunder, and which contain the 
following or equivalent clause: "Before any reduction, cancellation, modffication or expiration of the insurance 
policy, thirty (30) days prior written notice thereof shall be given to the SBCC." CONTRACTOR is NOT authorized 
to proceed with the services until all the insurance certificates have been received and accepted. 

Receipt of certificates or other documentation of insurance or policies or copies of policies by the SBCC, or by any 
of its representatives, which indicate less coverage than required does not constitute a waiver of CONTRACTOR's 
obligation to fulfill the insurance requirements herein. 

SBAO (3/15/2021) - "A<l<lcon<lum A" To Contract Wilh The SBCC Page 3 ofl4 

Page 170 of 962

DRAFT



22. CONTRACTOR shall not solicit or accept brokerage or any other fees or remuneration from any provider of the 
SBCC insurance program. 

23. CONTRACTOR recognizes and acknowledges that by virtue of entering into this Agreement and providing services 
hereunder, CONTRACTOR, its agents, employees, officers, and subcontractors may have access to certain 
confidential information and processes, including confidential student information, personal health information, 
financial records, and access to the SBCC networks (hereinafter "Confidential Information"). CONTRACTOR agrees 
that neither it nor any CONTRACTOR agent, employee officer, or subcontractor will at any time, either during or 
subsequent to the term of this Agreement, disclose to any third party, except where permitted or required by law or 
where such disclosure is expressly approved by the SBCC in writing, any Confidential lnfo1mation. In addition, 
following expiration of said Agreement, CONTRACTOR, its agents, employees, officers, and subcontractors shall 
either destroy or return to the SBCC all Confidential Information. With 72-hours written notification, the SBCC 
reserves the right to determine whether or not Confidential Information has been destroyed and such confirmation 
may include inspecting the CONTRACTOR's facilities and equipment. CONTRACTOR understands and agrees that 
it is subject to all federal and state laws and SBCC rules relating to the confidentiality of student information. 
Contractor further agrees to comply with the Family Educational Rights and Privacy Act ("FERPA") 34 C.F.R. § 99. 
Contractor shall regard all student infonnation as confidential and will not disclose personally-identifiable student 
records or information to any third party without appropriate legal authorization. Access to SBCC data or networks 
shall require a SBCC Data-Sharing and Usage Agreement and shall only be authorized by the SBCC IT Department. 

24. CONTRACTOR is required to comply with the Florida Public Records Law, Chapter 119, Florida Statutes, in the 
performance ofCONTRACTOR's duties under this Agreement, and will specifically: 
a. Keep, maintain, and produce upon request and within a reasonable period of time all data created or collected in 

the performance of its duties under this Agreement ("Agreement Data") which come within the definition of a 
"public record" under Chapter 119. 

b. Provide to the SBCC, upon its request and free of charge, a copy of each record which CONTRACTOR seeks to 
produce in response to a public records request. 

c. Ensure that all Agreement Data considered exempt under Chapter 119 are not disclosed except as authorized by 
law. 

d. Upon completion of its obligations under the Agreement, transfer to the SBCC, at no cost, all Agreement Data 
in CONTRACTOR's possession or otherwise keep and maintain such data/records as required by law. All 
records transmitted to the SBCC must be provided in a format that is compatible the SBCC's information 
technology systems. 

e. The SBCC is authorized to collect, use or release social security numbers (SSN) of CONTRACTOR and their 
employees for the following purposes, which are noted as either required or authorized by law to be collected. The 
collection of social security numbers is either specifically authorized by law or imperative for the performance of 
the District's duties and responsibilities as prescribed by law (Sections l 19.07(5)(a)2 and 3, Florida Statutes): 
a) Criminal history and criminal background checks/Identifiers for processing fingerprints by Department of Law 

Enforcement, if SSN is available [Required by Fla. Adm in. Code 11 C-6.003 and Fla. Stat. § I 19.07(5)(a)6] 
b) CONTRACTOR that District reasonably believes would receive a 1099 form if a tax identification number is 

not provided including for IRS form W-9 [Required by 26 C.F.R. § 31.3406-0, 26 C.F.R. § 301.61091, and 
fla. Stat.§ J 19.07(5)(a)2 and 6] 

CONTRACTOR's failure to comply with the provisions set forth in this section shall constitute a default and 
material breach of this Agreement, which may result in tennination by the SBCC without penalty. 

IF CONTRACTOR HAS QUESTIONS REGARDING TIIB APPLICATION OF CHAPTER 119, 
FLORIDA STATUTES, OR CONTRACTOR'S DUTY TO PROVIDE PUBLIC RECORDS 
RELATING TO THIS CONTRACT, CONTRACTOR SHALL CONTACT THE SBCC'S 
CUSTODIAN OF PUBLIC RECORDS AT 900 WALNUT STREET, GREEN COVE SPRINGS, 
FLORIDA 32043, OR AT 904-336-6500, OR AT: PRR@myoneclay.net 

25. Government Funding (if Applicable): Funding for this Agreement may be provided in whole or in part by one or 
more Government funding agencies (Federal, State, Local). As a result, CONTRACTOR shall comply with 
applicable Laws, Regulations, Executive Orders, and Governmental Agency Rules and Policies included but not 

SBAO (3/15/2021) - "Addendum A" To Contract With The SBCC Page 4 ofl4 

Page 171 of 962

DRAFT



DocuSign Envelope ID: 2AC51A72-2161-430F-A5D3-A8B0FCA27C5F 

limited to Titles: 2-Grants and Agreements (2 C.F.R. §200), Title 7 -Agriculture (NSLP), Title 34 - Education 
(EDGAR, FERPA), Title 44 - Emergency Management and Assistance (FEMA); U.S. Code Titles: 20,31,40,41. 

To the extent that the SBCC is using Govermnent Funds as a source of payment for this Agreement, 
CONTRACTOR shall execute and deliver to the SBCC the following forms, attached hereto as Exhibit# 2 : (a) 
EDGAR Certification; (b) Certification Regarding Debarment, Suspension, Ineligibility and Voluntary 
Exclusion; (c) Drug-Free Workplace Certification; (d) Non-Collusion Affidavit; and (e) Disclosure of Potential 
Conflict of Interest. 

SBCC'S Representative with CONTRACTOR is: _____________________ _ 

School/Department Name: _____________________________ _ 

Mailing Address: ________________________________ _ 

Phone#: __________ Email Address: ____________________ _ 

Accepted and Agreed to: 

SCHOOL BOARD OF CLAY COUNTY 

By:-------------

Print Name: -------------
Title: ---------------
Date: ---------------

SBAO (3/15/2021)-"Addendum A" To Contract With The SBCC 

CONTRAr'TOR 

By: [~".:"a,.,_ 
736079F5AEBA4<!6 ... 

Print Name: Th res a Gil es 

Title: chief Business officer 

Date: 6;2;2021 

Page 5 of 14 

Page 172 of 962

DRAFT



NOTIRCATIONDOCUMENT 

Waiver Requires Signature At Time Of Entrance On SBCC Properly 

Masks are Mandatory and a signed COVID-19 Waiver will be required by all Vendors, 
Visitors, Volunteers, Non-Employees, ETC. conducting business on our property. 

COVID-19 WAIVER 

SCHOOL BOARD OF CLAY COUNTY, FLORIDA 
RELEASE OF LIABILITY AND ASSUMPTION OF RISK RE: COVID 19 INFECTION 

In consideration of being allowed to participate in any way in any activity which takes place on Clay County School District 
("CCSD") property (facilities or grounds) I, the undersigned vendor, volunteer. parent. or legal guardian acknowledge, 
understand. and agree that by participating in events and activities at Clay County School District facilities/property: (1) there 
are certain risks to me and my child(ren) arising from or related to possible exposure to communicable diseases including. but 
not limited to, COVID-19 the virus "severe acute respiratory syndrome coronavirus 2 (SARS-CoV-2)", which is responsible for 
the Coronavirus Disease (also known as COVID-19) and/or any mutation or variation thereof (collectively referred to as 
"Communicable Diseases"); (2) I am fully aware of the hazards associated with such Communicable Diseases and; (3) I 
knowingly and voluntarily assume full responsibility for any and all risk of personal injury or other loss that I may sustain in 
connection with such Communicable Diseases, and: (4} I, for myself or for my minor child(ren) or ward(s), and on behalf of 
my/our heirs, assigns, beneficiaries, executors, administrators. personal representatives, and next of kin, HEREBY EXPRESSLY 
RELEASE, HOLD HARMLESS, AND FOREVER DISCHARGE CLAY COUNTY SCHOOL BOARD ("The District") and its 
officers, officials, agents, representatives, employees. other participants, sponsors, advertisers, and, if applicable, owners and 
lessors of premises upon which CCSD related events and activities take place (the "Released Parties"), from any and all claims, 
demands, suits, causes of action, losses, and liability of any kind whatsoever, whether in law or equity, arising out of or related to 
any ILLNESS, INJURY, DISABILITY, DEATH. OR OTHER DAMAGES incurred due to or in connection with~ 
Communicable Diseases, WHETHER ARISING FROM THE NEGLIGENCE OF THE RELEASED PARTIES OR OTHERWISE, 
to the fullest extent permitted by law. 

I agree that this Agreement is intended to be as broad and inclusive as is permitted by the laws of the State of Florida, and if any 
portion hereof is held invalid, it is agreed that the remainder shall continue in full legal force and effect. 

I certify that I am the legal parenUguardian of the MINOR CHILDREN listed below, and that I HAVE READ AND UNDERSTAND 
THE FOREGOING RELEASE and affirm that I, on behalf of myself and my minor child(ren), do consent and agree to the 
complete, total and unequivocal release of all the Released Parties as provided above. 

I HAVE READ THIS RELEASE OF LIABILITY AND ASSUMPTION OF RISK AGREEMENT, FULLY 
UNDERSTAND ITS TERMS, UNDERSTAND THAT I HAVE GIVEN UP SUBSTANTIAL RIGHTS BY 
SIGNING IT, AND SIGN IT FREELY AND VOLUNTARILY WITHOUT ANY INDUCEMENT. 

ParticipanWendorNol unteer/Parent Signature Date 

Printed Name 

Name of each minor child for whom this Release applies, if applicable: 

SBAO (3/15/2021) - "Addendum /\" To Contract Wilh The SBCC Page6 ofl4 

Page 173 of 962

DRAFT



DocuSign Envelope ID: 2AC51A72-2161-430F-A5D3-A8BOFCA27C5F 

Exhibit# 1 

WORKERS COMPENSATION ACKNOWLEDGEMENT FORM {WCAF) 

The undersigned ContractorNendor ("Contractor") represents and acknowledges that it is an independent contractor and is 

not provided coverage under any self-insured workers compensation program of the School Board of Clay County, Florida 

(the "Board" or "District"), any primary workers compensation insurance policy purchased by or on behalf of the District, 

any excess workers compensation insurance purchased by or on behalf of the District, any risk sharing arrangement, risk 

sharing pool, or any state reimbursement fund for workers compensation payments made by the District, based on the 

following understandings and representations by the Contractor: 

1. Contractor is not an "Employee" as defined under Chapter 440 of the Florida Statutes. The Parties agree that Chapter 

440 describes remedies for employers and employees in place of Florida common law and limits the rights of 

independent contractors like the undersigned. 

2. Contractor maintains a separate business with its own work equipment, material, and accommodations. 

3. Contractor has a different federal employer identification number than the District or is a sole proprietor who is not 

required to obtain a federal employer identification number under state or federal regulations. 

4. Contractor receives compensation for services rendered or work perfonncd, and such compensation is paid to a 

business rather than to an individual. 

5. Contractor maintains at least one bank account in the name of the Contractor or associated persons or entities for 

the purposes of paying business expenses related to the services rendered or work pcrfonned for the District. 

6. Contractor performs work or is able to perform work for entities other than the District at the Contractor's election 

without the necessity of complcling an employment application or process. 

7. Contractor either provides its own workers compensation coverage or has elected to be exempt from workers 

compensation coverage. 

8. Contractor has provided proof of other insurance, including liability insurance, to the District in the amounts 

required by the District. 

9. Contactor had an opportunity to review and consult with legal counsel regarding this document. 

10. Contactor understands that the District is relying upon the truthfulness and accuracy of representations in this 
acknowledgement as a material basis for the District entering into the underlying agrecment(s) with Contractor. 

Name of ContractorN endor: _P--'--a..:..:ce:..._C::...cec:cn--=--te'-'-r--=--fo'--'-r-G--'--ir--'-'ls"'---, :.:..:ln.::.cc. _________ _ 

_ Q:;:+J'Signed by: 

Signature of Authorized Representative: 1-_V_1t-J1,,..v_~_-~_il,... _________ _ 
731!D79F6AE8M68 ... 

Ptinted Name of Authorized Representative: _T_h_r_e_s_a_G_i _l e_s ________ _ 

Title of Authorized Representative: chief Business officer 

Date: 6/2/2021 

SBAO (3/15/2021)- "Addendum A" To Contract With The SBCC Page 7 of14 

Page 174 of 962

DRAFT



Exhibit # 2 (a) 

EDGAR CERTIFICATIONS 

All purchases involving the expenditure of federal funds must be compliant with the Education Department General 
Administrative Regulations ("EDGAR"). The following certifications and provisions are required and apply when the School 
Board of Clay County, Florida ("SBCC" "School Board") expends federal funds for any purchase resulting from this 
procurement process. Pursuant to 2 C.F.R. § 200.326, all contracts, including small purchases, awarded by the District 
shall contain the procurement provisions of Appendix II to Part 200, as applicable. 

REQUIRED CONTRACT PROVISIONS FOR NON-FEDERAL ENTITY CONTRACTS UNDER FEDERAL AWARDS 
APPENDIX II to C.F.R. PART 200 

(A) Contracts for more than the simplified acquisition threshold currently set at $150,000, which is the inflation 
adjusted amount determined by the Civilian Agency Acquisition Council and the Defense Acquisition Regulations 
Council (Councils) as authorized by 41 U.S.C. 1908, must address administrative, contractual, or legal remedies in 
instances where contractors violate or breach contract terms, and provide for such sanctions and penalties as 
appropriate. 

Pursuant to Federal Rule (A) above, when School Board expends federal funds, School Board reserves all rights and 
privileges under the applicable laws and regulations with respect to this procurement in the event of breach of contract by 
either party. 

(B) All contracts in excess of $10,000 must address termination for cause and for convenience by the non-Federal 
entity including the manner by which it will be effected and the basis for settlement. 

Pursuant to Federal Rule (B) above, for all contracts involving Federal funds in excess of $10,000, School Board reserves 
the right to terminate the contract {i) for convenience, and/or (ii) for cause by issuing a certified notice to the vendor. 

(C) Equal Employment Opportunity. Except as otherwise provided under 41 CFR Part 60, all contracts that meet 
the definition of "federally assisted construction contract" in 41 CFR Part 60-1.3 must include the equal opportunity 
clause provided under 41 CFR 60-1.4(b), in accordance with Executive Order 11246, "Equal Employment 
Opportunity" (30 FR 12319, 12935, 3 CFR Part, 1964-1965 Comp., p. 339), as amended by Executive Order 11375, 
"Amending Executive Order 11246 Relating to Equal Employment Opportunity," and implementing regulations at 
41 CFR part 60, "Office of Federal Contract Compliance Programs, Equal Employment Opportunity, Department of 
Labor." 

Pursuant to Federal Rule {C) above, when School Board expends federal funds on any federally assisted construction 
contract, the equal opportunity clause is incorporated by reference herein. 

(D) Davis-Bacon Act, as amended (40 U.S.C. 3141w3148). When required by Federal program legislation, all prime 
construction contracts in excess of $2,000 awarded by non-Federal entities must include a provision for 
compliance with the Davis-Bacon Act (40 U.S.C. 3141-3144, and 3146-3148) as supplemented by Department of 
Labor regulations (29 CFR Part 5, "Labor Standards Provisions Applicable to Contracts Covering Federally 
Financed and Assisted Construction"). In accordance with the statute, contractors must be required to pay wages 
to laborers and mechanics at a rate not less than the prevailing wages specified in a wage determination made by 
the Secretary of Labor. In addition, contractors must be required to pay wages not less than once a week. The non
Federal entity must place a copy of the current prevailing wage determination issued by the Department of Labor 
in each solicitation. The decision to award a contract or subcontract must be conditioned upon the acceptance of 
the wage determination. The non-Federal entity must report all suspected or reported violations to the Federal 
awarding agency. The contracts must also include a provision for compliance with the Copeland "Anti-Kickback" 
Act (40 U.S.C. 3145), as supplemented by Department of Labor regulations (29 CFR Part 3, "Contractors and 
Subcontractors on Public Building or Public Work Financed in Whole or in Part by Loans or Grants from the United 
States"). The Act provides that each contractor or subrecipient must be prohibited from inducing, by any means, 
any person employed in the construction, completion, or repair of public work, to give up any part of the 
compensation to which he or she is otherwise entitled. The non-Federal entity must report all suspected or reported 
violations to the Federal awarding agency. 

Pursuant to Federal Rule (D) above, when School Board expends federal funds during the term of an award for all contracts 
and subgrants for construction or repair, Vendor will be in compliance with all applicable Davis-Bacon Act provisions. 

(E) Contract Work Hours and Safety Standards Act (40 U.S.C. 3701-3708). Where applicable, all contracts awarded 
by the non-Federal entity in excess of $100,000 that involve the employment of mechanics or laborers must include 
a provision for compliance with 40 U.S.C. 3702 and 3704, as supplemented by Department of Labor regulations (29 

SBAO (3/15/2021) - "Addendum A" To Contract With The SBCC Page 8 of 14 

Page 175 of 962

DRAFT



EDGAR CERTIFICATIONS (continued) 

CFR Part 5). Under 40 U.S.C. 3702 of the Act, each contractor must be required to compute the wages of every 
mechanic and laborer on the basis of a standard work week of 40 hours. Work in excess of the standard work week 
is permissible provided that the worker is compensated at a rate of not less than one and a half times the basic 
rate of pay for all hours worked in excess of 40 hours in the work week. The requirements of 40 U.S.C. 3704 are 
applicable to construction work and provide that no laborer or mechanic must be required to work in surroundings 
or under working conditions which are unsanitary, hazardous or dangerous. These requirements do not apply to 
the purchases of supplies or materials or articles ordinarily available on the open market, or contracts for 
transportation or transmission of intelligence. 

Pursuant to Federal Rule (E) above, when federal funds are expended by School Board, Vendor certifies that Vendor will 
be in compliance with all applicable provisions of the Contract Work Hours and Safety Standards Act during the term of an 
award resulting from this procurement process. 

(F) Rights to Inventions Made Under a Contract or Agreement. If the Federal award meets the definition of "funding 
agreement" under 37 CFR §401.2 (a) and the recipient or subrecipient wishes to enter into a contract with a small 
business firm or nonprofit organization regarding the substitution of parties, assignment or performance of 
experimental, developmental, or research work under that "funding agreement," the recipient or subrecipient must 
comply with the requirements of 37 CFR Part 401, "Rights to Inventions Made by Nonprofit Organizations and Small 
Business Firms Under Government Grants, Contracts and Cooperative Agreements," and any implementing 
regulations issued by the awarding agency. 

Pursuant to Federal Rule (F) above, when federal funds are expended by School Board, Vendor certifies that Vendor will 
be in compliance with all applicable provisions of Federal Rule (F) during the term of an award resulting from this 
procurement process. 

(G) Clean Air Act (42 U.S.C. 7401-7671q.) and the Federal Water Pollution Control Act (33 U.S.C. 1251-1387), as 
amended Contracts and subgrants of amounts in excess of $150,000 must contain a provision that requires the 
non-Federal award to agree to comply with all applicable standards, orders or regulations issued pursuant to the 
Clean Air Act (42 U.S.C. 7401 7671q) and the Federal Water Pollution Control Act as amended (33 U.S.C. 1251-1387). 
Violations must be reported to the Federal awarding agency and the Regional Office of the Environmental 
Protection Agency (EPA). 

Pursuant to Federal Rule (G) above, when federal funds are expended by School Board, Vendor certifies that Vendor will 
be in compliance with all applicable provisions of Federal Rule (G) during the term of an award resulting from this 
procurement process. 

(H) Energy Policy and Conservation Act (2 CFR §910.120, 10 CFR §600.236). Vendor agrees to comply with the 
mandatory standards and policies relating to energy efficiency contained in the state energy conservation plan 
issued in compliance with the Energy Policy and Conservation Act. 

Pursuant to Federal Rule (H) above, when federal funds are expended by School Board, Vendor certifies that Vendor will 
be in compliance with all applicable provisions of Federal Rule (H) during the term of an award resulting from this 
procurement process. 

(I) Debarment and Suspension (Executive Orders 12549 and 12689)-A contract award (see 2 CFR 180.220) must 
not be made to parties listed on the government wide exclusions in the System for Award Management (SAM), in 
accordance with the 0MB guidelines at 2 CFR 180 that implement Executive Orders 12549 (3 CFR part 1986 Comp., 
p. 189) and 12689 (3 CFR part 1989 Comp., p. 235), "Debarment and Suspension." SAM Exclusions contains the 
names of parties debarred, suspended, or otherwise excluded by agencies, as well as parties declared ineligible 
under statutory or regulatory authority other than Executive Order 12549. 

Pursuant to Federal Rule (I) above, when federal funds are expended by School Board, Vendor certifies that during the 
term of an award resulting from this procurement process, that neither it nor its principals are presently debarred, suspended, 
proposed for debarment, declared ineligible, ort voluntarily excluded from participation by any federal department or agency. 

(J) Byrd Anti-Lobbying Amendment (31 U.S.C. 1352)-Contractors that apply or bid for an award exceeding 
$100,000 must file the required certification. Each tier certifies to the tier above that it will not and has not used 
Federal appropriated funds to pay any person or organization for influencing or attempting to influence an officer 
or employee of any agency, a member of Congress, officer or employee of Congress, or an employee of a member 
of Congress in connection with obtaining any Federal contract, grant or any other award covered by 31 U.S.C. 1352. 
Each tier must also disclose any lobbying with non-Federal funds that takes place in connection with obtaining 
any Federal award. Such disclosures are forwarded from tier to tier up to the non-Federal award. 

Pursuant to Federal Rule (J) above, Vendor certifies that it is in compliance with all applicable provisions of the Byrd Anti
Lobbying Amendment (31 U.S.C. 1352}. The Vendor further certifies that (1} No Federal appropriated funds have been 

SBAO (3/15/202 l )- "Addendmn A" To Contract With The sncc l'age 9 of .14 

Page 176 of 962

DRAFT



DocuSign Envelope ID: 2AC51A72-2161-430F-A5D3-A8B0FCA27C5F 

EDGAR CERTIFICATIONS {continued) 

paid or will be paid, by or on behalf of the undersigned, to any person for influencing or attempting to influence an officer or 
employee of an agency, a Member of Congress, an officer or employee of Congress, or an employee of a Member of 
Congress in connection with the awarding of any Federal contract, the making of any Federal grant, the making of any 
Federal loan, the entering into of any cooperative agreement, and the extension, continuation, renewal, amendment, or 
modification of any Federal contract, grant, loan, or cooperative agreement. (2) If any funds other than Federal appropriated 
funds have been paid to any person for influencing or attempting to influence an officer or employee of any agency, Member 
of Congress, an officer or employee of Congress, or an employee of a Member of Congress in connection with this Federal 
contract, grant, loan, or cooperative agreement, the undersigned shall complete and submit Standard Form-LLL, "Disclosure 
Form to Report Lobbying," in accordance with its instructions. (3) The undersigned shall require that the language of this 
certification be included in the award documents for all covered subawards in Federal funds at all appropriate tiers and that 
all subrecipients shall certify and disclose accordingly. 

RECORDS ACCESS AND RETENTION 

Records Access (34 CFR 80.36 (i)(10): All vendors, contracts and subcontractors shall give access to the SBCC, the 
appropriate Federal agency, the Comptroller General of the United States, or any of their duly authorized representative to 
any books, documents, papers, and records of the vendor which are directly pertinent to this specific bid/contract for the 
purpose of making audit, examination, excerpts and transcriptions. 

Records Retention (2 C.F.R. § 200.333): Financial records, supporting documents, statistical records and all other non
Federal entity records pertinent to a Federal award must be retained for a period of three (3) years from the date of 
submission of the final expenditure report or, for Federal awards that are renewed quarterly or annually, from the date of 
the submission of the quarterly or annual financial report, respectively, as reported to the Federal awarding agency or 
passthrough entity in the case of a subrecipient. 

RECOVERED MATERIALS 

Recovered Materials {2 CFR §200.322): Contractor must comply with Section 6002 of the Solid Waste Disposal Act, as 
amended by the Resource Conservation and Recovery Act. The requirements of Section 6002 include procuring only items 
designated in guidelines of the Environmental Protection Agency (EPA) at 40 CFR part 247 that contain the highest 
percentage of recovered materials practicable, consistent with maintaining a satisfactory level of competition, where the 
purchase price of the item exceeds $10,000 or the value of the quantity acquired during the preceding fiscal year exceeded 
$10,000; procuring solid waste management services in a manner that maximizes energy and resource recovery; and 
establishing an affirmative procurement program for procurement of recovered materials identified in the EPA guidelines. 

Vendor agrees to comply with all federal, state, and local laws, rules, regulations and ordinances, as applicable. It 
is further acknowledged that vendor certifies compliance with all provisions, laws, acts, regulations, etc. as 
specifically noted above. 

Vendor's Name: 
Pace Center for Girls, Inc. 

Signature of Authorized Representative: 

Print Name of Authorized Representative: 

STIAO (3/15/2021)- "Addendum A" To Contract With The SBCC Page 10 of14 

Page 177 of 962

DRAFT



DocuSign Envelope ID: 2AC51A72"2161-430F-A5D3-A8B0FCA27C5F 

Exhibit# 2 (b) 

CERTIFICATION REGARDING DEBARMENT, SUSPENSION, INELIGIBILITY AND 
VOLUNTARY EXCLUSION - LOWER TIER COVERED TRANSACTIONS 

This certification Lr required by the Department of Education regulations implementing Executive Order 12549, Debarment and 
Suspension, 34 CPR Part 85, for all lower tier transactions meeting the threshold and tier requirements stated at Section 85.110. 

1. By signing and submitting this proposal, the prospective lower tier participant is providing the certification set out below. 

2. The certification in this clause is a material representation of fact upon which reliance was placed when this transaction was entered into. If it is later 
determined that the prospective lower tier participant knowingly rendered an erroneous certification, in addition to other remedies available to the Federal 
Government

1 
the department or agency with which this transaction originated may pursue available remedies, including suspension and/or debarment. 

3. The prospective lower tier participant shall provide immediate written notice to the person to whom this proposal is submitted if at any time the 
prospective lower tier participant learns that its certification was erroneous when submitted or has become erroneous by reason of changed 
circumstances. 
4. The terms "covered transaction," "debarred," "susperided," 'ineligible," "lower tier covered transaction," "participant," "person," "primary covered 
transaction," "principal," 'proposal," and "voluntarily excluded," as used in this clause, have the meanings set out in the Definitions and Coverage sections 
of rules implementing Executive Order 12549. You may contact the person to which this proposal is submitted for assistance in obtaining a copy of 
those regulations. 
5. The prospective lower tier participant agrees by submitting this proposal that, should the proposed covered transaction be entered into, it shall not 
knowingly enter into any lower lier covered transaction with a person who is debarred, suspended, declared ineligible, or voluntarily excluded from 
participation in this covered transaction, unless authorized by the department or agency with which this transaction originated. 

6. The prospective lower lier participant further agrees by submitting this proposal that it will include the clause titled "Certification Regarding Debarment, 
Suspension, Ineligibility, and Voluntary Exclusion • Lower Tier Covered Transactions," without modification, in all lower tier covered transactions and in 
all solicitations for lower lier covered transactions. 
7. A participant in a covered transaction may rely upon a certification of a prospective participant in a lower tier covered transaction that it is not debarred, 
suspended, ineligible, or voluntarily excluded from the covered transaction, unless it knows that the certification is erroneous. A participant may decide 
the method and frequency by which it determines the eligibility of ils principals. Each participant may, but is not required to, check the Non-Procurement 
List. 
8. Nothing contained in the foregoing shall be construed to require establishment of a system of records in order to render in good faith the certification 
required by this clause. The knowledge and information of a participant is not required to exceed that which is normally possessed by a prudent person 
in the ordinary course of business dealings. 

9. Except for transactions authorized under paragraph 5 of these instructions, if a participant in a covered transaction knowingly enters into a lower tier 
covered transaction with a person who is suspended, debarred, ineligible, or voluntarily excluded from participation in this transaction, in addition to other 
remedies available to the Federal Government, the department or agency with which this transaction originated may pursue available remedies, including 
suspension and/or debarment. 

Instructions for Certification: 
1. The prospective lower lier participant certifies, by submission of this proposal that neither it nor its principals are: 
a) presently debarred, suspended, proposed for debarment, declared ineligible, or voluntarily excluded from participation in this transaction by any 

Federal department or agency; 
b) have not within a three-year period preceding this application been convicted of or had a civil judgment rendered against them for commission of 

fraud or a criminal offense in performing a public (federal, state or local) transaction or contract under a public transaction; or for violation of federal 
or state antitrust statutes or commission of embezzlement, theft, forgery, bribery, falsification or destruction of records, making false statements or 
receiving stolen property; 

c) are not presently indicted for or otherwise criminally or civilly charged by a government entity (federal, state or local) with commission of the offenses 
enumerated in this certification; or 

d) have not within a three•year period preceding this application had one or more public transaction (federal, state or local) terminated for cause or 
default. 

2. Where the prospective lower tier participant is unable to certify to any of the statements in this certification, such prospective participant shall attach 
an explanation to this proposal. 

Name of Vendor: Pace Center for Girls, Inc. 

Thresa Giles 
Printed Name 

Q
~Siqned by: 

Signature: - -+--V__,_wi....v_uA. __ (J_ilu. ____________ _ 
736D70F6A~BA466 ... 

SB.AO (3/15/2021)- "Addendum/\" To Contract With The SBCC 

chief Business officer 
Title of Authorized Representative 

Date: 6/2/2021 

Page 11 of14 

Page 178 of 962

DRAFT



DocuSign Envelope ID: 2AC51A72-2161-430F-A5D3-A8B0FCA27C5F 

Exhibit# 2 (c) 

DRUG-FREE WORKPLACE CERTIFICATION 

Preference shall be given to vendors/contractors certifying their compliance with a drug-free workplace in 
accordance with Section 287.087, Fla. Stat., as follows: 

IDENTICAL TIE BIDS - A bid or contract received from a business that certifies that it has implemented a 
drug-free workplace program shall be given preference in the award process. Established procedure for processing 
tie bids shall be followed if none of the tied vendors has a drug-free workplace program. To obtain such 
preference, a business shall: 

1. Publish a statement notifying employees that the unlawful manufacture, distribution, dispensing, possession, 
or usc of a controlled substance is prohibited in the workplace and specifying the actions what shall be taken 
against employee for violations of such prohibition. 

2. lnfonn employees about the dangers of drug abuse in the workplace, the business's policy of maintaining a 
drug-free workplace, any available drug counseling, rehabilitation, and employee assistance programs, and 
the penalties that may be imposed upon employees for drug abuse violations. 

3. Give each employee engaged in providing the commodities or contractual services that are under bid a copy 
of the statement specified in subsection ( l ). 

4. ln the statement specified in subsection (1), notify the employees that, as a condition of working on the 
commodities or contractual services that are under bid, the employee shall abide by the terms of the statement 
and shall notify the employer of any conviction or plea of guilty or no contest to any violation of Chapter 
893 or of any controlled substance laws of the United States or the State of Florida, for a violation occurring 
in the workplace no later than five (5) days after such conviction. 

5. Impose a sanction on, or require the satisfactory participation in a drug abuse assistance or rehabilitation 
program if such is available in the employee's community, by any employee who is so convicted. 

6. Make a good faith effort to continue to maintain a drug-free workplace through implementation of this 
section. 

I certify that this firm complies fully with the above requirements. 

CONTRACTOR NMfE: PACE Center for Girls Inc. 

AUTHORIZED CONT ACTOR REPRESENTATIV~: SlGNATURE: 

Thresa Giles 

(Printed Name) ~68 ... 

Chief Business Officer 6/2/2021 

(Title) (Date) 

SBAO (3/15/2021)- "Addendum A" To Contract With The SilCC Page 12 of14 

Page 179 of 962

DRAFT



DocuSign Envelope ID: 2AC51A72-2161-430F-A5D3-A8B0FCA27C5F 

Exhibit# 2 (d) 

NON-COLLUSION AFFIDAVIT 

ST A TE OF FLORIDA ) 
COUNTY OF CLAY ) 

My name is (INSERT NAME Thresa Gi 1 es ). I hereby attest that I am authorized to execute this 
affidavit on behalf of my finn, its owners, directors, and officers. l have personal knowledge of the priee(s), 
guarantees and the total financial commitment represented in the firm's offer and/or contract. 

1) The firm's prices and amounts offered have been arrived at independently and without consultation, 
communication or agreement with any other contractor or respondent. 

2) Neither the final nor approximate prices or amounts offered have been disclosed to any other firm or person 
who is a respondent or potential respondent, nor were they disclosed prior to opening of offers. 

3) The offer from my firm is made in good faith and no attempt has been made to induce any firm or person to 
refrain from submitting an offer, or to submit an offer higher than our offer, or to submit any intentionally 
high or noncompetitive offer or other form of complementary offer. 

4) (INSERT NAME OF COMPANY PACE Center for Girls, Inc. ) its affiliates, subsidiaries, officers, 
directors, employees arc not currently under investigation by any governmental agency and have not in the 
last three years been convicted or found liable for any act prohibited by State or Federal law in any jurisdiction, 
involving conspiracy or collusion with respect to bidding, proposing or offering on any public contract, except 

as follows: 

I attest that (INSERT NAME OF COMPANY PACE center tor Girls, Inc. ) understands and 
acknowledges that the above representations are material and important, and will be relied on by the School Board 
of Clay County, Florida, in awarding the contract for which this offer is submitted. I understand and my finn 
understands that any misstatement of material representations herein stated shall be treated as intentional 
concealment of the true facts relating to submission of offers for this contract. 

CONTRACTOR NAME: PACE Center for Girls, Inc. ______ ..:..._ _____________ _ 

AUTHORIZED CONTACTOR REPRESENTATIVE SIGNATURE: 

Thresa Giles 

(Printed Name) 

chief Business officer 6/2/2021 

(Title) (Date) 

SBJ\O (3/15/2021)- "Addendum A" To Contract With The SBCC Page 13 of14 

Page 180 of 962

DRAFT



DocuSign Envelope ID: 2AC51A72-2161-430F-A5O3-A8B0FCA27C5F 

Exhibit# 2 (c) 

DISCLOSURE OF POTENTIAL CONFLICT OF INTEREST AND 
CONFLICTING EMPLOYMENT OR CONTRACTUAL RELATIONSHIP 

Section 112.313 (3) and (7), Florida Statutes, sets forth restrictions on the ability of SBCC employees 
acting in a private capacity to rent, lease, or sell any realty, goods or services to SBCC. It also places 
restrictions on SBCC employees concerning outside employment or contractual relationships with any 
business entity which is doing business with SBCC. 

Bidder must disclose in its Bid, the names of any employees who are employed by Bidder who are also 
an employees of SBCC. Persons identified below may have obligations and restrictions applicable to 
them under Chapter 112, Florida Statutes. 

Name of Bidder's Employee SBCC Title or Position of Bidder's 
Employee 

Check one of the following and sign: 

SBCC Department/ School of Bidder's 
Employee 

[8] I hereby affirm that there are no known persons employed by Bidder who are also an employee of 
SBCC. 

□ I hereby affirm that all known persons who are employed by Bidder who are also an employee of 
SBCC have been identified above. 

PACE Center for Girls Inc. 
736D79F6AEBA466 ... Signature Company Name 

SBAO (3/15/2021)- "Addendum A" To Contract With The SBCC Page 14 of14 

Page 181 of 962

DRAFT



School Board of Clay County

June 24, 2021 - Regular School Board Meeting

Title
C8 - Agreement between the School Board of Clay County and AMI Kids

Description
A collaborative agreement between the School Board of Clay County and the AMI Kids Clay County, Inc., to address the needs
of male students in Clay County.  This program works in conjunction with the Department of Juvenile Justice, to provide an
educational program and related services for eligible male students (up to 44 students).  This program focuses on student needs
dealing with specialized counseling, credit recovery services, life skills, positive gender identification, community service
learning projects, and career exploration.  Students attend the program for approximately 1 year.  The collaboration between the
two organizations has allowed students to seek an alternative setting to a previously unsuccessful environment. 
AMI Kids is currently located at Clay High School until 12/31/21.  Effective 1/1/22 they will relocate to 1107 Martin Luther
King Blvd, GCS. 

Gap Analysis
The district monitors the program and their intervention strategies in order to yield positive results in the areas of academics,
social behavior, and the number of students who successfully return to their home school.
 

Previous Outcomes
AMI Kids earned a school accountablility rating of "Acceptable" in the 2020-21 DJJ Accountability Report, which was 1% from
Commendable. 

Expected Outcomes
By continuing the collaboration with AMI Kids, it is expected that students will be identified by the secondary schools,
Bannerman Learning Center, recommended by parents, and/or the student volunteers for the program.  AMI Kids is notified by
any of these sources and students are oriented to the program.  Once the students are enrolled, they begin the counseling program
offered and then the credit/course recovery program begins.  Periodic meetings take place to review outcomes and to
communicate with the District on proposed return dates of the students.  Through the District plan, students are able to recoup
credits and, therefore, remain on track to either be promoted or to earn the necessary credits towards graduation.  Curriculum
deficiencies are addressed, counseling and behavior therapy takes place, increasing the likelihood of success for the students.
 

Strategic Plan Goal
Goal 3: Establish a respectful climate and culture that provides equity and access to all.
Strategy 3.1: Engage stakeholders to strengthen and build a collaborative and constructive environment that encourages high
expectations for all.

Recommendation
That the Clay County School Board approve the agreement between AMI Kids and the School Board of Clay County.

Contact
Roger Dailey, Chief Academic Officer; roger.dailey@myoneclay.net, 904-336-6905
Treasure Pickett, Director of K-12 Academic Services; treasure.pickett@myoneclay.net, 904-336-6918

Financial Impact
Clay County allocates 95% of an FTE to AMI Kids; 5% of an FTE is allocated to the School Board of Clay County.

Review Comments

Attachments

210125 AMI Kids.pdf

Page 182 of 962

DRAFT

http://agenda.oneclay.net/content/files/210125-ami-kids.pdf


Page 183 of 962

DRAFT



Page 184 of 962

DRAFT



Page 185 of 962

DRAFT



Page 186 of 962

DRAFT



Page 187 of 962

DRAFT



Page 188 of 962

DRAFT



Page 189 of 962

DRAFT



Page 190 of 962

DRAFT



Page 191 of 962

DRAFT



Page 192 of 962

DRAFT



Page 193 of 962

DRAFT



Page 194 of 962

DRAFT



Page 195 of 962

DRAFT



Page 196 of 962

DRAFT



Page 197 of 962

DRAFT



Page 198 of 962

DRAFT



Page 199 of 962

DRAFT



Page 200 of 962

DRAFT



Page 201 of 962

DRAFT



Page 202 of 962

DRAFT



Page 203 of 962

DRAFT



Page 204 of 962

DRAFT



Page 205 of 962

DRAFT



Page 206 of 962

DRAFT



Page 207 of 962

DRAFT



Page 208 of 962

DRAFT



Page 209 of 962

DRAFT



6+28/'�$1<�2)�7+(�$%29(�'(6&5,%('�32/,&,(6�%(�&$1&(//('�%()25(
7+(� (;3,5$7,21� '$7(� 7+(5(2)�� 127,&(� :,//� %(� '(/,9(5('� ,1
$&&25'$1&(�:,7+�7+(�32/,&<�3529,6,216�

,1685(5�6��$))25',1*�&29(5$*(

,1685(5�)��

,1685(5�(��

,1685(5�'��

,1685(5�&��

,1685(5�%��

,1685(5�$��

1$,&��

1$0(�
&217$&7

�$�&��1R��
)$;

(�0$,/
$''5(66�

352'8&(5

�$�&��1R��([W��
3+21(

,1685('

5(9,6,21�180%(5�&(57,),&$7(�180%(5�&29(5$*(6

,03257$17���,I�WKH�FHUWLILFDWH�KROGHU�LV�DQ�$'',7,21$/�,1685('��WKH�SROLF\�LHV��PXVW�KDYH�$'',7,21$/�,1685('�SURYLVLRQV�RU�EH�HQGRUVHG�
,I�68%52*$7,21�,6�:$,9('��VXEMHFW�WR�WKH�WHUPV�DQG�FRQGLWLRQV�RI�WKH�SROLF\��FHUWDLQ�SROLFLHV�PD\�UHTXLUH�DQ�HQGRUVHPHQW���$�VWDWHPHQW�RQ
WKLV�FHUWLILFDWH�GRHV�QRW�FRQIHU�ULJKWV�WR�WKH�FHUWLILFDWH�KROGHU�LQ�OLHX�RI�VXFK�HQGRUVHPHQW�V��

7+,6�&(57,),&$7(� ,6� ,668('�$6�$�0$77(5�2)� ,1)250$7,21�21/<�$1'�&21)(56�12�5,*+76�8321�7+(�&(57,),&$7(�+2/'(5��7+,6
&(57,),&$7(� '2(6� 127� $)),50$7,9(/<� 25� 1(*$7,9(/<� $0(1'�� (;7(1'� 25� $/7(5� 7+(� &29(5$*(� $))25'('� %<� 7+(� 32/,&,(6
%(/2:�� � 7+,6� &(57,),&$7(� 2)� ,1685$1&(� '2(6� 127� &2167,787(� $� &2175$&7� %(7:((1� 7+(� ,668,1*� ,1685(5�6��� $87+25,=('
5(35(6(17$7,9(�25�352'8&(5��$1'�7+(�&(57,),&$7(�+2/'(5�

27+(5�

�3HU�DFFLGHQW�

�(D�DFFLGHQW�

�

�

1���$

68%5
:9'

$''/
,16'

7+,6� ,6�72�&(57,)<�7+$7�7+(�32/,&,(6�2)� ,1685$1&(�/,67('�%(/2:�+$9(�%((1� ,668('�72�7+(� ,1685('�1$0('�$%29(�)25�7+(�32/,&<�3(5,2'
,1',&$7('�� �127:,7+67$1',1*�$1<�5(48,5(0(17�� 7(50�25�&21',7,21�2)�$1<�&2175$&7�25�27+(5�'2&80(17�:,7+�5(63(&7�72�:+,&+�7+,6
&(57,),&$7(� 0$<� %(� ,668('� 25� 0$<� 3(57$,1�� 7+(� ,1685$1&(� $))25'('� %<� 7+(� 32/,&,(6� '(6&5,%('� +(5(,1� ,6� 68%-(&7� 72� $//� 7+(� 7(506�
(;&/86,216�$1'�&21',7,216�2)�68&+�32/,&,(6��/,0,76�6+2:1�0$<�+$9(�%((1�5('8&('�%<�3$,'�&/$,06�

�

�

�

�3523(57<�'$0$*(

%2',/<�,1-85<��3HU�DFFLGHQW�

%2',/<�,1-85<��3HU�SHUVRQ�

&20%,1('�6,1*/(�/,0,7

$8726�21/<

$8726$8726�21/<
121�2:1('

6&+('8/('2:1('

$1<�$872

$87202%,/(�/,$%,/,7<

<���1

:25.(56�&203(16$7,21
$1'�(03/2<(56
�/,$%,/,7<

2)),&(5�0(0%(5�(;&/8'('"
�0DQGDWRU\�LQ�1+�

'(6&5,37,21�2)�23(5$7,216�EHORZ
,I�\HV��GHVFULEH�XQGHU

$1<�35235,(725�3$571(5�(;(&87,9(

�

�

�

(�/��',6($6(���32/,&<�/,0,7

(�/��',6($6(���($�(03/2<((

(�/��($&+�$&&,'(17

(5
27+�

67$787(
3(5

/,0,76�00�''�<<<<�
32/,&<�(;3

�00�''�<<<<�
32/,&<�())

32/,&<�180%(57<3(�2)�,1685$1&(/75
,165

'(6&5,37,21�2)�23(5$7,216���/2&$7,216���9(+,&/(6���$&25'������$GGLWLRQDO�5HPDUNV�6FKHGXOH��PD\�EH�DWWDFKHG�LI�PRUH�VSDFH�LV�UHTXLUHG�

(;&(66�/,$%

80%5(//$�/,$% �($&+�2&&855(1&(

�$**5(*$7(

�

2&&85

&/$,06�0$'(

'(' 5(7(17,21 �

�352'8&76���&203�23�$**

�*(1(5$/�$**5(*$7(

�3(5621$/�	�$'9�,1-85<

�0('�(;3��$Q\�RQH�SHUVRQ�

�($&+�2&&855(1&(
'$0$*(�72�5(17('

�35(0,6(6��(D�RFFXUUHQFH�

&200(5&,$/�*(1(5$/�/,$%,/,7<

&/$,06�0$'( 2&&85

*(1
/�$**5(*$7(�/,0,7�$33/,(6�3(5�

32/,&<
352�
-(&7 /2&

&(57,),&$7(�2)�/,$%,/,7<�,1685$1&(
'$7(��00�''�<<<<�

&$1&(//$7,21

$87+25,=('�5(35(6(17$7,9(

$&25'�������������

������������$&25'�&25325$7,21���$OO�ULJKWV�UHVHUYHG�

&(57,),&$7(�+2/'(5

7KH�$&25'�QDPH�DQG�ORJR�DUH�UHJLVWHUHG�PDUNV�RI�$&25'

+,5('
$8726�21/<

Page 210 of 962

DRAFT



School Board of Clay County

June 24, 2021 - Regular School Board Meeting

Title
C9 - Approve Interlocal Agreement Between The School Board of Clay County, Florida and Rolling Hills Community
Development District Regarding Usage of District’s Amenity Complex Facilities.

Description
The School Board, for the past several years, has entered into an Interlocal Agreement with Rolling Hills Community
Development the purpose of which is to allow the Clay High School swim team to use the swimming pool facilities at Rolling
Hills for practices and swim meets. The contract is essentially unchanged from its format originally drafted in 2012 with the
exception of restrictions necessitated by the COVID pandemic. It is virtually identical to the 2020 contract.

Gap Analysis
N/A

Previous Outcomes
N/A

Expected Outcomes
Approval of this item will allow Clay High School swim team to use the Rolling Hills Amenity Complex pool facility for
practices and for swim meets.

Strategic Plan Goal
N/A

Recommendation
Approve Interlocal Agreement as submitted

Contact
W. Cary Dicks, Principal Clay High School; J. Bruce Bickner, School Board Attorney

Financial Impact
None

Review Comments

Attachments

Clay High School Swim Team Pool Use Agreement.pdf

Page 211 of 962

DRAFT

http://agenda.oneclay.net/content/files/clay-high-school-swim-team-pool-use-agreement.pdf


1
INTERLOCAL AGREEMENT BETWEEN THE SCHOOL BOARD OF CLAY 

COUNTY, FLORIDA, AND ROLLING HILLS COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 
DISTRICT REGARDING USE OF DISTRICT'S AMENITY COMPLEX FACILITIES

THIS AGREEMENT (“Agreement”) is effective nunc pro tunc to May 17, 2021, and is by 
and between:

ROLLING HILLS COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT, a local unit of special-
purpose government established pursuant to Chapter 190, Florida Statutes, with 
offices at 475 West Town Place, Suite 114, St. Augustine, Florida 32092 (the 
"District"), and

THE SCHOOL BOARD OF CLAY COUNTY, FLORIDA (“School Board”) FOR THE USE 
AND BENEFIT OF THE CLAY HIGH SCHOOL SWIM TEAM (“Swim Team”), 900 Walnut 
Street, Green Cove Springs, Florida 32043 (the School Board and the Swim Team 
together with the District, the “Parties”).

RECITALS

WHEREAS, it is the purpose and intent of this Agreement to permit and authorize the 
School Board and the District to make the most efficient use of their respective resources, 
authority and capabilities by enabling them to cooperate on the basis of mutual advantage and to 
achieve the results provided in this Agreement pursuant to Section 163.01, Florida Statutes, 
known as the Florida Interlocal Cooperation Act of 1969 (“Cooperation Act”); and

             
WHEREAS, it is the purpose of the Cooperation Act to provide a means by which the 

School Board and the District may exercise their respective privileges and authority which they 
may have separately, but which pursuant to this Agreement and Cooperation Act they may 
exercise collectively; and

WHEREAS, the District is a special-purpose unit of local government established pursuant 
to and governed by Chapter 190, Florida Statutes; and

WHEREAS, the District owns, operates and maintains certain recreational facilities, 
including a competition pool (“Aquatic Facilities”); and

WHEREAS, the School Board, on behalf of the Swim Team, approached the District and 
expressed desires to make use of the Aquatic Facilities for practices and the hosting of swim 
meets; and

WHEREAS, the District is willing to allow the Swim Team to make use of the Aquatic 
Facilities for practices and swim meets provided that such use does not impede the operation of 
the Aquatic Facilities and provided that the Swim Team complies with the provisions set forth 
herein, including but not limited to the special provisions for usage during the COVID-19 
pandemic; and

Page 212 of 962

DRAFT



2
WHEREAS, the District has determined that providing the School Board with the ability to 

use the competition pool is a benefit to the District, is a proper public purpose, and makes 
appropriate use of the Aquatic Facilities; and

WHEREAS, the District and the School Board warrant and agree that they have all right, 
power and authority to enter into and be bound by this Agreement.

 
NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the recitals, agreements, and mutual covenants 

contained herein, and other good and valuable consideration, the receipt and sufficiency of which 
are hereby acknowledged by the Parties, the Parties agree as follows:

SECTION 1. RECITALS.  The recitals so stated are true and correct and by this reference 
are incorporated into and form a material part of this Agreement.

SECTION 2. TERM.  This Agreement shall be effective nunc pro tunc to May 17, 2021, 
and shall terminate on November 30, 2021, unless terminated early in accordance with Section 8 
below.  However, the covenants and obligations of School Board contained in this Agreement 
shall survive termination for acts and omissions which occurred during the effective term of this 
Agreement. 

SECTION 3. USAGE BY SWIM TEAM.  

A. Usage; Generally. The District hereby grants to the Swim Team a license to use 
the Aquatic Facilities for practices and meets in accordance with the schedules attached hereto as 
Exhibit A, as coordinated between the District’s representative and the Swim Team 
representative, and with the guidelines provided in Exhibit B, both of which are incorporated 
herein by this reference (“License”).  Swim Team shall hold no more than six (6) “Home” meets 
as indicated in the schedule provided in Exhibit A. The License to use the Aquatic Facilities is 
limited to the hours provided in such schedules.  In consideration of said use of the Aquatic 
Facilities, School Board and Swim Team agree to the following conditions:

i. Access to the Aquatic Facilities is limited to the competition pool, the pool 
decks, parking lot serving the Aquatic Facilities and designated restrooms in case 
of emergencies.  No other use of, or access to, the District’s recreational facilities 
is permitted.  

ii. Swim Team understands and acknowledges that there are limited parking 
spaces available at the District’s facilities, which is primarily available for District 
residents wishing to utilize the District’s recreational facilities. During the meets, 
the Swim Team will leave at least one (1) row of parking spaces closest to the 
Aquatic Facilities open and available to residents who want to use the District 
facilities. Swim Team shall be responsible for redirecting the traffic to enforce the  
same.  No parking shall impede the flow of traffic on the streets. Swim Team staff 
shall inform its team members and the visiting teams and spectators coming to the 
meets of the limited parking available at the District facilities and shall encourage 
them to carpool to the District facilities. Swim Team shall, to the maximum extent 

Page 213 of 962

DRAFT



3
possible, carpool to the District facilities for practices and meets, and whenever 
feasible, shall utilize a school bus or similar mode of mass transportation to arrive 
at the District facilities.

iii. The District hereby designates the District Manager or his or her designee 
as the District’s representative.  

iv. Swim Team’s use of Aquatic Facilities shall be in conjunction with the use 
of the Aquatic Facilities by other members of the public and by other swim teams, 
if any, and the Swim Team use shall not interfere with the operation of the 
Aquatic Facilities as a public improvement.  

v. All use of the Aquatic Facilities shall be subject to the policies and 
regulations of the District, including but not limited to the Rolling Hills Facilities 
and Amenity Policies, the Guidelines for the Swim Team Usage and Guidelines 
for Swim Team Meets, which are incorporated herein and attached as Exhibit B.  

vi. The District shall have the right to take such actions as are necessary to 
preserve the health, safety and welfare of its residents, landowners, lands and 
facilities.  

vii. Persons identified as Coaches by the Swim Team, and any such Coach’s 
minor children, may participate on the Swim Team and make use of the Aquatic 
Facilities during Swim Team practices and meets, regardless of the Coach’s status 
as a paid user of the facilities, subject to the terms and conditions of this 
Agreement. 

viii. The Swim Team shall (i) provide one (1) time payment of three hundred 
dollars and zero cents ($300.00) to the District.  If requested by the District, Swim 
Team shall (ii) provide a minimum of five volunteers for one resident event as 
arranged by the District; and (iii) provide at least ten (10) volunteer hours each 
week during the term of this Agreement (which may include resident events 
referenced above). 

B. Usage During the COVID-19 Pandemic. Effective immediately and until the 
conclusion of the COVID-19 pandemic, the Swim Team must implement the following 
measures, unless otherwise amended by the Parties by a written amendment to this Agreement: 

i. The Swim Team is responsible for enforcing social distancing among its 
participants, consistent with all federal, state, and local recommendations and/or 
requirements, guidelines, and best practices, including but not limited to those 
promulgated by the State of Florida through executive orders or otherwise, by the 
Center for Disease Control and Prevention, and by USA Swimming, Inc., the 
latter of which are available at the following links: 

1. https://www.usaswimming.org/home/COVID-news

Page 214 of 962

DRAFT



4
2. https://cdn.swimswam.com/wp-content/uploads/2020/05/facility-
reopening-plan-guidelines.pdf 

ii. The Swim Team shall arrange the swimmers per lane to allow proper 
social distancing, while complying with the aforementioned guidelines and 
requirements, as depicted in Exhibit C.  If participants are unable to comply with 
the guidelines, Swim Team shall limit swimmers per lane to that required for 
compliance with stated regulations, which may change from time to time.

iii. All individuals associated with the Swim Team must submit a waiver in 
substantially the form attached hereto as Exhibit D before accessing the District’s 
Aquatic Facilities. Allowing use without an executed waiver is grounds for 
termination of this Agreement. This waiver is in addition to any other waivers 
required by the School Board, Swim Team or the District.

iv. Temperature checks of all individuals associated with the Swim Team are 
required prior to entering the Aquatic Facilities.  Swim Team is responsible for 
providing for such temperature checks and ensuring that any individual 
registering a higher than normal temperature indicative of feverish symptoms do 
not enter the Aquatic Facilities for at least fourteen (14) days following such 
temperature check, or as otherwise recommended by the Center for Disease 
Control and Prevention (“CDC”) . 

v. Swim Team acknowledges and understands that the Swim Team agrees to 
implement a safe and reasonable means to facilitate the entry and exit of 
swimmers between practice groups. 

vi. Parents, guests and other spectators shall be prohibited from the Aquatic 
Facilities during practices and meets, so long as COVID-19 conditions continue 
and there is a public health emergency declared by federal, state or local 
governments.  

vii. Before allowing any individual to access the District’s Aquatic Facilities 
or other facilities, the Swim Team shall ask the screening questions as 
recommended by the CDC, a form of which is attached hereto as Exhibit E.  
Swim Team agrees the screening questions may be updated by the CDC and that 
the Swim Team is responsible for using the most current form of the screening 
questions as recommended by the CDC, which may be found on the CDC’s 
website  at https://www.cdc.gov/screening.

viii. In the event that any individual associated with the Swim Team who has 
used the District’s Aquatic Facilities or other facilities tests positive for COVID-
19, the Swim Team shall immediately notify the District and cease all use of the 
Aquatic Facilities or other facilities until the District notifies the Swim Team that 
use may resume.

ix. Swimmers shall show up changed and ready to swim and may not change 

Page 215 of 962

DRAFT



5
at the District’s facilities. Use granted herein is limited to the pool deck and the 
pool and no use of locker room or similar indoor facilities is permitted. Swimmers 
shall bring their own equipment and not use shared equipment.

SECTION 4. CARE OF THE PROPERTY.  School Board agrees to use all due care to protect 
the property of the District, its residents and landowners from damage, and to require any meet 
participants invited to the Aquatic Facilities to do the same.  School Board agrees that it shall 
assume responsibility for any and all damage to the District's facilities or lands as a result of 
School Board's use under this Agreement other than damage which may be attributable to 
ordinary wear and tear as determined by the District.  In the event that any damage to the 
District's facilities or lands occurs, the District shall notify School Board of such damage and 
shall allow the School Board’s agents or employees the opportunity to examine the damage prior 
to repair.  Swim Team agrees that the District may make whatever arrangements necessary, in its 
sole discretion, to promptly make any such repairs as is necessary to preserve the health, safety 
and welfare of the District's lands, facilities, residents and landowners.  Swim Team agrees to 
reimburse the District for any such repairs within thirty (30) days of receipt of an invoice from 
the District reflecting the cost of the repairs made under this Section.

SECTION 5. ENFORCEMENT.  A default by either Party under this Agreement shall 
entitle the other Party to all remedies available at law or in equity, which shall include, but not be 
limited to, the right of damages, injunctive relief and specific performance.  Notwithstanding 
this, the School Board’s right to recover damages from the District on any and all claims of any 
type shall be limited in all instances to no more than five-hundred dollars and zero cents 
($500.00).

SECTION 6.  INDEMNIFICATION AND INSURANCE.  The Swim Team agrees to indemnify 
and hold harmless the District and its officers, agents and employees from any and all liability, 
claims, actions, suits or demands by any person, corporation or other entity for injuries, death or 
property damage of any nature, arising out of, or in connection with, wholly or in part by, the use 
of the District's facilities and lands by the Swim Team and its guests, including litigation or any 
appellate proceedings, both in and outside court proceedings, with respect thereto, and 
specifically including but not limited to claims arising out of or connected to alleged or actual 
exposure to the COVID-19 virus.  

Notwithstanding any terms of this Agreement to the contrary, the Parties agree that 
nothing herein shall be construed as a waiver of either the School Board’s or the District's 
sovereign immunity or limits of liability beyond any statutory limited waiver of immunity or 
limits of liability which may have been adopted by the Florida Legislature in Section 768.28, 
Florida Statutes, or other statute.  The School Board, subject to the School Board’s self-insured 
retention, agrees and covenants to provide liability insurance with limits of One Million Dollars 
($1,000,000.00) applicable to bodily injury, sickness or death in any one occurrence and One 
Million Dollars ($1,000,000.00) for loss or damage to property in any one occurrence and shall 
provide evidence of such insurance in the form of an insurance certificate prior to commencing 
use of the District’s facilities under this Agreement.  Additionally, the School Board agrees that 
its policy may not be canceled during the term of this Agreement without at least thirty (30) days 
written notice to the District.

Page 216 of 962

DRAFT



6

Notwithstanding any language in this section to the contrary, nothing in this 
indemnification agreement shall be construed or interpreted to increase the scope or dollar limit 
of the Swim Team’s or the School Board’s liability beyond that which is set forth in Section 
768.28, Florida Statutes, or to otherwise waive the Swim Team’s/School Board’s sovereign 
immunity, or to require the Swim Team/School Board to indemnify District or any other person, 
corporation, or legal entity of any kind or nature whatsoever for injury or loss resulting from any 
acts other than the negligent acts of the Swim Team or the School Board or its agents or 
employees.  The Swim Team and the School Board shall not indemnify any party for attorney’s 
fees or costs other than those court costs which are set forth by Florida Statute or other Florida 
law as recoverable costs of court. 

SECTION 7. RECOVERY OF COSTS AND FEES.  In the event either Party is required to 
enforce this Agreement by court proceedings or otherwise, then the substantially prevailing party 
shall be entitled to recover from the other party all costs incurred, excluding reasonable 
attorneys' fees.

SECTION 8. TERMINATION.  Both Parties shall have the right to terminate this 
Agreement at any time without cause with written notice.  However, the covenants and 
obligations of Swim Team contained in this Agreement shall survive termination for acts and 
omissions which occurred during the effective term of the agreement. 

SECTION 9. ENTIRE AGREEMENT.  This instrument, together with the attached Exhibits, 
shall constitute the final and complete expression of the agreement between the Parties relating 
to the subject matter of this Agreement.

SECTION 10. AMENDMENT.  Amendments to and waivers of the provisions contained in 
this Agreement may be made only by an instrument in writing that is executed by both Parties 
hereto.

SECTION 11. ASSIGNMENT.  Neither the District nor the Swim Team may assign their 
rights, duties, or obligations under this Agreement or any monies to become due hereunder 
without the prior written approval of the other.  Any attempted assignment without such written 
approval shall be void.

SECTION 12. APPLICABLE LAW.  This Agreement and the provisions contained herein 
shall be construed, interpreted and controlled according to the laws of the State of Florida.  The 
Parties consent to and agree that the exclusive venue for any litigation arising out of or related to 
this Agreement shall be in a court of appropriate jurisdiction, in and for Clay County, Florida.

SECTION 13. NOTICES.  All notices, requests, consents and other communications 
hereunder ("Notices") shall be in writing and shall be delivered, mailed by overnight delivery 
service or First Class Mail, postage prepaid, to the Parties, as follows:

1. If to Swim Team: Clay High School Swim Team
2025 Highway 16 West

Page 217 of 962

DRAFT



7
Green Cove Springs, Florida 32043
Attn: Carol McDougall, Swim Team Coach

With a copy to: J. Bruce Bicker
Attorney to Clay County School Board
900 Walnut Street
Green Cove Springs, Florida 32043

2. If to District: Rolling Hills Community 
Development District
475 West Town Place, Suite 114
St. Augustine, FL 32092
Attn: Jim Oliver, District Manager

With a copy to: Hopping Green & Sams, P.A.
119 South Monroe Street, Suite 300
Tallahassee, Florida  32301
Attn:  Katie S. Buchanan, District Counsel

Except as otherwise provided in this Agreement, any Notice shall be deemed received 
only upon actual delivery at the address set forth above.  Notices delivered after 5:00 p.m. (at the 
place of delivery) or on a non-business day, shall be deemed received on the next business day.  
If any time for giving Notice contained in this Agreement would otherwise expire on a non-
business day, the Notice period shall be extended to the next succeeding business day.  
Saturdays, Sundays, and legal holidays recognized by the United States government shall not be 
regarded as business days.  Counsel for the District and counsel for the Swim Team may deliver 
Notice on behalf of the District and the Swim Team.  Any party or other person to whom Notices 
are to be sent or copied shall notify the other parties and addressees of any change in name or 
address to which Notices shall be sent by providing the same on five (5) days written notice to 
the parties and addressees set forth herein.

SECTION 14. SEVERABILITY.  The invalidity or unenforceability of any one or more 
provisions of this Agreement shall not affect the validity or enforceability of the remaining 
portions of this Agreement, or any part of this Agreement not held to be invalid or 
unenforceable.

SECTION 15. AUTHORIZATION.  The execution of this Agreement has been duly 
authorized by the appropriate body or official of the District and the Swim Team, both the 
District and the Swim Team have complied with all the requirements of law, and both the 
District and the Swim Team have full power and authority to comply with the terms and 
provisions of this instrument.

SECTION 16. HEADINGS FOR CONVENIENCE ONLY. The descriptive headings in this 
Agreement are for convenience only and shall neither control nor affect the meaning or 
construction of any of the provisions of this Agreement.

Page 218 of 962

DRAFT



8

[Signatures on next page]

Page 219 of 962

DRAFT



9
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Parties hereto have signed and sealed this Agreement on the 

day and year first written above.

ATTEST: ROLLING HILLS COMMUNITY 
DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT

 
Secretary/Assistant Secretary Chairperson, Board of Supervisors

WITNESS: THE SCHOOL BOARD OF CLAY
COUNTY, FLORIDA

Chairperson
Printed Name

Exhibit A Swim Team Practice and Meet Schedules
Exhibit B Guidelines for Swim Team Usage
Exhibit C USA Swimming Lap Lane Social Distancing Guide
Exhibit D Form of Waiver
Exhibit E Screening  Questions

Page 220 of 962

DRAFT



10
EXHIBIT A

Page 221 of 962

DRAFT



11
EXHIBIT B

Guidelines for Swim Team Usage

1. All Swim Team usage of Aquatic Facilities must be pre-scheduled with District staff 
prior to the beginning of practices.

2. Usage of the District facilities is limited to the Aquatic Facilities named in the Agreement 
and this exhibit ONLY. The Swim Team shall not have access to any other District’s 
recreational facilities, including but not limited to the clubhouse.

3. Spectators that are not District residents may be present and are allowed to attend Swim 
Team competitions and meets subject to the conditions of this Agreement. However, the 
District, in its sole discretion, reserves the right to limit the number of such spectators (1) 
should the Aquatic Facilities exceed then-effective occupancy capacity or (2) should it be 
necessary to protect the health, safety or welfare of the District, its landowners, residents 
or its guests or the District property.  Notwithstanding the foregoing, parents, guests and 
other spectators are prohibited from attending practices, competitions and meets so long 
as COVID-19 conditions continue and there is a public health emergency declared by 
federal, state and/or local governments.

4. Spectators and/or guests that are not District residents shall not be present during swim 
practices.

5. Swim Team is responsible for ensuring that Swim Team members, visiting teams, guests 
and spectators, as applicable, abide by all District rules and policies, including but not 
limited to COVID-19 sanitation, social distancing and other requirements, which may be 
amended from time to time in the District’s sole discretion.

6. No Swim Team practices may be held on weekends or on days or times that the family 
pool is closed UNLESS the practices are held prior to facility opening to the public, or 
otherwise as permitted by the District.  On those days, practice will end by 11:00 am and 
the Swim Team shall be responsible straightening any chairs, disposing of trash in trash 
receptacles and general clean-up after each practice, returning the Aquatic Facilities to 
the same condition as before the practice started. Other restrictions may apply during a 
public health emergency, such as the ongoing COVID-10 pandemic, or as otherwise 
required by the District.

7. Except with the prior approval of the District, no Swim Team competitions may be held 
on weekends or on days that the family pool is closed, unless otherwise as permitted by 
the District.  Swim Team shall be responsible for straightening any chairs, disposing of 
trash in trash receptacles and general clean-up after each meet, returning the Aquatic 
Facilities to the same condition as before the meet started.  Other restrictions may apply 
during a public health emergency, such as the ongoing COVID-10 pandemic, or as 
otherwise required by the District.

Page 222 of 962

DRAFT



12
8. No outside vendors will be allowed to sell food at any time.  

9. Swim Team practices may use all but one lane, which will remain reserved for District 
residents.

10. Swim Team roster must be provided to the District 15 days prior to practices beginning 
or as soon as practicable.  Roster must include all coaching staff.

11. The District reserves the right to retain a security guard or guards for the swim meets at 
Swim Team’s expense if the District, in its sole and unrestricted discretion, deems it 
desirable.

12. Swim Team shall be responsible for automobile parking on swim meet days.  Swim 
meets are expected to surpass the District’s parking lot capacity, and the Swim Team 
shall have volunteers available to manage such overflow parking.  Swim Team Members, 
visiting teams or spectators are prohibited from parking on private property.

13. The Agreement with the District, the School Board and the Swim Team must be signed 
and provided to the District 15 days prior to practices beginning or as soon as practicable.

14. Proof of insurance must be provided to the District prior to practices beginning or as soon 
as practicable.

Page 223 of 962

DRAFT



13
EXHIBIT C

Lap Lane Social Distancing Guide

Page 224 of 962

DRAFT



14

Page 225 of 962

DRAFT



15

Page 226 of 962

DRAFT



16
EXHIBIT D

WAIVER OF LIABILITY AND HOLD HARMLESS AGREEMENT

(“ACKNOWLEDGEMENT AND RELEASE”)

I acknowledge that I have freely chosen to have my child participate in certain recreational activities (the 
“Activities”) sponsored by the Clay High School Swim Team (“Swim Team”) at the Rolling Hills 
Community Development District (“District”) amenity facilities (“Facilities”).  I understand that the 
District and the Swim Team have taken reasonable precautions to protect parents, participants, staff, and 
spectators from exposure to COVID-19 during these Activities. Those measures include, but are not 
limited to, verbal screening of attendees and staff and reasonable enforcement and implementation of 
social distancing and sanitization. 

I agree that by participating in the Activities, I will fully comply with all such measures or face ejection 
from the Facilities. I further acknowledge that my attendance may result in risk of exposure to COVID-19 
in spite of the above measures, and I assume any such risk that may arise therefrom. I accept full 
responsibility for all medical expenses for any injuries, illness, or exposure I might receive by reason of 
my attendance and/or participation. 

By signing this Acknowledgment and Release, I also hereby release the District and its Supervisors, 
officers, staff, employees, agents, assigns and volunteers (“Released Parties”) from and against any and 
all claims, demands, actions, complaints, suits or other forms of liability that any of them may sustain 
arising out of or related to, wholly or in part by, my or my child(ren)’s (a) participation in the Activities, 
(b) failure to comply with the measures imposed by the Clay County School Board, the Swim Team or 
the District, (c) failure to comply with local, state, and federal laws and policies, procedures, effective 
guidance regarding COVID-19, and the District amenity rules and policies; or (d) any damage, injury, or 
illness caused by me or my child(ren) (together, the “Released Claims”).

I also agree to indemnify and hold harmless the Released Parties from the Released Claims, including any 
and all related costs, attorneys’ fees, liabilities, settlements, and/or judgments. I confirm that I have 
carefully read this Acknowledgement and Release, fully understand the above conditions, and agree to its 
terms knowingly and voluntarily. I also confirm that I am the parent or legal guardian of the child(ren) 
named below and that I am 18 years of age or older.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have signed this Acknowledgement and Release on this _______ day of 
_______________________, 2021. 

SIGNATURE: _______________________________________________ 

NAME: _____________________________________________________

NAMES OF MINOR CHILD(REN): ______________________________

____________________________________________________________

____________________________________________________________

Page 227 of 962

DRAFT



17
Exhibit E

Page 228 of 962

DRAFT



18

Page 229 of 962

DRAFT



19

Page 230 of 962

DRAFT



School Board of Clay County

June 24, 2021 - Regular School Board Meeting

Title
C10 - 7 Mindsets Social Emotional Learning Curriculum

Description
7 Mindsets provides Social Emotional Learning (SEL) content that will be implemented district wide. SEL will be critical to re-
engaging students, supporting adults, rebuilding relationships, and creating a foundation for academic learning as schools reopen.
Developing the whole child will help ensure that students will have the tools needed to handle difficult situations. The
Professional development components will help instructors understand equity, how to build a positive school and classroom
culture, and how to develop the social emotional learning for all students. 

Gap Analysis
As stated in SB 7030, districts are required to “be focused on a multi-tiered system of supports to deliver evidence-based mental
health care assessment, diagnosis, intervention, treatment and recovery services to students...” Clay County is focused on
encouraging and fostering the success of the whole child. To meet these standards and to prioritize the significance of Tier I
prevention efforts, the 7 Mindsets social and emotional learning platform will be implemented on a district wide basis to ensure
all students are receiving a common language and understanding of growth and development. 

Previous Outcomes
Access to the 7 Mindsets curriculum was expanded in the 20-21 school year to 22 additional schools, giving access to 41 schools
in total.  Several schools implementing for the second consecutive year reported a reduction in referrals, an increase in positive
interactions and indicated that 7 Mindsets was helping to shape the culture of their schools.  The consistency of the content and
delivery methods building from year to year has had a direct impact on the overall results of this program implementation. 

Expected Outcomes
The use of 7 Mindsets will facilitate the development of the whole child by helping students understand how to handle difficult
situations, engage with others and build relationships. Developing these skills will assist in removing barriers and open the
pathway for academic achievement.

Strategic Plan Goal
Goal:3: Establish a respectful climate and culture that provides equity and access to all.
Strategy:3.2: Develop systems and processes that focus on developing the whole child.

Recommendation
That the Clay County School Board approve 7 Mindsets be purchased for instructors to use lesson content to increase the social,
emotional, learning for all students.

Contact
Laura Fogarty 904-336-6513 laura.fogarty@myoneclay.net

Financial Impact
$198,300.00 Federal Funds

Review Comments

Attachments

7 Mindsets 21-22 Contract Pending Board Approval.pdf

Page 231 of 962

DRAFT

http://agenda.oneclay.net/content/files/7-mindsets-21-22-contract-pending-board-approval.pdf


Page 232 of 962

DRAFT



Page 233 of 962

DRAFT



Page 234 of 962

DRAFT



Page 235 of 962

DRAFT



Page 236 of 962

DRAFT



Page 237 of 962

DRAFT



Page 238 of 962

DRAFT



Page 239 of 962

DRAFT



Page 240 of 962

DRAFT



Page 241 of 962

DRAFT



Page 242 of 962

DRAFT



Page 243 of 962

DRAFT



Page 244 of 962

DRAFT



Page 245 of 962

DRAFT



Page 246 of 962

DRAFT



Page 247 of 962

DRAFT



Page 248 of 962

DRAFT



Page 249 of 962

DRAFT



Page 250 of 962

DRAFT



Page 251 of 962

DRAFT



Page 252 of 962

DRAFT



Page 253 of 962

DRAFT



Page 254 of 962

DRAFT



Page 255 of 962

DRAFT



School Board of Clay County

June 24, 2021 - Regular School Board Meeting

Title
C11 - Navigate 360 curriculum Suite360: Mental Health & Prevention

Description
Navigate 360 provides a web based curriculum called Suite360: Mental Health & Prevention that is specifically tailored to meet
FLDOE required instruction topics of mental health, substance use and abuse and child trafficking.   

Gap Analysis
Suite360 modules will enable Clay County District Schools to ensure the required five hour minimum of instruction on substance
use and abuse, child trafficking prevention, and awareness and mental and emotional health education (Rule 6A-1.094124,
F.A.C.), is facilitated for students in all educational settings for the 21-22 school year. (Note the three separate statutues from the
prior year were repealed to be included in the one statute listed.)

Previous Outcomes
Suite360 modules were implemented during the 20-21 school year to provide the required education on the topics of substance
use and abuse (Rule 6A-1.094122, F.A.C.), child trafficking prevention and awareness (Rule 6A-1.094123, F.A.C.), and mental
and emotional health education (Rule 6A-1.094121, F.A.C.)  The curriculum provided enabled Clay Coundy District Schools to
meet the statute guidelines and requirements.

Expected Outcomes
All Clay County District School students will have a working knowledge of substance use and abuse, child trafficking, and
mental health awareness. Topics include:

Youth substance use and abuse health education.-
Recognition of signs of human trafficking;-
Awareness of resources, including national, state and local resources;-
Prevention of the abuse of and addiction to alcohol, nicotine, and drugs;-
Information on the prevalence, nature, and strategies to reduce the risk of human trafficking, techniques to set healthy
boundaries, and how to safely seek assistance; and

-

Information on how social media and mobile device applications are used for human trafficking.-
Recognition of signs and symptoms of mental health disorders; Prevention of mental health disorders; Mental health
awareness and assistance;

-

How to reduce the stigma around mental health disorders;-
Awareness of resources, including local school and community resources;-
The process for accessing treatment;-
Strategies to develop healthy coping techniques;-
Strategies to support a peer, friend, or family member with a mental health disorder;-
Prevention of suicide; and-
 Prevention of the abuse of and addiction to alcohol, nicotine, and drugs.-

Strategic Plan Goal
Goal: 3: Establish a respectful climate and culture that provides equity and access to all.
Strategy: 3.2: Develop systems and processes that focus on developing the whole child.

Recommendation
That the Clay County School Board will approve the purchase of the Navigate 360 curriculum Suite360: Mental Health &
Prevention.

Page 256 of 962

DRAFT



Contact
Laura Fogarty 904-336-6513 laura.fogarty@myoneclay.net

Financial Impact
$44,250.00 General Fund

Review Comments

Attachments

Page 257 of 962

DRAFT



School Board of Clay County

June 24, 2021 - Regular School Board Meeting

Title
C12 - Approve the 2021-2022 District's Property/Casualty/Active Assailant Insurance renewal submitted by Arthur J. Gallagher
& Co. (broker)

Description
Annual renewal of the District's Property/Casualty/Active Assailant Insurance policies

Gap Analysis
Annually, the District undergoes a comprehensive analysis of its current insurable property and personnel.  Our broker (Arthur J.
Gallagher) obtains competitive quotes based on current insurance trends and needs for the next fiscal year.  The goal is to obtain
the best coverage possible while maintaining a manageable budget for the coverage.  This year, the policy includes renewal for
Property, General Liability, Auto Liability, School Leaders including Employment Practices Liability, Worker's Compensation,
Crime, Cyber Risk, Boiler & Machinery, Storage Tank Liability, and Active Assailant Liability.
The overall cost is an xx% increase from the prior year's premium.  The increase is due to the rise in property values and payroll
expenditures.

Previous Outcomes
It is a standard operating practice to negotiate and present insurance renewals for approval based on needs, trends, and financial
availability.
2015-2016 = $1,200,697
2016-2017 - $1,040,615
2017-2018 - $1,045,627
2018-2019  $1,095,983
2019-2020   $1,160,753
2020-2021   $1,238,455   
2021-2022   $x,xxx,xxx

Expected Outcomes
To approve the Superintendent's recommendation (Option #?) to renew the 2021-2022 Property & Casualty Insurance Program.

Strategic Plan Goal
The district ensures fiscal responsibility and equitable distribution of resources.

Recommendation
To obtain the School Board's approval of the District's Property, Liability, and Active Assailant insurance renewal policies as
presented.

Contact
Dr. Susan M. Legutko, Assistant Superintendent for Business Affairs 284-6571  susan.legutko@myoneclay.net

Financial Impact
$x,xxx,xxx  funded through by Self Insurance Program

Review Comments

Attachments

Page 258 of 962

DRAFT



School Board of Clay County

June 24, 2021 - Regular School Board Meeting

Title
C13 - Approve uniform pricing  for ”Before and/or After School Enrichment Programs” offered by “outside” organizations.

Description
In past, the district has allowed outside (non-school district) organizations, including but not limited to the YMCA and Bricks
4Kidz, to offer before and/or after school programs for the benefit of district school-age children, using the school district’s
facilities, at a non-uniform and discounted rate which was below the rate set for facility use. The reason was that the
organizations offered “enrichment” programs which were an alternative to simple “daycare”.  The term “enrichment” was often
misapplied to those programs. This agenda item proposes a uniform pricing plan for all before and/or after school enrichment
programs. The proposed cost structure is higher than it has been in the past but is still considerably lower than the standard use of
facilities cost.

Gap Analysis
Approval of the Uniform Pricing structure " before and/or after school enrichment” programs will uniformly decrease the loss of
revenues by the school district for certain facilities use and upgrade the accountability of certain programs which seek to use
school district facilities during the regular school year at a reduced rate.

Previous Outcomes
None.  The issue of the uniform rate structure for the before and/or after school enrichment programs has not previously been
entertained by the Board. The Board recently approved the uniform pricing for the summer enrichment programs.

Expected Outcomes
It is expected that the School Board will approve the use of Uniform Pricing, which will be applied to all enrichment programs
seeking to use district facilities for before and/or after school programs, thereby resulting in rental revenue increases and
improved quality of these programs offered by outside organizations.

Strategic Plan Goal
N/A

Recommendation
Approve the Uniform Pricing and Uniform Definition for Before and/or After School Enrichment Programs

Contact
Dr. Susan Legutko, Asst. Superintendent Business Affairs, susan.legutko@myoneclay.net; Christina Deeley-Isais, Coordinator
Risk Management, christina.deeleyisais@myoneclay.net

Financial Impact
Revenue for use of facilities from Before and/or After School Enrichment Programs of outside organizations will increase.

Review Comments

Attachments

Before and After Pricing.pdf

Page 259 of 962

DRAFT

http://agenda.oneclay.net/content/files/before-and-after-pricing.pdf


Non-Profit Before/After School Enrichment Organizations Pricing  

These programs do not infringe on the school day, but are available either before &/or after school and are confirmed to fall 
into the “Enrichment Program” category as defined. 

Fees Required: 
• Enrichment Facility Hourly Rate 
• Utility Fees (not including restrooms)  
• Salary/Benefits Costs  
• Sale tax (if exempt form is not provided) 
 

BEFORE/AFTER SCHOOL ENRICHMENT PROGRAMS  FEES CALCULATION UNITS 

SCHOOL APPROVED AREAS $20 Per hour, Not to infringe on school hours 

 

PERSONNEL REQUIRED FEES CALCULATION UNITS 

CUSTODIAL SERVICES (includes services) $40.00 Per hour **only for times that School Employees are not scheduled to work 

SBCC EMPLOYEE (monitor only) $30.00 Per hour (no custodial services included) (see ** above) 

All wage fees will be charged at time and one-half if work is on a Holiday when the employee is normally off and paid for that Holiday. 

UTILITIES/EQUIPMENT FEES CALCULATION UNITS 

MANDATORY COVID-19 CLEANING PRODUCTS $9.50 Per hour of cleaning required post-event 

 

Previously approved with Summer pricing. 

DEFINITION OF ENRICHMENT PROGRAM: 

An enrichment activity is an experience where kids can extend their learning to improve or enhance skills, knowledge, and 
well-being. They help provide children with a rounded, culturally rich education through activities that enhance their 
learning, give them opportunities to try new and varied activities that may not strictly fit into the curriculum, but that develop 
character, resilience, and motivation, and encourage them to pursue wider goals. Such activities help to teach life skills that 
benefit children beyond the classroom, and can help develop an appreciation for cultural and 
community issues, teamwork, and social responsibility. 

After-school enrichment activities can include academics, sports, arts, and more, and are offered with the goal of providing 
entertainment and enjoyment, while sharpening and fleshing-out student skill sets. Sample activities include: 

● Robotics and S.T.E.M. Programs 

● Writing, Poetry, Journalism 

● Reading & Language 

● Music & Movement 

● Environmental Stewardship, Service Learning 

● Public Speaking, Drama 

● Athletics, Yoga 

● Homework Support 

● Chess 

● Art 

● Activities are tailored to the specific needs and interests of each school with input from school leadership, staff, and 
students. 

Addendum A to Exhibit B 

Page 260 of 962

DRAFT



School Board of Clay County

June 24, 2021 - Regular School Board Meeting

Title
C14 - Proposed Allocation Changes for 2021-2022

Description
Staff allocation documents clarify how each school, district, department, and division is staffed for the 2021-2022 school year. 
The School Board is required to take action on all staff allocation changes.

Gap Analysis
These allocations are required to ensure the adequate staffing of the district and schools.

Previous Outcomes
The district and schools are adequately staffed.

Expected Outcomes
Staffing will be sufficient to meet the needs of the various schools and district departments.

Strategic Plan Goal
The district ensures fiscal responsibility and equitable distribution of resources.

Recommendation
Approve the staff allocation plan as submitted.

Contact
Dr. Susan Legutko, Assistant Superintendent for Business Affairs, (904) 336-6722, susan.legutko@myoneclay.net

Financial Impact
To be determined.

Review Comments

Attachments

Allocation Summary 2021-2022 - June 24, 2021   .1   .pdf

Page 261 of 962

DRAFT

http://agenda.oneclay.net/content/files/allocation-summary-2021-2022-june-24-2021-1.pdf


PROPOSED CHANGES TO STAFF ALLOCATIONS 

 2021-2022 SUMMARY

Board Meeting, June 24, 2021

School Add Delete Allocation Comment Salary Benefits Total Cost

2021-2022

General Funds

BAF-9050 1.0 Accounting Support Assistant (7760) Correction to Title ($43,349) ($13,642) ($56,991)

BAF-9050 1.0 Purchasing Support Assistant (7760) Correction to Title $43,349 $13,642 $56,991

TOTAL: $0 $0 $0

FNS (410/7600)

DIS-0261 1.0 FNS Manager Satellite Base SBI Title change ($33,914) ($10,673) ($44,587)

DIS-0261 1.0 FNS Manager Self Contained SCI Title change $30,400 $9,567 $39,967

FIE-0521 2.0 Cafeteria Assistant (5.75 hours) Increase in participation ($25,360) ($7,981) ($33,341)

FIE-0521 2.0 Cafeteria Assistant (6.25 hours) Increase in participation $27,566 $8,675 $36,241

FIE-0521 2.0 Cafeteria Assistant (4.00 hours) Increase in participation ($35,284) ($11,104) ($46,388)

FIE-0521 2.0 Cafeteria Assistant (4.50 hours) Increase in participation $39,694 $12,492 $52,186

ROE-0541 1.0 FNS Manager Satellite SAT I Title change ($24,601) ($7,742) ($32,343)

ROE-0541 1.0 FNS Manager Self Contained SCI Title change $30,400 $9,567 $39,967

TOTAL: $8,901 $2,801 $11,702

Pending Board Approval 6/24/2021Page 262 of 962

DRAFT



School Board of Clay County

June 24, 2021 - Regular School Board Meeting

Title
C15 - Monthly Financial Reports for May, 2021

Description
The Monthly Financial Reports, in accordance with SBE Rule 6A-1.008, are submitted for the use and consideration of the Board
for the month ending May 31, 2021.
 

Gap Analysis
The Monthly Financial Reports show compliance to the district's amended budget as of the month end reported and meet State
and School Board financial reporting requirements.
 

Previous Outcomes
It has been a past (normal) practice to provide Monthly Financial Reports, in accordance with SBE Rule 6A-1.008.
 

Expected Outcomes
The Monthly Financial Reports are provided to meet the stewardship responsibilities of the district for reporting and
accountability of the district's finances.
 

Strategic Plan Goal
Goal 2:  Strategy 2.4:  Ensure effective and efficient use of resources for fiscal stability.

Recommendation
That the Clay County School Board accept for use and consideration the Superintendent's Monthly Financial Reports for May,
2021.
 

Contact
Dr. Susan M. Legutko, Assistant Superintendent of Business Affairs, (904) 336-6721, susan.legutko@myoneclay.net

Financial Impact
The Monthly Financial Reports reflect the year-to-date results of operations.

Review Comments

Attachments

May Monthly Board Financial Report.pdf

May Monthly Board Property Report.pdf

Contracts 50 Thousand and Greater.pdf

Page 263 of 962

DRAFT

http://agenda.oneclay.net/content/files/may-monthly-board-financial-report.pdf
http://agenda.oneclay.net/content/files/may-monthly-board-property-report.pdf
http://agenda.oneclay.net/content/files/contracts-50-thousand-and-greater.pdf


Page 264 of 962

DRAFT



Page 265 of 962

DRAFT



Page 266 of 962

DRAFT



Page 267 of 962

DRAFT



Page 268 of 962

DRAFT



Page 269 of 962

DRAFT



Page 270 of 962

DRAFT



Page 271 of 962

DRAFT



Page 272 of 962

DRAFT



Page 273 of 962

DRAFT



Page 274 of 962

DRAFT



Page 275 of 962

DRAFT



Page 276 of 962

DRAFT



Page 277 of 962

DRAFT



Page 278 of 962

DRAFT



Page 279 of 962

DRAFT



Page 280 of 962

DRAFT



Page 281 of 962

DRAFT



Page 282 of 962

DRAFT



School Board of Clay County

June 24, 2021 - Regular School Board Meeting

Title
C16 - Budget Amendment for Month Ending May 31, 2021

Description
Florida State Board of Education Administrative Rule 6A-1.006 requires that the School Board approved amendments to the
district school budget whenever the function and object amounts in the accounts prescribed by the State Board are changed from
the original budget approved by the School Board.  The Budget Amendments are procedurally necessary to update our budget to
reflect changes outlined in the attached statements.

Gap Analysis
The monthly budget amendments show compliance to the district's amended budget as of the month-end reported and meet State
and School Board financial reporting requirements.

Previous Outcomes
It has been standard practice to provide budget amendments in accordance with Florida State Board of Education Administrative
Rule 6A-1.006.

Expected Outcomes
The monthly budget amendments are provided to meet stewardship responsibilities of the district for reporting and accountability
of the district budget.

Strategic Plan Goal
The district ensures fiscal responsibility and equitable distribution of resources.

Recommendation
Approval of the Budget Amendments as presented for the month ending May 31, 2021.

Contact
Dr. Susan M. Legutko, Assistant Superintendent for Business  Affairs  (904) 336-6721

Financial Impact
As presented

Review Comments

Attachments

Budget Amendment May 2021.pdf

Page 283 of 962

DRAFT

http://agenda.oneclay.net/content/files/budget-amendment-may-2021.pdf


Page 284 of 962

DRAFT



Page 285 of 962

DRAFT



Page 286 of 962

DRAFT



Page 287 of 962

DRAFT



Page 288 of 962

DRAFT



Page 289 of 962

DRAFT



Page 290 of 962

DRAFT



Page 291 of 962

DRAFT



Page 292 of 962

DRAFT



Page 293 of 962

DRAFT



Page 294 of 962

DRAFT



Page 295 of 962

DRAFT



Page 296 of 962

DRAFT



Page 297 of 962

DRAFT



Page 298 of 962

DRAFT



Page 299 of 962

DRAFT



Page 300 of 962

DRAFT



Page 301 of 962

DRAFT



Page 302 of 962

DRAFT



Page 303 of 962

DRAFT



Page 304 of 962

DRAFT



Page 305 of 962

DRAFT



Page 306 of 962

DRAFT



School Board of Clay County

June 24, 2021 - Regular School Board Meeting

Title
C17 - Deletion of Certain Items Report - June, 2021

Description
The items listed have been surveyed by the Coordinator of Property Control, at the request of the Cost Center Property Manager,
and the recommended disposition is noted.  These items are either obsolete, unusable or beyond economical repair.  These items
should be removed from active inventory and disposed of in the manner indicated.  Deletions are for property items received in
the month of May, 2021.

Gap Analysis
N/A

Previous Outcomes
Property Records followed State mandate on trackable assets, Chapter 274.05.

Expected Outcomes
Tangible Personal Property shall be controlled and supervised from acquisition through transfer or disposal.  Disposal of property
shall be in accordance with Section 274.05, Florida Statutes.  All deletions of items with a value of $1,000.00 or more will be
approved by The School Board of Clay County prior to disposition - School Board Policy Section 5.03C.

Strategic Plan Goal
Goal 2: Strategy 2.4; Ensure effective and efficient use of resources for fiscal stability. 

Recommendation
Approve Deletion of Certain Items Report - June, 2021 as submitted.

Contact
Dr. Susan Legutko,
Assistant Superintendent for Business Affairs
(904)-336-6721
susan.legutko@myoneclay.net

Financial Impact
Provides additional storage space and eliminates the need to account for unusable property.  Reduces the dollar value of Tangible
Personal Property.

Review Comments

Attachments

Deletion Report-June, 2021.pdf

Page 307 of 962

DRAFT

http://agenda.oneclay.net/content/files/deletion-report-june-2021.pdf


Depreciation

06/30/2021

Acquisition PurchaseDisposalDisposal
ValueDate AmountDateDescriptionTag

Monthly Deletion Report
For Month Ending:

Clay County Public Schools

Method
LCTN 0331 S BRYAN JENNINGS ELEMENTARY

4,995.00 4,995.00FLOOR SCRUBBER:AUTO MINUTEMAN Furniture,Fixtures & EquipmentSurplus Sale  06/02/2021 01/23/200300071823
4,995.004,995.00

LCTN 0481 LAKE ASBURY JUNIOR HIGH
10,151.00 8,821.70COPIER: DIGITAL - RICOH MP7502 Furniture,Fixtures & EquipmentJunk/Parts  06/02/2021 06/06/201313000621
1,125.10 602.73WASHER/DRYER STACKABLE-FRIGIDA Furniture,Fixtures & EquipmentJunk/Parts  06/02/2021 10/08/201516000092

9,424.4311,276.10

LCTN 0511 MCRAE ELEMENTARY
1,123.54 1,123.54LAPTOP: DELL LATITUDE E6420 +W Furniture,Fixtures & EquipmentSurplus Sale  06/02/2021 03/08/201212000545

1,123.541,123.54

LCTN 0541 RIDEOUT ELEMENTARY
3,328.00 3,328.00BURNISHER:20 " MINUTEMAN W/CHA Furniture,Fixtures & EquipmentSurplus Sale  06/02/2021 01/09/200300071827
2,850.19 2,850.19EXTRACTOR:HOT WATER HHP300 Furniture,Fixtures & EquipmentSurplus Sale  06/02/2021 05/24/200100075521
2,850.19 2,850.19EXTRACTOR:HOT WATER HHP300 Furniture,Fixtures & EquipmentSurplus Sale  06/02/2021 05/24/200100075523
3,615.00 3,615.00SCRUBBER:MINUTEMAN 200X W/ACCE Furniture,Fixtures & EquipmentSurplus Sale  06/02/2021 06/14/200100075535

12,643.3812,643.38

LCTN 0551 FLEMING ISLAND HIGH SCHOOL
3,895.00 3,895.00REFRIGERATOR:PASS THRU- TRULSE Furniture,Fixtures & EquipmentSurplus Sale  06/02/2021 06/26/200300079202

3,895.003,895.00

LCTN 0611 OAKLEAF JUNIOR HIGH
1,598.87 1,598.87PHD DOLPHIN + FOR DESTINY - US Furniture,Fixtures & EquipmentSurplus Sale  06/02/2021 05/25/200600089954

1,598.871,598.87

LCTN 9010 TRANSPORTATION
4,653.75 941.83TOOL: DIAGNOSTIC TOUGH BOOK 16 Furniture,Fixtures & EquipmentSurplus Sale  06/02/2021 02/15/201818000248

941.834,653.75

LCTN 9110 FOOD & NUTRITION SERVICES
2,485.00 2,485.00UNIT:MILK,REFRIGERATED Furniture,Fixtures & EquipmentSurplus Sale  06/02/2021 07/01/198600039783
2,983.52 2,983.52UNIT MOBILE HOT SERVING W/5 Furniture,Fixtures & EquipmentSurplus Sale  06/02/2021 03/25/199600062394
1,959.00 1,959.00CABINET HOT W/CASTERS Furniture,Fixtures & EquipmentSurplus Sale  06/02/2021 03/04/199600062417
2,133.00 2,133.00CABINET:CRESCOR HOT Furniture,Fixtures & EquipmentSurplus Sale  06/02/2021 12/19/200000072221
2,504.17 2,504.17CABINET: TRANSPORT HEATED-ALTO Furniture,Fixtures & EquipmentSurplus Sale  06/02/2021 05/12/201111000918

06/30/202106/01/2021Date Range 113:37:1006/02/2021 Page 308 of 962

DRAFT



Depreciation

06/30/2021

Acquisition PurchaseDisposalDisposal
ValueDate AmountDateDescriptionTag

Monthly Deletion Report
For Month Ending:

Clay County Public Schools

Method
12,064.6912,064.69

52,250.33
Totals for Deletion Report

46,686.74

Note: MAY 2021 DELETIONS
Disposal Method Descriptions:

JUNK/PARTS - Part(s) of an asset are used and remainder of part(s) are sold, recycled or disposed

TRADE-IN - Vendor issues a credit towards a new purchase

THEFT/VANDALISM - Items stolen or broken (police report attached)

MISSING - Items lost and are not found during property inventory (Annually)

SURPLUS SALE - Items that are outdated, not working or obsolete.  Items are either sold, recycled or disposed

ENTERED IN ERROR- Not used

TRANSFER/DONATION - From Clay County District to an Outside Agency (Approved by Board or Superintendent)

DESTROYED - Fire/Natural Disaster, etc.

Total Software
0.00

Total Audio Visual
0.00

Total Vehicles
0.00

Total Furniture
52,250.33

THRESHOLD (ex. $750 TO $1000)

06/30/202106/01/2021Date Range 213:37:1006/02/2021 Page 309 of 962

DRAFT



School Board of Clay County

June 24, 2021 - Regular School Board Meeting

Title
C18 - BID Renewal

Description
Renew BID as required per FS 287, DOE 6A-1.012 and School Board Policy
a. Chiller Services County Wide Bid #18-MA-314:  Contract Period is September 1, 2021 through August 31, 2022. The contract
period is for 1 year and is the first renewal option for Bid.
b. Grounds Maintenance and Landscaping Services County Wide Bid #19-MA-316:  Contract Period is September 1, 2021
through August 31, 2022. The contract period is for 1 year and is the first renewal option for Bid.

Gap Analysis
The District requires contractors to provide services to ensure our facilities and equipment are maintained and functional. The
District requires vendors to provide products to ensure our students and staff receive the items to meet their needs.

Previous Outcomes
Original Bid was Board approved and has been used successfully during the past term to provide quality services and products to
the district.

Expected Outcomes
Upon approval by the Board; we expect the contractors and vendors ?to continue providing quality services and products at the
same terms and conditions as when the original Bid were awarded.

Strategic Plan Goal
Goal 2; Strategy 2.4; Ensure effective and efficient use of resources for fiscal stability.

Recommendation
Extend renewal as follows:
a. Chiller Services County Wide Bid #18-MA-314:

Trane US, Inc., 8929 Western Way, Jacksonville, FL 32256-
Siemens Industry, Inc., 8940 Western Way, Suite 1, Jacksonville, FL 32256-
Carrier Corporation, 9143 Phillips Hwy, Suite 330, Jacksonville, FL 32256-

b. Grounds Maintenance and Landscaping Services County Wide Bid #19-MA-316:
ABM Industry Groups, LLC., 6478 Hwy 90, Suite E, Milton, FL 32570-

Contact
Dr. Susan Legutko, Assistant Superintendent for Business Affairs, Phone: (904)336-6721, Email: susan.legutko@myoneclay.net

Financial Impact
a. Chiller Services County Wide Bid #18-MA-314: The total estimated expenditure for the first, 1 year contract renewal is
$160,000.00 from General Revenue.

b. Grounds Maintenance and Landscaping Services County Wide Bid #19-MA-316: The total estimated expenditure for the first,
1 year contract renewal is $600,000.00 from General Revenue.

Review Comments

Attachments

Page 310 of 962

DRAFT



School Board of Clay County

June 24, 2021 - Regular School Board Meeting

Title
C19 - BID to be Awarded

Description
Award BID as required per FS 287, DOE 6A-1.012 and School Board Policy
a. Milk Products - County Wide Bid #21-SFS-11:  Bid established for the purchase of milk products for all School Board food
service facilities. Contract Period is for a one (1) year period from August 1, 2021 through July 31, 2022 with the option to renew
for three additional one (1) year contract periods upon mutual agreement, in writing. It was in the best interest of the District to
revise the initial three (3) year contract term of Bid due to the uncertainty of the USDA Food and Nutrition Service rule
regarding milk standards and the intent of fair and open competition as describe in FL Statute.  The single responsive bid was
evaluated by the Supervisor of Purchasing and it was determined that the sole bid is in-line with the current market. The vendor
awarded is the only bidder meeting specifications.

Gap Analysis
The District requires contractors to provide services to ensure our ??facilities and equipment are maintained and functional. The
District requires vendors to provide products to ensure our students and staff receive the items to meet their needs.

Previous Outcomes
Prior Board approved Bid will expire but it was used successfully during the past terms to provide quality services and products
to the district.

Expected Outcomes
Upon approval by the Board, we expect the vendor to provide quality services and products at the terms and conditions listed in
the Bid.

Strategic Plan Goal
Goal 2;  Strategy 2.4; Ensure effective and efficient use of resources for fiscal stability.

Recommendation
Award BID as follows:
a. Milk Products - County Wide Bid #21-SFS-11: 

New Dairy FL LLC, DBA Borden Dairy, 308 Ave. G SW, Winter Haven, FL  33880-

Contact
Dr. Susan Legutko, Assistant Superintendent for Business Affairs, Phone: (904)336-6721, Email: susan.legutko@myoneclay.net

Financial Impact
a. Milk Products - County Wide Bid #21-SFS-11: The total estimated expenditure for the initial 1 year contract term is
$2,710,000.00 from Federal Revenue.

Review Comments

Attachments

Page 311 of 962

DRAFT



School Board of Clay County

June 24, 2021 - Regular School Board Meeting

Title
C20 - Maintenance Service Agreement for Six Schools (MRE, KHE, KHS, WES, WJH, CHE)

Description
Service Agreement including parts and labor coverage for Heating, Ventilation, and Air Conditioning (HVAC) System
Equipment for scheduled and unscheduled repairs under an annual planned maintenance contract.  The contract terms are for
three (3) years with the ability to extend for two (2) more years for a total of five (5) years.  These six schools were selected
based on their distance from the Green Cove Springs maintenance yard and warehouse.

Gap Analysis
N/A

Previous Outcomes
Previous contract with this company for the same services was successfully executed for the full term of the five (5) year
contract. 

Expected Outcomes
Continued timely proper maintenance actions on HVAC systems alleviates unplanned down-time and unexpected expenses,
increasing the effectiveness of the learning environment.

Strategic Plan Goal
Ensure effective management of the organization, operations, and facilities to maximize the use of resources and promote a safe,
efficient, and effective learning environment for Clay County students. 

Recommendation
Approve the Maintenance Service Agreement

Contact
Bryce Ellis, Assistant Superintendent Operations, (904) 336-6853, bryce.ellis@myoneclay.net,
Phil Hans, Director of Maintenance, (904) 336-6827, philip.hans@myoneclay.net

Financial Impact
The initial cost of the contract for the first year is $248,808.00 and will be funded with General funds.

Review Comments

Attachments

Trane Service Agreement Vendor Performance Evaluation.pdf

Maintenance Service Agreement - Trane.pdf

Page 312 of 962

DRAFT

http://agenda.oneclay.net/content/files/trane-service-agreement-vendor-performance-evaluation.pdf
http://agenda.oneclay.net/content/files/maintenance-service-agreement-trane_1.pdf


Page 313 of 962

DRAFT



Page 314 of 962

DRAFT



Page 315 of 962

DRAFT



Page 316 of 962

DRAFT



Page 317 of 962

DRAFT



Page 318 of 962

DRAFT



Page 319 of 962

DRAFT



Page 320 of 962

DRAFT



Page 321 of 962

DRAFT



Page 322 of 962

DRAFT



Page 323 of 962

DRAFT



Page 324 of 962

DRAFT



Page 325 of 962

DRAFT



Page 326 of 962

DRAFT



Page 327 of 962

DRAFT



Page 328 of 962

DRAFT



Page 329 of 962

DRAFT



Page 330 of 962

DRAFT



Page 331 of 962

DRAFT



Page 332 of 962

DRAFT



Page 333 of 962

DRAFT



Page 334 of 962

DRAFT



Page 335 of 962

DRAFT



Page 336 of 962

DRAFT



Page 337 of 962

DRAFT



Page 338 of 962

DRAFT



Page 339 of 962

DRAFT



Page 340 of 962

DRAFT



Page 341 of 962

DRAFT



Page 342 of 962

DRAFT



Page 343 of 962

DRAFT



Page 344 of 962

DRAFT



Page 345 of 962

DRAFT



Page 346 of 962

DRAFT



Page 347 of 962

DRAFT



School Board of Clay County

June 24, 2021 - Regular School Board Meeting

Title
C21 - 2021-2022 School Safety Interlocal Agreement among the School Board of Clay County, Florida, City of Green Cove
Springs Florida and Green Cove Springs Police Department

Description
Proposed funding and contract options to meet the requirements for the Marjory Stoneman Douglas High School Public Safety
Act,Ch. 2018-3. The agreement between the City of Green Cove Springs, the Green Cove Springs Police Department (GCSPD)
School Resource Officer (SRO) program, and Clay County District Schools shall include one full time police officer at each of
the two schools within the city boundaries and four communications officers, who shall be employees of the GCSPD meeting the
criteria of GCSPD "Communications Officer 110-3".
 

Gap Analysis
The City of Green Cove Springs has contracted with the Clay County District Schools to provide a School Resource Officer at
the two schools within their municipality for the school year 2021-2022. The City of Green Cove Springs will continue (with the
school system) to enhance the connectedness between the local Police Department and the families of students living in Green
Cove Springs attending one of the two schools.

Previous Outcomes
During the 2021-2022 school year the Green Cove Springs Police Department planned and implemented Drug Abuse Resistance
Education (“DARE”) in collaboration with District personnel. The Green Cove Springs Police Department was also successful in
launching a pedestrian safety program at Charles E. Bennett Elementary and Green Cove Springs Junior High.

Expected Outcomes
The presence of the SRO’s on the two campuses will strengthen relationships between the local Police Department, students and
families, in the community. Resulting in higher quality interactions within the neighborhoods creating a more cohesive and
secure campus environment. Students will continue to be educated on  the law and illegal activities within the number of
aggressive and violent conduct referrals overall are expected to decline.

Strategic Plan Goal
Ensure effective management of the organization, operations, and facilities to maximize the use of resources and promote a safe,
efficient, and effective learning environment for Clay County students.  

Recommendation
Approve the agreement between the Green Cove Springs Police Department and School Board of Clay County.

Contact
Bryce Ellis, Assistant Superintendent for Operations, 904-336-6853
Kenneth Wagner, Chief of Police 904-336-0101

Financial Impact
$146,050.66 to be paid out in (12) equal installments for School Resource Officers 2021-2022
$202,037.33 to be paid out in (12) equal installments for (4) Dispatchers for GCSPD 2021-2022

Review Comments

Attachments

City of GCS 2021-2022.pdf

Page 348 of 962

DRAFT

http://agenda.oneclay.net/content/files/city-of-gcs-2021-2022_1.pdf


2021-2022 

SCHOOL SAFETY INTERLOCAL AGREEMENT AMONG 

THE SCHOOL BOARD OF CLAY COUNTY, FLORIDA; 

CITY OF GREEN COVE SPRINGS, FLORIDA; AND 

GREEN COVE SPRINGS POLICE DEPARTMENT 

 

     THIS AGREEMENT is made among and executed by the School Board of Clay County, Florida ("School  

Board"), the City of Green Cove Springs, Florida ("City"), and the City of Green Cove Springs Police  

Department ("GCSPD"), collectively referred to hereinafter as "the Parties." 

      

WHEREAS, the Parties have historically entered into annual "Safety and Education Articulation  

Agreements" whereby GCSPD Officers are assigned to certain public schools within Clay County District  

Schools ("District") to maintain safety and provide certain educational resource services in exchange 

for the School Board's payment of sums to the City for the benefit of GCSPD; and 

     

WHEREAS, the Parties are currently performing one such agreement known as the 2020-2021 Safety  

and Education Articulation Agreement ("2021-2022 Articulation Agreement"), a complete and accurate 

 copy of which is attached hereto as Exhibit A; and 

     

 WHEREAS, under the 2021-2022 Articulation Agreement, GCSPD's educational resource services include 

assistance and support to District personnel in planning and implementing school programs such as Drug  

Abuse Resistance Education ("DARE"), health and substance abuse education, and traffic and 

pedestrian safety programs at Charles E. Bennett Elementary School and Green Cove Springs Junior 

High School; and 

     

WHEREAS, Florida's recently-enacted Marjory Stoneman Douglas High School Public Safety Act, Ch.  

2018-3, Laws of Florida ("the Act"), as amended in 2019, made significant school safety reforms and  

imposed upon all Florida public school districts numerous additional requirements to achieve greater  

Page 349 of 962

DRAFT



safety and security for all public school students and staff; and 

      

WHEREAS, one requirement of the Act, codified in part under section 1006.12 of the Florida  

Statutes (2018), calls for school boards to partner with law enforcement agencies to establish or assign 

 at least one "school safety officer" at each public school within a school district by implementing one or  

any combination of three four statutory options going into the 2021-2022 school year; and 

     

 WHEREAS, a District-wide combination School Safety Officer/School Resource Officer "SRO"  

program presents one statutory option, though state funding committed to the District for a program of  

this nature is substantially insufficient; and 

      

WHEREAS, the School Board and Superintendent in collaboration with local law enforcement  

agencies, officials, and community stakeholders – have collectively explored (and continue to explore)  

avenues by which adequate funding may be raised and mandates of the Act may be met without 

compromising the level of services provided by each of the public agencies involved; arid 

     

 WHEREAS, the Parties have, in fact, partnered with each other, and desire to enter into an agreement  

under which GCSPD provides SRO services at Charles E. Bennett Elementary School and Green Cove  

Springs Junior High School, continues to deliver the above-referenced educational resource services to 

said schools throughout the 2021-2022 school year, and also creates, sets up and staffs a combined  

Police Dispatch Center to jointly serve GCSPD and the Clay County District Schools Police Department in  

exchange for payment of certain sums by the School Board.  

 

      NOW, THEREFORE, IN CONSIDERATION of the foregoing and the mutual promises and obligations 

stated herein, the Parties agree as follows: 

1. The School Board upon approval of this Agreement by all Parties shall pay to the City the sum of  

$348,087.99 in exchange for certain services provided to the School Board by GCSPD from July 1,  

2021, through June 30, 2022, as specified below. Such payment shall be made in twelve (12) equal  

Page 350 of 962

DRAFT



installments after execution of this Agreement and upon receipt of a monthly detailed invoice  

submitted by GCSPD to the School Board. The above total sum includes payment for the existing  

School Resource Officers in the total amount of $146,050.66 and payment for all salaries and all  

other expenses for four dispatchers in the total amount of $202,037.33 

 

       2. The City agrees to accept payment of such funds for the benefit and use of GCSPD. 

 

       3. Included under this Agreement shall be GCSPD's assignment of a School Resource Officer ("SRO")  

 per site to provide public safety, law enforcement, and educational resource services at Charles E. 

 Bennett Elementary School and Green Cove Springs Junior High School. The educational resources  

 services shall include GCSPD assistance and support to District personnel in planning and     

  implementing school programs such as Drug Abuse Resistance Education ("DARE"), health and  

  substance abuse education, and traffic and pedestrian safety programs at these schools. 

 

      4. Also included under this Agreement, the City and GCSPD shall implement a combined Police 

 Dispatch Center to serve to facilitate communications between 911 services, the Clay County District 

 Schools Police Department and the Green Cove Springs Police Department, which Dispatch Center shall  

be staffed by four (4) communications Officers who shall be employees of the Green Cove Springs Police  

Department. Said dispatch officers shall be hired by the Green Cove Springs Police Department and shall  

meet all of the criteria set forth in the GCSPD job description for “Communications Officer 

110-3.” 

 

      5. The School Board, the Clay County District Schools Police Department, and GCSPD will collaborate  

and work together with other government agencies to ensure that the services contemplated herein are  

appropriately and effectively delivered. General orders and directives will be reviewed and updated to  

enhance the working relationship between District and GCSPD staff and encourage early intervention  

strategies and activities. 

 

 

Page 351 of 962

DRAFT



      6. GCSPD agrees to comply with the requirements of the Jessica Lunsford Act by requiring that all  

GCSPD personnel and agents who come into contact with students are fingerprinted and have passed a  

Level II background check at no cost to the School Board. 

 

      7. GCSPD shall maintain records concerning the performance of services provided by the GCSPD  

Officers assigned as SROs. In accordance with the Law Enforcement Officers Bill of Rights, Chapter 112,  

Fla. Stat., complaints against a GCSPD Officer shall be referred to and appropriately addressed by 

GCSPD. 

 

      8. This Agreement is entered into and governed by the Florida lnter-local Cooperation Act of 1969,  

section 163.01, Fla. Stat., and all applicable portions of the same are hereby incorporated by reference. 

 

      9. Subject to and within the limitations of the sections 163.01 and 768.28, Fla. Stat., GCSPD agrees to  

indemnify and hold harmless the School Board and its officers, employees, and agents from and against  

any and all loss, damage, or liability which arises as a result of the negligent or intentional acts of 

GCSPD personnel which occur in connection with the services contemplated by this 

Agreement. 

 

      10. This Agreement shall become effective upon the date it is fully executed by all the Parties. 

 

      11. Upon full execution of this Agreement, the Parties' 2020-21 Articulation Agreement shall be  

deemed terminated and rendered void without penalty or any further obligations of any party.  

Otherwise, the 2020-21 Articulation Agreement will remain in full force and effect through September  

30, 2021. 

      IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Parties have caused this Agreement to be executed on the date(s)  

hereinafter indicated. 

 

THE SCHOOL BOARD OF CLAY 

COUNTY, FLORIDA 

Page 352 of 962

DRAFT



 

By: ______________________________ Date: ____________________ 

Mary Bolla, Chair 

900 Walnut Street 

Green Cove Springs, Florida 32043 

 

 

By: ______________________________ Date: ____________________ 

DAVID BROSKIE 

Superintendent of Schools 

* * * * * * 

 

 

CLAY COUNTY DISTRICT SCHOOLS 

POLICE DEPARTMENT 

By: _______________________________ Date: ____________________ 

KENNETH WAGNER, Chief 

900 Walnut Street 

Green Cove Springs, Florida 32043 

* * * * * * 

 

POLICE DEPARTMENT OF GREEN 

COVE SPRINGS, FLORIDA 

 

By: _______________________________ Date: ____________________ 

DEREK ASDOT, Chief 

* * * * * * 

CITY OF GREEN COVE SPRINGS, 

FLORIDA 

Page 353 of 962

DRAFT



 

By: _______________________________ Date: ____________________ 

Edward Gaw, Mayor 

321 Walnut Street 

Green Cove Springs, Florida 32043 

* * * * * * 

 

CITY OF GREEN COVE SPRINGS, 

6 

FLORIDA 

By: _______________________________ Date: ____________________ 

STEVE KENNEDY, 

City Manager 

Page 354 of 962

DRAFT



School Board of Clay County

June 24, 2021 - Regular School Board Meeting

Title
C22 - 2021-2022 School Safety Interlocal Agreement among the School Board of Clay County Florida and Town of Orange Park
and the Town of Orange Park Police Department

Description
Proposed funding and contract options to meet the requirements for the Marjory Stoneman Douglas High School Public Safety
Act,Ch. 2018-3. The agreement between the Town of Orange Park School Resource Officer (SRO) program and the Clay County
District Schools shall include one full time police officer at each of the three schools within the city boundaries for Grove Park
Elementary School, Orange Park Elementary School, and Orange Park Junior High for the 2021-2022 academic year.

Gap Analysis
The Town of Orange Park has contracted with the Clay County District Schools to provide a School Resource Officer at the three
schools within their municipality for the school year 2021-2022. The Town of Orange park will continue, with the school
system, to enhance the connectedness between the local Police Department and the families of students living in Orange Park
attending one of the three schools.

Previous Outcomes
During the 2021-2022 school year the Town of Orange Park Police Department planned and implemented Drug Abuse
Resistance Education (“DARE”) in collaboration with District personnel. The Town of Orange Park Police Department was also
successful in launching a pedestrian safety program at Grove Park Elementary, Orange Park Elementary and Orange Park Junior
High.

Expected Outcomes
The presence of the SRO’s on the three campuses will strengthen relationships between the local Police Department, students and
families, in the community. Resulting in higher quality interactions within the neighborhoods creating a more cohesive and
secure campus environment. Students will continue to be educated on the law and illegal activities within the number of
aggressive and violent conduct referrals overall are expected to decline.

Strategic Plan Goal
Ensure effective management of the organization, operations, and facilities to maximize the use of resources and promote a safe,
efficient, and effective learning environment for Clay County students.  

Recommendation
Approve the agreement between the Town of Orange Park, Orange Park Police Department, and Clay County District Schools.

Contact
Bryce Ellis, Assistant Superintendent for Operations, 904-336-6853
Kenneth Wagner, Chief of Police 904-336-0101

Financial Impact
$210,801.00 (12) equal installments for the School Resource Officers.

Review Comments

Attachments

town of OP SRO 2021-2022.pdf

Page 355 of 962

DRAFT

http://agenda.oneclay.net/content/files/town-of-op-sro-2021-2022.pdf


 

2021-2022 

SCHOOL SAFETY INTERLOCAL AGREEMENT AMONG 

THE SCHOOL BOARD OF CLAY COUNTY, FLORIDA; 

THE TOWN OF ORANGE PARK, FLORIDA; AND 

THE TOWN OF ORANGE PARK POLICE DEPARTMENT 

 

 

 THIS AGREEMENT is made among and executed by the School Board of Clay County, Florida  

("School Board"), the Town of Orange Park, Florida ("Town"), and the Town of Orange Park Police  

Department ("OPPD"), collectively referred to hereinafter as "the Parties." 

 

WHEREAS, the Parties have historically entered into annual "Safety and Education Articulation 

Agreements" whereby OPPD Officers are assigned to certain public schools within Clay County District 

Schools ("District") to maintain safety and provide certain educational resource services in exchange for 

the School Board's payment of sums to the Town Council of Orange Park, Florida ("Town Council"), for 

the benefit of OPPD; and 

 

WHEREAS, the Parties are currently performing one such agreement known as the 2020-2021 Safety 

and Education Articulation Agreement ("2020-21 Articulation Agreement"), a complete and accurate 

copy of which is attached hereto as Exhibit A; and 

 

WHEREAS, under the 2021-22 Articulation Agreement, OPPD's educational resource services include 

assistance and support to District personnel in planning and implementing school programs such as Drug 

Abuse Resistance Education ("DARE"), health and substance abuse education, and traffic and pedestrian 

safety programs at Grove Park Elementary School, Orange Park Elementary School, and Orange Park 

Junior High School; and 

 

WHEREAS,  Florida's recently-enacted Marjory Stoneman Douglas High School Public Safety Act, Ch. 

2018-3, Laws of Florida ("the Act"), which Act was amended in 2019, which made significant school 

safety reforms and imposed upon all Florida public school districts numerous additional requirements to 

achieve greater safety and security for all public school students and staff; and 

 

Page 356 of 962

DRAFT



 
 

  

WHEREAS, one requirement of the Act, codified in part under section 1006.12 of the Florida Statutes 

(2018), calls for school boards to partner with law enforcement agencies to establish or assign at least 

one "school safety officer" at each public school within a school district by implementing one or any 

combination of four statutory options going into the 2021-2022 school year; and 

 

WHEREAS, a District-wide combination School Safety Officer/School Resource Officer "SRO" program 

presents one statutory option, though state funding committed to the District for a program of this 

nature is substantially insufficient; and 

 

WHEREAS, the School Board and Superintendent - in collaboration with local law enforcement agencies, 

officials, and community stakeholders - have collectively explored (and continue to explore) avenues by 

which adequate funding may be raised and mandates of  the Act  may be met  without compromising 

the  level  of services provided by each of the public agencies involved; and 

 

WHEREAS, the Parties have, in fact, partnered with each other, and desire to enter into an agreement 

under which OPPD provides SRO services at Grove Park Elementary School, Orange Park Elementary 

School, and Orange Park Junior High School, and continues to deliver the above-referenced educational 

resource services to said schools throughout the 2021-2022 school year, in exchange for payment of 

certain sums by the School Board. 

 

 NOW, THEREFORE, IN CONSIDERATION of the foregoing and the mutual promises and 

obligations stated herein, the Parties agree as follows: 

 

 1.        The School Board shall pay to the Town the sum of $210,801.00 upon approval of this 

Agreement by all Parties in exchange for certain services provided to the School Board by OPPD from July 

1, 2021 through June 30, 2022, as specified below.  Such payment shall be made in twelve (12) equal 

installments after execution of this Agreement and upon receipt of a monthly detailed invoice submitted 

by OPPD to the School Board. 

 

 2.        The Town agrees to accept payment of such funds for the benefit and use of OPPD. 

 

Page 357 of 962

DRAFT



 
 

 3.       Included under this Agreement shall be OPPD's assignment of a School Resource Officer 

("SRO") per site to provide public safety, law enforcement, and educational resource services at Grove 

Park Elementary School, Orange Park Elementary School, and Orange Park Junior High School.  The 

educational resources services shall include OPPD assistance and support to the Clay County District 

Schools Police Department and District personnel in planning and implementing school programs such as 

Drug Abuse Resistance Education ("DARE"), health and substance abuse education, and traffic and 

pedestrian safety programs at these schools. 

 

 4.       The School Board, the Clay County District Schools Police Department, and OPPD will 

collaborate and work together with other government   agencies   to   ensure   that   the   services   

contemplated   herein   are appropriately and effectively delivered.  General orders and directives will be 

reviewed and updated to enhance the working relationship between District and OPPD staff and 

encourage early intervention strategies and activities. 

 

 5.       OPPD agrees to comply with the requirements of the Jessica Lunsford Act by requiring that 

all OPPD personnel and agents who come into contact with students are fingerprinted and have passed a 

Level II background check at no cost to the School Board. 

 

 6.      OPPD shall maintain records concerning the performance of services provided by the OPPD 

Officers assigned as SROs. In accordance with the Law Enforcement Officers Bill of Rights, Chapter 112, 

Fla. Stat., complaints against an OPPD Officer shall be referred to and appropriately addressed by OPPD. 

 

 7.       This Agreement is entered into and governed by the Florida lnter-local Cooperation Act of 

1969, section 163.01, Fla. Stat., and all applicable portions of the same are hereby incorporated by 

reference. 

 

 8.       Subject to and within the limitations of the sections 163.01 and 768.28, Fla. Stat., OPPD 

agrees to indemnify and hold harmless the School Board and its officers, employees, and agents from and 

against any and all loss, damage, or liability which arises as a result of the negligent or intentional acts of 

OPPD personnel which occur in connection with the services contemplated by this Agreement. 

 

 9.       This Agreement shall become effective upon the date it is fully executed by all the Parties. 

Page 358 of 962

DRAFT



 
 

 

 10.     Upon full execution of this Agreement, the Parties' 2020-21 Articulation Agreement shall be 

deemed terminated and rendered void without penalty or any further obligations of any party. Otherwise, 

the 2020-21 Articulation Agreement will remain in full force and effect through September 30, 2021. 

 

 IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Parties have caused this Agreement to be executed on the date(s) 

hereinafter indicated. 

 
 
THE SCHOOL BOARD OF CLAY    
COUNTY, FLORIDA     
 
 
By: ______________________________  Date: ____________________ 
 Mary Bolla, Chair   
 900 Walnut Street     
 Green Cove Springs, Florida  32043   
 
 
 
By: ______________________________  Date: ____________________  
 David Broskie 
 Superintendent of Schools 
 
 

* * * * * * * 
 
CLAY COUNTY DISTRICT SCHOOLS  
POLICE DEPARTMENT 
 
 
By: _______________________________  Date: ____________________  
 KENNETH WAGNER, Chief 
 900 Walnut Street 
 Green Cove Springs, Florida  32043 
 
 

* * * * * * 
 

(signatures continued on Page 5) 
 
 
 
 

Page 359 of 962

DRAFT



 
 

TOWN OF ORANGE PARK, FLORIDA 
 
 
By: ___________________________________ Date: ___________________ 
 Randy Anderson , Mayor 
 2042 Park Avenue 
 Orange Park, Florida  32073 
 
 
TOWN OF ORANGE PARK, FLORIDA 
 
 
By: __________________________________ Date: ____________________ 
 SARAH CAMBELL 
 Town Manager 
 
 

* * * * * * 
 

POLICE DEPARTMENT OF ORANGE 
PARK, FLORIDA 
 
 
By: __________________________________ Date: ___________________ 
 GARY GOBLE, Chief 
 2025 Smith Street 
 Orange Park, Florida  32073 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

Page 360 of 962

DRAFT



School Board of Clay County

June 24, 2021 - Regular School Board Meeting

Title
C23 - Cenergistic Maintenance Agreement

Description
Energy costs comprise a large portion of the School District budget. Energy conservation is making energy adjustments
and monitoring those adjustments to predict outcomes that save on energy costs. This is an iterative process that requires constant
monitoring to yield consistent and continuing long term results in energy savings throughout the School District. The renewal of
the contract allows for that process to continue.  The School District of Clay County does not have the personnel on staff with the
experience or the time to be dedicated to this single function.

Gap Analysis
N/A

Previous Outcomes
The original contract has been in place since January 2016.  The school district has had approximately 6 million dollars in cost
avoidance to date.

Expected Outcomes
Continued savings on energy management program.

Strategic Plan Goal
Ensure effective management of the organization, operations, and facilities to maximize the use of resources and promote a safe,
efficient, and effective learning environment for Clay County students. 

Recommendation
Approve the Cenergistic Maintenance Agreement.

Contact
Bryce Ellis, Assistant Superintendent Operations, (904) 336-6853, bryce.ellis@myoneclay.net,
Phil Hans, Director of Maintenance, (904) 336-6827, philip.hans@myoneclay.net

Financial Impact
$997,200.00 (36 months) and $5,383.00 annual fee to Energy Cap.

Review Comments

Attachments

Cenergistic Maintenance Agreement 6.24.21.pdf

Page 361 of 962

DRAFT

http://agenda.oneclay.net/content/files/cenergistic-maintenance-agreement-62421.pdf


Page 362 of 962

DRAFT



Page 363 of 962

DRAFT



Page 364 of 962

DRAFT



Page 365 of 962

DRAFT



Page 366 of 962

DRAFT



Page 367 of 962

DRAFT



Page 368 of 962

DRAFT



Page 369 of 962

DRAFT



Page 370 of 962

DRAFT



Page 371 of 962

DRAFT



Page 372 of 962

DRAFT



Page 373 of 962

DRAFT



Page 374 of 962

DRAFT



Page 375 of 962

DRAFT



Page 376 of 962

DRAFT



Page 377 of 962

DRAFT



Page 378 of 962

DRAFT



Page 379 of 962

DRAFT



Page 380 of 962

DRAFT



Page 381 of 962

DRAFT



Page 382 of 962

DRAFT



School Board of Clay County

June 24, 2021 - Regular School Board Meeting

Title
C24 - New Elementary School “R” Naming Committee Member Selection

Description
Per CCDS Board Policy (6.01 (L)(3) New Schools): “The committee membership shall consist of a minimum of two (2) lay
people who live in the area in which the site is located and who are designated by consensus of the School Board, two (2) staff
members as designated by the Superintendent and the Assistant Superintendent for Operations".

Gap Analysis
Currently there is only designation “R” for the new elementary school.  A proper name for the new school is desired using the
following criteria as guidance, “…the use of historical figures, the history, general location or features of the area, or goals for
the school.”  Names should be presented to the Superintendent by December 2021.

Previous Outcomes
The School Board approved the naming committee by consensus for School “Y” in August of 2017.

Expected Outcomes
The nominated individual forming the committee will meet from time to time and select five (5) names.  The five (5) will be
submitted to the Superintendent, who shall in turn present at least three (3) to the School Board for final selection.

Strategic Plan Goal
Ensure effective management of the organization, operations, and facilities to maximize the use of resources and promote a safe,
efficient and effective learning environment for Clay County students.

Recommendation
Designate by consensus, membership of the New Elementary School “R” Naming Committee.

Contact
Bryce Ellis, Assistant Superintendent for Operations, (904) 336-6853, bryce.ellis@myoneclay.net,
James Fossa, Coordinator of Planning & Intergovernmental Affairs, (904) 336-6852, james.foss@myoneclay.net

Financial Impact
None.

Review Comments

Attachments

New Elementary School R Naming Committee.pdf

Page 383 of 962

DRAFT

http://agenda.oneclay.net/content/files/new-elementary-school-r-naming-committee.pdf


Page 384 of 962

DRAFT



School Board of Clay County

June 24, 2021 - Regular School Board Meeting

Title
C25 - Change Order #3 (Direct Purchasing) for Tynes Elementary School New Classroom Addition

Description
Direct purchasing change orders are almost always deductive and are the sole initiative of the owner. These change orders
represent the purchase of materials and/or equipment directly by the School Board in order to save the sales tax. The direct
purchases are deducted from the original contract in the form of a change order.

Gap Analysis
N/A

Previous Outcomes
Sales tax savings have been used in the past to fund capital projects that may otherwise have not been funded.

Expected Outcomes
Money saved with sales tax savings will be used for capital projects that may otherwise have not been funded.

Strategic Plan Goal
Ensure effective management of the organization, operations, and facilities to maximize the use of resources and promote a safe,
efficient, and effective learning environment for Clay County students. 

Recommendation
Approve Change Order #3.

Contact
Bryce Ellis, Assistant Superintendent for Operations, (904) 336-6853, bryce.ellis@myoneclay.net,
David Kramer, Project Manager, (904) 336-6849, david.kramer@myoneclay.net

Financial Impact
This deduction to the construction contract in the amount of $441,693.22 will not impact the budget.  A total tax savings in the
amount of $25,850.56 is realized as a result of this direct purchasing change order.

Review Comments

Attachments

TES Classroom Addition CO 3.pdf

Page 385 of 962

DRAFT

http://agenda.oneclay.net/content/files/tes-classroom-addition-co-3.pdf


Page 386 of 962

DRAFT



Page 387 of 962

DRAFT



School Board of Clay County

June 24, 2021 - Regular School Board Meeting

Title
C26 - Pre-Qualification of Contractors

Description
Section 1013.46 of Florida Statutes requires School Boards to pre-qualify contractors prior to their being able to bid on
construction projects for the district.  The rules for pre-qualification are stipulated in the State Requirements for Educational
Facilities (SREF).  The attached list identifies the contractors to be approved this month.  As this is an annual requirement, the
attached list may contain both new contractors and contractors seeking to renew their pre-qualification status.  Per Florida
Statutes, only those contractors currently pre-qualified at the time of bidding may bid on a School Board construction project.

Gap Analysis
Contractor Pre-Qualification is an annual requirement.

Previous Outcomes
CCDS complies with contractor pre-qualification as required by Florida Statutes and SREF (State Requirements for Educational
Facilities).

Expected Outcomes
CCDS will remain in compliance by certifying the contractors recommended for pre-qualification meet the requirements of
Section 1013.46 FS, the State Requirements for Educational Facilities (SREF) and School Board Policy. 

Strategic Plan Goal
Ensure effective management of the organization, operations, and facilities to maximize the use of resources and promote a safe,
efficient, and effective learning environment for Clay County students.

Recommendation
Approve the attached Contractor Pre-qualification list.

Contact
Bryce Ellis, Assistant Superintendent for Operations, (904) 336-6853, bryce.ellis@myoneclay.net

Financial Impact
None.

Review Comments

Attachments

Table for Board Backup Contractor Prequal, 6.24.21.pdf

Page 388 of 962

DRAFT

http://agenda.oneclay.net/content/files/table-for-board-backup-contractor-prequal-62421.pdf


SBCC PRE-QUALIFIED CONTRACTORS 
 
 
The following contractors are being submitted to the School Board for Contractor Pre-Qualification approval 
having met all requirements of Chapter 1013.46 F. S., as determined by the Pre-Qualification Committee 
consisting of Bryce Ellis, Phil Hans, Bertie Staefe, Chris Deely-Isais and Beth Clark.  The pre-qualification 
certification is valid for one year from the end of the month in which Board approval is obtained. 

 
 

COMPANY TRADE CATEGORY BOND LIMIT EXPIRATION DATE 

Advanced Roofing, Inc. General, HVAC, Roofing 
and Solar Contractor 

$40,000,000.00 July 31, 2022 

Communications Solutions, Inc. Specialty Electrical 
Contractor 

$300,000.00 July 31, 2022 

McCurdy-Walden, Inc. Roofing Contractor $2,500,000.00 July 31, 2022 

Playmore Recreational Products & 
Services 

Building Contractor $5,000,000.00 July 31, 2022 

 

Page 389 of 962

DRAFT



School Board of Clay County

June 24, 2021 - Regular School Board Meeting

Title
C27 - Five Year Educational Plant Survey (2021)

Description
In accordance with State Requirements for Educational Facilities and Florida Statutes, an Educational Plant Survey must be done
at least every five years.  The Five Year Educational Plant Survey is a systematic study of the existing educational and ancillary
plants, a comparison of those existing facilities to the facility lists and the DOE’s projected number of future students and thus
the future needs for renovation, remodeling and new construction are determined.  The purpose of the Five Year Plant Survey is
to aid in formulating plans and budgets for housing the educational activities of students and staff of the District for the next
several years.  The Five Year Educational Plant Survey is required to ensure the funding either budgeted or anticipated for all
recommendations is eligible for Part III expenditure.

Gap Analysis
N/A

Previous Outcomes
The School Board approved the Previous Five Year Educational Plant Survey in May of 2016.

Expected Outcomes
It is expected the Board will approve the 2021 Five Year Educational Plant Survey.
 

Strategic Plan Goal
Ensure effective management of the organization, operations, and facilities to maximize the use of resources and promote a safe,
efficient and effective learning environment for Clay County students.

Recommendation
Approve the Five Year Educational Plant Survey as submitted.

Contact
Bryce Ellis, Assistant Superintendent for Operations, (904) 336-6853, bryce.ellis@myoneclay.net,
James Fossa, Coordinator of Planning & Intergovernmental Affairs, james.fossa@myoneclay.net

Financial Impact
The approval of the Five Year Educational Plant Survey will have cost only when the recommendations are commenced. These
recommendations are commenced at the School Board’s discretion. Any expense would be approved by the Board in the
Educational Facilities Plan.

Review Comments

Attachments

Clay Recommend 2021.pdf

Complete Survey 2021.pdf

Page 390 of 962

DRAFT

http://agenda.oneclay.net/content/files/clay-recommend-2021.pdf
http://agenda.oneclay.net/content/files/complete-survey-2021.pdf


District Name: CLAY COUNTY SCHOOL DISTRICT

Survey: Number 7 - Version 1

Facility Name: Elementary "R"

Address: CR 315, GREEN COVE

Existing Recommended

Capital Outlay 
Classification

1 - SCHOOL RECOMMENDED FOR 
CONTINUED USE

Facility Use ELEMENTARY

Low Grade PRE-K E S E

High Grade GRADE 6

Comments

Existing
Student Stations 

Added/Reduced(+ or -) Recommended

Perm. Stations 0 906 906

Reloc. Stations 0 0 0

Mod. Stations 0 0 0

Total Stations 0 906 906

Utilization Factor 0% 100%

School Capacity 0 906

COFTE Student 
Membership 0 872

Survey Annotation New facility.

New Site Cost Site 
Expansion

Site 
Development

Site 
Improvement

Remodeling 
Cost

Renovation 
Cost

New 
Construction 

Cost

$0 $0 $500,000 $2,200,000 $0 $0 $23,029,614

Estimated Total Project Cost $25,729,614

Elementary "R" Parcel Building Description Total NSF Change In 
Station Count

Calculated 
Cost

Cost Per 
NSF

Cost Per 
Station

New Construction 2023 New Construction: Adding 25 units 
of PRIMARY CLASSROOM (K-3) 
(882 NSF)

28,300 450 $11,438,550 $404 $25,419

New Construction 2023 New Construction: Adding 16 units 
of INTERMEDIATE/MIDDLE 
CLASSROOM (4-8) (858 NSF)

17,248 352 $8,947,488 $519 $25,419

New Construction 2023 New Construction: Adding 3 units of 
PRIMARY SKILLS LAB (K-3) (882 
NSF)

3,246 0 $0 $276 $0

FIVE YEAR SURVEY

Recommendation Report

Page 391 of 962

DRAFT



Elementary "R" Parcel Building Description Total NSF Change In 
Station Count

Calculated 
Cost

Cost Per 
NSF

Cost Per 
Station

New Construction 2023 New Construction: Adding 1 unit of 
ELEMENTARY P E STORAGE (315 
NSF)

315 0 $0 $276 $0

New Construction 2023 New Construction: Adding 1 unit of 
ELEMENTARY COVERED PLAY 
AREA (3240 NSF)

3,240 0 $0 $276 $0

New Construction 2023 New Construction: Adding 1 unit of 
INTERMEDIATE/MIDDLE SCIENCE 
DEMO (4-8) (814 NSF)

1,064 22 $559,218 $526 $25,419

New Construction 2023 New Construction: Adding 1 unit of 
INTERMEDIATE/MIDDLE SCIENCE 
LAB (4-8) (1122 NSF)

1,372 22 $559,218 $408 $25,419

New Construction 2023 New Construction: Adding 6 units of 
RESOURCE ROOM (290 NSF)

2,340 0 $0 $276 $0

New Construction 2023 New Construction: Adding 2 units of 
ART - ELEMENTARY (1000 NSF)

2,500 0 $0 $276 $0

New Construction 2023 New Construction: Adding 2 units of 
MUSIC - ELEMENTARY (1000 NSF)

2,540 0 $0 $276 $0

New Construction 2023 New Construction: Adding 2 units of 
E S E PRE-K (475 NSF)

1,450 10 $254,190 $175 $25,419

New Construction 2023 New Construction: Adding 2 units of 
E S E PART-TIME (975 NSF)

2,370 30 $762,570 $322 $25,419

New Construction 2023 New Construction: Adding 2 units of 
E S E FULL-TIME (950 NSF)

2,540 20 $508,380 $200 $25,419

New Construction 2023 New Construction: Adding 1 unit of E 
S E PT/OT LAB (475 NSF)

725 0 $0 $276 $0

New Construction 2023 New Construction: Adding 3 units of 
E S E RESOURCE (380 NSF)

1,560 0 $0 $276 $0

New Construction 2023 New Construction: Adding 2 units of 
E S E SUPPLEMENTARY 
INSTRUCTION (100 NSF)

400 0 $0 $276 $0

New Construction 2023 New Construction: Adding 2 units of 
E S E OBSERVATION BOOTH (150 
NSF)

300 0 $0 $276 $0

New Construction 2023 New Construction: Adding 1 unit of E 
S E TIME-OUT ROOM (40 NSF)

40 0 $0 $276 $0

New Construction 2023 New Construction: Adding 1 unit of E 
S E AUDIOLOGY LAB (250 NSF)

350 0 $0 $276 $0

New Construction 2023 New Construction: Adding 4 units of 
E S E ITINERANT (200 NSF)

1,200 0 $0 $276 $0

New Construction 2023 New Construction: Adding 1 unit of 
PRINCIPAL/DIRECTOR OFFICE 
(250 NSF)

250 0 $0 $276 $0

New Construction 2023 New Construction: Adding 3 units of 
ASSISTANT PRINCIPAL/OTHER 
OFFICE (175 NSF)

525 0 $0 $276 $0

New Construction 2023 New Construction: Adding 1 unit of 
BOOKKEEPING OFFICE (125 NSF)

125 0 $0 $276 $0

New Construction 2023 New Construction: Adding 4 units of 
SECRETARIAL SPACE (158 NSF)

632 0 $0 $276 $0

New Construction 2023 New Construction: Adding 1 unit of 
RECEPTION AREA (765 NSF)

765 0 $0 $276 $0

New Construction 2023 New Construction: Adding 1 unit of 
PRODUCTION WORKROOM (360 
NSF)

360 0 $0 $276 $0

New Construction 2023 New Construction: Adding 1 unit of 
CONFERENCE ROOM (630 NSF)

630 0 $0 $276 $0

New Construction 2023 New Construction: Adding 1 unit of 
CLINIC (270 NSF)

270 0 $0 $276 $0

New Construction 2023 New Construction: Adding 1 unit of 
GENERAL SCHOOL STORAGE 
(450 NSF)

450 0 $0 $276 $0

Page 392 of 962

DRAFT



Elementary "R" Parcel Building Description Total NSF Change In 
Station Count

Calculated 
Cost

Cost Per 
NSF

Cost Per 
Station

New Construction 2023 New Construction: Adding 1 unit of 
VAULT/STUDENT RECORDS (270 
NSF)

270 0 $0 $276 $0

New Construction 2023 New Construction: Adding 1 unit of 
SCHOOL STORE (90 NSF)

90 0 $0 $276 $0

New Construction 2023 New Construction: Adding 1 unit of 
STUDENT ACTIVITIES (450 NSF)

450 0 $0 $276 $0

New Construction 2023 New Construction: Adding 1 unit of 
COMPUTER AREA (135 NSF)

135 0 $0 $276 $0

New Construction 2023 New Construction: Adding 1 unit of 
CAREERS ROOM (270 NSF)

270 0 $0 $276 $0

New Construction 2023 New Construction: Adding 3 units of 
ITINERANT OFFICE (125 NSF)

375 0 $0 $276 $0

New Construction 2023 New Construction: Adding 1 unit of 
TEACHER PLANNING OFFICE 
(1800 NSF)

1,800 0 $0 $276 $0

New Construction 2023 New Construction: Adding 1 unit of 
TEACHER LOUNGE/DINING (360 
NSF)

360 0 $0 $276 $0

New Construction 2023 New Construction: Adding 1 unit of 
CUSTODIAL RECEIVING (1350 
NSF)

1,350 0 $0 $276 $0

New Construction 2023 New Construction: Adding 1 unit of 
FLAMMABLE STORAGE (155 NSF)

155 0 $0 $276 $0

New Construction 2023 New Construction: Adding 1 unit of 
CUSTODIAL EQUIPMENT 
STORAGE (500 NSF)

500 0 $0 $276 $0

New Construction 2023 New Construction: Adding 1 unit of 
DINING AREA (3600 NSF)

3,600 0 $0 $276 $0

New Construction 2023 New Construction: Adding 1 unit of 
KITCHEN & SERVING AREA (3960 
NSF)

3,960 0 $0 $276 $0

New Construction 2023 New Construction: Adding 1 unit of 
KITCHEN CHAIR STORAGE (180 
NSF)

180 0 $0 $276 $0

New Construction 2023 New Construction: Adding 1 unit of 
MULTIPURPOSE ROOM (DINING) 
(2790 NSF)

2,790 0 $0 $276 $0

New Construction 2023 New Construction: Adding 1 unit of 
MULTIPURPOSE ROOM CHAIR 
STORAGE (180 NSF)

180 0 $0 $276 $0

New Construction 2023 New Construction: Adding 1 unit of 
STAGE (990 NSF)

990 0 $0 $276 $0

New Construction 2023 New Construction: Adding 1 unit of 
STAGE STORAGE (450 NSF)

450 0 $0 $276 $0

New Construction 2023 New Construction: Adding 1 unit of 
STAGE DRESSING ROOM (MALE) 
(225 NSF)

225 0 $0 $276 $0

New Construction 2023 New Construction: Adding 1 unit of 
STAGE DRESSING ROOM 
(FEMALE) (225 NSF)

225 0 $0 $276 $0

New Construction 2023 New Construction: Adding 1 unit of 
CONTROL BOOTH/PROJECTION 
ROOM (100 NSF)

100 0 $0 $276 $0

New Construction 2023 New Construction: Adding 1 unit of 
TEXTBOOK STORAGE (315 NSF)

315 0 $0 $276 $0

New Construction 2023 New Construction: Adding 1 unit of 
STUDENT PERSONAL STORAGE 
(450 NSF)

450 0 $0 $276 $0

New Construction 2023 New Construction: Adding 1 unit of 
LIBRARY (READING 
ROOM/STACKS) (3330 NSF)

3,330 0 $0 $276 $0

New Construction 2023 New Construction: Adding 1 unit of 
MEDIA TECHNICAL PROCESSING 
(360 NSF)

360 0 $0 $276 $0

Page 393 of 962

DRAFT



Elementary "R" Parcel Building Description Total NSF Change In 
Station Count

Calculated 
Cost

Cost Per 
NSF

Cost Per 
Station

New Construction 2023 New Construction: Adding 1 unit of 
PROFESSIONAL LIBRARY (360 
NSF)

360 0 $0 $276 $0

New Construction 2023 New Construction: Adding 1 unit of 
AUDIO VISUAL STORAGE (540 
NSF)

540 0 $0 $276 $0

New Construction 2023 New Construction: Adding 1 unit of 
PERIODICAL STORAGE (180 NSF)

180 0 $0 $276 $0

New Construction 2023 New Construction: Adding 1 unit of 
CLOSED CIRCUIT TV LAB (630 
NSF)

630 0 $0 $276 $0

New Construction 2023 New Construction: Adding 1 unit of 
CLOSED CIRCUIT STORAGE (450 
NSF)

450 0 $0 $276 $0

New Construction 2023 New Construction: Adding 1 unit of 
MEDIA PRODUCTION LAB (450 
NSF)

450 0 $0 $276 $0

New Construction 2023 New Construction: Adding 1 unit of 
MEDIA COPYING ROOM (180 NSF)

180 0 $0 $276 $0

New Construction 2023 New Construction: Adding 1 unit of 
MEDIA SMALL GROUP ROOM (90 
NSF)

90 0 $0 $276 $0

New Construction 2023 New Construction: Adding 1 unit of 
MEDIA GROUP 
PROJECTS/INSTRUCTION (450 
NSF)

450 0 $0 $276 $0

New Construction 2023 New Construction: Adding 1 unit of 
MEDIA MAINTENANCE/REPAIR (90 
NSF)

90 0 $0 $276 $0

New Construction 2023 New Construction: Adding 2 units of 
REFERENCE (100 NSF)

200 0 $0 $276 $0

New Construction 2023 New Construction: Adding 25 units 
of MATERIAL STORAGE (100 NSF)

2,500 0 $0 $276 $0

New Construction 2023 New Construction: Adding 25 units 
of OUTSIDE STORAGE (50 NSF)

1,250 0 $0 $276 $0

New Construction 2023 New Construction: Adding 1 unit of 
PROJECT STORAGE (150 NSF)

150 0 $0 $276 $0

New Construction 2023 New Construction: Adding 25 units 
of STUDENT STORAGE (40 NSF)

1,000 0 $0 $276 $0

New Construction 2023 New Construction: Adding 25 units 
of STUDENT RESTROOM (BOTH 
SEXES) (60 NSF)

1,500 0 $0 $276 $0

New Construction 2023 New Construction: Adding 16 units 
of STUDENT RESTROOM (MALE) 
(35 NSF)

560 0 $0 $276 $0

New Construction 2023 New Construction: Adding 16 units 
of STUDENT RESTROOM 
(FEMALE) (35 NSF)

560 0 $0 $276 $0

New Construction 2023 New Construction: Adding 2 units of 
STUDENT RESTROOM & BATH 
(110 NSF)

220 0 $0 $276 $0

New Construction 2023 New Construction: Adding 2 units of 
MUSIC PRACTICE ROOM (70 NSF)

140 0 $0 $276 $0

New Construction 2023 New Construction: Adding 16 units 
of MATERIAL STORAGE (100 NSF)

1,600 0 $0 $276 $0

New Construction 2023 New Construction: Adding 16 units 
of OUTSIDE STORAGE (50 NSF)

800 0 $0 $276 $0

New Construction 2023 New Construction: Adding 3 units of 
MATERIAL STORAGE (100 NSF)

300 0 $0 $276 $0

New Construction 2023 New Construction: Adding 3 units of 
STUDENT STORAGE (40 NSF)

120 0 $0 $276 $0

New Construction 2023 New Construction: Adding 3 units of 
STUDENT RESTROOM (BOTH 
SEXES) (60 NSF)

180 0 $0 $276 $0

Page 394 of 962

DRAFT



Elementary "R" Parcel Building Description Total NSF Change In 
Station Count

Calculated 
Cost

Cost Per 
NSF

Cost Per 
Station

New Construction 2023 New Construction: Adding 1 unit of 
MATERIAL STORAGE (100 NSF)

100 0 $0 $276 $0

New Construction 2023 New Construction: Adding 1 unit of 
MATERIAL STORAGE (100 NSF)

100 0 $0 $276 $0

New Construction 2023 New Construction: Adding 1 unit of 
PROJECT STORAGE (150 NSF)

150 0 $0 $276 $0

New Construction 2023 New Construction: Adding 6 units of 
MATERIAL STORAGE (100 NSF)

600 0 $0 $276 $0

New Construction 2023 New Construction: Adding 2 units of 
MATERIAL STORAGE (100 NSF)

200 0 $0 $276 $0

New Construction 2023 New Construction: Adding 2 units of 
PROJECT STORAGE (150 NSF)

300 0 $0 $276 $0

New Construction 2023 New Construction: Adding 2 units of 
MATERIAL STORAGE (100 NSF)

200 0 $0 $276 $0

New Construction 2023 New Construction: Adding 2 units of 
MATERIAL STORAGE (100 NSF)

200 0 $0 $276 $0

New Construction 2023 New Construction: Adding 2 units of 
STUDENT STORAGE (40 NSF)

80 0 $0 $276 $0

New Construction 2023 New Construction: Adding 2 units of 
MATERIAL STORAGE (100 NSF)

200 0 $0 $276 $0

New Construction 2023 New Construction: Adding 2 units of 
STUDENT STORAGE (40 NSF)

80 0 $0 $276 $0

New Construction 2023 New Construction: Adding 2 units of 
STUDENT RESTROOM (MALE) (35 
NSF)

70 0 $0 $276 $0

New Construction 2023 New Construction: Adding 2 units of 
STUDENT RESTROOM (FEMALE) 
(35 NSF)

70 0 $0 $276 $0

New Construction 2023 New Construction: Adding 2 units of 
MATERIAL STORAGE (100 NSF)

200 0 $0 $276 $0

New Construction 2023 New Construction: Adding 2 units of 
STUDENT STORAGE (40 NSF)

80 0 $0 $276 $0

New Construction 2023 New Construction: Adding 2 units of 
STUDENT RESTROOM (MALE) (35 
NSF)

70 0 $0 $276 $0

New Construction 2023 New Construction: Adding 2 units of 
STUDENT RESTROOM (FEMALE) 
(35 NSF)

70 0 $0 $276 $0

New Construction 2023 New Construction: Adding 2 units of 
STUDENT RESTROOM & BATH 
(110 NSF)

220 0 $0 $276 $0

New Construction 2023 New Construction: Adding 1 unit of 
MATERIAL STORAGE (100 NSF)

100 0 $0 $276 $0

New Construction 2023 New Construction: Adding 1 unit of 
STUDENT STORAGE (40 NSF)

40 0 $0 $276 $0

New Construction 2023 New Construction: Adding 1 unit of 
STUDENT RESTROOM & BATH 
(110 NSF)

110 0 $0 $276 $0

New Construction 2023 New Construction: Adding 3 units of 
MATERIAL STORAGE (100 NSF)

300 0 $0 $276 $0

New Construction 2023 New Construction: Adding 3 units of 
STUDENT STORAGE (40 NSF)

120 0 $0 $276 $0

New Construction 2023 New Construction: Adding 2 units of 
MATERIAL STORAGE (100 NSF)

200 0 $0 $276 $0

New Construction 2023 New Construction: Adding 1 unit of 
MATERIAL STORAGE (100 NSF)

100 0 $0 $276 $0

New Construction 2023 New Construction: Adding 4 units of 
MATERIAL STORAGE (100 NSF)

400 0 $0 $276 $0

New Construction 2023 New Construction: Adding 16 units 
of STUDENT RESTROOM (MALE) 
(90 NSF)

1,440 0 $0 $276 $0

Page 395 of 962

DRAFT



Elementary "R" Parcel Building Description Total NSF Change In 
Station Count

Calculated 
Cost

Cost Per 
NSF

Cost Per 
Station

New Construction 2023 New Construction: Adding 16 units 
of STUDENT RESTROOM 
(FEMALE) (90 NSF)

1,440 0 $0 $276 $0

Page 396 of 962

DRAFT



District Name: CLAY COUNTY SCHOOL DISTRICT

Survey: Number 7 - Version 1

Facility Name: ADMINISTRATIVE OFFICES ORANGE PARK ANNEX

Address: 2300 KINGSLEY AVENUE, ORANGE PARK

Existing Recommended

Capital Outlay 
Classification

6 - ANCILLARY RECOMMENDED FOR 
CONTINUED USE

6 - ANCILLARY RECOMMENDED FOR 
CONTINUED USE

Facility Use COUNTY ADMINISTRATION MULTIPLE USE SUPPORT

Low Grade COUNTY ADMINISTRATION DISTRICT SERVICES

High Grade COUNTY ADMINISTRATION DISTRICT SERVICES

Comments

Existing
Student Stations 

Added/Reduced(+ or -) Recommended

Perm. Stations 143 0 143

Reloc. Stations 0 0 0

Mod. Stations 0 0 0

Total Stations 143 0 143

Utilization Factor 0% 0%

School Capacity 0 0

COFTE Student 
Membership 0 0

Survey Annotation
The district will rename this facility, ADMINISTRATIVE OFFICES AND ORANGE PARK 
EDUCATIONAL ANNEX.                  
Renovate Buildings 16-21.

New Site Cost Site 
Expansion

Site 
Development

Site 
Improvement

Remodeling 
Cost

Renovation 
Cost

New 
Construction 

Cost

$0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $4,325,055 $0

Estimated Total Project Cost $4,325,055

ADMINISTRATIVE 
OFFICES ORANGE 
PARK ANNEX

Parcel Building Description Total NSF Change In 
Station Count

Calculated 
Cost

Cost Per 
NSF

Cost Per 
Station

Renovation 2026 37 16 Renovating: Apply Painting, Floor 
Cover, Electrical, Plumbing, 
Windows, Lighting, Restrooms, 
HVAC Systems, Bell/Fire Alarm 
Systems, Retrofit for Technology to 
Room 1601 (243 NSF), Room 1602 
(150 NSF), Room 1603 (94 NSF), 
Room 1604 (159 NSF), Room 1605 
(215 NSF), Room 1606 (210 NSF), 
Room 1607 (41 NSF), Room 1608 
(1655 NSF), Room 1609 (94 NSF), 
Room 1610 (2578 NSF), Room 
1610A (326 NSF)

5,765 0 $686,035 $119 $0

Page 397 of 962

DRAFT



ADMINISTRATIVE 
OFFICES ORANGE 
PARK ANNEX

Parcel Building Description Total NSF Change In 
Station Count

Calculated 
Cost

Cost Per 
NSF

Cost Per 
Station

Renovation 2026 37 17 Renovating: Apply Painting, Floor 
Cover, Electrical, Plumbing, 
Windows, Lighting, Restrooms, 
HVAC Systems, Bell/Fire Alarm 
Systems, Retrofit for Technology to 
Room 1701 (177 NSF), Room 1702 
(125 NSF), Room 1703 (127 NSF), 
Room 1704 (75 NSF), Room 1705 
(577 NSF), Room 1706 (193 NSF), 
Room 1707 (145 NSF), Room 1708 
(261 NSF), Room 1709 (189 NSF), 
Room 1710 (134 NSF), Room 1711 
(270 NSF), Room 1712 (214 NSF), 
Room 1713 (133 NSF), Room 1714 
(93 NSF), Room 1715 (394 NSF), 
Room 1716 (41 NSF), Room 1717 
(41 NSF), Room 1718 (554 NSF), 
Room 1719 (182 NSF), Room 1720 
(350 NSF), Room 1721 (133 NSF), 
Room 1722 (233 NSF), Room 1723 
(128 NSF), Room 1724 (269 NSF), 
Room 1725 (150 NSF), Room 1726 
(152 NSF), Room 1727 (234 NSF), 
Room 1728 (1255 NSF), Room 
1730 (188 NSF), Room 1731 (135 
NSF), Room 1732 (26 NSF), Room 
1733 (110 NSF), Room 1734 (46 
NSF), Room 1735 (110 NSF), Room 
1736 (178 NSF)

7,622 0 $907,018 $119 $0

Renovation 2026 37 18 Renovating: Apply Painting, Floor 
Cover, Electrical, Plumbing, 
Windows, Lighting, Restrooms, 
HVAC Systems, Bell/Fire Alarm 
Systems, Retrofit for Technology to 
Room 1801 (928 NSF), Room 1802 
(172 NSF), Room 1803 (173 NSF), 
Room 1804 (316 NSF), Room 1805 
(30 NSF), Room 1806 (28 NSF), 
Room 1807 (715 NSF), Room 1808 
(32 NSF), Room 1809 (696 NSF), 
Room 1810 (35 NSF), Room 1811 
(63 NSF), Room 1812 (696 NSF), 
Room 1813 (33 NSF), Room 1814 
(63 NSF), Room 1815 (690 NSF), 
Room 1816 (48 NSF), Room 1817 
(47 NSF), Room 1818 (690 NSF), 
Room 1819 (48 NSF), Room 1820 
(49 NSF)

5,552 0 $660,688 $119 $0

Renovation 2026 37 19 Renovating: Apply Painting, Floor 
Cover, Electrical, Plumbing, 
Windows, Lighting, Restrooms, 
HVAC Systems, Bell/Fire Alarm 
Systems, Retrofit for Technology to 
Room 1901 (1044 NSF), Room 
1902 (171 NSF), Room 1903 (173 
NSF), Room 1904 (79 NSF), Room 
1905 (39 NSF), Room 1906 (285 
NSF), Room 1907 (192 NSF), Room 
1908 (200 NSF), Room 1909 (129 
NSF), Room 1910 (204 NSF), Room 
1911 (204 NSF), Room 1912 (515 
NSF), Room 1913 (31 NSF), Room 
1914 (34 NSF), Room 1915 (696 
NSF), Room 1916 (47 NSF), Room 
1917 (50 NSF), Room 1918 (696 
NSF), Room 1919 (45 NSF), Room 
1920 (51 NSF), Room 1921 (690 
NSF), Room 1922 (48 NSF), Room 
1923 (46 NSF), Room 1924 (690 
NSF), Room 1925 (48 NSF), Room 
1926 (49 NSF)

6,456 0 $768,264 $119 $0

Page 398 of 962

DRAFT



ADMINISTRATIVE 
OFFICES ORANGE 
PARK ANNEX

Parcel Building Description Total NSF Change In 
Station Count

Calculated 
Cost

Cost Per 
NSF

Cost Per 
Station

Renovation 2026 37 20 Renovating: Apply Painting, Floor 
Cover, Electrical, Plumbing, 
Windows, Lighting, Restrooms, 
HVAC Systems, Bell/Fire Alarm 
Systems, Retrofit for Technology to 
Room 2001 (167 NSF), Room 
2001A (54 NSF), Room 2002 (215 
NSF), Room 2002A (54 NSF), Room 
2003 (680 NSF), Room 2004 (188 
NSF), Room 2004a (11 NSF), Room 
2005 (285 NSF), Room 2006 (113 
NSF), Room 2007 (135 NSF), Room 
2008 (156 NSF), Room 2009 (79 
NSF), Room 2010 (613 NSF), Room 
2011 (210 NSF), Room 2012 (127 
NSF), Room 2013 (367 NSF), Room 
2014 (35 NSF), Room 2015 (172 
NSF), Room 2015A (36 NSF), Room 
2016 (140 NSF), Room 2016A (24 
NSF), Room 2017 (164 NSF), Room 
2018 (167 NSF), Room 2019 (44 
NSF), Room 2020 (1071 NSF), 
Room 2021 (103 NSF)

5,410 0 $643,790 $119 $0

Renovation 2026 37 21 Renovating: Apply Painting, Floor 
Cover, Electrical, Plumbing, 
Windows, Lighting, Restrooms, 
HVAC Systems, Bell/Fire Alarm 
Systems, Retrofit for Technology to 
Room 2101 (532 NSF), Room 2102 
(9 NSF), Room 2103 (12 NSF), 
Room 2104 (12 NSF), Room 2105 
(181 NSF), Room 2106 (121 NSF), 
Room 2107 (124 NSF), Room 2108 
(124 NSF), Room 2109 (125 NSF), 
Room 2110 (124 NSF), Room 2111 
(102 NSF), Room 2112 (239 NSF), 
Room 2113 (298 NSF), Room 2114 
(12 NSF), Room 2115 (73 NSF), 
Room 2116 (951 NSF), Room 2117 
(487 NSF), Room 2118 (10 NSF), 
Room 2119 (973 NSF), Room 2120 
(22 NSF), Room 2121 (16 NSF), 
Room 2122 (11 NSF), Room 2123 
(34 NSF), Room 2124 (302 NSF), 
Room 2125 (170 NSF), Room 2126 
(35 NSF), Room 2127 (218 NSF), 
Room 2128 (223 NSF)

5,540 0 $659,260 $119 $0

Page 399 of 962

DRAFT



District Name: CLAY COUNTY SCHOOL DISTRICT

Survey: Number 7 - Version 1

Facility Name: ARGYLE ELEMENTARY

Address: 2625 SPENCER PLANTATION BOULEVARD, ORANGE PARK

Existing Recommended

Capital Outlay 
Classification

1 - SCHOOL RECOMMENDED FOR 
CONTINUED USE

1 - SCHOOL RECOMMENDED FOR 
CONTINUED USE

Facility Use ELEMENTARY ELEMENTARY

Low Grade PRE-K E S E PRE-K E S E

High Grade GRADE 6 GRADE 6

Comments

Existing
Student Stations 

Added/Reduced(+ or -) Recommended

Perm. Stations 396 170 566

Reloc. Stations 429 -153 276

Mod. Stations 0 0 0

Total Stations 825 17 842

Utilization Factor 100% 100%

School Capacity 825 842

COFTE Student 
Membership 687 801

Survey Annotation

Correct Site Drainage Problems.                                  Construct Additional Covered 
Walkways Where Needed.   Remove 14 portables in excess of 20 years of age.             
(Other)
District-Wide Recommendations for this facility are: Improve Security Fencing and Lighting.

New Site Cost Site 
Expansion

Site 
Development

Site 
Improvement

Remodeling 
Cost

Renovation 
Cost

New 
Construction 

Cost

$0 $0 $0 $40,000 $138,528 $0 $4,321,230

Estimated Total Project Cost $4,499,758

ARGYLE ELEMENTARY Parcel Building Description Total NSF Change In 
Station Count

Calculated 
Cost

Cost Per 
NSF

Cost Per 
Station

New Construction 2026 New Construction: Adding 1 unit of 
PRIMARY CLASSROOM (K-3) (882 
NSF), 6 units of 
INTERMEDIATE/MIDDLE 
CLASSROOM (4-8) (858 NSF), 2 
units of PRIMARY SKILLS LAB (K-
3) (882 NSF), 2 units of E S E FULL-
TIME (950 NSF), 2 units of 
STUDENT RESTROOM & BATH 
(110 NSF)

12,524 170 $4,321,230 $345 $25,419

Page 400 of 962

DRAFT



ARGYLE ELEMENTARY Parcel Building Description Total NSF Change In 
Station Count

Calculated 
Cost

Cost Per 
NSF

Cost Per 
Station

Remodeling 2026 56 92 Removed NSF (11544), Added NSF 
(0), Difference NSF (11544), Percent 
(100%), Removed Stations (153), 
Added Stations (0) Remodeling: 
Adding  and Removing Room 703 
(729 NSF), Room 704 (729 NSF), 
Room 705 (816 NSF), Room 706 
(881 NSF), Room 706A (188 NSF), 
Room 707 (754 NSF), Room 707A 
(25 NSF), Room 708 (731 NSF), 
Room 710 (924 NSF), Room 710A 
(98 NSF), Room 710B (36 NSF), 
Room 711 (816 NSF), Room 711A 
(41 NSF), Room 713 (366 NSF), 
Room 713A (430 NSF), Room 713B 
(40 NSF), Room 713C (40 NSF), 
Room 713D (80 NSF), Room 713E 
(36 NSF), Room 714 (699 NSF), 
Room 714A (27 NSF), Room 905 
(744 NSF), Room 905A (26 NSF), 
Room 906 (754 NSF), Room 906A 
(25 NSF), Room 907 (724 NSF), 
Room 908 (756 NSF), Room 908A 
(29 NSF)

-11,544 -153 $138,528 $12 $0

Page 401 of 962

DRAFT



District Name: CLAY COUNTY SCHOOL DISTRICT

Survey: Number 7 - Version 1

Facility Name: CHARLES E BENNETT ELEMENTARY

Address: 1 S OAKRIDGE AVENUE, GREEN COVE SPRINGS

Existing Recommended

Capital Outlay 
Classification

1 - SCHOOL RECOMMENDED FOR 
CONTINUED USE

1 - SCHOOL RECOMMENDED FOR 
CONTINUED USE

Facility Use ELEMENTARY ELEMENTARY

Low Grade PRE-K E S E PRE-K E S E

High Grade GRADE 6 GRADE 6

Comments

Existing
Student Stations 

Added/Reduced(+ or -) Recommended

Perm. Stations 615 0 615

Reloc. Stations 215 -55 160

Mod. Stations 0 0 0

Total Stations 830 -55 775

Utilization Factor 100% 100%

School Capacity 830 775

COFTE Student 
Membership 638 603

Survey Annotation

Previously approved in Survey 6.2                                                  Correct Site Drainage 
Problems.                                
Construct Additional Parking.                                      Redesign and Construct Parent Pick Up 
and Drop Off Area. Construct Covered Play Area.                                                 Remove 3 
portables in excess of 20 years of age.                                   Construct Additional Covered 
Walkways Where Needed. 
Expand Kitchen and Dining/Multipurpose.
Renovate Buildings 4, 5, 9, 10, 11 and 20.                           (Other)
District-Wide Recommendations for this facility are: Improve Security Fencing and Lighting.

New Site Cost Site 
Expansion

Site 
Development

Site 
Improvement

Remodeling 
Cost

Renovation 
Cost

New 
Construction 

Cost

$0 $0 $0 $535,000 $27,984 $2,451,340 $1,640,820

Estimated Total Project Cost $4,655,144

CHARLES E BENNETT 
ELEMENTARY

Parcel Building Description Total NSF Change In 
Station Count

Calculated 
Cost

Cost Per 
NSF

Cost Per 
Station

New Construction 2026 New Construction: Adding 1 unit of 
KITCHEN & SERVING AREA (1230 
NSF), 1 unit of MULTIPURPOSE 
ROOM CHAIR STORAGE (160 
NSF), 1 unit of MULTIPURPOSE 
ROOM (DINING) (2480 NSF), 1 unit 
of ELEMENTARY COVERED PLAY 
AREA (2800 NSF)

6,670 0 $1,640,820 $246 $0

Page 402 of 962

DRAFT



CHARLES E BENNETT 
ELEMENTARY

Parcel Building Description Total NSF Change In 
Station Count

Calculated 
Cost

Cost Per 
NSF

Cost Per 
Station

Remodeling 2026 4 92 Removed NSF (2332), Added NSF 
(0), Difference NSF (2332), Percent 
(100%), Removed Stations (55), 
Added Stations (0) Remodeling: 
Adding  and Removing Room 053 
(777 NSF), Room 053A (25 NSF), 
Room 501 (782 NSF), Room 502 
(748 NSF)

-2,332 -55 $27,984 $12 $0

Renovation 2026 4 4 Renovating: Apply Painting, Floor 
Cover, Electrical, Plumbing, 
Windows, Lighting, Restrooms, 
HVAC Systems, Bell/Fire Alarm 
Systems, Retrofit for Technology to 
Room 013 (685 NSF), Room 013A 
(137 NSF), Room 013B (49 NSF), 
Room 013C (30 NSF), Room 013D 
(78 NSF), Room 014 (124 NSF), 
Room 014A (33 NSF), Room 014B 
(141 NSF), Room 014C (141 NSF), 
Room 015 (744 NSF), Room 016 
(718 NSF), Room 016A (20 NSF), 
Room 017 (220 NSF)

3,120 0 $287,040 $92 $0

Renovation 2026 4 5 Renovating: Apply Painting, Floor 
Cover, Electrical, Plumbing, 
Windows, Lighting, Restrooms, 
HVAC Systems, Bell/Fire Alarm 
Systems, Retrofit for Technology to 
Room 017 (760 NSF), Room 017A 
(45 NSF), Room 018 (760 NSF), 
Room 019 (760 NSF), Room 020 
(735 NSF), Room 020A (25 NSF), 
Room 021 (220 NSF), Room 023 
(225 NSF)

3,530 0 $324,760 $92 $0

Renovation 2026 4 9 Renovating: Apply Painting, Floor 
Cover, Electrical, Plumbing, 
Windows, Lighting, Restrooms, 
HVAC Systems, Bell/Fire Alarm 
Systems, Retrofit for Technology to 
Room 901 (390 NSF), Room 901A 
(376 NSF), Room 902 (258 NSF), 
Room 903 (22 NSF), Room 904 
(130 NSF), Room 905 (69 NSF), 
Room 907 (168 NSF), Room 908 
(176 NSF), Room 909 (176 NSF), 
Room 910 (152 NSF), Room 911 
(213 NSF), Room 912 (285 NSF), 
Room 913 (411 NSF), Room 914 
(178 NSF), Room 915 (167 NSF), 
Room 916 (141 NSF), Room 917 
(84 NSF), Room 918 (210 NSF), 
Room 919 (35 NSF), Room 920 (35 
NSF), Room 921 (173 NSF), Room 
922 (114 NSF), Room 923 (219 
NSF), Room 924 (124 NSF), Room 
925 (130 NSF), Room 926 (20 NSF)

4,456 0 $409,952 $92 $0

Renovation 2026 4 10 Renovating: Apply Painting, Floor 
Cover, Electrical, Plumbing, 
Windows, Lighting, Restrooms, 
HVAC Systems, Bell/Fire Alarm 
Systems, Retrofit for Technology to 
Room 001 (3214 NSF), Room 001A 
(595 NSF), Room 001B (160 NSF), 
Room 001C (160 NSF), Room 001D 
(367 NSF), Room 002 (925 NSF), 
Room 003 (89 NSF), Room 004 (27 
NSF), Room 005 (47 NSF), Room 
006 (180 NSF), Room 007 (30 NSF), 
Room 008 (46 NSF), Room 009 (37 
NSF), Room 010 (425 NSF), Room 
011 (93 NSF), Room 012 (93 NSF)

6,488 0 $596,896 $92 $0

Page 403 of 962

DRAFT



CHARLES E BENNETT 
ELEMENTARY

Parcel Building Description Total NSF Change In 
Station Count

Calculated 
Cost

Cost Per 
NSF

Cost Per 
Station

Renovation 2026 4 11 Renovating: Apply Painting, Floor 
Cover, Electrical, Plumbing, 
Windows, Lighting, Restrooms, 
HVAC Systems, Bell/Fire Alarm 
Systems, Retrofit for Technology to 
Room 100 (80 NSF), Room 101 
(3380 NSF), Room 102 (502 NSF), 
Room 103 (719 NSF), Room 104 
(112 NSF), Room 105 (53 NSF), 
Room 106 (52 NSF), Room 107 
(246 NSF), Room 108 (58 NSF), 
Room 109 (58 NSF), Room 110 (338 
NSF), Room 111 (332 NSF), Room 
112 (698 NSF), Room 112A (93 
NSF), Room 112B (98 NSF), Room 
112C (15 NSF), Room 113 (349 
NSF), Room 114 (179 NSF), Room 
115 (332 NSF), Room 116 (446 
NSF), Room 117 (112 NSF), Room 
118 (64 NSF), Room 119 (168 NSF), 
Room 120 (48 NSF)

8,532 0 $784,944 $92 $0

Renovation 2026 4 20 Renovating: Apply Painting, Floor 
Cover, Electrical, Plumbing, 
Windows, Lighting, Restrooms, 
HVAC Systems, Bell/Fire Alarm 
Systems, Retrofit for Technology to 
Room 802A (188 NSF), Room 802B 
(16 NSF), Room 802C (158 NSF), 
Room 802D (157 NSF)

519 0 $47,748 $92 $0

Page 404 of 962

DRAFT



District Name: CLAY COUNTY SCHOOL DISTRICT

Survey: Number 7 - Version 1

Facility Name: CLAY HIGH SCHOOL

Address: 2025 HIGHWAY 16 W, GREEN COVE SPRINGS

Existing Recommended

Capital Outlay 
Classification

1 - SCHOOL RECOMMENDED FOR 
CONTINUED USE

1 - SCHOOL RECOMMENDED FOR 
CONTINUED USE

Facility Use SENIOR HIGH SENIOR HIGH

Low Grade GRADE 9 GRADE 9

High Grade GRADE 12 GRADE 12

Comments

Existing
Student Stations 

Added/Reduced(+ or -) Recommended

Perm. Stations 1,785 0 1785

Reloc. Stations 252 -140 112

Mod. Stations 0 0 0

Total Stations 2,037 -140 1897

Utilization Factor 95% 95%

School Capacity 1,935 1802

COFTE Student 
Membership 1,429 1,504

Survey Annotation

Correct Site Drainage Problems.                                 
Construct Additional Covered Walkways Where Needed.  Remove 8 portables in excess of 
20 years of age.
(Other)
District-Wide Recommendations for this facility are: Improve Security Fencing and Lighting.

New Site Cost Site 
Expansion

Site 
Development

Site 
Improvement

Remodeling 
Cost

Renovation 
Cost

New 
Construction 

Cost

$0 $0 $0 $45,000 $73,284 $0 $0

Estimated Total Project Cost $118,284

CLAY HIGH SCHOOL Parcel Building Description Total NSF Change In 
Station Count

Calculated 
Cost

Cost Per 
NSF

Cost Per 
Station

Remodeling 2026 16 92 Removed NSF (6107), Added NSF 
(0), Difference NSF (6107), Percent 
(100%), Removed Stations (140), 
Added Stations (0) Remodeling: 
Adding  and Removing Room 040 
(782 NSF), Room 041 (700 NSF), 
Room 041A (30 NSF), Room 042 
(734 NSF), Room 043 (625 NSF), 
Room 043A (96 NSF), Room 043B 
(36 NSF), Room 044 (752 NSF), 
Room 044A (27 NSF), Room 045 
(744 NSF), Room 045A (26 NSF), 
Room 047 (757 NSF), Room 047A 
(26 NSF), Room 049 (745 NSF), 
Room 049A (27 NSF)

-6,107 -140 $73,284 $12 $0

Page 405 of 962

DRAFT



Page 406 of 962

DRAFT



District Name: CLAY COUNTY SCHOOL DISTRICT

Survey: Number 7 - Version 1

Facility Name: CLAY HILL ELEMENTARY

Address: 6345 STATE ROAD 218, JACKSONVILLE

Existing Recommended

Capital Outlay 
Classification

1 - SCHOOL RECOMMENDED FOR 
CONTINUED USE

1 - SCHOOL RECOMMENDED FOR 
CONTINUED USE

Facility Use ELEMENTARY ELEMENTARY

Low Grade PRE-K E S E PRE-K E S E

High Grade GRADE 6 GRADE 6

Comments

Existing
Student Stations 

Added/Reduced(+ or -) Recommended

Perm. Stations 412 30 442

Reloc. Stations 62 -18 44

Mod. Stations 0 0 0

Total Stations 474 12 486

Utilization Factor 100% 100%

School Capacity 474 486

COFTE Student 
Membership 419 454

Survey Annotation

Renovate Buildings 1, 2, 5 & 6.                                         
Correct Site Drainage Problems.                                        Remove 1 portables in excess of 
20 years of age.
Construct (1) Elementary Art, (1) Pre-K ESE, (1) PT ESE, (1) FT ESE.                                      
                                                    (Other)
Construct Additional Covered Walkways Where Needed.
District-Wide Recommendations for this facility are: Improve Security Fencing and Lighting.

New Site Cost Site 
Expansion

Site 
Development

Site 
Improvement

Remodeling 
Cost

Renovation 
Cost

New 
Construction 

Cost

$0 $0 $0 $45,000 $8,820 $3,754,060 $762,570

Estimated Total Project Cost $4,570,450

CLAY HILL 
ELEMENTARY

Parcel Building Description Total NSF Change In 
Station Count

Calculated 
Cost

Cost Per 
NSF

Cost Per 
Station

New Construction 2026 New Construction: Adding 1 unit of 
ART - ELEMENTARY (1110 NSF), 1 
unit of E S E PRE-K (475 NSF), 1 
unit of E S E PART-TIME (975 NSF), 
1 unit of E S E FULL-TIME (950 
NSF)

4,540 30 $762,570 $168 $25,419

Remodeling 2026 24 92 Removed NSF (735), Added NSF 
(0), Difference NSF (735), Percent 
(100%), Removed Stations (18), 
Added Stations (0) Remodeling: 
Adding  and Removing Room 703 
(735 NSF)

-735 -18 $8,820 $12 $0

Page 407 of 962

DRAFT



CLAY HILL 
ELEMENTARY

Parcel Building Description Total NSF Change In 
Station Count

Calculated 
Cost

Cost Per 
NSF

Cost Per 
Station

Renovation 2026 24 1 Renovating: Apply Painting, Floor 
Cover, Electrical, Plumbing, 
Windows, Lighting, Restrooms, 
HVAC Systems, Bell/Fire Alarm 
Systems, Retrofit for Technology to 
Room 100 (239 NSF), Room 100A 
(29 NSF), Room 101 (203 NSF), 
Room 102 (176 NSF), Room 103 
(198 NSF), Room 103B (46 NSF), 
Room 104 (248 NSF), Room 104A 
(27 NSF), Room 105 (308 NSF), 
Room 106 (237 NSF), Room 106A 
(12 NSF), Room 107 (233 NSF), 
Room 108 (32 NSF), Room 109 (32 
NSF), Room 110 (45 NSF), Room 
111 (72 NSF), Room 112 (45 NSF), 
Room 113 (71 NSF), Room 114 (311 
NSF), Room 115 (182 NSF), Room 
116 (75 NSF), Room 117 (51 NSF), 
Room 118 (73 NSF), Room 119 (122 
NSF), Room 120 (198 NSF), Room 
121 (103 NSF), Room 122 (337 
NSF), Room 123 (510 NSF), Room 
124 (229 NSF), Room 125 (86 NSF), 
Room 125A (117 NSF), Room 126 
(116 NSF), Room 127 (105 NSF), 
Room 128 (3056 NSF), Room 129 
(124 NSF), Room 130 (464 NSF), 
Room 131 (336 NSF), Room 132 
(285 NSF), Room 133 (209 NSF), 
Room 134 (131 NSF)

9,473 0 $871,516 $92 $0

Renovation 2026 24 2 Renovating: Apply Painting, Floor 
Cover, Electrical, Plumbing, 
Windows, Lighting, Restrooms, 
HVAC Systems, Bell/Fire Alarm 
Systems, Retrofit for Technology to 
Room 200 (3080 NSF), Room 201 
(45 NSF), Room 202 (179 NSF), 
Room 203 (160 NSF), Room 204 
(448 NSF), Room 205 (218 NSF), 
Room 206 (160 NSF), Room 207 
(172 NSF), Room 208 (41 NSF), 
Room 209 (823 NSF), Room 209A 
(30 NSF), Room 210A (41 NSF), 
Room 210B (41 NSF), Room 211 
(212 NSF), Room 212 (114 NSF), 
Room 213 (238 NSF), Room 214 
(83 NSF), Room 215 (99 NSF), 
Room 216 (1033 NSF), Room 217 
(368 NSF), Room 218 (345 NSF), 
Room 219 (12 NSF), Room 220 (33 
NSF), Room 221 (64 NSF), Room 
222 (54 NSF), Room 223 (122 NSF), 
Room 224 (81 NSF), Room 225 (113 
NSF), Room 226 (113 NSF), Room 
227 (89 NSF)

8,611 0 $792,212 $92 $0

Page 408 of 962

DRAFT



CLAY HILL 
ELEMENTARY

Parcel Building Description Total NSF Change In 
Station Count

Calculated 
Cost

Cost Per 
NSF

Cost Per 
Station

Renovation 2026 24 5 Renovating: Apply Painting, Floor 
Cover, Electrical, Plumbing, 
Windows, Lighting, Restrooms, 
HVAC Systems, Bell/Fire Alarm 
Systems, Retrofit for Technology to 
Room 500 (1364 NSF), Room 501 
(980 NSF), Room 501A (100 NSF), 
Room 501B (70 NSF), Room 501C 
(37 NSF), Room 502 (980 NSF), 
Room 502A (100 NSF), Room 502B 
(70 NSF), Room 502C (37 NSF), 
Room 503 (980 NSF), Room 503B 
(70 NSF), Room 503C (37 NSF), 
Room 504 (980 NSF), Room 504B 
(70 NSF), Room 504C (37 NSF), 
Room 505 (93 NSF), Room 506 
(394 NSF), Room 507 (150 NSF), 
Room 508 (40 NSF), Room 509 
(980 NSF), Room 509A (100 NSF), 
Room 509B (70 NSF), Room 509C 
(37 NSF), Room 510 (980 NSF), 
Room 510A (100 NSF), Room 510B 
(70 NSF), Room 510C (37 NSF), 
Room 511 (980 NSF), Room 511B 
(70 NSF), Room 511C (37 NSF), 
Room 512 (980 NSF), Room 512B 
(70 NSF), Room 512C (37 NSF), 
Room 513 (225 NSF)

11,362 0 $1,045,304 $92 $0

Renovation 2026 24 6 Renovating: Apply Painting, Floor 
Cover, Electrical, Plumbing, 
Windows, Lighting, Restrooms, 
HVAC Systems, Bell/Fire Alarm 
Systems, Retrofit for Technology to 
Room 600 (1250 NSF), Room 601 
(894 NSF), Room 601A (100 NSF), 
Room 601B (70 NSF), Room 601C 
(38 NSF), Room 602 (980 NSF), 
Room 602A (100 NSF), Room 602B 
(70 NSF), Room 602C (38 NSF), 
Room 603 (894 NSF), Room 603B 
(70 NSF), Room 603C (37 NSF), 
Room 604 (980 NSF), Room 604B 
(70 NSF), Room 604C (37 NSF), 
Room 605 (44 NSF), Room 606 
(336 NSF), Room 607 (95 NSF), 
Room 608 (980 NSF), Room 608A 
(100 NSF), Room 608B (70 NSF), 
Room 608C (37 NSF), Room 609 
(980 NSF), Room 609A (100 NSF), 
Room 609B (70 NSF), Room 609C 
(37 NSF), Room 610 (980 NSF), 
Room 610B (70 NSF), Room 611 
(980 NSF), Room 611B (70 NSF), 
Room 612 (223 NSF), Room 613 
(291 NSF), Room 614 (68 NSF), 
Room 615 (200 NSF)

11,359 0 $1,045,028 $92 $0

Page 409 of 962

DRAFT



District Name: CLAY COUNTY SCHOOL DISTRICT

Survey: Number 7 - Version 1

Facility Name: CLAY SUPERINTENDENT'S OFFICE

Address: 2233 VILLAGE SQUARE PARKWAY, ORANGE PARK

Existing Recommended

Capital Outlay 
Classification

6 - ANCILLARY RECOMMENDED FOR 
CONTINUED USE

6 - ANCILLARY RECOMMENDED FOR 
CONTINUED USE

Facility Use ALTERNATIVE EDUCATION COUNTY ADMINISTRATION

Low Grade COUNTY ADMINISTRATION COUNTY ADMINISTRATION

High Grade COUNTY ADMINISTRATION COUNTY ADMINISTRATION

Comments

Existing
Student Stations 

Added/Reduced(+ or -) Recommended

Perm. Stations 0 0 0

Reloc. Stations 0 0 0

Mod. Stations 0 0 0

Total Stations 0 0 0

Utilization Factor 100% 0%

School Capacity 0 0

COFTE Student 
Membership 68 0

Survey Annotation
Change the name of this facility to "Clay District Offices."
Construct additional parking.                                                             Renovate Buildings 2, 3, 
& 10.

New Site Cost Site 
Expansion

Site 
Development

Site 
Improvement

Remodeling 
Cost

Renovation 
Cost

New 
Construction 

Cost

$0 $0 $0 $200,000 $0 $3,564,764 $0

Estimated Total Project Cost $3,764,764

Page 410 of 962

DRAFT



CLAY 
SUPERINTENDENT'S 
OFFICE

Parcel Building Description Total NSF Change In 
Station Count

Calculated 
Cost

Cost Per 
NSF

Cost Per 
Station

Renovation 2026 40 2 Renovating: Apply Painting, Floor 
Cover, Electrical, Plumbing, 
Windows, Lighting, Restrooms, 
HVAC Systems, Bell/Fire Alarm 
Systems, Retrofit for Technology to 
Room 005 (126 NSF), Room 006 
(154 NSF), Room 007 (129 NSF), 
Room 008 (162 NSF), Room 008A 
(9 NSF), Room 009 (20 NSF), Room 
010 (361 NSF), Room 011 (112 
NSF), Room 012 (103 NSF), Room 
013 (54 NSF), Room 014 (44 NSF), 
Room 015 (104 NSF), Room 016 
(115 NSF), Room 017 (116 NSF), 
Room 018 (81 NSF), Room 019 (81 
NSF), Room 020 (406 NSF), Room 
021 (94 NSF), Room 022 (294 NSF), 
Room 023 (67 NSF), Room 024 (22 
NSF), Room 025 (4 NSF), Room 
026 (115 NSF), Room 027 (213 
NSF)

2,986 0 $355,334 $119 $0

Renovation 2026 40 3 Renovating: Apply Painting, Floor 
Cover, Electrical, Plumbing, 
Windows, Lighting, Restrooms, 
HVAC Systems, Bell/Fire Alarm 
Systems, Retrofit for Technology to 
Room 001 (45 NSF), Room 002 (28 
NSF), Room 004 (5 NSF), Room 
005 (314 NSF), Room 006 (228 
NSF), Room 007 (581 NSF), Room 
007A (266 NSF), Room 007B (46 
NSF), Room 008 (326 NSF), Room 
009 (310 NSF), Room 010 (120 
NSF), Room 011 (70 NSF), Room 
012 (165 NSF), Room 012A (89 
NSF), Room 013 (13 NSF), Room 
014 (67 NSF), Room 015 (176 NSF), 
Room 015A (7 NSF), Room 016 
(166 NSF), Room 017 (150 NSF), 
Room 018 (176 NSF), Room 019 
(176 NSF), Room 020 (180 NSF), 
Room 021 (144 NSF), Room 022 
(45 NSF), Room 024 (45 NSF), 
Room 025 (140 NSF), Room 026 
(222 NSF), Room 027 (168 NSF), 
Room 028 (262 NSF), Room 029 
(154 NSF), Room 030 (383 NSF), 
Room 031 (195 NSF), Room 032 
(144 NSF), Room 033 (150 NSF), 
Room 034 (180 NSF), Room 035 
(124 NSF), Room 036 (96 NSF), 
Room 037 (240 NSF), Room 039 
(122 NSF), Room 040 (122 NSF), 
Room 041 (195 NSF), Room 042 
(132 NSF), Room 043 (150 NSF), 
Room 044 (960 NSF), Room 045 
(176 NSF), Room 046 (176 NSF), 
Room 047 (176 NSF), Room 048 
(22 NSF), Room 048A (30 NSF), 
Room 049 (135 NSF), Room 050 
(188 NSF), Room 051 (176 NSF), 
Room 052 (176 NSF), Room 053 
(176 NSF), Room 054 (60 NSF), 
Room 055 (24 NSF), Room 056 (60 
NSF), Room 057 (112 NSF), Room 
058 (198 NSF), Room 059 (188 
NSF), Room 060 (198 NSF), Room 
061 (360 NSF), Room 062 (316 
NSF)

11,024 0 $1,311,856 $119 $0

Page 411 of 962

DRAFT



CLAY 
SUPERINTENDENT'S 
OFFICE

Parcel Building Description Total NSF Change In 
Station Count

Calculated 
Cost

Cost Per 
NSF

Cost Per 
Station

Renovation 2026 54 10 Renovating: Apply Painting, Floor 
Cover, Electrical, Plumbing, 
Windows, Lighting, Restrooms, 
HVAC Systems, Bell/Fire Alarm 
Systems, Retrofit for Technology to 
Room 1001 (949 NSF), Room 1002 
(949 NSF), Room 1003 (276 NSF), 
Room 1004 (96 NSF), Room 1005 
(252 NSF), Room 1006 (745 NSF), 
Room 1007 (54 NSF), Room 1008 
(215 NSF), Room 1009 (240 NSF), 
Room 1010 (237 NSF), Room 1011 
(260 NSF), Room 1012 (260 NSF), 
Room 1013 (42 NSF), Room 1014 
(42 NSF), Room 1015 (147 NSF), 
Room 1016 (82 NSF), Room 1017 
(389 NSF), Room 1018 (4489 NSF), 
Room 1020 (857 NSF), Room 
1020A (318 NSF), Room 1022 (919 
NSF), Room 1023 (831 NSF), Room 
1024 (276 NSF), Room 1025 (1325 
NSF), Room 1026 (949 NSF), Room 
1027 (276 NSF), Room 1028 (439 
NSF), Room 1029 (32 NSF)

15,946 0 $1,897,574 $119 $0

Page 412 of 962

DRAFT



District Name: CLAY COUNTY SCHOOL DISTRICT

Survey: Number 7 - Version 1

Facility Name: COPPERGATE ELEMENTARY

Address: 3460 Copper Colts Court, MIDDLEBURG

Existing Recommended

Capital Outlay 
Classification

1 - SCHOOL RECOMMENDED FOR 
CONTINUED USE

1 - SCHOOL RECOMMENDED FOR 
CONTINUED USE

Facility Use ELEMENTARY ELEMENTARY

Low Grade PRE-K E S E PRE-K E S E

High Grade GRADE 6 GRADE 6

Comments

Existing
Student Stations 

Added/Reduced(+ or -) Recommended

Perm. Stations 659 0 659

Reloc. Stations 66 0 66

Mod. Stations 0 0 0

Total Stations 725 0 725

Utilization Factor 100% 100%

School Capacity 725 725

COFTE Student 
Membership 516 594

Survey Annotation

Correct Site Drainage Problems. 
Construct PE Covered Play Area. 
Construct Additional Covered Walkways Where Needed.  (Other)
District-Wide Recommendations for this facility are: Improve Security Fencing and Lighting.

New Site Cost Site 
Expansion

Site 
Development

Site 
Improvement

Remodeling 
Cost

Renovation 
Cost

New 
Construction 

Cost

$0 $0 $0 $45,000 $0 $0 $138,000

Estimated Total Project Cost $183,000

COPPERGATE 
ELEMENTARY

Parcel Building Description Total NSF Change In 
Station Count

Calculated 
Cost

Cost Per 
NSF

Cost Per 
Station

New Construction 2026 New Construction: Adding 1 unit of 
ELEMENTARY COVERED PLAY 
AREA (500 NSF)

500 0 $138,000 $276 $0

Page 413 of 962

DRAFT



District Name: CLAY COUNTY SCHOOL DISTRICT

Survey: Number 7 - Version 1

Facility Name: DISCOVERY OAKS ELEMENTARY

Address: 950 OAKLEAF PLANTATION PARKWAY, ORANGE PARK

Existing Recommended

Capital Outlay 
Classification

1 - SCHOOL RECOMMENDED FOR 
CONTINUED USE

1 - SCHOOL RECOMMENDED FOR 
CONTINUED USE

Facility Use ELEMENTARY ELEMENTARY

Low Grade PRE-K E S E PRE-K E S E

High Grade GRADE 6 GRADE 6

Comments

Existing
Student Stations 

Added/Reduced(+ or -) Recommended

Perm. Stations 852 0 852

Reloc. Stations 0 0 0

Mod. Stations 0 0 0

Total Stations 852 0 852

Utilization Factor 100% 100%

School Capacity 852 852

COFTE Student 
Membership 838 792

Survey Annotation (Other)
District-Wide Recommendations for this facility are: Improve Security Fencing and Lighting.

New Site Cost Site 
Expansion

Site 
Development

Site 
Improvement

Remodeling 
Cost

Renovation 
Cost

New 
Construction 

Cost

$0 $0 $0 $15,000 $0 $0 $0

Estimated Total Project Cost $15,000

DISCOVERY OAKS 
ELEMENTARY

Parcel Building Description Total NSF Change In 
Station Count

Calculated 
Cost

Cost Per 
NSF

Cost Per 
Station

 

Page 414 of 962

DRAFT



District Name: CLAY COUNTY SCHOOL DISTRICT

Survey: Number 7 - Version 1

Facility Name: DOCTORS INLET ELEMENTARY

Address: 2634 STATE ROAD 220, DOCTORS INLET

Existing Recommended

Capital Outlay 
Classification

1 - SCHOOL RECOMMENDED FOR 
CONTINUED USE

1 - SCHOOL RECOMMENDED FOR 
CONTINUED USE

Facility Use ELEMENTARY ELEMENTARY

Low Grade PRE-K E S E PRE-K E S E

High Grade GRADE 6 GRADE 6

Comments

Existing
Student Stations 

Added/Reduced(+ or -) Recommended

Perm. Stations 401 252 653

Reloc. Stations 336 -229 107

Mod. Stations 0 0 0

Total Stations 737 23 760

Utilization Factor 100% 100%

School Capacity 737 760

COFTE Student 
Membership 640 711

Survey Annotation

Correct Site Drainage Problems.                                Construct Additional Covered Walkways 
Where Needed. 
Construct (3) Primary and  (9) Intermediate.
Renovate Building 4.                                                                    Remove 14 portables in 
excess of 20 years of age.             (Other)
District-Wide Recommendations for this facility are:  Improve Security Fencing and Lighting.

New Site Cost Site 
Expansion

Site 
Development

Site 
Improvement

Remodeling 
Cost

Renovation 
Cost

New 
Construction 

Cost

$15,000 $0 $0 $30,000 $132,288 $533,082 $6,405,588

Estimated Total Project Cost $7,115,958

DOCTORS INLET 
ELEMENTARY

Parcel Building Description Total NSF Change In 
Station Count

Calculated 
Cost

Cost Per 
NSF

Cost Per 
Station

New Construction 2026 New Construction: Adding 3 units of 
PRIMARY CLASSROOM (K-3) (882 
NSF), 9 units of 
INTERMEDIATE/MIDDLE 
CLASSROOM (4-8) (858 NSF)

13,098 252 $6,405,588 $489 $25,419

Page 415 of 962

DRAFT



DOCTORS INLET 
ELEMENTARY

Parcel Building Description Total NSF Change In 
Station Count

Calculated 
Cost

Cost Per 
NSF

Cost Per 
Station

Remodeling 2026 11 92 Removed NSF (11024), Added NSF 
(0), Difference NSF (11024), Percent 
(100%), Removed Stations (229), 
Added Stations (0) Remodeling: 
Adding  and Removing Room 837 
(745 NSF), Room 845 (744 NSF), 
Room 845A (26 NSF), Room 871 
(904 NSF), Room 871A (98 NSF), 
Room 871B (98 NSF), Room 874 
(730 NSF), Room 876 (736 NSF), 
Room 889 (745 NSF), Room 889A 
(27 NSF), Room 890 (700 NSF), 
Room 890A (27 NSF), Room 890B 
(38 NSF), Room 891 (745 NSF), 
Room 891A (27 NSF), Room 893 
(745 NSF), Room 893A (27 NSF), 
Room 894 (779 NSF), Room 896 
(750 NSF), Room 896A (26 NSF), 
Room 897 (745 NSF), Room 897A 
(27 NSF), Room 899 (386 NSF), 
Room 899A (74 NSF), Room 899B 
(312 NSF), Room 921 (736 NSF), 
Room 921A (27 NSF)

-11,024 -229 $132,288 $12 $0

Renovation 2026 11 4 Renovating: Apply Painting, Floor 
Cover, Electrical, Plumbing, 
Windows, Lighting, Restrooms, 
HVAC Systems, Bell/Fire Alarm 
Systems, Retrofit for Technology to 
Room 101 (206 NSF), Room 102 
(281 NSF), Room 103 (35 NSF), 
Room 104 (35 NSF), Room 105 (112 
NSF), Room 105B (36 NSF), Room 
106 (115 NSF), Room 107 (128 
NSF), Room 108 (382 NSF), Room 
109 (180 NSF), Room 110 (193 
NSF), Room 111 (70 NSF), Room 
112 (193 NSF), Room 113 (59 NSF), 
Room 114 (114 NSF), Room 115 (66 
NSF), Room 116 (194 NSF), Room 
117 (211 NSF), Room 118 (214 
NSF), Room 119 (162 NSF), Room 
120 (141 NSF), Room 121 (67 NSF), 
Room 122 (382 NSF), Room 123 
(286 NSF), Room 124 (2639 NSF)

6,501 0 $533,082 $82 $0

Page 416 of 962

DRAFT



District Name: CLAY COUNTY SCHOOL DISTRICT

Survey: Number 7 - Version 1

Facility Name: FLEMING ISLAND ELEMENTARY

Address: 4425 LAKESHORE DRIVE, ORANGE PARK

Existing Recommended

Capital Outlay 
Classification

1 - SCHOOL RECOMMENDED FOR 
CONTINUED USE

1 - SCHOOL RECOMMENDED FOR 
CONTINUED USE

Facility Use ELEMENTARY ELEMENTARY

Low Grade PRE-K E S E PRE-K E S E

High Grade GRADE 6 GRADE 6

Comments

Existing
Student Stations 

Added/Reduced(+ or -) Recommended

Perm. Stations 316 80 396

Reloc. Stations 596 0 596

Mod. Stations 0 0 0

Total Stations 912 80 992

Utilization Factor 100% 100%

School Capacity 912 992

COFTE Student 
Membership 718 946

Survey Annotation

Correct Site Drainage Problems.                                        Construct Additional Covered 
Walkways Where Needed. 
Renovate Buildings 1-4 and 7.
Construct Elementary Covered Play Area, (2) Intermediate Classrooms and (2) Primary 
Classrooms.                             (Other)
District-Wide Recommendations for this facility are: Improve Security Fencing and Lighting.

New Site Cost Site 
Expansion

Site 
Development

Site 
Improvement

Remodeling 
Cost

Renovation 
Cost

New 
Construction 

Cost

$0 $0 $0 $45,000 $0 $4,554,854 $2,033,520

Estimated Total Project Cost $6,633,374

FLEMING ISLAND 
ELEMENTARY

Parcel Building Description Total NSF Change In 
Station Count

Calculated 
Cost

Cost Per 
NSF

Cost Per 
Station

New Construction 2026 New Construction: Adding 1 unit of 
ELEMENTARY COVERED PLAY 
AREA (2600 NSF), 2 units of 
PRIMARY CLASSROOM (K-3) (882 
NSF), 2 units of 
INTERMEDIATE/MIDDLE 
CLASSROOM (4-8) (858 NSF)

7,020 80 $2,033,520 $290 $25,419

Page 417 of 962

DRAFT



FLEMING ISLAND 
ELEMENTARY

Parcel Building Description Total NSF Change In 
Station Count

Calculated 
Cost

Cost Per 
NSF

Cost Per 
Station

Renovation 2026 42 1 Renovating: Apply Painting, Floor 
Cover, Electrical, Plumbing, 
Windows, Lighting, Restrooms, 
HVAC Systems, Bell/Fire Alarm 
Systems, Retrofit for Technology to 
Room 101 (475 NSF), Room 102 
(71 NSF), Room 103 (289 NSF), 
Room 104 (215 NSF), Room 105 
(133 NSF), Room 106 (450 NSF), 
Room 107 (73 NSF), Room 109 (73 
NSF), Room 110 (151 NSF), Room 
111 (150 NSF), Room 113 (310 
NSF), Room 114 (609 NSF), Room 
115 (277 NSF), Room 116 (103 
NSF), Room 117 (277 NSF), Room 
118 (135 NSF), Room 119 (357 
NSF), Room 120 (243 NSF), Room 
121 (322 NSF), Room 122 (76 NSF), 
Room 123 (352 NSF), Room 125 
(189 NSF), Room 126 (193 NSF), 
Room 127 (386 NSF), Room 128 
(304 NSF), Room 129 (163 NSF), 
Room 130 (215 NSF), Room 131 
(144 NSF), Room 132 (144 NSF), 
Room 133 (222 NSF), Room 134 
(232 NSF), Room 135 (191 NSF), 
Room 136 (190 NSF), Room 137 
(330 NSF), Room 137A (17 NSF), 
Room 138 (44 NSF), Room 139 
(287 NSF), Room 140 (109 NSF), 
Room 141 (135 NSF), Room 142 
(171 NSF)

8,807 0 $722,174 $82 $0

Renovation 2026 42 2 Renovating: Apply Painting, Floor 
Cover, Electrical, Plumbing, 
Windows, Lighting, Restrooms, 
HVAC Systems, Bell/Fire Alarm 
Systems, Retrofit for Technology to 
Room 201 (3872 NSF), Room 201A 
(2069 NSF), Room 202 (1069 NSF), 
Room 203 (91 NSF), Room 204 
(279 NSF), Room 205 (34 NSF), 
Room 206 (246 NSF), Room 207 
(287 NSF), Room 208 (153 NSF), 
Room 209 (123 NSF), Room 211 
(143 NSF), Room 212 (703 NSF), 
Room 213 (91 NSF), Room 215 
(393 NSF), Room 216 (617 NSF), 
Room 217 (330 NSF), Room 219 
(1182 NSF), Room 220 (97 NSF), 
Room 221 (118 NSF), Room 222 
(118 NSF), Room 223 (85 NSF), 
Room 224 (221 NSF), Room 225 
(15 NSF), Room 226 (295 NSF), 
Room 227 (118 NSF), Room 228 (36 
NSF), Room 229 (773 NSF), Room 
230 (204 NSF), Room 231 (249 
NSF), Room 232 (574 NSF), Room 
233 (44 NSF)

14,629 0 $1,199,578 $82 $0

Page 418 of 962

DRAFT



FLEMING ISLAND 
ELEMENTARY

Parcel Building Description Total NSF Change In 
Station Count

Calculated 
Cost

Cost Per 
NSF

Cost Per 
Station

Renovation 2026 42 3 Renovating: Apply Painting, Floor 
Cover, Electrical, Plumbing, 
Windows, Lighting, Restrooms, 
HVAC Systems, Bell/Fire Alarm 
Systems, Retrofit for Technology to 
Room 301 (252 NSF), Room 302 
(58 NSF), Room 303 (320 NSF), 
Room 304 (700 NSF), Room 305 
(226 NSF), Room 306 (60 NSF), 
Room 307 (53 NSF), Room 308 (53 
NSF), Room 309 (110 NSF), Room 
310 (260 NSF), Room 311 (263 
NSF), Room 312 (139 NSF), Room 
313 (486 NSF), Room 314 (3311 
NSF), Room 317 (327 NSF), Room 
318 (199 NSF), Room 319 (524 
NSF), Room 320 (353 NSF), Room 
321 (188 NSF), Room 322 (184 
NSF), Room 323 (767 NSF), Room 
324 (90 NSF), Room 324A (18 NSF)

8,941 0 $733,162 $82 $0

Renovation 2026 42 4 Renovating: Apply Painting, Floor 
Cover, Electrical, Plumbing, 
Windows, Lighting, Restrooms, 
HVAC Systems, Bell/Fire Alarm 
Systems, Retrofit for Technology to 
Room 400 (1903 NSF), Room 401 
(996 NSF), Room 402 (100 NSF), 
Room 403 (32 NSF), Room 404 
(179 NSF), Room 406 (996 NSF), 
Room 407 (100 NSF), Room 408 
(32 NSF), Room 409 (996 NSF), 
Room 410 (100 NSF), Room 411 (32 
NSF), Room 412 (179 NSF), Room 
414 (996 NSF), Room 415 (100 
NSF), Room 416 (32 NSF), Room 
417 (988 NSF), Room 418 (100 
NSF), Room 419 (32 NSF), Room 
420 (184 NSF), Room 422 (988 
NSF), Room 423 (100 NSF), Room 
424 (32 NSF), Room 425 (996 NSF), 
Room 426 (100 NSF), Room 427 
(32 NSF), Room 428 (179 NSF), 
Room 430 (988 NSF), Room 431 
(100 NSF), Room 432 (32 NSF), 
Room 433 (128 NSF), Room 434 
(115 NSF), Room 435 (14 NSF), 
Room 436 (48 NSF), Room 437 
(152 NSF)

12,081 0 $990,642 $82 $0

Page 419 of 962

DRAFT



FLEMING ISLAND 
ELEMENTARY

Parcel Building Description Total NSF Change In 
Station Count

Calculated 
Cost

Cost Per 
NSF

Cost Per 
Station

Renovation 2026 42 7 Renovating: Apply Painting, Floor 
Cover, Electrical, Plumbing, 
Windows, Lighting, Restrooms, 
HVAC Systems, Bell/Fire Alarm 
Systems, Retrofit for Technology to 
Room 700 (297 NSF), Room 701 
(966 NSF), Room 702 (107 NSF), 
Room 703 (146 NSF), Room 704 
(1496 NSF), Room 705 (103 NSF), 
Room 706 (49 NSF), Room 707 
(108 NSF), Room 708 (132 NSF), 
Room 709 (62 NSF), Room 711 
(1273 NSF), Room 712 (959 NSF), 
Room 713 (246 NSF), Room 714 
(136 NSF), Room 715 (289 NSF), 
Room 716 (24 NSF), Room 717 (67 
NSF), Room 718 (67 NSF), Room 
719 (80 NSF), Room 720 (34 NSF), 
Room 721 (959 NSF), Room 722 
(91 NSF), Room 724 (959 NSF), 
Room 725 (246 NSF), Room 726 
(283 NSF), Room 727 (289 NSF), 
Room 728 (34 NSF), Room 729 (80 
NSF), Room 730 (67 NSF), Room 
731 (67 NSF), Room 732 (24 NSF), 
Room 733 (959 NSF), Room 734 
(158 NSF), Room 736 (80 NSF), 
Room 738 (152 NSF)

11,089 0 $909,298 $82 $0

Page 420 of 962

DRAFT



District Name: CLAY COUNTY SCHOOL DISTRICT

Survey: Number 7 - Version 1

Facility Name: FLEMING ISLAND SENIOR HIGH

Address: 2233 VILLAGE SQUARE PARKWAY, ORANGE PARK

Existing Recommended

Capital Outlay 
Classification

1 - SCHOOL RECOMMENDED FOR 
CONTINUED USE

1 - SCHOOL RECOMMENDED FOR 
CONTINUED USE

Facility Use SENIOR HIGH SENIOR HIGH

Low Grade GRADE 9 GRADE 9

High Grade GRADE 12 GRADE 12

Comments

Existing
Student Stations 

Added/Reduced(+ or -) Recommended

Perm. Stations 1,265 0 1265

Reloc. Stations 1,270 0 1270

Mod. Stations 0 0 0

Total Stations 2,535 0 2535

Utilization Factor 95% 95%

School Capacity 2,408 2408

COFTE Student 
Membership 1,798 1,995

Survey Annotation
Correct Site Drainage Problems. 
Construct Additional Covered Walkways Where Needed.   (Other)
District-Wide Recommendations for this facility are: Improve Security Fencing and Lighting.

New Site Cost Site 
Expansion

Site 
Development

Site 
Improvement

Remodeling 
Cost

Renovation 
Cost

New 
Construction 

Cost

$0 $0 $0 $45,000 $0 $0 $0

Estimated Total Project Cost $45,000

FLEMING ISLAND 
SENIOR HIGH

Parcel Building Description Total NSF Change In 
Station Count

Calculated 
Cost

Cost Per 
NSF

Cost Per 
Station

 

Page 421 of 962

DRAFT



District Name: CLAY COUNTY SCHOOL DISTRICT

Survey: Number 7 - Version 1

Facility Name: FOOD SERVICES STORAGE

Address: 720 CENTER STREET, GREEN COVE SPRINGS

Existing Recommended

Capital Outlay 
Classification

6 - ANCILLARY RECOMMENDED FOR 
CONTINUED USE

6 - ANCILLARY RECOMMENDED FOR 
CONTINUED USE

Facility Use MULTIPLE USE SUPPORT MULTIPLE USE SUPPORT

Low Grade DISTRICT SERVICES DISTRICT SERVICES

High Grade DISTRICT SERVICES DISTRICT SERVICES

Comments

Existing
Student Stations 

Added/Reduced(+ or -) Recommended

Perm. Stations 0 0 0

Reloc. Stations 0 0 0

Mod. Stations 0 0 0

Total Stations 0 0 0

Utilization Factor 0% 0%

School Capacity 0 0

COFTE Student 
Membership 0 0

Survey Annotation No new recommendations.

New Site Cost Site 
Expansion

Site 
Development

Site 
Improvement

Remodeling 
Cost

Renovation 
Cost

New 
Construction 

Cost

$0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0

Estimated Total Project Cost $0

FOOD SERVICES 
STORAGE

Parcel Building Description Total NSF Change In 
Station Count

Calculated 
Cost

Cost Per 
NSF

Cost Per 
Station

 

Page 422 of 962

DRAFT



District Name: CLAY COUNTY SCHOOL DISTRICT

Survey: Number 7 - Version 1

Facility Name: GREEN COVE SPRINGS JUNIOR HIGH

Address: WALNUT STREET, GREEN COVE SPRINGS

Existing Recommended

Capital Outlay 
Classification

1 - SCHOOL RECOMMENDED FOR 
CONTINUED USE

1 - SCHOOL RECOMMENDED FOR 
CONTINUED USE

Facility Use MIDDLE JUNIOR HIGH

Low Grade GRADE 7 GRADE 7

High Grade GRADE 8 GRADE 8

Comments

Existing
Student Stations 

Added/Reduced(+ or -) Recommended

Perm. Stations 878 0 878

Reloc. Stations 147 0 147

Mod. Stations 0 0 0

Total Stations 1,025 0 1025

Utilization Factor 90% 90%

School Capacity 922 922

COFTE Student 
Membership 820 824

Survey Annotation
Renovate Buildings 1-9, 42 and 43.                                 Correct Site Drainage Problems.  
Construct Additional Covered Walkways Where Needed.  (Other)
District-Wide Recommendations for this facility are: Improve Security Fencing and Lighting.

New Site Cost Site 
Expansion

Site 
Development

Site 
Improvement

Remodeling 
Cost

Renovation 
Cost

New 
Construction 

Cost

$0 $0 $0 $45,000 $0 $11,929,002 $0

Estimated Total Project Cost $11,974,002

Page 423 of 962

DRAFT



GREEN COVE SPRINGS 
JUNIOR HIGH

Parcel Building Description Total NSF Change In 
Station Count

Calculated 
Cost

Cost Per 
NSF

Cost Per 
Station

Renovation 2026 2 1 Renovating: Apply Painting, Floor 
Cover, Electrical, Plumbing, 
Windows, Lighting, Restrooms, 
HVAC Systems, Bell/Fire Alarm 
Systems, Retrofit for Technology to 
Room 001 (782 NSF), Room 001A 
(85 NSF), Room 002 (782 NSF), 
Room 003 (690 NSF), Room 004 
(690 NSF), Room 005 (690 NSF), 
Room 006 (690 NSF), Room 007 
(963 NSF), Room 008 (690 NSF), 
Room 008A (50 NSF), Room 010 
(782 NSF), Room 010A (125 NSF), 
Room 011 (782 NSF), Room 012 
(690 NSF), Room 013 (690 NSF), 
Room 014 (1667 NSF), Room 014A 
(37 NSF), Room 015 (741 NSF), 
Room 015A (437 NSF), Room 015B 
(216 NSF), Room 015C (85 NSF), 
Room 016 (64 NSF), Room 017 (32 
NSF), Room 018 (85 NSF), Room 
027 (136 NSF), Room 027A (38 
NSF), Room 027B (38 NSF), Room 
027C (8 NSF), Room 027D (8 NSF), 
Room 027E (8 NSF), Room 028 
(176 NSF), Room 028A (38 NSF), 
Room 028B (38 NSF), Room 029 
(180 NSF), Room 029A (20 NSF), 
Room 029B (20 NSF), Room 052 
(96 NSF), Room 053 (50 NSF), 
Room 100 (137 NSF), Room 101 
(171 NSF), Room 103 (135 NSF), 
Room 107 (171 NSF), Room 126 
(510 NSF), Room 127 (236 NSF), 
Room 128 (47 NSF), Room 129 
(233 NSF), Room 130 (175 NSF), 
Room 131 (69 NSF), Room 132 
(168 NSF), Room 133 (168 NSF), 
Room 133A (40 NSF), Room 134 
(174 NSF), Room 135 (219 NSF), 
Room 136 (158 NSF), Room 137 
(157 NSF), Room 138 (211 NSF), 
Room 139 (147 NSF), Room 139A 
(21 NSF), Room 140 (35 NSF), 
Room 141 (276 NSF), Room 143 
(47 NSF), Room 144 (261 NSF), 
Room 144A (25 NSF), Room 145 
(172 NSF), Room 146 (155 NSF), 
Room 146A (46 NSF), Room 146B 
(28 NSF), Room 146C (170 NSF), 
Room 147 (429 NSF), Room 800 
(1775 NSF), Room 801 (515 NSF), 
Room 802 (3047 NSF), Room 803 
(638 NSF)

24,365 0 $2,607,055 $107 $0

Page 424 of 962

DRAFT



GREEN COVE SPRINGS 
JUNIOR HIGH

Parcel Building Description Total NSF Change In 
Station Count

Calculated 
Cost

Cost Per 
NSF

Cost Per 
Station

Renovation 2026 2 2 Renovating: Apply Painting, Floor 
Cover, Electrical, Plumbing, 
Windows, Lighting, Restrooms, 
HVAC Systems, Bell/Fire Alarm 
Systems, Retrofit for Technology to 
Room 016 (1196 NSF), Room 016A 
(5 NSF), Room 016B (300 NSF), 
Room 017 (1196 NSF), Room 017A 
(6 NSF), Room 018 (1196 NSF), 
Room 018A (6 NSF), Room 019 
(1196 NSF), Room 019A (5 NSF), 
Room 019B (165 NSF), Room 019C 
(118 NSF), Room 019D (9 NSF), 
Room 020 (1327 NSF), Room 020A 
(80 NSF), Room 021 (656 NSF), 
Room 021A (6 NSF), Room 021B 
(75 NSF), Room 022 (681 NSF), 
Room 022A (6 NSF), Room 023 (30 
NSF), Room 024 (30 NSF), Room 
104 (219 NSF), Room 105 (222 
NSF), Room 800 (1938 NSF), Room 
800A (10 NSF)

10,678 0 $1,142,546 $107 $0

Renovation 2026 2 3 Renovating: Apply Painting, Floor 
Cover, Electrical, Plumbing, 
Windows, Lighting, Restrooms, 
HVAC Systems, Bell/Fire Alarm 
Systems, Retrofit for Technology to 
Room 030 (688 NSF), Room 030B 
(50 NSF), Room 031 (688 NSF), 
Room 031B (84 NSF), Room 032 
(688 NSF), Room 033 (688 NSF), 
Room 034 (960 NSF), Room 035 
(960 NSF), Room 106 (171 NSF), 
Room 107 (136 NSF), Room 800 
(1190 NSF)

6,303 0 $674,421 $107 $0

Renovation 2026 2 4 Renovating: Apply Painting, Floor 
Cover, Electrical, Plumbing, 
Windows, Lighting, Restrooms, 
HVAC Systems, Bell/Fire Alarm 
Systems, Retrofit for Technology to 
Room 401 (912 NSF), Room 402 
(48 NSF), Room 403 (48 NSF), 
Room 404 (936 NSF), Room 405 
(83 NSF), Room 406 (53 NSF), 
Room 407 (877 NSF), Room 408 
(56 NSF), Room 409 (65 NSF), 
Room 410 (222 NSF), Room 411 
(1015 NSF), Room 411B (50 NSF), 
Room 412 (48 NSF), Room 413 (75 
NSF), Room 414 (62 NSF), Room 
415 (376 NSF), Room 416 (58 NSF), 
Room 417 (82 NSF), Room 418 
(324 NSF), Room 419 (80 NSF), 
Room 420 (153 NSF), Room 421 
(81 NSF), Room 422 (224 NSF), 
Room 422A (56 NSF), Room 423 
(152 NSF), Room 423A (140 NSF), 
Room 423B (28 NSF), Room 424 
(1350 NSF), Room 425 (630 NSF), 
Room 426 (201 NSF)

8,485 0 $907,895 $107 $0

Page 425 of 962

DRAFT



GREEN COVE SPRINGS 
JUNIOR HIGH

Parcel Building Description Total NSF Change In 
Station Count

Calculated 
Cost

Cost Per 
NSF

Cost Per 
Station

Renovation 2026 2 5 Renovating: Apply Painting, Floor 
Cover, Electrical, Plumbing, 
Windows, Lighting, Restrooms, 
HVAC Systems, Bell/Fire Alarm 
Systems, Retrofit for Technology to 
Room 501 (8556 NSF), Room 502 
(236 NSF), Room 503 (236 NSF), 
Room 504 (2204 NSF), Room 510 
(34 NSF), Room 511 (110 NSF), 
Room 512 (33 NSF), Room 513 (8 
NSF), Room 514 (8 NSF), Room 
515 (30 NSF), Room 516 (84 NSF), 
Room 517 (784 NSF), Room 520 
(34 NSF), Room 521 (110 NSF), 
Room 522 (33 NSF), Room 523 (8 
NSF), Room 524 (8 NSF), Room 
525 (30 NSF), Room 526 (84 NSF), 
Room 527 (1044 NSF), Room 528 
(73 NSF), Room 530 (71 NSF), 
Room 531 (75 NSF), Room 532 (39 
NSF), Room 533 (139 NSF), Room 
534 (555 NSF), Room 535 (767 
NSF), Room 540 (71 NSF), Room 
541 (75 NSF), Room 542 (39 NSF), 
Room 543 (139 NSF), Room 544 
(555 NSF), Room 545 (767 NSF)

17,039 0 $1,823,173 $107 $0

Renovation 2026 2 6 Renovating: Apply Painting, Floor 
Cover, Electrical, Plumbing, 
Windows, Lighting, Restrooms, 
HVAC Systems, Bell/Fire Alarm 
Systems, Retrofit for Technology to 
Room 101 (2286 NSF), Room 102 
(160 NSF), Room 103 (774 NSF), 
Room 104 (94 NSF), Room 105 
(104 NSF), Room 106 (104 NSF), 
Room 107 (104 NSF), Room 108 
(306 NSF), Room 109 (1228 NSF), 
Room 110 (156 NSF), Room 111 
(158 NSF), Room 112 (82 NSF), 
Room 113 (130 NSF), Room 114 
(108 NSF), Room 115 (35 NSF), 
Room 116A (38 NSF), Room 116B 
(34 NSF), Room 117 (630 NSF), 
Room 118 (78 NSF), Room 119 (52 
NSF), Room 120 (52 NSF), Room 
121 (13 NSF), Room 122 (52 NSF), 
Room 123 (47 NSF)

6,825 0 $730,275 $107 $0

Renovation 2026 2 7 Renovating: Apply Painting, Floor 
Cover, Electrical, Plumbing, 
Windows, Lighting, Restrooms, 
HVAC Systems, Bell/Fire Alarm 
Systems, Retrofit for Technology to 
Room 701 (4286 NSF), Room 702 
(686 NSF), Room 703 (403 NSF), 
Room 705 (249 NSF), Room 706 
(705 NSF), Room 707 (473 NSF), 
Room 708 (579 NSF), Room 709 
(754 NSF), Room 710 (16 NSF), 
Room 711 (65 NSF), Room 712 (118 
NSF), Room 713 (129 NSF), Room 
714 (188 NSF), Room 715 (497 
NSF), Room 716 (111 NSF), Room 
717 (60 NSF), Room 718 (60 NSF), 
Room 719 (60 NSF), Room 720 (56 
NSF), Room 721 (466 NSF), Room 
722 (254 NSF), Room 723 (886 
NSF), Room 724 (145 NSF), Room 
725 (48 NSF)

11,294 0 $1,208,458 $107 $0

Page 426 of 962

DRAFT



GREEN COVE SPRINGS 
JUNIOR HIGH

Parcel Building Description Total NSF Change In 
Station Count

Calculated 
Cost

Cost Per 
NSF

Cost Per 
Station

Renovation 2026 2 8 Renovating: Apply Painting, Floor 
Cover, Electrical, Plumbing, 
Windows, Lighting, Restrooms, 
HVAC Systems, Bell/Fire Alarm 
Systems, Retrofit for Technology to 
Room 801 (7000 NSF), Room 802 
(142 NSF), Room 803 (568 NSF), 
Room 804 (139 NSF), Room 805 
(1292 NSF), Room 806 (68 NSF), 
Room 807 (272 NSF), Room 808 
(299 NSF), Room 809 (252 NSF), 
Room 810 (287 NSF), Room 811 
(224 NSF), Room 812 (49 NSF), 
Room 813 (243 NSF), Room 814 
(1075 NSF), Room 815 (1339 NSF), 
Room 816 (457 NSF), Room 817 
(100 NSF), Room 818 (298 NSF), 
Room 819 (173 NSF), Room 820 
(362 NSF), Room 821 (18 NSF), 
Room 822 (36 NSF), Room 823 (74 
NSF), Room 824 (158 NSF), Room 
825 (140 NSF), Room 826 (255 
NSF), Room 827 (432 NSF), Room 
828 (422 NSF), Room 829 (49 NSF), 
Room 830 (49 NSF), Room 831 (68 
NSF), Room 833 (124 NSF), Room 
835 (96 NSF), Room 836 (24 NSF)

16,584 0 $1,774,488 $107 $0

Renovation 2026 2 9 Renovating: Apply Painting, Floor 
Cover, Electrical, Plumbing, 
Windows, Lighting, Restrooms, 
HVAC Systems, Bell/Fire Alarm 
Systems, Retrofit for Technology to 
Room 901 (370 NSF), Room 902 
(50 NSF), Room 903 (50 NSF), 
Room 904 (1229 NSF), Room 905 
(157 NSF), Room 906 (105 NSF), 
Room 907 (154 NSF), Room 908 
(107 NSF), Room 909 (419 NSF), 
Room 910 (304 NSF), Room 911 
(110 NSF), Room 912 (70 NSF), 
Room 913 (56 NSF), Room 914 
(1985 NSF), Room 915 (188 NSF), 
Room 916 (109 NSF), Room 917 
(57 NSF), Room 918 (305 NSF), 
Room 919 (119 NSF), Room 920 (65 
NSF), Room 921 (70 NSF), Room 
922 (425 NSF), Room 923 (190 
NSF), Room 924 (167 NSF), Room 
925 (150 NSF), Room 926 (97 NSF), 
Room 927 (121 NSF), Room 928 
(192 NSF), Room 929 (80 NSF), 
Room 930 (190 NSF)

7,691 0 $822,937 $107 $0

Renovation 2026 3 42 Renovating: Apply Painting, Floor 
Cover, Electrical, Plumbing, 
Windows, Lighting, Restrooms, 
HVAC Systems, Bell/Fire Alarm 
Systems, Retrofit for Technology to 
Room 001 (182 NSF), Room 002 
(182 NSF), Room 003 (182 NSF), 
Room 004 (182 NSF), Room 005 
(224 NSF), Room 006 (224 NSF), 
Room 007 (220 NSF)

1,396 0 $149,372 $107 $0

Renovation 2026 3 43 Renovating: Apply Painting, Floor 
Cover, Electrical, Plumbing, 
Windows, Lighting, Restrooms, 
HVAC Systems, Bell/Fire Alarm 
Systems, Retrofit for Technology to 
Room 001 (77 NSF), Room 002 (77 
NSF), Room 003 (672 NSF)

826 0 $88,382 $107 $0

Page 427 of 962

DRAFT



District Name: CLAY COUNTY SCHOOL DISTRICT

Survey: Number 7 - Version 1

Facility Name: GROVE PARK ELEMENTARY

Address: 1643 MILLER STREET, ORANGE PARK

Existing Recommended

Capital Outlay 
Classification

1 - SCHOOL RECOMMENDED FOR 
CONTINUED USE

1 - SCHOOL RECOMMENDED FOR 
CONTINUED USE

Facility Use ELEMENTARY ELEMENTARY

Low Grade PRE-K E S E PRE-K E S E

High Grade GRADE 6 GRADE 6

Comments

Existing
Student Stations 

Added/Reduced(+ or -) Recommended

Perm. Stations 304 0 304

Reloc. Stations 208 -76 132

Mod. Stations 0 0 0

Total Stations 512 -76 436

Utilization Factor 100% 100%

School Capacity 512 436

COFTE Student 
Membership 464 356

Survey Annotation

Renovate Buildings 1, 2, 6, 7, 8 & 9.                                        Re-design and Construct 
Parent and Bus Pick Up and Drop Off Areas. 
Correct Site Drainage Problems.                                 
Construct Additional Covered Walkways Where Needed.   
Remove 4 portables in excess of 20 years of age.
(Other)
District-Wide Recommendations for this facility are: Improve Security Fencing and Lighting.

New Site Cost Site 
Expansion

Site 
Development

Site 
Improvement

Remodeling 
Cost

Renovation 
Cost

New 
Construction 

Cost

$0 $0 $0 $245,000 $35,952 $4,054,808 $0

Estimated Total Project Cost $4,335,760

GROVE PARK 
ELEMENTARY

Parcel Building Description Total NSF Change In 
Station Count

Calculated 
Cost

Cost Per 
NSF

Cost Per 
Station

Remodeling 2026 8 92 Removed NSF (2996), Added NSF 
(0), Difference NSF (2996), Percent 
(100%), Removed Stations (76), 
Added Stations (0) Remodeling: 
Adding  and Removing Room 504 
(729 NSF), Room 507 (750 NSF), 
Room 507A (25 NSF), Room 522 
(740 NSF), Room 524 (752 NSF)

-2,996 -76 $35,952 $12 $0

Page 428 of 962

DRAFT



GROVE PARK 
ELEMENTARY

Parcel Building Description Total NSF Change In 
Station Count

Calculated 
Cost

Cost Per 
NSF

Cost Per 
Station

Renovation 2026 8 1 Renovating: Apply Painting, Floor 
Cover, Electrical, Plumbing, 
Windows, Lighting, Restrooms, 
HVAC Systems, Bell/Fire Alarm 
Systems, Retrofit for Technology to 
Room 100 (372 NSF), Room 100A 
(85 NSF), Room 101 (282 NSF), 
Room 102 (181 NSF), Room 102A 
(30 NSF), Room 102B (12 NSF), 
Room 102C (18 NSF), Room 103 
(291 NSF), Room 103A (104 NSF), 
Room 104 (124 NSF), Room 104A 
(8 NSF), Room 105 (200 NSF), 
Room 106 (224 NSF), Room 107 
(220 NSF), Room 107A (25 NSF), 
Room 107B (20 NSF), Room 108 
(216 NSF), Room 109 (84 NSF), 
Room 109A (55 NSF), Room 110 
(2946 NSF), Room 110A (154 NSF), 
Room 110B (312 NSF), Room 110C 
(63 NSF), Room 111 (132 NSF), 
Room 112 (122 NSF), Room 113 
(408 NSF), Room 114 (201 NSF), 
Room 115 (194 NSF), Room 116 
(184 NSF), Room 118 (82 NSF), 
Room 119 (82 NSF), Room 131 (129 
NSF), Room 132 (120 NSF), Room 
133 (114 NSF), Room 134 (473 
NSF)

8,267 0 $760,564 $92 $0

Renovation 2026 8 2 Renovating: Apply Painting, Floor 
Cover, Electrical, Plumbing, 
Windows, Lighting, Restrooms, 
HVAC Systems, Retrofit for 
Technology to Room 117 (149 NSF), 
Room 120 (195 NSF), Room 120A 
(70 NSF), Room 121 (144 NSF), 
Room 122 (189 NSF), Room 123 
(906 NSF), Room 123A (154 NSF), 
Room 123B (220 NSF), Room 124 
(95 NSF), Room 125 (272 NSF), 
Room 125A (148 NSF), Room 126 
(50 NSF), Room 126A (32 NSF), 
Room 127 (50 NSF), Room 127A 
(32 NSF), Room 128 (98 NSF), 
Room 129 (3425 NSF), Room 129A 
(622 NSF), Room 129B (273 NSF), 
Room 130 (90 NSF), Room 130A 
(90 NSF), Room 131 (74 NSF), 
Room 131A (74 NSF), Room 131B 
(85 NSF), Room 134 (134 NSF)

7,671 0 $705,732 $92 $0

Page 429 of 962

DRAFT



GROVE PARK 
ELEMENTARY

Parcel Building Description Total NSF Change In 
Station Count

Calculated 
Cost

Cost Per 
NSF

Cost Per 
Station

Renovation 2026 8 6 Renovating: Apply Painting, Floor 
Cover, Electrical, Plumbing, 
Windows, Lighting, Restrooms, 
HVAC Systems, Bell/Fire Alarm 
Systems, Retrofit for Technology to 
Room 601 (993 NSF), Room 601A 
(66 NSF), Room 601B (43 NSF), 
Room 601C (140 NSF), Room 602 
(993 NSF), Room 602A (66 NSF), 
Room 602B (43 NSF), Room 602C 
(68 NSF), Room 603 (1004 NSF), 
Room 603A (69 NSF), Room 603B 
(43 NSF), Room 604 (847 NSF), 
Room 604A (118 NSF), Room 604B 
(107 NSF), Room 604E (67 NSF), 
Room 604F (24 NSF), Room 604G 
(11 NSF), Room 605 (847 NSF), 
Room 605A (118 NSF), Room 605C 
(48 NSF), Room 605D (48 NSF), 
Room 605E (67 NSF), Room 605F 
(24 NSF), Room 605G (11 NSF), 
Room 606 (846 NSF), Room 606A 
(117 NSF), Room 606C (48 NSF), 
Room 606D (48 NSF), Room 606E 
(67 NSF), Room 606F (24 NSF), 
Room 606G (11 NSF), Room 607 
(847 NSF), Room 607A (117 NSF), 
Room 607G (11 NSF), Room 608 
(846 NSF), Room 608A (117 NSF), 
Room 608G (11 NSF), Room 609 
(43 NSF), Room 610 (43 NSF), 
Room 611 (307 NSF), Room 612 
(307 NSF), Room 613 (229 NSF), 
Room 615 (104 NSF), Room 616 
(78 NSF), Room 618 (607 NSF), 
Room 619 (732 NSF), Room 620 
(470 NSF)

11,895 0 $1,094,340 $92 $0

Renovation 2026 8 7 Renovating: Apply Painting, Floor 
Cover, Electrical, Plumbing, 
Windows, Lighting, Restrooms, 
HVAC Systems, Bell/Fire Alarm 
Systems, Retrofit for Technology to 
Room 700 (710 NSF), Room 701 
(918 NSF), Room 701A (62 NSF), 
Room 701B (43 NSF), Room 701C 
(121 NSF), Room 702 (918 NSF), 
Room 702A (62 NSF), Room 702B 
(43 NSF), Room 702C (121 NSF), 
Room 703 (918 NSF), Room 703A 
(62 NSF), Room 703B (43 NSF), 
Room 704 (918 NSF), Room 704A 
(62 NSF), Room 704B (43 NSF), 
Room 705 (918 NSF), Room 705A 
(62 NSF), Room 705B (43 NSF), 
Room 705C (122 NSF), Room 706 
(918 NSF), Room 706A (62 NSF), 
Room 706B (43 NSF), Room 706C 
(122 NSF), Room 707 (965 NSF), 
Room 707A (62 NSF), Room 708 
(918 NSF), Room 708A (62 NSF), 
Room 708B (43 NSF), Room 709 
(43 NSF), Room 710 (43 NSF), 
Room 711 (307 NSF), Room 712 
(307 NSF), Room 713 (500 NSF), 
Room 715 (104 NSF), Room 716 
(78 NSF)

10,766 0 $990,472 $92 $0

Renovation 2026 8 8 Renovating: Apply Painting, Floor 
Cover, Electrical, Plumbing, 
Windows, Lighting, Restrooms, 
HVAC Systems, Bell/Fire Alarm 
Systems, Retrofit for Technology to 
Room 011 (831 NSF), Room 011A 
(81 NSF), Room 144 (531 NSF), 
Room 144A (82 NSF)

1,525 0 $140,300 $92 $0

Page 430 of 962

DRAFT



GROVE PARK 
ELEMENTARY

Parcel Building Description Total NSF Change In 
Station Count

Calculated 
Cost

Cost Per 
NSF

Cost Per 
Station

Renovation 2026 8 9 Renovating: Apply Painting, Floor 
Cover, Electrical, Plumbing, 
Windows, Lighting, Restrooms, 
HVAC Systems, Bell/Fire Alarm 
Systems, Retrofit for Technology to 
Room 001 (749 NSF), Room 002 
(763 NSF), Room 003 (763 NSF), 
Room 004 (749 NSF), Room 135 
(140 NSF), Room 135A (21 NSF), 
Room 136 (53 NSF), Room 137 (53 
NSF), Room 138 (37 NSF), Room 
139 (52 NSF), Room 140 (140 NSF), 
Room 141 (140 NSF), Room 142 
(145 NSF), Room 143 (145 NSF)

3,950 0 $363,400 $92 $0

Page 431 of 962

DRAFT



District Name: CLAY COUNTY SCHOOL DISTRICT

Survey: Number 7 - Version 1

Facility Name: HARRIS C LONG ADMINISTRATION

Address: 23 S GREEN STREET, GREEN COVE SPRINGS

Existing Recommended

Capital Outlay 
Classification

6 - ANCILLARY RECOMMENDED FOR 
CONTINUED USE

6 - ANCILLARY RECOMMENDED FOR 
CONTINUED USE

Facility Use COUNTY ADMINISTRATION COUNTY ADMINISTRATION

Low Grade COUNTY ADMINISTRATION COUNTY ADMINISTRATION

High Grade COUNTY ADMINISTRATION COUNTY ADMINISTRATION

Comments

Existing
Student Stations 

Added/Reduced(+ or -) Recommended

Perm. Stations 0 0 0

Reloc. Stations 0 0 0

Mod. Stations 0 0 0

Total Stations 0 0 0

Utilization Factor 0% 0%

School Capacity 0 0

COFTE Student 
Membership 0 0

Survey Annotation Renovate Buildings 1-5.

New Site Cost Site 
Expansion

Site 
Development

Site 
Improvement

Remodeling 
Cost

Renovation 
Cost

New 
Construction 

Cost

$0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $2,715,937 $0

Estimated Total Project Cost $2,715,937

Page 432 of 962

DRAFT



HARRIS C LONG 
ADMINISTRATION

Parcel Building Description Total NSF Change In 
Station Count

Calculated 
Cost

Cost Per 
NSF

Cost Per 
Station

Renovation 2026 30 1 Renovating: Apply Painting, Floor 
Cover, Electrical, Plumbing, 
Windows, Lighting, Restrooms, 
HVAC Systems, Bell/Fire Alarm 
Systems, Retrofit for Technology to 
Room 100 (949 NSF), Room 101 
(83 NSF), Room 103 (227 NSF), 
Room 103A (96 NSF), Room 104 
(327 NSF), Room 106 (192 NSF), 
Room 108 (327 NSF), Room 109 
(136 NSF), Room 110 (135 NSF), 
Room 110A (67 NSF), Room 111 
(156 NSF), Room 111A (56 NSF), 
Room 112 (180 NSF), Room 112A 
(64 NSF), Room 113 (154 NSF), 
Room 113A (28 NSF), Room 114 
(135 NSF), Room 115 (174 NSF), 
Room 116 (111 NSF), Room 117 
(181 NSF), Room 118 (174 NSF), 
Room 118A (67 NSF), Room 119 
(135 NSF), Room 119A (28 NSF), 
Room 120 (141 NSF), Room 120A 
(64 NSF), Room 121 (199 NSF), 
Room 121A (36 NSF), Room 122 
(167 NSF), Room 123 (150 NSF), 
Room 124 (340 NSF), Room 126 
(159 NSF), Room 126A (99 NSF), 
Room 127 (226 NSF), Room 128 
(160 NSF)

5,923 0 $704,837 $119 $0

Renovation 2026 30 2 Renovating: Apply Painting, Floor 
Cover, Electrical, Plumbing, 
Windows, Lighting, Restrooms, 
HVAC Systems, Bell/Fire Alarm 
Systems, Retrofit for Technology to 
Room 201 (307 NSF), Room 201A 
(46 NSF), Room 201B (91 NSF), 
Room 201C (11 NSF), Room 202 
(161 NSF), Room 203 (95 NSF)

711 0 $84,609 $119 $0

Renovation 2026 30 3 Renovating: Apply Painting, Floor 
Cover, Electrical, Plumbing, 
Windows, Lighting, Restrooms, 
HVAC Systems, Bell/Fire Alarm 
Systems, Retrofit for Technology to 
Room 300 (1228 NSF), Room 301 
(183 NSF), Room 301A (29 NSF), 
Room 301B (15 NSF), Room 303 
(192 NSF), Room 303A (149 NSF), 
Room 303B (23 NSF), Room 305 
(212 NSF), Room 305A (15 NSF), 
Room 307 (275 NSF), Room 309 
(620 NSF), Room 310 (688 NSF), 
Room 311 (630 NSF), Room 311A 
(90 NSF), Room 311B (163 NSF), 
Room 311C (147 NSF), Room 311D 
(147 NSF), Room 312 (686 NSF), 
Room 313 (399 NSF), Room 313A 
(132 NSF), Room 314 (125 NSF), 
Room 314A (565 NSF), Room 315 
(177 NSF)

6,890 0 $819,910 $119 $0

Page 433 of 962

DRAFT



HARRIS C LONG 
ADMINISTRATION

Parcel Building Description Total NSF Change In 
Station Count

Calculated 
Cost

Cost Per 
NSF

Cost Per 
Station

Renovation 2026 30 4 Renovating: Apply Painting, Floor 
Cover, Electrical, Plumbing, 
Windows, Lighting, Restrooms, 
HVAC Systems, Bell/Fire Alarm 
Systems, Retrofit for Technology to 
Room 401 (270 NSF), Room 402 
(64 NSF), Room 403 (63 NSF), 
Room 404 (90 NSF), Room 404A 
(1305 NSF), Room 404B (18 NSF), 
Room 405A (760 NSF), Room 405B 
(112 NSF), Room 406A (820 NSF), 
Room 406B (155 NSF), Room 406C 
(74 NSF), Room 406D (190 NSF), 
Room 406E (154 NSF), Room 407A 
(184 NSF), Room 407B (187 NSF), 
Room 407C (158 NSF), Room 407D 
(105 NSF), Room 407E (53 NSF), 
Room 408 (22 NSF), Room 409 (99 
NSF), Room 410 (20 NSF), Room 
411 (34 NSF), Room 412 (480 NSF), 
Room 413 (54 NSF), Room 413A 
(48 NSF), Room 414 (247 NSF), 
Room 414A (44 NSF), Room 415 
(105 NSF), Room 416 (1868 NSF), 
Room 417 (146 NSF), Room 418 
(679 NSF)

8,608 0 $1,024,352 $119 $0

Renovation 2026 30 5 Renovating: Apply Painting, Floor 
Cover, Electrical, Plumbing, 
Windows, Lighting, Restrooms, 
HVAC Systems, Bell/Fire Alarm 
Systems, Retrofit for Technology to 
Room 501 (79 NSF), Room 502 (53 
NSF), Room 503 (387 NSF), Room 
504 (172 NSF)

691 0 $82,229 $119 $0

Page 434 of 962

DRAFT



District Name: CLAY COUNTY SCHOOL DISTRICT

Survey: Number 7 - Version 1

Facility Name: J L WILKINSON ELEMENTARY

Address: 4965 COUNTY ROAD 218, MIDDLEBURG

Existing Recommended

Capital Outlay 
Classification

1 - SCHOOL RECOMMENDED FOR 
CONTINUED USE

1 - SCHOOL RECOMMENDED FOR 
CONTINUED USE

Facility Use ELEMENTARY ELEMENTARY

Low Grade PRE-K E S E PRE-K E S E

High Grade GRADE 6 GRADE 6

Comments

Existing
Student Stations 

Added/Reduced(+ or -) Recommended

Perm. Stations 310 50 360

Reloc. Stations 478 -182 296

Mod. Stations 0 0 0

Total Stations 788 -132 656

Utilization Factor 100% 100%

School Capacity 788 656

COFTE Student 
Membership 754 613

Survey Annotation

Re-design and Construct Parent and Bus Pick Up and Drop Off Areas. 
Construct Elementary Covered Play Area, (1) Elem Art, (1) Elem Music, (2) ESE PT and (2) 
ESE FT.
Renovate Buildings 1-5.
Correct Site Drainage Problems.                                 
Construct Additional Covered Walkways Where Needed.   
Remove 9 portables in excess of 20 years of age.
(Other)
District-Wide Recommendations for this facility are: Improve Security Fencing and Lighting.

New Site Cost Site 
Expansion

Site 
Development

Site 
Improvement

Remodeling 
Cost

Renovation 
Cost

New 
Construction 

Cost

$0 $0 $0 $295,000 $84,864 $4,953,096 $1,270,950

Estimated Total Project Cost $6,603,910

J L WILKINSON 
ELEMENTARY

Parcel Building Description Total NSF Change In 
Station Count

Calculated 
Cost

Cost Per 
NSF

Cost Per 
Station

New Construction 2026 New Construction: Adding 1 unit of 
ELEMENTARY COVERED PLAY 
AREA (500 NSF), 1 unit of ART - 
ELEMENTARY (1110 NSF), 1 unit of 
MUSIC - ELEMENTARY (1560 
NSF), 2 units of E S E PART-TIME 
(975 NSF), 2 units of E S E FULL-
TIME (950 NSF)

8,600 50 $1,270,950 $148 $25,419

Page 435 of 962

DRAFT



J L WILKINSON 
ELEMENTARY

Parcel Building Description Total NSF Change In 
Station Count

Calculated 
Cost

Cost Per 
NSF

Cost Per 
Station

Remodeling 2026 29 92 Removed NSF (7072), Added NSF 
(0), Difference NSF (7072), Percent 
(100%), Removed Stations (182), 
Added Stations (0) Remodeling: 
Adding  and Removing Room 005 
(752 NSF), Room 005A (26 NSF), 
Room 007 (743 NSF), Room 007A 
(26 NSF), Room 011 (778 NSF), 
Room 012 (731 NSF), Room 016 
(750 NSF), Room 016A (26 NSF), 
Room 018 (731 NSF), Room 020 
(928 NSF), Room 020A (25 NSF), 
Room 034 (752 NSF), Room 034A 
(26 NSF), Room 043 (752 NSF), 
Room 043A (26 NSF)

-7,072 -182 $84,864 $12 $0

Renovation 2026 29 1 Renovating: Apply Painting, Floor 
Cover, Electrical, Plumbing, 
Windows, Lighting, Restrooms, 
HVAC Systems, Bell/Fire Alarm 
Systems, Retrofit for Technology to 
Room 101 (342 NSF), Room 102 
(247 NSF), Room 102A (29 NSF), 
Room 103 (235 NSF), Room 104 
(182 NSF), Room 105A (133 NSF), 
Room 105B (54 NSF), Room 106 
(253 NSF), Room 107 (281 NSF), 
Room 107A (34 NSF), Room 107B 
(33 NSF), Room 108 (457 NSF), 
Room 109 (78 NSF), Room 110 (140 
NSF), Room 111 (141 NSF), Room 
112 (126 NSF), Room 113 (291 
NSF), Room 114 (137 NSF), Room 
115 (45 NSF), Room 116 (69 NSF), 
Room 117 (65 NSF), Room 118 (100 
NSF), Room 119 (564 NSF), Room 
120 (281 NSF), Room 121 (77 NSF), 
Room 122 (356 NSF), Room 123 
(85 NSF), Room 124 (183 NSF), 
Room 125 (272 NSF), Room 126 
(48 NSF), Room 127 (235 NSF), 
Room 128 (150 NSF), Room 129 
(147 NSF), Room 131 (174 NSF), 
Room 132 (87 NSF), Room 133 
(450 NSF), Room 134 (156 NSF), 
Room 135 (138 NSF), Room 136 
(159 NSF), Room 137 (372 NSF), 
Room 138 (444 NSF), Room 139 
(148 NSF), Room 140 (3121 NSF), 
Room 142 (584 NSF), Room 143 
(371 NSF), Room 144 (241 NSF), 
Room 145 (305 NSF)

12,620 0 $1,161,040 $92 $0

Page 436 of 962

DRAFT



J L WILKINSON 
ELEMENTARY

Parcel Building Description Total NSF Change In 
Station Count

Calculated 
Cost

Cost Per 
NSF

Cost Per 
Station

Renovation 2026 29 2 Renovating: Apply Painting, Floor 
Cover, Electrical, Plumbing, 
Windows, Lighting, Restrooms, 
HVAC Systems, Bell/Fire Alarm 
Systems, Retrofit for Technology to 
Room 201 (3780 NSF), Room 201A 
(1706 NSF), Room 202 (170 NSF), 
Room 203 (60 NSF), Room 205 
(283 NSF), Room 206 (72 NSF), 
Room 207 (184 NSF), Room 208 
(458 NSF), Room 209 (611 NSF), 
Room 210 (184 NSF), Room 211 (72 
NSF), Room 212 (282 NSF), Room 
213 (66 NSF), Room 214 (60 NSF), 
Room 215 (1000 NSF), Room 216 
(408 NSF), Room 217 (638 NSF), 
Room 218 (112 NSF), Room 219 
(1121 NSF), Room 220 (225 NSF), 
Room 221 (100 NSF), Room 222 
(127 NSF), Room 223 (113 NSF), 
Room 224 (114 NSF), Room 225 
(218 NSF), Room 226 (307 NSF), 
Room 227 (15 NSF), Room 228 (73 
NSF), Room 229 (39 NSF), Room 
230 (81 NSF), Room 231 (228 NSF), 
Room 232 (93 NSF), Room 234 
(608 NSF), Room 235 (33 NSF)

13,641 0 $1,254,972 $92 $0

Renovation 2026 29 3 Renovating: Apply Painting, Floor 
Cover, Electrical, Plumbing, 
Windows, Lighting, Restrooms, 
HVAC Systems, Bell/Fire Alarm 
Systems, Retrofit for Technology to 
Room 300 (783 NSF), Room 301 
(827 NSF), Room 302 (219 NSF), 
Room 303 (108 NSF), Room 304 
(32 NSF), Room 305 (827 NSF), 
Room 306 (104 NSF), Room 307 
(32 NSF), Room 308 (122 NSF), 
Room 309 (118 NSF), Room 310 
(910 NSF), Room 311 (203 NSF), 
Room 312 (97 NSF), Room 312A 
(37 NSF), Room 312B (62 NSF), 
Room 312C (60 NSF), Room 312D 
(29 NSF), Room 313 (189 NSF), 
Room 314 (911 NSF), Room 315 (33 
NSF)

5,703 0 $524,676 $92 $0

Renovation 2026 29 4 Renovating: Apply Painting, Floor 
Cover, Electrical, Plumbing, 
Windows, Lighting, Restrooms, 
HVAC Systems, Bell/Fire Alarm 
Systems, Retrofit for Technology to 
Room 400 (1135 NSF), Room 401 
(989 NSF), Room 402 (176 NSF), 
Room 403 (121 NSF), Room 404 
(28 NSF), Room 405 (989 NSF), 
Room 406 (112 NSF), Room 407 (28 
NSF), Room 408 (989 NSF), Room 
409 (176 NSF), Room 410 (112 
NSF), Room 411 (28 NSF), Room 
412 (980 NSF), Room 413 (112 
NSF), Room 414 (28 NSF), Room 
415 (989 NSF), Room 416 (134 
NSF), Room 417 (112 NSF), Room 
418 (28 NSF), Room 419 (134 NSF), 
Room 420 (989 NSF), Room 421 
(112 NSF), Room 422 (28 NSF), 
Room 423 (812 NSF), Room 424 
(543 NSF), Room 425 (57 NSF), 
Room 426 (80 NSF), Room 427 (49 
NSF), Room 428 (543 NSF), Room 
429 (57 NSF), Room 430 (28 NSF), 
Room 431 (29 NSF)

10,727 0 $986,884 $92 $0

Page 437 of 962

DRAFT



J L WILKINSON 
ELEMENTARY

Parcel Building Description Total NSF Change In 
Station Count

Calculated 
Cost

Cost Per 
NSF

Cost Per 
Station

Renovation 2026 29 5 Renovating: Apply Painting, Floor 
Cover, Electrical, Plumbing, 
Windows, Lighting, Restrooms, 
HVAC Systems, Bell/Fire Alarm 
Systems, Retrofit for Technology to 
Room 500 (1504 NSF), Room 501 
(930 NSF), Room 502 (176 NSF), 
Room 503 (106 NSF), Room 504 
(28 NSF), Room 505 (984 NSF), 
Room 506 (106 NSF), Room 507 
(28 NSF), Room 508 (920 NSF), 
Room 509 (176 NSF), Room 510 
(106 NSF), Room 511 (28 NSF), 
Room 512 (984 NSF), Room 513 
(106 NSF), Room 514 (28 NSF), 
Room 515 (984 NSF), Room 516 
(176 NSF), Room 517 (106 NSF), 
Room 518 (28 NSF), Room 519 
(176 NSF), Room 520 (984 NSF), 
Room 521 (106 NSF), Room 522 
(28 NSF), Room 523 (984 NSF), 
Room 524 (106 NSF), Room 525 
(28 NSF), Room 526 (35 NSF), 
Room 527 (35 NSF), Room 528 
(984 NSF), Room 529 (106 NSF), 
Room 530 (28 NSF), Room 531 (43 
NSF)

11,147 0 $1,025,524 $92 $0

Page 438 of 962

DRAFT



District Name: CLAY COUNTY SCHOOL DISTRICT

Survey: Number 7 - Version 1

Facility Name: JACK L WILKINSON JUNIOR HIGH

Address: 5025 STATE ROAD 218, MIDDLEBURG

Existing Recommended

Capital Outlay 
Classification

1 - SCHOOL RECOMMENDED FOR 
CONTINUED USE

1 - SCHOOL RECOMMENDED FOR 
CONTINUED USE

Facility Use MIDDLE JUNIOR HIGH

Low Grade GRADE 7 GRADE 7

High Grade GRADE 8 GRADE 8

Comments

Existing
Student Stations 

Added/Reduced(+ or -) Recommended

Perm. Stations 674 0 674

Reloc. Stations 162 -118 44

Mod. Stations 0 0 0

Total Stations 836 -118 718

Utilization Factor 90% 90%

School Capacity 752 646

COFTE Student 
Membership 735 602

Survey Annotation

Renovate Buildings 1-9.                                                                   Correct Site Drainage 
Problems.                                 
Construct Additional Covered Walkways Where Needed.   
Remove 6 portables in excess of 20 years of age.
(Other)
District-Wide Recommendations for this facility are: Improve Security Fencing and Lighting.

New Site Cost Site 
Expansion

Site 
Development

Site 
Improvement

Remodeling 
Cost

Renovation 
Cost

New 
Construction 

Cost

$0 $0 $0 $45,000 $54,204 $10,560,365 $0

Estimated Total Project Cost $10,659,569

JACK L WILKINSON 
JUNIOR HIGH

Parcel Building Description Total NSF Change In 
Station Count

Calculated 
Cost

Cost Per 
NSF

Cost Per 
Station

Remodeling 2026 20 92 Removed NSF (4517), Added NSF 
(0), Difference NSF (4517), Percent 
(100%), Removed Stations (118), 
Added Stations (0) Remodeling: 
Adding  and Removing Room 002 
(729 NSF), Room 003 (734 NSF), 
Room 004 (729 NSF), Room 005 
(750 NSF), Room 005A (25 NSF), 
Room 007 (750 NSF), Room 007A 
(25 NSF), Room 009 (750 NSF), 
Room 009A (25 NSF)

-4,517 -118 $54,204 $12 $0

Page 439 of 962

DRAFT



JACK L WILKINSON 
JUNIOR HIGH

Parcel Building Description Total NSF Change In 
Station Count

Calculated 
Cost

Cost Per 
NSF

Cost Per 
Station

Renovation 2026 20 1 Renovating: Apply Painting, Floor 
Cover, Electrical, Plumbing, 
Windows, Lighting, Restrooms, 
HVAC Systems, Bell/Fire Alarm 
Systems, Retrofit for Technology to 
Room 101 (187 NSF), Room 102 
(133 NSF), Room 103 (191 NSF), 
Room 104 (137 NSF), Room 105 
(30 NSF), Room 106 (28 NSF), 
Room 108 (126 NSF), Room 109 
(126 NSF), Room 110 (126 NSF), 
Room 111 (136 NSF), Room 112 
(165 NSF), Room 113 (206 NSF), 
Room 114 (42 NSF), Room 115 (23 
NSF), Room 116 (6 NSF), Room 117 
(253 NSF), Room 118 (156 NSF), 
Room 119 (52 NSF), Room 120 (44 
NSF), Room 122 (193 NSF), Room 
122A (10 NSF), Room 125 (176 
NSF), Room 126 (570 NSF), Room 
127 (109 NSF), Room 128 (83 NSF), 
Room 129 (23 NSF), Room 130 (27 
NSF), Room 131 (128 NSF), Room 
132 (94 NSF), Room 133 (78 NSF), 
Room 134 (75 NSF), Room 135 
(216 NSF), Room 136 (120 NSF), 
Room 137 (122 NSF), Room 138 
(226 NSF)

4,417 0 $472,619 $107 $0

Renovation 2026 20 2 Renovating: Apply Painting, Floor 
Cover, Electrical, Plumbing, 
Windows, Lighting, Restrooms, 
HVAC Systems, Bell/Fire Alarm 
Systems, Retrofit for Technology to 
Room 200 (435 NSF), Room 201 
(224 NSF), Room 202 (215 NSF), 
Room 203 (508 NSF), Room 204 
(141 NSF), Room 205 (179 NSF), 
Room 206 (26 NSF), Room 207 
(350 NSF), Room 208 (350 NSF), 
Room 209 (1329 NSF), Room 209A 
(131 NSF), Room 209B (101 NSF), 
Room 211 (4432 NSF), Room 213 
(22 NSF), Room 214 (26 NSF), 
Room 215 (93 NSF), Room 216 
(137 NSF), Room 217 (21 NSF), 
Room 218 (25 NSF), Room 219 (93 
NSF), Room 220 (157 NSF), Room 
221 (767 NSF)

9,762 0 $1,044,534 $107 $0

Renovation 2026 20 3 Renovating: Apply Painting, Floor 
Cover, Electrical, Plumbing, 
Windows, Lighting, Restrooms, 
HVAC Systems, Bell/Fire Alarm 
Systems, Retrofit for Technology to 
Room 301 (4476 NSF), Room 302 
(226 NSF), Room 303 (188 NSF), 
Room 304 (496 NSF), Room 305 
(145 NSF), Room 306 (36 NSF), 
Room 307 (36 NSF), Room 308 
(234 NSF), Room 309 (569 NSF), 
Room 310 (305 NSF), Room 311 
(353 NSF), Room 312 (169 NSF), 
Room 313 (160 NSF), Room 314A 
(132 NSF), Room 314B (78 NSF), 
Room 315 (421 NSF), Room 316 
(250 NSF), Room 317 (709 NSF), 
Room 318 (101 NSF), Room 319 
(721 NSF), Room 320 (553 NSF), 
Room 321 (270 NSF), Room 322 
(258 NSF), Room 323 (693 NSF), 
Room 324 (87 NSF), Room 325 (47 
NSF), Room 326 (93 NSF), Room 
327 (35 NSF)

11,841 0 $1,266,987 $107 $0

Page 440 of 962

DRAFT



JACK L WILKINSON 
JUNIOR HIGH

Parcel Building Description Total NSF Change In 
Station Count

Calculated 
Cost

Cost Per 
NSF

Cost Per 
Station

Renovation 2026 20 4 Renovating: Apply Painting, Floor 
Cover, Electrical, Plumbing, 
Windows, Lighting, Restrooms, 
HVAC Systems, Bell/Fire Alarm 
Systems, Retrofit for Technology to 
Room 401 (884 NSF), Room 402 
(48 NSF), Room 403A (365 NSF), 
Room 403B (180 NSF), Room 403C 
(142 NSF), Room 403D (198 NSF), 
Room 404 (50 NSF), Room 405 
(884 NSF), Room 406 (61 NSF), 
Room 407 (882 NSF), Room 408 
(62 NSF), Room 409 (96 NSF), 
Room 410 (96 NSF), Room 411 (62 
NSF), Room 412 (882 NSF), Room 
413 (63 NSF), Room 414 (882 NSF), 
Room 415 (48 NSF), Room 416 
(882 NSF), Room 417 (48 NSF), 
Room 418 (882 NSF)

7,697 0 $823,579 $107 $0

Renovation 2026 20 5 Renovating: Apply Painting, Floor 
Cover, Electrical, Plumbing, 
Windows, Lighting, Restrooms, 
HVAC Systems, Bell/Fire Alarm 
Systems, Retrofit for Technology to 
Room 500 (1430 NSF), Room 501 
(91 NSF), Room 502 (98 NSF), 
Room 503 (91 NSF), Room 504 
(1578 NSF), Room 505 (132 NSF), 
Room 506 (229 NSF), Room 507 
(152 NSF), Room 508 (1840 NSF), 
Room 509 (361 NSF), Room 510 
(240 NSF), Room 511 (87 NSF)

6,329 0 $677,203 $107 $0

Renovation 2026 20 6 Renovating: Apply Painting, Floor 
Cover, Electrical, Plumbing, 
Windows, Lighting, Restrooms, 
HVAC Systems, Bell/Fire Alarm 
Systems, Retrofit for Technology to 
Room 600 (2757 NSF), Room 601 
(208 NSF), Room 602 (208 NSF), 
Room 603 (97 NSF), Room 604 (62 
NSF), Room 605 (138 NSF), Room 
606 (310 NSF), Room 607 (876 
NSF), Room 608 (616 NSF), Room 
609 (578 NSF), Room 610 (96 NSF), 
Room 611 (205 NSF), Room 612 
(170 NSF), Room 613 (26 NSF), 
Room 614 (25 NSF)

6,372 0 $681,804 $107 $0

Page 441 of 962

DRAFT



JACK L WILKINSON 
JUNIOR HIGH

Parcel Building Description Total NSF Change In 
Station Count

Calculated 
Cost

Cost Per 
NSF

Cost Per 
Station

Renovation 2026 20 7 Renovating: Apply Painting, Floor 
Cover, Electrical, Plumbing, 
Windows, Lighting, Restrooms, 
HVAC Systems, Bell/Fire Alarm 
Systems, Retrofit for Technology to 
Room 701 (914 NSF), Room 702 
(914 NSF), Room 703 (11 NSF), 
Room 704 (11 NSF), Room 705 (11 
NSF), Room 705A (67 NSF), Room 
706 (100 NSF), Room 707 (23 NSF), 
Room 708 (40 NSF), Room 709 
(209 NSF), Room 710 (27 NSF), 
Room 711 (80 NSF), Room 712 (80 
NSF), Room 713 (199 NSF), Room 
714 (199 NSF), Room 715 (914 
NSF), Room 716 (962 NSF), Room 
717 (57 NSF), Room 718 (27 NSF), 
Room 719 (43 NSF), Room 720 (49 
NSF), Room 721 (57 NSF), Room 
722 (144 NSF), Room 724 (11 NSF), 
Room 725 (107 NSF), Room 726 
(90 NSF), Room 727 (11 NSF), 
Room 728 (265 NSF), Room 729 
(497 NSF), Room 730 (156 NSF), 
Room 731 (115 NSF), Room 732 (44 
NSF), Room 733 (958 NSF), Room 
734 (24 NSF), Room 735 (1048 
NSF), Room 736 (32 NSF), Room 
738 (2295 NSF), Room 739 (1106 
NSF), Room 740 (32 NSF), Room 
741 (11 NSF), Room 742 (1106 
NSF), Room 743 (139 NSF), Room 
743A (16 NSF), Room 744 (168 
NSF), Room 745 (81 NSF), Room 
746 (81 NSF), Room 747 (168 NSF), 
Room 748 (139 NSF), Room 748A 
(16 NSF), Room 749 (1226 NSF), 
Room 750 (11 NSF), Room 751 (81 
NSF), Room 752 (11 NSF), Room 
753 (139 NSF), Room 753A (16 
NSF), Room 754 (139 NSF), Room 
754A (16 NSF), Room 755 (11 NSF), 
Room 756 (81 NSF), Room 757 
(1226 NSF), Room 758 (1226 NSF), 
Room 759 (11 NSF), Room 760 
(1226 NSF), Room 761 (139 NSF), 
Room 761A (16 NSF), Room 762 
(168 NSF), Room 763 (81 NSF), 
Room 764 (81 NSF), Room 765 
(168 NSF), Room 766 (81 NSF), 
Room 767 (1106 NSF), Room 768 
(139 NSF), Room 768A (16 NSF), 
Room 769 (81 NSF), Room 770 (16 
NSF), Room 771 (139 NSF), Room 
771A (16 NSF), Room 772 (11 NSF), 
Room 773 (11 NSF), Room 774 (139 
NSF), Room 774A (16 NSF), Room 
775 (1265 NSF), Room 775A (50 
NSF), Room 776 (1106 NSF), Room 
777 (11 NSF), Room 779 (58 NSF), 
Room 780 (1265 NSF), Room 780A 
(50 NSF), Room 781 (148 NSF), 
Room 782 (11 NSF), Room 783 (106 
NSF), Room 784 (58 NSF), Room 
785 (140 NSF), Room 786 (148 
NSF), Room 787 (161 NSF), Room 
788 (106 NSF), Room 789 (155 
NSF), Room 790 (137 NSF), Room 
791 (278 NSF), Room 792 (140 
NSF), Room 794 (161 NSF), Room 
796 (278 NSF)

27,530 0 $2,945,710 $107 $0

Page 442 of 962

DRAFT



JACK L WILKINSON 
JUNIOR HIGH

Parcel Building Description Total NSF Change In 
Station Count

Calculated 
Cost

Cost Per 
NSF

Cost Per 
Station

Renovation 2026 20 8 Renovating: Apply Painting, Floor 
Cover, Electrical, Plumbing, 
Windows, Lighting, Restrooms, 
HVAC Systems, Bell/Fire Alarm 
Systems, Retrofit for Technology to 
Room 801 (502 NSF), Room 802 
(50 NSF), Room 803 (50 NSF), 
Room 804 (1208 NSF), Room 805 
(157 NSF), Room 806 (105 NSF), 
Room 807 (154 NSF), Room 808 
(110 NSF), Room 809 (419 NSF), 
Room 810 (304 NSF), Room 811 
(110 NSF), Room 812 (70 NSF), 
Room 813 (56 NSF), Room 814 
(1985 NSF), Room 815 (188 NSF), 
Room 816 (109 NSF), Room 817 
(57 NSF), Room 818 (305 NSF), 
Room 819 (119 NSF), Room 820 (20 
NSF), Room 821 (70 NSF), Room 
822 (425 NSF), Room 823 (190 
NSF), Room 824 (167 NSF), Room 
825 (150 NSF), Room 826 (97 NSF), 
Room 827 (118 NSF), Room 828 
(189 NSF), Room 829 (80 NSF), 
Room 830 (149 NSF)

7,713 0 $825,291 $107 $0

Renovation 2026 20 9 Renovating: Apply Painting, Floor 
Cover, Electrical, Plumbing, 
Windows, Lighting, Restrooms, 
HVAC Systems, Bell/Fire Alarm 
Systems, Retrofit for Technology to 
Room 901 (9568 NSF), Room 901A 
(153 NSF), Room 901B (149 NSF), 
Room 903 (161 NSF), Room 904 
(22 NSF), Room 905 (348 NSF), 
Room 906 (946 NSF), Room 906A 
(176 NSF), Room 906B (126 NSF), 
Room 906C (237 NSF), Room 906D 
(339 NSF), Room 906E (52 NSF), 
Room 910 (201 NSF), Room 911 (35 
NSF), Room 912 (361 NSF), Room 
913 (3 NSF), Room 915 (201 NSF), 
Room 916 (35 NSF), Room 917 
(1034 NSF), Room 917A (142 NSF), 
Room 917B (113 NSF), Room 917C 
(149 NSF), Room 917D (267 NSF), 
Room 917E (32 NSF), Room 921 
(312 NSF), Room 922 (192 NSF), 
Room 922A (33 NSF), Room 923 
(34 NSF), Room 924 (187 NSF), 
Room 924A (21 NSF), Room 950 
(59 NSF), Room 950A (81 NSF), 
Room 951 (70 NSF), Room 952 
(1195 NSF)

17,034 0 $1,822,638 $107 $0

Page 443 of 962

DRAFT



District Name: CLAY COUNTY SCHOOL DISTRICT

Survey: Number 7 - Version 1

Facility Name: KEYSTONE HEIGHTS ELEMENTARY

Address: 335 S PECAN STREET, KEYSTONE HEIGHTS

Existing Recommended

Capital Outlay 
Classification

1 - SCHOOL RECOMMENDED FOR 
CONTINUED USE

1 - SCHOOL RECOMMENDED FOR 
CONTINUED USE

Facility Use ELEMENTARY ELEMENTARY

Low Grade PRE-K E S E PRE-K E S E

High Grade GRADE 6 GRADE 6

Comments

Existing
Student Stations 

Added/Reduced(+ or -) Recommended

Perm. Stations 512 0 512

Reloc. Stations 384 -108 276

Mod. Stations 0 0 0

Total Stations 896 -108 788

Utilization Factor 100% 100%

School Capacity 896 788

COFTE Student 
Membership 836 710

Survey Annotation

Previously approved in Survey 6.2:                             
Renovate Buildings 1-12.
Construct Elementary Covered Play Area                                  Expand Kitchen and Food 
Prep Area.                               
Construct Additional Covered Walkways Where Needed.   Correct Site Drainage Problems.   
Remove 6 portables in excess of 20 years of age.
(Other)
District-Wide Recommendations for this facility are: Improve Security Fencing and Lighting.

New Site Cost Site 
Expansion

Site 
Development

Site 
Improvement

Remodeling 
Cost

Renovation 
Cost

New 
Construction 

Cost

$0 $0 $0 $45,000 $55,176 $6,554,540 $408,600

Estimated Total Project Cost $7,063,316

KEYSTONE HEIGHTS 
ELEMENTARY

Parcel Building Description Total NSF Change In 
Station Count

Calculated 
Cost

Cost Per 
NSF

Cost Per 
Station

New Construction 2026 New Construction: Adding 1 unit of 
ELEMENTARY COVERED PLAY 
AREA (500 NSF)

500 0 $138,000 $276 $0

New Construction 2026 New Construction: Adding 1 unit of 
KITCHEN & SERVING AREA (1100 
NSF)

1,100 0 $270,600 $246 $0

Page 444 of 962

DRAFT



KEYSTONE HEIGHTS 
ELEMENTARY

Parcel Building Description Total NSF Change In 
Station Count

Calculated 
Cost

Cost Per 
NSF

Cost Per 
Station

Remodeling 2026 13 92 Removed NSF (4598), Added NSF 
(0), Difference NSF (4598), Percent 
(100%), Removed Stations (108), 
Added Stations (0) Remodeling: 
Adding  and Removing Room 701 
(790 NSF), Room 702 (715 NSF), 
Room 702A (25 NSF), Room 703 
(715 NSF), Room 703A (25 NSF), 
Room 704 (754 NSF), Room 704A 
(25 NSF), Room 712 (744 NSF), 
Room 712A (26 NSF), Room 774 
(754 NSF), Room 774A (25 NSF)

-4,598 -108 $55,176 $12 $0

Renovation 2026 13 1 Renovating: Apply Painting, Floor 
Cover, Electrical, Plumbing, 
Windows, Lighting, Restrooms, 
HVAC Systems, Bell/Fire Alarm 
Systems, Retrofit for Technology to 
Room 001 (1119 NSF), Room 003 
(13 NSF), Room 004 (38 NSF), 
Room 005 (8 NSF), Room 006 (4 
NSF), Room 011 (133 NSF), Room 
012 (28 NSF), Room 013 (53 NSF), 
Room 014 (23 NSF), Room 015 (23 
NSF)

1,442 0 $132,664 $92 $0

Renovation 2026 13 2 Renovating: Apply Painting, Floor 
Cover, Electrical, Plumbing, 
Windows, Lighting, Restrooms, 
HVAC Systems, Bell/Fire Alarm 
Systems, Retrofit for Technology to 
Room 201 (222 NSF), Room 202 
(28 NSF), Room 203 (30 NSF), 
Room 204 (264 NSF), Room 205 
(506 NSF), Room 206 (155 NSF), 
Room 207 (167 NSF), Room 208 
(34 NSF), Room 209 (66 NSF), 
Room 211 (34 NSF), Room 212 (21 
NSF), Room 213 (993 NSF), Room 
214 (123 NSF), Room 215 (121 
NSF), Room 215A (42 NSF), Room 
215B (42 NSF), Room 216 (3093 
NSF), Room 217 (149 NSF), Room 
218 (1408 NSF), Room 219 (197 
NSF), Room 220 (27 NSF), Room 
221 (11 NSF), Room 222 (54 NSF), 
Room 223 (74 NSF), Room 224 (93 
NSF), Room 225 (149 NSF), Room 
226 (149 NSF), Room 227 (176 
NSF), Room 228 (97 NSF), Room 
229 (453 NSF), Room 230 (420 
NSF), Room 231 (232 NSF), Room 
231A (42 NSF), Room 231B (42 
NSF), Room 232 (475 NSF), Room 
233 (448 NSF), Room 234 (233 
NSF), Room 234A (37 NSF), Room 
235 (317 NSF), Room 236 (363 
NSF), Room 237 (363 NSF), Room 
238 (127 NSF), Room 239 (127 
NSF), Room 240 (224 NSF), Room 
240A (128 NSF), Room 241 (523 
NSF), Room 241A (42 NSF), Room 
241B (42 NSF), Room 242 (238 
NSF), Room 243 (230 NSF), Room 
244 (256 NSF), Room 244A (48 
NSF), Room 245 (46 NSF), Room 
246 (240 NSF), Room 246A (181 
NSF), Room 246B (52 NSF), Room 
246C (51 NSF), Room 247 (358 
NSF), Room 248 (126 NSF), Room 
249 (249 NSF), Room 249A (59 
NSF)

15,297 0 $1,407,324 $92 $0

Page 445 of 962

DRAFT



KEYSTONE HEIGHTS 
ELEMENTARY

Parcel Building Description Total NSF Change In 
Station Count

Calculated 
Cost

Cost Per 
NSF

Cost Per 
Station

Renovation 2026 13 3 Renovating: Apply Painting, Floor 
Cover, Electrical, Plumbing, 
Windows, Lighting, Restrooms, 
HVAC Systems, Bell/Fire Alarm 
Systems, Retrofit for Technology to 
Room 001 (813 NSF), Room 002 
(806 NSF), Room 020 (27 NSF), 
Room 021 (27 NSF), Room 022 
(120 NSF), Room 023 (120 NSF)

1,913 0 $175,996 $92 $0

Renovation 2026 13 4 Renovating: Apply Painting, Floor 
Cover, Electrical, Plumbing, 
Windows, Lighting, Restrooms, 
HVAC Systems, Bell/Fire Alarm 
Systems, Retrofit for Technology to 
Room 424 (295 NSF), Room 424A 
(39 NSF), Room 424B (14 NSF), 
Room 425 (569 NSF), Room 426 
(755 NSF), Room 427 (143 NSF), 
Room 428 (110 NSF)

1,925 0 $177,100 $92 $0

Renovation 2026 13 5 Renovating: Apply Painting, Floor 
Cover, Electrical, Plumbing, 
Windows, Lighting, Restrooms, 
HVAC Systems, Bell/Fire Alarm 
Systems, Retrofit for Technology to 
Room 003 (845 NSF), Room 004 
(845 NSF), Room 031 (63 NSF), 
Room 032 (63 NSF), Room 033 (91 
NSF)

1,907 0 $175,444 $92 $0

Renovation 2026 13 6 Renovating: Apply Painting, Floor 
Cover, Electrical, Plumbing, 
Windows, Lighting, Restrooms, 
HVAC Systems, Bell/Fire Alarm 
Systems, Retrofit for Technology to 
Room 005 (756 NSF), Room 006 
(756 NSF), Room 036 (63 NSF), 
Room 037 (63 NSF), Room 038 (91 
NSF)

1,729 0 $159,068 $92 $0

Renovation 2026 13 7 Renovating: Apply Painting, Floor 
Cover, Electrical, Plumbing, 
Windows, Lighting, Restrooms, 
HVAC Systems, Bell/Fire Alarm 
Systems, Retrofit for Technology to 
Room 009 (845 NSF), Room 010 
(845 NSF), Room 011 (845 NSF), 
Room 012 (845 NSF), Room 013 
(845 NSF), Room 014 (845 NSF), 
Room 015 (845 NSF), Room 041 
(99 NSF), Room 042 (99 NSF), 
Room 043 (132 NSF)

6,245 0 $574,540 $92 $0

Renovation 2026 13 8 Renovating: Apply Painting, Floor 
Cover, Electrical, Plumbing, 
Windows, Lighting, Restrooms, 
HVAC Systems, Bell/Fire Alarm 
Systems, Retrofit for Technology to 
Room 007 (845 NSF), Room 008 
(845 NSF)

1,690 0 $155,480 $92 $0

Page 446 of 962

DRAFT



KEYSTONE HEIGHTS 
ELEMENTARY

Parcel Building Description Total NSF Change In 
Station Count

Calculated 
Cost

Cost Per 
NSF

Cost Per 
Station

Renovation 2026 13 9 Renovating: Apply Painting, Floor 
Cover, Electrical, Plumbing, 
Windows, Lighting, Restrooms, 
HVAC Systems, Bell/Fire Alarm 
Systems, Retrofit for Technology to 
Room 901 (3663 NSF), Room 903 
(177 NSF), Room 904 (133 NSF), 
Room 905 (346 NSF), Room 906 
(149 NSF), Room 907 (327 NSF), 
Room 908 (240 NSF), Room 909 
(184 NSF), Room 910 (35 NSF), 
Room 911 (35 NSF), Room 912 (79 
NSF), Room 913 (32 NSF), Room 
914 (102 NSF), Room 915 (139 
NSF), Room 916 (131 NSF), Room 
918 (683 NSF), Room 919 (513 
NSF), Room 920 (683 NSF), Room 
921 (130 NSF), Room 922 (137 
NSF), Room 923 (33 NSF), Room 
924 (108 NSF)

8,059 0 $741,428 $92 $0

Renovation 2026 13 10 Renovating: Apply Painting, Floor 
Cover, Electrical, Plumbing, 
Windows, Lighting, Restrooms, 
HVAC Systems, Bell/Fire Alarm 
Systems, Retrofit for Technology to 
Room 020A (25 NSF), Room 020B 
(57 NSF), Room 020C (78 NSF), 
Room 020D (39 NSF), Room 020E 
(39 NSF), Room 020F (44 NSF), 
Room 020G (44 NSF), Room 020H 
(85 NSF), Room 020J (57 NSF), 
Room 020K (25 NSF), Room 020L 
(651 NSF), Room 020M (620 NSF), 
Room 020N (1404 NSF), Room 021 
(992 NSF), Room 021A (118 NSF), 
Room 021B (84 NSF), Room 021C 
(31 NSF), Room 022 (992 NSF), 
Room 022A (118 NSF), Room 022B 
(84 NSF), Room 022C (31 NSF), 
Room 023 (992 NSF), Room 023B 
(84 NSF), Room 023C (31 NSF), 
Room 024 (992 NSF), Room 024B 
(84 NSF), Room 024C (31 NSF), 
Room 025 (992 NSF), Room 025A 
(118 NSF), Room 025B (80 NSF), 
Room 025C (31 NSF), Room 026 
(992 NSF), Room 026A (118 NSF), 
Room 026B (76 NSF), Room 026C 
(31 NSF), Room 027 (992 NSF), 
Room 027B (100 NSF), Room 027C 
(31 NSF), Room 028 (992 NSF), 
Room 028B (100 NSF), Room 028C 
(31 NSF), Room 029 (992 NSF), 
Room 029A (112 NSF), Room 029B 
(100 NSF), Room 029C (31 NSF), 
Room 030 (992 NSF), Room 030A 
(112 NSF), Room 030B (100 NSF), 
Room 030C (31 NSF), Room 031 
(992 NSF), Room 031B (100 NSF), 
Room 031C (31 NSF), Room 032 
(992 NSF), Room 032B (100 NSF), 
Room 032C (31 NSF)

17,232 0 $1,585,344 $92 $0

Renovation 2026 13 11 Renovating: Apply Painting, Floor 
Cover, Electrical, Plumbing, 
Windows, Lighting, Restrooms, 
HVAC Systems, Bell/Fire Alarm 
Systems, Retrofit for Technology to 
Room 1101 (80 NSF), Room 1102 
(127 NSF), Room 1103 (127 NSF), 
Room 1104 (60 NSF), Room 1105 
(1095 NSF), Room 1106 (60 NSF), 
Room 1107 (127 NSF), Room 1108 
(127 NSF), Room 1109 (60 NSF), 
Room 1110 (1095 NSF)

2,958 0 $272,136 $92 $0

Page 447 of 962

DRAFT



KEYSTONE HEIGHTS 
ELEMENTARY

Parcel Building Description Total NSF Change In 
Station Count

Calculated 
Cost

Cost Per 
NSF

Cost Per 
Station

Renovation 2026 13 12 Renovating: Apply Painting, Floor 
Cover, Electrical, Plumbing, 
Windows, Lighting, Restrooms, 
HVAC Systems, Bell/Fire Alarm 
Systems, Retrofit for Technology to 
Room 100 (1047 NSF), Room 1201 
(7706 NSF), Room 1202 (452 NSF), 
Room 1203 (167 NSF), Room 1204 
(205 NSF), Room 1205 (163 NSF), 
Room 1206 (315 NSF), Room 1207 
(170 NSF), Room 1208 (164 NSF), 
Room 1209 (33 NSF), Room 1210 
(426 NSF)

10,848 0 $998,016 $92 $0

Page 448 of 962

DRAFT



District Name: CLAY COUNTY SCHOOL DISTRICT

Survey: Number 7 - Version 1

Facility Name: KEYSTONE HEIGHTS JUNIOR/SENIOR HIGH

Address: 900 SW ORCHID AVENUE, KEYSTONE HEIGHTS

Existing Recommended

Capital Outlay 
Classification

1 - SCHOOL RECOMMENDED FOR 
CONTINUED USE

1 - SCHOOL RECOMMENDED FOR 
CONTINUED USE

Facility Use COMBINATION COMBINATION

Low Grade GRADE 7 GRADE 7

High Grade GRADE 12 GRADE 12

Comments

Existing
Student Stations 

Added/Reduced(+ or -) Recommended

Perm. Stations 817 0 817

Reloc. Stations 713 -225 488

Mod. Stations 0 0 0

Total Stations 1,530 -225 1305

Utilization Factor 90% 90%

School Capacity 1,377 1174

COFTE Student 
Membership 1,010 1,124

Survey Annotation

Renovate Buildings 1, 2, 4, 5, 6, 18, 20.
Correct Site Drainage Problems.                                 
Construct Additional Covered Walkways Where Needed.   
Remove 10 portables in excess of 20 years of age.
(Other)
District-Wide Recommendations for this facility are: Improve Security Fencing and Lighting.

New Site Cost Site 
Expansion

Site 
Development

Site 
Improvement

Remodeling 
Cost

Renovation 
Cost

New 
Construction 

Cost

$0 $0 $0 $45,000 $90,396 $9,980,292 $0

Estimated Total Project Cost $10,115,688

Page 449 of 962

DRAFT



KEYSTONE HEIGHTS 
JUNIOR/SENIOR HIGH

Parcel Building Description Total NSF Change In 
Station Count

Calculated 
Cost

Cost Per 
NSF

Cost Per 
Station

Remodeling 2026 14 92 Removed NSF (7533), Added NSF 
(0), Difference NSF (7533), Percent 
(100%), Removed Stations (225), 
Added Stations (0) Remodeling: 
Adding  and Removing Room 026 
(750 NSF), Room 026A (25 NSF), 
Room 052 (705 NSF), Room 052A 
(23 NSF), Room 054 (749 NSF), 
Room 054A (26 NSF), Room 059 
(740 NSF), Room 061 (740 NSF), 
Room 063 (710 NSF), Room 063A 
(30 NSF), Room 064 (757 NSF), 
Room 064A (25 NSF), Room 065 
(740 NSF), Room 078 (756 NSF), 
Room 078A (28 NSF), Room 080 
(729 NSF)

-7,533 -225 $90,396 $12 $0

Page 450 of 962

DRAFT



KEYSTONE HEIGHTS 
JUNIOR/SENIOR HIGH

Parcel Building Description Total NSF Change In 
Station Count

Calculated 
Cost

Cost Per 
NSF

Cost Per 
Station

Renovation 2026 14 1 Renovating: Apply Painting, Floor 
Cover, Electrical, Plumbing, 
Windows, Lighting, Restrooms, 
HVAC Systems, Bell/Fire Alarm 
Systems, Retrofit for Technology to 
Room 100 (322 NSF), Room 101 
(182 NSF), Room 102 (192 NSF), 
Room 103 (39 NSF), Room 104 (39 
NSF), Room 105 (65 NSF), Room 
106 (184 NSF), Room 107 (135 
NSF), Room 108 (169 NSF), Room 
109 (260 NSF), Room 110 (125 
NSF), Room 111 (125 NSF), Room 
112 (99 NSF), Room 113 (125 NSF), 
Room 114 (125 NSF), Room 115 
(213 NSF), Room 116 (40 NSF), 
Room 117 (101 NSF), Room 118 
(282 NSF), Room 119 (94 NSF), 
Room 120 (95 NSF), Room 121 
(186 NSF), Room 122 (181 NSF), 
Room 123 (93 NSF), Room 124 (88 
NSF), Room 126 (1628 NSF), Room 
127 (899 NSF), Room 127A (28 
NSF), Room 128 (142 NSF), Room 
128A (20 NSF), Room 129 (966 
NSF), Room 130 (1633 NSF), Room 
131 (296 NSF), Room 132 (59 NSF), 
Room 133 (59 NSF), Room 134 
(166 NSF), Room 135 (84 NSF), 
Room 136 (44 NSF), Room 137 (84 
NSF), Room 138 (417 NSF), Room 
139 (21 NSF), Room 140 (40 NSF), 
Room 141 (53 NSF), Room 142 
(180 NSF), Room 154 (269 NSF), 
Room 155 (140 NSF), Room 156 
(25 NSF), Room 157 (108 NSF), 
Room 158 (108 NSF), Room 160 
(5550 NSF), Room 161 (224 NSF), 
Room 162 (300 NSF), Room 163 
(476 NSF), Room 164 (100 NSF), 
Room 165 (16 NSF), Room 166 (39 
NSF), Room 167 (60 NSF), Room 
168 (266 NSF), Room 169 (381 
NSF), Room 169A (83 NSF), Room 
170 (94 NSF), Room 171 (64 NSF), 
Room 172 (366 NSF), Room 172A 
(120 NSF), Room 173 (127 NSF), 
Room 174 (233 NSF), Room 175 
(63 NSF), Room 176 (23 NSF), 
Room 177 (64 NSF), Room 178 (64 
NSF), Room 180 (1159 NSF), Room 
181 (67 NSF), Room 182 (67 NSF), 
Room 183 (92 NSF), Room 184 
(1119 NSF), Room 185 (139 NSF), 
Room 186 (92 NSF), Room 187 
(1021 NSF), Room 188 (723 NSF), 
Room 189 (142 NSF), Room 189A 
(95 NSF), Room 190 (233 NSF), 
Room 191 (850 NSF), Room 192 
(820 NSF)

26,360 0 $3,136,840 $119 $0

Page 451 of 962

DRAFT



KEYSTONE HEIGHTS 
JUNIOR/SENIOR HIGH

Parcel Building Description Total NSF Change In 
Station Count

Calculated 
Cost

Cost Per 
NSF

Cost Per 
Station

Renovation 2026 14 2 Renovating: Apply Painting, Floor 
Cover, Electrical, Plumbing, 
Windows, Lighting, Restrooms, 
HVAC Systems, Bell/Fire Alarm 
Systems, Retrofit for Technology to 
Room 062 (1093 NSF), Room 063 
(211 NSF), Room 064 (1229 NSF), 
Room 064A (221 NSF), Room 064B 
(155 NSF), Room 065 (1111 NSF), 
Room 065A (120 NSF), Room 066 
(1111 NSF), Room 066A (120 NSF), 
Room 067 (1229 NSF), Room 067A 
(257 NSF), Room 067B (155 NSF), 
Room 068 (575 NSF), Room 069 
(89 NSF), Room 070 (93 NSF), 
Room 071 (306 NSF), Room 072 
(1915 NSF), Room 073 (1365 NSF)

11,355 0 $1,351,245 $119 $0

Renovation 2026 14 4 Renovating: Apply Painting, Floor 
Cover, Electrical, Plumbing, 
Windows, Lighting, Restrooms, 
HVAC Systems, Bell/Fire Alarm 
Systems, Retrofit for Technology to 
Room 499 (769 NSF)

769 0 $91,511 $119 $0

Renovation 2026 14 5 Renovating: Apply Painting, Floor 
Cover, Electrical, Plumbing, 
Windows, Lighting, Restrooms, 
HVAC Systems, Bell/Fire Alarm 
Systems, Retrofit for Technology to 
Room 501 (8988 NSF), Room 503 
(1368 NSF), Room 504 (615 NSF), 
Room 505 (1250 NSF), Room 505A 
(112 NSF), Room 505B (124 NSF), 
Room 506 (638 NSF), Room 506A 
(33 NSF), Room 507 (638 NSF), 
Room 507A (33 NSF), Room 508 
(28 NSF), Room 509 (96 NSF), 
Room 510 (356 NSF), Room 511 
(243 NSF), Room 512 (324 NSF), 
Room 515 (673 NSF), Room 515A 
(106 NSF), Room 516 (97 NSF), 
Room 517 (1442 NSF), Room 518 
(241 NSF), Room 519 (380 NSF), 
Room 520 (194 NSF), Room 521 
(150 NSF), Room 522 (180 NSF), 
Room 523 (1130 NSF), Room 524 
(409 NSF), Room 525 (132 NSF), 
Room 526 (325 NSF), Room 527 
(22 NSF), Room 528 (139 NSF), 
Room 529 (25 NSF), Room 530 
(236 NSF), Room 531 (365 NSF), 
Room 532 (68 NSF), Room 533 (34 
NSF), Room 534 (34 NSF), Room 
535 (21 NSF), Room 536 (69 NSF), 
Room 537 (265 NSF), Room 538 
(160 NSF), Room 539 (192 NSF), 
Room 540 (1062 NSF), Room 543 
(384 NSF), Room 543A (364 NSF), 
Room 544 (110 NSF), Room 545 
(110 NSF), Room 547 (180 NSF), 
Room 548 (36 NSF), Room 549 
(230 NSF), Room 550 (36 NSF)

24,447 0 $2,909,193 $119 $0

Page 452 of 962

DRAFT



KEYSTONE HEIGHTS 
JUNIOR/SENIOR HIGH

Parcel Building Description Total NSF Change In 
Station Count

Calculated 
Cost

Cost Per 
NSF

Cost Per 
Station

Renovation 2026 14 6 Renovating: Apply Painting, Floor 
Cover, Electrical, Plumbing, 
Windows, Lighting, Restrooms, 
HVAC Systems, Bell/Fire Alarm 
Systems, Retrofit for Technology to 
Room 601 (830 NSF), Room 602 
(830 NSF), Room 603 (813 NSF), 
Room 604 (813 NSF), Room 605 
(537 NSF), Room 605A (98 NSF), 
Room 606 (548 NSF), Room 606A 
(98 NSF), Room 607 (160 NSF), 
Room 607A (98 NSF), Room 608 
(160 NSF), Room 608A (98 NSF), 
Room 609 (1469 NSF), Room 609A 
(205 NSF), Room 609B (205 NSF), 
Room 609C (156 NSF), Room 609D 
(156 NSF), Room 609E (39 NSF), 
Room 609F (43 NSF), Room 609G 
(35 NSF), Room 609H (35 NSF), 
Room 610 (72 NSF), Room 610A 
(90 NSF), Room 610B (70 NSF), 
Room 610C (50 NSF), Room 610D 
(50 NSF), Room 610E (30 NSF), 
Room 611 (72 NSF), Room 611A (70 
NSF), Room 611B (90 NSF), Room 
611C (50 NSF), Room 611D (50 
NSF), Room 611E (30 NSF)

8,150 0 $969,850 $119 $0

Renovation 2026 14 18 Renovating: Apply Painting, Floor 
Cover, Electrical, Plumbing, 
Windows, Lighting, Restrooms, 
HVAC Systems, Bell/Fire Alarm 
Systems, Retrofit for Technology to 
Room 001 (270 NSF), Room 002 
(35 NSF), Room 003 (61 NSF), 
Room 004 (30 NSF), Room 005 (74 
NSF), Room 006 (280 NSF), Room 
008 (176 NSF), Room 009 (35 NSF), 
Room 010 (2626 NSF), Room 011 
(100 NSF), Room 012 (95 NSF), 
Room 013 (120 NSF), Room 014 
(48 NSF), Room 015 (120 NSF), 
Room 016 (100 NSF), Room 017 
(2267 NSF), Room 017A (110 NSF), 
Room 017B (110 NSF), Room 018 
(127 NSF), Room 019 (275 NSF), 
Room 020 (144 NSF), Room 021 
(35 NSF), Room 024 (513 NSF)

7,751 0 $922,369 $119 $0

Renovation 2026 14 20 Renovating: Apply Painting, Floor 
Cover, Electrical, Plumbing, 
Windows, Lighting, Restrooms, 
HVAC Systems, Bell/Fire Alarm 
Systems, Retrofit for Technology to 
Room 001 (698 NSF), Room 002 
(169 NSF), Room 003 (61 NSF), 
Room 005 (56 NSF), Room 007 
(169 NSF), Room 008 (698 NSF), 
Room 009 (72 NSF), Room 010 
(133 NSF), Room 011 (60 NSF), 
Room 012 (120 NSF), Room 013 
(76 NSF), Room 014 (60 NSF), 
Room 015 (120 NSF), Room 016 
(133 NSF), Room 017 (1612 NSF), 
Room 019 (264 NSF), Room 020 
(96 NSF), Room 021 (295 NSF), 
Room 022 (72 NSF), Room 023 (72 
NSF)

5,036 0 $599,284 $119 $0

Page 453 of 962

DRAFT



District Name: CLAY COUNTY SCHOOL DISTRICT

Survey: Number 7 - Version 1

Facility Name: KEYSTONE TRANSPORTATION

Address: 6800 COUNTY ROAD 315, KEYSTONE HEIGHTS

Existing Recommended

Capital Outlay 
Classification

6 - ANCILLARY RECOMMENDED FOR 
CONTINUED USE

6 - ANCILLARY RECOMMENDED FOR 
CONTINUED USE

Facility Use TRANSPORTATION TRANSPORTATION

Low Grade DISTRICT SERVICES DISTRICT SERVICES

High Grade DISTRICT SERVICES DISTRICT SERVICES

Comments

Existing
Student Stations 

Added/Reduced(+ or -) Recommended

Perm. Stations 0 0 0

Reloc. Stations 0 0 0

Mod. Stations 0 0 0

Total Stations 0 0 0

Utilization Factor 0% 0%

School Capacity 0 0

COFTE Student 
Membership 0 0

Survey Annotation No new recommendations.

New Site Cost Site 
Expansion

Site 
Development

Site 
Improvement

Remodeling 
Cost

Renovation 
Cost

New 
Construction 

Cost

$0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0

Estimated Total Project Cost $0

KEYSTONE 
TRANSPORTATION

Parcel Building Description Total NSF Change In 
Station Count

Calculated 
Cost

Cost Per 
NSF

Cost Per 
Station

 

Page 454 of 962

DRAFT



District Name: CLAY COUNTY SCHOOL DISTRICT

Survey: Number 7 - Version 1

Facility Name: LAKE ASBURY ELEMENTARY

Address: 2901 SANDRIDGE ROAD, GREEN COVE SPRINGS

Existing Recommended

Capital Outlay 
Classification

1 - SCHOOL RECOMMENDED FOR 
CONTINUED USE

1 - SCHOOL RECOMMENDED FOR 
CONTINUED USE

Facility Use ELEMENTARY ELEMENTARY

Low Grade PRE-K E S E PRE-K E S E

High Grade GRADE 6 GRADE 6

Comments

Existing
Student Stations 

Added/Reduced(+ or -) Recommended

Perm. Stations 388 81 469

Reloc. Stations 582 -117 465

Mod. Stations 0 0 0

Total Stations 970 -36 934

Utilization Factor 100% 100%

School Capacity 970 934

COFTE Student 
Membership 853 908

Survey Annotation

Correct Site Drainage Problems.                                            
Re-design and Construct Parent and Bus Pick Up and Drop Off Areas.                                     
                                    
Construct Additional Covered Walkways Where Needed. 
Renovate Buildings 1, 2, 5 and 6.
Construct (3) Intermediate Classrooms, (1) Elem Art, (1) Elem Music, (1) ESE PK  and (1) 
ESE FT.                                       Remove 8 portables in excess of 20 years of age.           
(Other)    
District-Wide Recommendations for this facility are: Improve Security Fencing and Lighting.

New Site Cost Site 
Expansion

Site 
Development

Site 
Improvement

Remodeling 
Cost

Renovation 
Cost

New 
Construction 

Cost

$0 $0 $0 $455,000 $851,598 $3,763,144 $2,058,939

Estimated Total Project Cost $7,128,681

LAKE ASBURY 
ELEMENTARY

Parcel Building Description Total NSF Change In 
Station Count

Calculated 
Cost

Cost Per 
NSF

Cost Per 
Station

New Construction 2026 New Construction: Adding 3 units of 
INTERMEDIATE/MIDDLE 
CLASSROOM (4-8) (858 NSF), 1 
unit of PRIMARY SKILLS LAB (K-3) 
(882 NSF), 1 unit of ART - 
ELEMENTARY (1110 NSF), 1 unit of 
MUSIC - ELEMENTARY (1560 
NSF), 1 unit of E S E PRE-K (475 
NSF), 1 unit of E S E FULL-TIME 
(950 NSF)

9,501 81 $2,058,939 $217 $25,419

Page 455 of 962

DRAFT



LAKE ASBURY 
ELEMENTARY

Parcel Building Description Total NSF Change In 
Station Count

Calculated 
Cost

Cost Per 
NSF

Cost Per 
Station

Remodeling 2026 26 92 Removed NSF (6171), Added NSF 
(0), Difference NSF (6171), Percent 
(100%), Removed Stations (117), 
Added Stations (0) Remodeling: 
Adding  and Removing Room 009 
(756 NSF), Room 009A (28 NSF), 
Room 011 (756 NSF), Room 011A 
(26 NSF), Room 012 (756 NSF), 
Room 012A (26 NSF), Room 041 
(744 NSF), Room 041A (26 NSF), 
Room 043 (754 NSF), Room 043A 
(28 NSF), Room 045 (750 NSF), 
Room 072 (757 NSF), Room 072A 
(26 NSF), Room 074 (738 NSF)

-6,171 -117 $851,598 $138 $0

Renovation 2026 26 1 Renovating: Apply Painting, Floor 
Cover, Electrical, Plumbing, 
Windows, Lighting, Restrooms, 
HVAC Systems, Bell/Fire Alarm 
Systems, Retrofit for Technology to 
Room 101 (327 NSF), Room 102 
(41 NSF), Room 103 (148 NSF), 
Room 103A (103 NSF), Room 104 
(126 NSF), Room 105 (120 NSF), 
Room 105A (107 NSF), Room 106 
(312 NSF), Room 107 (53 NSF), 
Room 108 (80 NSF), Room 109 
(189 NSF), Room 110 (148 NSF), 
Room 111 (264 NSF), Room 112 (29 
NSF), Room 113 (241 NSF), Room 
114 (203 NSF), Room 115 (241 
NSF), Room 116 (185 NSF), Room 
117 (250 NSF), Room 118 (253 
NSF), Room 119 (27 NSF), Room 
120 (27 NSF), Room 121 (67 NSF), 
Room 122 (45 NSF), Room 123 (47 
NSF), Room 124 (69 NSF), Room 
125 (450 NSF), Room 126 (411 
NSF), Room 127 (82 NSF), Room 
128 (247 NSF), Room 129 (52 NSF), 
Room 130 (126 NSF), Room 131 
(447 NSF), Room 132A (194 NSF), 
Room 132B (193 NSF), Room 133 
(303 NSF), Room 134 (213 NSF), 
Room 135 (418 NSF), Room 136 
(2957 NSF), Room 137 (124 NSF), 
Room 138 (304 NSF)

10,223 0 $838,286 $82 $0

Renovation 2026 26 2 Renovating: Apply Painting, Floor 
Cover, Electrical, Plumbing, 
Windows, Lighting, Restrooms, 
HVAC Systems, Bell/Fire Alarm 
Systems, Retrofit for Technology to 
Room 201 (3780 NSF), Room 201A 
(50 NSF), Room 201B (45 NSF), 
Room 201C (556 NSF), Room 202 
(859 NSF), Room 202A (15 NSF), 
Room 203 (40 NSF), Room 204 
(161 NSF), Room 205 (169 NSF), 
Room 206 (479 NSF), Room 207 
(220 NSF), Room 208 (165 NSF), 
Room 209 (157 NSF), Room 210 
(46 NSF), Room 211 (362 NSF), 
Room 212 (33 NSF), Room 213 (10 
NSF), Room 214 (63 NSF), Room 
215 (54 NSF), Room 216 (93 NSF), 
Room 217 (153 NSF), Room 218 
(127 NSF), Room 219A (102 NSF), 
Room 219B (72 NSF), Room 220 
(117 NSF), Room 221 (701 NSF), 
Room 222 (39 NSF), Room 223 
(105 NSF), Room 224 (193 NSF), 
Room 225 (1199 NSF), Room 226 
(90 NSF), Room 227 (597 NSF), 
Room 228 (185 NSF)

11,037 0 $905,034 $82 $0

Page 456 of 962

DRAFT



LAKE ASBURY 
ELEMENTARY

Parcel Building Description Total NSF Change In 
Station Count

Calculated 
Cost

Cost Per 
NSF

Cost Per 
Station

Renovation 2026 26 5 Renovating: Apply Painting, Floor 
Cover, Electrical, Plumbing, 
Windows, Lighting, Restrooms, 
HVAC Systems, Bell/Fire Alarm 
Systems, Retrofit for Technology to 
Room 501 (1008 NSF), Room 502 
(152 NSF), Room 503 (52 NSF), 
Room 504 (44 NSF), Room 505 (44 
NSF), Room 506 (62 NSF), Room 
507 (1008 NSF), Room 508 (1008 
NSF), Room 509 (152 NSF), Room 
510 (52 NSF), Room 511 (44 NSF), 
Room 512 (44 NSF), Room 513 (52 
NSF), Room 514 (1008 NSF), Room 
515 (1640 NSF), Room 516 (1008 
NSF), Room 517 (152 NSF), Room 
518 (52 NSF), Room 519 (44 NSF), 
Room 520 (44 NSF), Room 521 (52 
NSF), Room 522 (1008 NSF), Room 
523 (1008 NSF), Room 524 (152 
NSF), Room 525 (52 NSF), Room 
526 (44 NSF), Room 527 (44 NSF), 
Room 528 (52 NSF), Room 529 
(1008 NSF), Room 530 (124 NSF), 
Room 531 (340 NSF), Room 532 
(181 NSF), Room 533 (68 NSF), 
Room 534 (42 NSF), Room 535 
(194 NSF), Room 536 (194 NSF), 
Room 537 (42 NSF), Room 538 (44 
NSF)

12,319 0 $1,010,158 $82 $0

Renovation 2026 26 6 Renovating: Apply Painting, Floor 
Cover, Electrical, Plumbing, 
Windows, Lighting, Restrooms, 
HVAC Systems, Bell/Fire Alarm 
Systems, Retrofit for Technology to 
Room 601 (1008 NSF), Room 602 
(152 NSF), Room 603 (96 NSF), 
Room 605 (44 NSF), Room 606 (52 
NSF), Room 607 (1008 NSF), Room 
608 (1008 NSF), Room 609 (152 
NSF), Room 610 (52 NSF), Room 
611 (44 NSF), Room 612 (44 NSF), 
Room 613 (52 NSF), Room 614 
(1008 NSF), Room 615 (1626 NSF), 
Room 616 (1008 NSF), Room 617 
(152 NSF), Room 618 (52 NSF), 
Room 619 (44 NSF), Room 620 (44 
NSF), Room 621 (52 NSF), Room 
622 (1004 NSF), Room 623 (1004 
NSF), Room 624 (152 NSF), Room 
625 (52 NSF), Room 626 (44 NSF), 
Room 628 (96 NSF), Room 629 
(1008 NSF), Room 630 (124 NSF), 
Room 631 (358 NSF), Room 632 
(181 NSF), Room 633 (68 NSF), 
Room 634 (42 NSF), Room 635 
(200 NSF), Room 636 (196 NSF), 
Room 637 (42 NSF), Room 638 (44 
NSF)

12,313 0 $1,009,666 $82 $0

Page 457 of 962

DRAFT



District Name: CLAY COUNTY SCHOOL DISTRICT

Survey: Number 7 - Version 1

Facility Name: LAKE ASBURY JUNIOR HIGH

Address: 2851 SANDRIDGE ROAD, GREEN COVE SPRINGS

Existing Recommended

Capital Outlay 
Classification

1 - SCHOOL RECOMMENDED FOR 
CONTINUED USE

1 - SCHOOL RECOMMENDED FOR 
CONTINUED USE

Facility Use MIDDLE JUNIOR HIGH

Low Grade GRADE 7 GRADE 7

High Grade GRADE 8 GRADE 8

Comments

Existing
Student Stations 

Added/Reduced(+ or -) Recommended

Perm. Stations 1,043 0 1043

Reloc. Stations 462 -44 418

Mod. Stations 0 0 0

Total Stations 1,505 -44 1461

Utilization Factor 90% 90%

School Capacity 1,354 1314

COFTE Student 
Membership 1,137 1,270

Survey Annotation

Correct site drainage problems.
Construct additional Covered Walkways where needed. Remove 2 portables in excess of 20 
years of age.
(Other)
District-Wide Recommendations for this facility are: Improve security fencing and lighting.

New Site Cost Site 
Expansion

Site 
Development

Site 
Improvement

Remodeling 
Cost

Renovation 
Cost

New 
Construction 

Cost

$0 $0 $0 $45,000 $18,828 $0 $0

Estimated Total Project Cost $63,828

LAKE ASBURY JUNIOR 
HIGH

Parcel Building Description Total NSF Change In 
Station Count

Calculated 
Cost

Cost Per 
NSF

Cost Per 
Station

Remodeling 2026 28 92 Removed NSF (1569), Added NSF 
(0), Difference NSF (1569), Percent 
(100%), Removed Stations (44), 
Added Stations (0) Remodeling: 
Adding  and Removing Room 423 
(754 NSF), Room 423A (25 NSF), 
Room 424 (790 NSF)

-1,569 -44 $18,828 $12 $0

Page 458 of 962

DRAFT



District Name: CLAY COUNTY SCHOOL DISTRICT

Survey: Number 7 - Version 1

Facility Name: LAKESIDE ELEMENTARY

Address: 2752 MOODY ROAD, ORANGE PARK

Existing Recommended

Capital Outlay 
Classification

1 - SCHOOL RECOMMENDED FOR 
CONTINUED USE

1 - SCHOOL RECOMMENDED FOR 
CONTINUED USE

Facility Use ELEMENTARY ELEMENTARY

Low Grade PRE-K E S E PRE-K E S E

High Grade GRADE 6 GRADE 6

Comments

Existing
Student Stations 

Added/Reduced(+ or -) Recommended

Perm. Stations 378 0 378

Reloc. Stations 498 -230 268

Mod. Stations 0 0 0

Total Stations 876 -230 646

Utilization Factor 100% 100%

School Capacity 876 646

COFTE Student 
Membership 759 602

Survey Annotation

Renovate Buildings 1, 2, 4, 5, 6, 7.
Correct Site Drainage Problems.                                 
Construct Additional Covered Walkways Where Needed.   
Remove 14 portables in excess of 20 years of age.
(Other)
District-Wide Recommendations for this facility are: Improve Security Fencing and Lighting.

New Site Cost Site 
Expansion

Site 
Development

Site 
Improvement

Remodeling 
Cost

Renovation 
Cost

New 
Construction 

Cost

$0 $0 $0 $45,000 $130,380 $3,675,952 $0

Estimated Total Project Cost $3,851,332

Page 459 of 962

DRAFT



LAKESIDE 
ELEMENTARY

Parcel Building Description Total NSF Change In 
Station Count

Calculated 
Cost

Cost Per 
NSF

Cost Per 
Station

Remodeling 2026 18 92 Removed NSF (10865), Added NSF 
(0), Difference NSF (10865), Percent 
(100%), Removed Stations (230), 
Added Stations (0) Remodeling: 
Adding  and Removing Room 010 
(735 NSF), Room 012 (735 NSF), 
Room 012A (24 NSF), Room 016 
(735 NSF), Room 017 (735 NSF), 
Room 020 (735 NSF), Room 022 
(735 NSF), Room 023 (735 NSF), 
Room 024 (735 NSF), Room 025 
(735 NSF), Room 026 (735 NSF), 
Room 027 (735 NSF), Room 044 
(828 NSF), Room 044A (36 NSF), 
Room 047 (992 NSF), Room 047A 
(36 NSF), Room 060 (828 NSF), 
Room 060A (36 NSF)

-10,865 -230 $130,380 $12 $0

Renovation 2026 18 1 Renovating: Apply Painting, Floor 
Cover, Electrical, Plumbing, 
Windows, Lighting, Restrooms, 
HVAC Systems, Bell/Fire Alarm 
Systems, Retrofit for Technology to 
Room 101 (59 NSF), Room 102 
(240 NSF), Room 103 (41 NSF), 
Room 103A (30 NSF), Room 105 
(451 NSF), Room 106 (135 NSF), 
Room 107 (98 NSF), Room 108 
(3550 NSF), Room 108A (70 NSF), 
Room 108B (70 NSF), Room 108C 
(652 NSF), Room 109 (296 NSF), 
Room 110 (200 NSF), Room 111 
(101 NSF), Room 111A (91 NSF), 
Room 112 (139 NSF), Room 114 
(197 NSF), Room 114A (73 NSF), 
Room 115 (139 NSF)

6,632 0 $610,144 $92 $0

Renovation 2026 18 2 Renovating: Apply Painting, Floor 
Cover, Electrical, Plumbing, 
Windows, Lighting, Restrooms, 
HVAC Systems, Bell/Fire Alarm 
Systems, Retrofit for Technology to 
Room 116 (544 NSF), Room 117 
(271 NSF), Room 118 (455 NSF), 
Room 119 (307 NSF), Room 121 
(162 NSF), Room 122 (44 NSF), 
Room 123 (17 NSF), Room 124 (30 
NSF), Room 125 (83 NSF), Room 
126 (22 NSF), Room 127 (82 NSF), 
Room 128 (516 NSF), Room 129 
(126 NSF), Room 130 (105 NSF), 
Room 131 (222 NSF), Room 132 
(222 NSF), Room 134 (25 NSF), 
Room 135 (25 NSF), Room 136 
(3950 NSF), Room 136A (361 NSF), 
Room 136B (224 NSF), Room 136C 
(135 NSF), Room 137 (296 NSF), 
Room 138 (127 NSF), Room 139 
(158 NSF), Room 140 (227 NSF), 
Room 141 (180 NSF), Room 142 
(441 NSF), Room 143 (270 NSF)

9,627 0 $885,684 $92 $0

Renovation 2026 18 4 Renovating: Apply Painting, Floor 
Cover, Electrical, Plumbing, 
Windows, Lighting, Restrooms, 
HVAC Systems, Bell/Fire Alarm 
Systems, Retrofit for Technology to 
Room 144 (156 NSF), Room 145 
(156 NSF), Room 146 (156 NSF), 
Room 147 (156 NSF)

624 0 $57,408 $92 $0

Page 460 of 962

DRAFT



LAKESIDE 
ELEMENTARY

Parcel Building Description Total NSF Change In 
Station Count

Calculated 
Cost

Cost Per 
NSF

Cost Per 
Station

Renovation 2026 18 5 Renovating: Apply Painting, Floor 
Cover, Electrical, Plumbing, 
Windows, Lighting, Restrooms, 
HVAC Systems, Bell/Fire Alarm 
Systems, Retrofit for Technology to 
Room 148 (155 NSF), Room 149 
(155 NSF), Room 150 (155 NSF), 
Room 151 (155 NSF)

620 0 $57,040 $92 $0

Renovation 2026 18 6 Renovating: Apply Painting, Floor 
Cover, Electrical, Plumbing, 
Windows, Lighting, Restrooms, 
HVAC Systems, Bell/Fire Alarm 
Systems, Retrofit for Technology to 
Room 600 (1452 NSF), Room 601 
(980 NSF), Room 601A (100 NSF), 
Room 601B (65 NSF), Room 601C 
(42 NSF), Room 602 (980 NSF), 
Room 602A (100 NSF), Room 602B 
(65 NSF), Room 602C (42 NSF), 
Room 603 (980 NSF), Room 603B 
(65 NSF), Room 603C (42 NSF), 
Room 604 (980 NSF), Room 604B 
(65 NSF), Room 604C (42 NSF), 
Room 605 (980 NSF), Room 605A 
(100 NSF), Room 605B (65 NSF), 
Room 605C (42 NSF), Room 606 
(980 NSF), Room 606A (100 NSF), 
Room 606B (65 NSF), Room 606C 
(42 NSF), Room 607 (980 NSF), 
Room 607B (65 NSF), Room 607C 
(42 NSF), Room 608 (980 NSF), 
Room 608B (65 NSF), Room 608C 
(42 NSF), Room 609 (42 NSF), 
Room 610 (93 NSF), Room 611 (384 
NSF), Room 612 (149 NSF), Room 
613 (225 NSF)

11,441 0 $1,052,572 $92 $0

Renovation 2026 18 7 Renovating: Apply Painting, Floor 
Cover, Electrical, Plumbing, 
Windows, Lighting, Restrooms, 
HVAC Systems, Bell/Fire Alarm 
Systems, Retrofit for Technology to 
Room 700 (1320 NSF), Room 701 
(894 NSF), Room 701A (100 NSF), 
Room 701B (70 NSF), Room 701C 
(38 NSF), Room 702 (894 NSF), 
Room 702A (100 NSF), Room 702B 
(70 NSF), Room 702C (38 NSF), 
Room 703 (980 NSF), Room 703B 
(70 NSF), Room 703C (38 NSF), 
Room 704 (980 NSF), Room 704B 
(70 NSF), Room 704C (38 NSF), 
Room 705 (980 NSF), Room 705A 
(100 NSF), Room 705B (70 NSF), 
Room 705C (38 NSF), Room 706 
(980 NSF), Room 706A (100 NSF), 
Room 706B (38 NSF), Room 706C 
(38 NSF), Room 707 (980 NSF), 
Room 707B (70 NSF), Room 708 
(980 NSF), Room 708B (70 NSF), 
Room 709 (223 NSF), Room 710 
(229 NSF), Room 711 (37 NSF), 
Room 712 (37 NSF), Room 713 
(176 NSF), Room 714 (98 NSF), 
Room 716 (68 NSF)

11,012 0 $1,013,104 $92 $0

Page 461 of 962

DRAFT



District Name: CLAY COUNTY SCHOOL DISTRICT

Survey: Number 7 - Version 1

Facility Name: LAKESIDE JUNIOR HIGH

Address: 2750 MOODY ROAD, ORANGE PARK

Existing Recommended

Capital Outlay 
Classification

1 - SCHOOL RECOMMENDED FOR 
CONTINUED USE

1 - SCHOOL RECOMMENDED FOR 
CONTINUED USE

Facility Use MIDDLE JUNIOR HIGH

Low Grade GRADE 7 GRADE 7

High Grade GRADE 8 GRADE 8

Comments

Existing
Student Stations 

Added/Reduced(+ or -) Recommended

Perm. Stations 866 0 866

Reloc. Stations 472 -252 220

Mod. Stations 0 0 0

Total Stations 1,338 -252 1086

Utilization Factor 90% 90%

School Capacity 1,204 977

COFTE Student 
Membership 843 787

Survey Annotation

Renovate Buildings 1-3, 5, 7, 8, 9.
Re-design and Construct Bus Pick Up and Drop Off Areas. 
Correct Site Drainage Problems.                                 
Construct Additional Covered Walkways Where Needed.   
Remove 12 portables in excess of 20 years of age.
(Other)
District-Wide Recommendations for this facility are: Improve Security Fencing and Lighting.

New Site Cost Site 
Expansion

Site 
Development

Site 
Improvement

Remodeling 
Cost

Renovation 
Cost

New 
Construction 

Cost

$0 $0 $0 $395,000 $118,848 $9,542,795 $0

Estimated Total Project Cost $10,056,643

Page 462 of 962

DRAFT



LAKESIDE JUNIOR HIGH Parcel Building Description Total NSF Change In 
Station Count

Calculated 
Cost

Cost Per 
NSF

Cost Per 
Station

Remodeling 2026 17 92 Removed NSF (9904), Added NSF 
(0), Difference NSF (9904), Percent 
(100%), Removed Stations (252), 
Added Stations (0) Remodeling: 
Adding  and Removing Room 704 
(750 NSF), Room 704A (25 NSF), 
Room 706 (750 NSF), Room 706A 
(25 NSF), Room 708 (653 NSF), 
Room 708A (42 NSF), Room 708B 
(42 NSF), Room 721 (735 NSF), 
Room 722 (736 NSF), Room 731 
(754 NSF), Room 731A (25 NSF), 
Room 732 (745 NSF), Room 732A 
(27 NSF), Room 733 (756 NSF), 
Room 733A (23 NSF), Room 734 
(730 NSF), Room 735 (913 NSF), 
Room 791 (1330 NSF), Room 791A 
(36 NSF), Room 791B (36 NSF), 
Room 791C (36 NSF), Room 793 
(690 NSF), Room 793A (45 NSF)

-9,904 -252 $118,848 $12 $0

Renovation 2026 17 1 Renovating: Apply Painting, Floor 
Cover, Electrical, Plumbing, 
Windows, Lighting, Restrooms, 
HVAC Systems, Bell/Fire Alarm 
Systems, Retrofit for Technology to 
Room 001 (703 NSF), Room 002 
(703 NSF), Room 003 (703 NSF), 
Room 004 (20 NSF), Room 005 
(177 NSF), Room 006 (135 NSF), 
Room 007 (40 NSF), Room 008 
(252 NSF), Room 009 (703 NSF), 
Room 010 (703 NSF), Room 011 
(703 NSF), Room 012 (1725 NSF), 
Room 018 (703 NSF), Room 019 
(659 NSF), Room 020 (703 NSF), 
Room 021 (1794 NSF), Room 022 
(20 NSF), Room 023 (177 NSF), 
Room 024 (135 NSF), Room 025 
(10 NSF), Room 026 (269 NSF), 
Room 028 (703 NSF), Room 029 
(659 NSF), Room 030 (703 NSF)

13,102 0 $1,401,914 $107 $0

Renovation 2026 17 2 Renovating: Apply Painting, Floor 
Cover, Electrical, Plumbing, 
Windows, Lighting, Restrooms, 
HVAC Systems, Bell/Fire Alarm 
Systems, Retrofit for Technology to 
Room 031 (2095 NSF), Room 034 
(20 NSF), Room 035 (177 NSF), 
Room 036 (135 NSF), Room 037 
(40 NSF), Room 038 (252 NSF), 
Room 039 (1775 NSF), Room 040 
(1850 NSF), Room 041 (116 NSF), 
Room 042 (71 NSF), Room 043 
(703 NSF), Room 044 (665 NSF), 
Room 045 (703 NSF), Room 046 
(1794 NSF), Room 047 (20 NSF), 
Room 048 (177 NSF), Room 049 
(135 NSF), Room 050 (10 NSF), 
Room 051 (252 NSF), Room 053 
(703 NSF), Room 054 (665 NSF), 
Room 055 (703 NSF)

13,061 0 $1,397,527 $107 $0

Page 463 of 962

DRAFT



LAKESIDE JUNIOR HIGH Parcel Building Description Total NSF Change In 
Station Count

Calculated 
Cost

Cost Per 
NSF

Cost Per 
Station

Renovation 2026 17 3 Renovating: Apply Painting, Floor 
Cover, Electrical, Plumbing, 
Windows, Lighting, Restrooms, 
HVAC Systems, Bell/Fire Alarm 
Systems, Retrofit for Technology to 
Room 056 (703 NSF), Room 057 
(703 NSF), Room 058 (703 NSF), 
Room 059 (1725 NSF), Room 060 
(20 NSF), Room 061 (177 NSF), 
Room 062 (135 NSF), Room 063 
(40 NSF), Room 064 (252 NSF), 
Room 066 (525 NSF), Room 067 
(1215 NSF), Room 067A (100 NSF), 
Room 067B (119 NSF), Room 067C 
(115 NSF), Room 069 (703 NSF), 
Room 070 (670 NSF), Room 071 
(696 NSF), Room 072 (1725 NSF), 
Room 073 (20 NSF), Room 074 
(177 NSF), Room 075 (135 NSF), 
Room 076 (10 NSF), Room 077 
(252 NSF), Room 079 (703 NSF), 
Room 080 (670 NSF), Room 081 
(703 NSF)

12,996 0 $1,390,572 $107 $0

Page 464 of 962

DRAFT



LAKESIDE JUNIOR HIGH Parcel Building Description Total NSF Change In 
Station Count

Calculated 
Cost

Cost Per 
NSF

Cost Per 
Station

Renovation 2026 17 5 Renovating: Apply Painting, Floor 
Cover, Electrical, Plumbing, 
Windows, Lighting, Restrooms, 
HVAC Systems, Bell/Fire Alarm 
Systems, Retrofit for Technology to 
Room 100 (256 NSF), Room 101 
(98 NSF), Room 102 (76 NSF), 
Room 103 (86 NSF), Room 104 (52 
NSF), Room 105 (247 NSF), Room 
107 (224 NSF), Room 108 (71 NSF), 
Room 109 (149 NSF), Room 110 
(1232 NSF), Room 111 (134 NSF), 
Room 111A (107 NSF), Room 112 
(121 NSF), Room 113 (373 NSF), 
Room 115 (240 NSF), Room 116 
(5050 NSF), Room 116A (610 NSF), 
Room 117 (121 NSF), Room 118 (50 
NSF), Room 120 (29 NSF), Room 
121 (42 NSF), Room 122 (29 NSF), 
Room 123 (343 NSF), Room 124 
(168 NSF), Room 125 (68 NSF), 
Room 126 (278 NSF), Room 127 
(180 NSF), Room 128 (62 NSF), 
Room 129 (516 NSF), Room 130 
(268 NSF), Room 131 (18 NSF), 
Room 132 (134 NSF), Room 133 
(56 NSF), Room 134 (236 NSF), 
Room 135 (103 NSF), Room 136 
(115 NSF), Room 137 (103 NSF), 
Room 138 (172 NSF), Room 139 
(257 NSF), Room 140 (84 NSF), 
Room 141 (57 NSF), Room 142 
(219 NSF), Room 200 (44 NSF), 
Room 203 (330 NSF), Room 204 
(38 NSF), Room 205 (75 NSF), 
Room 206 (23 NSF), Room 207 
(209 NSF), Room 208 (1180 NSF), 
Room 209 (102 NSF), Room 210 
(44 NSF), Room 211 (16 NSF), 
Room 213 (101 NSF), Room 215 
(4946 NSF), Room 216 (144 NSF), 
Room 217 (96 NSF), Room 217A 
(105 NSF), Room 217B (130 NSF), 
Room 218 (360 NSF), Room 219 
(22 NSF), Room 220 (79 NSF), 
Room 221 (155 NSF), Room 223 
(334 NSF), Room 224 (618 NSF), 
Room 226 (324 NSF), Room 227 
(180 NSF), Room 228 (275 NSF), 
Room 228A (144 NSF), Room 228B 
(156 NSF), Room 229 (577 NSF), 
Room 231 (118 NSF), Room 232 
(224 NSF), Room 233 (210 NSF), 
Room 234 (87 NSF), Room 235 (44 
NSF), Room 236 (80 NSF), Room 
238 (142 NSF), Room 239 (44 NSF), 
Room 240 (315 NSF), Room 241 
(106 NSF), Room 242 (123 NSF), 
Room 243 (138 NSF), Room 244 
(116 NSF), Room 245 (50 NSF), 
Room 246 (46 NSF), Room 247 (31 
NSF), Room 248 (52 NSF)

25,567 0 $2,735,669 $107 $0

Renovation 2026 17 7 Renovating: Apply Painting, Floor 
Cover, Electrical, Plumbing, 
Windows, Lighting, Restrooms, 
HVAC Systems, Bell/Fire Alarm 
Systems, Retrofit for Technology to 
Room 001 (287 NSF), Room 002 
(271 NSF), Room 003 (39 NSF)

597 0 $63,879 $107 $0

Page 465 of 962

DRAFT



LAKESIDE JUNIOR HIGH Parcel Building Description Total NSF Change In 
Station Count

Calculated 
Cost

Cost Per 
NSF

Cost Per 
Station

Renovation 2026 17 8 Renovating: Apply Painting, Floor 
Cover, Electrical, Plumbing, 
Windows, Lighting, Restrooms, 
HVAC Systems, Bell/Fire Alarm 
Systems, Retrofit for Technology to 
Room 801 (529 NSF), Room 802 
(50 NSF), Room 803 (50 NSF), 
Room 804 (1208 NSF), Room 805 
(157 NSF), Room 806 (105 NSF), 
Room 807 (154 NSF), Room 808 
(110 NSF), Room 809 (419 NSF), 
Room 810 (304 NSF), Room 811 
(180 NSF), Room 813 (56 NSF), 
Room 814 (1985 NSF), Room 815 
(188 NSF), Room 816 (109 NSF), 
Room 817 (57 NSF), Room 818 
(305 NSF), Room 819 (119 NSF), 
Room 820 (70 NSF), Room 821 (70 
NSF), Room 822 (425 NSF), Room 
823 (190 NSF), Room 824 (167 
NSF), Room 825 (150 NSF), Room 
826 (97 NSF), Room 827 (118 NSF), 
Room 828 (189 NSF), Room 829 
(80 NSF), Room 830 (149 NSF)

7,790 0 $833,530 $107 $0

Renovation 2026 17 9 Renovating: Apply Painting, Floor 
Cover, Electrical, Plumbing, 
Windows, Lighting, Restrooms, 
HVAC Systems, Bell/Fire Alarm 
Systems, Retrofit for Technology to 
Room 901 (9556 NSF), Room 902 
(156 NSF), Room 903 (166 NSF), 
Room 904 (25 NSF), Room 905 
(407 NSF), Room 906 (1272 NSF), 
Room 907 (246 NSF), Room 908 
(352 NSF), Room 909 (130 NSF), 
Room 910 (208 NSF), Room 911 (39 
NSF), Room 912 (301 NSF), Room 
913 (5 NSF), Room 914 (156 NSF), 
Room 915 (208 NSF), Room 916 
(39 NSF), Room 917 (1082 NSF), 
Room 917B (73 NSF), Room 918 
(180 NSF), Room 919 (275 NSF), 
Room 920 (118 NSF), Room 921 
(320 NSF), Room 922 (240 NSF), 
Room 923 (37 NSF), Room 923A 
(32 NSF), Room 924 (190 NSF), 
Room 924A (25 NSF), Room 950 
(66 NSF), Room 950A (92 NSF), 
Room 951 (76 NSF)

16,072 0 $1,719,704 $107 $0

Page 466 of 962

DRAFT



District Name: CLAY COUNTY SCHOOL DISTRICT

Survey: Number 7 - Version 1

Facility Name: MCRAE ELEMENTARY

Address: 6770 COUNTY ROAD 315, KEYSTONE HEIGHTS

Existing Recommended

Capital Outlay 
Classification

1 - SCHOOL RECOMMENDED FOR 
CONTINUED USE

1 - SCHOOL RECOMMENDED FOR 
CONTINUED USE

Facility Use ELEMENTARY ELEMENTARY

Low Grade PRE-K E S E PRE-K E S E

High Grade GRADE 6 GRADE 6

Comments

Existing
Student Stations 

Added/Reduced(+ or -) Recommended

Perm. Stations 234 199 433

Reloc. Stations 316 -159 157

Mod. Stations 0 0 0

Total Stations 550 40 590

Utilization Factor 100% 100%

School Capacity 550 590

COFTE Student 
Membership 526 541

Survey Annotation

New Construction- add (6) Primary Classrooms, (3) Intermediate Classrooms,  (1) ESE PT, 
(1) ESE FT, (1) Covered Play.                                                                      Remove 9 
portables in excess of 20 years of age.    Renovate Buildings 1, 2, 3, 5 and 6.                           
     
Correct site drainage problems.                                                
Construct additional Covered Walkways where needed. 
(Other)
District-Wide Recommendations for this facility are:  Improve security fencing and lighting.

New Site Cost Site 
Expansion

Site 
Development

Site 
Improvement

Remodeling 
Cost

Renovation 
Cost

New 
Construction 

Cost

$0 $0 $0 $45,000 $81,552 $5,122,192 $5,058,381

Estimated Total Project Cost $10,307,125

MCRAE ELEMENTARY Parcel Building Description Total NSF Change In 
Station Count

Calculated 
Cost

Cost Per 
NSF

Cost Per 
Station

New Construction 2026 New Construction: Adding 1 unit of E 
S E PART-TIME (975 NSF), 1 unit of 
E S E FULL-TIME (950 NSF), 1 unit 
of ELEMENTARY COVERED PLAY 
AREA (500 NSF), 6 units of 
PRIMARY CLASSROOM (K-3) (882 
NSF)

9,747 133 $3,380,727 $347 $25,419

Page 467 of 962

DRAFT



MCRAE ELEMENTARY Parcel Building Description Total NSF Change In 
Station Count

Calculated 
Cost

Cost Per 
NSF

Cost Per 
Station

New Construction 2026 New Construction: Adding 2 units of 
INTERMEDIATE/MIDDLE 
CLASSROOM (4-8) (858 NSF), 1 
unit of INTERMEDIATE/MIDDLE 
CLASSROOM (4-8) (858 NSF)

3,234 66 $1,677,654 $519 $25,419

Remodeling 2026 45 92 Removed NSF (6796), Added NSF 
(0), Difference NSF (6796), Percent 
(100%), Removed Stations (159), 
Added Stations (0) Remodeling: 
Adding  and Removing Room 407 
(752 NSF), Room 407A (29 NSF), 
Room 705 (705 NSF), Room 707 
(734 NSF), Room 806 (744 NSF), 
Room 806A (26 NSF), Room 824 
(750 NSF), Room 825 (750 NSF), 
Room 825A (36 NSF), Room 826 
(750 NSF), Room 827 (750 NSF), 
Room 842 (744 NSF), Room 842A 
(26 NSF)

-6,796 -159 $81,552 $12 $0

Renovation 2026 45 1 Renovating: Apply Painting, Floor 
Cover, Electrical, Plumbing, 
Windows, Lighting, Restrooms, 
HVAC Systems, Bell/Fire Alarm 
Systems, Retrofit for Technology to 
Room 101 (475 NSF), Room 102 
(73 NSF), Room 103 (291 NSF), 
Room 104 (215 NSF), Room 105 
(130 NSF), Room 106 (378 NSF), 
Room 107 (72 NSF), Room 109 (72 
NSF), Room 110 (150 NSF), Room 
111 (150 NSF), Room 112 (898 
NSF), Room 113 (303 NSF), Room 
114 (707 NSF), Room 115 (270 
NSF), Room 116 (124 NSF), Room 
117 (256 NSF), Room 118 (143 
NSF), Room 119 (241 NSF), Room 
120 (244 NSF), Room 121 (320 
NSF), Room 122 (73 NSF), Room 
123 (145 NSF), Room 124 (44 NSF), 
Room 125 (153 NSF), Room 126 
(193 NSF), Room 127 (251 NSF), 
Room 128 (304 NSF), Room 129 
(163 NSF), Room 130 (215 NSF), 
Room 131 (142 NSF), Room 132 
(140 NSF), Room 133 (206 NSF), 
Room 134 (208 NSF), Room 135 
(191 NSF), Room 136 (190 NSF), 
Room 137 (304 NSF), Room 137A 
(14 NSF), Room 138 (43 NSF), 
Room 139 (283 NSF), Room 140 
(109 NSF), Room 141 (135 NSF), 
Room 142 (284 NSF), Room 143 
(210 NSF)

9,512 0 $875,104 $92 $0

Page 468 of 962

DRAFT



MCRAE ELEMENTARY Parcel Building Description Total NSF Change In 
Station Count

Calculated 
Cost

Cost Per 
NSF

Cost Per 
Station

Renovation 2026 45 2 Renovating: Apply Painting, Floor 
Cover, Electrical, Plumbing, 
Windows, Lighting, Restrooms, 
HVAC Systems, Bell/Fire Alarm 
Systems, Retrofit for Technology to 
Room 201 (3872 NSF), Room 201A 
(2069 NSF), Room 202 (1049 NSF), 
Room 203 (99 NSF), Room 204 
(286 NSF), Room 205 (32 NSF), 
Room 206 (171 NSF), Room 207 
(299 NSF), Room 208 (136 NSF), 
Room 209 (118 NSF), Room 211 
(138 NSF), Room 212 (778 NSF), 
Room 213 (98 NSF), Room 215 
(393 NSF), Room 216 (622 NSF), 
Room 217 (118 NSF), Room 218 
(218 NSF), Room 219 (1182 NSF), 
Room 220 (98 NSF), Room 221 (118 
NSF), Room 222 (126 NSF), Room 
223 (84 NSF), Room 224 (267 NSF), 
Room 225 (18 NSF), Room 226 
(297 NSF), Room 227 (98 NSF), 
Room 228 (38 NSF), Room 229 
(773 NSF), Room 230 (90 NSF), 
Room 231 (203 NSF), Room 232 
(557 NSF), Room 233 (45 NSF)

14,490 0 $1,333,080 $92 $0

Renovation 2026 45 3 Renovating: Apply Painting, Floor 
Cover, Electrical, Plumbing, 
Windows, Lighting, Restrooms, 
HVAC Systems, Bell/Fire Alarm 
Systems, Retrofit for Technology to 
Room 301 (252 NSF), Room 302 
(57 NSF), Room 303 (322 NSF), 
Room 304 (622 NSF), Room 304A 
(9 NSF), Room 305 (229 NSF), 
Room 306 (60 NSF), Room 307 (53 
NSF), Room 308 (53 NSF), Room 
309 (115 NSF), Room 310 (260 
NSF), Room 311 (264 NSF), Room 
312 (138 NSF), Room 313 (503 
NSF), Room 314 (3311 NSF), Room 
316 (148 NSF), Room 317 (179 
NSF), Room 318 (188 NSF), Room 
319 (551 NSF), Room 320 (348 
NSF), Room 321 (187 NSF), Room 
322 (126 NSF), Room 323 (764 
NSF), Room 324 (90 NSF), Room 
324A (15 NSF)

8,844 0 $813,648 $92 $0

Page 469 of 962

DRAFT



MCRAE ELEMENTARY Parcel Building Description Total NSF Change In 
Station Count

Calculated 
Cost

Cost Per 
NSF

Cost Per 
Station

Renovation 2026 45 5 Renovating: Apply Painting, Floor 
Cover, Electrical, Plumbing, 
Windows, Lighting, Restrooms, 
HVAC Systems, Bell/Fire Alarm 
Systems, Retrofit for Technology to 
Room 500 (1873 NSF), Room 501 
(918 NSF), Room 502 (97 NSF), 
Room 503 (32 NSF), Room 504 (88 
NSF), Room 505 (88 NSF), Room 
506 (926 NSF), Room 507 (98 NSF), 
Room 508 (33 NSF), Room 509 
(924 NSF), Room 510 (98 NSF), 
Room 511 (33 NSF), Room 512 (88 
NSF), Room 513 (88 NSF), Room 
514 (921 NSF), Room 515 (99 NSF), 
Room 516 (33 NSF), Room 517 
(918 NSF), Room 518 (98 NSF), 
Room 519 (32 NSF), Room 520 (88 
NSF), Room 521 (88 NSF), Room 
522 (919 NSF), Room 523 (98 NSF), 
Room 524 (33 NSF), Room 525 
(920 NSF), Room 526 (99 NSF), 
Room 527 (32 NSF), Room 528 (87 
NSF), Room 529 (88 NSF), Room 
530 (918 NSF), Room 531 (99 NSF), 
Room 532 (32 NSF), Room 533 
(131 NSF), Room 534 (115 NSF), 
Room 536 (37 NSF), Room 537 (211 
NSF)

11,480 0 $1,056,160 $92 $0

Renovation 2026 45 6 Renovating: Apply Painting, Floor 
Cover, Electrical, Plumbing, 
Windows, Lighting, Restrooms, 
HVAC Systems, Bell/Fire Alarm 
Systems, Retrofit for Technology to 
Room 600 (1867 NSF), Room 601 
(906 NSF), Room 602 (93 NSF), 
Room 603 (33 NSF), Room 604 (87 
NSF), Room 605 (88 NSF), Room 
606 (930 NSF), Room 607 (106 
NSF), Room 608 (33 NSF), Room 
609 (926 NSF), Room 610 (99 NSF), 
Room 611 (33 NSF), Room 612 (88 
NSF), Room 613 (87 NSF), Room 
614 (914 NSF), Room 615 (98 NSF), 
Room 616 (33 NSF), Room 617 
(919 NSF), Room 618 (100 NSF), 
Room 619 (33 NSF), Room 620 (87 
NSF), Room 621 (88 NSF), Room 
622 (914 NSF), Room 623 (99 NSF), 
Room 624 (30 NSF), Room 625 
(927 NSF), Room 626 (98 NSF), 
Room 627 (33 NSF), Room 628 (88 
NSF), Room 629 (87 NSF), Room 
630 (493 NSF), Room 631 (100 
NSF), Room 632 (33 NSF), Room 
633 (464 NSF), Room 635 (14 NSF), 
Room 636 (49 NSF), Room 637 
(145 NSF), Room 638 (128 NSF)

11,350 0 $1,044,200 $92 $0

Page 470 of 962

DRAFT



District Name: CLAY COUNTY SCHOOL DISTRICT

Survey: Number 7 - Version 1

Facility Name: MIDDLEBURG ELEMENTARY

Address: 3958 MAIN STREET, MIDDLEBURG

Existing Recommended

Capital Outlay 
Classification

1 - SCHOOL RECOMMENDED FOR 
CONTINUED USE

1 - SCHOOL RECOMMENDED FOR 
CONTINUED USE

Facility Use ELEMENTARY ELEMENTARY

Low Grade PRE-K E S E PRE-K E S E

High Grade GRADE 6 GRADE 6

Comments

Existing
Student Stations 

Added/Reduced(+ or -) Recommended

Perm. Stations 518 0 518

Reloc. Stations 132 -46 86

Mod. Stations 0 0 0

Total Stations 650 -46 604

Utilization Factor 100% 100%

School Capacity 650 604

COFTE Student 
Membership 537 541

Survey Annotation

Remove 3 portables in excess of 20 years of age.                Renovate Buildings 2, 4, & 9.        
                                         Construct additional parking. (20 spaces)                                  
Construct Elementary Covered Play.                              Correct site drainage problems.
Construct additional Covered Walkways where needed. 
(Other)
District-Wide Recommendations for this facility are: Improve security fencing and lighting.

New Site Cost Site 
Expansion

Site 
Development

Site 
Improvement

Remodeling 
Cost

Renovation 
Cost

New 
Construction 

Cost

$0 $0 $0 $195,000 $28,884 $1,602,824 $138,000

Estimated Total Project Cost $1,964,708

MIDDLEBURG 
ELEMENTARY

Parcel Building Description Total NSF Change In 
Station Count

Calculated 
Cost

Cost Per 
NSF

Cost Per 
Station

New Construction 2026 New Construction: Adding 1 unit of 
ELEMENTARY COVERED PLAY 
AREA (500 NSF)

500 0 $138,000 $276 $0

Remodeling 2026 12 92 Removed NSF (2407), Added NSF 
(0), Difference NSF (2407), Percent 
(100%), Removed Stations (46), 
Added Stations (0) Remodeling: 
Adding  and Removing Room 024 
(738 NSF), Room 024A (25 NSF), 
Room 025 (839 NSF), Room 025A 
(25 NSF), Room 037 (755 NSF), 
Room 037A (25 NSF)

-2,407 -46 $28,884 $12 $0

Page 471 of 962

DRAFT



MIDDLEBURG 
ELEMENTARY

Parcel Building Description Total NSF Change In 
Station Count

Calculated 
Cost

Cost Per 
NSF

Cost Per 
Station

Renovation 2026 12 2 Renovating: Apply Painting, Floor 
Cover, Electrical, Plumbing, 
Windows, Lighting, Restrooms, 
HVAC Systems, Bell/Fire Alarm 
Systems, Retrofit for Technology to 
Room 001 (820 NSF), Room 002 
(16 NSF), Room 003 (1101 NSF), 
Room 004 (314 NSF), Room 005 
(71 NSF), Room 006 (84 NSF), 
Room 007 (82 NSF), Room 008 (23 
NSF), Room 010 (15 NSF)

2,526 0 $232,392 $92 $0

Renovation 2026 12 4 Renovating: Apply Painting, Floor 
Cover, Electrical, Plumbing, 
Windows, Lighting, Restrooms, 
HVAC Systems, Bell/Fire Alarm 
Systems, Retrofit for Technology to 
Room 017 (749 NSF), Room 018 
(749 NSF), Room 019 (749 NSF), 
Room 020 (749 NSF), Room 021 
(749 NSF), Room 022 (749 NSF), 
Room 023 (826 NSF), Room 026 
(168 NSF), Room 027 (168 NSF), 
Room 029 (54 NSF), Room 030 
(171 NSF), Room 031 (171 NSF), 
Room 042 (593 NSF), Room 043 
(593 NSF)

7,238 0 $665,896 $92 $0

Renovation 2026 12 9 Renovating: Apply Painting, Floor 
Cover, Electrical, Plumbing, 
Windows, Lighting, Restrooms, 
HVAC Systems, Bell/Fire Alarm 
Systems, Retrofit for Technology to 
Room 101 (3312 NSF), Room 102 
(174 NSF), Room 103 (336 NSF), 
Room 104 (353 NSF), Room 105 
(122 NSF), Room 106 (283 NSF), 
Room 107 (243 NSF), Room 108 
(139 NSF), Room 109 (40 NSF), 
Room 110 (40 NSF), Room 111 (100 
NSF), Room 112 (148 NSF), Room 
113 (199 NSF), Room 114 (65 NSF), 
Room 115 (550 NSF), Room 116 
(650 NSF), Room 117 (426 NSF), 
Room 117A (96 NSF), Room 118 
(191 NSF), Room 119 (191 NSF)

7,658 0 $704,536 $92 $0

Page 472 of 962

DRAFT



District Name: CLAY COUNTY SCHOOL DISTRICT

Survey: Number 7 - Version 1

Facility Name: MIDDLEBURG SENIOR HIGH

Address: 3750 STATE ROAD 220, MIDDLEBURG

Existing Recommended

Capital Outlay 
Classification

1 - SCHOOL RECOMMENDED FOR 
CONTINUED USE

1 - SCHOOL RECOMMENDED FOR 
CONTINUED USE

Facility Use SENIOR HIGH SENIOR HIGH

Low Grade GRADE 9 GRADE 9

High Grade GRADE 12 GRADE 12

Comments

Existing
Student Stations 

Added/Reduced(+ or -) Recommended

Perm. Stations 1,554 0 1554

Reloc. Stations 955 -282 673

Mod. Stations 0 0 0

Total Stations 2,509 -282 2227

Utilization Factor 95% 95%

School Capacity 2,383 2115

COFTE Student 
Membership 1,589 1,599

Survey Annotation

Expand Dining area.                                                   Construct Parent and Bus Pick Up and 
drop off areas.                                      
Renovate Building 1.                                                                   Remove 13 portables in 
excess of 20 years of age.                                                           
Correct Site Drainage Problems.                                 
Construct Additional Covered Walkways Where Needed.
(Other)
District-Wide Recommendations for this facility are: Improve Security Fencing and Lighting.

New Site Cost Site 
Expansion

Site 
Development

Site 
Improvement

Remodeling 
Cost

Renovation 
Cost

New 
Construction 

Cost

$0 $0 $0 $480,000 $119,640 $24,840,417 $0

Estimated Total Project Cost $25,440,057

Page 473 of 962

DRAFT



MIDDLEBURG SENIOR 
HIGH

Parcel Building Description Total NSF Change In 
Station Count

Calculated 
Cost

Cost Per 
NSF

Cost Per 
Station

Remodeling 2026 22 92 Removed NSF (9970), Added NSF 
(0), Difference NSF (9970), Percent 
(100%), Removed Stations (282), 
Added Stations (0) Remodeling: 
Adding  and Removing Room 007 
(730 NSF), Room 009 (750 NSF), 
Room 009A (27 NSF), Room 034 
(734 NSF), Room 035 (734 NSF), 
Room 055 (754 NSF), Room 055A 
(36 NSF), Room 060 (754 NSF), 
Room 071 (759 NSF), Room 071A 
(26 NSF), Room 073 (764 NSF), 
Room 073A (83 NSF), Room 081 
(754 NSF), Room 082 (731 NSF), 
Room 084 (777 NSF), Room 084A 
(25 NSF), Room 086 (778 NSF), 
Room 088 (754 NSF)

-9,970 -282 $119,640 $12 $0

Renovation 2026 22 1 Renovating: Apply Painting, Floor 
Cover, Electrical, Plumbing, 
Windows, Lighting, Restrooms, 
HVAC Systems, Bell/Fire Alarm 
Systems, Retrofit for Technology to 
Room 001 (396 NSF), Room 001A 
(363 NSF), Room 002 (237 NSF), 
Room 003 (1083 NSF), Room 004A 
(74 NSF), Room 004B (148 NSF), 
Room 005 (24 NSF), Room 006 (23 
NSF), Room 007 (184 NSF), Room 
008 (160 NSF), Room 009 (30 NSF), 
Room 010 (30 NSF), Room 011 (210 
NSF), Room 012 (34 NSF), Room 
013 (36 NSF), Room 014 (375 NSF), 
Room 015 (138 NSF), Room 016 
(28 NSF), Room 017 (28 NSF), 
Room 018 (251 NSF), Room 018A 
(166 NSF), Room 019 (126 NSF), 
Room 020 (129 NSF), Room 021 
(113 NSF), Room 022 (113 NSF), 
Room 023 (130 NSF), Room 024 
(240 NSF), Room 025 (129 NSF), 
Room 026 (200 NSF), Room 027 
(44 NSF), Room 028 (44 NSF), 
Room 029 (161 NSF), Room 030 
(109 NSF), Room 031 (285 NSF), 
Room 032 (136 NSF), Room 033 
(375 NSF), Room 034 (567 NSF), 
Room 035 (136 NSF), Room 036 
(265 NSF), Room 037 (310 NSF), 
Room 038 (247 NSF), Room 039 
(170 NSF), Room 040 (77 NSF), 
Room 041 (106 NSF), Room 042 
(242 NSF), Room 043 (132 NSF), 
Room 044 (132 NSF), Room 045 
(240 NSF), Room 046 (104 NSF), 
Room 046A (104 NSF), Room 047 
(137 NSF), Room 048 (137 NSF), 
Room 049 (137 NSF), Room 050 
(324 NSF), Room 050A (109 NSF), 
Room 050B (189 NSF), Room 051 
(415 NSF), Room 052 (213 NSF), 
Room 053 (220 NSF), Room 054 
(1083 NSF), Room 055 (1437 NSF), 
Room 056 (105 NSF), Room 057 
(70 NSF), Room 058 (75 NSF), 
Room 059 (75 NSF), Room 060 
(168 NSF), Room 061 (630 NSF), 
Room 062 (124 NSF), Room 063 
(124 NSF), Room 064 (124 NSF), 
Room 065 (82 NSF), Room 066 (94 
NSF), Room 067 (631 NSF), Room 
068 (1287 NSF), Room 069 (786 
NSF), Room 070 (81 NSF), Room 
070A (142 NSF), Room 070B (78 
NSF), Room 070C (148 NSF), Room 
071 (325 NSF), Room 071A (112 

208,743 0 $24,840,417 $119 $0

Page 474 of 962

DRAFT



NSF), Room 071B (109 NSF), Room 
071C (112 NSF), Room 071D (74 
NSF), Room 072 (1168 NSF), Room 
073 (280 NSF), Room 074 (280 
NSF), Room 075 (25 NSF), Room 
076 (50 NSF), Room 077 (25 NSF), 
Room 078 (2360 NSF), Room 079 
(1640 NSF), Room 080 (35 NSF), 
Room 081 (35 NSF), Room 082 (35 
NSF), Room 083 (35 NSF), Room 
084 (35 NSF), Room 085 (35 NSF), 
Room 086 (35 NSF), Room 087 (35 
NSF), Room 088 (810 NSF), Room 
089 (810 NSF), Room 090 (810 
NSF), Room 091 (810 NSF), Room 
092 (795 NSF), Room 093 (795 
NSF), Room 094 (795 NSF), Room 
095 (397 NSF), Room 096 (1087 
NSF), Room 098 (30 NSF), Room 
099 (38 NSF), Room 100 (38 NSF), 
Room 101 (38 NSF), Room 102 (38 
NSF), Room 103 (38 NSF), Room 
104 (38 NSF), Room 106 (429 NSF), 
Room 107 (1087 NSF), Room 108 
(404 NSF), Room 108A (165 NSF), 
Room 109 (204 NSF), Room 110 
(312 NSF), Room 111 (1271 NSF), 
Room 112 (1271 NSF), Room 113 
(1105 NSF), Room 114 (783 NSF), 
Room 115 (88 NSF), Room 116 (275 
NSF), Room 117 (350 NSF), Room 
118 (250 NSF), Room 119 (795 
NSF), Room 120 (795 NSF), Room 
121 (680 NSF), Room 122 (1590 
NSF), Room 123 (96 NSF), Room 
124 (175 NSF), Room 125 (105 
NSF), Room 126 (266 NSF), Room 
127 (288 NSF), Room 128 (64 NSF), 
Room 129 (1590 NSF), Room 129A 
(1140 NSF), Room 130 (512 NSF), 
Room 132 (1152 NSF), Room 133 
(1074 NSF), Room 134 (1074 NSF), 
Room 135 (1074 NSF), Room 136 
(1136 NSF), Room 137 (1136 NSF), 
Room 138 (1936 NSF), Room 139 
(795 NSF), Room 140 (795 NSF), 
Room 141 (795 NSF), Room 142 
(795 NSF), Room 143 (75 NSF), 
Room 143A (75 NSF), Room 144 
(2205 NSF), Room 145 (2283 NSF), 
Room 147 (80 NSF), Room 148 
(3862 NSF), Room 149 (2280 NSF), 
Room 150 (253 NSF), Room 151 
(607 NSF), Room 152 (2283 NSF), 
Room 153 (128 NSF), Room 154A 
(522 NSF), Room 154B (522 NSF), 
Room 155 (128 NSF), Room 156 
(469 NSF), Room 157 (770 NSF), 
Room 158 (126 NSF), Room 159 
(610 NSF), Room 160 (336 NSF), 
Room 161 (1244 NSF), Room 162 
(145 NSF), Room 163 (372 NSF), 
Room 164 (527 NSF), Room 165 
(1635 NSF), Room 166 (977 NSF), 
Room 167 (207 NSF), Room 168 
(977 NSF), Room 169 (207 NSF), 
Room 170 (513 NSF), Room 171 
(297 NSF), Room 172 (274 NSF), 
Room 173 (25 NSF), Room 174 (50 
NSF), Room 175 (25 NSF), Room 
176 (152 NSF), Room 177 (284 
NSF), Room 178 (767 NSF), Room 
179 (160 NSF), Room 180 (232 
NSF), Room 181 (830 NSF), Room 
182 (830 NSF), Room 183 (830 
NSF), Room 184 (830 NSF), Room 
185 (830 NSF), Room 186 (223 
NSF), Room 187 (1600 NSF), Room 
188 (715 NSF), Room 189 (830 
NSF), Room 190 (830 NSF), Room 

Page 475 of 962

DRAFT



191 (830 NSF), Room 192 (830 
NSF), Room 193 (2400 NSF), Room 
194 (1984 NSF), Room 195 (1591 
NSF), Room 196 (224 NSF), Room 
197 (480 NSF), Room 198 (84 NSF), 
Room 199 (280 NSF), Room 200 
(100 NSF), Room 200B (225 NSF), 
Room 201 (140 NSF), Room 202 
(10 NSF), Room 203 (392 NSF), 
Room 204 (1536 NSF), Room 204A 
(128 NSF), Room 204B (128 NSF), 
Room 205 (45 NSF), Room 206 (36 
NSF), Room 207 (144 NSF), Room 
208 (86 NSF), Room 209 (99 NSF), 
Room 210 (208 NSF), Room 210A 
(24 NSF), Room 211 (888 NSF), 
Room 211A (46 NSF), Room 211B 
(41 NSF), Room 212 (5548 NSF), 
Room 213 (1000 NSF), Room 214 
(325 NSF), Room 215 (208 NSF), 
Room 216 (20 NSF), Room 217 
(1231 NSF), Room 218 (253 NSF), 
Room 219 (253 NSF), Room 220 
(143 NSF), Room 221 (1427 NSF), 
Room 222 (227 NSF), Room 223 
(173 NSF), Room 224 (583 NSF), 
Room 226 (1273 NSF), Room 227 
(168 NSF), Room 228 (325 NSF), 
Room 229A (84 NSF), Room 229B 
(406 NSF), Room 229C (229 NSF), 
Room 230 (129 NSF), Room 230A 
(90 NSF), Room 231 (539 NSF), 
Room 232 (135 NSF), Room 233 
(87 NSF), Room 234 (87 NSF), 
Room 234A (24 NSF), Room 235 
(683 NSF), Room 236 (66 NSF), 
Room 237 (100 NSF), Room 238 
(64 NSF), Room 239 (1250 NSF), 
Room 240 (1133 NSF), Room 241 
(1182 NSF), Room 242 (577 NSF), 
Room 243 (144 NSF), Room 244 
(131 NSF), Room 245 (100 NSF), 
Room 246 (98 NSF), Room 247 
(200 NSF), Room 247A (25 NSF), 
Room 248 (200 NSF), Room 248A 
(25 NSF), Room 249 (50 NSF), 
Room 250 (1620 NSF), Room 251 
(1063 NSF), Room 251A (168 NSF), 
Room 252 (168 NSF), Room 253 
(1097 NSF), Room 254 (858 NSF), 
Room 256 (93 NSF), Room 257 (119 
NSF), Room 258 (900 NSF), Room 
259 (961 NSF), Room 260 (120 
NSF), Room 262 (733 NSF), Room 
263 (1147 NSF), Room 264 (150 
NSF), Room 265 (175 NSF), Room 
266 (262 NSF), Room 267 (100 
NSF), Room 267B (55 NSF), Room 
268 (260 NSF), Room 269 (156 
NSF), Room 270 (676 NSF), Room 
271 (160 NSF), Room 272 (242 
NSF), Room 273 (138 NSF), Room 
274 (886 NSF), Room 275 (110 
NSF), Room 275A (50 NSF), Room 
276 (185 NSF), Room 277 (192 
NSF), Room 278 (588 NSF), Room 
279 (318 NSF), Room 280 (513 
NSF), Room 281 (123 NSF), Room 
281A (35 NSF), Room 281B (22 
NSF), Room 282 (1224 NSF), Room 
283 (840 NSF), Room 283A (1170 
NSF), Room 284 (1920 NSF), Room 
284A (1164 NSF), Room 285 (12025 
NSF), Room 286 (1568 NSF), Room 
287 (76 NSF), Room 287A (76 
NSF), Room 288 (112 NSF), Room 
289 (328 NSF), Room 290 (364 
NSF), Room 291 (84 NSF), Room 
291A (40 NSF), Room 292 (44 
NSF), Room 293 (467 NSF), Room 

Page 476 of 962

DRAFT



294 (1600 NSF), Room 295 (392 
NSF), Room 296 (50 NSF), Room 
297 (194 NSF), Room 298 (168 
NSF), Room 299 (174 NSF), Room 
300 (351 NSF), Room 301 (114 
NSF), Room 301A (114 NSF), Room 
302 (513 NSF), Room 303 (139 
NSF), Room 304 (68 NSF), Room 
305 (56 NSF), Room 306 (593 NSF), 
Room 307 (238 NSF), Room 308 
(60 NSF), Room 309 (274 NSF), 
Room 309A (32 NSF), Room 310 
(245 NSF), Room 312 (1721 NSF), 
Room 312A (113 NSF), Room 313 
(494 NSF), Room 314 (669 NSF), 
Room 315 (33 NSF), Room 316 (99 
NSF), Room 316A (33 NSF), Room 
317 (150 NSF), Room 318 (150 
NSF), Room 319 (132 NSF), Room 
320 (95 NSF), Room 321 (10 NSF), 
Room 321A (10 NSF), Room 322 
(1524 NSF), Room 323 (226 NSF), 
Room 324 (144 NSF), Room 325 
(52 NSF), Room 326 (36 NSF), 
Room 327 (78 NSF), Room 328 
(124 NSF), Room 329 (147 NSF), 
Room 330 (99 NSF), Room 331 (96 
NSF), Room 332 (96 NSF), Room 
333 (42 NSF), Room 334 (42 NSF), 
Room 335 (2092 NSF), Room 336 
(281 NSF), Room 337A (41 NSF), 
Room 337B (41 NSF), Room 338 
(217 NSF), Room 339 (1920 NSF), 
Room 340 (3423 NSF), Room 341 
(1132 NSF), Room 341A (1237 
NSF), Room 342 (456 NSF), Room 
342A (96 NSF), Room 343 (270 
NSF), Room 344 (188 NSF), Room 
345 (176 NSF), Room 346 (139 
NSF), Room 347 (123 NSF), Room 
348 (172 NSF), Room 349 (180 
NSF), Room 350 (203 NSF), Room 
351 (540 NSF), Room 352 (55 NSF), 
Room 353 (30 NSF), Room 354 
(188 NSF), Room 355 (488 NSF), 
Room 356 (183 NSF), Room 357 
(147 NSF), Room 358 (1017 NSF), 
Room 358A (807 NSF), Room 359 
(119 NSF), Room 360 (3834 NSF), 
Room 361 (869 NSF), Room 361A 
(637 NSF), Room 361B (1362 NSF), 
Room 361C (120 NSF), Room 361D 
(37 NSF), Room 361E (37 NSF), 
Room 362 (180 NSF), Room 363 
(255 NSF), Room 364 (165 NSF), 
Room 365 (173 NSF), Room 366 
(293 NSF), Room 367 (2808 NSF), 
Room 368 (528 NSF), Room 369 
(120 NSF), Room 370 (252 NSF), 
Room 370A (207 NSF), Room 371 
(218 NSF), Room 372 (218 NSF), 
Room 373 (476 NSF), Room 374 
(280 NSF), Room 375 (140 NSF), 
Room 376 (30 NSF), Room 377 (30 
NSF), Room 378 (2304 NSF)

Page 477 of 962

DRAFT



District Name: CLAY COUNTY SCHOOL DISTRICT

Survey: Number 7 - Version 1

Facility Name: MIDDLEBURG TRANSPORTATION

Address: 3674 COUNTY ROAD 220, MIDDLEBURG

Existing Recommended

Capital Outlay 
Classification

6 - ANCILLARY RECOMMENDED FOR 
CONTINUED USE

6 - ANCILLARY RECOMMENDED FOR 
CONTINUED USE

Facility Use TRANSPORTATION TRANSPORTATION

Low Grade DISTRICT SERVICES DISTRICT SERVICES

High Grade DISTRICT SERVICES DISTRICT SERVICES

Comments

Existing
Student Stations 

Added/Reduced(+ or -) Recommended

Perm. Stations 0 0 0

Reloc. Stations 0 0 0

Mod. Stations 0 0 0

Total Stations 0 0 0

Utilization Factor 0% 0%

School Capacity 0 0

COFTE Student 
Membership 0 0

Survey Annotation Pave parking lot beside Administration Building.                        Add 4 maintenance bays.

New Site Cost Site 
Expansion

Site 
Development

Site 
Improvement

Remodeling 
Cost

Renovation 
Cost

New 
Construction 

Cost

$0 $0 $0 $400,000 $381,098 $0 $1,466,720

Estimated Total Project Cost $2,247,818

MIDDLEBURG 
TRANSPORTATION

Parcel Building Description Total NSF Change In 
Station Count

Calculated 
Cost

Cost Per 
NSF

Cost Per 
Station

New Construction 2026 New Construction: Adding 4 units of 
SCHOOL BUS WORK BAY (400 
NSF)

1,600 0 $569,600 $356 $0

Page 478 of 962

DRAFT



MIDDLEBURG 
TRANSPORTATION

Parcel Building Description Total NSF Change In 
Station Count

Calculated 
Cost

Cost Per 
NSF

Cost Per 
Station

New Construction 2026 New Construction: Adding 1 unit of 
ANCILLARY ADMINISTRATIVE 
OFFICE (300 NSF), 7 units of 
ANCILLARY ADMINISTRATIVE 
OFFICE (100 NSF), 1 unit of 
ANCILLARY RECEPTION AREA 
(150 NSF), 1 unit of ANCILLARY 
SECRETARIAL/CLERICAL OFFICE 
(150 NSF), 1 unit of ANCILLARY 
CONFERENCE ROOM (400 NSF), 
1 unit of OTHER ANCILLARY 
ADMINISTRATIVE SUPPORT (200 
NSF), 1 unit of ANCILLARY 
RESTROOM (MALE) (50 NSF), 1 
unit of ANCILLARY RESTROOM 
(FEMALE) (50 NSF), 1 unit of 
ANCILLARY RESTROOM 
(FEMALE) (50 NSF), 1 unit of 
ANCILLARY MEDIA COPYING 
ROOM (50 NSF), 2 units of 
ANCILLARY SUPPORT STORAGE 
(60 NSF), 2 units of INSIDE 
CIRCULATION (150 NSF)

2,520 0 $897,120 $356 $0

Remodeling 2026 36 95 Removed NSF (2141), Added NSF 
(0), Difference NSF (2141), Percent 
(100%), Removed Stations (0), 
Added Stations (0) Remodeling: 
Adding  and Removing Room 501 
(524 NSF), Room 501A (162 NSF), 
Room 501B (27 NSF), Room 502 
(387 NSF), Room 502A (120 NSF), 
Room 502B (171 NSF), Room 502C 
(28 NSF), Room 503 (580 NSF), 
Room 503A (115 NSF), Room 503B 
(27 NSF)

-2,141 0 $381,098 $178 $0

Page 479 of 962

DRAFT



District Name: CLAY COUNTY SCHOOL DISTRICT

Survey: Number 7 - Version 1

Facility Name: MONTCLAIR ELEMENTARY

Address: 2398 MOODY ROAD, ORANGE PARK

Existing Recommended

Capital Outlay 
Classification

1 - SCHOOL RECOMMENDED FOR 
CONTINUED USE

1 - SCHOOL RECOMMENDED FOR 
CONTINUED USE

Facility Use ELEMENTARY ELEMENTARY

Low Grade PRE-K E S E PRE-K E S E

High Grade GRADE 6 GRADE 6

Comments

Existing
Student Stations 

Added/Reduced(+ or -) Recommended

Perm. Stations 252 140 392

Reloc. Stations 397 -277 120

Mod. Stations 0 0 0

Total Stations 649 -137 512

Utilization Factor 100% 100%

School Capacity 649 512

COFTE Student 
Membership 473 464

Survey Annotation

Renovate Buildings 1, 2, 4.
Re-design and Construct Parent and Bus Pick Up and Drop Off Areas. 
Construct  (5) Intermediate Classrooms, (1) Elem Art, (1) Elem Music, (1) ESE PK, (1) ESE 
PT and (1) ESE FT.  
Correct Site Drainage Problems.                                 
Construct Additional Covered Walkways Where Needed.   
Remove 14 portables in excess of 20 years of age.
(Other)
District-Wide Recommendations for this facility are: Improve Security Fencing and Lighting.

New Site Cost Site 
Expansion

Site 
Development

Site 
Improvement

Remodeling 
Cost

Renovation 
Cost

New 
Construction 

Cost

$0 $0 $0 $195,000 $124,680 $2,289,328 $3,558,660

Estimated Total Project Cost $6,167,668

MONTCLAIR 
ELEMENTARY

Parcel Building Description Total NSF Change In 
Station Count

Calculated 
Cost

Cost Per 
NSF

Cost Per 
Station

New Construction 2026 New Construction: Adding 5 units of 
INTERMEDIATE/MIDDLE 
CLASSROOM (4-8) (858 NSF), 1 
unit of ART - ELEMENTARY (1110 
NSF), 1 unit of MUSIC - 
ELEMENTARY (1560 NSF), 1 unit of 
E S E PRE-K (475 NSF), 1 unit of E 
S E PART-TIME (975 NSF), 1 unit of 
E S E FULL-TIME (950 NSF)

11,760 140 $3,558,660 $303 $25,419

Page 480 of 962

DRAFT



MONTCLAIR 
ELEMENTARY

Parcel Building Description Total NSF Change In 
Station Count

Calculated 
Cost

Cost Per 
NSF

Cost Per 
Station

Remodeling 2026 21 92 Removed NSF (10390), Added NSF 
(0), Difference NSF (10390), Percent 
(100%), Removed Stations (277), 
Added Stations (0) Remodeling: 
Adding  and Removing Room 024 
(754 NSF), Room 024A (25 NSF), 
Room 027 (729 NSF), Room 029 
(750 NSF), Room 029A (25 NSF), 
Room 031 (750 NSF), Room 032 
(681 NSF), Room 032A (49 NSF), 
Room 033 (729 NSF), Room 033A 
(25 NSF), Room 034 (729 NSF), 
Room 035 (729 NSF), Room 038 
(729 NSF), Room 042 (734 NSF), 
Room 043 (732 NSF), Room 044 
(729 NSF), Room 045 (735 NSF), 
Room 047 (756 NSF)

-10,390 -277 $124,680 $12 $0

Renovation 2026 21 1 Renovating: Apply Painting, Floor 
Cover, Electrical, Plumbing, 
Windows, Lighting, Restrooms, 
HVAC Systems, Bell/Fire Alarm 
Systems, Retrofit for Technology to 
Room 101 (206 NSF), Room 102 
(281 NSF), Room 103 (32 NSF), 
Room 104 (30 NSF), Room 105 (112 
NSF), Room 105A (36 NSF), Room 
106 (120 NSF), Room 107 (180 
NSF), Room 108 (382 NSF), Room 
109 (262 NSF), Room 110 (108 
NSF), Room 111 (70 NSF), Room 
112 (193 NSF), Room 113 (60 NSF), 
Room 114 (114 NSF), Room 114A 
(77 NSF), Room 115 (69 NSF), 
Room 116 (185 NSF), Room 119 
(211 NSF), Room 120 (213 NSF), 
Room 121 (178 NSF), Room 122 
(144 NSF), Room 123 (65 NSF), 
Room 124 (400 NSF), Room 125 
(174 NSF), Room 125A (100 NSF), 
Room 126 (2654 NSF)

6,656 0 $612,352 $92 $0

Renovation 2026 21 2 Renovating: Apply Painting, Floor 
Cover, Electrical, Plumbing, 
Windows, Lighting, Restrooms, 
HVAC Systems, Bell/Fire Alarm 
Systems, Retrofit for Technology to 
Room 129 (41 NSF), Room 131 
(120 NSF), Room 132 (51 NSF), 
Room 133 (686 NSF), Room 134 
(115 NSF), Room 135 (47 NSF), 
Room 137 (41 NSF), Room 138 
(3125 NSF), Room 139 (221 NSF), 
Room 140 (24 NSF), Room 142 (88 
NSF), Room 144 (558 NSF), Room 
145 (40 NSF), Room 146 (46 NSF), 
Room 147 (49 NSF), Room 150 (74 
NSF), Room 151 (75 NSF), Room 
152 (67 NSF), Room 153 (134 NSF), 
Room 154 (469 NSF)

6,071 0 $558,532 $92 $0

Page 481 of 962

DRAFT



MONTCLAIR 
ELEMENTARY

Parcel Building Description Total NSF Change In 
Station Count

Calculated 
Cost

Cost Per 
NSF

Cost Per 
Station

Renovation 2026 21 4 Renovating: Apply Painting, Floor 
Cover, Electrical, Plumbing, 
Windows, Lighting, Restrooms, 
HVAC Systems, Bell/Fire Alarm 
Systems, Retrofit for Technology to 
Room 401 (1008 NSF), Room 402 
(152 NSF), Room 403 (52 NSF), 
Room 404 (44 NSF), Room 405 (44 
NSF), Room 406 (52 NSF), Room 
407 (1008 NSF), Room 408 (1008 
NSF), Room 409 (152 NSF), Room 
410 (52 NSF), Room 411 (44 NSF), 
Room 412 (44 NSF), Room 413 (52 
NSF), Room 414 (1008 NSF), Room 
415 (1620 NSF), Room 416 (1008 
NSF), Room 417 (152 NSF), Room 
418 (52 NSF), Room 419 (44 NSF), 
Room 420 (44 NSF), Room 421 (52 
NSF), Room 422 (1008 NSF), Room 
423 (1008 NSF), Room 424 (152 
NSF), Room 425 (52 NSF), Room 
426 (44 NSF), Room 427 (44 NSF), 
Room 428 (52 NSF), Room 429 
(1008 NSF), Room 430 (124 NSF), 
Room 431 (358 NSF), Room 432 
(181 NSF), Room 433 (68 NSF), 
Room 435 (24 NSF), Room 435A 
(42 NSF), Room 436 (214 NSF), 
Room 436A (42 NSF), Room 438 
(44 NSF)

12,157 0 $1,118,444 $92 $0

Page 482 of 962

DRAFT



District Name: CLAY COUNTY SCHOOL DISTRICT

Survey: Number 7 - Version 1

Facility Name: OAKLEAF HIGH SCHOOL

Address: 4035 PLANTATION OAKS BOULEVARD, ORANGE PARK

Existing Recommended

Capital Outlay 
Classification

1 - SCHOOL RECOMMENDED FOR 
CONTINUED USE

1 - SCHOOL RECOMMENDED FOR 
CONTINUED USE

Facility Use SENIOR HIGH SENIOR HIGH

Low Grade GRADE 9 GRADE 9

High Grade GRADE 12 GRADE 12

Comments

Existing
Student Stations 

Added/Reduced(+ or -) Recommended

Perm. Stations 1,679 0 1679

Reloc. Stations 910 0 910

Mod. Stations 0 0 0

Total Stations 2,589 0 2589

Utilization Factor 95% 95%

School Capacity 2,459 2459

COFTE Student 
Membership 2,459 2,414

Survey Annotation

Correct Site Drainage Problems.                                 
Construct Additional Covered Walkways Where Needed.   
(Other)
District-Wide Recommendations for this facility are: Improve Security Fencing and Lighting.

New Site Cost Site 
Expansion

Site 
Development

Site 
Improvement

Remodeling 
Cost

Renovation 
Cost

New 
Construction 

Cost

$0 $0 $0 $45,000 $0 $0 $0

Estimated Total Project Cost $45,000

OAKLEAF HIGH 
SCHOOL

Parcel Building Description Total NSF Change In 
Station Count

Calculated 
Cost

Cost Per 
NSF

Cost Per 
Station

 

Page 483 of 962

DRAFT



District Name: CLAY COUNTY SCHOOL DISTRICT

Survey: Number 7 - Version 1

Facility Name: OAKLEAF SCHOOL

Address: 4085 PLANTATION OAKS BOULEVARD, ORANGE PARK

Existing Recommended

Capital Outlay 
Classification

1 - SCHOOL RECOMMENDED FOR 
CONTINUED USE

1 - SCHOOL RECOMMENDED FOR 
CONTINUED USE

Facility Use MIDDLE JUNIOR HIGH

Low Grade GRADE 6 GRADE 7

High Grade GRADE 8 GRADE 8

Comments

Existing
Student Stations 

Added/Reduced(+ or -) Recommended

Perm. Stations 934 0 934

Reloc. Stations 704 0 704

Mod. Stations 0 0 0

Total Stations 1,638 0 1638

Utilization Factor 90% 90%

School Capacity 1,474 1474

COFTE Student 
Membership 1,171 1,100

Survey Annotation

The District will rename this facility "Oakleaf Junior High School.                                               
                                    Correct Site Drainage Problems.                                 
Construct Additional Covered Walkways Where Needed.   
(Other)
District-Wide Recommendations for this facility are: Improve Security Fencing and Lighting.

New Site Cost Site 
Expansion

Site 
Development

Site 
Improvement

Remodeling 
Cost

Renovation 
Cost

New 
Construction 

Cost

$0 $0 $0 $45,000 $0 $0 $0

Estimated Total Project Cost $45,000

OAKLEAF SCHOOL Parcel Building Description Total NSF Change In 
Station Count

Calculated 
Cost

Cost Per 
NSF

Cost Per 
Station

 

Page 484 of 962

DRAFT



District Name: CLAY COUNTY SCHOOL DISTRICT

Survey: Number 7 - Version 1

Facility Name: OAKLEAF VILLAGE ELEMENTARY

Address: 410 OAKLEAF VILLAGE PARKWAY, ORANGE PARK

Existing Recommended

Capital Outlay 
Classification

1 - SCHOOL RECOMMENDED FOR 
CONTINUED USE

1 - SCHOOL RECOMMENDED FOR 
CONTINUED USE

Facility Use ELEMENTARY ELEMENTARY

Low Grade PRE-K E S E PRE-K E S E

High Grade GRADE 6 GRADE 6

Comments

Existing
Student Stations 

Added/Reduced(+ or -) Recommended

Perm. Stations 881 0 881

Reloc. Stations 216 -36 180

Mod. Stations 0 0 0

Total Stations 1,097 -36 1061

Utilization Factor 100% 100%

School Capacity 1,097 1061

COFTE Student 
Membership 1,032 1,047

Survey Annotation

Construct Elementary Covered Play Area.                                 Correct Site Drainage 
Problems.                                 
Construct Additional Covered Walkways Where Needed.   
Remove 2 portables in excess of 20 years of age.
(Other)
District-Wide Recommendations for this facility are: Improve Security Fencing and Lighting.

New Site Cost Site 
Expansion

Site 
Development

Site 
Improvement

Remodeling 
Cost

Renovation 
Cost

New 
Construction 

Cost

$0 $0 $0 $45,000 $18,420 $0 $138,000

Estimated Total Project Cost $201,420

OAKLEAF VILLAGE 
ELEMENTARY

Parcel Building Description Total NSF Change In 
Station Count

Calculated 
Cost

Cost Per 
NSF

Cost Per 
Station

New Construction 2026 New Construction: Adding 1 unit of 
ELEMENTARY COVERED PLAY 
AREA (500 NSF)

500 0 $138,000 $276 $0

Remodeling 2026 55 92 Removed NSF (1535), Added NSF 
(0), Difference NSF (1535), Percent 
(100%), Removed Stations (36), 
Added Stations (0) Remodeling: 
Adding  and Removing Room 906 
(729 NSF), Room 906A (26 NSF), 
Room 907 (750 NSF), Room 907A 
(30 NSF)

-1,535 -36 $18,420 $12 $0

Page 485 of 962

DRAFT



District Name: CLAY COUNTY SCHOOL DISTRICT

Survey: Number 7 - Version 1

Facility Name: ORANGE PARK ELEMENTARY

Address: 1401 PLAINFIELD AVENUE, ORANGE PARK

Existing Recommended

Capital Outlay 
Classification

1 - SCHOOL RECOMMENDED FOR 
CONTINUED USE

1 - SCHOOL RECOMMENDED FOR 
CONTINUED USE

Facility Use ELEMENTARY ELEMENTARY

Low Grade PRE-K E S E PRE-K E S E

High Grade GRADE 6 GRADE 6

Comments

Existing
Student Stations 

Added/Reduced(+ or -) Recommended

Perm. Stations 250 153 403

Reloc. Stations 254 -164 90

Mod. Stations 0 0 0

Total Stations 504 -11 493

Utilization Factor 100% 100%

School Capacity 504 493

COFTE Student 
Membership 474 459

Survey Annotation

Correct Site Drainage Problems. Construct Additional Parking. Construct Additional Covered 
Walkways Where Needed.                                                                                       Remove 8 
portables in excess of 20 years of age.
Construct Elementary Covered Play Area, (4) Primary Classrooms, (3) Intermediate 
Classrooms, (2) Resource Rooms, Elem Music,  and (1) ESE PT.
Renovate Buildings 1-5 and 7.
(Other)
District-Wide Recommendations for this facility are: Improve Security Fencing and Lighting.

New Site Cost Site 
Expansion

Site 
Development

Site 
Improvement

Remodeling 
Cost

Renovation 
Cost

New 
Construction 

Cost

$0 $0 $0 $195,000 $73,404 $2,745,924 $3,889,107

Estimated Total Project Cost $6,903,435

Page 486 of 962

DRAFT



ORANGE PARK 
ELEMENTARY

Parcel Building Description Total NSF Change In 
Station Count

Calculated 
Cost

Cost Per 
NSF

Cost Per 
Station

New Construction 2026 New Construction: Adding 2 units of 
RESOURCE ROOM (290 NSF), 1 
unit of ELEMENTARY COVERED 
PLAY AREA (500 NSF), 1 unit of 
MUSIC - ELEMENTARY (1560 
NSF), 1 unit of E S E PART-TIME 
(975 NSF), 3 units of PRIMARY 
CLASSROOM (K-3) (882 NSF), 2 
units of INTERMEDIATE/MIDDLE 
CLASSROOM (4-8) (858 NSF), 1 
unit of PRIMARY CLASSROOM (K-
3) (882 NSF), 1 unit of 
INTERMEDIATE/MIDDLE 
CLASSROOM (4-8) (858 NSF)

12,057 153 $3,889,107 $323 $25,419

Remodeling 2026 6 92 Removed NSF (6117), Added NSF 
(0), Difference NSF (6117), Percent 
(100%), Removed Stations (164), 
Added Stations (0) Remodeling: 
Adding  and Removing Room 037 
(782 NSF), Room 038 (780 NSF), 
Room 038A (25 NSF), Room 043 
(734 NSF), Room 044 (750 NSF), 
Room 044A (25 NSF), Room 045 
(713 NSF), Room 050 (752 NSF), 
Room 050A (25 NSF), Room 051 
(752 NSF), Room 051A (25 NSF), 
Room 052 (729 NSF), Room 052A 
(25 NSF)

-6,117 -164 $73,404 $12 $0

Renovation 2026 6 1 Renovating: Apply Painting, Floor 
Cover, Electrical, Plumbing, 
Windows, Lighting, Restrooms, 
HVAC Systems, Bell/Fire Alarm 
Systems, Retrofit for Technology to 
Room 001 (212 NSF), Room 001A 
(175 NSF), Room 001B (137 NSF), 
Room 001C (109 NSF), Room 001D 
(29 NSF), Room 001E (73 NSF), 
Room 002 (210 NSF), Room 002A 
(40 NSF), Room 002B (40 NSF), 
Room 002C (309 NSF), Room 002D 
(67 NSF), Room 002E (39 NSF), 
Room 003 (185 NSF), Room 003A 
(64 NSF), Room 003B (213 NSF), 
Room 003C (7 NSF), Room 003D 
(178 NSF), Room 004 (697 NSF), 
Room 004A (87 NSF), Room 004B 
(31 NSF), Room 005 (2049 NSF), 
Room 005A (261 NSF), Room 005B 
(11 NSF), Room 006 (117 NSF), 
Room 006A (30 NSF), Room 006B 
(6 NSF), Room 007 (188 NSF), 
Room 007A (22 NSF), Room 008 
(22 NSF), Room 009 (188 NSF), 
Room 010 (53 NSF), Room 011 (137 
NSF), Room 012 (152 NSF), Room 
013 (168 NSF), Room 014 (16 NSF), 
Room 015 (28 NSF), Room 800 
(1393 NSF)

7,743 0 $712,356 $92 $0

Renovation 2026 6 2 Renovating: Apply Painting, Floor 
Cover, Electrical, Plumbing, 
Windows, Lighting, Restrooms, 
HVAC Systems, Bell/Fire Alarm 
Systems, Retrofit for Technology to 
Room 005 (801 NSF), Room 005A 
(24 NSF), Room 006 (797 NSF), 
Room 006A (24 NSF), Room 007 
(812 NSF), Room 007A (27 NSF)

2,485 0 $228,620 $92 $0

Page 487 of 962

DRAFT



ORANGE PARK 
ELEMENTARY

Parcel Building Description Total NSF Change In 
Station Count

Calculated 
Cost

Cost Per 
NSF

Cost Per 
Station

Renovation 2026 6 3 Renovating: Apply Painting, Floor 
Cover, Electrical, Plumbing, 
Windows, Lighting, Restrooms, 
HVAC Systems, Bell/Fire Alarm 
Systems, Retrofit for Technology to 
Room 008 (780 NSF), Room 008A 
(12 NSF), Room 008B (12 NSF), 
Room 009A (336 NSF), Room 009B 
(336 NSF), Room 059 (124 NSF), 
Room 060 (113 NSF), Room 061 
(311 NSF), Room 061A (22 NSF), 
Room 061B (21 NSF), Room 061C 
(65 NSF)

2,132 0 $196,144 $92 $0

Renovation 2026 6 4 Renovating: Apply Painting, Floor 
Cover, Electrical, Plumbing, 
Windows, Lighting, Restrooms, 
HVAC Systems, Bell/Fire Alarm 
Systems, Retrofit for Technology to 
Room 062 (929 NSF), Room 063 
(88 NSF), Room 063A (4 NSF), 
Room 064 (123 NSF), Room 065 
(34 NSF), Room 066 (94 NSF), 
Room 067 (112 NSF), Room 068 
(108 NSF), Room 073 (413 NSF), 
Room 080 (780 NSF), Room 080A 
(104 NSF), Room 081 (152 NSF), 
Room 082 (363 NSF), Room 083 
(2261 NSF), Room 084 (145 NSF), 
Room 085 (163 NSF), Room 086 
(184 NSF), Room 087 (859 NSF), 
Room 088 (163 NSF), Room 089 
(190 NSF), Room 090 (113 NSF), 
Room 091 (47 NSF), Room 092 
(230 NSF)

7,659 0 $704,628 $92 $0

Renovation 2026 6 5 Renovating: Apply Painting, Floor 
Cover, Electrical, Plumbing, 
Windows, Lighting, Restrooms, 
HVAC Systems, Bell/Fire Alarm 
Systems, Retrofit for Technology to 
Room 016 (807 NSF), Room 016A 
(93 NSF), Room 016B (15 NSF), 
Room 016C (15 NSF), Room 016D 
(21 NSF), Room 016E (20 NSF), 
Room 017 (807 NSF), Room 017A 
(93 NSF), Room 017B (15 NSF), 
Room 017C (15 NSF), Room 017D 
(21 NSF), Room 017E (20 NSF), 
Room 018 (807 NSF), Room 018A 
(93 NSF), Room 018B (15 NSF), 
Room 018C (15 NSF), Room 018D 
(21 NSF), Room 018E (20 NSF), 
Room 019 (807 NSF), Room 019A 
(93 NSF), Room 019B (15 NSF), 
Room 019C (15 NSF), Room 019D 
(21 NSF), Room 019E (20 NSF), 
Room 069 (200 NSF), Room 069A 
(10 NSF), Room 069B (9 NSF), 
Room 070 (154 NSF), Room 070A 
(411 NSF), Room 070B (77 NSF), 
Room 071 (200 NSF), Room 071A 
(10 NSF), Room 071B (9 NSF), 
Room 072 (35 NSF)

4,999 0 $459,908 $92 $0

Page 488 of 962

DRAFT



ORANGE PARK 
ELEMENTARY

Parcel Building Description Total NSF Change In 
Station Count

Calculated 
Cost

Cost Per 
NSF

Cost Per 
Station

Renovation 2026 7 7 Renovating: Apply Painting, Floor 
Cover, Electrical, Plumbing, 
Windows, Lighting, Restrooms, 
HVAC Systems, Bell/Fire Alarm 
Systems, Retrofit for Technology to 
Room 010 (702 NSF), Room 010A 
(49 NSF), Room 011 (702 NSF), 
Room 011A (49 NSF), Room 012 
(695 NSF), Room 012A (49 NSF), 
Room 013 (695 NSF), Room 013A 
(49 NSF), Room 014 (695 NSF), 
Room 014A (49 NSF), Room 015 
(695 NSF), Room 015A (49 NSF), 
Room 073 (112 NSF), Room 074 
(116 NSF), Room 075 (123 NSF)

4,829 0 $444,268 $92 $0

Page 489 of 962

DRAFT



District Name: CLAY COUNTY SCHOOL DISTRICT

Survey: Number 7 - Version 1

Facility Name: ORANGE PARK JUNIOR HIGH

Address: 1500 GANO AVENUE, ORANGE PARK

Existing Recommended

Capital Outlay 
Classification

1 - SCHOOL RECOMMENDED FOR 
CONTINUED USE

1 - SCHOOL RECOMMENDED FOR 
CONTINUED USE

Facility Use MIDDLE JUNIOR HIGH

Low Grade GRADE 7 GRADE 7

High Grade GRADE 8 GRADE 8

Comments

Existing
Student Stations 

Added/Reduced(+ or -) Recommended

Perm. Stations 882 0 882

Reloc. Stations 288 -101 187

Mod. Stations 0 0 0

Total Stations 1,170 -101 1069

Utilization Factor 90% 90%

School Capacity 1,053 962

COFTE Student 
Membership 755 769

Survey Annotation

Renovate Buildings 1-6.                                                                                           
Correct Site Drainage Problems.                                 
Construct Additional Covered Walkways Where Needed.   
Remove 5 portables in excess of 20 years of age.
(Other)
District-Wide Recommendations for this facility are: Improve Security Fencing and Lighting.

New Site Cost Site 
Expansion

Site 
Development

Site 
Improvement

Remodeling 
Cost

Renovation 
Cost

New 
Construction 

Cost

$0 $0 $0 $245,000 $47,328 $9,756,688 $0

Estimated Total Project Cost $10,049,016

ORANGE PARK JUNIOR 
HIGH

Parcel Building Description Total NSF Change In 
Station Count

Calculated 
Cost

Cost Per 
NSF

Cost Per 
Station

Remodeling 2026 19 92 Removed NSF (3944), Added NSF 
(0), Difference NSF (3944), Percent 
(100%), Removed Stations (101), 
Added Stations (0) Remodeling: 
Adding  and Removing Room 501 
(903 NSF), Room 505 (644 NSF), 
Room 505A (51 NSF), Room 505B 
(25 NSF), Room 510 (858 NSF), 
Room 511 (727 NSF), Room 703 
(736 NSF)

-3,944 -101 $47,328 $12 $0

Page 490 of 962

DRAFT



ORANGE PARK JUNIOR 
HIGH

Parcel Building Description Total NSF Change In 
Station Count

Calculated 
Cost

Cost Per 
NSF

Cost Per 
Station

Renovation 2026 19 1 Renovating: Apply Painting, Floor 
Cover, Electrical, Plumbing, 
Windows, Lighting, Restrooms, 
HVAC Systems, Bell/Fire Alarm 
Systems, Retrofit for Technology to 
Room 101 (404 NSF), Room 102 
(84 NSF), Room 103 (84 NSF), 
Room 104 (209 NSF), Room 105 
(57 NSF), Room 106 (68 NSF), 
Room 107 (150 NSF), Room 108 
(39 NSF), Room 109 (41 NSF), 
Room 110 (65 NSF), Room 111 (48 
NSF), Room 112 (107 NSF), Room 
113 (27 NSF), Room 114 (27 NSF), 
Room 115 (335 NSF), Room 116 
(177 NSF), Room 117 (216 NSF), 
Room 118 (27 NSF), Room 119 (236 
NSF), Room 120 (173 NSF), Room 
121 (612 NSF), Room 122 (5047 
NSF), Room 123 (1296 NSF), Room 
124 (378 NSF), Room 125 (246 
NSF), Room 126 (97 NSF), Room 
127 (231 NSF), Room 128 (133 
NSF), Room 129 (73 NSF), Room 
130 (172 NSF), Room 131 (100 
NSF), Room 132 (63 NSF), Room 
133 (124 NSF), Room 133A (36 
NSF), Room 134 (103 NSF), Room 
135 (98 NSF), Room 136A (230 
NSF), Room 136B (230 NSF), Room 
136C (230 NSF), Room 136D (230 
NSF), Room 151 (295 NSF), Room 
151A (145 NSF), Room 152 (48 
NSF), Room 153 (186 NSF), Room 
154 (524 NSF), Room 155 (284 
NSF), Room 156 (35 NSF), Room 
157 (133 NSF), Room 158 (37 NSF), 
Room 159 (174 NSF), Room 160 
(70 NSF), Room 162 (89 NSF), 
Room 163 (133 NSF), Room 164 
(133 NSF), Room 165 (188 NSF), 
Room 166 (121 NSF), Room 167 
(133 NSF), Room 168 (110 NSF), 
Room 169 (111 NSF), Room 170 
(308 NSF), Room 171 (111 NSF), 
Room 172 (24 NSF), Room 173 
(246 NSF), Room 174 (25 NSF), 
Room 175 (248 NSF), Room 176 
(35 NSF), Room 177 (133 NSF), 
Room 178 (35 NSF), Room 179 
(5180 NSF), Room 180 (113 NSF), 
Room 181 (20 NSF), Room 182 (116 
NSF), Room 183 (1098 NSF), Room 
184 (246 NSF), Room 186 (280 
NSF), Room 187 (103 NSF), Room 
188 (137 NSF), Room 189 (24 NSF), 
Room 190 (31 NSF), Room 191 
(1142 NSF), Room 192 (123 NSF)

25,030 0 $2,678,210 $107 $0

Page 491 of 962

DRAFT



ORANGE PARK JUNIOR 
HIGH

Parcel Building Description Total NSF Change In 
Station Count

Calculated 
Cost

Cost Per 
NSF

Cost Per 
Station

Renovation 2026 19 2 Renovating: Apply Painting, Floor 
Cover, Electrical, Plumbing, 
Windows, Lighting, Restrooms, 
HVAC Systems, Bell/Fire Alarm 
Systems, Retrofit for Technology to 
Room 201 (25 NSF), Room 202 
(1512 NSF), Room 204 (754 NSF), 
Room 205 (81 NSF), Room 206 
(765 NSF), Room 206A (765 NSF), 
Room 206B (765 NSF), Room 209 
(24 NSF), Room 210 (52 NSF), 
Room 211 (132 NSF), Room 212 (27 
NSF), Room 213 (235 NSF), Room 
214 (160 NSF), Room 215 (8 NSF), 
Room 216 (1252 NSF), Room 217A 
(115 NSF), Room 217B (115 NSF), 
Room 252 (768 NSF), Room 253 
(866 NSF), Room 254 (768 NSF), 
Room 255 (81 NSF), Room 256 
(768 NSF), Room 257 (866 NSF), 
Room 258 (768 NSF), Room 259 
(24 NSF), Room 260 (52 NSF), 
Room 261 (132 NSF), Room 262 
(14 NSF), Room 263 (235 NSF), 
Room 264 (160 NSF), Room 265 
(1252 NSF)

13,541 0 $1,448,887 $107 $0

Renovation 2026 19 3 Renovating: Apply Painting, Floor 
Cover, Electrical, Plumbing, 
Windows, Lighting, Restrooms, 
HVAC Systems, Bell/Fire Alarm 
Systems, Retrofit for Technology to 
Room 301 (25 NSF), Room 302 
(768 NSF), Room 303 (768 NSF), 
Room 304 (768 NSF), Room 305 
(81 NSF), Room 306 (768 NSF), 
Room 307 (768 NSF), Room 308 
(768 NSF), Room 309 (24 NSF), 
Room 310 (52 NSF), Room 311 (132 
NSF), Room 312 (27 NSF), Room 
313 (235 NSF), Room 314 (160 
NSF), Room 315 (8 NSF), Room 
316 (1252 NSF), Room 317A (115 
NSF), Room 317B (115 NSF), Room 
352 (768 NSF), Room 353 (866 
NSF), Room 354 (768 NSF), Room 
355 (81 NSF), Room 356 (768 NSF), 
Room 357 (866 NSF), Room 358 
(768 NSF), Room 359 (24 NSF), 
Room 360 (52 NSF), Room 361 
(132 NSF), Room 362 (14 NSF), 
Room 363 (235 NSF), Room 364 
(160 NSF), Room 365 (1252 NSF)

13,588 0 $1,453,916 $107 $0

Page 492 of 962

DRAFT



ORANGE PARK JUNIOR 
HIGH

Parcel Building Description Total NSF Change In 
Station Count

Calculated 
Cost

Cost Per 
NSF

Cost Per 
Station

Renovation 2026 19 4 Renovating: Apply Painting, Floor 
Cover, Electrical, Plumbing, 
Windows, Lighting, Restrooms, 
HVAC Systems, Bell/Fire Alarm 
Systems, Retrofit for Technology to 
Room 401 (25 NSF), Room 402 
(768 NSF), Room 403 (1174 NSF), 
Room 403A (138 NSF), Room 403B 
(118 NSF), Room 403C (106 NSF), 
Room 405 (81 NSF), Room 406 
(768 NSF), Room 407 (768 NSF), 
Room 408 (768 NSF), Room 409 
(24 NSF), Room 410 (52 NSF), 
Room 411 (132 NSF), Room 412 (27 
NSF), Room 413 (235 NSF), Room 
414 (160 NSF), Room 415 (8 NSF), 
Room 416 (1252 NSF), Room 417A 
(115 NSF), Room 417B (115 NSF), 
Room 452 (768 NSF), Room 453 
(866 NSF), Room 454 (768 NSF), 
Room 455 (81 NSF), Room 456 
(768 NSF), Room 457 (866 NSF), 
Room 458 (768 NSF), Room 459 
(24 NSF), Room 460 (52 NSF), 
Room 461 (132 NSF), Room 462 
(27 NSF), Room 463 (235 NSF), 
Room 464 (160 NSF), Room 465 
(1252 NSF)

13,601 0 $1,455,307 $107 $0

Renovation 2026 19 5 Renovating: Apply Painting, Floor 
Cover, Electrical, Plumbing, 
Windows, Lighting, Restrooms, 
HVAC Systems, Bell/Fire Alarm 
Systems, Retrofit for Technology to 
Room 501 (10033 NSF), Room 502 
(160 NSF), Room 503 (166 NSF), 
Room 504 (25 NSF), Room 505 
(368 NSF), Room 506A (1378 NSF), 
Room 506B (245 NSF), Room 506C 
(352 NSF), Room 506D (135 NSF), 
Room 510 (199 NSF), Room 511 (41 
NSF), Room 512 (295 NSF), Room 
513 (5 NSF), Room 514 (149 NSF), 
Room 515 (208 NSF), Room 516 
(41 NSF), Room 517A (1118 NSF), 
Room 517B (292 NSF), Room 517C 
(274 NSF), Room 517D (117 NSF), 
Room 521 (304 NSF), Room 522 
(165 NSF), Room 523 (36 NSF), 
Room 524 (191 NSF), Room 550 
(68 NSF), Room 550A (75 NSF), 
Room 551 (76 NSF), Room 552 
(1195 NSF)

17,711 0 $1,895,077 $107 $0

Page 493 of 962

DRAFT



ORANGE PARK JUNIOR 
HIGH

Parcel Building Description Total NSF Change In 
Station Count

Calculated 
Cost

Cost Per 
NSF

Cost Per 
Station

Renovation 2026 19 6 Renovating: Apply Painting, Floor 
Cover, Electrical, Plumbing, 
Windows, Lighting, Restrooms, 
HVAC Systems, Bell/Fire Alarm 
Systems, Retrofit for Technology to 
Room 601 (502 NSF), Room 602 
(50 NSF), Room 603 (50 NSF), 
Room 604 (1208 NSF), Room 605 
(157 NSF), Room 606 (105 NSF), 
Room 607 (154 NSF), Room 608 
(110 NSF), Room 609 (419 NSF), 
Room 610 (304 NSF), Room 611 
(180 NSF), Room 613 (56 NSF), 
Room 614 (1985 NSF), Room 615 
(188 NSF), Room 616 (109 NSF), 
Room 617 (57 NSF), Room 618 
(305 NSF), Room 619 (119 NSF), 
Room 620 (20 NSF), Room 621 (70 
NSF), Room 622 (425 NSF), Room 
623 (190 NSF), Room 624 (167 
NSF), Room 625 (150 NSF), Room 
626 (97 NSF), Room 627 (118 NSF), 
Room 628 (189 NSF), Room 629 
(80 NSF), Room 630 (149 NSF)

7,713 0 $825,291 $107 $0

Page 494 of 962

DRAFT



District Name: CLAY COUNTY SCHOOL DISTRICT

Survey: Number 7 - Version 1

Facility Name: ORANGE PARK SENIOR HIGH

Address: 2300 KINGSLEY AVENUE, ORANGE PARK

Existing Recommended

Capital Outlay 
Classification

1 - SCHOOL RECOMMENDED FOR 
CONTINUED USE

1 - SCHOOL RECOMMENDED FOR 
CONTINUED USE

Facility Use SENIOR HIGH SENIOR HIGH

Low Grade GRADE 9 GRADE 9

High Grade GRADE 12 GRADE 12

Comments

Existing
Student Stations 

Added/Reduced(+ or -) Recommended

Perm. Stations 1,925 0 1925

Reloc. Stations 542 -100 442

Mod. Stations 0 0 0

Total Stations 2,467 -100 2367

Utilization Factor 95% 95%

School Capacity 2,343 2248

COFTE Student 
Membership 1,396 2,065

Survey Annotation

Renovate Buildings 1-4, 10, 12, 22, 24, 27, 41, 47, 49 & 51. Correct Site Drainage Problems.  
                               
Construct Additional Covered Walkways Where Needed.   
Remove 4 portables in excess of 20 years of age.
(Other)
District-Wide Recommendations for this facility are: Improve Security Fencing and Lighting.  
Security upgrade for the front office.

New Site Cost Site 
Expansion

Site 
Development

Site 
Improvement

Remodeling 
Cost

Renovation 
Cost

New 
Construction 

Cost

$0 $0 $0 $290,000 $35,832 $26,359,690 $0

Estimated Total Project Cost $26,685,522

ORANGE PARK SENIOR 
HIGH

Parcel Building Description Total NSF Change In 
Station Count

Calculated 
Cost

Cost Per 
NSF

Cost Per 
Station

Remodeling 2026 10 92 Removed NSF (2986), Added NSF 
(0), Difference NSF (2986), Percent 
(100%), Removed Stations (100), 
Added Stations (0) Remodeling: 
Adding  and Removing Room 054 
(779 NSF), Room 056 (728 NSF), 
Room 059 (750 NSF), Room 060 
(729 NSF)

-2,986 -100 $35,832 $12 $0

Renovation 2026 10 1 Renovating: Apply Painting, Floor 
Cover, Electrical, Plumbing, 
Windows, Lighting, Restrooms, 
HVAC Systems, Bell/Fire Alarm 

92,043 0 $10,953,117 $119 $0

Page 495 of 962

DRAFT



Systems, Retrofit for Technology to 
Room 100 (8961 NSF), Room 101 
(784 NSF), Room 102 (750 NSF), 
Room 103A (650 NSF), Room 103B 
(96 NSF), Room 103C (54 NSF), 
Room 104 (7584 NSF), Room 105A 
(417 NSF), Room 105B (38 NSF), 
Room 106A (519 NSF), Room 106B 
(47 NSF), Room 106C (225 NSF), 
Room 106D (226 NSF), Room 106E 
(185 NSF), Room 106F (139 NSF), 
Room 106G (16 NSF), Room 106H 
(72 NSF), Room 107 (784 NSF), 
Room 108 (765 NSF), Room 109 
(736 NSF), Room 110 (736 NSF), 
Room 111 (758 NSF), Room 112 
(756 NSF), Room 113 (736 NSF), 
Room 114 (736 NSF), Room 115 
(756 NSF), Room 116 (1072 NSF), 
Room 116A (365 NSF), Room 116B 
(111 NSF), Room 116C (251 NSF), 
Room 117 (977 NSF), Room 117A 
(40 NSF), Room 117B (190 NSF), 
Room 118 (762 NSF), Room 119 
(736 NSF), Room 120 (736 NSF), 
Room 121 (766 NSF), Room 122 
(719 NSF), Room 123 (894 NSF), 
Room 124 (545 NSF), Room 124A 
(177 NSF), Room 125 (320 NSF), 
Room 125A (525 NSF), Room 125B 
(325 NSF), Room 125C (122 NSF), 
Room 125D (255 NSF), Room 125E 
(48 NSF), Room 126 (175 NSF), 
Room 126A (250 NSF), Room 126B 
(70 NSF), Room 127 (625 NSF), 
Room 128 (838 NSF), Room 129 
(740 NSF), Room 130 (784 NSF), 
Room 131 (2568 NSF), Room 151 
(18 NSF), Room 151A (268 NSF), 
Room 152 (40 NSF), Room 153 
(196 NSF), Room 154 (36 NSF), 
Room 155 (36 NSF), Room 156 
(196 NSF), Room 157 (40 NSF), 
Room 159 (18 NSF), Room 159A 
(268 NSF), Room 160 (18 NSF), 
Room 160A (268 NSF), Room 160C 
(22 NSF), Room 162 (196 NSF), 
Room 163 (36 NSF), Room 164 (36 
NSF), Room 165 (196 NSF), Room 
166 (40 NSF), Room 167 (18 NSF), 
Room 167A (268 NSF), Room 168 
(25 NSF), Room 180A (388 NSF), 
Room 180B (383 NSF), Room 180C 
(169 NSF), Room 180D (145 NSF), 
Room 180E (306 NSF), Room 180F 
(145 NSF), Room 180G (24 NSF), 
Room 180H (330 NSF), Room 180Z 
(920 NSF), Room 181A (322 NSF), 
Room 181B (100 NSF), Room 181C 
(200 NSF), Room 181E (100 NSF), 
Room 181F (200 NSF), Room 181G 
(422 NSF), Room 181H (100 NSF), 
Room 181J (201 NSF), Room 181K 
(286 NSF), Room 181M (91 NSF), 
Room 181N (103 NSF), Room 183 
(100 NSF), Room 184 (80 NSF), 
Room 185 (20 NSF), Room 186 (20 
NSF), Room 187A (154 NSF), Room 
187B (117 NSF), Room 187C (120 
NSF), Room 187D (150 NSF), Room 
187E (159 NSF), Room 187F (129 
NSF), Room 187G (202 NSF), 
Room 187H (126 NSF), Room 188 
(530 NSF), Room 188A (149 NSF), 
Room 188B (117 NSF), Room 201 
(1105 NSF), Room 202 (100 NSF), 
Room 202A (152 NSF), Room 203 
(1054 NSF), Room 204 (715 NSF), 
Room 205 (755 NSF), Room 206 
(755 NSF), Room 207 (717 NSF), 

Page 496 of 962

DRAFT



Room 208 (900 NSF), Room 209 
(755 NSF), Room 210 (791 NSF), 
Room 211 (776 NSF), Room 212 
(716 NSF), Room 213 (716 NSF), 
Room 214 (755 NSF), Room 215 
(716 NSF), Room 216 (1157 NSF), 
Room 217 (1215 NSF), Room 217A 
(104 NSF), Room 218 (1215 NSF), 
Room 219 (1215 NSF), Room 219A 
(628 NSF), Room 219B (172 NSF), 
Room 219C (104 NSF), Room 220 
(1215 NSF), Room 221 (677 NSF), 
Room 222 (741 NSF), Room 223A 
(1129 NSF), Room 223B (100 NSF), 
Room 223C (72 NSF), Room 224A 
(1431 NSF), Room 224B (147 NSF), 
Room 224C (74 NSF), Room 225 
(800 NSF), Room 226 (1401 NSF), 
Room 226A (100 NSF), Room 226B 
(70 NSF), Room 226C (72 NSF), 
Room 227 (717 NSF), Room 228 
(755 NSF), Room 229 (755 NSF), 
Room 230 (682 NSF), Room 231 
(765 NSF), Room 232 (100 NSF), 
Room 232A (219 NSF), Room 233 
(1293 NSF), Room 234 (294 NSF), 
Room 235 (138 NSF), Room 236 
(591 NSF), Room 237 (294 NSF), 
Room 250 (40 NSF), Room 251 
(196 NSF), Room 252 (196 NSF), 
Room 253 (40 NSF), Room 254 
(196 NSF), Room 255 (196 NSF), 
Room 256 (40 NSF), Room 800 
(6360 NSF)

Renovation 2026 10 2 Renovating: Apply Painting, Floor 
Cover, Electrical, Plumbing, 
Windows, Lighting, Restrooms, 
HVAC Systems, Bell/Fire Alarm 
Systems, Retrofit for Technology to 
Room 001 (1413 NSF), Room 002 
(183 NSF), Room 003 (415 NSF), 
Room 004 (164 NSF), Room 005 
(143 NSF), Room 006 (189 NSF), 
Room 007 (121 NSF), Room 008 
(95 NSF), Room 009 (893 NSF), 
Room 010 (74 NSF)

3,690 0 $439,110 $119 $0

Renovation 2026 10 3 Renovating: Apply Painting, Floor 
Cover, Electrical, Plumbing, 
Windows, Lighting, Restrooms, 
HVAC Systems, Bell/Fire Alarm 
Systems, Retrofit for Technology to 
Room 001 (115 NSF), Room 002 
(133 NSF), Room 003 (115 NSF), 
Room 004 (12 NSF)

375 0 $44,625 $119 $0

Page 497 of 962

DRAFT



ORANGE PARK SENIOR 
HIGH

Parcel Building Description Total NSF Change In 
Station Count

Calculated 
Cost

Cost Per 
NSF

Cost Per 
Station

Renovation 2026 10 4 Renovating: Apply Painting, Floor 
Cover, Electrical, Plumbing, 
Windows, Lighting, Restrooms, 
HVAC Systems, Bell/Fire Alarm 
Systems, Retrofit for Technology to 
Room 001 (13023 NSF), Room 002 
(93 NSF), Room 003 (88 NSF), 
Room 004 (88 NSF), Room 005 
(1458 NSF), Room 005A (20 NSF), 
Room 005B (85 NSF), Room 005D 
(451 NSF), Room 005E (164 NSF), 
Room 005F (437 NSF), Room 005G 
(238 NSF), Room 005H (291 NSF), 
Room 006 (221 NSF), Room 006A 
(94 NSF), Room 007 (170 NSF), 
Room 008 (200 NSF), Room 008A 
(237 NSF), Room 009 (228 NSF), 
Room 010 (330 NSF), Room 011 
(567 NSF), Room 013 (990 NSF), 
Room 014 (93 NSF), Room 015 (88 
NSF), Room 016 (88 NSF), Room 
017 (1068 NSF), Room 017A (90 
NSF), Room 017B (76 NSF), Room 
017C (238 NSF), Room 017D (1070 
NSF), Room 017E (365 NSF), Room 
017G (20 NSF), Room 017H (292 
NSF), Room 018 (221 NSF), Room 
019 (170 NSF), Room 019A (94 
NSF), Room 019B (404 NSF), Room 
021A (1440 NSF), Room 021B (44 
NSF), Room 021C (44 NSF), Room 
021D (1460 NSF), Room 022A 
(1710 NSF), Room 022B (44 NSF), 
Room 022C (44 NSF), Room 022D 
(1460 NSF)

30,096 0 $3,581,424 $119 $0

Renovation 2026 10 10 Renovating: Apply Painting, Floor 
Cover, Electrical, Plumbing, 
Windows, Lighting, Restrooms, 
HVAC Systems, Bell/Fire Alarm 
Systems, Retrofit for Technology to 
Room 100 (11270 NSF), Room 102 
(952 NSF), Room 103 (322 NSF), 
Room 104 (253 NSF), Room 105 
(135 NSF), Room 105A (45 NSF), 
Room 106 (218 NSF), Room 106A 
(35 NSF), Room 107 (90 NSF), 
Room 108 (302 NSF), Room 109 
(205 NSF), Room 110 (75 NSF), 
Room 111 (204 NSF), Room 112 
(204 NSF), Room 113 (39 NSF), 
Room 114 (210 NSF), Room 115 
(183 NSF), Room 116 (978 NSF), 
Room 116A (20 NSF), Room 116B 
(20 NSF), Room 117 (56 NSF), 
Room 118 (59 NSF), Room 119 (32 
NSF), Room 120 (203 NSF), Room 
121 (60 NSF), Room 122 (33 NSF), 
Room 124 (1114 NSF), Room 125 
(381 NSF), Room 126 (241 NSF), 
Room 127 (1158 NSF), Room 128 
(1870 NSF), Room 128A (142 NSF), 
Room 128B (252 NSF), Room 128C 
(302 NSF), Room 129 (644 NSF), 
Room 130 (83 NSF), Room 130A 
(33 NSF), Room 130B (33 NSF), 
Room 131 (681 NSF), Room 131A 
(33 NSF), Room 132 (121 NSF)

23,291 0 $2,771,629 $119 $0

Page 498 of 962

DRAFT



ORANGE PARK SENIOR 
HIGH

Parcel Building Description Total NSF Change In 
Station Count

Calculated 
Cost

Cost Per 
NSF

Cost Per 
Station

Renovation 2026 10 12 Renovating: Apply Painting, Floor 
Cover, Electrical, Plumbing, 
Windows, Lighting, Restrooms, 
HVAC Systems, Bell/Fire Alarm 
Systems, Retrofit for Technology to 
Room 101 (2024 NSF), Room 102 
(1320 NSF), Room 103 (208 NSF), 
Room 104 (363 NSF), Room 105 
(1418 NSF), Room 106 (1335 NSF), 
Room 107 (200 NSF), Room 108 
(162 NSF), Room 109 (168 NSF), 
Room 110 (699 NSF), Room 111 
(149 NSF), Room 112 (49 NSF), 
Room 112A (49 NSF), Room 112B 
(118 NSF), Room 113 (1755 NSF), 
Room 114 (220 NSF), Room 115 
(835 NSF), Room 116 (1840 NSF), 
Room 117 (145 NSF), Room 118 
(227 NSF), Room 119 (384 NSF), 
Room 120 (100 NSF), Room 121 
(160 NSF), Room 122 (410 NSF), 
Room 123 (19 NSF), Room 124 (17 
NSF), Room 125 (36 NSF), Room 
126 (39 NSF), Room 127 (136 NSF), 
Room 128 (136 NSF), Room 129 
(20 NSF), Room 130 (20 NSF), 
Room 131 (292 NSF), Room 132 
(443 NSF), Room 134 (1685 NSF), 
Room 135 (948 NSF), Room 136 
(229 NSF), Room 137 (206 NSF), 
Room 138 (200 NSF), Room 139 
(2171 NSF), Room 140 (640 NSF), 
Room 141 (697 NSF), Room 142 
(180 NSF), Room 143 (239 NSF), 
Room 144 (168 NSF), Room 145 
(150 NSF), Room 145A (150 NSF), 
Room 146 (325 NSF), Room 147 
(415 NSF), Room 148 (16 NSF), 
Room 149 (16 NSF), Room 150 (77 
NSF), Room 151 (77 NSF), Room 
152 (4714 NSF), Room 153 (2735 
NSF), Room 154 (608 NSF), Room 
155 (538 NSF), Room 156 (1095 
NSF), Room 157 (584 NSF), Room 
158 (150 NSF), Room 159 (100 
NSF), Room 160 (120 NSF), Room 
160A (120 NSF), Room 161A (1282 
NSF), Room 161B (1100 NSF), 
Room 161C (83 NSF), Room 162 
(133 NSF), Room 163 (150 NSF), 
Room 163A (70 NSF), Room 164 
(2268 NSF)

39,935 0 $4,752,265 $119 $0

Renovation 2026 10 22 Renovating: Apply Painting, Floor 
Cover, Electrical, Plumbing, 
Windows, Lighting, Restrooms, 
HVAC Systems, Bell/Fire Alarm 
Systems, Retrofit for Technology to 
Room 2201 (465 NSF), Room 2202 
(735 NSF), Room 2203 (735 NSF), 
Room 2204 (172 NSF), Room 2205 
(171 NSF), Room 2206 (760 NSF), 
Room 2207 (1201 NSF), Room 
2208 (140 NSF), Room 2209 (118 
NSF), Room 2210 (49 NSF), Room 
2211 (348 NSF), Room 2212 (107 
NSF), Room 2213 (39 NSF), Room 
2214 (667 NSF), Room 2215 (304 
NSF), Room 2216 (676 NSF), Room 
2217 (285 NSF), Room 2218 (92 
NSF), Room 2219 (55 NSF), Room 
2220 (69 NSF), Room 2221 (162 
NSF)

7,350 0 $874,650 $119 $0

Page 499 of 962

DRAFT



ORANGE PARK SENIOR 
HIGH

Parcel Building Description Total NSF Change In 
Station Count

Calculated 
Cost

Cost Per 
NSF

Cost Per 
Station

Renovation 2026 10 24 Renovating: Apply Painting, Floor 
Cover, Electrical, Plumbing, 
Windows, Lighting, Restrooms, 
HVAC Systems, Bell/Fire Alarm 
Systems, Retrofit for Technology to 
Room 001 (1198 NSF), Room 002 
(43 NSF), Room 003 (74 NSF), 
Room 005 (348 NSF), Room 006 
(113 NSF), Room 007 (47 NSF), 
Room 008 (47 NSF), Room 010 
(214 NSF), Room 011 (32 NSF), 
Room 012 (150 NSF), Room 013 
(37 NSF), Room 014 (30 NSF), 
Room 015 (124 NSF), Room 016 
(42 NSF), Room 017 (143 NSF), 
Room 018 (561 NSF), Room 021 
(101 NSF), Room 022 (2465 NSF), 
Room 023 (288 NSF), Room 024 
(359 NSF), Room 025 (32 NSF), 
Room 026 (75 NSF), Room 027 (50 
NSF), Room 028 (238 NSF), Room 
029 (94 NSF), Room 030 (271 NSF), 
Room 032 (423 NSF), Room 033 
(89 NSF), Room 034 (183 NSF), 
Room 035 (122 NSF)

7,993 0 $951,167 $119 $0

Renovation 2026 10 27 Renovating: Apply Painting, Floor 
Cover, Electrical, Plumbing, 
Windows, Lighting, Restrooms, 
HVAC Systems, Bell/Fire Alarm 
Systems, Retrofit for Technology to 
Room 001 (1139 NSF), Room 002 
(2339 NSF), Room 003 (2921 NSF), 
Room 004 (120 NSF), Room 005 
(52 NSF), Room 006 (99 NSF), 
Room 007 (271 NSF), Room 009 
(411 NSF), Room 010 (187 NSF), 
Room 011 (187 NSF)

7,726 0 $919,394 $119 $0

Renovation 2026 10 41 Renovating: Apply Painting, Floor 
Cover, Electrical, Plumbing, 
Windows, Lighting, Restrooms, 
HVAC Systems, Bell/Fire Alarm 
Systems, Retrofit for Technology to 
Room 001 (362 NSF), Room 002 
(36 NSF), Room 003 (140 NSF), 
Room 004 (151 NSF), Room 005 
(151 NSF)

840 0 $99,960 $119 $0

Renovation 2026 10 47 Renovating: Apply Painting, Floor 
Cover, Electrical, Plumbing, 
Windows, Lighting, Restrooms, 
HVAC Systems, Bell/Fire Alarm 
Systems, Retrofit for Technology to 
Room 001 (360 NSF), Room 002 
(138 NSF), Room 003 (184 NSF)

682 0 $81,158 $119 $0

Renovation 2026 10 49 Renovating: Apply Painting, Floor 
Cover, Electrical, Plumbing, 
Windows, Lighting, Restrooms, 
HVAC Systems, Bell/Fire Alarm 
Systems, Retrofit for Technology to 
Room 001 (40 NSF), Room 001A 
(40 NSF), Room 002 (40 NSF), 
Room 002A (40 NSF)

160 0 $19,040 $119 $0

Page 500 of 962

DRAFT



ORANGE PARK SENIOR 
HIGH

Parcel Building Description Total NSF Change In 
Station Count

Calculated 
Cost

Cost Per 
NSF

Cost Per 
Station

Renovation 2026 10 51 Renovating: Apply Painting, Floor 
Cover, Electrical, Plumbing, 
Windows, Lighting, Restrooms, 
HVAC Systems, Bell/Fire Alarm 
Systems, Retrofit for Technology to 
Room 001 (132 NSF), Room 002 
(324 NSF), Room 003 (108 NSF), 
Room 004 (62 NSF), Room 005 (62 
NSF), Room 006 (176 NSF), Room 
007 (801 NSF), Room 008 (2410 
NSF), Room 009 (269 NSF), Room 
010 (60 NSF), Room 011 (44 NSF), 
Room 012 (918 NSF), Room 012B 
(43 NSF), Room 012C (34 NSF), 
Room 013 (209 NSF), Room 014 
(108 NSF), Room 015 (45 NSF), 
Room 016 (45 NSF), Room 017 
(918 NSF), Room 017B (43 NSF), 
Room 017C (34 NSF), Room 018 
(228 NSF), Room 019 (116 NSF), 
Room 020 (70 NSF), Room 021 (70 
NSF)

7,329 0 $872,151 $119 $0

Page 501 of 962

DRAFT



District Name: CLAY COUNTY SCHOOL DISTRICT

Survey: Number 7 - Version 1

Facility Name: PLANTATION OAKS ELEMENTARY

Address: 4150 PLANTATION OAKS BOULEVARD, ORANGE PARK

Existing Recommended

Capital Outlay 
Classification

1 - SCHOOL RECOMMENDED FOR 
CONTINUED USE

1 - SCHOOL RECOMMENDED FOR 
CONTINUED USE

Facility Use ELEMENTARY ELEMENTARY

Low Grade PRE-K E S E PRE-K E S E

High Grade GRADE 6 GRADE 6

Comments

Existing
Student Stations 

Added/Reduced(+ or -) Recommended

Perm. Stations 887 0 887

Reloc. Stations 117 -44 73

Mod. Stations 0 0 0

Total Stations 1,004 -44 960

Utilization Factor 100% 100%

School Capacity 1,004 960

COFTE Student 
Membership 993 925

Survey Annotation

Remove 2 portables in excess of 20 years of age.                 Construct Elementary Covered 
Play Area.                                                                                    Correct Site Drainage 
Problems.                                 
Construct Additional Covered Walkways Where Needed.   
(Other)
District-Wide Recommendations for this facility are: Improve Security Fencing and Lighting.

New Site Cost Site 
Expansion

Site 
Development

Site 
Improvement

Remodeling 
Cost

Renovation 
Cost

New 
Construction 

Cost

$0 $0 $0 $45,000 $214,590 $0 $138,000

Estimated Total Project Cost $397,590

PLANTATION OAKS 
ELEMENTARY

Parcel Building Description Total NSF Change In 
Station Count

Calculated 
Cost

Cost Per 
NSF

Cost Per 
Station

New Construction 2026 New Construction: Adding 1 unit of 
ELEMENTARY COVERED PLAY 
AREA (500 NSF)

500 0 $138,000 $276 $0

Remodeling 2026 63 92 Removed NSF (1555), Added NSF 
(0), Difference NSF (1555), Percent 
(100%), Removed Stations (44), 
Added Stations (0) Remodeling: 
Adding  and Removing Room 913 
(750 NSF), Room 913A (26 NSF), 
Room 915 (754 NSF), Room 915A 
(25 NSF)

-1,555 -44 $214,590 $138 $0

Page 502 of 962

DRAFT



District Name: CLAY COUNTY SCHOOL DISTRICT

Survey: Number 7 - Version 1

Facility Name: R C BANNERMAN LEARNING RESOURCE CENTER

Address: 608 MILL STREET, GREEN COVE SPRINGS

Existing Recommended

Capital Outlay 
Classification

1 - SCHOOL RECOMMENDED FOR 
CONTINUED USE

1 - SCHOOL RECOMMENDED FOR 
CONTINUED USE

Facility Use ALTERNATIVE EDUCATION ALTERNATIVE EDUCATION

Low Grade KINDERGARTEN PRE-K E S E

High Grade GRADE 12 GRADE 12

Comments

Existing
Student Stations 

Added/Reduced(+ or -) Recommended

Perm. Stations 87 0 87

Reloc. Stations 481 -114 367

Mod. Stations 0 0 0

Total Stations 568 -114 454

Utilization Factor 100% 100%

School Capacity 568 454

COFTE Student 
Membership 286 205

Survey Annotation

Correct Site Drainage Problems.                                 
Construct Additional Covered Walkways Where Needed.   Construct parking area.                   
                             Renovate Buildings 1, 2, & 3.                                                   Remove 7 
portables in excess of 20 years of age.                      
(Other)
District-Wide Recommendations for this facility are: Improve Security Fencing and Lighting.

New Site Cost Site 
Expansion

Site 
Development

Site 
Improvement

Remodeling 
Cost

Renovation 
Cost

New 
Construction 

Cost

$0 $0 $15,000 $280,000 $61,716 $1,352,792 $0

Estimated Total Project Cost $1,709,508

R C BANNERMAN 
LEARNING RESOURCE 
CENTER

Parcel Building Description Total NSF Change In 
Station Count

Calculated 
Cost

Cost Per 
NSF

Cost Per 
Station

Remodeling 2026 5 92 Removed NSF (5143), Added NSF 
(0), Difference NSF (5143), Percent 
(100%), Removed Stations (114), 
Added Stations (0) Remodeling: 
Adding  and Removing Room 005 
(712 NSF), Room 005A (25 NSF), 
Room 007 (696 NSF), Room 007A 
(36 NSF), Room 009 (691 NSF), 
Room 009A (42 NSF), Room 010 
(692 NSF), Room 010A (37 NSF), 
Room 013 (737 NSF), Room 032 
(737 NSF), Room 040 (720 NSF), 
Room 040A (18 NSF)

-5,143 -114 $61,716 $12 $0

Page 503 of 962

DRAFT



R C BANNERMAN 
LEARNING RESOURCE 
CENTER

Parcel Building Description Total NSF Change In 
Station Count

Calculated 
Cost

Cost Per 
NSF

Cost Per 
Station

Renovation 2026 5 1 Renovating: Apply Painting, Floor 
Cover, Electrical, Plumbing, 
Windows, Lighting, Restrooms, 
HVAC Systems, Bell/Fire Alarm 
Systems, Retrofit for Technology to 
Room 100 (149 NSF), Room 101 
(122 NSF), Room 102 (331 NSF), 
Room 103 (203 NSF), Room 104 
(172 NSF), Room 105A (6 NSF), 
Room 105B (6 NSF), Room 105C 
(12 NSF), Room 105D (361 NSF), 
Room 106 (130 NSF), Room 107 
(729 NSF), Room 107A (6 NSF), 
Room 108 (729 NSF), Room 108A 
(6 NSF), Room 109 (729 NSF), 
Room 109A (6 NSF), Room 110 
(181 NSF)

3,878 0 $461,482 $119 $0

Renovation 2026 5 2 Renovating: Apply Painting, Floor 
Cover, Electrical, Plumbing, 
Windows, Lighting, Restrooms, 
HVAC Systems, Bell/Fire Alarm 
Systems, Retrofit for Technology to 
Room 201 (228 NSF), Room 202 
(27 NSF), Room 203 (29 NSF), 
Room 204 (115 NSF), Room 205 (97 
NSF), Room 206 (88 NSF), Room 
207 (55 NSF), Room 208 (68 NSF), 
Room 209 (166 NSF), Room 210 
(380 NSF), Room 211 (153 NSF), 
Room 213 (20 NSF), Room 214 
(695 NSF), Room 215 (27 NSF), 
Room 216 (58 NSF), Room 217 
(619 NSF), Room 218 (25 NSF), 
Room 219 (667 NSF), Room 219A 
(58 NSF), Room 220 (725 NSF)

4,300 0 $511,700 $119 $0

Renovation 2026 5 3 Renovating: Apply Painting, Floor 
Cover, Electrical, Plumbing, 
Windows, Lighting, Restrooms, 
HVAC Systems, Bell/Fire Alarm 
Systems, Retrofit for Technology to 
Room 301 (705 NSF), Room 302 
(40 NSF), Room 303 (43 NSF), 
Room 304 (38 NSF), Room 305 (75 
NSF), Room 306 (105 NSF), Room 
307 (118 NSF), Room 308 (133 
NSF), Room 309 (133 NSF), Room 
310 (133 NSF), Room 311 (133 
NSF), Room 312 (378 NSF), Room 
313 (310 NSF), Room 314 (133 
NSF), Room 315 (129 NSF), Room 
316 (129 NSF), Room 317 (125 
NSF), Room 318 (66 NSF), Room 
319 (81 NSF), Room 320 (163 NSF), 
Room 321 (20 NSF)

3,190 0 $379,610 $119 $0

Page 504 of 962

DRAFT



District Name: CLAY COUNTY SCHOOL DISTRICT

Survey: Number 7 - Version 1

Facility Name: RIDEOUT ELEMENTARY

Address: 3065 APALACHICOLA BOULEVARD, MIDDLEBURG

Existing Recommended

Capital Outlay 
Classification

1 - SCHOOL RECOMMENDED FOR 
CONTINUED USE

1 - SCHOOL RECOMMENDED FOR 
CONTINUED USE

Facility Use ELEMENTARY ELEMENTARY

Low Grade PRE-K E S E PRE-K E S E

High Grade GRADE 6 GRADE 6

Comments

Existing
Student Stations 

Added/Reduced(+ or -) Recommended

Perm. Stations 628 0 628

Reloc. Stations 55 -50 5

Mod. Stations 0 0 0

Total Stations 683 -50 633

Utilization Factor 100% 100%

School Capacity 683 633

COFTE Student 
Membership 481 589

Survey Annotation

Renovate Buildings 1. 
Remove 3 portables in excess of 20 years of age.
Correct Site Drainage Problems.                                 
Construct Additional Covered Walkways Where Needed.   
(Other)
District-Wide Recommendations for this facility are: Improve Security Fencing and Lighting.

New Site Cost Site 
Expansion

Site 
Development

Site 
Improvement

Remodeling 
Cost

Renovation 
Cost

New 
Construction 

Cost

$0 $0 $0 $45,000 $28,248 $7,693,132 $0

Estimated Total Project Cost $7,766,380

RIDEOUT ELEMENTARY Parcel Building Description Total NSF Change In 
Station Count

Calculated 
Cost

Cost Per 
NSF

Cost Per 
Station

Remodeling 2026 48 92 Removed NSF (2354), Added NSF 
(0), Difference NSF (2354), Percent 
(100%), Removed Stations (50), 
Added Stations (0) Remodeling: 
Adding  and Removing Room 012 
(754 NSF), Room 012A (25 NSF), 
Room 014 (740 NSF), Room 014A 
(36 NSF), Room 022 (703 NSF), 
Room 022A (26 NSF), Room 022B 
(26 NSF), Room 022C (44 NSF)

-2,354 -50 $28,248 $12 $0

Renovation 2026 48 1 Renovating: Apply Painting, Floor 
Cover, Electrical, Plumbing, 
Windows, Lighting, Restrooms, 
HVAC Systems, Bell/Fire Alarm 

83,621 0 $7,693,132 $92 $0

Page 505 of 962

DRAFT



Systems, Retrofit for Technology to 
Room 101 (829 NSF), Room 102 
(128 NSF), Room 103 (70 NSF), 
Room 104 (926 NSF), Room 105 
(70 NSF), Room 106 (168 NSF), 
Room 107 (924 NSF), Room 108 
(87 NSF), Room 109 (70 NSF), 
Room 110 (926 NSF), Room 111 
(595 NSF), Room 112 (477 NSF), 
Room 113 (924 NSF), Room 114 (52 
NSF), Room 115 (70 NSF), Room 
116 (69 NSF), Room 117 (219 NSF), 
Room 118 (69 NSF), Room 119 (70 
NSF), Room 120 (52 NSF), Room 
121 (924 NSF), Room 122 (235 
NSF), Room 123 (279 NSF), Room 
124 (70 NSF), Room 125 (926 NSF), 
Room 126 (243 NSF), Room 127 
(924 NSF), Room 128 (70 NSF), 
Room 129 (808 NSF), Room 130 
(70 NSF), Room 131 (924 NSF), 
Room 132 (120 NSF), Room 133 
(1456 NSF), Room 134 (364 NSF), 
Room 135 (83 NSF), Room 136 
(145 NSF), Room 137 (59 NSF), 
Room 138 (59 NSF), Room 139 
(127 NSF), Room 140 (70 NSF), 
Room 141 (924 NSF), Room 142 
(70 NSF), Room 143 (127 NSF), 
Room 144 (926 NSF), Room 145 
(978 NSF), Room 146 (78 NSF), 
Room 147 (42 NSF), Room 148 (42 
NSF), Room 149 (984 NSF), Room 
150 (78 NSF), Room 151 (78 NSF), 
Room 152 (984 NSF), Room 153 
(78 NSF), Room 154 (78 NSF), 
Room 155 (978 NSF), Room 156 
(42 NSF), Room 157 (42 NSF), 
Room 158 (78 NSF), Room 159 
(542 NSF), Room 201 (144 NSF), 
Room 202 (68 NSF), Room 203 
(149 NSF), Room 204 (93 NSF), 
Room 205 (122 NSF), Room 206 
(102 NSF), Room 207 (1257 NSF), 
Room 208 (621 NSF), Room 209 
(298 NSF), Room 210 (473 NSF), 
Room 211 (342 NSF), Room 212 
(122 NSF), Room 213 (75 NSF), 
Room 214 (217 NSF), Room 215 
(1840 NSF), Room 215A (3440 
NSF), Room 216 (932 NSF), Room 
217 (296 NSF), Room 218 (307 
NSF), Room 219 (32 NSF), Room 
220 (47 NSF), Room 221 (214 NSF), 
Room 222 (325 NSF), Room 223 
(924 NSF), Room 224 (127 NSF), 
Room 225 (70 NSF), Room 226 
(1650 NSF), Room 227 (70 NSF), 
Room 228 (70 NSF), Room 229 (42 
NSF), Room 230 (924 NSF), Room 
231 (318 NSF), Room 232 (212 
NSF), Room 233 (32 NSF), Room 
234 (57 NSF), Room 235 (307 NSF), 
Room 236 (250 NSF), Room 237 
(52 NSF), Room 238 (324 NSF), 
Room 239 (343 NSF), Room 240 
(301 NSF), Room 241 (37 NSF), 
Room 242 (16 NSF), Room 243 
(120 NSF), Room 244 (90 NSF), 
Room 301 (1104 NSF), Room 302 
(2918 NSF), Room 303 (212 NSF), 
Room 304 (185 NSF), Room 305 
(116 NSF), Room 306 (129 NSF), 
Room 307 (129 NSF), Room 308 
(484 NSF), Room 309 (180 NSF), 
Room 310 (293 NSF), Room 311 
(167 NSF), Room 312 (214 NSF), 
Room 313 (141 NSF), Room 314 
(31 NSF), Room 315 (219 NSF), 
Room 316 (232 NSF), Room 317 

Page 506 of 962

DRAFT



(266 NSF), Room 318 (167 NSF), 
Room 319 (122 NSF), Room 320 
(122 NSF), Room 321 (222 NSF), 
Room 322 (196 NSF), Room 323 
(108 NSF), Room 324 (69 NSF), 
Room 325 (143 NSF), Room 326 
(84 NSF), Room 327 (175 NSF), 
Room 328 (337 NSF), Room 329 
(270 NSF), Room 330 (466 NSF), 
Room 331 (123 NSF), Room 332 
(30 NSF), Room 333 (30 NSF), 
Room 334 (468 NSF), Room 335 
(38 NSF), Room 336 (313 NSF), 
Room 337 (48 NSF), Room 338 (40 
NSF), Room 339 (48 NSF), Room 
340 (3480 NSF), Room 341 (464 
NSF), Room 342 (377 NSF), Room 
343 (463 NSF), Room 344 (424 
NSF), Room 345 (240 NSF), Room 
346 (250 NSF), Room 347 (273 
NSF), Room 348 (274 NSF), Room 
349 (81 NSF), Room 350 (46 NSF), 
Room 351 (44 NSF), Room 352 
(231 NSF), Room 353 (472 NSF), 
Room 354 (128 NSF), Room 355 
(214 NSF), Room 356 (44 NSF), 
Room 357 (490 NSF), Room 401 
(1107 NSF), Room 402 (130 NSF), 
Room 403 (42 NSF), Room 404 
(971 NSF), Room 405 (70 NSF), 
Room 406 (70 NSF), Room 407 
(970 NSF), Room 408 (42 NSF), 
Room 409 (42 NSF), Room 410 
(975 NSF), Room 411 (70 NSF), 
Room 412 (70 NSF), Room 413 
(1164 NSF), Room 414 (42 NSF), 
Room 415 (42 NSF), Room 416 (70 
NSF), Room 417 (975 NSF), Room 
418 (150 NSF), Room 419 (70 NSF), 
Room 420 (975 NSF), Room 421 
(42 NSF), Room 422 (1074 NSF), 
Room 423 (42 NSF), Room 424 
(975 NSF), Room 425 (70 NSF), 
Room 426 (150 NSF), Room 427 
(70 NSF), Room 428 (975 NSF), 
Room 429 (42 NSF), Room 430 
(215 NSF), Room 431 (45 NSF), 
Room 432 (45 NSF), Room 433 (52 
NSF), Room 434 (966 NSF), Room 
435 (70 NSF), Room 436 (69 NSF), 
Room 437 (455 NSF), Room 438 
(69 NSF), Room 439 (70 NSF), 
Room 440 (966 NSF), Room 441 
(52 NSF), Room 442 (128 NSF), 
Room 443 (429 NSF), Room 444 
(311 NSF), Room 445 (42 NSF), 
Room 446 (975 NSF), Room 447 
(70 NSF), Room 448 (150 NSF), 
Room 449 (150 NSF), Room 450 
(975 NSF), Room 451 (42 NSF), 
Room 452 (42 NSF), Room 453 
(975 NSF), Room 454 (70 NSF), 
Room 455 (70 NSF), Room 456 (42 
NSF), Room 457 (971 NSF), Room 
458 (130 NSF), Room 459 (978 
NSF), Room 460 (78 NSF), Room 
461 (42 NSF), Room 462 (42 NSF), 
Room 463 (984 NSF), Room 464 
(78 NSF), Room 465 (78 NSF), 
Room 466 (984 NSF), Room 467 
(78 NSF), Room 468 (78 NSF), 
Room 469 (978 NSF), Room 470 
(42 NSF), Room 471 (42 NSF), 
Room 472 (78 NSF), Room 473 
(542 NSF)

Page 507 of 962

DRAFT



District Name: CLAY COUNTY SCHOOL DISTRICT

Survey: Number 7 - Version 1

Facility Name: RIDGEVIEW ELEMENTARY

Address: 421 JEFFERSON AVENUE, ORANGE PARK

Existing Recommended

Capital Outlay 
Classification

1 - SCHOOL RECOMMENDED FOR 
CONTINUED USE

1 - SCHOOL RECOMMENDED FOR 
CONTINUED USE

Facility Use ELEMENTARY ELEMENTARY

Low Grade PRE-K E S E PRE-K E S E

High Grade GRADE 6 GRADE 6

Comments

Existing
Student Stations 

Added/Reduced(+ or -) Recommended

Perm. Stations 301 98 399

Reloc. Stations 264 -112 152

Mod. Stations 0 0 0

Total Stations 565 -14 551

Utilization Factor 100% 100%

School Capacity 565 551

COFTE Student 
Membership 567 505

Survey Annotation

Renovate Buildings 1, 2, 3, & 6. 
Remove 5 portables in excess of 20 years of age.                Re-design and Construct Parent 
and Bus Pick Up and Drop Off Areas.                                                                                        
Construct additional parking.
Construct Elementary Covered Play Area, (3) Primary Classrooms,  (2) Intermediate 
Classrooms, (1) Elem Art, (1) Elem Music.

Correct Site Drainage Problems.                                 
Construct Additional Covered Walkways Where Needed.   
(Other)
District-Wide Recommendations for this facility are: Improve Security Fencing and Lighting.

New Site Cost Site 
Expansion

Site 
Development

Site 
Improvement

Remodeling 
Cost

Renovation 
Cost

New 
Construction 

Cost

$0 $0 $0 $395,000 $55,032 $3,604,468 $2,491,062

Estimated Total Project Cost $6,545,562

Page 508 of 962

DRAFT



RIDGEVIEW 
ELEMENTARY

Parcel Building Description Total NSF Change In 
Station Count

Calculated 
Cost

Cost Per 
NSF

Cost Per 
Station

New Construction 2026 New Construction: Adding 2 units of 
INTERMEDIATE/MIDDLE 
CLASSROOM (4-8) (858 NSF), 3 
units of PRIMARY CLASSROOM (K-
3) (882 NSF), 1 unit of 
ELEMENTARY COVERED PLAY 
AREA (500 NSF), 1 unit of ART - 
ELEMENTARY (1110 NSF), 1 unit of 
MUSIC - ELEMENTARY (1560 NSF)

9,242 98 $2,491,062 $270 $25,419

Remodeling 2026 23 92 Removed NSF (4586), Added NSF 
(0), Difference NSF (4586), Percent 
(100%), Removed Stations (112), 
Added Stations (0) Remodeling: 
Adding  and Removing Room 712 
(754 NSF), Room 712A (26 NSF), 
Room 715 (754 NSF), Room 715A 
(25 NSF), Room 733 (729 NSF), 
Room 751 (729 NSF), Room 754 
(754 NSF), Room 754A (25 NSF), 
Room 758 (790 NSF)

-4,586 -112 $55,032 $12 $0

Renovation 2026 23 1 Renovating: Apply Painting, Floor 
Cover, Electrical, Plumbing, 
Windows, Lighting, Restrooms, 
HVAC Systems, Bell/Fire Alarm 
Systems, Retrofit for Technology to 
Room 101 (172 NSF), Room 102 
(213 NSF), Room 103 (26 NSF), 
Room 104 (26 NSF), Room 105 (26 
NSF), Room 106 (208 NSF), Room 
107 (943 NSF), Room 108 (511 
NSF), Room 109 (237 NSF), Room 
111 (160 NSF), Room 111A (184 
NSF), Room 112 (92 NSF), Room 
113 (192 NSF), Room 113A (8 NSF), 
Room 116 (228 NSF), Room 117 
(142 NSF), Room 118 (138 NSF), 
Room 119 (110 NSF), Room 120 (65 
NSF), Room 123 (91 NSF), Room 
124 (32 NSF), Room 125 (90 NSF), 
Room 126 (221 NSF), Room 126A 
(71 NSF), Room 127 (337 NSF), 
Room 128 (138 NSF), Room 130 
(48 NSF), Room 131 (253 NSF), 
Room 132 (100 NSF), Room 133 
(2701 NSF), Room 134 (102 NSF), 
Room 135 (354 NSF)

8,219 0 $756,148 $92 $0

Renovation 2026 23 2 Renovating: Apply Painting, Floor 
Cover, Electrical, Plumbing, 
Windows, Lighting, Restrooms, 
HVAC Systems, Bell/Fire Alarm 
Systems, Retrofit for Technology to 
Room 200 (401 NSF), Room 201 
(99 NSF), Room 202 (100 NSF), 
Room 203 (122 NSF), Room 204 
(66 NSF), Room 205 (75 NSF), 
Room 206 (119 NSF), Room 207 
(368 NSF), Room 208 (12 NSF), 
Room 209 (315 NSF), Room 210 
(915 NSF), Room 211 (96 NSF), 
Room 212 (96 NSF), Room 213 
(144 NSF), Room 214 (259 NSF), 
Room 215 (101 NSF), Room 216 
(16 NSF), Room 217 (207 NSF), 
Room 220 (3104 NSF), Room 221 
(69 NSF), Room 223 (147 NSF), 
Room 225 (123 NSF), Room 226 
(673 NSF), Room 227 (123 NSF), 
Room 229 (146 NSF), Room 231 
(69 NSF)

7,965 0 $732,780 $92 $0

Page 509 of 962

DRAFT



RIDGEVIEW 
ELEMENTARY

Parcel Building Description Total NSF Change In 
Station Count

Calculated 
Cost

Cost Per 
NSF

Cost Per 
Station

Renovation 2026 23 3 Renovating: Apply Painting, Floor 
Cover, Electrical, Plumbing, 
Windows, Lighting, Restrooms, 
HVAC Systems, Bell/Fire Alarm 
Systems, Retrofit for Technology to 
Room 300 (1350 NSF), Room 301 
(107 NSF), Room 302 (160 NSF), 
Room 303 (174 NSF), Room 304 
(46 NSF), Room 305 (107 NSF), 
Room 306 (812 NSF), Room 307 
(361 NSF), Room 308 (44 NSF), 
Room 309 (32 NSF)

3,193 0 $293,756 $92 $0

Renovation 2026 23 6 Renovating: Apply Painting, Floor 
Cover, Electrical, Plumbing, 
Windows, Lighting, Restrooms, 
HVAC Systems, Bell/Fire Alarm 
Systems, Retrofit for Technology to 
Room 601 (1039 NSF), Room 601A 
(210 NSF), Room 601B (210 NSF), 
Room 601C (35 NSF), Room 601D 
(61 NSF), Room 601E (35 NSF), 
Room 601F (60 NSF), Room 601G 
(21 NSF), Room 602 (1030 NSF), 
Room 602A (128 NSF), Room 602B 
(280 NSF), Room 602C (9 NSF), 
Room 602D (9 NSF), Room 602G 
(10 NSF), Room 603 (1039 NSF), 
Room 603A (128 NSF), Room 603G 
(21 NSF), Room 604 (1030 NSF), 
Room 604A (128 NSF), Room 604B 
(280 NSF), Room 604G (10 NSF), 
Room 605 (1251 NSF), Room 605A 
(128 NSF), Room 605B (43 NSF), 
Room 605C (30 NSF), Room 605D 
(65 NSF), Room 606 (1030 NSF), 
Room 606A (128 NSF), Room 606B 
(280 NSF), Room 606C (9 NSF), 
Room 606D (9 NSF), Room 606G 
(10 NSF), Room 607 (949 NSF), 
Room 607A (63 NSF), Room 607B 
(43 NSF), Room 607C (122 NSF), 
Room 608 (949 NSF), Room 608A 
(63 NSF), Room 608B (43 NSF), 
Room 608C (122 NSF), Room 609 
(949 NSF), Room 609A (122 NSF), 
Room 609B (43 NSF), Room 610 
(949 NSF), Room 610A (63 NSF), 
Room 610B (43 NSF), Room 611 
(949 NSF), Room 611A (63 NSF), 
Room 611B (43 NSF), Room 611C 
(61 NSF), Room 611D (95 NSF), 
Room 612 (949 NSF), Room 612A 
(63 NSF), Room 612B (43 NSF), 
Room 612C (61 NSF), Room 612D 
(95 NSF), Room 613 (253 NSF), 
Room 614 (253 NSF), Room 615 
(84 NSF), Room 616 (320 NSF), 
Room 617 (252 NSF), Room 618 
(43 NSF), Room 619 (98 NSF), 
Room 620 (204 NSF), Room 621 
(98 NSF), Room 622 (1044 NSF), 
Room 623 (732 NSF), Room 624 
(720 NSF)

19,802 0 $1,821,784 $92 $0

Page 510 of 962

DRAFT



District Name: CLAY COUNTY SCHOOL DISTRICT

Survey: Number 7 - Version 1

Facility Name: RIDGEVIEW SENIOR HIGH

Address: 466 MADISON AVENUE, ORANGE PARK

Existing Recommended

Capital Outlay 
Classification

1 - SCHOOL RECOMMENDED FOR 
CONTINUED USE

1 - SCHOOL RECOMMENDED FOR 
CONTINUED USE

Facility Use SENIOR HIGH SENIOR HIGH

Low Grade GRADE 9 GRADE 9

High Grade GRADE 12 GRADE 12

Comments

Existing
Student Stations 

Added/Reduced(+ or -) Recommended

Perm. Stations 1,225 0 1225

Reloc. Stations 1,148 -375 773

Mod. Stations 0 0 0

Total Stations 2,373 -375 1998

Utilization Factor 95% 95%

School Capacity 2,254 1898

COFTE Student 
Membership 1,422 1,671

Survey Annotation

Renovate Buildings 1, 3, 6, 7, 8, 9, & 10. 
Expand Media Center.
Remove 16 portables in excess of 20 years of age.
Correct Site Drainage Problems.                                 
Construct Additional Covered Walkways Where Needed.   
(Other)
District-Wide Recommendations for this facility are: Improve Security Fencing and Lighting.

New Site Cost Site 
Expansion

Site 
Development

Site 
Improvement

Remodeling 
Cost

Renovation 
Cost

New 
Construction 

Cost

$0 $0 $0 $45,000 $145,944 $16,682,253 $534,000

Estimated Total Project Cost $17,407,197

RIDGEVIEW SENIOR 
HIGH

Parcel Building Description Total NSF Change In 
Station Count

Calculated 
Cost

Cost Per 
NSF

Cost Per 
Station

New Construction 2026 New Construction: Adding 1 unit of 
LIBRARY (READING 
ROOM/STACKS) (1500 NSF)

1,500 0 $534,000 $356 $0

Page 511 of 962

DRAFT



RIDGEVIEW SENIOR 
HIGH

Parcel Building Description Total NSF Change In 
Station Count

Calculated 
Cost

Cost Per 
NSF

Cost Per 
Station

Remodeling 2026 25 92 Removed NSF (12162), Added NSF 
(0), Difference NSF (12162), Percent 
(100%), Removed Stations (375), 
Added Stations (0) Remodeling: 
Adding  and Removing Room 005 
(749 NSF), Room 005A (66 NSF), 
Room 005B (97 NSF), Room 011 
(730 NSF), Room 012 (754 NSF), 
Room 012A (25 NSF), Room 031 
(754 NSF), Room 031A (25 NSF), 
Room 032 (754 NSF), Room 032A 
(25 NSF), Room 033 (752 NSF), 
Room 033A (26 NSF), Room 045 
(728 NSF), Room 047 (754 NSF), 
Room 047A (27 NSF), Room 049 
(730 NSF), Room 049A (27 NSF), 
Room 050 (735 NSF), Room 051 
(730 NSF), Room 052 (699 NSF), 
Room 052A (35 NSF), Room 065 
(735 NSF), Room 066 (735 NSF), 
Room 067 (735 NSF), Room 070 
(735 NSF)

-12,162 -375 $145,944 $12 $0

Page 512 of 962

DRAFT



RIDGEVIEW SENIOR 
HIGH

Parcel Building Description Total NSF Change In 
Station Count

Calculated 
Cost

Cost Per 
NSF

Cost Per 
Station

Renovation 2026 25 1 Renovating: Apply Painting, Floor 
Cover, Electrical, Plumbing, 
Windows, Lighting, Restrooms, 
HVAC Systems, Bell/Fire Alarm 
Systems, Retrofit for Technology to 
Room 101 (593 NSF), Room 101A 
(158 NSF), Room 102 (242 NSF), 
Room 102A (397 NSF), Room 102B 
(128 NSF), Room 102C (40 NSF), 
Room 102D (289 NSF), Room 103 
(174 NSF), Room 104 (292 NSF), 
Room 105 (272 NSF), Room 105A 
(37 NSF), Room 105B (24 NSF), 
Room 106 (389 NSF), Room 106A 
(158 NSF), Room 106B (139 NSF), 
Room 106C (287 NSF), Room 106D 
(158 NSF), Room 106E (159 NSF), 
Room 107 (774 NSF), Room 108 
(195 NSF), Room 108A (190 NSF), 
Room 108B (63 NSF), Room 109 
(384 NSF), Room 110 (732 NSF), 
Room 110A (64 NSF), Room 110B 
(157 NSF), Room 110C (64 NSF), 
Room 110D (157 NSF), Room 111 
(302 NSF), Room 111A (177 NSF), 
Room 111B (176 NSF), Room 112 
(84 NSF), Room 113 (476 NSF), 
Room 114 (127 NSF), Room 115 (94 
NSF), Room 117 (122 NSF), Room 
117A (95 NSF), Room 118 (618 
NSF), Room 118A (123 NSF), Room 
118B (120 NSF), Room 119 (167 
NSF), Room 120 (348 NSF), Room 
121 (40 NSF), Room 123 (40 NSF), 
Room 124 (659 NSF), Room 125 
(348 NSF), Room 126 (125 NSF), 
Room 127 (207 NSF), Room 127A 
(111 NSF), Room 128 (187 NSF), 
Room 129 (108 NSF), Room 130 
(178 NSF), Room 131 (170 NSF), 
Room 132 (362 NSF), Room 133 
(167 NSF), Room 134 (167 NSF), 
Room 135 (335 NSF), Room 135A 
(206 NSF), Room 136 (94 NSF), 
Room 137 (95 NSF), Room 138 
(321 NSF), Room 139 (116 NSF), 
Room 140 (709 NSF), Room 140A 
(101 NSF), Room 141 (416 NSF), 
Room 142 (522 NSF), Room 143 
(291 NSF), Room 144 (660 NSF), 
Room 145 (172 NSF), Room 146 
(513 NSF), Room 147 (413 NSF), 
Room 148 (199 NSF), Room 149 
(4513 NSF), Room 150 (304 NSF), 
Room 151 (100 NSF)

22,694 0 $2,700,586 $119 $0

Page 513 of 962

DRAFT



RIDGEVIEW SENIOR 
HIGH

Parcel Building Description Total NSF Change In 
Station Count

Calculated 
Cost

Cost Per 
NSF

Cost Per 
Station

Renovation 2026 25 3 Renovating: Apply Painting, Floor 
Cover, Electrical, Plumbing, 
Windows, Lighting, Restrooms, 
HVAC Systems, Bell/Fire Alarm 
Systems, Retrofit for Technology to 
Room 301 (2848 NSF), Room 302 
(1244 NSF), Room 303 (166 NSF), 
Room 304 (95 NSF), Room 305 (73 
NSF), Room 306 (121 NSF), Room 
307 (139 NSF), Room 308 (1107 
NSF), Room 309 (210 NSF), Room 
310 (44 NSF), Room 311 (199 NSF), 
Room 313 (1654 NSF), Room 314 
(55 NSF), Room 315 (938 NSF), 
Room 316 (114 NSF), Room 317 
(214 NSF), Room 318 (49 NSF), 
Room 319 (158 NSF), Room 320 
(1039 NSF), Room 321 (98 NSF), 
Room 322 (102 NSF), Room 323 
(162 NSF), Room 324 (50 NSF), 
Room 325 (37 NSF), Room 326 (58 
NSF), Room 327 (92 NSF), Room 
328 (321 NSF), Room 329 (504 
NSF), Room 330 (99 NSF), Room 
331 (127 NSF), Room 332 (149 
NSF), Room 333 (501 NSF), Room 
334 (23 NSF), Room 335 (196 NSF), 
Room 336 (165 NSF), Room 337 
(38 NSF), Room 338 (41 NSF), 
Room 339 (64 NSF), Room 340 
(758 NSF), Room 341 (40 NSF), 
Room 342 (91 NSF), Room 343 
(214 NSF), Room 344 (38 NSF), 
Room 345 (119 NSF), Room 346 
(777 NSF), Room 347 (761 NSF), 
Room 348 (134 NSF), Room 349 
(45 NSF), Room 350 (206 NSF), 
Room 351 (66 NSF), Room 352 (28 
NSF), Room 353 (773 NSF)

17,344 0 $2,063,936 $119 $0

Renovation 2026 25 6 Renovating: Apply Painting, Floor 
Cover, Electrical, Plumbing, 
Windows, Lighting, Restrooms, 
HVAC Systems, Bell/Fire Alarm 
Systems, Retrofit for Technology to 
Room 601 (914 NSF), Room 602 
(914 NSF), Room 603 (11 NSF), 
Room 604 (11 NSF), Room 605 (100 
NSF), Room 606 (100 NSF), Room 
607 (49 NSF), Room 608 (49 NSF), 
Room 609 (27 NSF), Room 610 (27 
NSF), Room 611 (60 NSF), Room 
612 (60 NSF), Room 613 (199 NSF), 
Room 614 (199 NSF), Room 615 
(914 NSF), Room 616 (914 NSF), 
Room 617 (27 NSF), Room 618 (27 
NSF), Room 619 (49 NSF), Room 
620 (49 NSF), Room 621 (144 NSF), 
Room 622 (144 NSF), Room 623 (11 
NSF), Room 624 (11 NSF), Room 
625 (107 NSF), Room 626 (101 
NSF), Room 627 (11 NSF), Room 
628 (99 NSF), Room 629 (497 NSF), 
Room 630 (204 NSF), Room 630A 
(18 NSF), Room 631 (115 NSF), 
Room 632 (176 NSF), Room 633 
(1050 NSF), Room 634 (13 NSF), 
Room 635 (1004 NSF), Room 638 
(2120 NSF), Room 638A (32 NSF), 
Room 638B (32 NSF), Room 638C 
(250 NSF), Room 639 (1106 NSF), 
Room 640 (1106 NSF), Room 641 
(11 NSF), Room 642 (11 NSF), 
Room 643 (121 NSF), Room 643A 
(18 NSF), Room 644 (121 NSF), 
Room 644A (18 NSF), Room 645 

33,200 0 $3,950,800 $119 $0

Page 514 of 962

DRAFT



(81 NSF), Room 646 (81 NSF), 
Room 647 (168 NSF), Room 648 
(168 NSF), Room 649 (1226 NSF), 
Room 650 (1226 NSF), Room 651 
(81 NSF), Room 652 (81 NSF), 
Room 653 (121 NSF), Room 653A 
(18 NSF), Room 654 (121 NSF), 
Room 654A (18 NSF), Room 655 
(11 NSF), Room 656 (11 NSF), 
Room 657 (1226 NSF), Room 658 
(1226 NSF), Room 659 (11 NSF), 
Room 660 (11 NSF), Room 661 (121 
NSF), Room 661A (18 NSF), Room 
662 (121 NSF), Room 662A (18 
NSF), Room 663 (81 NSF), Room 
664 (81 NSF), Room 665 (168 NSF), 
Room 666 (168 NSF), Room 667 
(1106 NSF), Room 668 (1106 NSF), 
Room 669 (81 NSF), Room 670 (81 
NSF), Room 671 (121 NSF), Room 
671A (18 NSF), Room 672 (121 
NSF), Room 672A (18 NSF), Room 
673 (11 NSF), Room 674 (11 NSF), 
Room 675 (48 NSF), Room 676 
(1240 NSF), Room 676A (58 NSF), 
Room 676B (144 NSF), Room 676C 
(12 NSF), Room 676D (148 NSF), 
Room 676E (116 NSF), Room 676F 
(19 NSF), Room 677 (13 NSF), 
Room 679 (986 NSF), Room 680 
(80 NSF), Room 681 (91 NSF), 
Room 682 (82 NSF), Room 682A 
(52 NSF), Room 683 (69 NSF), 
Room 684 (982 NSF), Room 684A 
(68 NSF), Room 684B (68 NSF), 
Room 684C (50 NSF), Room 685 
(13 NSF), Room 686 (82 NSF), 
Room 686A (68 NSF), Room 687 
(137 NSF), Room 687A (52 NSF), 
Room 687B (156 NSF), Room 688 
(774 NSF), Room 688A (160 NSF), 
Room 688B (40 NSF), Room 689 
(1130 NSF), Room 689A (158 NSF), 
Room 690 (1135 NSF), Room 690A 
(47 NSF), Room 690B (306 NSF), 
Room 690C (104 NSF), Room 690D 
(104 NSF), Room 690E (104 NSF), 
Room 690F (95 NSF), Room 690G 
(65 NSF), Room 691 (942 NSF), 
Room 693 (223 NSF), Room 695 
(56 NSF), Room 697 (236 NSF)

Renovation 2026 25 7 Renovating: Apply Painting, Floor 
Cover, Electrical, Plumbing, 
Windows, Lighting, Restrooms, 
HVAC Systems, Bell/Fire Alarm 
Systems, Retrofit for Technology to 
Room 701 (1476 NSF), Room 702 
(181 NSF), Room 703 (69 NSF), 
Room 704 (105 NSF), Room 705 
(2038 NSF), Room 705A (70 NSF), 
Room 705B (70 NSF), Room 706 
(777 NSF), Room 707 (154 NSF), 
Room 708 (98 NSF), Room 709 (56 
NSF), Room 710 (872 NSF), Room 
711 (196 NSF), Room 712 (80 NSF), 
Room 713 (86 NSF), Room 714 
(1476 NSF), Room 715 (158 NSF), 
Room 716 (158 NSF), Room 717 
(105 NSF), Room 718 (174 NSF), 
Room 719 (174 NSF), Room 720 
(220 NSF), Room 721 (168 NSF), 
Room 722 (158 NSF), Room 723 
(100 NSF), Room 724 (1486 NSF)

10,705 0 $1,273,895 $119 $0

Page 515 of 962

DRAFT



RIDGEVIEW SENIOR 
HIGH

Parcel Building Description Total NSF Change In 
Station Count

Calculated 
Cost

Cost Per 
NSF

Cost Per 
Station

Renovation 2026 25 8 Renovating: Apply Painting, Floor 
Cover, Electrical, Plumbing, 
Windows, Lighting, Restrooms, 
HVAC Systems, Bell/Fire Alarm 
Systems, Retrofit for Technology to 
Room 801 (482 NSF), Room 802 
(50 NSF), Room 803 (50 NSF), 
Room 804 (1229 NSF), Room 805 
(157 NSF), Room 806 (105 NSF), 
Room 807 (154 NSF), Room 808 
(110 NSF), Room 809 (419 NSF), 
Room 810 (304 NSF), Room 811 
(110 NSF), Room 812 (70 NSF), 
Room 813 (56 NSF), Room 814 
(1985 NSF), Room 815 (188 NSF), 
Room 816 (109 NSF), Room 817 
(57 NSF), Room 818 (305 NSF), 
Room 819 (119 NSF), Room 820 (70 
NSF), Room 821 (70 NSF), Room 
822 (425 NSF), Room 823 (190 
NSF), Room 824 (167 NSF), Room 
825 (150 NSF), Room 826 (97 NSF), 
Room 827 (118 NSF), Room 828 
(189 NSF), Room 829 (80 NSF), 
Room 830 (149 NSF)

7,764 0 $923,916 $119 $0

Renovation 2026 25 9 Renovating: Apply Painting, Floor 
Cover, Electrical, Plumbing, 
Windows, Lighting, Restrooms, 
HVAC Systems, Bell/Fire Alarm 
Systems, Retrofit for Technology to 
Room 901 (593 NSF), Room 902 
(150 NSF), Room 903 (439 NSF), 
Room 904 (520 NSF), Room 905 
(96 NSF), Room 906 (78 NSF), 
Room 907 (130 NSF), Room 908 
(179 NSF), Room 909 (30 NSF), 
Room 910 (784 NSF), Room 911 
(13400 NSF), Room 914 (2925 
NSF), Room 916 (1569 NSF), Room 
917 (350 NSF), Room 918 (230 
NSF), Room 918A (50 NSF), Room 
919 (944 NSF), Room 920A (31 
NSF), Room 920B (90 NSF), Room 
921 (396 NSF), Room 922 (50 NSF), 
Room 923 (50 NSF), Room 924 
(1220 NSF), Room 925 (964 NSF), 
Room 926 (119 NSF), Room 927 
(120 NSF), Room 928 (170 NSF), 
Room 928B (7 NSF), Room 929 (25 
NSF), Room 930 (1241 NSF), Room 
931 (309 NSF), Room 932 (360 
NSF), Room 933 (129 NSF), Room 
934 (208 NSF), Room 935 (39 NSF), 
Room 936 (208 NSF), Room 937 
(39 NSF), Room 938 (118 NSF), 
Room 939 (283 NSF), Room 940 
(68 NSF), Room 941 (1350 NSF), 
Room 942 (72 NSF), Room 950 (69 
NSF), Room 951 (76 NSF), Room 
952 (1195 NSF)

31,473 0 $3,745,287 $119 $0

Page 516 of 962

DRAFT



RIDGEVIEW SENIOR 
HIGH

Parcel Building Description Total NSF Change In 
Station Count

Calculated 
Cost

Cost Per 
NSF

Cost Per 
Station

Renovation 2026 25 10 Renovating: Apply Painting, Floor 
Cover, Electrical, Plumbing, 
Windows, Lighting, Restrooms, 
HVAC Systems, Bell/Fire Alarm 
Systems, Retrofit for Technology to 
Room 001 (250 NSF), Room 002 
(136 NSF), Room 003 (234 NSF), 
Room 004 (1818 NSF), Room 005 
(204 NSF), Room 006 (688 NSF), 
Room 007 (329 NSF), Room 008 
(151 NSF), Room 009 (50 NSF), 
Room 010 (89 NSF), Room 011 (204 
NSF), Room 012 (688 NSF), Room 
013 (1820 NSF), Room 014 (252 
NSF), Room 015 (138 NSF), Room 
016 (236 NSF), Room 017 (2260 
NSF), Room 018 (266 NSF), Room 
019 (250 NSF), Room 020 (103 
NSF), Room 021 (1730 NSF), Room 
022 (150 NSF), Room 023 (150 
NSF), Room 024 (168 NSF), Room 
025 (168 NSF), Room 026 (110 
NSF), Room 027 (90 NSF), Room 
028 (185 NSF), Room 029 (74 NSF), 
Room 029A (11 NSF), Room 030 
(70 NSF), Room 031 (1660 NSF), 
Room 032 (151 NSF), Room 033 
(151 NSF), Room 034 (54 NSF), 
Room 035 (74 NSF), Room 036 
(750 NSF), Room 037 (795 NSF), 
Room 038 (150 NSF), Room 039 
(150 NSF)

17,007 0 $2,023,833 $119 $0

Page 517 of 962

DRAFT



District Name: CLAY COUNTY SCHOOL DISTRICT

Survey: Number 7 - Version 1

Facility Name: ROBERT M PATERSON ELEMENTARY

Address: 5400 PINE AVENUE, ORANGE PARK

Existing Recommended

Capital Outlay 
Classification

1 - SCHOOL RECOMMENDED FOR 
CONTINUED USE

1 - SCHOOL RECOMMENDED FOR 
CONTINUED USE

Facility Use ELEMENTARY ELEMENTARY

Low Grade PRE-K E S E PRE-K E S E

High Grade GRADE 6 GRADE 6

Comments

Existing
Student Stations 

Added/Reduced(+ or -) Recommended

Perm. Stations 413 0 413

Reloc. Stations 692 -36 656

Mod. Stations 0 0 0

Total Stations 1,105 -36 1069

Utilization Factor 100% 100%

School Capacity 1,105 1069

COFTE Student 
Membership 1,119 989

Survey Annotation

Renovate Buildings 1-6. 
Remove 2 portables in excess of 20 years of age.
Correct Site Drainage Problems.                                 
Construct Additional Covered Walkways Where Needed.   
(Other)
District-Wide Recommendations for this facility are: Improve Security Fencing and Lighting.

New Site Cost Site 
Expansion

Site 
Development

Site 
Improvement

Remodeling 
Cost

Renovation 
Cost

New 
Construction 

Cost

$0 $0 $0 $45,000 $18,816 $6,274,308 $0

Estimated Total Project Cost $6,338,124

ROBERT M PATERSON 
ELEMENTARY

Parcel Building Description Total NSF Change In 
Station Count

Calculated 
Cost

Cost Per 
NSF

Cost Per 
Station

Remodeling 2026 27 92 Removed NSF (1568), Added NSF 
(0), Difference NSF (1568), Percent 
(100%), Removed Stations (36), 
Added Stations (0) Remodeling: 
Adding  and Removing Room 030 
(728 NSF), Room 030A (29 NSF), 
Room 045 (750 NSF), Room 045A 
(25 NSF), Room 045B (36 NSF)

-1,568 -36 $18,816 $12 $0

Page 518 of 962

DRAFT



ROBERT M PATERSON 
ELEMENTARY

Parcel Building Description Total NSF Change In 
Station Count

Calculated 
Cost

Cost Per 
NSF

Cost Per 
Station

Renovation 2026 27 1 Renovating: Apply Painting, Floor 
Cover, Electrical, Plumbing, 
Windows, Lighting, Restrooms, 
HVAC Systems, Bell/Fire Alarm 
Systems, Retrofit for Technology to 
Room 101 (399 NSF), Room 102 
(245 NSF), Room 102A (28 NSF), 
Room 103 (235 NSF), Room 104 
(181 NSF), Room 105 (155 NSF), 
Room 106 (119 NSF), Room 107 
(255 NSF), Room 108 (460 NSF), 
Room 109 (330 NSF), Room 109A 
(35 NSF), Room 109B (35 NSF), 
Room 110 (78 NSF), Room 111 (315 
NSF), Room 112 (140 NSF), Room 
113 (120 NSF), Room 114 (126 
NSF), Room 115 (76 NSF), Room 
116 (40 NSF), Room 117 (116 NSF), 
Room 118 (58 NSF), Room 119 (140 
NSF), Room 120 (280 NSF), Room 
121 (270 NSF), Room 122 (240 
NSF), Room 124 (100 NSF), Room 
125 (532 NSF), Room 126 (380 
NSF), Room 127 (306 NSF), Room 
129 (184 NSF), Room 130 (84 NSF), 
Room 131 (70 NSF), Room 132 
(275 NSF), Room 133 (62 NSF), 
Room 134 (322 NSF), Room 135 
(377 NSF), Room 136 (213 NSF), 
Room 137 (142 NSF), Room 138 
(171 NSF), Room 139 (151 NSF), 
Room 140 (772 NSF), Room 142 
(3226 NSF), Room 143 (279 NSF), 
Room 144 (321 NSF), Room 145 
(238 NSF), Room 146 (579 NSF)

13,260 0 $1,219,920 $92 $0

Renovation 2026 27 2 Renovating: Apply Painting, Floor 
Cover, Electrical, Plumbing, 
Windows, Lighting, Restrooms, 
HVAC Systems, Bell/Fire Alarm 
Systems, Retrofit for Technology to 
Room 201 (5344 NSF), Room 202 
(71 NSF), Room 203 (36 NSF), 
Room 204 (24 NSF), Room 205 
(215 NSF), Room 205A (31 NSF), 
Room 206 (123 NSF), Room 207 
(203 NSF), Room 208 (393 NSF), 
Room 209 (617 NSF), Room 209A 
(36 NSF), Room 210 (198 NSF), 
Room 211 (114 NSF), Room 212 
(235 NSF), Room 212A (31 NSF), 
Room 213 (68 NSF), Room 214 (34 
NSF), Room 215 (1006 NSF), Room 
216 (409 NSF), Room 217 (633 
NSF), Room 218 (822 NSF), Room 
219 (1348 NSF), Room 220 (224 
NSF), Room 221 (100 NSF), Room 
222 (114 NSF), Room 223 (112 
NSF), Room 224 (112 NSF), Room 
225 (76 NSF), Room 226 (331 NSF), 
Room 227 (16 NSF), Room 228 (80 
NSF), Room 229 (38 NSF), Room 
230 (82 NSF), Room 231 (223 NSF), 
Room 232 (93 NSF), Room 233 
(196 NSF), Room 234 (608 NSF), 
Room 235 (32 NSF)

14,428 0 $1,327,376 $92 $0

Page 519 of 962

DRAFT



ROBERT M PATERSON 
ELEMENTARY

Parcel Building Description Total NSF Change In 
Station Count

Calculated 
Cost

Cost Per 
NSF

Cost Per 
Station

Renovation 2026 27 3 Renovating: Apply Painting, Floor 
Cover, Electrical, Plumbing, 
Windows, Lighting, Restrooms, 
HVAC Systems, Bell/Fire Alarm 
Systems, Retrofit for Technology to 
Room 300 (728 NSF), Room 301 
(822 NSF), Room 302 (218 NSF), 
Room 303 (102 NSF), Room 304 
(32 NSF), Room 305 (822 NSF), 
Room 306 (102 NSF), Room 307 
(32 NSF), Room 308 (120 NSF), 
Room 309 (115 NSF), Room 310 (32 
NSF), Room 311 (906 NSF), Room 
312 (202 NSF), Room 313 (97 NSF), 
Room 313A (37 NSF), Room 313B 
(62 NSF), Room 313C (60 NSF), 
Room 313D (29 NSF), Room 314 
(179 NSF), Room 315 (906 NSF)

5,603 0 $515,476 $92 $0

Renovation 2026 27 4 Renovating: Apply Painting, Floor 
Cover, Electrical, Plumbing, 
Windows, Lighting, Restrooms, 
HVAC Systems, Bell/Fire Alarm 
Systems, Retrofit for Technology to 
Room 400 (1800 NSF), Room 401 
(987 NSF), Room 402 (176 NSF), 
Room 403 (110 NSF), Room 404 (28 
NSF), Room 405 (987 NSF), Room 
406 (110 NSF), Room 407 (28 NSF), 
Room 408 (987 NSF), Room 409 
(176 NSF), Room 410 (110 NSF), 
Room 411 (28 NSF), Room 412 (987 
NSF), Room 413 (110 NSF), Room 
414 (28 NSF), Room 415 (987 NSF), 
Room 416 (176 NSF), Room 417 
(110 NSF), Room 418 (28 NSF), 
Room 419 (978 NSF), Room 420 
(110 NSF), Room 421 (28 NSF), 
Room 422 (987 NSF), Room 423 
(176 NSF), Room 424 (110 NSF), 
Room 425 (28 NSF), Room 426 
(978 NSF), Room 427 (110 NSF), 
Room 428 (28 NSF), Room 429 (78 
NSF), Room 430 (49 NSF), Room 
431 (28 NSF)

11,641 0 $1,070,972 $92 $0

Renovation 2026 27 5 Renovating: Apply Painting, Floor 
Cover, Electrical, Plumbing, 
Windows, Lighting, Restrooms, 
HVAC Systems, Bell/Fire Alarm 
Systems, Retrofit for Technology to 
Room 500 (1788 NSF), Room 501 
(987 NSF), Room 502 (176 NSF), 
Room 503 (110 NSF), Room 504 (28 
NSF), Room 505 (987 NSF), Room 
506 (110 NSF), Room 507 (28 NSF), 
Room 508 (987 NSF), Room 509 
(176 NSF), Room 510 (110 NSF), 
Room 511 (28 NSF), Room 512 (987 
NSF), Room 513 (110 NSF), Room 
514 (28 NSF), Room 515 (987 NSF), 
Room 516 (176 NSF), Room 517 
(110 NSF), Room 518 (28 NSF), 
Room 519 (978 NSF), Room 520 
(110 NSF), Room 521 (28 NSF), 
Room 522 (987 NSF), Room 523 
(176 NSF), Room 524 (110 NSF), 
Room 525 (28 NSF), Room 526 
(978 NSF), Room 527 (110 NSF), 
Room 528 (28 NSF), Room 529 (78 
NSF), Room 530 (49 NSF), Room 
531 (28 NSF)

11,629 0 $1,069,868 $92 $0

Page 520 of 962

DRAFT



ROBERT M PATERSON 
ELEMENTARY

Parcel Building Description Total NSF Change In 
Station Count

Calculated 
Cost

Cost Per 
NSF

Cost Per 
Station

Renovation 2026 27 6 Renovating: Apply Painting, Floor 
Cover, Electrical, Plumbing, 
Windows, Lighting, Restrooms, 
HVAC Systems, Bell/Fire Alarm 
Systems, Retrofit for Technology to 
Room 600 (1797 NSF), Room 601 
(987 NSF), Room 602 (176 NSF), 
Room 603 (110 NSF), Room 604 (28 
NSF), Room 605 (987 NSF), Room 
606 (110 NSF), Room 607 (28 NSF), 
Room 608 (987 NSF), Room 609 
(176 NSF), Room 610 (110 NSF), 
Room 611 (28 NSF), Room 612 (987 
NSF), Room 613 (110 NSF), Room 
614 (28 NSF), Room 615 (987 NSF), 
Room 616 (176 NSF), Room 617 
(110 NSF), Room 618 (28 NSF), 
Room 619 (978 NSF), Room 620 
(110 NSF), Room 621 (28 NSF), 
Room 622 (987 NSF), Room 623 
(176 NSF), Room 624 (110 NSF), 
Room 625 (28 NSF), Room 626 
(978 NSF), Room 627 (110 NSF), 
Room 628 (28 NSF), Room 629 (78 
NSF), Room 630 (49 NSF), Room 
631 (28 NSF)

11,638 0 $1,070,696 $92 $0

Page 521 of 962

DRAFT



District Name: CLAY COUNTY SCHOOL DISTRICT

Survey: Number 7 - Version 1

Facility Name: S BRYAN JENNINGS ELEMENTARY

Address: 215 CORONA DRIVE, ORANGE PARK

Existing Recommended

Capital Outlay 
Classification

1 - SCHOOL RECOMMENDED FOR 
CONTINUED USE

1 - SCHOOL RECOMMENDED FOR 
CONTINUED USE

Facility Use ELEMENTARY ELEMENTARY

Low Grade PRE-K E S E PRE-K E S E

High Grade GRADE 6 GRADE 6

Comments

Existing
Student Stations 

Added/Reduced(+ or -) Recommended

Perm. Stations 397 95 492

Reloc. Stations 279 -164 115

Mod. Stations 0 0 0

Total Stations 676 -69 607

Utilization Factor 100% 100%

School Capacity 676 607

COFTE Student 
Membership 478 560

Survey Annotation

Renovate Buildings 1-9. 
Construct Elementary Covered Play Area, (1) Elem Art, (1) Elem Music, (1) ESE PK, (1) ESE 
FT (2) Primary Classroom and (2) Intermediate Classrooms.
Remove 8 portables in excess of 20 years of age.
Correct Site Drainage Problems.                                 
Construct Additional Covered Walkways Where Needed.   
(Other)
District-Wide Recommendations for this facility are: Improve Security Fencing and Lighting.

New Site Cost Site 
Expansion

Site 
Development

Site 
Improvement

Remodeling 
Cost

Renovation 
Cost

New 
Construction 

Cost

$0 $0 $0 $45,000 $71,868 $4,088,204 $2,414,805

Estimated Total Project Cost $6,619,877

S BRYAN JENNINGS 
ELEMENTARY

Parcel Building Description Total NSF Change In 
Station Count

Calculated 
Cost

Cost Per 
NSF

Cost Per 
Station

New Construction 2026 New Construction: Adding 2 units of 
PRIMARY CLASSROOM (K-3) (882 
NSF), 2 units of 
INTERMEDIATE/MIDDLE 
CLASSROOM (4-8) (858 NSF), 1 
unit of ELEMENTARY COVERED 
PLAY AREA (500 NSF), 1 unit of 
MUSIC - ELEMENTARY (1560 
NSF), 1 unit of ART - ELEMENTARY 
(1110 NSF), 1 unit of E S E FULL-
TIME (950 NSF), 1 unit of E S E 
PRE-K (475 NSF)

10,105 95 $2,414,805 $239 $25,419

Page 522 of 962

DRAFT



S BRYAN JENNINGS 
ELEMENTARY

Parcel Building Description Total NSF Change In 
Station Count

Calculated 
Cost

Cost Per 
NSF

Cost Per 
Station

Remodeling 2026 15 92 Removed NSF (5989), Added NSF 
(0), Difference NSF (5989), Percent 
(100%), Removed Stations (164), 
Added Stations (0) Remodeling: 
Adding  and Removing Room 026 
(735 NSF), Room 027 (731 NSF), 
Room 030 (731 NSF), Room 032 
(778 NSF), Room 033 (750 NSF), 
Room 033A (25 NSF), Room 035 
(731 NSF), Room 036 (733 NSF), 
Room 037 (750 NSF), Room 037A 
(25 NSF)

-5,989 -164 $71,868 $12 $0

Renovation 2026 15 1 Renovating: Apply Painting, Floor 
Cover, Electrical, Plumbing, 
Windows, Lighting, Restrooms, 
HVAC Systems, Bell/Fire Alarm 
Systems, Retrofit for Technology to 
Room 029A (156 NSF), Room 029B 
(120 NSF), Room 030A (350 NSF), 
Room 030B (177 NSF), Room 031A 
(1321 NSF), Room 031B (2343 
NSF), Room 031C (363 NSF), Room 
031D (163 NSF), Room 031E (92 
NSF), Room 031F (9 NSF), Room 
031G (235 NSF), Room 031H (55 
NSF), Room 031J (105 NSF), Room 
031K (42 NSF), Room 031Y (222 
NSF), Room 032A (2001 NSF), 
Room 032B (790 NSF), Room 033A 
(155 NSF), Room 033B (46 NSF), 
Room 034A (156 NSF), Room 034B 
(46 NSF), Room 034C (157 NSF), 
Room 034D (44 NSF), Room 034E 
(44 NSF), Room 035A (91 NSF), 
Room 035B (94 NSF), Room 035C 
(32 NSF), Room 035D (32 NSF)

9,441 0 $868,572 $92 $0

Renovation 2026 15 2 Renovating: Apply Painting, Floor 
Cover, Electrical, Plumbing, 
Windows, Lighting, Restrooms, 
HVAC Systems, Bell/Fire Alarm 
Systems, Retrofit for Technology to 
Room 036A (218 NSF), Room 036B 
(96 NSF), Room 037A (2812 NSF), 
Room 037B (356 NSF), Room 037C 
(719 NSF), Room 038A (252 NSF), 
Room 039A (56 NSF), Room 040A 
(72 NSF)

4,581 0 $421,452 $92 $0

Renovation 2026 15 3 Renovating: Apply Painting, Floor 
Cover, Electrical, Plumbing, 
Windows, Lighting, Restrooms, 
HVAC Systems, Bell/Fire Alarm 
Systems, Retrofit for Technology to 
Room 041 (210 NSF), Room 041A 
(322 NSF), Room 041B (9 NSF), 
Room 041C (9 NSF), Room 041D 
(16 NSF), Room 041E (122 NSF), 
Room 041F (132 NSF), Room 041G 
(130 NSF), Room 041H (147 NSF), 
Room 042 (33 NSF), Room 042A 
(29 NSF), Room 042B (15 NSF), 
Room 042C (18 NSF), Room 043A 
(334 NSF), Room 043C (27 NSF), 
Room 043D (35 NSF), Room 043F 
(61 NSF), Room 043G (10 NSF), 
Room 044 (99 NSF), Room 044A 
(149 NSF), Room 044B (148 NSF), 
Room 045A (142 NSF), Room 046A 
(445 NSF), Room 047A (251 NSF), 
Room 047B (40 NSF), Room 048A 
(64 NSF)

2,997 0 $275,724 $92 $0

Page 523 of 962

DRAFT



S BRYAN JENNINGS 
ELEMENTARY

Parcel Building Description Total NSF Change In 
Station Count

Calculated 
Cost

Cost Per 
NSF

Cost Per 
Station

Renovation 2026 15 4 Renovating: Apply Painting, Floor 
Cover, Electrical, Plumbing, 
Windows, Lighting, Restrooms, 
HVAC Systems, Bell/Fire Alarm 
Systems, Retrofit for Technology to 
Room 001A (732 NSF), Room 001B 
(60 NSF), Room 001C (16 NSF), 
Room 001D (15 NSF), Room 001E 
(187 NSF), Room 001F (10 NSF), 
Room 001G (10 NSF), Room 001K 
(27 NSF), Room 001Y (20 NSF), 
Room 002A (732 NSF), Room 002B 
(59 NSF), Room 002C (16 NSF), 
Room 002D (15 NSF), Room 002J 
(8 NSF), Room 002K (19 NSF), 
Room 002Y (20 NSF), Room 003A 
(782 NSF), Room 003B (59 NSF), 
Room 003C (16 NSF), Room 003D 
(15 NSF), Room 003K (27 NSF), 
Room 003Y (20 NSF), Room 004A 
(732 NSF), Room 004B (60 NSF), 
Room 004C (16 NSF), Room 004D 
(15 NSF), Room 004E (187 NSF), 
Room 004F (10 NSF), Room 004G 
(10 NSF), Room 004J (8 NSF), 
Room 004K (18 NSF), Room 004Y 
(20 NSF), Room 005A (77 NSF), 
Room 005B (411 NSF), Room 005C 
(154 NSF)

4,583 0 $421,636 $92 $0

Renovation 2026 15 5 Renovating: Apply Painting, Floor 
Cover, Electrical, Plumbing, 
Windows, Lighting, Restrooms, 
HVAC Systems, Bell/Fire Alarm 
Systems, Retrofit for Technology to 
Room 005A (732 NSF), Room 005B 
(57 NSF), Room 005C (16 NSF), 
Room 005D (15 NSF), Room 005E 
(187 NSF), Room 005F (10 NSF), 
Room 005G (10 NSF), Room 005K 
(27 NSF), Room 005Y (20 NSF), 
Room 006A (732 NSF), Room 006B 
(62 NSF), Room 006C (16 NSF), 
Room 006D (15 NSF), Room 006J 
(7 NSF), Room 006K (17 NSF), 
Room 006Y (20 NSF), Room 007A 
(732 NSF), Room 007B (60 NSF), 
Room 007C (16 NSF), Room 007D 
(15 NSF), Room 007K (27 NSF), 
Room 007Y (20 NSF), Room 008A 
(732 NSF), Room 008B (61 NSF), 
Room 008C (16 NSF), Room 008D 
(15 NSF), Room 008E (187 NSF), 
Room 008F (10 NSF), Room 008G 
(10 NSF), Room 008J (6 NSF), 
Room 008K (18 NSF), Room 008Y 
(20 NSF), Room 009A (77 NSF), 
Room 009B (411 NSF), Room 009C 
(154 NSF)

4,530 0 $416,760 $92 $0

Page 524 of 962

DRAFT



S BRYAN JENNINGS 
ELEMENTARY

Parcel Building Description Total NSF Change In 
Station Count

Calculated 
Cost

Cost Per 
NSF

Cost Per 
Station

Renovation 2026 15 6 Renovating: Apply Painting, Floor 
Cover, Electrical, Plumbing, 
Windows, Lighting, Restrooms, 
HVAC Systems, Bell/Fire Alarm 
Systems, Retrofit for Technology to 
Room 009A (732 NSF), Room 009B 
(60 NSF), Room 009C (16 NSF), 
Room 009D (15 NSF), Room 009E 
(187 NSF), Room 009F (10 NSF), 
Room 009G (10 NSF), Room 009K 
(28 NSF), Room 009Y (20 NSF), 
Room 010A (732 NSF), Room 010B 
(60 NSF), Room 010C (16 NSF), 
Room 010D (15 NSF), Room 010J 
(8 NSF), Room 010K (14 NSF), 
Room 010Y (20 NSF), Room 011A 
(732 NSF), Room 011B (57 NSF), 
Room 011C (16 NSF), Room 011D 
(15 NSF), Room 011K (28 NSF), 
Room 011Y (20 NSF), Room 012A 
(732 NSF), Room 012B (60 NSF), 
Room 012C (16 NSF), Room 012D 
(15 NSF), Room 012E (187 NSF), 
Room 012F (10 NSF), Room 012G 
(10 NSF), Room 012J (9 NSF), 
Room 012K (19 NSF), Room 012Y 
(20 NSF), Room 013A (77 NSF), 
Room 013B (411 NSF), Room 013C 
(154 NSF)

4,531 0 $416,852 $92 $0

Renovation 2026 15 7 Renovating: Apply Painting, Floor 
Cover, Electrical, Plumbing, 
Windows, Lighting, Restrooms, 
HVAC Systems, Bell/Fire Alarm 
Systems, Retrofit for Technology to 
Room 013A (732 NSF), Room 013B 
(60 NSF), Room 013C (16 NSF), 
Room 013D (15 NSF), Room 013E 
(187 NSF), Room 013F (10 NSF), 
Room 013G (10 NSF), Room 013K 
(27 NSF), Room 013Y (20 NSF), 
Room 014A (732 NSF), Room 014B 
(60 NSF), Room 014C (16 NSF), 
Room 014D (15 NSF), Room 014J 
(8 NSF), Room 014K (18 NSF), 
Room 014Y (20 NSF), Room 015A 
(732 NSF), Room 015B (60 NSF), 
Room 015C (16 NSF), Room 015D 
(15 NSF), Room 015K (27 NSF), 
Room 015Y (20 NSF), Room 016A 
(732 NSF), Room 016B (60 NSF), 
Room 016C (16 NSF), Room 016D 
(15 NSF), Room 016E (187 NSF), 
Room 016F (10 NSF), Room 016G 
(10 NSF), Room 016J (8 NSF), 
Room 016K (19 NSF), Room 016Y 
(20 NSF), Room 017A (77 NSF), 
Room 017B (411 NSF), Room 017C 
(154 NSF)

4,535 0 $417,220 $92 $0

Page 525 of 962

DRAFT



S BRYAN JENNINGS 
ELEMENTARY

Parcel Building Description Total NSF Change In 
Station Count

Calculated 
Cost

Cost Per 
NSF

Cost Per 
Station

Renovation 2026 15 8 Renovating: Apply Painting, Floor 
Cover, Electrical, Plumbing, 
Windows, Lighting, Restrooms, 
HVAC Systems, Bell/Fire Alarm 
Systems, Retrofit for Technology to 
Room 017A (782 NSF), Room 017B 
(60 NSF), Room 017C (16 NSF), 
Room 017D (15 NSF), Room 017E 
(187 NSF), Room 017F (10 NSF), 
Room 017G (10 NSF), Room 017K 
(27 NSF), Room 017Y (20 NSF), 
Room 018A (732 NSF), Room 018B 
(60 NSF), Room 018C (16 NSF), 
Room 018D (15 NSF), Room 018J 
(7 NSF), Room 018K (18 NSF), 
Room 018Y (20 NSF), Room 019A 
(732 NSF), Room 019B (61 NSF), 
Room 019C (16 NSF), Room 019D 
(15 NSF), Room 019K (27 NSF), 
Room 019Y (20 NSF), Room 020A 
(732 NSF), Room 020B (60 NSF), 
Room 020C (16 NSF), Room 020D 
(15 NSF), Room 020E (187 NSF), 
Room 020F (10 NSF), Room 020G 
(10 NSF), Room 020J (7 NSF), 
Room 020K (18 NSF), Room 020Y 
(20 NSF), Room 021A (77 NSF), 
Room 021B (411 NSF), Room 021C 
(154 NSF)

4,583 0 $421,636 $92 $0

Renovation 2026 15 9 Renovating: Apply Painting, Floor 
Cover, Electrical, Plumbing, 
Windows, Lighting, Restrooms, 
HVAC Systems, Bell/Fire Alarm 
Systems, Retrofit for Technology to 
Room 021A (732 NSF), Room 021B 
(60 NSF), Room 021C (16 NSF), 
Room 021D (15 NSF), Room 021E 
(187 NSF), Room 021F (10 NSF), 
Room 021G (10 NSF), Room 021K 
(28 NSF), Room 021Y (20 NSF), 
Room 022A (732 NSF), Room 022B 
(59 NSF), Room 022C (16 NSF), 
Room 022D (15 NSF), Room 022J 
(8 NSF), Room 022K (18 NSF), 
Room 022Y (20 NSF), Room 023A 
(732 NSF), Room 023B (59 NSF), 
Room 023C (16 NSF), Room 023D 
(15 NSF), Room 023K (27 NSF), 
Room 023Y (20 NSF), Room 024A 
(732 NSF), Room 024B (62 NSF), 
Room 024C (16 NSF), Room 024D 
(15 NSF), Room 024E (187 NSF), 
Room 024F (90 NSF), Room 024G 
(10 NSF), Room 024H (45 NSF), 
Room 024J (8 NSF), Room 024K 
(14 NSF), Room 024Y (20 NSF), 
Room 025A (77 NSF), Room 025B 
(411 NSF), Room 025C (154 NSF)

4,656 0 $428,352 $92 $0

Page 526 of 962

DRAFT



District Name: CLAY COUNTY SCHOOL DISTRICT

Survey: Number 7 - Version 1

Facility Name: SCHOOL BUS GARAGE

Address: 800 CENTER STREET, GREEN COVE SPRINGS

Existing Recommended

Capital Outlay 
Classification

6 - ANCILLARY RECOMMENDED FOR 
CONTINUED USE

6 - ANCILLARY RECOMMENDED FOR 
CONTINUED USE

Facility Use TRANSPORTATION TRANSPORTATION

Low Grade DISTRICT SERVICES DISTRICT SERVICES

High Grade DISTRICT SERVICES DISTRICT SERVICES

Comments

Existing
Student Stations 

Added/Reduced(+ or -) Recommended

Perm. Stations 0 0 0

Reloc. Stations 0 0 0

Mod. Stations 0 0 0

Total Stations 0 0 0

Utilization Factor 0% 0%

School Capacity 0 0

COFTE Student 
Membership 0 0

Survey Annotation No new recommendations.

New Site Cost Site 
Expansion

Site 
Development

Site 
Improvement

Remodeling 
Cost

Renovation 
Cost

New 
Construction 

Cost

$0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0

Estimated Total Project Cost $0

SCHOOL BUS GARAGE Parcel Building Description Total NSF Change In 
Station Count

Calculated 
Cost

Cost Per 
NSF

Cost Per 
Station

 

Page 527 of 962

DRAFT



District Name: CLAY COUNTY SCHOOL DISTRICT

Survey: Number 7 - Version 1

Facility Name: SHADOWLAWN ELEMENTARY

Address: 2945 County Road 218, Green Cove Springs

Existing Recommended

Capital Outlay 
Classification

1 - SCHOOL RECOMMENDED FOR 
CONTINUED USE

1 - SCHOOL RECOMMENDED FOR 
CONTINUED USE

Facility Use ELEMENTARY ELEMENTARY

Low Grade PRE-K E S E PRE-K E S E

High Grade GRADE 6 GRADE 6

Comments

Existing
Student Stations 

Added/Reduced(+ or -) Recommended

Perm. Stations 845 0 845

Reloc. Stations 0 0 0

Mod. Stations 0 0 0

Total Stations 845 0 845

Utilization Factor 100% 100%

School Capacity 845 845

COFTE Student 
Membership 681 813

Survey Annotation

Correct Site Drainage Problems.                                 
Construct Additional Covered Walkways Where Needed.   
(Other)
District-Wide Recommendations for this facility are: Improve Security Fencing and Lighting.

New Site Cost Site 
Expansion

Site 
Development

Site 
Improvement

Remodeling 
Cost

Renovation 
Cost

New 
Construction 

Cost

$0 $0 $0 $45,000 $0 $0 $0

Estimated Total Project Cost $45,000

SHADOWLAWN 
ELEMENTARY

Parcel Building Description Total NSF Change In 
Station Count

Calculated 
Cost

Cost Per 
NSF

Cost Per 
Station

 

Page 528 of 962

DRAFT



District Name: CLAY COUNTY SCHOOL DISTRICT

Survey: Number 7 - Version 1

Facility Name: SUPPORT SERVICES AG LOT

Address: ROBERTS STREET, GREEN COVE SPRINGS

Existing Recommended

Capital Outlay 
Classification

6 - ANCILLARY RECOMMENDED FOR 
CONTINUED USE

6 - ANCILLARY RECOMMENDED FOR 
CONTINUED USE

Facility Use MULTIPLE USE SUPPORT MULTIPLE USE SUPPORT

Low Grade DISTRICT SERVICES DISTRICT SERVICES

High Grade DISTRICT SERVICES DISTRICT SERVICES

Comments

Existing
Student Stations 

Added/Reduced(+ or -) Recommended

Perm. Stations 0 0 0

Reloc. Stations 0 0 0

Mod. Stations 0 0 0

Total Stations 0 0 0

Utilization Factor 0% 0%

School Capacity 0 0

COFTE Student 
Membership 0 0

Survey Annotation No new recommendations.

New Site Cost Site 
Expansion

Site 
Development

Site 
Improvement

Remodeling 
Cost

Renovation 
Cost

New 
Construction 

Cost

$0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0

Estimated Total Project Cost $0

SUPPORT SERVICES AG 
LOT

Parcel Building Description Total NSF Change In 
Station Count

Calculated 
Cost

Cost Per 
NSF

Cost Per 
Station

 

Page 529 of 962

DRAFT



District Name: CLAY COUNTY SCHOOL DISTRICT

Survey: Number 7 - Version 1

Facility Name: SUPPORT SERVICES CENTER

Address: 925 W CENTER STREET, GREEN COVE SPRINGS

Existing Recommended

Capital Outlay 
Classification

6 - ANCILLARY RECOMMENDED FOR 
CONTINUED USE

6 - ANCILLARY RECOMMENDED FOR 
CONTINUED USE

Facility Use MULTIPLE USE SUPPORT MULTIPLE USE SUPPORT

Low Grade DISTRICT SERVICES DISTRICT SERVICES

High Grade DISTRICT SERVICES DISTRICT SERVICES

Comments

Existing
Student Stations 

Added/Reduced(+ or -) Recommended

Perm. Stations 0 0 0

Reloc. Stations 0 0 0

Mod. Stations 0 0 0

Total Stations 0 0 0

Utilization Factor 0% 0%

School Capacity 0 0

COFTE Student 
Membership 0 0

Survey Annotation Renovate Building 1, upstairs only.                                            
Add 50 parking spots.

New Site Cost Site 
Expansion

Site 
Development

Site 
Improvement

Remodeling 
Cost

Renovation 
Cost

New 
Construction 

Cost

$0 $0 $0 $250,000 $0 $240,856 $0

Estimated Total Project Cost $490,856

SUPPORT SERVICES 
CENTER

Parcel Building Description Total NSF Change In 
Station Count

Calculated 
Cost

Cost Per 
NSF

Cost Per 
Station

Renovation 2026 32 1 Renovating: Apply Painting, Floor 
Cover, Electrical, Plumbing, 
Windows, Lighting, Restrooms, 
HVAC Systems, Bell/Fire Alarm 
Systems, Retrofit for Technology to 
Room 021 (373 NSF), Room 021A 
(66 NSF), Room 022 (129 NSF), 
Room 023 (131 NSF), Room 023A 
(15 NSF), Room 024 (133 NSF), 
Room 025 (126 NSF), Room 025A 
(2 NSF), Room 025B (8 NSF), Room 
026 (113 NSF), Room 027 (97 NSF), 
Room 028 (110 NSF), Room 029 
(238 NSF), Room 030 (152 NSF), 
Room 030A (2 NSF), Room 031 
(115 NSF), Room 031A (14 NSF), 
Room 032 (98 NSF), Room 033 (14 
NSF), Room 034 (88 NSF)

2,024 0 $240,856 $119 $0

Page 530 of 962

DRAFT



Page 531 of 962

DRAFT



District Name: CLAY COUNTY SCHOOL DISTRICT

Survey: Number 7 - Version 1

Facility Name: SWIMMING PEN CREEK ELEMENTARY

Address: 1630 WOODPECKER LANE, MIDDLEBURG

Existing Recommended

Capital Outlay 
Classification

1 - SCHOOL RECOMMENDED FOR 
CONTINUED USE

1 - SCHOOL RECOMMENDED FOR 
CONTINUED USE

Facility Use ELEMENTARY ELEMENTARY

Low Grade PRE-K E S E PRE-K E S E

High Grade GRADE 6 GRADE 6

Comments

Existing
Student Stations 

Added/Reduced(+ or -) Recommended

Perm. Stations 430 0 430

Reloc. Stations 117 -10 107

Mod. Stations 0 0 0

Total Stations 547 -10 537

Utilization Factor 100% 100%

School Capacity 547 537

COFTE Student 
Membership 488 493

Survey Annotation

Correct Site Drainage Problems.                                 
Construct Additional Covered Walkways Where Needed.   
Remove 1 portables in excess of 20 years of age.
(Other)
District-Wide Recommendations for this facility are: Improve Security Fencing and Lighting.

New Site Cost Site 
Expansion

Site 
Development

Site 
Improvement

Remodeling 
Cost

Renovation 
Cost

New 
Construction 

Cost

$0 $0 $0 $45,000 $8,880 $0 $0

Estimated Total Project Cost $53,880

SWIMMING PEN CREEK 
ELEMENTARY

Parcel Building Description Total NSF Change In 
Station Count

Calculated 
Cost

Cost Per 
NSF

Cost Per 
Station

Remodeling 2026 53 92 Removed NSF (740), Added NSF 
(0), Difference NSF (740), Percent 
(100%), Removed Stations (10), 
Added Stations (0) Remodeling: 
Adding  and Removing Room 701 
(740 NSF)

-740 -10 $8,880 $12 $0

Page 532 of 962

DRAFT



District Name: CLAY COUNTY SCHOOL DISTRICT

Survey: Number 7 - Version 1

Facility Name: THUNDERBOLT ELEMENTARY

Address: 2020 THUNDERBOLT ROAD, FLEMING ISLAND

Existing Recommended

Capital Outlay 
Classification

1 - SCHOOL RECOMMENDED FOR 
CONTINUED USE

1 - SCHOOL RECOMMENDED FOR 
CONTINUED USE

Facility Use ELEMENTARY ELEMENTARY

Low Grade PRE-K E S E PRE-K E S E

High Grade GRADE 6 GRADE 6

Comments

Existing
Student Stations 

Added/Reduced(+ or -) Recommended

Perm. Stations 683 0 683

Reloc. Stations 427 -44 383

Mod. Stations 0 0 0

Total Stations 1,110 -44 1066

Utilization Factor 100% 100%

School Capacity 1,110 1066

COFTE Student 
Membership 871 851

Survey Annotation

Renovate Building 1.                                                          
Correct Site Drainage Problems.                                 
Construct Additional Covered Walkways Where Needed.   
Remove 2 portables in excess of 20 years of age.
(Other)
District-Wide Recommendations for this facility are: Improve Security Fencing and Lighting.

New Site Cost Site 
Expansion

Site 
Development

Site 
Improvement

Remodeling 
Cost

Renovation 
Cost

New 
Construction 

Cost

$0 $0 $0 $45,000 $21,456 $8,583,048 $0

Estimated Total Project Cost $8,649,504

THUNDERBOLT 
ELEMENTARY

Parcel Building Description Total NSF Change In 
Station Count

Calculated 
Cost

Cost Per 
NSF

Cost Per 
Station

Remodeling 2026 47 92 Removed NSF (1788), Added NSF 
(0), Difference NSF (1788), Percent 
(100%), Removed Stations (44), 
Added Stations (0) Remodeling: 
Adding  and Removing Room 722 
(904 NSF), Room 722A (98 NSF), 
Room 722B (36 NSF), Room 736 
(750 NSF)

-1,788 -44 $21,456 $12 $0

Renovation 2026 47 1 Renovating: Apply Painting, Floor 
Cover, Electrical, Plumbing, 
Windows, Lighting, Restrooms, 
HVAC Systems, Bell/Fire Alarm 
Systems, Retrofit for Technology to 
Room 101 (944 NSF), Room 101A 

93,294 0 $8,583,048 $92 $0

Page 533 of 962

DRAFT



(69 NSF), Room 101B (43 NSF), 
Room 102 (944 NSF), Room 102A 
(70 NSF), Room 102B (43 NSF), 
Room 103 (948 NSF), Room 103A 
(70 NSF), Room 103B (43 NSF), 
Room 104 (949 NSF), Room 104A 
(70 NSF), Room 104B (43 NSF), 
Room 105 (948 NSF), Room 105A 
(70 NSF), Room 105B (43 NSF), 
Room 106 (949 NSF), Room 106A 
(70 NSF), Room 106B (43 NSF), 
Room 107 (948 NSF), Room 107A 
(70 NSF), Room 107B (43 NSF), 
Room 108 (949 NSF), Room 108A 
(70 NSF), Room 108B (43 NSF), 
Room 109 (948 NSF), Room 109A 
(70 NSF), Room 109B (43 NSF), 
Room 110 (949 NSF), Room 110A 
(70 NSF), Room 110B (43 NSF), 
Room 111 (948 NSF), Room 111A 
(70 NSF), Room 111B (43 NSF), 
Room 112 (998 NSF), Room 112A 
(70 NSF), Room 113 (948 NSF), 
Room 113A (70 NSF), Room 113B 
(43 NSF), Room 114 (711 NSF), 
Room 114B (43 NSF), Room 115 
(948 NSF), Room 115A (70 NSF), 
Room 115B (43 NSF), Room 116 
(1551 NSF), Room 116A (373 NSF), 
Room 116C (48 NSF), Room 117 
(948 NSF), Room 117A (70 NSF), 
Room 117B (43 NSF), Room 118 
(949 NSF), Room 118A (70 NSF), 
Room 118B (43 NSF), Room 119 
(948 NSF), Room 119A (70 NSF), 
Room 119B (43 NSF), Room 120 
(949 NSF), Room 120A (70 NSF), 
Room 120B (43 NSF), Room 121 
(948 NSF), Room 121A (70 NSF), 
Room 121B (43 NSF), Room 122 
(43 NSF), Room 123 (836 NSF), 
Room 124 (1020 NSF), Room 125 
(238 NSF), Room 126 (130 NSF), 
Room 127 (97 NSF), Room 128 
(133 NSF), Room 129 (614 NSF), 
Room 203 (722 NSF), Room 204 
(290 NSF), Room 205 (580 NSF), 
Room 206 (200 NSF), Room 207 
(389 NSF), Room 208 (143 NSF), 
Room 209 (76 NSF), Room 210 (211 
NSF), Room 211 (211 NSF), Room 
212 (164 NSF), Room 212A (180 
NSF), Room 213 (372 NSF), Room 
214 (350 NSF), Room 215 (392 
NSF), Room 216 (45 NSF), Room 
217 (474 NSF), Room 218 (262 
NSF), Room 219 (149 NSF), Room 
220 (47 NSF), Room 221 (47 NSF), 
Room 222 (54 NSF), Room 223 
(340 NSF), Room 224 (120 NSF), 
Room 225 (120 NSF), Room 226 
(205 NSF), Room 227 (140 NSF), 
Room 228 (146 NSF), Room 229 
(144 NSF), Room 231 (2925 NSF), 
Room 232 (247 NSF), Room 233 
(387 NSF), Room 234 (348 NSF), 
Room 235 (92 NSF), Room 236 
(518 NSF), Room 237 (384 NSF), 
Room 238 (347 NSF), Room 238A 
(43 NSF), Room 239 (430 NSF), 
Room 240 (257 NSF), Room 241 
(102 NSF), Room 242 (48 NSF), 
Room 243 (48 NSF), Room 244 
(215 NSF), Room 245 (436 NSF), 
Room 247 (3440 NSF), Room 247A 
(59 NSF), Room 247B (1973 NSF), 
Room 248 (966 NSF), Room 248A 
(40 NSF), Room 249 (301 NSF), 
Room 250 (260 NSF), Room 251 
(89 NSF), Room 252 (213 NSF), 

Page 534 of 962

DRAFT



Room 253 (43 NSF), Room 254 
(213 NSF), Room 255 (43 NSF), 
Room 256 (350 NSF), Room 257 
(25 NSF), Room 258 (133 NSF), 
Room 259 (654 NSF), Room 260 
(2030 NSF), Room 261 (674 NSF), 
Room 261A (101 NSF), Room 262 
(101 NSF), Room 263 (232 NSF), 
Room 264 (62 NSF), Room 265 (79 
NSF), Room 266 (110 NSF), Room 
267 (44 NSF), Room 268 (16 NSF), 
Room 269 (325 NSF), Room 270 
(227 NSF), Room 270A (117 NSF), 
Room 270B (117 NSF), Room 271 
(39 NSF), Room 271A (147 NSF), 
Room 272 (39 NSF), Room 272A 
(147 NSF), Room 301 (889 NSF), 
Room 301A (70 NSF), Room 302 
(1016 NSF), Room 302A (217 NSF), 
Room 303 (894 NSF), Room 303A 
(70 NSF), Room 304 (859 NSF), 
Room 304A (117 NSF), Room 304B 
(371 NSF), Room 304F (10 NSF), 
Room 304G (10 NSF), Room 305 
(914 NSF), Room 305A (70 NSF), 
Room 306 (859 NSF), Room 306A 
(117 NSF), Room 306G (10 NSF), 
Room 307 (914 NSF), Room 307A 
(70 NSF), Room 308 (859 NSF), 
Room 308A (117 NSF), Room 308B 
(41 NSF), Room 308C (47 NSF), 
Room 308D (47 NSF), Room 308E 
(66 NSF), Room 308F (24 NSF), 
Room 308G (10 NSF), Room 309 
(894 NSF), Room 309A (70 NSF), 
Room 310 (859 NSF), Room 310A 
(117 NSF), Room 310G (10 NSF), 
Room 311 (60 NSF), Room 311A 
(375 NSF), Room 311B (375 NSF), 
Room 312 (966 NSF), Room 312A 
(217 NSF), Room 313 (632 NSF), 
Room 313B (43 NSF), Room 314 
(966 NSF), Room 314A (217 NSF), 
Room 315 (894 NSF), Room 315A 
(70 NSF), Room 316 (859 NSF), 
Room 316A (117 NSF), Room 316B 
(211 NSF), Room 316C (47 NSF), 
Room 316D (47 NSF), Room 316E 
(66 NSF), Room 316F (24 NSF), 
Room 316G (10 NSF), Room 317 
(894 NSF), Room 317A (70 NSF), 
Room 318 (859 NSF), Room 318A 
(117 NSF), Room 318G (10 NSF), 
Room 319 (894 NSF), Room 319A 
(70 NSF), Room 320 (859 NSF), 
Room 320A (117 NSF), Room 320B 
(211 NSF), Room 320C (47 NSF), 
Room 320D (47 NSF), Room 320E 
(66 NSF), Room 320F (24 NSF), 
Room 320G (10 NSF), Room 321 
(894 NSF), Room 321A (70 NSF), 
Room 322 (859 NSF), Room 322A 
(117 NSF), Room 322G (10 NSF), 
Room 323 (889 NSF), Room 323A 
(70 NSF), Room 324 (966 NSF), 
Room 324A (217 NSF), Room 325 
(149 NSF), Room 326 (87 NSF), 
Room 327 (100 NSF), Room 328 
(555 NSF), Room 400 (746 NSF), 
Room 401 (712 NSF), Room 402 
(740 NSF), Room 403 (818 NSF), 
Room 404 (795 NSF), Room 405 
(517 NSF), Room 406 (731 NSF), 
Room 407 (802 NSF), Room 408 
(909 NSF), Room 408A (130 NSF), 
Room 408B (130 NSF), Room 409 
(748 NSF), Room 410 (845 NSF), 
Room 411 (805 NSF), Room 412 
(973 NSF), Room 413 (937 NSF), 
Room 414 (841 NSF), Room 415 

Page 535 of 962

DRAFT



(827 NSF), Room 500 (210 NSF), 
Room 501 (480 NSF), Room 502 
(677 NSF)

Page 536 of 962

DRAFT



District Name: CLAY COUNTY SCHOOL DISTRICT

Survey: Number 7 - Version 1

Facility Name: TYNES ELEMENTARY

Address: 1550 TYNES BOULEVARD, MIDDLEBURG

Existing Recommended

Capital Outlay 
Classification

1 - SCHOOL RECOMMENDED FOR 
CONTINUED USE

1 - SCHOOL RECOMMENDED FOR 
CONTINUED USE

Facility Use ELEMENTARY ELEMENTARY

Low Grade PRE-K E S E PRE-K E S E

High Grade GRADE 6 GRADE 6

Comments

Existing
Student Stations 

Added/Reduced(+ or -) Recommended

Perm. Stations 491 0 491

Reloc. Stations 495 -98 397

Mod. Stations 0 0 0

Total Stations 986 -98 888

Utilization Factor 100% 100%

School Capacity 986 888

COFTE Student 
Membership 1,036 823

Survey Annotation

Renovate Buildings 1-6.                                                     
Correct Site Drainage Problems.                                 
Construct Additional Covered Walkways Where Needed.   
Remove 7 portables in excess of 20 years of age.
(Other)
District-Wide Recommendations for this facility are: Improve Security Fencing and Lighting.

New Site Cost Site 
Expansion

Site 
Development

Site 
Improvement

Remodeling 
Cost

Renovation 
Cost

New 
Construction 

Cost

$0 $0 $0 $45,000 $65,076 $6,150,752 $0

Estimated Total Project Cost $6,260,828

TYNES ELEMENTARY Parcel Building Description Total NSF Change In 
Station Count

Calculated 
Cost

Cost Per 
NSF

Cost Per 
Station

Remodeling 2026 44 92 Removed NSF (5423), Added NSF 
(0), Difference NSF (5423), Percent 
(100%), Removed Stations (98), 
Added Stations (0) Remodeling: 
Adding  and Removing Room 010 
(748 NSF), Room 044 (756 NSF), 
Room 044A (27 NSF), Room 061 
(749 NSF), Room 061A (30 NSF), 
Room 062 (737 NSF), Room 062A 
(25 NSF), Room 063 (760 NSF), 
Room 063A (25 NSF), Room 065 
(750 NSF), Room 065A (25 NSF), 
Room 068 (750 NSF), Room 068A 
(41 NSF)

-5,423 -98 $65,076 $12 $0

Page 537 of 962

DRAFT



TYNES ELEMENTARY Parcel Building Description Total NSF Change In 
Station Count

Calculated 
Cost

Cost Per 
NSF

Cost Per 
Station

Renovation 2021 44 1 Renovating: Apply Painting, Floor 
Cover, Electrical, Plumbing, 
Windows, Lighting, Restrooms, 
HVAC Systems, Bell/Fire Alarm 
Systems, Retrofit for Technology to 
Room 101 (450 NSF), Room 102 
(439 NSF), Room 103 (148 NSF), 
Room 104 (617 NSF), Room 105 
(323 NSF), Room 107 (43 NSF), 
Room 108 (6 NSF), Room 109 (255 
NSF), Room 110 (184 NSF), Room 
111 (130 NSF), Room 112 (130 
NSF), Room 113 (152 NSF), Room 
114 (88 NSF), Room 115 (152 NSF), 
Room 116 (152 NSF), Room 117 
(161 NSF), Room 118 (185 NSF), 
Room 119 (256 NSF), Room 120 (75 
NSF), Room 121 (282 NSF), Room 
122 (269 NSF), Room 123 (327 
NSF), Room 124 (40 NSF), Room 
125 (69 NSF), Room 126 (297 NSF), 
Room 127 (84 NSF), Room 128 
(220 NSF), Room 129 (199 NSF), 
Room 129A (30 NSF), Room 130 
(393 NSF), Room 131 (473 NSF), 
Room 132 (274 NSF), Room 133 
(149 NSF), Room 134 (176 NSF), 
Room 135 (176 NSF), Room 136 
(136 NSF), Room 137 (313 NSF), 
Room 138 (189 NSF), Room 139 
(457 NSF), Room 139A (51 NSF), 
Room 140 (32 NSF), Room 141 (32 
NSF), Room 142 (30 NSF), Room 
143 (155 NSF), Room 144 (3253 
NSF), Room 145 (385 NSF), Room 
146 (197 NSF), Room 147 (139 
NSF), Room 148 (614 NSF), Room 
150 (455 NSF), Room 151 (375 
NSF), Room 152 (154 NSF), Room 
153 (311 NSF), Room 154 (33 NSF), 
Room 155 (36 NSF), Room 156 
(346 NSF), Room 157 (294 NSF), 
Room 158 (575 NSF)

15,966 0 $1,468,872 $92 $0

Renovation 2026 44 2 Renovating: Apply Painting, Floor 
Cover, Electrical, Plumbing, 
Windows, Lighting, Restrooms, 
HVAC Systems, Bell/Fire Alarm 
Systems, Retrofit for Technology to 
Room 201 (5464 NSF), Room 202 
(60 NSF), Room 203 (69 NSF), 
Room 204 (227 NSF), Room 205 
(36 NSF), Room 206 (113 NSF), 
Room 207 (179 NSF), Room 208 
(1109 NSF), Room 209 (543 NSF), 
Room 210 (383 NSF), Room 211 
(122 NSF), Room 212 (187 NSF), 
Room 213 (223 NSF), Room 214 
(34 NSF), Room 215 (106 NSF), 
Room 216 (71 NSF), Room 217 
(409 NSF), Room 218 (638 NSF), 
Room 219 (25 NSF), Room 220 
(1191 NSF), Room 221 (334 NSF), 
Room 222 (83 NSF), Room 223 
(100 NSF), Room 225 (145 NSF), 
Room 226 (145 NSF), Room 227 
(97 NSF), Room 228 (303 NSF), 
Room 229 (12 NSF), Room 230 (84 
NSF), Room 231 (39 NSF), Room 
232 (81 NSF), Room 233 (222 NSF), 
Room 234 (44 NSF), Room 235 
(141 NSF), Room 237 (39 NSF), 
Room 238 (644 NSF)

13,702 0 $1,260,584 $92 $0

Page 538 of 962

DRAFT



TYNES ELEMENTARY Parcel Building Description Total NSF Change In 
Station Count

Calculated 
Cost

Cost Per 
NSF

Cost Per 
Station

Renovation 2026 44 3 Renovating: Apply Painting, Floor 
Cover, Electrical, Plumbing, 
Windows, Lighting, Restrooms, 
HVAC Systems, Bell/Fire Alarm 
Systems, Retrofit for Technology to 
Room 300 (1807 NSF), Room 301 
(923 NSF), Room 302 (923 NSF), 
Room 303 (68 NSF), Room 304 (68 
NSF), Room 305 (61 NSF), Room 
306 (61 NSF), Room 307 (37 NSF), 
Room 308 (40 NSF), Room 309 
(103 NSF), Room 310 (96 NSF), 
Room 311 (203 NSF), Room 312 
(101 NSF), Room 313 (101 NSF), 
Room 314 (101 NSF), Room 315 
(926 NSF), Room 316 (925 NSF), 
Room 317 (61 NSF), Room 318 (61 
NSF), Room 319 (29 NSF), Room 
320 (30 NSF), Room 321 (137 NSF), 
Room 322 (136 NSF), Room 323 
(846 NSF), Room 324 (871 NSF), 
Room 325 (32 NSF), Room 326 (32 
NSF), Room 327 (99 NSF), Room 
328 (99 NSF), Room 329 (101 NSF), 
Room 330 (101 NSF), Room 331 
(101 NSF), Room 332 (101 NSF), 
Room 333 (847 NSF), Room 334 
(874 NSF), Room 335 (99 NSF), 
Room 336 (99 NSF), Room 337 (32 
NSF), Room 338 (32 NSF), Room 
339 (46 NSF), Room 340 (169 NSF), 
Room 341 (156 NSF), Room 342 
(76 NSF), Room 343 (11 NSF)

11,822 0 $1,087,624 $92 $0

Renovation 2026 44 4 Renovating: Apply Painting, Floor 
Cover, Electrical, Plumbing, 
Windows, Lighting, Restrooms, 
HVAC Systems, Bell/Fire Alarm 
Systems, Retrofit for Technology to 
Room 400 (1906 NSF), Room 401 
(185 NSF), Room 402 (129 NSF), 
Room 402A (118 NSF), Room 403 
(41 NSF), Room 403A (11 NSF), 
Room 404 (995 NSF), Room 405 
(992 NSF), Room 406 (32 NSF), 
Room 407 (32 NSF), Room 408 
(107 NSF), Room 409 (108 NSF), 
Room 410 (139 NSF), Room 411 
(139 NSF), Room 412 (139 NSF), 
Room 413 (139 NSF), Room 414 
(994 NSF), Room 415 (989 NSF), 
Room 416 (108 NSF), Room 417 
(118 NSF), Room 418 (32 NSF), 
Room 419 (32 NSF), Room 420 
(1171 NSF), Room 421 (1171 NSF), 
Room 422 (32 NSF), Room 423 (32 
NSF), Room 424 (107 NSF), Room 
425 (107 NSF), Room 426 (139 
NSF), Room 427 (139 NSF), Room 
428 (139 NSF), Room 429 (139 
NSF), Room 430 (994 NSF), Room 
431 (965 NSF), Room 432 (118 
NSF), Room 433 (107 NSF), Room 
434 (33 NSF), Room 435 (32 NSF)

12,910 0 $1,187,720 $92 $0

Page 539 of 962

DRAFT



TYNES ELEMENTARY Parcel Building Description Total NSF Change In 
Station Count

Calculated 
Cost

Cost Per 
NSF

Cost Per 
Station

Renovation 2026 44 5 Renovating: Apply Painting, Floor 
Cover, Electrical, Plumbing, 
Windows, Lighting, Restrooms, 
HVAC Systems, Bell/Fire Alarm 
Systems, Retrofit for Technology to 
Room 500 (1898 NSF), Room 501 
(995 NSF), Room 502 (997 NSF), 
Room 503 (32 NSF), Room 504 (32 
NSF), Room 505 (107 NSF), Room 
506 (118 NSF), Room 507 (88 NSF), 
Room 508 (88 NSF), Room 509 (88 
NSF), Room 510 (88 NSF), Room 
511 (998 NSF), Room 512 (990 
NSF), Room 513 (107 NSF), Room 
514 (108 NSF), Room 515 (33 NSF), 
Room 516 (32 NSF), Room 517 
(993 NSF), Room 518 (996 NSF), 
Room 519 (88 NSF), Room 520 (32 
NSF), Room 521 (107 NSF), Room 
522 (108 NSF), Room 523 (88 NSF), 
Room 524 (88 NSF), Room 525 (88 
NSF), Room 526 (88 NSF), Room 
527 (962 NSF), Room 528 (997 
NSF), Room 529 (107 NSF), Room 
530 (108 NSF), Room 531 (32 NSF), 
Room 532 (32 NSF), Room 533 (11 
NSF), Room 534 (128 NSF), Room 
535 (47 NSF), Room 536 (117 NSF), 
Room 537 (152 NSF)

12,168 0 $1,119,456 $92 $0

Renovation 2026 44 6 Renovating: Apply Painting, Floor 
Cover, Electrical, Plumbing, 
Windows, Lighting, Restrooms, 
HVAC Systems, Bell/Fire Alarm 
Systems, Retrofit for Technology to 
Room 991 (56 NSF), Room 995 
(232 NSF)

288 0 $26,496 $92 $0

Page 540 of 962

DRAFT



District Name: CLAY COUNTY SCHOOL DISTRICT

Survey: Number 7 - Version 1

Facility Name: W E CHERRY ELEMENTARY

Address: 420 EDSON DRIVE, ORANGE PARK

Existing Recommended

Capital Outlay 
Classification

1 - SCHOOL RECOMMENDED FOR 
CONTINUED USE

1 - SCHOOL RECOMMENDED FOR 
CONTINUED USE

Facility Use ELEMENTARY ELEMENTARY

Low Grade PRE-K E S E PRE-K E S E

High Grade GRADE 6 GRADE 6

Comments

Existing
Student Stations 

Added/Reduced(+ or -) Recommended

Perm. Stations 418 0 418

Reloc. Stations 463 -36 427

Mod. Stations 0 0 0

Total Stations 881 -36 845

Utilization Factor 100% 100%

School Capacity 881 845

COFTE Student 
Membership 726 833

Survey Annotation

Renovate Buildings 1-4, 10 & 11.                                     
Correct Site Drainage Problems.                                 
Construct Additional Covered Walkways Where Needed.   
Remove 2 portables in excess of 20 years of age.
(Other)
District-Wide Recommendations for this facility are: Improve Security Fencing and Lighting.

New Site Cost Site 
Expansion

Site 
Development

Site 
Improvement

Remodeling 
Cost

Renovation 
Cost

New 
Construction 

Cost

$0 $0 $0 $45,000 $18,696 $3,125,056 $0

Estimated Total Project Cost $3,188,752

W E CHERRY 
ELEMENTARY

Parcel Building Description Total NSF Change In 
Station Count

Calculated 
Cost

Cost Per 
NSF

Cost Per 
Station

Remodeling 2026 9 92 Removed NSF (1558), Added NSF 
(0), Difference NSF (1558), Percent 
(100%), Removed Stations (36), 
Added Stations (0) Remodeling: 
Adding  and Removing Room 039 
(754 NSF), Room 039A (25 NSF), 
Room 041 (754 NSF), Room 041A 
(25 NSF)

-1,558 -36 $18,696 $12 $0

Page 541 of 962

DRAFT



W E CHERRY 
ELEMENTARY

Parcel Building Description Total NSF Change In 
Station Count

Calculated 
Cost

Cost Per 
NSF

Cost Per 
Station

Renovation 2026 9 1 Renovating: Apply Painting, Floor 
Cover, Electrical, Plumbing, 
Windows, Lighting, Restrooms, 
HVAC Systems, Bell/Fire Alarm 
Systems, Retrofit for Technology to 
Room 001 (841 NSF), Room 001A 
(54 NSF), Room 002 (841 NSF), 
Room 002A (54 NSF), Room 003 
(841 NSF), Room 003A (18 NSF), 
Room 004 (841 NSF), Room 004A 
(18 NSF), Room 005 (866 NSF), 
Room 006 (866 NSF), Room 007 
(866 NSF), Room 008 (477 NSF), 
Room 008A (389 NSF), Room 042 
(286 NSF), Room 042A (19 NSF), 
Room 042B (228 NSF), Room 043A 
(12 NSF), Room 043B (118 NSF), 
Room 043C (16 NSF), Room 043D 
(99 NSF), Room 043E (54 NSF), 
Room 044 (160 NSF), Room 044A 
(18 NSF), Room 044B (12 NSF), 
Room 045 (160 NSF), Room 046 
(270 NSF), Room 047 (270 NSF), 
Room 048 (288 NSF)

8,982 0 $826,344 $92 $0

Renovation 2026 9 2 Renovating: Apply Painting, Floor 
Cover, Electrical, Plumbing, 
Windows, Lighting, Restrooms, 
HVAC Systems, Bell/Fire Alarm 
Systems, Retrofit for Technology to 
Room 048 (118 NSF), Room 049 
(822 NSF), Room 050 (735 NSF), 
Room 051 (112 NSF), Room 052 (18 
NSF), Room 052A (18 NSF), Room 
053 (3421 NSF), Room 054 (273 
NSF), Room 054A (489 NSF), Room 
075 (177 NSF), Room 076 (54 NSF), 
Room 077 (595 NSF), Room 078 
(80 NSF), Room 079 (132 NSF)

7,044 0 $648,048 $92 $0

Renovation 2026 9 3 Renovating: Apply Painting, Floor 
Cover, Electrical, Plumbing, 
Windows, Lighting, Restrooms, 
HVAC Systems, Bell/Fire Alarm 
Systems, Retrofit for Technology to 
Room 016 (829 NSF), Room 017 
(829 NSF), Room 018 (829 NSF), 
Room 019 (829 NSF), Room 055 
(2365 NSF), Room 055A (121 NSF), 
Room 055B (414 NSF), Room 055C 
(415 NSF), Room 056 (55 NSF), 
Room 057 (55 NSF)

6,741 0 $620,172 $92 $0

Renovation 2026 9 4 Renovating: Apply Painting, Floor 
Cover, Electrical, Plumbing, 
Windows, Lighting, Restrooms, 
HVAC Systems, Bell/Fire Alarm 
Systems, Retrofit for Technology to 
Room 011 (850 NSF), Room 011A 
(37 NSF), Room 012 (832 NSF), 
Room 012A (129 NSF), Room 012B 
(9 NSF), Room 013 (832 NSF), 
Room 013A (9 NSF), Room 014 
(832 NSF), Room 014A (69 NSF), 
Room 014B (9 NSF), Room 015 
(832 NSF), Room 015A (9 NSF), 
Room 020 (832 NSF), Room 021 
(823 NSF), Room 021A (9 NSF), 
Room 022 (823 NSF), Room 022A 
(9 NSF), Room 023 (823 NSF), 
Room 023A (9 NSF), Room 024 
(823 NSF), Room 024A (9 NSF), 
Room 025 (832 NSF), Room 058 
(640 NSF), Room 058A (48 NSF), 
Room 059 (55 NSF), Room 060 (90 
NSF), Room 070 (30 NSF), Room 
071 (60 NSF)

10,364 0 $953,488 $92 $0

Page 542 of 962

DRAFT



W E CHERRY 
ELEMENTARY

Parcel Building Description Total NSF Change In 
Station Count

Calculated 
Cost

Cost Per 
NSF

Cost Per 
Station

Renovation 2026 9 10 Renovating: Apply Painting, Floor 
Cover, Electrical, Plumbing, 
Windows, Lighting, Restrooms, 
HVAC Systems, Bell/Fire Alarm 
Systems, Retrofit for Technology to 
Room 061 (81 NSF), Room 062 (9 
NSF), Room 063 (81 NSF), Room 
064 (81 NSF), Room 065 (9 NSF), 
Room 066 (81 NSF)

342 0 $31,464 $92 $0

Renovation 2026 9 11 Renovating: Apply Painting, Floor 
Cover, Electrical, Plumbing, 
Windows, Lighting, Restrooms, 
HVAC Systems, Bell/Fire Alarm 
Systems, Retrofit for Technology to 
Room 067 (255 NSF), Room 068 
(120 NSF), Room 069 (120 NSF)

495 0 $45,540 $92 $0

Page 543 of 962

DRAFT



EDUCATIONAL PLANT FIVE YEAR SURVEY 
REPORT

CLAY COUNTY SCHOOL DISTRICT
Survey: Number 7 - Version 1

District:

Survey Status: Active Pending

PAGE:1 of 253 Report Date: 6/8/2021 10:16:11 AMPage 544 of 962

DRAFT



Section 1: Survey

PAGE:2 of 253 Report Date: 6/8/2021 10:16:11 AM

EDUCATIONAL PLANT FIVE YEAR SURVEY REPORT

Status:

Active Pending

Survey:

Survey: 7 - Version: 1

District:

10-CLAY COUNTY SCHOOL DISTRICT

Page 545 of 962

DRAFT



CLAY COUNTY SCHOOL DISTRICT

Survey: Number 7 - Version 1

District:

5-Year Educational Survey

Survey Open Date: 3/29/2021 12:36:52 PM

Description:

DVE768 Approval Date: 4/6/2021 4:00:00 AM

Board Approval Date:

James Fossa

Contact Phone Number: 9043366846

Contact Name:

Contact Email:

Survey Notes:

james.fossa@myoneclay.net

Survey Status Status Time User

Active Pending 3/29/2021 12:36:54 PM Bonita Willis

Survey Expiration Date:  

PAGE:3 of 253 Report Date: 6/8/2021 10:16:11 AM

EDUCATIONAL PLANT FIVE YEAR SURVEY REPORT

Status:

Active Pending

Survey:

Survey: 7 - Version: 1

District:

10-CLAY COUNTY SCHOOL DISTRICT

Page 546 of 962

DRAFT



PREFACE

     Report of an educational plant survey, hereinafter also referenced as “survey,” conducted in accordance with the 
requirements of, and pursuant to specifications in, Article IX and Article XII of the Florida Constitution; Chapters 1001, 1011, and 
1013, Florida Statutes (F.S.); State Requirements for Educational Facilities (SREF); and the Florida Building Code (FBC). This 
survey report describes the current educational plants and the estimated capital outlay needs resulting from a systematic study 
of present educational and ancillary plants. This study also addresses the future needs, including long range planning, to provide 
an appropriate educational program and services for each student based on projected capital outlay FTE’s (COFTE) approved or 
authorized for use by the Department of Education.

NOTE: All educational plant surveys are valid for five full years and expire on June 30 of the fifth full 
year from the beginning date of the survey. For example, a survey approved in October will be valid 
through the remaining fiscal year and for five full years beginning on the following July 1; effectively, 
this makes the survey approved in October valid for five years and eight months. By the same 
scenario, a survey approved in May will be valid through the remaining fiscal year and for five full 
years beginning on the following July 1; effectively, this makes the survey approved in May valid for 
five years and one month.

PAGE:4 of 253 Report Date: 6/8/2021 10:16:11 AM

EDUCATIONAL PLANT FIVE YEAR SURVEY REPORT

Status:

Active Pending

Survey:

Survey: 7 - Version: 1

District:

10-CLAY COUNTY SCHOOL DISTRICT

Page 547 of 962

DRAFT



INTRODUCTION TO THE EDUCATIONAL PLANT SURVEY

Definition of an Educational Plant Survey
     The educational plant survey is a systematic study of present educational and ancillary plants and the determination of 
future needs. The survey is not directly concerned with the instructional program but the relationship of educational plants to 
the instructional program is such that judgments regarding the instructional program are necessarily a part of an educational 
plant survey.

PAGE:5 of 253 Report Date: 6/8/2021 10:16:11 AM

EDUCATIONAL PLANT FIVE YEAR SURVEY REPORT

Status:

Active Pending

Survey:

Survey: 7 - Version: 1

District:

10-CLAY COUNTY SCHOOL DISTRICT

Page 548 of 962

DRAFT



Purpose of an Educational Plant Survey

    A formal educational plant survey is required by §1013.31, F.S., to be conducted every five years, but may be conducted as 
often as necessary. It is sometimes necessary to make changes to the survey recommendations in the interim. Local school 
administrators are responsible for a regular auditing of survey recommendations and for the initiation of the request for any 
necessary changes.

     The construction of new educational facilities is a major undertaking even in school systems where such construction is a 
continuous process. If a 50-year capital investment is to be protected, the location, size, type of materials, arrangement of 
spaces, and other considerations, regarding each new facility or addition to an existing facility must be determined on the basis 
of reliable, factual data. To do otherwise would violate the trust of present and future generations of children and of taxpayers.

     The purpose of an educational plant survey is to aid in formulating plans for housing the educational activities of students 
and staff of the school district for the next several years and the survey must consider the local comprehensive plan in its 
forecast strategies. The development of this plan must be based on a careful study of all available data regarding the current 
status of educational and ancillary facilities in relation to capital outlay full-time equivalency (COFTE) student membership and 
the projected changes in COFTE student membership. The intent of a regular, formal educational plant survey is to encourage 
the thoughtful, orderly development of a program for providing educational and ancillary plants to adequately house the 
educational and academic support activities of the district.

PAGE:6 of 253 Report Date: 6/8/2021 10:16:11 AM

EDUCATIONAL PLANT FIVE YEAR SURVEY REPORT

Status:

Active Pending

Survey:

Survey: 7 - Version: 1

District:

10-CLAY COUNTY SCHOOL DISTRICT

Page 549 of 962

DRAFT



In 1957, the Florida Legislature established the School Construction Fund which annually authorized an increase of $200 per 
student in average daily attendance, subject to matching by local funds. School Construction Fund monies also had to be 
expended in accordance with the recommendations of a school plant survey. The program was continued with modifications by 
subsequent legislatures until 1972. 

In 1952, the Florida Constitution §9(d), Article XII, was amended to authorize the issuance of State Board of Education (SBE) 
bonds guaranteed by the Minimum Foundation Program CO&DS allocation. The SBE bond program led to major school 
construction activities and further strengthened the school plant survey program by requiring that bond proceeds be expended 
in accordance with survey recommendations.

Legal Basis for Educational Plant Surveys

When the Florida School Code of 1939 was developed, the importance of having a valid basis for a school building program was 
recognized by inclusion of the requirement that district school boards have periodic school plant surveys of building needs in 
the districts. The 1939 Code directed the district school superintendent to "recommend plans and procedures for having a 
survey made" and instructed the district boards to "approve and adopt a district-wide school building program...based on the 
recommendations of the survey."

The provisions in the 1939 Code for periodic school plant surveys were, for the most part, ineffective. No state financing 
program for school plants was in effect at that time. Further, the coming of World War II, and the resulting cessation of school 
plant construction, made any statutory provision relating to school plants meaningless.

The 1972 Legislature enacted the School District Supplemental Capital Outlay Act as an interim measure pending the outcome 
of the proposed amendment to §9, Article XII of the Constitution. The amendment, which was ratified in the November 1972 
general election, increased the CO&DS annual allotment from $400 to $600 per instruction unit in the school districts for the 
school fiscal year 1967-1968 plus $800 for each “growth unit” since 1967-1968.

The 1973 Legislature established the Florida Educational Finance Act which provided funds for comprehensive school 
construction and debt service. The amount allocated to each school district was determined by formulas prescribed by the 
Legislature.
In 1974, the Florida Constitution, §9(a) (2), Article XII, was amended to authorize the issuance of state bonds guaranteed by 
revenues derived from gross receipts utility taxes for the state system of public education, including, but not limited to, 
institutions of higher learning, junior colleges, vocational-technical schools, and public schools, as defined by law.
Since 1974, regular changes have been made to statutory provisions and the Florida Constitution in regards to educational 
facilities, including the establishment of a state lottery where funding is specifically earmarked for education as a supplement to 
other state funding, and the capping of class sizes. The continual changes to educational laws and funding mechanisms are due, 
in part, to Florida’s unrelenting effort to maintain and provide state-of-the art facilities to meet the demands of change for our 
schools programs and the expectations of our citizenry.

When the Minimum Foundation Program law was enacted in 1947, the requirement for periodic school plant surveys was 
included. The law established that a Capital Outlay and Debt Service (CO&DS) annual allotment of $400 per instruction unit had 
to be expended in accordance with a planned building program based on a school plant survey. It was at this point that Florida’s 
school plant survey program became a meaningful and established operation.

PAGE:7 of 253 Report Date: 6/8/2021 10:16:11 AM

EDUCATIONAL PLANT FIVE YEAR SURVEY REPORT

Status:

Active Pending

Survey:

Survey: 7 - Version: 1

District:

10-CLAY COUNTY SCHOOL DISTRICT

Page 550 of 962

DRAFT



Method For Making Educational Plant Surveys

    The survey is limited to the study of educational and ancillary plants owned or under long-term lease agreement by the 
school board. No comprehensive study is made of the instructional program and recommendations made for the improvement 
of the educational and ancillary plants of the district are not an evaluation of the instructional program. Recommendations, 
however, must be clearly associated with the relationship between educational facilities and instructional programs.

The board must arrange for an educational plant survey to be conducted either by district staff, through contractual agreement, 
or a combination of district staff and private vendors. A survey conducted by the Office of Educational Facilities is a cooperative 
process with staff from the Office of Educational Facilities and staff from school districts outside of the district being surveyed. 
Typically, the survey process will include, as a minimum:

Spot or grid maps showing the residence of all elementary, middle or junior high, and senior high school students, the 
school attended by each student, and the location of each school.

COFTE student membership trends of each school center for the past five years.
A floor plan for each building at each educational plant identifying each building and each room (space) by number as they 
appear in the Florida Inventory of School Houses (FISH).

A list of the construction projects under contract.
A statement of the policies of the board with respect to grade organization and the types and sizes of facilities to be 
provided for new elementary, middle or junior high, and senior high schools (facilities lists).

 Other information that may affect building costs, population trends, and other related matters that may influence the 
district educational facilities building needs program.

The survey team members visit and evaluate each educational plant; student capacities are carefully evaluated at each 
school center.

The districtwide projection of students is distributed among the various existing school centers and any new school centers 
are recommended on the basis of past trends and the best judgment of both the District and the County Growth 
Management Office as to where growth is most likely to occur.
 The survey team should make logical recommendations based on all relevant information available.

*

*
*

*
*

*

*

*

*

    The broad, general state-level conditions that give directions to a survey are established as guidelines only insofar as feasible 
for application within a given district.

     The survey report must include a recommended pattern for housing the student projection for a five-year period, including 
changes in utilization of existing school centers, phasing out of unsatisfactory facilities and/or school centers, additions at 
existing school centers, and construction of new school centers. Ancillary facilities should also be considered in the 
recommendations.

State-level Requirements

PAGE:8 of 253 Report Date: 6/8/2021 10:16:11 AM

EDUCATIONAL PLANT FIVE YEAR SURVEY REPORT

Status:

Active Pending

Survey:

Survey: 7 - Version: 1

District:

10-CLAY COUNTY SCHOOL DISTRICT

Page 551 of 962

DRAFT



School Size:* Any school that is not large enough to justify a full-time principal, a media specialist, food service 
staff, and special instructional and clerical staff are economically inefficient and restrictive in 
program offering; simply stated, minimally sized schools are too expensive to operate if a district 
lacks sufficient financial resources to make such facilities a viable option. Generally, new school 
centers are not recommended for fewer than 400 students in elementary schools or 100 students 
per grade level in secondary schools. Where practical, existing schools that are below these sizes 
should be consolidated.

Generally, all wooden exterior buildings (other than relocatables) are considered unsatisfactory and 
are not assigned student capacity.

* Wooden Buildings: 

Generally, all wooden exterior buildings (other than relocatables) are considered unsatisfactory and 
are not assigned student capacity.

* Unsatisfactory Space: 

NOTE: Unsatisfactory space is typically designated as such due to compromising effects on the 
structural integrity, safety, or excessive physical deterioration of a building. Space condition should be 
the same, either satisfactory or unsatisfactory, for all rooms in a building with the exception of rooms 
reported in relocatable buildings that represent individual units. A space may be structurally unsound 
(unsatisfactory) and still be adequate in size.

Generally means that the size of space is not appropriate, sufficient, suitable, or lacks ability to 
meet the fitting requirements for instruction or instructional support, such as small classrooms or 
insufficient acreage for a school site. Inadequacy may be a condition brought on by changing 
standards, or increased enrollment causing overuse thereby resulting in undersized or unsuitable 
circumstances.

* Inadequate Space: 

NOTE: Inadequate space is typically designated as such by the capital outlay classifications (COC) C-3 
and C-7. Inadequate is a designation for an entire facility, not just a building or room. A space or 
building may be structurally sound (satisfactory) and still be inadequate.

Facilities designed and built to be moved from one school to another are recognized as providing 
valuable flexibility.

* Relocatable Building: 

A student station is the area necessary for a student to engage with a teacher in appropriate subject 
matter educational (learning) activities. The size of this area will vary with the particular type of 
activity and by grade level. A laboratory or shop in which the student must move about requires 
more area per student than a regular classroom where the student remains seated at a desk. The 
total student stations at a school center are used to determine the capacity of the school.

* Student Station: 

The maximum number of students that should be housed in a facility. In an elementary school, 
students are typically assigned to one classroom throughout the day and student capacity for 
elementary schools equals the student stations. However, in middle and secondary schools, 
students usually move from classroom to classroom to participate in different instructional subject 
matter, which interjects scheduling as a factor in calculating capacity. Experience has shown that 
the number of students in a secondary school is a major factor for determining the efficiency of 
space utilization that may be expected at a school.

* Student Capacity: 

PAGE:9 of 253 Report Date: 6/8/2021 10:16:11 AM

EDUCATIONAL PLANT FIVE YEAR SURVEY REPORT

Status:

Active Pending

Survey:

Survey: 7 - Version: 1

District:

10-CLAY COUNTY SCHOOL DISTRICT

Page 552 of 962

DRAFT



Used to determine “capacity” which is the number of students that may be housed in a facility at 
any given time based on a utilization percentage of the total number of existing satisfactory student 
stations:

* Utilization Factor: 

Type School

Utilization 
Factor 
Percentage x

Satisfactory 
Student 
Stations

all
all
300 or less
301-600
601-900
901-1200
1201-1500
1501 - and above
all
all
all
all
all

100%
90%
70%
75%
80%
85%
90%
95%
90%
100%
100%
120%
150%

Elementary
Middle & Junior High
Senior High

Combination Schools
Exceptional Student Centers
Alternative Education Centers
Designated Area Vocational Centers
Designated Adult Centers

In the recommendations for building a new school center, the initial capacity assigned is the 
capacity necessary to house the students anticipated to enroll at the school by the end of the 
survey projection period. The ultimate capacity is usually the maximum capacity school of that type 
based on applicable district policies (facilities lists). The establishment of an ultimate desirable 
capacity makes it possible to plan the initial construction within the framework of the ultimate size 
school–meaning, building core facilities such as media, cafeteria, administration, circulation, and 
other auxiliary spaces to the full school size and then adding classrooms as the student population 
projections increase to a level that warrants additional classroom space.

* Initial and Ultimate 
Student Capacity: 

NOTE: Educational plant survey COFTE student projections are determined by the Office of Economic 
and Demographic Research (EDR). Each five-year survey is based on COFTE projections that are five 
(5) full years from the official beginning of the survey period, which is July 1 of the first full year of the 
survey.

The recommendations made in the survey report are intended, in total, to provide adequate 
facilities for all of the students projected to be enrolled within the 5-year survey period. The priority 
systems established in statutes and rules define the eligibility for the expenditure of funds.

* Use of State and Local 
Funds for 
Recommended 
Facilities: 

PAGE:10 of 253 Report Date: 6/8/2021 10:16:11 AM

EDUCATIONAL PLANT FIVE YEAR SURVEY REPORT

Status:

Active Pending

Survey:

Survey: 7 - Version: 1

District:

10-CLAY COUNTY SCHOOL DISTRICT

Page 553 of 962

DRAFT



NOTE: Educational plant survey costs for student stations are determined by the Office of Economic 
and Demographic Research (EDR). Each five-year survey is based on cost factors that are 31 months 
(January, the midway point of the five-year survey period) from the official beginning of the survey 
period, which is July 1 of the first full year of the survey. All new capacity construction uses the 
appropriate grade level student station cost factors; the cost per square foot for new construction, 
remodeling, and renovation is based on actual statewide average construction cost data with the EDR 
cost index increase applied to use the same 31 months mid-point of the survey costs for planning 
purposes. This cost estimate process is applied uniformly to all surveys in all districts so that consistent 
estimates can be made. Actual costs are reported yearly in the 5-year district facilities work program 
annual budget.

District School Board Policies and Prerogatives
    State funds alone usually are not enough to complete the recommended school plant construction program that will be 
identified in an educational plant survey. To ensure that all capital outlay funds are used for the best and most efficient 
purposes, the educational plant survey team should collaborate with the professional and instructional staff of the district on a 
plan for meeting the projected school plant needs for the next several years.

Some of the specific local board policies and prerogatives that generally apply to the survey report are:

Actual assignment of students to school centers in the county as authorized and directed by §1003.02, F.S.;*
Facilities comprising a standard school plant for each grade grouping;*
Square footage and special features of each instructional component (state minimums must be met);*
Special facilities at a school center;*
Level of custodial service;*
Level of maintenance service;*
Level of service indicators for local comprehensive planning;*
Type of climatic control.*

Guide to Capital Outlay Classification (COC) 
    Educational plants are identified by recommended type of facility for capital outlay expenditures. The COC of educational 
plants determines the extent to which certain funds may be used for capital improvements, subject to applicable Florida 
Statutes and SREF standards dealing with budgeting and in some cases priority ratings. The COC of an educational plant can only 
be assigned or changed by an educational plant survey recommendation made in compliance with all applicable laws, rules, and 
policies.

    The COC is grouped into categories with applicable standards to guide the assignment of the appropriate classification:

Adequate site,*

An educational plant that is recommended for continued use. Generally, this includes:C-1:

Satisfactory building(s),*
Projected membership within desired size range for the type of school, *
Recommended new educational plant.*

PAGE:11 of 253 Report Date: 6/8/2021 10:16:11 AM

EDUCATIONAL PLANT FIVE YEAR SURVEY REPORT

Status:

Active Pending

Survey:

Survey: 7 - Version: 1

District:

10-CLAY COUNTY SCHOOL DISTRICT

Page 554 of 962

DRAFT



An educational plant that is in a period of transition with evidence insufficient to recommend replacement or 
consolidation, and typically new construction is not recommended for this COC. Generally, this includes:

C-2:

Inadequate site and/or inadequate building(s),*
Declining or static enrollment,*
An educational plant that probably would be recommended for consolidation if not for excessive distance 
required for student transportation.

*

An educational plant that is substandard in one or more major aspects. Generally, this includes:C-3:

Inadequate site and/or unsatisfactory building(s),*
Declining or static enrollment to a level indicating that the needs of students can better and more economically 
be served at other educational plants,

*

Abandoned educational plants not currently housing students.*

NOTE: Educational plants assigned a C-3 COC and used to house students should be closed when 
adequate facilities are available elsewhere. Facilities assigned a C-3 COC do not generate PECO 
maintenance funds even when the facility contains satisfactory space.

Ancillary facility recommended for continued use. Generally, this includes:C-6:

Adequate site,*
Satisfactory building(s),*
Recommended new site and/or facilities.*

Ancillary facility is substandard. Generally, this includes:C-7:

Inadequate site and/or unsatisfactory building(s),*
Abandoned facilities not currently being used.*

NOTE: Facilities assigned a C-7 COC that are in current use should be closed when adequate facilities 
are available elsewhere. Facilities assigned a C-7 COC do not generate PECO maintenance funds even 
when the facility contains satisfactory space.

Any district owned facility leased to an entity for use by the lessee for any purpose, including educational, but is not 
used by the district during the normal school hours of operation.

C-9:

NOTE 1: Facilities assigned a C-9 COC do not generate PECO maintenance funds.

NOTE 2: Facilities assigned a C-9 COC are to be counted in the district’s inventory of available space 
and may be considered in the determination of new construction needs.

PAGE:12 of 253 Report Date: 6/8/2021 10:16:11 AM

EDUCATIONAL PLANT FIVE YEAR SURVEY REPORT

Status:

Active Pending

Survey:

Survey: 7 - Version: 1

District:

10-CLAY COUNTY SCHOOL DISTRICT

Page 555 of 962

DRAFT



    School centers are usually classified by standard grade groupings (K-5, 6-8, and 9-12), even though a school may have only 
one or two of the grades present. A school center may be classified as a combination school and recommended to house more 
than one grade grouping, e.g. grade group K-8, grade group 6-12, or grade group K-12.
    Whenever it is feasible, the survey should contain recommendations to upgrade and/or remodel/renovate existing 
educational plants that are classified as C-1 to meet the district’s educational facilities standards for spaces and school size 
based on the districts adopted facilities lists for each grade grouping.

School Plant Planning
Planning a school plant, either a complete new school or an addition to an existing school, is a long and complex process when 
properly done. Remodeling and renovation of existing space can also be very time consuming to plan when all potential options 
for upgrading or replacement considerations are made. Suggestions made in this section are intended to provide useful, basic 
information and are not an exhaustive description of all available options for planning or meeting the facilities needs of a 
district school board.

School Size
    Generally, new school centers are not recommended for fewer than 400 students in elementary schools or 100 students per 
grade level in secondary schools. Any school that is not large enough to justify a full-time principal, a media specialist, food 
service staff, and special instructional and clerical staff are economically inefficient and restrictive in program offerings. Schools 
that are minimally sized are very expensive to operate.

    The number of students in a school is a major factor in determining the efficiency of space utilization; schools that are too 
small do not offer optimal instructional standards or provide economically advantageous structures. Just like small schools are 
not economical, very large schools are not frugal to build, maintain, or staff. The logistics of managing and maintaining an overly 
large school can outweigh the reasons for building mega structures (such as more extensive program offerings in science or 
performing arts–these functions may be offered through magnet schools, thereby meeting a districtwide or area need without 
the burden of managing an overly large school reconfigured to offer such services). 

    Optimally, elementary schools should be planned for about 800 students, middle schools should be planned for about 1,200 
students, and senior high schools should be planned for about 2,000 students. Flexibility and program offerings that allow 
schools to offer a more educationally diverse program or structural configurations that can provide significant economic 
rewards should always be considered when planning new schools. However, experience has shown that by modifying 
elementary schools sizes by more than 25% above or below the 800 student mark is not usually cost effective nor educationally 
practical. Secondary schools can sometimes be subjected to 25% to 50% modifications from the recommended median point 
and still be practical and efficient for both educational offerings and cost savings. Neither small or large schools provide cost 
saving benefits for construction nor for day-to-day operations; therefore, limiting the size of schools to near average size is 
usually preferable and more practical.

GUIDELINES FOR SCHOOL PLANT DEVELOPMENT

PAGE:13 of 253 Report Date: 6/8/2021 10:16:11 AM

EDUCATIONAL PLANT FIVE YEAR SURVEY REPORT

Status:

Active Pending

Survey:

Survey: 7 - Version: 1

District:

10-CLAY COUNTY SCHOOL DISTRICT

Page 556 of 962

DRAFT



Educational Facilities Planning
    The basic concept behind educational facilities planning is a simple one. A school building is primarily a school and 
secondarily a building. If the “school” is not planned in terms of its purposes, its scope, and its programs, the resulting structure 
will almost certainly just be a “building.” No architect, regardless of talent or experience in school plant design, can plan a 
school without guidance from the educators who will use it.

    The educational facilities planning process is slow and difficult; planning that does not consider school needs beyond the 
immediate future places an undue burden on the present and future generations of students and taxpayers.    Equally as 
important as long-range planning, no board should commit local and state revenues for a new educational plant that has not 
been planned by educators. Although the detailed procedures for educational facilities planning will vary considerably from 
school to school, the ultimate responsibility for the future rests with those professionals who plan today.

School Plant Design
   An architect is responsible for designing the building to house the school program developed through the educational facilities 
planning process. Usually, the architect participates in that process so that educational planning and design do not constitute 
separate and distinct steps.
    The architect uses other specialists in designing the building and the system(s) it will contain; for example, structural 
engineers, heating and cooling specialists, electrical engineers, and environmental specialists should be involved in the total 
process. Some broad guidelines appropriate to school building design are:

A site (plot) plan should be developed to show the most effective use of the site for present needs and to guide future 
expansion. The site design and orientation should show awareness of the principles of “Crime Prevention Through 
Environmental Design” (CPTED) including natural access control, natural surveillance, and territorial reinforcement;

*

A building should be functional in design; it should meet the needs of and facilitate the attainment of the designed or 
planned program of the school;

*

The building must be made safe and healthful for all students and school staff personnel by observing all safety and sanitary 
regulations appropriate to school plants;

*

A balance should be achieved between quality and economy in construction and the anticipated maintenance and 
operation of the plant;

*

A building should be designed to permit economical expansion both in terms of additional classrooms and special facilities 
which will eventually serve the ultimate capacity of the school; e.g., media centers, cafeterias, circulation, sanitation, 
utilities, and administration should be built to their ultimate maximum sizes if additional classrooms are going to be needed 
for future expansion;

*

Adequate lighting, natural and artificial, should be provided for all instructional spaces;*
A building should be designed to control the transient noise level; the objective in sonic design of instructional spaces is to 
secure the best hearing and speaking conditions without adversely affecting the surrounding or adjacent instructional 
programs;

*

Thermal conditioning of school spaces should be provided by economically designed systems that also render long-term 
cost savings in maintenance and operations.

*

PAGE:14 of 253 Report Date: 6/8/2021 10:16:11 AM

EDUCATIONAL PLANT FIVE YEAR SURVEY REPORT

Status:

Active Pending

Survey:

Survey: 7 - Version: 1

District:

10-CLAY COUNTY SCHOOL DISTRICT

Page 557 of 962

DRAFT



Florida Inventory of School Houses (FISH)
    The district’s educational plant survey extracts facilities data from FISH; therefore, if FISH is not current and accurate, the 
educational plant survey cannot be a valid assessment of needs. The district’s facilities inventory may be corrected at any time 
when new additions or remodeling occurs, during a validation study conducted by the district or OEF, or as the result of an 
educational plant survey. FISH is the official inventory of the district’s educational facilities. It is the responsibility of the district 
to maintain an updated inventory. Changes to FISH are subject to review by OEF for compliance with statutory and rule 
provisions as well as compliance with educational plant survey recommendations.

NOTE: FISH data is imported into the educational plant survey as it exists the moment the survey is 
created. When a complete new survey is started, the FISH data is imported and does not change even 
if FISH changes are subsequently made. When a supplemental/spot survey is created, FISH data is 
imported into the spot survey as it exists for only the selected facilities as of the moment the spot 
survey is created; this process allows districts to update FISH and then do an updated survey using 
current FISH data.

School Sites
    Before a site is purchased or funds are encumbered for a site, it must meet the criteria established by §1013.36, F.S. Notably, 
the law requires a school board to coordinate site planning and selection with affected county and city governments to ensure 
consistency with local land-use plans. This coordination process is detailed in the interlocal agreement between the school 
board and the general-purpose local governments pursuant to §1013.33(2), F.S.

    The choice of sites for new schools is critical to the overall development of a school plant program. In general, new sites 
should:

Provide adequate space for school buildings;*
Provide adequate off-street parking and off-street loading/unloading;*
Provide adequate playground area.*

In addition, new sites should generally be located to:

Minimize transportation costs and provide safe access from neighborhoods to the school;*
Avoid sites where adjacent land uses may allow the location of undesirable commercial enterprises or industrial activities 
near the school;

*

Prevent the location of a site adjacent to, or near, high voltage power transmission lines or in an airport approach flight 
path;

*

Maximize proximity to residential areas and seek to collocate district educational facilities with other public facilities, such 
as parks, libraries, and community centers.

*

PAGE:15 of 253 Report Date: 6/8/2021 10:16:11 AM

EDUCATIONAL PLANT FIVE YEAR SURVEY REPORT

Status:

Active Pending

Survey:

Survey: 7 - Version: 1

District:

10-CLAY COUNTY SCHOOL DISTRICT

Page 558 of 962

DRAFT



Section 2: Facility Lists

PAGE:16 of 253 Report Date: 6/8/2021 10:16:11 AM

EDUCATIONAL PLANT FIVE YEAR SURVEY REPORT

Status:

Active Pending

Survey:

Survey: 7 - Version: 1

District:

10-CLAY COUNTY SCHOOL DISTRICT

Page 559 of 962

DRAFT



FACILITIES LISTS

Minimum Space Requirements
    The Facility Lists component identifies the standard schools programs by grouping and listing the classrooms and support 
spaces that districts normally consider the most ideal for meeting the districts needs. These lists usually are a combination of 
elementary, middle, senior high, ancillary, and other special school centers such as exceptional students, alternative, and 
various types of combination schools, e.g. K-8, K-12, 6-12, etc.

    All board approved and adopted facilities lists must conform to standards established in SREF. The facilities lists in EFIS are 
based on net square footage per space; the gross square footage in a facilities list for new construction is determined by adding 
a standardized percentage of the net square footage for all auxiliary and support spaces. Elementary schools have 27 percent 
added for net-to-gross conversions; middle schools have 32 percent added for net-to-gross conversions; and high schools have 
34 percent added for net-to-gross conversions. An additional 6 percent is added to each type school for mechanical spaces.

    Educational plant survey costs for student stations are determined by the Office of Economic and Demographic Research 
(EDR). Each five-year survey is based on cost factors that are 31 months (January, the midway point of the five-year survey 
period) from the official beginning of the survey period, which is July 1 of the first full year of the survey. All new capacity 
construction uses the appropriate grade level student station cost factors; the cost per square foot for new construction, 
remodeling, and renovation is based on actual statewide average construction cost data with the EDR cost index increase 
applied to use the same 31 months mid-point of the survey costs for planning purposes. This cost estimate process is applied 
uniformly to all surveys in all districts so that consistent estimates can be made. Actual costs are reported yearly in the 5-year 
district facilities work program annual budget.

    Costs for remodeling recommendations are typically based on one-half the cost of new construction, but may vary 
significantly based on the type of remodeling. Costs for renovation recommendations are typically based on one-third the cost 
of new construction, and like remodeling costs, may vary significantly based on the renovation project. All cost estimates are 
best judgment approximations and may vary significantly between projects. Before entering into the planning phase on 
projects, the district should have a professional review of the estimated cost and assure that the current Uniform Building Code 
standards are applied when the cost estimates are made.

    Cost estimates and recommendations for maintenance and operations of educational plants safety and sanitation deficiencies 
are not included in this survey. Boards should follow the requirements of §1013.12, F.S., to meet the needs in these areas.

    Facilities recommended in accordance with the approved facilities lists at existing or recommended new schools may need to 
be changed as programs change.

PAGE:17 of 253 Report Date: 6/8/2021 10:16:11 AM

EDUCATIONAL PLANT FIVE YEAR SURVEY REPORT

Status:

Active Pending

Survey:

Survey: 7 - Version: 1

District:

10-CLAY COUNTY SCHOOL DISTRICT

Page 560 of 962

DRAFT



Building New Schools Or Additions To Existing Schools Relative To Approved Facility Lists 

    All facility lists are developed and approved by a district school board to establish the district’s standard schools by type and 
for the ideal size of schools. These lists, once approved by the board and by the Department, are used in the educational plant 
survey process to identify the space needs of existing schools (comparing FISH and COFTE to the facility lists) and for building 
new schools. Any new schools constructed or the expansion of existing schools must be relative to the approved facility list and 
the classroom capacity must not exceed the projected COFTE for that/those schools. When building a new school center or 
adding classroom capacity to an existing school, the capacity of the instructional spaces (classrooms) for the school may not 
exceed the projected COFTE planned for the school in the out-year of the survey even though the facility list may be for a larger 
number of students. The school’s core facilities should be built to the full size of the facility list if it is reasonably anticipated that 
the school will eventually serve the number of students in the facility list; however, the classrooms must initially only be built to 
serve the projected COFTE; to do otherwise would violate the public trust and abuse tax-payer money. 

PAGE:18 of 253 Report Date: 6/8/2021 10:16:11 AM

EDUCATIONAL PLANT FIVE YEAR SURVEY REPORT

Status:

Active Pending

Survey:

Survey: 7 - Version: 1

District:

10-CLAY COUNTY SCHOOL DISTRICT

Page 561 of 962

DRAFT



906

Target Number of Stations:

Total Stations:

ELEMENTARY  (PK - 06)

906

906

Gross Sq. Feet:

Utilization:

Acres Required:

134,982

1.000

12

Total Capacity:

Spaces Design Grades Description NSF / 
Space

Total 
NSF

Cap. / 
Space

Total 
Stns.

Total 
GSF

25 1 PK - 03 PRIMARY CLASSROOM (K-3) 882 22,050 18 450 28,003

16 2 04 - 08 INTERMEDIATE/MIDDLE CLASSROOM (4-8) 858 13,728 22 352 17,434

3 10 PK - 03 PRIMARY SKILLS LAB (K-3) 882 2,646 18 0 3,360

1 13 PK - 05 ELEMENTARY P E STORAGE 315 315 1 0 400

1 14 PK - 05 ELEMENTARY COVERED PLAY AREA 3,240 3,240 90 0 4,114

1 20 04 - 08 INTERMEDIATE/MIDDLE SCIENCE DEMO (4-8) 814 814 22 22 1,033

1 21 04 - 08 INTERMEDIATE/MIDDLE SCIENCE LAB (4-8) 1,122 1,122 22 22 1,424

6 40 PK - 12 RESOURCE ROOM 290 1,740 10 0 2,209

2 50 PK - 05 ART - ELEMENTARY 1,000 2,000 22 0 2,540

2 55 PK - 05 MUSIC - ELEMENTARY 1,000 2,000 22 0 2,540

2 60 PK - PK E S E PRE-K 475 950 5 10 1,206

2 61 PK - 12 E S E PART-TIME 975 1,950 15 30 2,476

2 62 PK - 12 E S E FULL-TIME 950 1,900 10 20 2,413

1 64 PK - 12 E S E PT/OT LAB 475 475 5 0 603

3 65 PK - 12 E S E RESOURCE 380 1,140 4 0 1,447

2 66 PK - 12 E S E SUPPLEMENTARY INSTRUCTION 100 200 2 0 254

2 67 PK - 12 E S E OBSERVATION BOOTH 150 300 0 0 381

1 68 PK - 12 E S E TIME-OUT ROOM 40 40 0 0 50

1 69 PK - 12 E S E AUDIOLOGY LAB 250 250 0 0 317

4 70 PK - 12 E S E ITINERANT 200 800 4 0 1,016

1 300 PK - VE PRINCIPAL/DIRECTOR OFFICE 250 250 0 0 317

3 301 PK - VE ASSISTANT PRINCIPAL/OTHER OFFICE 175 525 0 0 666

1 302 PK - VE BOOKKEEPING OFFICE 125 125 0 0 158

4 303 PK - VE SECRETARIAL SPACE 158 632 0 0 802

1 304 PK - VE RECEPTION AREA 765 765 45 0 971

1 305 PK - VE PRODUCTION WORKROOM 360 360 45 0 457

1 306 PK - VE CONFERENCE ROOM 630 630 45 0 800

1 307 PK - VE CLINIC 270 270 45 0 342

1 308 PK - VE GENERAL SCHOOL STORAGE 450 450 45 0 571

Level:

PAGE:19 of 253 Report Date: 6/8/2021 10:16:11 AM

EDUCATIONAL PLANT FIVE YEAR SURVEY REPORT

Status:

Active Pending

Survey:

Survey: 7 - Version: 1

District:

10-CLAY COUNTY SCHOOL DISTRICT

Page 562 of 962

DRAFT



Spaces Design Grades Description NSF / 
Space

Total 
NSF

Cap. / 
Space

Total 
Stns.

Total 
GSF

1 309 PK - VE VAULT/STUDENT RECORDS 270 270 45 0 342

1 310 PK - VE SCHOOL STORE 90 90 45 0 114

1 311 PK - VE STUDENT ACTIVITIES 450 450 45 0 571

1 312 PK - VE COMPUTER AREA 135 135 45 0 171

1 313 PK - VE CAREERS ROOM 270 270 45 0 342

3 314 PK - VE ITINERANT OFFICE 125 375 0 0 476

1 315 PK - VE TEACHER PLANNING OFFICE 1,800 1,800 90 0 2,286

1 316 PK - VE TEACHER LOUNGE/DINING 360 360 90 0 457

1 330 PK - VE CUSTODIAL RECEIVING 1,350 1,350 90 0 1,714

1 333 PK - VE FLAMMABLE STORAGE 155 155 0 0 196

1 334 PK - VE CUSTODIAL EQUIPMENT STORAGE 500 500 0 0 635

1 340 PK - VE DINING AREA 3,600 3,600 90 0 4,572

1 341 PK - VE KITCHEN & SERVING AREA 3,960 3,960 90 0 5,029

1 349 PK - VE KITCHEN CHAIR STORAGE 180 180 45 0 228

1 361 PK - VE MULTIPURPOSE ROOM (DINING) 2,790 2,790 90 0 3,543

1 362 PK - VE MULTIPURPOSE ROOM CHAIR STORAGE 180 180 90 0 228

1 363 PK - VE STAGE 990 990 1 0 1,257

1 364 PK - VE STAGE STORAGE 450 450 90 0 571

1 365 PK - VE STAGE DRESSING ROOM (MALE) 225 225 45 0 285

1 366 PK - VE STAGE DRESSING ROOM (FEMALE) 225 225 45 0 285

1 367 PK - VE CONTROL BOOTH/PROJECTION ROOM 100 100 1 0 127

1 368 PK - VE TEXTBOOK STORAGE 315 315 45 0 400

1 369 06 - VE STUDENT PERSONAL STORAGE 450 450 90 0 571

1 380 PK - VE LIBRARY (READING ROOM/STACKS) 3,330 3,330 90 0 4,229

1 381 PK - VE MEDIA TECHNICAL PROCESSING 360 360 90 0 457

1 382 PK - VE PROFESSIONAL LIBRARY 360 360 90 0 457

1 383 PK - VE AUDIO VISUAL STORAGE 540 540 90 0 685

1 384 PK - VE PERIODICAL STORAGE 180 180 90 0 228

1 385 PK - VE CLOSED CIRCUIT TV LAB 630 630 90 0 800

1 386 PK - VE CLOSED CIRCUIT STORAGE 450 450 90 0 571

1 387 PK - VE MEDIA PRODUCTION LAB 450 450 90 0 571

1 388 PK - VE MEDIA COPYING ROOM 180 180 90 0 228

1 389 PK - VE MEDIA SMALL GROUP ROOM 90 90 45 0 114

1 390 PK - VE MEDIA GROUP PROJECTS/INSTRUCTION 450 450 90 0 571

PAGE:20 of 253 Report Date: 6/8/2021 10:16:11 AM

EDUCATIONAL PLANT FIVE YEAR SURVEY REPORT

Status:

Active Pending

Survey:

Survey: 7 - Version: 1

District:

10-CLAY COUNTY SCHOOL DISTRICT

Page 563 of 962

DRAFT



Spaces Design Grades Description NSF / 
Space

Total 
NSF

Cap. / 
Space

Total 
Stns.

Total 
GSF

1 391 PK - VE MEDIA MAINTENANCE/REPAIR 90 90 45 0 114

806 REFERENCE 100 200 0 0 254

808 MATERIAL STORAGE 100 2,500 0 0 3,175

811 OUTSIDE STORAGE 50 1,250 0 0 1,587

812 PROJECT STORAGE 150 150 0 0 190

813 STUDENT STORAGE 40 1,000 0 0 1,270

814 STUDENT RESTROOM (BOTH SEXES) 60 1,500 0 0 1,905

815 STUDENT RESTROOM (MALE) 35 560 0 0 711

816 STUDENT RESTROOM (FEMALE) 35 560 0 0 711

817 STUDENT RESTROOM & BATH 110 220 0 0 279

831 MUSIC PRACTICE ROOM 70 140 0 0 177

808 MATERIAL STORAGE 100 1,600 0 0 2,032

811 OUTSIDE STORAGE 50 800 0 0 1,016

808 MATERIAL STORAGE 100 300 0 0 381

813 STUDENT STORAGE 40 120 0 0 152

814 STUDENT RESTROOM (BOTH SEXES) 60 180 0 0 228

808 MATERIAL STORAGE 100 100 0 0 127

808 MATERIAL STORAGE 100 100 0 0 127

812 PROJECT STORAGE 150 150 0 0 190

808 MATERIAL STORAGE 100 600 0 0 762

808 MATERIAL STORAGE 100 200 0 0 254

812 PROJECT STORAGE 150 300 0 0 381

808 MATERIAL STORAGE 100 200 0 0 254

808 MATERIAL STORAGE 100 200 0 0 254

813 STUDENT STORAGE 40 80 0 0 101

808 MATERIAL STORAGE 100 200 0 0 254

813 STUDENT STORAGE 40 80 0 0 101

815 STUDENT RESTROOM (MALE) 35 70 0 0 88

816 STUDENT RESTROOM (FEMALE) 35 70 0 0 88

808 MATERIAL STORAGE 100 200 0 0 254

813 STUDENT STORAGE 40 80 0 0 101

815 STUDENT RESTROOM (MALE) 35 70 0 0 88

816 STUDENT RESTROOM (FEMALE) 35 70 0 0 88

817 STUDENT RESTROOM & BATH 110 220 0 0 279

PAGE:21 of 253 Report Date: 6/8/2021 10:16:11 AM

EDUCATIONAL PLANT FIVE YEAR SURVEY REPORT

Status:

Active Pending

Survey:

Survey: 7 - Version: 1

District:

10-CLAY COUNTY SCHOOL DISTRICT

Page 564 of 962

DRAFT



Spaces Design Grades Description NSF / 
Space

Total 
NSF

Cap. / 
Space

Total 
Stns.

Total 
GSF

808 MATERIAL STORAGE 100 100 0 0 127

813 STUDENT STORAGE 40 40 0 0 50

817 STUDENT RESTROOM & BATH 110 110 0 0 139

808 MATERIAL STORAGE 100 300 0 0 381

813 STUDENT STORAGE 40 120 0 0 152

808 MATERIAL STORAGE 100 200 0 0 254

808 MATERIAL STORAGE 100 100 0 0 127

808 MATERIAL STORAGE 100 400 0 0 508

16 815 06 - 12 STUDENT RESTROOM (MALE) 90 1,440 45 0 1,828

16 816 06 - 12 STUDENT RESTROOM (FEMALE) 90 1,440 45 0 1,828

PAGE:22 of 253 Report Date: 6/8/2021 10:16:11 AM

EDUCATIONAL PLANT FIVE YEAR SURVEY REPORT

Status:

Active Pending

Survey:

Survey: 7 - Version: 1

District:

10-CLAY COUNTY SCHOOL DISTRICT

Page 565 of 962

DRAFT



1,127

Target Number of Stations:

Total Stations:

MIDDLE  (06 - 08)

1,253

1,253

Gross Sq. Feet:

Utilization:

Acres Required:

188,134

1.000

15

Total Capacity:

Spaces Design Grades Description NSF / 
Space

Total 
NSF

Cap. / 
Space

Total 
Stns.

Total 
GSF

25 2 04 - 08 INTERMEDIATE/MIDDLE CLASSROOM (4-8) 858 21,450 22 550 28,314

4 11 04 - 08 INTERMEDIATE/MIDDLE SKILLS LAB (4-8) 858 3,432 22 88 4,530

6 20 04 - 08 INTERMEDIATE/MIDDLE SCIENCE DEMO (4-8) 814 4,884 22 132 6,446

2 21 04 - 08 INTERMEDIATE/MIDDLE SCIENCE LAB (4-8) 1,122 2,244 22 44 2,962

5 40 PK - 12 RESOURCE ROOM 290 1,450 10 0 1,914

1 51 04 - 08 ART - MIDDLE 1,260 1,260 30 30 1,663

3 61 PK - 12 E S E PART-TIME 975 2,925 15 45 3,861

3 62 PK - 12 E S E FULL-TIME 950 2,850 10 30 3,762

1 63 PK - 12 E S E VOCATIONAL 1,140 1,140 12 12 1,504

1 64 PK - 12 E S E PT/OT LAB 475 475 5 0 627

3 65 PK - 12 E S E RESOURCE 380 1,140 4 0 1,504

3 66 PK - 12 E S E SUPPLEMENTARY INSTRUCTION 100 300 2 0 396

1 67 PK - 12 E S E OBSERVATION BOOTH 150 150 0 0 198

1 68 PK - 12 E S E TIME-OUT ROOM 40 40 0 0 52

1 69 PK - 12 E S E AUDIOLOGY LAB 250 250 0 0 330

4 70 PK - 12 E S E ITINERANT 200 800 4 0 1,056

1 75 06 - 12 VOCAL MUSIC CLASS (MIDDLE-SR HIGH) 1,425 1,425 25 25 1,881

1 76 06 - 12 BAND CLASS (MIDDLE-SR HIGH) 2,000 2,000 45 45 2,640

1 81 06 - 12 RECORDING ROOM 225 225 5 0 297

1 82 06 - 12 INSTRUMENT REPAIR 110 110 1 0 145

1 90 06 - 12 P E DRESSING ROOM (MALE) 672 672 56 0 887

1 91 06 - 12 P E DRESSING ROOM (FEMALE) 672 672 56 0 887

1 92 06 - 12 P E LOCKER ROOM (MALE) 112 112 56 0 147

1 93 06 - 12 P E LOCKER ROOM (FEMALE) 112 112 56 0 147

1 94 06 - 12 P E SHOWER (MALE) 112 112 56 0 147

1 95 06 - 12 P E SHOWER (FEMALE) 112 112 56 0 147

1 96 06 - 12 P E DRYING AREA (MALE) 112 112 56 0 147

1 97 06 - 12 P E DRYING AREA (FEMALE) 112 112 56 0 147

1 98 06 - 12 P E STORAGE (MIDDLE-SR HIGH) 504 504 56 0 665

Level:

PAGE:23 of 253 Report Date: 6/8/2021 10:16:11 AM

EDUCATIONAL PLANT FIVE YEAR SURVEY REPORT

Status:

Active Pending

Survey:

Survey: 7 - Version: 1

District:

10-CLAY COUNTY SCHOOL DISTRICT

Page 566 of 962

DRAFT



Spaces Design Grades Description NSF / 
Space

Total 
NSF

Cap. / 
Space

Total 
Stns.

Total 
GSF

1 99 06 - 12 P E TEACHERS SHOWER (MALE) 22 22 1 0 29

1 100 06 - 12 P E TEACHERS SHOWER (FEMALE) 22 22 1 0 29

1 110 06 - 12 P E MULTIPURPOSE ROOM (MIDDLE-SR HIGH) 1,050 1,050 1 0 1,386

1 111 06 - 09 JR HIGH GYMNASIUM 5,800 5,800 120 120 7,656

1 113 06 - 12 GYMNASIUM SEATING 3,584 3,584 112 0 4,730

1 114 06 - 12 P E LAUNDRY 112 112 56 0 147

1 115 06 - 12 P E FIRST AID 112 112 56 0 147

1 116 06 - 12 P E TRAINING ROOM 250 250 1 0 330

1 117 06 - 12 P E WEIGHT ROOM 1,000 1,000 1 0 1,320

1 118 06 - 12 P E WRESTLING ROOM 1,680 1,680 1 0 2,217

1 119 06 - 12 P E GYMNASTICS & DANCE 1,050 1,050 1 0 1,386

1 120 06 - 12 GYMNASIUM STORAGE 168 168 56 0 221

1 200 06 - 09 AGRICULTURE EXPLORATION LAB 880 880 22 22 1,161

2 210 06 - 09 BUSINESS EXPLORATION LAB 1,210 2,420 22 44 3,194

1 230 06 - 09 HOME ECONOMICS EXPLORATION LAB 1,540 1,540 22 22 2,032

1 240 06 - 09 TECHNOLOGY/INDUSTRY EXPLORATION LAB 2,090 2,090 22 22 2,758

1 260 06 - 09 PUBLIC SERVICE EXPLORATION LAB 1,012 1,012 22 22 1,335

1 300 PK - VE PRINCIPAL/DIRECTOR OFFICE 250 250 0 0 330

4 301 PK - VE ASSISTANT PRINCIPAL/OTHER OFFICE 175 700 0 0 924

2 302 PK - VE BOOKKEEPING OFFICE 125 250 0 0 330

5 303 PK - VE SECRETARIAL SPACE 158 790 0 0 1,042

1 304 PK - VE RECEPTION AREA 952 952 56 0 1,256

1 305 PK - VE PRODUCTION WORKROOM 448 448 56 0 591

1 306 PK - VE CONFERENCE ROOM 784 784 56 0 1,034

1 307 PK - VE CLINIC 336 336 56 0 443

1 308 PK - VE GENERAL SCHOOL STORAGE 560 560 56 0 739

1 309 PK - VE VAULT/STUDENT RECORDS 336 336 56 0 443

1 310 PK - VE SCHOOL STORE 112 112 56 0 147

1 311 PK - VE STUDENT ACTIVITIES 560 560 56 0 739

1 312 PK - VE COMPUTER AREA 168 168 56 0 221

1 313 PK - VE CAREERS ROOM 336 336 56 0 443

3 314 PK - VE ITINERANT OFFICE 125 375 0 0 495

1 315 PK - VE TEACHER PLANNING OFFICE 2,240 2,240 112 0 2,956

1 316 PK - VE TEACHER LOUNGE/DINING 448 448 112 0 591

PAGE:24 of 253 Report Date: 6/8/2021 10:16:11 AM

EDUCATIONAL PLANT FIVE YEAR SURVEY REPORT

Status:

Active Pending

Survey:

Survey: 7 - Version: 1

District:

10-CLAY COUNTY SCHOOL DISTRICT

Page 567 of 962

DRAFT



Spaces Design Grades Description NSF / 
Space

Total 
NSF

Cap. / 
Space

Total 
Stns.

Total 
GSF

1 330 PK - VE CUSTODIAL RECEIVING 1,680 1,680 112 0 2,217

1 333 PK - VE FLAMMABLE STORAGE 155 155 0 0 204

1 334 PK - VE CUSTODIAL EQUIPMENT STORAGE 500 500 0 0 660

1 340 PK - VE DINING AREA 4,480 4,480 112 0 5,913

1 341 PK - VE KITCHEN & SERVING AREA 4,928 4,928 112 0 6,504

1 349 PK - VE KITCHEN CHAIR STORAGE 224 224 56 0 295

1 351 06 - 12 MIDDLE/SR HIGH COVERED PATIO 4,032 4,032 112 0 5,322

1 361 PK - VE MULTIPURPOSE ROOM (DINING) 3,472 3,472 112 0 4,583

1 362 PK - VE MULTIPURPOSE ROOM CHAIR STORAGE 224 224 112 0 295

1 363 PK - VE STAGE 990 990 1 0 1,306

1 364 PK - VE STAGE STORAGE 560 560 112 0 739

1 365 PK - VE STAGE DRESSING ROOM (MALE) 280 280 56 0 369

1 366 PK - VE STAGE DRESSING ROOM (FEMALE) 280 280 56 0 369

1 367 PK - VE CONTROL BOOTH/PROJECTION ROOM 100 100 1 0 132

1 368 PK - VE TEXTBOOK STORAGE 392 392 56 0 517

1 369 06 - VE STUDENT PERSONAL STORAGE 560 560 112 0 739

1 370 06 - VE LOBBY 560 560 56 0 739

1 371 06 - VE CONCESSIONS 200 200 1 0 264

1 372 06 - VE TICKET BOOTH 30 30 1 0 39

1 380 PK - VE LIBRARY (READING ROOM/STACKS) 4,144 4,144 112 0 5,470

1 381 PK - VE MEDIA TECHNICAL PROCESSING 448 448 112 0 591

1 382 PK - VE PROFESSIONAL LIBRARY 448 448 112 0 591

1 383 PK - VE AUDIO VISUAL STORAGE 672 672 112 0 887

1 384 PK - VE PERIODICAL STORAGE 224 224 112 0 295

1 385 PK - VE CLOSED CIRCUIT TV LAB 784 784 112 0 1,034

1 386 PK - VE CLOSED CIRCUIT STORAGE 560 560 112 0 739

1 387 PK - VE MEDIA PRODUCTION LAB 560 560 112 0 739

1 388 PK - VE MEDIA COPYING ROOM 224 224 112 0 295

1 389 PK - VE MEDIA SMALL GROUP ROOM 112 112 56 0 147

1 390 PK - VE MEDIA GROUP PROJECTS/INSTRUCTION 560 560 112 0 739

1 391 PK - VE MEDIA MAINTENANCE/REPAIR 112 112 56 0 147

803 INSTRUCTIONAL DARKROOM 100 100 0 0 132

805 KILN 60 60 0 0 79

806 REFERENCE 100 100 0 0 132

PAGE:25 of 253 Report Date: 6/8/2021 10:16:11 AM

EDUCATIONAL PLANT FIVE YEAR SURVEY REPORT

Status:

Active Pending

Survey:

Survey: 7 - Version: 1

District:

10-CLAY COUNTY SCHOOL DISTRICT

Page 568 of 962

DRAFT



Spaces Design Grades Description NSF / 
Space

Total 
NSF

Cap. / 
Space

Total 
Stns.

Total 
GSF

806 REFERENCE 100 100 0 0 132

808 MATERIAL STORAGE 100 100 0 0 132

808 MATERIAL STORAGE 100 100 0 0 132

808 MATERIAL STORAGE 100 300 0 0 396

808 MATERIAL STORAGE 100 500 0 0 660

808 MATERIAL STORAGE 100 100 0 0 132

808 MATERIAL STORAGE 100 100 0 0 132

808 MATERIAL STORAGE 100 200 0 0 264

808 MATERIAL STORAGE 100 600 0 0 792

808 MATERIAL STORAGE 100 400 0 0 528

808 MATERIAL STORAGE 100 2,500 0 0 3,300

808 MATERIAL STORAGE 100 100 0 0 132

808 MATERIAL STORAGE 100 100 0 0 132

808 MATERIAL STORAGE 100 300 0 0 396

808 MATERIAL STORAGE 100 300 0 0 396

808 MATERIAL STORAGE 100 100 0 0 132

808 MATERIAL STORAGE 100 200 0 0 264

808 MATERIAL STORAGE 100 400 0 0 528

808 MATERIAL STORAGE 100 300 0 0 396

808 MATERIAL STORAGE 100 100 0 0 132

808 MATERIAL STORAGE 100 100 0 0 132

808 MATERIAL STORAGE 100 100 0 0 132

810 MATERIAL STORAGE (LARGE) 395 395 0 0 521

811 OUTSIDE STORAGE 50 1,250 0 0 1,650

812 PROJECT STORAGE 150 900 0 0 1,188

812 PROJECT STORAGE 150 300 0 0 396

812 PROJECT STORAGE 150 150 0 0 198

812 PROJECT STORAGE 150 150 0 0 198

812 PROJECT STORAGE 150 150 0 0 198

813 STUDENT STORAGE 40 120 0 0 158

813 STUDENT STORAGE 40 120 0 0 158

813 STUDENT STORAGE 40 40 0 0 52

813 STUDENT STORAGE 40 120 0 0 158

815 STUDENT RESTROOM (MALE) 35 35 0 0 46

PAGE:26 of 253 Report Date: 6/8/2021 10:16:11 AM

EDUCATIONAL PLANT FIVE YEAR SURVEY REPORT

Status:

Active Pending

Survey:

Survey: 7 - Version: 1

District:

10-CLAY COUNTY SCHOOL DISTRICT

Page 569 of 962

DRAFT



Spaces Design Grades Description NSF / 
Space

Total 
NSF

Cap. / 
Space

Total 
Stns.

Total 
GSF

815 STUDENT RESTROOM (MALE) 35 105 0 0 138

815 STUDENT RESTROOM (MALE) 35 105 0 0 138

815 STUDENT RESTROOM (MALE) 35 875 0 0 1,155

815 STUDENT RESTROOM (MALE) 35 140 0 0 184

25 815 06 - 12 STUDENT RESTROOM (MALE) 112 2,800 56 0 3,696

25 816 06 - 12 STUDENT RESTROOM (FEMALE) 112 2,800 56 0 3,696

816 STUDENT RESTROOM (FEMALE) 35 140 0 0 184

816 STUDENT RESTROOM (FEMALE) 35 875 0 0 1,155

816 STUDENT RESTROOM (FEMALE) 35 105 0 0 138

816 STUDENT RESTROOM (FEMALE) 35 105 0 0 138

816 STUDENT RESTROOM (FEMALE) 35 35 0 0 46

817 STUDENT RESTROOM & BATH 110 110 0 0 145

817 STUDENT RESTROOM & BATH 110 330 0 0 435

830 MUSIC ENSEMBLE 300 300 0 0 396

830 MUSIC ENSEMBLE 300 300 0 0 396

831 MUSIC PRACTICE ROOM 70 70 0 0 92

831 MUSIC PRACTICE ROOM 70 70 0 0 92

832 INSTRUMENT STORAGE 600 600 0 0 792

833 ROBE STORAGE 150 150 0 0 198

834 UNIFORM STORAGE 300 300 0 0 396

835 MUSIC STUDIO 180 180 0 0 237

836 SHEET MUSIC STORAGE 150 150 0 0 198

836 SHEET MUSIC STORAGE 150 150 0 0 198

837 MUSIC EQUIPMENT STORAGE 400 400 0 0 528

837 MUSIC EQUIPMENT STORAGE 400 400 0 0 528

840 VOCATIONAL RELATED CLASSROOM 680 680 20 0 897

841 GREENHOUSE 800 800 0 0 1,056

842 KITCHEN (HOME ECONOMICS) 125 125 0 0 165

843 LAUNDRY (HOME ECONOMICS) 50 50 0 0 66

849 VOCATIONAL PROJECT STORAGE 310 310 0 0 409

851 VOCATIONAL TOOL STORAGE (LARGE) 310 310 0 0 409

852 VOCATIONAL TECHNOLOGY RESOURCE CENTER 800 800 0 0 1,056

852 VOCATIONAL TECHNOLOGY RESOURCE CENTER 800 800 0 0 1,056

PAGE:27 of 253 Report Date: 6/8/2021 10:16:11 AM

EDUCATIONAL PLANT FIVE YEAR SURVEY REPORT

Status:

Active Pending

Survey:

Survey: 7 - Version: 1

District:

10-CLAY COUNTY SCHOOL DISTRICT

Page 570 of 962

DRAFT



1,005

Target Number of Stations:

Total Stations:

JUNIOR HIGH  (07 - 08)

1,117

1,117

Gross Sq. Feet:

Utilization:

Acres Required:

171,753

1.000

14

Total Capacity:

Spaces Design Grades Description NSF / 
Space

Total 
NSF

Cap. / 
Space

Total 
Stns.

Total 
GSF

23 2 04 - 08 INTERMEDIATE/MIDDLE CLASSROOM (4-8) 858 19,734 22 506 26,048

4 11 04 - 08 INTERMEDIATE/MIDDLE SKILLS LAB (4-8) 858 3,432 22 88 4,530

6 20 04 - 08 INTERMEDIATE/MIDDLE SCIENCE DEMO (4-8) 814 4,884 22 132 6,446

1 21 04 - 08 INTERMEDIATE/MIDDLE SCIENCE LAB (4-8) 1,122 1,122 22 22 1,481

4 40 PK - 12 RESOURCE ROOM 290 1,160 10 0 1,531

1 51 04 - 08 ART - MIDDLE 1,260 1,260 30 30 1,663

2 61 PK - 12 E S E PART-TIME 975 1,950 15 30 2,574

2 62 PK - 12 E S E FULL-TIME 950 1,900 10 20 2,508

1 63 PK - 12 E S E VOCATIONAL 1,140 1,140 12 12 1,504

1 64 PK - 12 E S E PT/OT LAB 475 475 5 0 627

3 65 PK - 12 E S E RESOURCE 380 1,140 4 0 1,504

2 66 PK - 12 E S E SUPPLEMENTARY INSTRUCTION 100 200 2 0 264

1 67 PK - 12 E S E OBSERVATION BOOTH 150 150 0 0 198

1 68 PK - 12 E S E TIME-OUT ROOM 40 40 0 0 52

1 69 PK - 12 E S E AUDIOLOGY LAB 250 250 0 0 330

4 70 PK - 12 E S E ITINERANT 200 800 4 0 1,056

1 75 06 - 12 VOCAL MUSIC CLASS (MIDDLE-SR HIGH) 1,425 1,425 25 25 1,881

1 76 06 - 12 BAND CLASS (MIDDLE-SR HIGH) 2,000 2,000 40 40 2,640

1 81 06 - 12 RECORDING ROOM 225 225 5 0 297

1 82 06 - 12 INSTRUMENT REPAIR 0 0 0 0 0

1 90 06 - 12 P E DRESSING ROOM (MALE) 600 600 50 0 792

1 91 06 - 12 P E DRESSING ROOM (FEMALE) 600 600 50 0 792

1 92 06 - 12 P E LOCKER ROOM (MALE) 100 100 50 0 132

1 93 06 - 12 P E LOCKER ROOM (FEMALE) 100 100 50 0 132

1 94 06 - 12 P E SHOWER (MALE) 100 100 50 0 132

1 95 06 - 12 P E SHOWER (FEMALE) 100 100 50 0 132

1 96 06 - 12 P E DRYING AREA (MALE) 100 100 50 0 132

1 97 06 - 12 P E DRYING AREA (FEMALE) 100 100 50 0 132

1 98 06 - 12 P E STORAGE (MIDDLE-SR HIGH) 450 450 50 0 594

Level:

PAGE:28 of 253 Report Date: 6/8/2021 10:16:11 AM

EDUCATIONAL PLANT FIVE YEAR SURVEY REPORT

Status:

Active Pending

Survey:

Survey: 7 - Version: 1

District:

10-CLAY COUNTY SCHOOL DISTRICT

Page 571 of 962

DRAFT



Spaces Design Grades Description NSF / 
Space

Total 
NSF

Cap. / 
Space

Total 
Stns.

Total 
GSF

1 99 06 - 12 P E TEACHERS SHOWER (MALE) 22 22 1 0 29

1 100 06 - 12 P E TEACHERS SHOWER (FEMALE) 22 22 1 0 29

1 110 06 - 12 P E MULTIPURPOSE ROOM (MIDDLE-SR HIGH) 1,050 1,050 1 0 1,386

1 111 06 - 09 JR HIGH GYMNASIUM 5,800 5,800 80 80 7,656

1 113 06 - 12 GYMNASIUM SEATING 3,200 3,200 100 0 4,224

1 114 06 - 12 P E LAUNDRY 100 100 50 0 132

1 115 06 - 12 P E FIRST AID 100 100 50 0 132

1 116 06 - 12 P E TRAINING ROOM 250 250 1 0 330

1 117 06 - 12 P E WEIGHT ROOM 1,000 1,000 1 0 1,320

1 118 06 - 12 P E WRESTLING ROOM 1,680 1,680 1 0 2,217

1 119 06 - 12 P E GYMNASTICS & DANCE 1,050 1,050 1 0 1,386

1 120 06 - 12 GYMNASIUM STORAGE 150 150 50 0 198

1 200 06 - 09 AGRICULTURE EXPLORATION LAB 880 880 22 22 1,161

2 210 06 - 09 BUSINESS EXPLORATION LAB 1,210 2,420 22 44 3,194

1 230 06 - 09 HOME ECONOMICS EXPLORATION LAB 1,540 1,540 22 22 2,032

1 240 06 - 09 TECHNOLOGY/INDUSTRY EXPLORATION LAB 2,090 2,090 22 22 2,758

1 260 06 - 09 PUBLIC SERVICE EXPLORATION LAB 1,012 1,012 22 22 1,335

1 300 PK - VE PRINCIPAL/DIRECTOR OFFICE 250 250 0 0 330

4 301 PK - VE ASSISTANT PRINCIPAL/OTHER OFFICE 175 700 0 0 924

2 302 PK - VE BOOKKEEPING OFFICE 125 250 0 0 330

5 303 PK - VE SECRETARIAL SPACE 158 790 0 0 1,042

1 304 PK - VE RECEPTION AREA 850 850 50 0 1,122

1 305 PK - VE PRODUCTION WORKROOM 400 400 50 0 528

1 306 PK - VE CONFERENCE ROOM 700 700 50 0 924

1 307 PK - VE CLINIC 300 300 50 0 396

1 308 PK - VE GENERAL SCHOOL STORAGE 500 500 50 0 660

1 309 PK - VE VAULT/STUDENT RECORDS 300 300 50 0 396

1 310 PK - VE SCHOOL STORE 100 100 50 0 132

1 311 PK - VE STUDENT ACTIVITIES 500 500 50 0 660

1 312 PK - VE COMPUTER AREA 150 150 50 0 198

1 313 PK - VE CAREERS ROOM 300 300 50 0 396

3 314 PK - VE ITINERANT OFFICE 125 375 0 0 495

1 315 PK - VE TEACHER PLANNING OFFICE 2,000 2,000 100 0 2,640

1 316 PK - VE TEACHER LOUNGE/DINING 400 400 100 0 528

PAGE:29 of 253 Report Date: 6/8/2021 10:16:11 AM

EDUCATIONAL PLANT FIVE YEAR SURVEY REPORT

Status:

Active Pending

Survey:

Survey: 7 - Version: 1

District:

10-CLAY COUNTY SCHOOL DISTRICT

Page 572 of 962

DRAFT



Spaces Design Grades Description NSF / 
Space

Total 
NSF

Cap. / 
Space

Total 
Stns.

Total 
GSF

1 330 PK - VE CUSTODIAL RECEIVING 1,500 1,500 100 0 1,980

1 333 PK - VE FLAMMABLE STORAGE 155 155 0 0 204

1 334 PK - VE CUSTODIAL EQUIPMENT STORAGE 500 500 0 0 660

1 340 PK - VE DINING AREA 4,000 4,000 100 0 5,280

1 341 PK - VE KITCHEN & SERVING AREA 4,400 4,400 100 0 5,808

1 349 PK - VE KITCHEN CHAIR STORAGE 200 200 50 0 264

1 351 06 - 12 MIDDLE/SR HIGH COVERED PATIO 3,600 3,600 100 0 4,752

1 361 PK - VE MULTIPURPOSE ROOM (DINING) 3,100 3,100 100 0 4,092

1 362 PK - VE MULTIPURPOSE ROOM CHAIR STORAGE 200 200 100 0 264

1 363 PK - VE STAGE 990 990 1 0 1,306

1 364 PK - VE STAGE STORAGE 500 500 100 0 660

1 365 PK - VE STAGE DRESSING ROOM (MALE) 250 250 50 0 330

1 366 PK - VE STAGE DRESSING ROOM (FEMALE) 250 250 50 0 330

1 367 PK - VE CONTROL BOOTH/PROJECTION ROOM 100 100 1 0 132

1 368 PK - VE TEXTBOOK STORAGE 350 350 50 0 462

1 369 06 - VE STUDENT PERSONAL STORAGE 500 500 100 0 660

1 370 06 - VE LOBBY 500 500 50 0 660

1 371 06 - VE CONCESSIONS 200 200 1 0 264

1 372 06 - VE TICKET BOOTH 30 30 1 0 39

1 380 PK - VE LIBRARY (READING ROOM/STACKS) 3,700 3,700 100 0 4,884

1 381 PK - VE MEDIA TECHNICAL PROCESSING 400 400 100 0 528

1 382 PK - VE PROFESSIONAL LIBRARY 400 400 100 0 528

1 383 PK - VE AUDIO VISUAL STORAGE 600 600 100 0 792

1 384 PK - VE PERIODICAL STORAGE 200 200 100 0 264

1 385 PK - VE CLOSED CIRCUIT TV LAB 700 700 100 0 924

1 386 PK - VE CLOSED CIRCUIT STORAGE 500 500 100 0 660

1 387 PK - VE MEDIA PRODUCTION LAB 500 500 100 0 660

1 388 PK - VE MEDIA COPYING ROOM 200 200 100 0 264

1 389 PK - VE MEDIA SMALL GROUP ROOM 100 100 50 0 132

1 390 PK - VE MEDIA GROUP PROJECTS/INSTRUCTION 500 500 100 0 660

1 391 PK - VE MEDIA MAINTENANCE/REPAIR 100 100 50 0 132

803 INSTRUCTIONAL DARKROOM 100 100 0 0 132

805 KILN 60 60 0 0 79

806 REFERENCE 100 100 0 0 132

PAGE:30 of 253 Report Date: 6/8/2021 10:16:11 AM

EDUCATIONAL PLANT FIVE YEAR SURVEY REPORT

Status:

Active Pending

Survey:

Survey: 7 - Version: 1

District:

10-CLAY COUNTY SCHOOL DISTRICT

Page 573 of 962

DRAFT



Spaces Design Grades Description NSF / 
Space

Total 
NSF

Cap. / 
Space

Total 
Stns.

Total 
GSF

806 REFERENCE 100 100 0 0 132

808 MATERIAL STORAGE 100 100 0 0 132

808 MATERIAL STORAGE 100 100 0 0 132

808 MATERIAL STORAGE 100 300 0 0 396

808 MATERIAL STORAGE 100 400 0 0 528

808 MATERIAL STORAGE 100 100 0 0 132

808 MATERIAL STORAGE 100 100 0 0 132

808 MATERIAL STORAGE 100 100 0 0 132

808 MATERIAL STORAGE 100 600 0 0 792

808 MATERIAL STORAGE 100 400 0 0 528

808 MATERIAL STORAGE 100 2,300 0 0 3,036

808 MATERIAL STORAGE 100 100 0 0 132

808 MATERIAL STORAGE 100 100 0 0 132

808 MATERIAL STORAGE 100 200 0 0 264

808 MATERIAL STORAGE 100 200 0 0 264

808 MATERIAL STORAGE 100 100 0 0 132

808 MATERIAL STORAGE 100 200 0 0 264

808 MATERIAL STORAGE 100 400 0 0 528

808 MATERIAL STORAGE 100 200 0 0 264

808 MATERIAL STORAGE 100 100 0 0 132

808 MATERIAL STORAGE 100 100 0 0 132

808 MATERIAL STORAGE 100 100 0 0 132

810 MATERIAL STORAGE (LARGE) 395 395 0 0 521

811 OUTSIDE STORAGE 50 1,150 0 0 1,518

812 PROJECT STORAGE 150 900 0 0 1,188

812 PROJECT STORAGE 150 150 0 0 198

812 PROJECT STORAGE 150 150 0 0 198

812 PROJECT STORAGE 150 150 0 0 198

812 PROJECT STORAGE 150 150 0 0 198

813 STUDENT STORAGE 40 80 0 0 105

813 STUDENT STORAGE 40 80 0 0 105

813 STUDENT STORAGE 40 40 0 0 52

813 STUDENT STORAGE 40 120 0 0 158

815 STUDENT RESTROOM (MALE) 35 35 0 0 46

PAGE:31 of 253 Report Date: 6/8/2021 10:16:11 AM

EDUCATIONAL PLANT FIVE YEAR SURVEY REPORT

Status:

Active Pending

Survey:

Survey: 7 - Version: 1

District:

10-CLAY COUNTY SCHOOL DISTRICT

Page 574 of 962

DRAFT



Spaces Design Grades Description NSF / 
Space

Total 
NSF

Cap. / 
Space

Total 
Stns.

Total 
GSF

815 STUDENT RESTROOM (MALE) 35 70 0 0 92

815 STUDENT RESTROOM (MALE) 35 70 0 0 92

815 STUDENT RESTROOM (MALE) 35 805 0 0 1,062

815 STUDENT RESTROOM (MALE) 35 140 0 0 184

23 815 06 - 12 STUDENT RESTROOM (MALE) 100 2,300 50 0 3,036

23 816 06 - 12 STUDENT RESTROOM (FEMALE) 100 2,300 50 0 3,036

816 STUDENT RESTROOM (FEMALE) 35 140 0 0 184

816 STUDENT RESTROOM (FEMALE) 35 805 0 0 1,062

816 STUDENT RESTROOM (FEMALE) 35 70 0 0 92

816 STUDENT RESTROOM (FEMALE) 35 70 0 0 92

816 STUDENT RESTROOM (FEMALE) 35 35 0 0 46

817 STUDENT RESTROOM & BATH 110 110 0 0 145

817 STUDENT RESTROOM & BATH 110 220 0 0 290

830 MUSIC ENSEMBLE 300 300 0 0 396

830 MUSIC ENSEMBLE 300 300 0 0 396

831 MUSIC PRACTICE ROOM 70 70 0 0 92

831 MUSIC PRACTICE ROOM 70 70 0 0 92

832 INSTRUMENT STORAGE 600 600 0 0 792

833 ROBE STORAGE 150 150 0 0 198

834 UNIFORM STORAGE 300 300 0 0 396

835 MUSIC STUDIO 180 180 0 0 237

836 SHEET MUSIC STORAGE 150 150 0 0 198

836 SHEET MUSIC STORAGE 150 150 0 0 198

837 MUSIC EQUIPMENT STORAGE 400 400 0 0 528

837 MUSIC EQUIPMENT STORAGE 400 400 0 0 528

840 VOCATIONAL RELATED CLASSROOM 680 680 20 0 897

841 GREENHOUSE 800 800 0 0 1,056

842 KITCHEN (HOME ECONOMICS) 125 125 0 0 165

843 LAUNDRY (HOME ECONOMICS) 50 50 0 0 66

849 VOCATIONAL PROJECT STORAGE 310 310 0 0 409

851 VOCATIONAL TOOL STORAGE (LARGE) 310 310 0 0 409

852 VOCATIONAL TECHNOLOGY RESOURCE CENTER 800 800 0 0 1,056

852 VOCATIONAL TECHNOLOGY RESOURCE CENTER 800 800 0 0 1,056

PAGE:32 of 253 Report Date: 6/8/2021 10:16:11 AM

EDUCATIONAL PLANT FIVE YEAR SURVEY REPORT

Status:

Active Pending

Survey:

Survey: 7 - Version: 1

District:

10-CLAY COUNTY SCHOOL DISTRICT

Page 575 of 962

DRAFT



1,652

Target Number of Stations:

Total Stations:

SENIOR HIGH  (09 - 12)

1,739

1,739

Gross Sq. Feet:

Utilization:

Acres Required:

268,093

1.000

28

Total Capacity:

Spaces Design Grades Description NSF / 
Space

Total 
NSF

Cap. / 
Space

Total 
Stns.

Total 
GSF

29 3 09 - 12 SENIOR HIGH CLASSROOM (9-12) 800 23,200 25 725 31,088

4 12 09 - 12 SENIOR HIGH SKILLS LAB (9-12) 800 3,200 25 100 4,288

4 22 09 - 12 SENIOR HIGH SCIENCE DEMO (9-12) 925 3,700 25 100 4,958

6 23 09 - 12 SENIOR HIGH SCIENCE LAB (9-12) 1,275 7,650 25 150 10,251

7 40 PK - 12 RESOURCE ROOM 290 2,030 10 0 2,720

2 52 09 - 12 ART - SENIOR HIGH 1,590 3,180 30 60 4,261

4 61 PK - 12 E S E PART-TIME 975 3,900 15 60 5,226

4 62 PK - 12 E S E FULL-TIME 950 3,800 10 40 5,092

2 63 PK - 12 E S E VOCATIONAL 1,140 2,280 12 24 3,055

1 64 PK - 12 E S E PT/OT LAB 475 475 5 0 636

5 65 PK - 12 E S E RESOURCE 380 1,900 4 0 2,546

4 66 PK - 12 E S E SUPPLEMENTARY INSTRUCTION 100 400 2 0 536

3 67 PK - 12 E S E OBSERVATION BOOTH 150 450 0 0 603

1 68 PK - 12 E S E TIME-OUT ROOM 40 40 0 0 53

1 69 PK - 12 E S E AUDIOLOGY LAB 250 250 0 0 335

4 70 PK - 12 E S E ITINERANT 200 800 4 0 1,072

1 75 06 - 12 VOCAL MUSIC CLASS (MIDDLE-SR HIGH) 1,425 1,425 25 25 1,909

1 76 06 - 12 BAND CLASS (MIDDLE-SR HIGH) 2,000 2,000 50 50 2,680

1 81 06 - 12 RECORDING ROOM 225 225 5 0 301

1 82 06 - 12 INSTRUMENT REPAIR 0 0 0 0 0

1 90 06 - 12 P E DRESSING ROOM (MALE) 984 984 82 0 1,318

1 91 06 - 12 P E DRESSING ROOM (FEMALE) 984 984 82 0 1,318

1 92 06 - 12 P E LOCKER ROOM (MALE) 164 164 82 0 219

1 93 06 - 12 P E LOCKER ROOM (FEMALE) 164 164 82 0 219

1 94 06 - 12 P E SHOWER (MALE) 164 164 82 0 219

1 95 06 - 12 P E SHOWER (FEMALE) 164 164 82 0 219

1 96 06 - 12 P E DRYING AREA (MALE) 164 164 82 0 219

1 97 06 - 12 P E DRYING AREA (FEMALE) 164 164 82 0 219

1 98 06 - 12 P E STORAGE (MIDDLE-SR HIGH) 738 738 82 0 988

Level:

PAGE:33 of 253 Report Date: 6/8/2021 10:16:11 AM

EDUCATIONAL PLANT FIVE YEAR SURVEY REPORT

Status:

Active Pending

Survey:

Survey: 7 - Version: 1

District:

10-CLAY COUNTY SCHOOL DISTRICT

Page 576 of 962

DRAFT



Spaces Design Grades Description NSF / 
Space

Total 
NSF

Cap. / 
Space

Total 
Stns.

Total 
GSF

1 99 06 - 12 P E TEACHERS SHOWER (MALE) 22 22 1 0 29

1 100 06 - 12 P E TEACHERS SHOWER (FEMALE) 22 22 1 0 29

1 110 06 - 12 P E MULTIPURPOSE ROOM (MIDDLE-SR HIGH) 1,050 1,050 1 0 1,407

1 112 09 - 12 SR HIGH GYMNASIUM 6,500 6,500 70 70 8,710

1 113 06 - 12 GYMNASIUM SEATING 5,280 5,280 165 0 7,075

1 114 06 - 12 P E LAUNDRY 164 164 82 0 219

1 115 06 - 12 P E FIRST AID 164 164 82 0 219

1 116 06 - 12 P E TRAINING ROOM 250 250 1 0 335

1 117 06 - 12 P E WEIGHT ROOM 1,000 1,000 1 0 1,340

1 118 06 - 12 P E WRESTLING ROOM 1,680 1,680 1 0 2,251

1 119 06 - 12 P E GYMNASTICS & DANCE 1,050 1,050 1 0 1,407

1 120 06 - 12 GYMNASIUM STORAGE 246 246 82 0 329

1 202 09 - VE SMALL AGRICULTURE LAB 1,100 1,100 20 20 1,474

3 211 09 - 12 PRACTICAL BUSINESS LAB 1,550 4,650 25 75 6,231

1 231 09 - 12 PRACTICAL HOME ECONOMICS LAB 1,600 1,600 25 25 2,144

2 233 09 - VE MEDIUM HOME ECONOMICS LAB 1,380 2,760 20 40 3,698

1 241 09 - 12 SMALL TECHNOLOGY LAB 1,625 1,625 25 25 2,177

2 245 09 - VE MEDIUM INDUSTRIAL LAB 1,800 3,600 20 40 4,824

2 252 09 - VE SMALL HEALTH LAB 1,200 2,400 20 40 3,216

1 262 09 - VE SMALL PUBLIC SERVICE LAB 800 800 20 20 1,072

1 270 09 - VE WORK EVALUATION LAB 1,110 1,110 15 0 1,487

1 271 09 - VE VPI LAB 705 705 15 0 944

1 300 PK - VE PRINCIPAL/DIRECTOR OFFICE 250 250 0 0 335

8 301 PK - VE ASSISTANT PRINCIPAL/OTHER OFFICE 175 1,400 0 0 1,876

3 302 PK - VE BOOKKEEPING OFFICE 125 375 0 0 502

5 303 PK - VE SECRETARIAL SPACE 158 790 0 0 1,058

1 304 PK - VE RECEPTION AREA 1,394 1,394 82 0 1,867

1 305 PK - VE PRODUCTION WORKROOM 656 656 82 0 879

1 306 PK - VE CONFERENCE ROOM 1,148 1,148 82 0 1,538

1 307 PK - VE CLINIC 492 492 82 0 659

1 308 PK - VE GENERAL SCHOOL STORAGE 820 820 82 0 1,098

1 309 PK - VE VAULT/STUDENT RECORDS 492 492 82 0 659

1 310 PK - VE SCHOOL STORE 164 164 82 0 219

1 311 PK - VE STUDENT ACTIVITIES 820 820 82 0 1,098

PAGE:34 of 253 Report Date: 6/8/2021 10:16:11 AM

EDUCATIONAL PLANT FIVE YEAR SURVEY REPORT

Status:

Active Pending

Survey:

Survey: 7 - Version: 1

District:

10-CLAY COUNTY SCHOOL DISTRICT

Page 577 of 962

DRAFT



Spaces Design Grades Description NSF / 
Space

Total 
NSF

Cap. / 
Space

Total 
Stns.

Total 
GSF

1 312 PK - VE COMPUTER AREA 246 246 82 0 329

1 313 PK - VE CAREERS ROOM 492 492 82 0 659

4 314 PK - VE ITINERANT OFFICE 125 500 0 0 670

1 315 PK - VE TEACHER PLANNING OFFICE 3,300 3,300 165 0 4,422

1 316 PK - VE TEACHER LOUNGE/DINING 660 660 165 0 884

1 330 PK - VE CUSTODIAL RECEIVING 2,475 2,475 165 0 3,316

1 333 PK - VE FLAMMABLE STORAGE 155 155 0 0 207

1 334 PK - VE CUSTODIAL EQUIPMENT STORAGE 500 500 0 0 670

1 340 PK - VE DINING AREA 6,600 6,600 165 0 8,844

1 341 PK - VE KITCHEN & SERVING AREA 7,260 7,260 165 0 9,728

1 349 PK - VE KITCHEN CHAIR STORAGE 328 328 82 0 439

1 351 06 - 12 MIDDLE/SR HIGH COVERED PATIO 5,940 5,940 165 0 7,959

1 361 PK - VE MULTIPURPOSE ROOM (DINING) 5,115 5,115 165 0 6,854

1 362 PK - VE MULTIPURPOSE ROOM CHAIR STORAGE 330 330 165 0 442

1 363 PK - VE STAGE 990 990 1 0 1,326

1 364 PK - VE STAGE STORAGE 825 825 165 0 1,105

1 365 PK - VE STAGE DRESSING ROOM (MALE) 410 410 82 0 549

1 366 PK - VE STAGE DRESSING ROOM (FEMALE) 410 410 82 0 549

1 367 PK - VE CONTROL BOOTH/PROJECTION ROOM 100 100 1 0 134

1 368 PK - VE TEXTBOOK STORAGE 574 574 82 0 769

1 369 06 - VE STUDENT PERSONAL STORAGE 825 825 165 0 1,105

1 370 06 - VE LOBBY 820 820 82 0 1,098

1 371 06 - VE CONCESSIONS 200 200 1 0 268

1 372 06 - VE TICKET BOOTH 30 30 1 0 40

1 380 PK - VE LIBRARY (READING ROOM/STACKS) 6,105 6,105 165 0 8,180

1 381 PK - VE MEDIA TECHNICAL PROCESSING 660 660 165 0 884

1 382 PK - VE PROFESSIONAL LIBRARY 660 660 165 0 884

1 383 PK - VE AUDIO VISUAL STORAGE 990 990 165 0 1,326

1 384 PK - VE PERIODICAL STORAGE 330 330 165 0 442

1 385 PK - VE CLOSED CIRCUIT TV LAB 1,155 1,155 165 0 1,547

1 386 PK - VE CLOSED CIRCUIT STORAGE 825 825 165 0 1,105

1 387 PK - VE MEDIA PRODUCTION LAB 825 825 165 0 1,105

1 388 PK - VE MEDIA COPYING ROOM 330 330 165 0 442

1 389 PK - VE MEDIA SMALL GROUP ROOM 164 164 82 0 219

PAGE:35 of 253 Report Date: 6/8/2021 10:16:11 AM

EDUCATIONAL PLANT FIVE YEAR SURVEY REPORT

Status:

Active Pending

Survey:

Survey: 7 - Version: 1

District:

10-CLAY COUNTY SCHOOL DISTRICT

Page 578 of 962

DRAFT



Spaces Design Grades Description NSF / 
Space

Total 
NSF

Cap. / 
Space

Total 
Stns.

Total 
GSF

1 390 PK - VE MEDIA GROUP PROJECTS/INSTRUCTION 825 825 165 0 1,105

1 391 PK - VE MEDIA MAINTENANCE/REPAIR 164 164 82 0 219

1 704 06 - 12 SUSPENSION/DETENTION 600 600 20 20 804

1 708 09 - 12 JROTC 1,260 1,260 30 30 1,688

800 ARMS ROOM 150 150 0 0 201

801 FIRING RANGE (INDOOR) 2,400 2,400 0 0 3,216

802 INSTRUCTIONAL CONFERENCE ROOM 225 225 0 0 301

802 INSTRUCTIONAL CONFERENCE ROOM 225 225 0 0 301

803 INSTRUCTIONAL DARKROOM 100 200 0 0 268

804 DISPENSARY 135 270 0 0 361

805 KILN 60 120 0 0 160

806 REFERENCE 100 100 0 0 134

806 REFERENCE 100 100 0 0 134

806 REFERENCE 100 100 0 0 134

808 MATERIAL STORAGE 100 100 0 0 134

808 MATERIAL STORAGE 100 100 0 0 134

808 MATERIAL STORAGE 100 100 0 0 134

808 MATERIAL STORAGE 100 100 0 0 134

808 MATERIAL STORAGE 100 200 0 0 268

808 MATERIAL STORAGE 100 200 0 0 268

808 MATERIAL STORAGE 100 100 0 0 134

808 MATERIAL STORAGE 100 200 0 0 268

808 MATERIAL STORAGE 100 100 0 0 134

808 MATERIAL STORAGE 100 300 0 0 402

808 MATERIAL STORAGE 100 100 0 0 134

808 MATERIAL STORAGE 100 400 0 0 536

808 MATERIAL STORAGE 100 400 0 0 536

808 MATERIAL STORAGE 100 100 0 0 134

808 MATERIAL STORAGE 100 100 0 0 134

808 MATERIAL STORAGE 100 200 0 0 268

808 MATERIAL STORAGE 100 400 0 0 536

808 MATERIAL STORAGE 100 600 0 0 804

808 MATERIAL STORAGE 100 400 0 0 536

808 MATERIAL STORAGE 100 400 0 0 536

PAGE:36 of 253 Report Date: 6/8/2021 10:16:11 AM

EDUCATIONAL PLANT FIVE YEAR SURVEY REPORT

Status:

Active Pending

Survey:

Survey: 7 - Version: 1

District:

10-CLAY COUNTY SCHOOL DISTRICT

Page 579 of 962

DRAFT



Spaces Design Grades Description NSF / 
Space

Total 
NSF

Cap. / 
Space

Total 
Stns.

Total 
GSF

808 MATERIAL STORAGE 100 2,900 0 0 3,886

808 MATERIAL STORAGE 100 500 0 0 670

808 MATERIAL STORAGE 100 700 0 0 938

808 MATERIAL STORAGE 100 100 0 0 134

808 MATERIAL STORAGE 100 200 0 0 268

808 MATERIAL STORAGE 100 400 0 0 536

810 MATERIAL STORAGE (LARGE) 395 395 0 0 529

810 MATERIAL STORAGE (LARGE) 395 790 0 0 1,058

810 MATERIAL STORAGE (LARGE) 395 395 0 0 529

812 PROJECT STORAGE 150 300 0 0 402

812 PROJECT STORAGE 150 600 0 0 804

812 PROJECT STORAGE 150 900 0 0 1,206

812 PROJECT STORAGE 150 300 0 0 402

813 STUDENT STORAGE 40 160 0 0 214

813 STUDENT STORAGE 40 160 0 0 214

813 STUDENT STORAGE 40 40 0 0 53

813 STUDENT STORAGE 40 200 0 0 268

815 STUDENT RESTROOM (MALE) 35 140 0 0 187

815 STUDENT RESTROOM (MALE) 35 70 0 0 93

815 STUDENT RESTROOM (MALE) 35 140 0 0 187

4 815 06 - 12 STUDENT RESTROOM (MALE) 164 656 82 0 879

815 STUDENT RESTROOM (MALE) 35 35 0 0 46

816 STUDENT RESTROOM (FEMALE) 35 35 0 0 46

4 816 06 - 12 STUDENT RESTROOM (FEMALE) 164 656 82 0 879

816 STUDENT RESTROOM (FEMALE) 35 140 0 0 187

816 STUDENT RESTROOM (FEMALE) 35 70 0 0 93

816 STUDENT RESTROOM (FEMALE) 35 140 0 0 187

817 STUDENT RESTROOM & BATH 110 440 0 0 589

817 STUDENT RESTROOM & BATH 110 110 0 0 147

818 LOCKERS/RESTROOM/SHOWER (ESE/VOC ED) 225 225 0 0 301

830 MUSIC ENSEMBLE 300 300 0 0 402

830 MUSIC ENSEMBLE 300 300 0 0 402

831 MUSIC PRACTICE ROOM 70 70 0 0 93

831 MUSIC PRACTICE ROOM 70 70 0 0 93

PAGE:37 of 253 Report Date: 6/8/2021 10:16:11 AM

EDUCATIONAL PLANT FIVE YEAR SURVEY REPORT

Status:

Active Pending

Survey:

Survey: 7 - Version: 1

District:

10-CLAY COUNTY SCHOOL DISTRICT

Page 580 of 962

DRAFT



Spaces Design Grades Description NSF / 
Space

Total 
NSF

Cap. / 
Space

Total 
Stns.

Total 
GSF

832 INSTRUMENT STORAGE 600 600 0 0 804

833 ROBE STORAGE 150 150 0 0 201

834 UNIFORM STORAGE 300 300 0 0 402

835 MUSIC STUDIO 180 180 0 0 241

836 SHEET MUSIC STORAGE 150 150 0 0 201

836 SHEET MUSIC STORAGE 150 150 0 0 201

837 MUSIC EQUIPMENT STORAGE 400 400 0 0 536

837 MUSIC EQUIPMENT STORAGE 400 400 0 0 536

840 VOCATIONAL RELATED CLASSROOM 680 680 20 0 911

840 VOCATIONAL RELATED CLASSROOM 680 680 20 0 911

840 VOCATIONAL RELATED CLASSROOM 680 1,360 20 0 1,822

840 VOCATIONAL RELATED CLASSROOM 680 1,360 20 0 1,822

841 GREENHOUSE 800 800 0 0 1,072

842 KITCHEN (HOME ECONOMICS) 125 250 0 0 335

843 LAUNDRY (HOME ECONOMICS) 50 100 0 0 134

843 LAUNDRY (HOME ECONOMICS) 50 50 0 0 67

846 RECEPTION (VOC ED INSTRUCTION) 90 90 0 0 120

847 VOCATIONAL FLAMMABLE STORAGE 125 125 0 0 167

848 VOCATIONAL MACHINERY STORAGE 1,100 1,100 0 0 1,474

849 VOCATIONAL PROJECT STORAGE 310 620 0 0 830

850 VOCATIONAL TOOL STORAGE (SMALL) 195 390 0 0 522

850 VOCATIONAL TOOL STORAGE (SMALL) 195 195 0 0 261

852 VOCATIONAL TECHNOLOGY RESOURCE CENTER 800 800 0 0 1,072

852 VOCATIONAL TECHNOLOGY RESOURCE CENTER 800 1,600 0 0 2,144

852 VOCATIONAL TECHNOLOGY RESOURCE CENTER 800 800 0 0 1,072

853 VOCATIONAL TESTING 250 250 0 0 335

853 VOCATIONAL TESTING 250 250 0 0 335

PAGE:38 of 253 Report Date: 6/8/2021 10:16:11 AM

EDUCATIONAL PLANT FIVE YEAR SURVEY REPORT

Status:

Active Pending

Survey:

Survey: 7 - Version: 1

District:

10-CLAY COUNTY SCHOOL DISTRICT

Page 581 of 962

DRAFT



1,524

Target Number of Stations:

Total Stations:

COMBINATION  (07 - 12)

1,694

1,694

Gross Sq. Feet:

Utilization:

Acres Required:

275,096

1.000

27

Total Capacity:

Spaces Design Grades Description NSF / 
Space

Total 
NSF

Cap. / 
Space

Total 
Stns.

Total 
GSF

12 2 04 - 08 INTERMEDIATE/MIDDLE CLASSROOM (4-8) 858 10,296 22 264 13,796

18 3 09 - 12 SENIOR HIGH CLASSROOM (9-12) 800 14,400 25 450 19,296

2 11 04 - 08 INTERMEDIATE/MIDDLE SKILLS LAB (4-8) 858 1,716 22 44 2,299

2 12 09 - 12 SENIOR HIGH SKILLS LAB (9-12) 800 1,600 25 50 2,144

2 20 04 - 08 INTERMEDIATE/MIDDLE SCIENCE DEMO (4-8) 814 1,628 22 44 2,181

1 21 04 - 08 INTERMEDIATE/MIDDLE SCIENCE LAB (4-8) 1,122 1,122 22 22 1,503

4 22 09 - 12 SENIOR HIGH SCIENCE DEMO (9-12) 925 3,700 25 100 4,958

4 23 09 - 12 SENIOR HIGH SCIENCE LAB (9-12) 1,275 5,100 25 100 6,834

6 40 PK - 12 RESOURCE ROOM 290 1,740 10 0 2,331

1 51 04 - 08 ART - MIDDLE 1,260 1,260 30 30 1,688

2 52 09 - 12 ART - SENIOR HIGH 1,590 3,180 30 60 4,261

3 61 PK - 12 E S E PART-TIME 975 2,925 15 45 3,919

3 62 PK - 12 E S E FULL-TIME 950 2,850 10 30 3,819

2 63 PK - 12 E S E VOCATIONAL 1,140 2,280 12 24 3,055

2 64 PK - 12 E S E PT/OT LAB 475 950 5 0 1,273

5 65 PK - 12 E S E RESOURCE 380 1,900 4 0 2,546

3 66 PK - 12 E S E SUPPLEMENTARY INSTRUCTION 100 300 2 0 402

3 67 PK - 12 E S E OBSERVATION BOOTH 150 450 0 0 603

1 68 PK - 12 E S E TIME-OUT ROOM 40 40 0 0 53

1 69 PK - 12 E S E AUDIOLOGY LAB 250 250 0 0 335

4 70 PK - 12 E S E ITINERANT 200 800 4 0 1,072

1 75 06 - 12 VOCAL MUSIC CLASS (MIDDLE-SR HIGH) 1,425 1,425 25 25 1,909

1 76 06 - 12 BAND CLASS (MIDDLE-SR HIGH) 2,000 2,000 50 50 2,680

1 90 06 - 12 P E DRESSING ROOM (MALE) 912 912 76 0 1,222

1 91 06 - 12 P E DRESSING ROOM (FEMALE) 912 912 76 0 1,222

1 92 06 - 12 P E LOCKER ROOM (MALE) 152 152 76 0 203

1 93 06 - 12 P E LOCKER ROOM (FEMALE) 152 152 76 0 203

1 94 06 - 12 P E SHOWER (MALE) 152 152 76 0 203

1 95 06 - 12 P E SHOWER (FEMALE) 152 152 76 0 203

Level:

PAGE:39 of 253 Report Date: 6/8/2021 10:16:11 AM

EDUCATIONAL PLANT FIVE YEAR SURVEY REPORT

Status:

Active Pending

Survey:

Survey: 7 - Version: 1

District:

10-CLAY COUNTY SCHOOL DISTRICT

Page 582 of 962

DRAFT



Spaces Design Grades Description NSF / 
Space

Total 
NSF

Cap. / 
Space

Total 
Stns.

Total 
GSF

1 96 06 - 12 P E DRYING AREA (MALE) 152 152 76 0 203

1 97 06 - 12 P E DRYING AREA (FEMALE) 152 152 76 0 203

1 98 06 - 12 P E STORAGE (MIDDLE-SR HIGH) 684 684 76 0 916

1 99 06 - 12 P E TEACHERS SHOWER (MALE) 22 22 1 0 29

1 100 06 - 12 P E TEACHERS SHOWER (FEMALE) 22 22 1 0 29

1 110 06 - 12 P E MULTIPURPOSE ROOM (MIDDLE-SR HIGH) 1,050 1,050 1 0 1,407

1 112 09 - 12 SR HIGH GYMNASIUM 6,500 6,500 70 70 8,710

1 113 06 - 12 GYMNASIUM SEATING 4,864 4,864 152 0 6,517

1 114 06 - 12 P E LAUNDRY 152 152 76 0 203

1 115 06 - 12 P E FIRST AID 152 152 76 0 203

1 116 06 - 12 P E TRAINING ROOM 250 250 1 0 335

1 117 06 - 12 P E WEIGHT ROOM 1,000 1,000 1 0 1,340

1 118 06 - 12 P E WRESTLING ROOM 1,680 1,680 1 0 2,251

1 119 06 - 12 P E GYMNASTICS & DANCE 1,050 1,050 1 0 1,407

1 120 06 - 12 GYMNASIUM STORAGE 228 228 76 0 305

2 202 09 - VE SMALL AGRICULTURE LAB 1,100 2,200 20 40 2,948

3 210 06 - 09 BUSINESS EXPLORATION LAB 1,210 3,630 22 66 4,864

1 234 09 - VE LARGE HOME ECONOMICS LAB 2,250 2,250 25 25 3,015

1 245 09 - VE MEDIUM INDUSTRIAL LAB 1,800 1,800 20 20 2,412

2 246 09 - VE LARGE INDUSTRIAL LAB 4,000 8,000 20 40 10,720

1 253 09 - VE MEDIUM HEALTH LAB 2,200 2,200 20 20 2,948

1 261 09 - 12 PRACTICAL PUBLIC SERVICE LAB 1,375 1,375 25 25 1,842

1 270 09 - VE WORK EVALUATION LAB 1,110 1,110 15 0 1,487

1 271 09 - VE VPI LAB 705 705 15 0 944

1 300 PK - VE PRINCIPAL/DIRECTOR OFFICE 250 250 0 0 335

8 301 PK - VE ASSISTANT PRINCIPAL/OTHER OFFICE 175 1,400 0 0 1,876

1 302 PK - VE BOOKKEEPING OFFICE 125 125 0 0 167

5 303 PK - VE SECRETARIAL SPACE 158 790 0 0 1,058

1 304 PK - VE RECEPTION AREA 1,292 1,292 76 0 1,731

1 305 PK - VE PRODUCTION WORKROOM 608 608 76 0 814

1 306 PK - VE CONFERENCE ROOM 1,064 1,064 76 0 1,425

1 307 PK - VE CLINIC 456 456 76 0 611

1 308 PK - VE GENERAL SCHOOL STORAGE 760 760 76 0 1,018

1 309 PK - VE VAULT/STUDENT RECORDS 456 456 76 0 611

PAGE:40 of 253 Report Date: 6/8/2021 10:16:11 AM

EDUCATIONAL PLANT FIVE YEAR SURVEY REPORT

Status:

Active Pending

Survey:

Survey: 7 - Version: 1

District:

10-CLAY COUNTY SCHOOL DISTRICT

Page 583 of 962

DRAFT



Spaces Design Grades Description NSF / 
Space

Total 
NSF

Cap. / 
Space

Total 
Stns.

Total 
GSF

1 310 PK - VE SCHOOL STORE 152 152 76 0 203

1 311 PK - VE STUDENT ACTIVITIES 760 760 76 0 1,018

1 312 PK - VE COMPUTER AREA 228 228 76 0 305

1 313 PK - VE CAREERS ROOM 456 456 76 0 611

4 314 PK - VE ITINERANT OFFICE 125 500 0 0 670

1 315 PK - VE TEACHER PLANNING OFFICE 3,040 3,040 152 0 4,073

1 316 PK - VE TEACHER LOUNGE/DINING 608 608 152 0 814

1 330 PK - VE CUSTODIAL RECEIVING 2,280 2,280 152 0 3,055

1 333 PK - VE FLAMMABLE STORAGE 155 155 0 0 207

1 334 PK - VE CUSTODIAL EQUIPMENT STORAGE 500 500 0 0 670

1 340 PK - VE DINING AREA 6,080 6,080 152 0 8,147

1 341 PK - VE KITCHEN & SERVING AREA 6,688 6,688 152 0 8,961

1 349 PK - VE KITCHEN CHAIR STORAGE 304 304 76 0 407

1 351 06 - 12 MIDDLE/SR HIGH COVERED PATIO 5,472 5,472 152 0 7,332

1 361 PK - VE MULTIPURPOSE ROOM (DINING) 4,712 4,712 152 0 6,314

1 362 PK - VE MULTIPURPOSE ROOM CHAIR STORAGE 304 304 152 0 407

1 363 PK - VE STAGE 990 990 1 0 1,326

1 364 PK - VE STAGE STORAGE 760 760 152 0 1,018

1 365 PK - VE STAGE DRESSING ROOM (MALE) 380 380 76 0 509

1 366 PK - VE STAGE DRESSING ROOM (FEMALE) 380 380 76 0 509

1 367 PK - VE CONTROL BOOTH/PROJECTION ROOM 100 100 1 0 134

1 368 PK - VE TEXTBOOK STORAGE 532 532 76 0 712

1 369 06 - VE STUDENT PERSONAL STORAGE 760 760 152 0 1,018

1 370 06 - VE LOBBY 760 760 76 0 1,018

1 371 06 - VE CONCESSIONS 200 200 1 0 268

1 372 06 - VE TICKET BOOTH 30 30 1 0 40

1 380 PK - VE LIBRARY (READING ROOM/STACKS) 5,624 5,624 152 0 7,536

1 381 PK - VE MEDIA TECHNICAL PROCESSING 608 608 152 0 814

1 382 PK - VE PROFESSIONAL LIBRARY 608 608 152 0 814

1 383 PK - VE AUDIO VISUAL STORAGE 912 912 152 0 1,222

1 384 PK - VE PERIODICAL STORAGE 304 304 152 0 407

1 385 PK - VE CLOSED CIRCUIT TV LAB 1,064 1,064 152 0 1,425

1 386 PK - VE CLOSED CIRCUIT STORAGE 760 760 152 0 1,018

1 387 PK - VE MEDIA PRODUCTION LAB 760 760 152 0 1,018

PAGE:41 of 253 Report Date: 6/8/2021 10:16:11 AM

EDUCATIONAL PLANT FIVE YEAR SURVEY REPORT

Status:

Active Pending

Survey:

Survey: 7 - Version: 1

District:

10-CLAY COUNTY SCHOOL DISTRICT

Page 584 of 962

DRAFT



Spaces Design Grades Description NSF / 
Space

Total 
NSF

Cap. / 
Space

Total 
Stns.

Total 
GSF

1 388 PK - VE MEDIA COPYING ROOM 304 304 152 0 407

1 389 PK - VE MEDIA SMALL GROUP ROOM 152 152 76 0 203

1 390 PK - VE MEDIA GROUP PROJECTS/INSTRUCTION 760 760 152 0 1,018

1 391 PK - VE MEDIA MAINTENANCE/REPAIR 152 152 76 0 203

1 704 06 - 12 SUSPENSION/DETENTION 600 600 20 20 804

1 708 09 - 12 JROTC 1,260 1,260 30 30 1,688

800 ARMS ROOM 150 150 0 0 201

801 FIRING RANGE (INDOOR) 2,400 2,400 0 0 3,216

802 INSTRUCTIONAL CONFERENCE ROOM 225 225 0 0 301

802 INSTRUCTIONAL CONFERENCE ROOM 225 225 0 0 301

803 INSTRUCTIONAL DARKROOM 100 200 0 0 268

803 INSTRUCTIONAL DARKROOM 100 100 0 0 134

804 DISPENSARY 135 135 0 0 180

805 KILN 60 60 0 0 80

805 KILN 60 120 0 0 160

806 REFERENCE 100 100 0 0 134

806 REFERENCE 100 200 0 0 268

806 REFERENCE 100 100 0 0 134

806 REFERENCE 100 100 0 0 134

808 MATERIAL STORAGE 100 100 0 0 134

808 MATERIAL STORAGE 100 100 0 0 134

808 MATERIAL STORAGE 100 100 0 0 134

808 MATERIAL STORAGE 100 200 0 0 268

808 MATERIAL STORAGE 100 100 0 0 134

808 MATERIAL STORAGE 100 300 0 0 402

808 MATERIAL STORAGE 100 100 0 0 134

808 MATERIAL STORAGE 100 100 0 0 134

808 MATERIAL STORAGE 100 400 0 0 536

808 MATERIAL STORAGE 100 300 0 0 402

808 MATERIAL STORAGE 100 100 0 0 134

808 MATERIAL STORAGE 100 500 0 0 670

808 MATERIAL STORAGE 100 600 0 0 804

808 MATERIAL STORAGE 100 200 0 0 268

808 MATERIAL STORAGE 100 200 0 0 268

PAGE:42 of 253 Report Date: 6/8/2021 10:16:11 AM

EDUCATIONAL PLANT FIVE YEAR SURVEY REPORT

Status:

Active Pending

Survey:

Survey: 7 - Version: 1

District:

10-CLAY COUNTY SCHOOL DISTRICT

Page 585 of 962

DRAFT



Spaces Design Grades Description NSF / 
Space

Total 
NSF

Cap. / 
Space

Total 
Stns.

Total 
GSF

808 MATERIAL STORAGE 100 300 0 0 402

808 MATERIAL STORAGE 100 200 0 0 268

808 MATERIAL STORAGE 100 300 0 0 402

808 MATERIAL STORAGE 100 100 0 0 134

808 MATERIAL STORAGE 100 400 0 0 536

808 MATERIAL STORAGE 100 400 0 0 536

808 MATERIAL STORAGE 100 100 0 0 134

808 MATERIAL STORAGE 100 200 0 0 268

808 MATERIAL STORAGE 100 200 0 0 268

808 MATERIAL STORAGE 100 1,800 0 0 2,412

808 MATERIAL STORAGE 100 200 0 0 268

808 MATERIAL STORAGE 100 1,200 0 0 1,608

808 MATERIAL STORAGE 100 100 0 0 134

808 MATERIAL STORAGE 100 100 0 0 134

810 MATERIAL STORAGE (LARGE) 395 790 0 0 1,058

810 MATERIAL STORAGE (LARGE) 395 395 0 0 529

810 MATERIAL STORAGE (LARGE) 395 790 0 0 1,058

810 MATERIAL STORAGE (LARGE) 395 395 0 0 529

810 MATERIAL STORAGE (LARGE) 395 395 0 0 529

811 OUTSIDE STORAGE 50 600 0 0 804

812 PROJECT STORAGE 150 300 0 0 402

812 PROJECT STORAGE 150 150 0 0 201

812 PROJECT STORAGE 150 600 0 0 804

812 PROJECT STORAGE 150 600 0 0 804

812 PROJECT STORAGE 150 150 0 0 201

812 PROJECT STORAGE 150 300 0 0 402

812 PROJECT STORAGE 150 150 0 0 201

812 PROJECT STORAGE 150 150 0 0 201

813 STUDENT STORAGE 40 120 0 0 160

813 STUDENT STORAGE 40 120 0 0 160

813 STUDENT STORAGE 40 80 0 0 107

813 STUDENT STORAGE 40 200 0 0 268

815 STUDENT RESTROOM (MALE) 35 105 0 0 140

815 STUDENT RESTROOM (MALE) 35 70 0 0 93

PAGE:43 of 253 Report Date: 6/8/2021 10:16:11 AM

EDUCATIONAL PLANT FIVE YEAR SURVEY REPORT

Status:

Active Pending

Survey:

Survey: 7 - Version: 1

District:

10-CLAY COUNTY SCHOOL DISTRICT

Page 586 of 962

DRAFT



Spaces Design Grades Description NSF / 
Space

Total 
NSF

Cap. / 
Space

Total 
Stns.

Total 
GSF

815 STUDENT RESTROOM (MALE) 35 105 0 0 140

815 STUDENT RESTROOM (MALE) 35 420 0 0 562

815 STUDENT RESTROOM (MALE) 35 70 0 0 93

815 STUDENT RESTROOM (MALE) 35 35 0 0 46

12 815 06 - 12 STUDENT RESTROOM (MALE) 152 1,824 76 0 2,444

12 816 06 - 12 STUDENT RESTROOM (FEMALE) 152 1,824 76 0 2,444

816 STUDENT RESTROOM (FEMALE) 35 35 0 0 46

816 STUDENT RESTROOM (FEMALE) 35 70 0 0 93

816 STUDENT RESTROOM (FEMALE) 35 420 0 0 562

816 STUDENT RESTROOM (FEMALE) 35 105 0 0 140

816 STUDENT RESTROOM (FEMALE) 35 70 0 0 93

816 STUDENT RESTROOM (FEMALE) 35 105 0 0 140

817 STUDENT RESTROOM & BATH 110 330 0 0 442

817 STUDENT RESTROOM & BATH 110 220 0 0 294

818 LOCKERS/RESTROOM/SHOWER (ESE/VOC ED) 225 450 0 0 603

830 MUSIC ENSEMBLE 300 300 0 0 402

830 MUSIC ENSEMBLE 300 300 0 0 402

831 MUSIC PRACTICE ROOM 70 70 0 0 93

831 MUSIC PRACTICE ROOM 70 70 0 0 93

832 INSTRUMENT STORAGE 600 600 0 0 804

833 ROBE STORAGE 150 150 0 0 201

834 UNIFORM STORAGE 300 300 0 0 402

835 MUSIC STUDIO 180 180 0 0 241

836 SHEET MUSIC STORAGE 150 150 0 0 201

836 SHEET MUSIC STORAGE 150 150 0 0 201

837 MUSIC EQUIPMENT STORAGE 400 400 0 0 536

837 MUSIC EQUIPMENT STORAGE 400 400 0 0 536

840 VOCATIONAL RELATED CLASSROOM 680 1,360 20 0 1,822

840 VOCATIONAL RELATED CLASSROOM 680 680 20 0 911

840 VOCATIONAL RELATED CLASSROOM 680 1,360 20 0 1,822

840 VOCATIONAL RELATED CLASSROOM 680 680 20 0 911

840 VOCATIONAL RELATED CLASSROOM 680 680 20 0 911

841 GREENHOUSE 800 1,600 0 0 2,144

842 KITCHEN (HOME ECONOMICS) 125 125 0 0 167

PAGE:44 of 253 Report Date: 6/8/2021 10:16:11 AM

EDUCATIONAL PLANT FIVE YEAR SURVEY REPORT

Status:

Active Pending

Survey:

Survey: 7 - Version: 1

District:

10-CLAY COUNTY SCHOOL DISTRICT

Page 587 of 962

DRAFT



Spaces Design Grades Description NSF / 
Space

Total 
NSF

Cap. / 
Space

Total 
Stns.

Total 
GSF

843 LAUNDRY (HOME ECONOMICS) 50 50 0 0 67

846 RECEPTION (VOC ED INSTRUCTION) 90 90 0 0 120

847 VOCATIONAL FLAMMABLE STORAGE 125 250 0 0 335

847 VOCATIONAL FLAMMABLE STORAGE 125 250 0 0 335

848 VOCATIONAL MACHINERY STORAGE 1,100 2,200 0 0 2,948

849 VOCATIONAL PROJECT STORAGE 310 620 0 0 830

849 VOCATIONAL PROJECT STORAGE 310 310 0 0 415

849 VOCATIONAL PROJECT STORAGE 310 310 0 0 415

850 VOCATIONAL TOOL STORAGE (SMALL) 195 195 0 0 261

850 VOCATIONAL TOOL STORAGE (SMALL) 195 390 0 0 522

850 VOCATIONAL TOOL STORAGE (SMALL) 195 390 0 0 522

852 VOCATIONAL TECHNOLOGY RESOURCE CENTER 800 800 0 0 1,072

853 VOCATIONAL TESTING 250 250 0 0 335

853 VOCATIONAL TESTING 250 250 0 0 335

PAGE:45 of 253 Report Date: 6/8/2021 10:16:11 AM

EDUCATIONAL PLANT FIVE YEAR SURVEY REPORT

Status:

Active Pending

Survey:

Survey: 7 - Version: 1

District:

10-CLAY COUNTY SCHOOL DISTRICT

Page 588 of 962

DRAFT



509

Target Number of Stations:

Total Stations:

ALTERNATIVE EDUCATION  (KG - 12)

509

509

Gross Sq. Feet:

Utilization:

Acres Required:

84,137

1.000

12

Total Capacity:

Spaces Design Grades Description NSF / 
Space

Total 
NSF

Cap. / 
Space

Total 
Stns.

Total 
GSF

4 2 04 - 08 INTERMEDIATE/MIDDLE CLASSROOM (4-8) 858 3,432 22 88 4,598

5 3 09 - 12 SENIOR HIGH CLASSROOM (9-12) 800 4,000 25 125 5,360

2 10 PK - 03 PRIMARY SKILLS LAB (K-3) 882 1,764 18 0 2,363

2 11 04 - 08 INTERMEDIATE/MIDDLE SKILLS LAB (4-8) 858 1,716 22 44 2,299

2 12 09 - 12 SENIOR HIGH SKILLS LAB (9-12) 800 1,600 25 50 2,144

1 14 PK - 05 ELEMENTARY COVERED PLAY AREA 1,800 1,800 50 0 2,412

1 22 09 - 12 SENIOR HIGH SCIENCE DEMO (9-12) 925 925 25 25 1,239

2 40 PK - 12 RESOURCE ROOM 290 580 10 0 777

1 50 PK - 05 ART - ELEMENTARY 1,000 1,000 22 0 1,340

1 55 PK - 05 MUSIC - ELEMENTARY 1,000 1,000 22 0 1,340

1 61 PK - 12 E S E PART-TIME 975 975 15 15 1,306

1 62 PK - 12 E S E FULL-TIME 950 950 10 10 1,273

1 63 PK - 12 E S E VOCATIONAL 1,140 1,140 12 12 1,527

2 64 PK - 12 E S E PT/OT LAB 475 950 5 0 1,273

2 65 PK - 12 E S E RESOURCE 380 760 4 0 1,018

1 66 PK - 12 E S E SUPPLEMENTARY INSTRUCTION 100 100 2 0 134

3 67 PK - 12 E S E OBSERVATION BOOTH 150 450 0 0 603

1 68 PK - 12 E S E TIME-OUT ROOM 40 40 0 0 53

1 69 PK - 12 E S E AUDIOLOGY LAB 250 250 0 0 335

6 70 PK - 12 E S E ITINERANT 200 1,200 4 0 1,608

1 211 09 - 12 PRACTICAL BUSINESS LAB 1,550 1,550 25 25 2,077

1 231 09 - 12 PRACTICAL HOME ECONOMICS LAB 1,600 1,600 25 25 2,144

1 241 09 - 12 SMALL TECHNOLOGY LAB 1,625 1,625 25 25 2,177

1 244 09 - VE SMALL INDUSTRIAL LAB 1,100 1,100 20 20 1,474

1 251 09 - 12 PRACTICAL HEALTH LAB 1,400 1,400 25 25 1,876

1 270 09 - VE WORK EVALUATION LAB 1,110 1,110 15 0 1,487

1 271 09 - VE VPI LAB 705 705 15 0 944

1 300 PK - VE PRINCIPAL/DIRECTOR OFFICE 250 250 0 0 335

1 301 PK - VE ASSISTANT PRINCIPAL/OTHER OFFICE 175 175 0 0 234

Level:

PAGE:46 of 253 Report Date: 6/8/2021 10:16:11 AM

EDUCATIONAL PLANT FIVE YEAR SURVEY REPORT

Status:

Active Pending

Survey:

Survey: 7 - Version: 1

District:

10-CLAY COUNTY SCHOOL DISTRICT

Page 589 of 962

DRAFT



Spaces Design Grades Description NSF / 
Space

Total 
NSF

Cap. / 
Space

Total 
Stns.

Total 
GSF

1 302 PK - VE BOOKKEEPING OFFICE 125 125 0 0 167

1 303 PK - VE SECRETARIAL SPACE 158 158 0 0 211

1 304 PK - VE RECEPTION AREA 425 425 25 0 569

1 305 PK - VE PRODUCTION WORKROOM 200 200 25 0 268

1 306 PK - VE CONFERENCE ROOM 350 350 25 0 469

1 307 PK - VE CLINIC 150 150 25 0 201

1 308 PK - VE GENERAL SCHOOL STORAGE 250 250 25 0 335

1 309 PK - VE VAULT/STUDENT RECORDS 150 150 25 0 201

1 310 PK - VE SCHOOL STORE 50 50 25 0 67

1 311 PK - VE STUDENT ACTIVITIES 250 250 25 0 335

1 312 PK - VE COMPUTER AREA 75 75 25 0 100

1 313 PK - VE CAREERS ROOM 150 150 25 0 201

2 314 PK - VE ITINERANT OFFICE 125 250 0 0 335

1 315 PK - VE TEACHER PLANNING OFFICE 1,000 1,000 50 0 1,340

1 316 PK - VE TEACHER LOUNGE/DINING 200 200 50 0 268

1 330 PK - VE CUSTODIAL RECEIVING 750 750 50 0 1,005

1 333 PK - VE FLAMMABLE STORAGE 155 155 0 0 207

1 334 PK - VE CUSTODIAL EQUIPMENT STORAGE 500 500 0 0 670

1 340 PK - VE DINING AREA 2,000 2,000 50 0 2,680

1 341 PK - VE KITCHEN & SERVING AREA 2,200 2,200 50 0 2,948

1 349 PK - VE KITCHEN CHAIR STORAGE 100 100 25 0 134

1 361 PK - VE MULTIPURPOSE ROOM (DINING) 1,550 1,550 50 0 2,077

1 362 PK - VE MULTIPURPOSE ROOM CHAIR STORAGE 100 100 50 0 134

1 363 PK - VE STAGE 990 990 1 0 1,326

1 364 PK - VE STAGE STORAGE 250 250 50 0 335

1 365 PK - VE STAGE DRESSING ROOM (MALE) 125 125 25 0 167

1 366 PK - VE STAGE DRESSING ROOM (FEMALE) 125 125 25 0 167

1 367 PK - VE CONTROL BOOTH/PROJECTION ROOM 100 100 1 0 134

1 368 PK - VE TEXTBOOK STORAGE 175 175 25 0 234

1 369 06 - VE STUDENT PERSONAL STORAGE 250 250 50 0 335

1 380 PK - VE LIBRARY (READING ROOM/STACKS) 1,850 1,850 50 0 2,479

1 381 PK - VE MEDIA TECHNICAL PROCESSING 200 200 50 0 268

1 382 PK - VE PROFESSIONAL LIBRARY 200 200 50 0 268

1 383 PK - VE AUDIO VISUAL STORAGE 300 300 50 0 402

PAGE:47 of 253 Report Date: 6/8/2021 10:16:11 AM

EDUCATIONAL PLANT FIVE YEAR SURVEY REPORT

Status:

Active Pending

Survey:

Survey: 7 - Version: 1

District:

10-CLAY COUNTY SCHOOL DISTRICT

Page 590 of 962

DRAFT



Spaces Design Grades Description NSF / 
Space

Total 
NSF

Cap. / 
Space

Total 
Stns.

Total 
GSF

1 384 PK - VE PERIODICAL STORAGE 100 100 50 0 134

1 385 PK - VE CLOSED CIRCUIT TV LAB 350 350 50 0 469

1 386 PK - VE CLOSED CIRCUIT STORAGE 250 250 50 0 335

1 387 PK - VE MEDIA PRODUCTION LAB 250 250 50 0 335

1 388 PK - VE MEDIA COPYING ROOM 100 100 50 0 134

1 389 PK - VE MEDIA SMALL GROUP ROOM 50 50 25 0 67

1 390 PK - VE MEDIA GROUP PROJECTS/INSTRUCTION 250 250 50 0 335

1 391 PK - VE MEDIA MAINTENANCE/REPAIR 50 50 25 0 67

1 704 06 - 12 SUSPENSION/DETENTION 600 600 20 20 804

802 INSTRUCTIONAL CONFERENCE ROOM 225 225 0 0 301

806 REFERENCE 100 100 0 0 134

808 MATERIAL STORAGE 100 100 0 0 134

808 MATERIAL STORAGE 100 100 0 0 134

808 MATERIAL STORAGE 100 100 0 0 134

808 MATERIAL STORAGE 100 100 0 0 134

808 MATERIAL STORAGE 100 100 0 0 134

808 MATERIAL STORAGE 100 100 0 0 134

808 MATERIAL STORAGE 100 100 0 0 134

808 MATERIAL STORAGE 100 600 0 0 804

808 MATERIAL STORAGE 100 100 0 0 134

808 MATERIAL STORAGE 100 100 0 0 134

808 MATERIAL STORAGE 100 100 0 0 134

808 MATERIAL STORAGE 100 100 0 0 134

808 MATERIAL STORAGE 100 200 0 0 268

808 MATERIAL STORAGE 100 100 0 0 134

808 MATERIAL STORAGE 100 200 0 0 268

808 MATERIAL STORAGE 100 100 0 0 134

808 MATERIAL STORAGE 100 100 0 0 134

808 MATERIAL STORAGE 100 200 0 0 268

808 MATERIAL STORAGE 100 100 0 0 134

808 MATERIAL STORAGE 100 200 0 0 268

808 MATERIAL STORAGE 100 500 0 0 670

808 MATERIAL STORAGE 100 200 0 0 268

808 MATERIAL STORAGE 100 200 0 0 268

PAGE:48 of 253 Report Date: 6/8/2021 10:16:11 AM

EDUCATIONAL PLANT FIVE YEAR SURVEY REPORT

Status:

Active Pending

Survey:

Survey: 7 - Version: 1

District:

10-CLAY COUNTY SCHOOL DISTRICT

Page 591 of 962

DRAFT



Spaces Design Grades Description NSF / 
Space

Total 
NSF

Cap. / 
Space

Total 
Stns.

Total 
GSF

808 MATERIAL STORAGE 100 400 0 0 536

810 MATERIAL STORAGE (LARGE) 395 395 0 0 529

811 OUTSIDE STORAGE 50 200 0 0 268

812 PROJECT STORAGE 150 150 0 0 201

812 PROJECT STORAGE 150 150 0 0 201

813 STUDENT STORAGE 40 40 0 0 53

813 STUDENT STORAGE 40 80 0 0 107

813 STUDENT STORAGE 40 80 0 0 107

813 STUDENT STORAGE 40 40 0 0 53

813 STUDENT STORAGE 40 80 0 0 107

814 STUDENT RESTROOM (BOTH SEXES) 60 120 0 0 160

815 STUDENT RESTROOM (MALE) 35 140 0 0 187

815 STUDENT RESTROOM (MALE) 35 70 0 0 93

815 STUDENT RESTROOM (MALE) 35 35 0 0 46

815 STUDENT RESTROOM (MALE) 35 35 0 0 46

815 STUDENT RESTROOM (MALE) 35 35 0 0 46

815 STUDENT RESTROOM (MALE) 35 35 0 0 46

4 815 06 - 12 STUDENT RESTROOM (MALE) 50 200 25 0 268

4 816 06 - 12 STUDENT RESTROOM (FEMALE) 50 200 25 0 268

816 STUDENT RESTROOM (FEMALE) 35 35 0 0 46

816 STUDENT RESTROOM (FEMALE) 35 35 0 0 46

816 STUDENT RESTROOM (FEMALE) 35 35 0 0 46

816 STUDENT RESTROOM (FEMALE) 35 35 0 0 46

816 STUDENT RESTROOM (FEMALE) 35 70 0 0 93

816 STUDENT RESTROOM (FEMALE) 35 140 0 0 187

817 STUDENT RESTROOM & BATH 110 110 0 0 147

817 STUDENT RESTROOM & BATH 110 220 0 0 294

831 MUSIC PRACTICE ROOM 70 70 0 0 93

840 VOCATIONAL RELATED CLASSROOM 680 680 20 0 911

840 VOCATIONAL RELATED CLASSROOM 680 680 20 0 911

843 LAUNDRY (HOME ECONOMICS) 50 50 0 0 67

846 RECEPTION (VOC ED INSTRUCTION) 90 90 0 0 120

852 VOCATIONAL TECHNOLOGY RESOURCE CENTER 800 800 0 0 1,072

852 VOCATIONAL TECHNOLOGY RESOURCE CENTER 800 800 0 0 1,072

PAGE:49 of 253 Report Date: 6/8/2021 10:16:11 AM

EDUCATIONAL PLANT FIVE YEAR SURVEY REPORT

Status:

Active Pending

Survey:

Survey: 7 - Version: 1

District:

10-CLAY COUNTY SCHOOL DISTRICT

Page 592 of 962

DRAFT



Spaces Design Grades Description NSF / 
Space

Total 
NSF

Cap. / 
Space

Total 
Stns.

Total 
GSF

853 VOCATIONAL TESTING 250 250 0 0 335

853 VOCATIONAL TESTING 250 250 0 0 335

PAGE:50 of 253 Report Date: 6/8/2021 10:16:11 AM

EDUCATIONAL PLANT FIVE YEAR SURVEY REPORT

Status:

Active Pending

Survey:

Survey: 7 - Version: 1

District:

10-CLAY COUNTY SCHOOL DISTRICT

Page 593 of 962

DRAFT



0

Target Number of Stations:

Total Stations:

COUNTY ADMINISTRATION  (CA - CA)

0

0

Gross Sq. Feet:

Utilization:

Acres Required:

101,972

0.000

7

Total Capacity:

Spaces Design Grades Description NSF / 
Space

Total 
NSF

Cap. / 
Space

Total 
Stns.

Total 
GSF

1 400 CA - DS SUPERINTENDENTS OFFICE 0 0 0 0 0

7 401 CA - DS ANCILLARY CONFERENCE ROOM 0 0 0 0 0

1 402 CA - DS SUPERINTENDENTS SECRETARY 0 0 0 0 0

12 403 CA - DS ANCILLARY SECRETARIAL/CLERICAL OFFICE 0 0 0 0 0

3 404 CA - DS ANCILLARY RECEPTION AREA 0 0 0 0 0

1 405 CA - DS VAULT 0 0 0 0 0

3 406 CA - DS ASSISTANT SUPERINTENDENTS OFFICE 0 0 0 0 0

35 407 CA - DS ANCILLARY ADMINISTRATIVE OFFICE 0 0 0 0 0

11 408 CA - DS BUSINESS OPERATIONS WORK AREA 0 0 0 0 0

1 409 CA - DS BUSINESS OPERATIONS STORAGE 0 0 0 0 0

1 411 CA - DS WORD PROCESSING CENTER 0 0 0 0 0

1 412 CA - DS PERSONNEL SERVICES 0 0 0 0 0

4 413 CA - DS CENTRAL REPRODUCTION & COPY 0 0 0 0 0

1 414 CA - DS CENTRAL ADMINISTRATIVE SUPPLY 0 0 0 0 0

1 415 CA - DS MAIL ROOM 0 0 0 0 0

8 416 CA - DS ANCILLARY CUSTODIAL SERVICES 0 0 0 0 0

1 417 CA - DS CENTRAL SECURITY OFFICE 0 0 0 0 0

28 418 CA - DS ANCILLARY ADMINISTRATIVE STORAGE 0 0 0 0 0

1 419 CA - DS ANCILLARY FLAMMABLE STORAGE 0 0 0 0 0

1 420 CA - DS SCHOOL BOARD MEETING ROOM 0 0 0 0 0

4 421 CA - DS ANCILLARY STAFF LOUNGE 0 0 0 0 0

1 422 CA - DS MAIN LOBBY & SWITCHBOARD 0 0 0 0 0

6 424 CA - DS DIRECTORS OFFICE 0 0 0 0 0

1 425 CA - DS ASSISTANT DIRECTORS OFFICE 0 0 0 0 0

1 426 CA - DS GENERAL ANCILLARY OFFICE 0 0 0 0 0

8 427 CA - DS STAFF DEVELOPMENT/INSTRUCTION 0 0 0 0 0

16 428 CA - DS OTHER ANCILLARY ADMINISTRATIVE SUPPORT 0 0 0 0 0

1 500 CA - DS PROGRAMMER ROOM 0 0 0 0 0

1 501 CA - DS DATA PROCESSING TECHNICAL AREA 0 0 0 0 0

Level:

PAGE:51 of 253 Report Date: 6/8/2021 10:16:11 AM

EDUCATIONAL PLANT FIVE YEAR SURVEY REPORT

Status:

Active Pending

Survey:

Survey: 7 - Version: 1

District:

10-CLAY COUNTY SCHOOL DISTRICT

Page 594 of 962

DRAFT



Spaces Design Grades Description NSF / 
Space

Total 
NSF

Cap. / 
Space

Total 
Stns.

Total 
GSF

2 502 CA - DS DATA PROCESSING EQUIPMENT 0 0 0 0 0

1 503 CA - DS COMPUTER ROOM (RAISED FLOOR) 0 0 0 0 0

1 504 CA - DS OFF-LINE EQUIPMENT 0 0 0 0 0

1 505 CA - DS ANCILLARY COMPUTER STORAGE 0 0 0 0 0

1 506 CA - DS OTHER CENTRAL EQUIPMENT SUPPORT 0 0 0 0 0

1 510 CA - DS WAREHOUSE STORAGE 0 0 0 0 0

1 594 CA - DS ANCILLARY SUPPORT STORAGE 0 0 0 0 0

1 600 CA - DS ANCILLARY LIBRARY WAREHOUSE/STACKS 0 0 0 0 0

1 601 CA - DS ANCILLARY LIBRARY REFERENCE 0 0 0 0 0

1 602 CA - DS ANCILLARY PROFESSIONAL LIBRARY 0 0 0 0 0

1 603 CA - DS ANCILLARY PERIODICAL/JOURNAL SERVICES 0 0 0 0 0

1 604 CA - DS ANCILLARY MEDIA PROCESSING 0 0 0 0 0

1 605 CA - DS ANCILLARY AUDIO VISUAL EQUIPMENT 0 0 0 0 0

1 606 CA - DS ANCILLARY CLOSED CIRCUIT TV LABORATORY 0 0 0 0 0

1 607 CA - DS ANCILLARY CLOSED CIRCUIT TV SUPPORT 0 0 0 0 0

1 608 CA - DS ANCILLARY MEDIA PRODUCTION LABORATORY 0 0 0 0 0

1 609 CA - DS ANCILLARY MEDIA COPYING ROOM 0 0 0 0 0

1 610 CA - DS ANCILLARY MEDIA MAINTENANCE/REPAIR 0 0 0 0 0

1 611 CA - DS ANCILLARY MEDIA STORAGE 0 0 0 0 0

1 612 CA - DS OTHER ANCILLARY MEDIA SPACE 0 0 0 0 0

5 702 CA - DS MECHANICAL ROOM 0 0 0 0 0

3 707 CA - DS TELEPHONE EQUIPMENT/COMMUNICATION CLOSET 0 0 0 0 0

8 824 CA - DS ANCILLARY RESTROOM (MALE) 0 0 0 0 0

7 825 CA - DS ANCILLARY RESTROOM (FEMALE) 0 0 0 0 0

PAGE:52 of 253 Report Date: 6/8/2021 10:16:11 AM

EDUCATIONAL PLANT FIVE YEAR SURVEY REPORT

Status:

Active Pending

Survey:

Survey: 7 - Version: 1

District:

10-CLAY COUNTY SCHOOL DISTRICT

Page 595 of 962

DRAFT



0

Target Number of Stations:

Total Stations:

MULTIPLE USE SUPPORT  (DS - DS)

0

0

Gross Sq. Feet:

Utilization:

Acres Required:

106,221

0.000

7

Total Capacity:

Spaces Design Grades Description NSF / 
Space

Total 
NSF

Cap. / 
Space

Total 
Stns.

Total 
GSF

4 401 CA - DS ANCILLARY CONFERENCE ROOM 0 0 0 0 0

21 403 CA - DS ANCILLARY SECRETARIAL/CLERICAL OFFICE 0 0 0 0 0

6 404 CA - DS ANCILLARY RECEPTION AREA 0 0 0 0 0

1 406 CA - DS ASSISTANT SUPERINTENDENTS OFFICE 0 0 0 0 0

34 407 CA - DS ANCILLARY ADMINISTRATIVE OFFICE 0 0 0 0 0

1 409 CA - DS BUSINESS OPERATIONS STORAGE 0 0 0 0 0

1 410 CA - DS SCHOOL PLANT PLANNING 0 0 0 0 0

1 413 CA - DS CENTRAL REPRODUCTION & COPY 0 0 0 0 0

1 414 CA - DS CENTRAL ADMINISTRATIVE SUPPLY 0 0 0 0 0

1 415 CA - DS MAIL ROOM 0 0 0 0 0

3 416 CA - DS ANCILLARY CUSTODIAL SERVICES 0 0 0 0 0

20 418 CA - DS ANCILLARY ADMINISTRATIVE STORAGE 0 0 0 0 0

2 419 CA - DS ANCILLARY FLAMMABLE STORAGE 0 0 0 0 0

3 421 CA - DS ANCILLARY STAFF LOUNGE 0 0 0 0 0

1 422 CA - DS MAIN LOBBY & SWITCHBOARD 0 0 0 0 0

4 424 CA - DS DIRECTORS OFFICE 0 0 0 0 0

7 426 CA - DS GENERAL ANCILLARY OFFICE 0 0 0 0 0

1 427 CA - DS STAFF DEVELOPMENT/INSTRUCTION 0 0 0 0 0

3 428 CA - DS OTHER ANCILLARY ADMINISTRATIVE SUPPORT 0 0 0 0 0

1 500 CA - DS PROGRAMMER ROOM 0 0 0 0 0

1 505 CA - DS ANCILLARY COMPUTER STORAGE 0 0 0 0 0

12 510 CA - DS WAREHOUSE STORAGE 0 0 0 0 0

1 515 CA - DS CENTRAL KITCHEN 0 0 0 0 0

1 520 CA - DS CARPENTRY SHOP 0 0 0 0 0

1 525 CA - DS GLAZING SHOP 0 0 0 0 0

1 530 CA - DS MASONRY SHOP 0 0 0 0 0

1 535 CA - DS SMALL ENGINE SHOP 0 0 0 0 0

1 540 CA - DS ELECTRONICS SHOP 0 0 0 0 0

1 545 CA - DS ELECTRICAL SHOP 0 0 0 0 0

Level:

PAGE:53 of 253 Report Date: 6/8/2021 10:16:11 AM

EDUCATIONAL PLANT FIVE YEAR SURVEY REPORT

Status:

Active Pending

Survey:

Survey: 7 - Version: 1

District:

10-CLAY COUNTY SCHOOL DISTRICT

Page 596 of 962

DRAFT



Spaces Design Grades Description NSF / 
Space

Total 
NSF

Cap. / 
Space

Total 
Stns.

Total 
GSF

2 550 CA - DS MACHINE SHOP 0 0 0 0 0

1 555 CA - DS PLUMBING SHOP 0 0 0 0 0

1 560 CA - DS PAINT SHOP 0 0 0 0 0

1 565 CA - DS WELDING SHOP 0 0 0 0 0

1 570 CA - DS AIR CONDITIONING SHOP 0 0 0 0 0

1 575 CA - DS CARPET SHOP 0 0 0 0 0

2 580 CA - DS LOCKSMITH SHOP 0 0 0 0 0

2 594 CA - DS ANCILLARY SUPPORT STORAGE 0 0 0 0 0

1 707 CA - DS TELEPHONE EQUIPMENT/COMMUNICATION CLOSET 0 0 0 0 0

11 824 CA - DS ANCILLARY RESTROOM (MALE) 0 0 0 0 0

10 825 CA - DS ANCILLARY RESTROOM (FEMALE) 0 0 0 0 0

PAGE:54 of 253 Report Date: 6/8/2021 10:16:11 AM

EDUCATIONAL PLANT FIVE YEAR SURVEY REPORT

Status:

Active Pending

Survey:

Survey: 7 - Version: 1

District:

10-CLAY COUNTY SCHOOL DISTRICT

Page 597 of 962

DRAFT



0

Target Number of Stations:

Total Stations:

TRANSPORTATION  (DS - DS)

0

0

Gross Sq. Feet:

Utilization:

Acres Required:

51,392

0.000

7

Total Capacity:

Spaces Design Grades Description NSF / 
Space

Total 
NSF

Cap. / 
Space

Total 
Stns.

Total 
GSF

2 401 CA - DS ANCILLARY CONFERENCE ROOM 0 0 0 0 0

3 403 CA - DS ANCILLARY SECRETARIAL/CLERICAL OFFICE 0 0 0 0 0

1 404 CA - DS ANCILLARY RECEPTION AREA 0 0 0 0 0

9 407 CA - DS ANCILLARY ADMINISTRATIVE OFFICE 0 0 0 0 0

1 416 CA - DS ANCILLARY CUSTODIAL SERVICES 0 0 0 0 0

4 418 CA - DS ANCILLARY ADMINISTRATIVE STORAGE 0 0 0 0 0

1 419 CA - DS ANCILLARY FLAMMABLE STORAGE 0 0 0 0 0

3 421 CA - DS ANCILLARY STAFF LOUNGE 0 0 0 0 0

1 424 CA - DS DIRECTORS OFFICE 0 0 0 0 0

5 426 CA - DS GENERAL ANCILLARY OFFICE 0 0 0 0 0

1 510 CA - DS WAREHOUSE STORAGE 0 0 0 0 0

5 585 CA - DS SCHOOL BUS PARTS ROOM 0 0 0 0 0

1 586 CA - DS SCHOOL BUS MACHINE SHOP 0 0 0 0 0

1 587 CA - DS SCHOOL BUS GLASS/UPHOLSTERY SHOP 0 0 0 0 0

1 588 CA - DS SCHOOL BUS BODY SHOP 0 0 0 0 0

4 589 CA - DS SCHOOL BUS PAINT/FLAMMABLE STORAGE 0 0 0 0 0

1 590 CA - DS SCHOOL BUS PAINT BAY 0 0 0 0 0

4 591 CA - DS SCHOOL BUS TIRE STORAGE & MOUNTING 0 0 0 0 0

4 592 CA - DS SCHOOL BUS WORK BAY 0 0 0 0 0

4 593 CA - DS SCHOOL BUS DRIVERS CLASSROOM 0 0 0 0 0

6 594 CA - DS ANCILLARY SUPPORT STORAGE 0 0 0 0 0

4 824 CA - DS ANCILLARY RESTROOM (MALE) 0 0 0 0 0

4 825 CA - DS ANCILLARY RESTROOM (FEMALE) 0 0 0 0 0

Level:

PAGE:55 of 253 Report Date: 6/8/2021 10:16:11 AM

EDUCATIONAL PLANT FIVE YEAR SURVEY REPORT

Status:

Active Pending

Survey:

Survey: 7 - Version: 1

District:

10-CLAY COUNTY SCHOOL DISTRICT

Page 598 of 962

DRAFT



390

Target Number of Stations:

Total Stations:

ADULT EDUCATION  (09 - AE)

260

260

Gross Sq. Feet:

Utilization:

Acres Required:

51,574

2.000

9

Total Capacity:

Spaces Design Grades Description NSF / 
Space

Total 
NSF

Cap. / 
Space

Total 
Stns.

Total 
GSF

5 3 09 - 12 SENIOR HIGH CLASSROOM (9-12) 800 4,000 25 125 5,360

2 12 09 - 12 SENIOR HIGH SKILLS LAB (9-12) 800 1,600 25 50 2,144

1 40 PK - 12 RESOURCE ROOM 290 290 10 0 388

1 61 PK - 12 E S E PART-TIME 975 975 15 15 1,306

1 62 PK - 12 E S E FULL-TIME 950 950 10 10 1,273

1 65 PK - 12 E S E RESOURCE 380 380 4 0 509

1 66 PK - 12 E S E SUPPLEMENTARY INSTRUCTION 100 100 2 0 134

2 212 09 - VE BUSINESS EDUCATION LAB 1,460 2,920 20 40 3,912

1 232 09 - VE SMALL HOME ECONOMICS LAB 1,100 1,100 20 20 1,474

1 270 09 - VE WORK EVALUATION LAB 1,110 1,110 15 0 1,487

1 271 09 - VE VPI LAB 705 705 15 0 944

1 300 PK - VE PRINCIPAL/DIRECTOR OFFICE 250 250 0 0 335

16 301 PK - VE ASSISTANT PRINCIPAL/OTHER OFFICE 175 2,800 0 0 3,752

1 302 PK - VE BOOKKEEPING OFFICE 125 125 0 0 167

5 303 PK - VE SECRETARIAL SPACE 158 790 0 0 1,058

1 304 PK - VE RECEPTION AREA 323 323 19 0 432

1 305 PK - VE PRODUCTION WORKROOM 152 152 19 0 203

2 306 PK - VE CONFERENCE ROOM 266 532 19 0 712

10 308 PK - VE GENERAL SCHOOL STORAGE 190 1,900 19 0 2,546

1 309 PK - VE VAULT/STUDENT RECORDS 114 114 19 0 152

1 311 PK - VE STUDENT ACTIVITIES 190 190 19 0 254

2 312 PK - VE COMPUTER AREA 57 114 19 0 152

1 313 PK - VE CAREERS ROOM 114 114 19 0 152

1 314 PK - VE ITINERANT OFFICE 125 125 0 0 167

6 315 PK - VE TEACHER PLANNING OFFICE 780 4,680 39 0 6,271

1 316 PK - VE TEACHER LOUNGE/DINING 156 156 39 0 209

7 330 PK - VE CUSTODIAL RECEIVING 585 4,095 39 0 5,487

1 333 PK - VE FLAMMABLE STORAGE 155 155 0 0 207

1 334 PK - VE CUSTODIAL EQUIPMENT STORAGE 500 500 0 0 670

Level:

PAGE:56 of 253 Report Date: 6/8/2021 10:16:11 AM

EDUCATIONAL PLANT FIVE YEAR SURVEY REPORT

Status:

Active Pending

Survey:

Survey: 7 - Version: 1

District:

10-CLAY COUNTY SCHOOL DISTRICT

Page 599 of 962

DRAFT



Spaces Design Grades Description NSF / 
Space

Total 
NSF

Cap. / 
Space

Total 
Stns.

Total 
GSF

1 368 PK - VE TEXTBOOK STORAGE 133 133 19 0 178

12 369 06 - VE STUDENT PERSONAL STORAGE 195 2,340 39 0 3,135

802 INSTRUCTIONAL CONFERENCE ROOM 225 225 0 0 301

808 MATERIAL STORAGE 100 100 0 0 134

808 MATERIAL STORAGE 100 100 0 0 134

808 MATERIAL STORAGE 100 100 0 0 134

808 MATERIAL STORAGE 100 100 0 0 134

808 MATERIAL STORAGE 100 100 0 0 134

808 MATERIAL STORAGE 100 200 0 0 268

808 MATERIAL STORAGE 100 100 0 0 134

808 MATERIAL STORAGE 100 200 0 0 268

808 MATERIAL STORAGE 100 500 0 0 670

810 MATERIAL STORAGE (LARGE) 395 395 0 0 529

812 PROJECT STORAGE 150 150 0 0 201

813 STUDENT STORAGE 40 40 0 0 53

813 STUDENT STORAGE 40 40 0 0 53

813 STUDENT STORAGE 40 40 0 0 53

815 STUDENT RESTROOM (MALE) 35 35 0 0 46

815 STUDENT RESTROOM (MALE) 35 35 0 0 46

1 815 06 - 12 STUDENT RESTROOM (MALE) 38 38 19 0 50

1 816 06 - 12 STUDENT RESTROOM (FEMALE) 38 38 19 0 50

816 STUDENT RESTROOM (FEMALE) 35 35 0 0 46

816 STUDENT RESTROOM (FEMALE) 35 35 0 0 46

817 STUDENT RESTROOM & BATH 110 110 0 0 147

840 VOCATIONAL RELATED CLASSROOM 680 680 20 0 911

846 RECEPTION (VOC ED INSTRUCTION) 90 90 0 0 120

852 VOCATIONAL TECHNOLOGY RESOURCE CENTER 800 800 0 0 1,072

853 VOCATIONAL TESTING 250 250 0 0 335

853 VOCATIONAL TESTING 250 250 0 0 335

PAGE:57 of 253 Report Date: 6/8/2021 10:16:11 AM

EDUCATIONAL PLANT FIVE YEAR SURVEY REPORT

Status:

Active Pending

Survey:

Survey: 7 - Version: 1

District:

10-CLAY COUNTY SCHOOL DISTRICT

Page 600 of 962

DRAFT



216

Target Number of Stations:

Total Stations:

VOCATIONAL TECHNICAL  (VE - VE)

180

180

Gross Sq. Feet:

Utilization:

Acres Required:

43,010

1.000

20

Total Capacity:

Spaces Design Grades Description NSF / 
Space

Total 
NSF

Cap. / 
Space

Total 
Stns.

Total 
GSF

2 212 09 - VE BUSINESS EDUCATION LAB 1,460 2,920 20 40 3,912

2 222 09 - VE SMALL DISTRIBUTIVE/DIVERSIFIED LAB 1,100 2,200 20 40 2,948

1 232 09 - VE SMALL HOME ECONOMICS LAB 1,100 1,100 20 20 1,474

1 233 09 - VE MEDIUM HOME ECONOMICS LAB 1,380 1,380 20 20 1,849

2 252 09 - VE SMALL HEALTH LAB 1,200 2,400 20 40 3,216

1 253 09 - VE MEDIUM HEALTH LAB 2,200 2,200 20 20 2,948

1 270 09 - VE WORK EVALUATION LAB 1,110 1,110 15 0 1,487

1 271 09 - VE VPI LAB 705 705 15 0 944

2 300 PK - VE PRINCIPAL/DIRECTOR OFFICE 250 500 0 0 670

18 301 PK - VE ASSISTANT PRINCIPAL/OTHER OFFICE 175 3,150 0 0 4,221

5 303 PK - VE SECRETARIAL SPACE 158 790 0 0 1,058

3 304 PK - VE RECEPTION AREA 170 510 10 0 683

3 306 PK - VE CONFERENCE ROOM 140 420 10 0 562

1 307 PK - VE CLINIC 60 60 10 0 80

5 308 PK - VE GENERAL SCHOOL STORAGE 100 500 10 0 670

1 309 PK - VE VAULT/STUDENT RECORDS 60 60 10 0 80

1 314 PK - VE ITINERANT OFFICE 125 125 0 0 167

2 315 PK - VE TEACHER PLANNING OFFICE 420 840 21 0 1,125

3 316 PK - VE TEACHER LOUNGE/DINING 84 252 21 0 337

1 340 PK - VE DINING AREA 840 840 21 0 1,125

1 368 PK - VE TEXTBOOK STORAGE 70 70 10 0 93

1 370 06 - VE LOBBY 100 100 10 0 134

802 INSTRUCTIONAL CONFERENCE ROOM 225 225 0 0 301

804 DISPENSARY 135 270 0 0 361

804 DISPENSARY 135 135 0 0 180

806 REFERENCE 100 100 0 0 134

808 MATERIAL STORAGE 100 200 0 0 268

808 MATERIAL STORAGE 100 100 0 0 134

808 MATERIAL STORAGE 100 200 0 0 268

Level:

PAGE:58 of 253 Report Date: 6/8/2021 10:16:11 AM

EDUCATIONAL PLANT FIVE YEAR SURVEY REPORT

Status:

Active Pending

Survey:

Survey: 7 - Version: 1

District:

10-CLAY COUNTY SCHOOL DISTRICT

Page 601 of 962

DRAFT



Spaces Design Grades Description NSF / 
Space

Total 
NSF

Cap. / 
Space

Total 
Stns.

Total 
GSF

808 MATERIAL STORAGE 100 100 0 0 134

808 MATERIAL STORAGE 100 100 0 0 134

810 MATERIAL STORAGE (LARGE) 395 395 0 0 529

810 MATERIAL STORAGE (LARGE) 395 395 0 0 529

812 PROJECT STORAGE 150 300 0 0 402

812 PROJECT STORAGE 150 300 0 0 402

812 PROJECT STORAGE 150 150 0 0 201

812 PROJECT STORAGE 150 150 0 0 201

840 VOCATIONAL RELATED CLASSROOM 680 1,360 20 0 1,822

840 VOCATIONAL RELATED CLASSROOM 680 680 20 0 911

840 VOCATIONAL RELATED CLASSROOM 680 1,360 20 0 1,822

840 VOCATIONAL RELATED CLASSROOM 680 680 20 0 911

842 KITCHEN (HOME ECONOMICS) 125 125 0 0 167

843 LAUNDRY (HOME ECONOMICS) 50 50 0 0 67

846 RECEPTION (VOC ED INSTRUCTION) 90 90 0 0 120

849 VOCATIONAL PROJECT STORAGE 310 310 0 0 415

852 VOCATIONAL TECHNOLOGY RESOURCE CENTER 800 800 0 0 1,072

852 VOCATIONAL TECHNOLOGY RESOURCE CENTER 800 800 0 0 1,072

853 VOCATIONAL TESTING 250 250 0 0 335

853 VOCATIONAL TESTING 250 250 0 0 335

PAGE:59 of 253 Report Date: 6/8/2021 10:16:11 AM

EDUCATIONAL PLANT FIVE YEAR SURVEY REPORT

Status:

Active Pending

Survey:

Survey: 7 - Version: 1

District:

10-CLAY COUNTY SCHOOL DISTRICT

Page 602 of 962

DRAFT



Section 3: Recommendations

PAGE:60 of 253 Report Date: 6/8/2021 10:16:11 AM

EDUCATIONAL PLANT FIVE YEAR SURVEY REPORT

Status:

Active Pending

Survey:

Survey: 7 - Version: 1

District:

10-CLAY COUNTY SCHOOL DISTRICT

Page 603 of 962

DRAFT



District Name: CLAY COUNTY SCHOOL DISTRICT

Survey: Number 7 - Version 1

Facility Name: ADMINISTRATIVE OFFICES ORANGE PARK ANNEX

Address: 2300 KINGSLEY AVENUE, ORANGE PARK

Existing Recommended

Capital Outlay 
Classification

6 - ANCILLARY RECOMMENDED FOR 
CONTINUED USE

6 - ANCILLARY RECOMMENDED FOR 
CONTINUED USE

Facility Use COUNTY ADMINISTRATION MULTIPLE USE SUPPORT

Low Grade COUNTY ADMINISTRATION DISTRICT SERVICES

High Grade COUNTY ADMINISTRATION DISTRICT SERVICES

Comments

Existing
Student Stations 

Added/Reduced(+ or -) Recommended

Perm. Stations 143 0 143

Reloc. Stations 0 0 0

Mod. Stations 0 0 0

Total Stations 143 0 143

Utilization Factor 0% 0%

School Capacity 0 0

COFTE Student 
Membership 0 0

Survey Annotation
The district will rename this facility, ADMINISTRATIVE OFFICES AND ORANGE PARK 
EDUCATIONAL ANNEX.                  
Renovate Buildings 16-21.

New Site Cost Site 
Expansion

Site 
Development

Site 
Improvement

Remodeling 
Cost

Renovation 
Cost

New 
Construction 

Cost

$0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $4,325,055 $0

Estimated Total Project Cost $4,325,055

PAGE:61 of 253 Report Date: 6/8/2021 10:16:11 AM

EDUCATIONAL PLANT FIVE YEAR SURVEY REPORT

Status:

Active Pending

Survey:

Survey: 7 - Version: 1

District:

10-CLAY COUNTY SCHOOL DISTRICT

Page 604 of 962

DRAFT



ADMINISTRATIVE 
OFFICES ORANGE 
PARK ANNEX

Parcel Building Description Total NSF Change In 
Station Count

Calculated 
Cost

Cost Per 
NSF

Cost Per 
Station

Renovation 2026 37 16 Renovating: Apply Painting, Floor 
Cover, Electrical, Plumbing, 
Windows, Lighting, Restrooms, 
HVAC Systems, Bell/Fire Alarm 
Systems, Retrofit for Technology to 
Room 1601 (243 NSF), Room 1602 
(150 NSF), Room 1603 (94 NSF), 
Room 1604 (159 NSF), Room 1605 
(215 NSF), Room 1606 (210 NSF), 
Room 1607 (41 NSF), Room 1608 
(1655 NSF), Room 1609 (94 NSF), 
Room 1610 (2578 NSF), Room 
1610A (326 NSF)

5,765 0 $686,035 $119 $0

Renovation 2026 37 17 Renovating: Apply Painting, Floor 
Cover, Electrical, Plumbing, 
Windows, Lighting, Restrooms, 
HVAC Systems, Bell/Fire Alarm 
Systems, Retrofit for Technology to 
Room 1701 (177 NSF), Room 1702 
(125 NSF), Room 1703 (127 NSF), 
Room 1704 (75 NSF), Room 1705 
(577 NSF), Room 1706 (193 NSF), 
Room 1707 (145 NSF), Room 1708 
(261 NSF), Room 1709 (189 NSF), 
Room 1710 (134 NSF), Room 1711 
(270 NSF), Room 1712 (214 NSF), 
Room 1713 (133 NSF), Room 1714 
(93 NSF), Room 1715 (394 NSF), 
Room 1716 (41 NSF), Room 1717 
(41 NSF), Room 1718 (554 NSF), 
Room 1719 (182 NSF), Room 1720 
(350 NSF), Room 1721 (133 NSF), 
Room 1722 (233 NSF), Room 1723 
(128 NSF), Room 1724 (269 NSF), 
Room 1725 (150 NSF), Room 1726 
(152 NSF), Room 1727 (234 NSF), 
Room 1728 (1255 NSF), Room 
1730 (188 NSF), Room 1731 (135 
NSF), Room 1732 (26 NSF), Room 
1733 (110 NSF), Room 1734 (46 
NSF), Room 1735 (110 NSF), Room 
1736 (178 NSF)

7,622 0 $907,018 $119 $0

Renovation 2026 37 18 Renovating: Apply Painting, Floor 
Cover, Electrical, Plumbing, 
Windows, Lighting, Restrooms, 
HVAC Systems, Bell/Fire Alarm 
Systems, Retrofit for Technology to 
Room 1801 (928 NSF), Room 1802 
(172 NSF), Room 1803 (173 NSF), 
Room 1804 (316 NSF), Room 1805 
(30 NSF), Room 1806 (28 NSF), 
Room 1807 (715 NSF), Room 1808 
(32 NSF), Room 1809 (696 NSF), 
Room 1810 (35 NSF), Room 1811 
(63 NSF), Room 1812 (696 NSF), 
Room 1813 (33 NSF), Room 1814 
(63 NSF), Room 1815 (690 NSF), 
Room 1816 (48 NSF), Room 1817 
(47 NSF), Room 1818 (690 NSF), 
Room 1819 (48 NSF), Room 1820 
(49 NSF)

5,552 0 $660,688 $119 $0

PAGE:62 of 253 Report Date: 6/8/2021 10:16:11 AM

EDUCATIONAL PLANT FIVE YEAR SURVEY REPORT

Status:

Active Pending

Survey:

Survey: 7 - Version: 1

District:

10-CLAY COUNTY SCHOOL DISTRICT

Page 605 of 962

DRAFT



ADMINISTRATIVE 
OFFICES ORANGE 
PARK ANNEX

Parcel Building Description Total NSF Change In 
Station Count

Calculated 
Cost

Cost Per 
NSF

Cost Per 
Station

Renovation 2026 37 19 Renovating: Apply Painting, Floor 
Cover, Electrical, Plumbing, 
Windows, Lighting, Restrooms, 
HVAC Systems, Bell/Fire Alarm 
Systems, Retrofit for Technology to 
Room 1901 (1044 NSF), Room 
1902 (171 NSF), Room 1903 (173 
NSF), Room 1904 (79 NSF), Room 
1905 (39 NSF), Room 1906 (285 
NSF), Room 1907 (192 NSF), Room 
1908 (200 NSF), Room 1909 (129 
NSF), Room 1910 (204 NSF), Room 
1911 (204 NSF), Room 1912 (515 
NSF), Room 1913 (31 NSF), Room 
1914 (34 NSF), Room 1915 (696 
NSF), Room 1916 (47 NSF), Room 
1917 (50 NSF), Room 1918 (696 
NSF), Room 1919 (45 NSF), Room 
1920 (51 NSF), Room 1921 (690 
NSF), Room 1922 (48 NSF), Room 
1923 (46 NSF), Room 1924 (690 
NSF), Room 1925 (48 NSF), Room 
1926 (49 NSF)

6,456 0 $768,264 $119 $0

Renovation 2026 37 20 Renovating: Apply Painting, Floor 
Cover, Electrical, Plumbing, 
Windows, Lighting, Restrooms, 
HVAC Systems, Bell/Fire Alarm 
Systems, Retrofit for Technology to 
Room 2001 (167 NSF), Room 
2001A (54 NSF), Room 2002 (215 
NSF), Room 2002A (54 NSF), Room 
2003 (680 NSF), Room 2004 (188 
NSF), Room 2004a (11 NSF), Room 
2005 (285 NSF), Room 2006 (113 
NSF), Room 2007 (135 NSF), Room 
2008 (156 NSF), Room 2009 (79 
NSF), Room 2010 (613 NSF), Room 
2011 (210 NSF), Room 2012 (127 
NSF), Room 2013 (367 NSF), Room 
2014 (35 NSF), Room 2015 (172 
NSF), Room 2015A (36 NSF), Room 
2016 (140 NSF), Room 2016A (24 
NSF), Room 2017 (164 NSF), Room 
2018 (167 NSF), Room 2019 (44 
NSF), Room 2020 (1071 NSF), 
Room 2021 (103 NSF)

5,410 0 $643,790 $119 $0

PAGE:63 of 253 Report Date: 6/8/2021 10:16:11 AM

EDUCATIONAL PLANT FIVE YEAR SURVEY REPORT

Status:

Active Pending

Survey:

Survey: 7 - Version: 1

District:

10-CLAY COUNTY SCHOOL DISTRICT

Page 606 of 962

DRAFT



ADMINISTRATIVE 
OFFICES ORANGE 
PARK ANNEX

Parcel Building Description Total NSF Change In 
Station Count

Calculated 
Cost

Cost Per 
NSF

Cost Per 
Station

Renovation 2026 37 21 Renovating: Apply Painting, Floor 
Cover, Electrical, Plumbing, 
Windows, Lighting, Restrooms, 
HVAC Systems, Bell/Fire Alarm 
Systems, Retrofit for Technology to 
Room 2101 (532 NSF), Room 2102 
(9 NSF), Room 2103 (12 NSF), 
Room 2104 (12 NSF), Room 2105 
(181 NSF), Room 2106 (121 NSF), 
Room 2107 (124 NSF), Room 2108 
(124 NSF), Room 2109 (125 NSF), 
Room 2110 (124 NSF), Room 2111 
(102 NSF), Room 2112 (239 NSF), 
Room 2113 (298 NSF), Room 2114 
(12 NSF), Room 2115 (73 NSF), 
Room 2116 (951 NSF), Room 2117 
(487 NSF), Room 2118 (10 NSF), 
Room 2119 (973 NSF), Room 2120 
(22 NSF), Room 2121 (16 NSF), 
Room 2122 (11 NSF), Room 2123 
(34 NSF), Room 2124 (302 NSF), 
Room 2125 (170 NSF), Room 2126 
(35 NSF), Room 2127 (218 NSF), 
Room 2128 (223 NSF)

5,540 0 $659,260 $119 $0

PAGE:64 of 253 Report Date: 6/8/2021 10:16:11 AM

EDUCATIONAL PLANT FIVE YEAR SURVEY REPORT

Status:

Active Pending

Survey:

Survey: 7 - Version: 1

District:

10-CLAY COUNTY SCHOOL DISTRICT

Page 607 of 962

DRAFT



District Name: CLAY COUNTY SCHOOL DISTRICT

Survey: Number 7 - Version 1

Facility Name: ARGYLE ELEMENTARY

Address: 2625 SPENCER PLANTATION BOULEVARD, ORANGE PARK

Existing Recommended

Capital Outlay 
Classification

1 - SCHOOL RECOMMENDED FOR 
CONTINUED USE

1 - SCHOOL RECOMMENDED FOR 
CONTINUED USE

Facility Use ELEMENTARY ELEMENTARY

Low Grade PRE-K E S E PRE-K E S E

High Grade GRADE 6 GRADE 6

Comments

Existing
Student Stations 

Added/Reduced(+ or -) Recommended

Perm. Stations 396 170 566

Reloc. Stations 429 -153 276

Mod. Stations 0 0 0

Total Stations 825 17 842

Utilization Factor 100% 100%

School Capacity 825 842

COFTE Student 
Membership 687 801

Survey Annotation

Correct Site Drainage Problems.                                  Construct Additional Covered 
Walkways Where Needed.   Remove 14 portables in excess of 20 years of age.             
(Other)
District-Wide Recommendations for this facility are: Improve Security Fencing and Lighting.

New Site Cost Site 
Expansion

Site 
Development

Site 
Improvement

Remodeling 
Cost

Renovation 
Cost

New 
Construction 

Cost

$0 $0 $0 $40,000 $138,528 $0 $4,321,230

Estimated Total Project Cost $4,499,758

PAGE:65 of 253 Report Date: 6/8/2021 10:16:11 AM

EDUCATIONAL PLANT FIVE YEAR SURVEY REPORT

Status:

Active Pending

Survey:

Survey: 7 - Version: 1

District:

10-CLAY COUNTY SCHOOL DISTRICT

Page 608 of 962

DRAFT



ARGYLE ELEMENTARY Parcel Building Description Total NSF Change In 
Station Count

Calculated 
Cost

Cost Per 
NSF

Cost Per 
Station

New Construction 2026 New Construction: Adding 1 unit of 
PRIMARY CLASSROOM (K-3) (882 
NSF), 6 units of 
INTERMEDIATE/MIDDLE 
CLASSROOM (4-8) (858 NSF), 2 
units of PRIMARY SKILLS LAB (K-
3) (882 NSF), 2 units of E S E FULL-
TIME (950 NSF), 2 units of 
STUDENT RESTROOM & BATH 
(110 NSF)

12,524 170 $4,321,230 $345 $25,419

Remodeling 2026 56 92 Removed NSF (11544), Added NSF 
(0), Difference NSF (11544), Percent 
(100%), Removed Stations (153), 
Added Stations (0) Remodeling: 
Adding  and Removing Room 703 
(729 NSF), Room 704 (729 NSF), 
Room 705 (816 NSF), Room 706 
(881 NSF), Room 706A (188 NSF), 
Room 707 (754 NSF), Room 707A 
(25 NSF), Room 708 (731 NSF), 
Room 710 (924 NSF), Room 710A 
(98 NSF), Room 710B (36 NSF), 
Room 711 (816 NSF), Room 711A 
(41 NSF), Room 713 (366 NSF), 
Room 713A (430 NSF), Room 713B 
(40 NSF), Room 713C (40 NSF), 
Room 713D (80 NSF), Room 713E 
(36 NSF), Room 714 (699 NSF), 
Room 714A (27 NSF), Room 905 
(744 NSF), Room 905A (26 NSF), 
Room 906 (754 NSF), Room 906A 
(25 NSF), Room 907 (724 NSF), 
Room 908 (756 NSF), Room 908A 
(29 NSF)

-11,544 -153 $138,528 $12 $0

PAGE:66 of 253 Report Date: 6/8/2021 10:16:11 AM

EDUCATIONAL PLANT FIVE YEAR SURVEY REPORT

Status:

Active Pending

Survey:

Survey: 7 - Version: 1

District:

10-CLAY COUNTY SCHOOL DISTRICT

Page 609 of 962

DRAFT



District Name: CLAY COUNTY SCHOOL DISTRICT

Survey: Number 7 - Version 1

Facility Name: CHARLES E BENNETT ELEMENTARY

Address: 1 S OAKRIDGE AVENUE, GREEN COVE SPRINGS

Existing Recommended

Capital Outlay 
Classification

1 - SCHOOL RECOMMENDED FOR 
CONTINUED USE

1 - SCHOOL RECOMMENDED FOR 
CONTINUED USE

Facility Use ELEMENTARY ELEMENTARY

Low Grade PRE-K E S E PRE-K E S E

High Grade GRADE 6 GRADE 6

Comments

Existing
Student Stations 

Added/Reduced(+ or -) Recommended

Perm. Stations 615 0 615

Reloc. Stations 215 -55 160

Mod. Stations 0 0 0

Total Stations 830 -55 775

Utilization Factor 100% 100%

School Capacity 830 775

COFTE Student 
Membership 638 603

Survey Annotation

Previously approved in Survey 6.2                                                  Correct Site Drainage 
Problems.                                
Construct Additional Parking.                                      Redesign and Construct Parent Pick Up 
and Drop Off Area. Construct Covered Play Area.                                                 Remove 3 
portables in excess of 20 years of age.                                   Construct Additional Covered 
Walkways Where Needed. 
Expand Kitchen and Dining/Multipurpose.
Renovate Buildings 4, 5, 9, 10, 11 and 20.                           (Other)
District-Wide Recommendations for this facility are: Improve Security Fencing and Lighting.

New Site Cost Site 
Expansion

Site 
Development

Site 
Improvement

Remodeling 
Cost

Renovation 
Cost

New 
Construction 

Cost

$0 $0 $0 $535,000 $27,984 $2,451,340 $1,640,820

Estimated Total Project Cost $4,655,144

PAGE:67 of 253 Report Date: 6/8/2021 10:16:11 AM

EDUCATIONAL PLANT FIVE YEAR SURVEY REPORT

Status:

Active Pending

Survey:

Survey: 7 - Version: 1

District:

10-CLAY COUNTY SCHOOL DISTRICT

Page 610 of 962

DRAFT



CHARLES E BENNETT 
ELEMENTARY

Parcel Building Description Total NSF Change In 
Station Count

Calculated 
Cost

Cost Per 
NSF

Cost Per 
Station

New Construction 2026 New Construction: Adding 1 unit of 
KITCHEN & SERVING AREA (1230 
NSF), 1 unit of MULTIPURPOSE 
ROOM CHAIR STORAGE (160 
NSF), 1 unit of MULTIPURPOSE 
ROOM (DINING) (2480 NSF), 1 unit 
of ELEMENTARY COVERED PLAY 
AREA (2800 NSF)

6,670 0 $1,640,820 $246 $0

Remodeling 2026 4 92 Removed NSF (2332), Added NSF 
(0), Difference NSF (2332), Percent 
(100%), Removed Stations (55), 
Added Stations (0) Remodeling: 
Adding  and Removing Room 053 
(777 NSF), Room 053A (25 NSF), 
Room 501 (782 NSF), Room 502 
(748 NSF)

-2,332 -55 $27,984 $12 $0

Renovation 2026 4 4 Renovating: Apply Painting, Floor 
Cover, Electrical, Plumbing, 
Windows, Lighting, Restrooms, 
HVAC Systems, Bell/Fire Alarm 
Systems, Retrofit for Technology to 
Room 013 (685 NSF), Room 013A 
(137 NSF), Room 013B (49 NSF), 
Room 013C (30 NSF), Room 013D 
(78 NSF), Room 014 (124 NSF), 
Room 014A (33 NSF), Room 014B 
(141 NSF), Room 014C (141 NSF), 
Room 015 (744 NSF), Room 016 
(718 NSF), Room 016A (20 NSF), 
Room 017 (220 NSF)

3,120 0 $287,040 $92 $0

Renovation 2026 4 5 Renovating: Apply Painting, Floor 
Cover, Electrical, Plumbing, 
Windows, Lighting, Restrooms, 
HVAC Systems, Bell/Fire Alarm 
Systems, Retrofit for Technology to 
Room 017 (760 NSF), Room 017A 
(45 NSF), Room 018 (760 NSF), 
Room 019 (760 NSF), Room 020 
(735 NSF), Room 020A (25 NSF), 
Room 021 (220 NSF), Room 023 
(225 NSF)

3,530 0 $324,760 $92 $0

Renovation 2026 4 9 Renovating: Apply Painting, Floor 
Cover, Electrical, Plumbing, 
Windows, Lighting, Restrooms, 
HVAC Systems, Bell/Fire Alarm 
Systems, Retrofit for Technology to 
Room 901 (390 NSF), Room 901A 
(376 NSF), Room 902 (258 NSF), 
Room 903 (22 NSF), Room 904 
(130 NSF), Room 905 (69 NSF), 
Room 907 (168 NSF), Room 908 
(176 NSF), Room 909 (176 NSF), 
Room 910 (152 NSF), Room 911 
(213 NSF), Room 912 (285 NSF), 
Room 913 (411 NSF), Room 914 
(178 NSF), Room 915 (167 NSF), 
Room 916 (141 NSF), Room 917 
(84 NSF), Room 918 (210 NSF), 
Room 919 (35 NSF), Room 920 (35 
NSF), Room 921 (173 NSF), Room 
922 (114 NSF), Room 923 (219 
NSF), Room 924 (124 NSF), Room 
925 (130 NSF), Room 926 (20 NSF)

4,456 0 $409,952 $92 $0

PAGE:68 of 253 Report Date: 6/8/2021 10:16:11 AM

EDUCATIONAL PLANT FIVE YEAR SURVEY REPORT

Status:

Active Pending

Survey:

Survey: 7 - Version: 1

District:

10-CLAY COUNTY SCHOOL DISTRICT

Page 611 of 962

DRAFT



CHARLES E BENNETT 
ELEMENTARY

Parcel Building Description Total NSF Change In 
Station Count

Calculated 
Cost

Cost Per 
NSF

Cost Per 
Station

Renovation 2026 4 10 Renovating: Apply Painting, Floor 
Cover, Electrical, Plumbing, 
Windows, Lighting, Restrooms, 
HVAC Systems, Bell/Fire Alarm 
Systems, Retrofit for Technology to 
Room 001 (3214 NSF), Room 001A 
(595 NSF), Room 001B (160 NSF), 
Room 001C (160 NSF), Room 001D 
(367 NSF), Room 002 (925 NSF), 
Room 003 (89 NSF), Room 004 (27 
NSF), Room 005 (47 NSF), Room 
006 (180 NSF), Room 007 (30 NSF), 
Room 008 (46 NSF), Room 009 (37 
NSF), Room 010 (425 NSF), Room 
011 (93 NSF), Room 012 (93 NSF)

6,488 0 $596,896 $92 $0

Renovation 2026 4 11 Renovating: Apply Painting, Floor 
Cover, Electrical, Plumbing, 
Windows, Lighting, Restrooms, 
HVAC Systems, Bell/Fire Alarm 
Systems, Retrofit for Technology to 
Room 100 (80 NSF), Room 101 
(3380 NSF), Room 102 (502 NSF), 
Room 103 (719 NSF), Room 104 
(112 NSF), Room 105 (53 NSF), 
Room 106 (52 NSF), Room 107 
(246 NSF), Room 108 (58 NSF), 
Room 109 (58 NSF), Room 110 (338 
NSF), Room 111 (332 NSF), Room 
112 (698 NSF), Room 112A (93 
NSF), Room 112B (98 NSF), Room 
112C (15 NSF), Room 113 (349 
NSF), Room 114 (179 NSF), Room 
115 (332 NSF), Room 116 (446 
NSF), Room 117 (112 NSF), Room 
118 (64 NSF), Room 119 (168 NSF), 
Room 120 (48 NSF)

8,532 0 $784,944 $92 $0

Renovation 2026 4 20 Renovating: Apply Painting, Floor 
Cover, Electrical, Plumbing, 
Windows, Lighting, Restrooms, 
HVAC Systems, Bell/Fire Alarm 
Systems, Retrofit for Technology to 
Room 802A (188 NSF), Room 802B 
(16 NSF), Room 802C (158 NSF), 
Room 802D (157 NSF)

519 0 $47,748 $92 $0

PAGE:69 of 253 Report Date: 6/8/2021 10:16:11 AM

EDUCATIONAL PLANT FIVE YEAR SURVEY REPORT

Status:

Active Pending

Survey:

Survey: 7 - Version: 1

District:

10-CLAY COUNTY SCHOOL DISTRICT

Page 612 of 962

DRAFT



District Name: CLAY COUNTY SCHOOL DISTRICT

Survey: Number 7 - Version 1

Facility Name: CLAY HIGH SCHOOL

Address: 2025 HIGHWAY 16 W, GREEN COVE SPRINGS

Existing Recommended

Capital Outlay 
Classification

1 - SCHOOL RECOMMENDED FOR 
CONTINUED USE

1 - SCHOOL RECOMMENDED FOR 
CONTINUED USE

Facility Use SENIOR HIGH SENIOR HIGH

Low Grade GRADE 9 GRADE 9

High Grade GRADE 12 GRADE 12

Comments

Existing
Student Stations 

Added/Reduced(+ or -) Recommended

Perm. Stations 1,785 0 1785

Reloc. Stations 252 -140 112

Mod. Stations 0 0 0

Total Stations 2,037 -140 1897

Utilization Factor 95% 95%

School Capacity 1,935 1802

COFTE Student 
Membership 1,429 1,504

Survey Annotation

Correct Site Drainage Problems.                                 
Construct Additional Covered Walkways Where Needed.  Remove 8 portables in excess of 
20 years of age.
(Other)
District-Wide Recommendations for this facility are: Improve Security Fencing and Lighting.

New Site Cost Site 
Expansion

Site 
Development

Site 
Improvement

Remodeling 
Cost

Renovation 
Cost

New 
Construction 

Cost

$0 $0 $0 $45,000 $73,284 $0 $0

Estimated Total Project Cost $118,284

PAGE:70 of 253 Report Date: 6/8/2021 10:16:11 AM

EDUCATIONAL PLANT FIVE YEAR SURVEY REPORT

Status:

Active Pending

Survey:

Survey: 7 - Version: 1

District:

10-CLAY COUNTY SCHOOL DISTRICT

Page 613 of 962

DRAFT



CLAY HIGH SCHOOL Parcel Building Description Total NSF Change In 
Station Count

Calculated 
Cost

Cost Per 
NSF

Cost Per 
Station

Remodeling 2026 16 92 Removed NSF (6107), Added NSF 
(0), Difference NSF (6107), Percent 
(100%), Removed Stations (140), 
Added Stations (0) Remodeling: 
Adding  and Removing Room 040 
(782 NSF), Room 041 (700 NSF), 
Room 041A (30 NSF), Room 042 
(734 NSF), Room 043 (625 NSF), 
Room 043A (96 NSF), Room 043B 
(36 NSF), Room 044 (752 NSF), 
Room 044A (27 NSF), Room 045 
(744 NSF), Room 045A (26 NSF), 
Room 047 (757 NSF), Room 047A 
(26 NSF), Room 049 (745 NSF), 
Room 049A (27 NSF)

-6,107 -140 $73,284 $12 $0

PAGE:71 of 253 Report Date: 6/8/2021 10:16:11 AM

EDUCATIONAL PLANT FIVE YEAR SURVEY REPORT

Status:

Active Pending

Survey:

Survey: 7 - Version: 1

District:

10-CLAY COUNTY SCHOOL DISTRICT

Page 614 of 962

DRAFT



District Name: CLAY COUNTY SCHOOL DISTRICT

Survey: Number 7 - Version 1

Facility Name: CLAY HILL ELEMENTARY

Address: 6345 STATE ROAD 218, JACKSONVILLE

Existing Recommended

Capital Outlay 
Classification

1 - SCHOOL RECOMMENDED FOR 
CONTINUED USE

1 - SCHOOL RECOMMENDED FOR 
CONTINUED USE

Facility Use ELEMENTARY ELEMENTARY

Low Grade PRE-K E S E PRE-K E S E

High Grade GRADE 6 GRADE 6

Comments

Existing
Student Stations 

Added/Reduced(+ or -) Recommended

Perm. Stations 412 30 442

Reloc. Stations 62 -18 44

Mod. Stations 0 0 0

Total Stations 474 12 486

Utilization Factor 100% 100%

School Capacity 474 486

COFTE Student 
Membership 419 454

Survey Annotation

Renovate Buildings 1, 2, 5 & 6.                                         
Correct Site Drainage Problems.                                        Remove 1 portables in excess of 
20 years of age.
Construct (1) Elementary Art, (1) Pre-K ESE, (1) PT ESE, (1) FT ESE.                                      
                                                    (Other)
Construct Additional Covered Walkways Where Needed.
District-Wide Recommendations for this facility are: Improve Security Fencing and Lighting.

New Site Cost Site 
Expansion

Site 
Development

Site 
Improvement

Remodeling 
Cost

Renovation 
Cost

New 
Construction 

Cost

$0 $0 $0 $45,000 $8,820 $3,754,060 $762,570

Estimated Total Project Cost $4,570,450

PAGE:72 of 253 Report Date: 6/8/2021 10:16:11 AM

EDUCATIONAL PLANT FIVE YEAR SURVEY REPORT

Status:

Active Pending

Survey:

Survey: 7 - Version: 1

District:

10-CLAY COUNTY SCHOOL DISTRICT

Page 615 of 962

DRAFT



CLAY HILL 
ELEMENTARY

Parcel Building Description Total NSF Change In 
Station Count

Calculated 
Cost

Cost Per 
NSF

Cost Per 
Station

New Construction 2026 New Construction: Adding 1 unit of 
ART - ELEMENTARY (1110 NSF), 1 
unit of E S E PRE-K (475 NSF), 1 
unit of E S E PART-TIME (975 NSF), 
1 unit of E S E FULL-TIME (950 
NSF)

4,540 30 $762,570 $168 $25,419

Remodeling 2026 24 92 Removed NSF (735), Added NSF 
(0), Difference NSF (735), Percent 
(100%), Removed Stations (18), 
Added Stations (0) Remodeling: 
Adding  and Removing Room 703 
(735 NSF)

-735 -18 $8,820 $12 $0

Renovation 2026 24 1 Renovating: Apply Painting, Floor 
Cover, Electrical, Plumbing, 
Windows, Lighting, Restrooms, 
HVAC Systems, Bell/Fire Alarm 
Systems, Retrofit for Technology to 
Room 100 (239 NSF), Room 100A 
(29 NSF), Room 101 (203 NSF), 
Room 102 (176 NSF), Room 103 
(198 NSF), Room 103B (46 NSF), 
Room 104 (248 NSF), Room 104A 
(27 NSF), Room 105 (308 NSF), 
Room 106 (237 NSF), Room 106A 
(12 NSF), Room 107 (233 NSF), 
Room 108 (32 NSF), Room 109 (32 
NSF), Room 110 (45 NSF), Room 
111 (72 NSF), Room 112 (45 NSF), 
Room 113 (71 NSF), Room 114 (311 
NSF), Room 115 (182 NSF), Room 
116 (75 NSF), Room 117 (51 NSF), 
Room 118 (73 NSF), Room 119 (122 
NSF), Room 120 (198 NSF), Room 
121 (103 NSF), Room 122 (337 
NSF), Room 123 (510 NSF), Room 
124 (229 NSF), Room 125 (86 NSF), 
Room 125A (117 NSF), Room 126 
(116 NSF), Room 127 (105 NSF), 
Room 128 (3056 NSF), Room 129 
(124 NSF), Room 130 (464 NSF), 
Room 131 (336 NSF), Room 132 
(285 NSF), Room 133 (209 NSF), 
Room 134 (131 NSF)

9,473 0 $871,516 $92 $0

PAGE:73 of 253 Report Date: 6/8/2021 10:16:11 AM

EDUCATIONAL PLANT FIVE YEAR SURVEY REPORT

Status:

Active Pending

Survey:

Survey: 7 - Version: 1

District:

10-CLAY COUNTY SCHOOL DISTRICT

Page 616 of 962

DRAFT



CLAY HILL 
ELEMENTARY

Parcel Building Description Total NSF Change In 
Station Count

Calculated 
Cost

Cost Per 
NSF

Cost Per 
Station

Renovation 2026 24 2 Renovating: Apply Painting, Floor 
Cover, Electrical, Plumbing, 
Windows, Lighting, Restrooms, 
HVAC Systems, Bell/Fire Alarm 
Systems, Retrofit for Technology to 
Room 200 (3080 NSF), Room 201 
(45 NSF), Room 202 (179 NSF), 
Room 203 (160 NSF), Room 204 
(448 NSF), Room 205 (218 NSF), 
Room 206 (160 NSF), Room 207 
(172 NSF), Room 208 (41 NSF), 
Room 209 (823 NSF), Room 209A 
(30 NSF), Room 210A (41 NSF), 
Room 210B (41 NSF), Room 211 
(212 NSF), Room 212 (114 NSF), 
Room 213 (238 NSF), Room 214 
(83 NSF), Room 215 (99 NSF), 
Room 216 (1033 NSF), Room 217 
(368 NSF), Room 218 (345 NSF), 
Room 219 (12 NSF), Room 220 (33 
NSF), Room 221 (64 NSF), Room 
222 (54 NSF), Room 223 (122 NSF), 
Room 224 (81 NSF), Room 225 (113 
NSF), Room 226 (113 NSF), Room 
227 (89 NSF)

8,611 0 $792,212 $92 $0

Renovation 2026 24 5 Renovating: Apply Painting, Floor 
Cover, Electrical, Plumbing, 
Windows, Lighting, Restrooms, 
HVAC Systems, Bell/Fire Alarm 
Systems, Retrofit for Technology to 
Room 500 (1364 NSF), Room 501 
(980 NSF), Room 501A (100 NSF), 
Room 501B (70 NSF), Room 501C 
(37 NSF), Room 502 (980 NSF), 
Room 502A (100 NSF), Room 502B 
(70 NSF), Room 502C (37 NSF), 
Room 503 (980 NSF), Room 503B 
(70 NSF), Room 503C (37 NSF), 
Room 504 (980 NSF), Room 504B 
(70 NSF), Room 504C (37 NSF), 
Room 505 (93 NSF), Room 506 
(394 NSF), Room 507 (150 NSF), 
Room 508 (40 NSF), Room 509 
(980 NSF), Room 509A (100 NSF), 
Room 509B (70 NSF), Room 509C 
(37 NSF), Room 510 (980 NSF), 
Room 510A (100 NSF), Room 510B 
(70 NSF), Room 510C (37 NSF), 
Room 511 (980 NSF), Room 511B 
(70 NSF), Room 511C (37 NSF), 
Room 512 (980 NSF), Room 512B 
(70 NSF), Room 512C (37 NSF), 
Room 513 (225 NSF)

11,362 0 $1,045,304 $92 $0

PAGE:74 of 253 Report Date: 6/8/2021 10:16:11 AM

EDUCATIONAL PLANT FIVE YEAR SURVEY REPORT

Status:

Active Pending

Survey:

Survey: 7 - Version: 1

District:

10-CLAY COUNTY SCHOOL DISTRICT

Page 617 of 962

DRAFT



CLAY HILL 
ELEMENTARY

Parcel Building Description Total NSF Change In 
Station Count

Calculated 
Cost

Cost Per 
NSF

Cost Per 
Station

Renovation 2026 24 6 Renovating: Apply Painting, Floor 
Cover, Electrical, Plumbing, 
Windows, Lighting, Restrooms, 
HVAC Systems, Bell/Fire Alarm 
Systems, Retrofit for Technology to 
Room 600 (1250 NSF), Room 601 
(894 NSF), Room 601A (100 NSF), 
Room 601B (70 NSF), Room 601C 
(38 NSF), Room 602 (980 NSF), 
Room 602A (100 NSF), Room 602B 
(70 NSF), Room 602C (38 NSF), 
Room 603 (894 NSF), Room 603B 
(70 NSF), Room 603C (37 NSF), 
Room 604 (980 NSF), Room 604B 
(70 NSF), Room 604C (37 NSF), 
Room 605 (44 NSF), Room 606 
(336 NSF), Room 607 (95 NSF), 
Room 608 (980 NSF), Room 608A 
(100 NSF), Room 608B (70 NSF), 
Room 608C (37 NSF), Room 609 
(980 NSF), Room 609A (100 NSF), 
Room 609B (70 NSF), Room 609C 
(37 NSF), Room 610 (980 NSF), 
Room 610B (70 NSF), Room 611 
(980 NSF), Room 611B (70 NSF), 
Room 612 (223 NSF), Room 613 
(291 NSF), Room 614 (68 NSF), 
Room 615 (200 NSF)

11,359 0 $1,045,028 $92 $0

PAGE:75 of 253 Report Date: 6/8/2021 10:16:11 AM

EDUCATIONAL PLANT FIVE YEAR SURVEY REPORT

Status:

Active Pending

Survey:

Survey: 7 - Version: 1

District:

10-CLAY COUNTY SCHOOL DISTRICT

Page 618 of 962

DRAFT



District Name: CLAY COUNTY SCHOOL DISTRICT

Survey: Number 7 - Version 1

Facility Name: CLAY SUPERINTENDENT'S OFFICE

Address: 2233 VILLAGE SQUARE PARKWAY, ORANGE PARK

Existing Recommended

Capital Outlay 
Classification

6 - ANCILLARY RECOMMENDED FOR 
CONTINUED USE

6 - ANCILLARY RECOMMENDED FOR 
CONTINUED USE

Facility Use ALTERNATIVE EDUCATION COUNTY ADMINISTRATION

Low Grade COUNTY ADMINISTRATION COUNTY ADMINISTRATION

High Grade COUNTY ADMINISTRATION COUNTY ADMINISTRATION

Comments

Existing
Student Stations 

Added/Reduced(+ or -) Recommended

Perm. Stations 0 0 0

Reloc. Stations 0 0 0

Mod. Stations 0 0 0

Total Stations 0 0 0

Utilization Factor 100% 0%

School Capacity 0 0

COFTE Student 
Membership 68 0

Survey Annotation
Change the name of this facility to "Clay District Offices."
Construct additional parking.                                                             Renovate Buildings 2, 3, 
& 10.

New Site Cost Site 
Expansion

Site 
Development

Site 
Improvement

Remodeling 
Cost

Renovation 
Cost

New 
Construction 

Cost

$0 $0 $0 $200,000 $0 $3,564,764 $0

Estimated Total Project Cost $3,764,764

PAGE:76 of 253 Report Date: 6/8/2021 10:16:11 AM

EDUCATIONAL PLANT FIVE YEAR SURVEY REPORT

Status:

Active Pending

Survey:

Survey: 7 - Version: 1

District:

10-CLAY COUNTY SCHOOL DISTRICT

Page 619 of 962

DRAFT



CLAY 
SUPERINTENDENT'S 
OFFICE

Parcel Building Description Total NSF Change In 
Station Count

Calculated 
Cost

Cost Per 
NSF

Cost Per 
Station

Renovation 2026 40 2 Renovating: Apply Painting, Floor 
Cover, Electrical, Plumbing, 
Windows, Lighting, Restrooms, 
HVAC Systems, Bell/Fire Alarm 
Systems, Retrofit for Technology to 
Room 005 (126 NSF), Room 006 
(154 NSF), Room 007 (129 NSF), 
Room 008 (162 NSF), Room 008A 
(9 NSF), Room 009 (20 NSF), Room 
010 (361 NSF), Room 011 (112 
NSF), Room 012 (103 NSF), Room 
013 (54 NSF), Room 014 (44 NSF), 
Room 015 (104 NSF), Room 016 
(115 NSF), Room 017 (116 NSF), 
Room 018 (81 NSF), Room 019 (81 
NSF), Room 020 (406 NSF), Room 
021 (94 NSF), Room 022 (294 NSF), 
Room 023 (67 NSF), Room 024 (22 
NSF), Room 025 (4 NSF), Room 
026 (115 NSF), Room 027 (213 
NSF)

2,986 0 $355,334 $119 $0

PAGE:77 of 253 Report Date: 6/8/2021 10:16:11 AM

EDUCATIONAL PLANT FIVE YEAR SURVEY REPORT

Status:

Active Pending

Survey:

Survey: 7 - Version: 1

District:

10-CLAY COUNTY SCHOOL DISTRICT

Page 620 of 962

DRAFT



CLAY 
SUPERINTENDENT'S 
OFFICE

Parcel Building Description Total NSF Change In 
Station Count

Calculated 
Cost

Cost Per 
NSF

Cost Per 
Station

Renovation 2026 40 3 Renovating: Apply Painting, Floor 
Cover, Electrical, Plumbing, 
Windows, Lighting, Restrooms, 
HVAC Systems, Bell/Fire Alarm 
Systems, Retrofit for Technology to 
Room 001 (45 NSF), Room 002 (28 
NSF), Room 004 (5 NSF), Room 
005 (314 NSF), Room 006 (228 
NSF), Room 007 (581 NSF), Room 
007A (266 NSF), Room 007B (46 
NSF), Room 008 (326 NSF), Room 
009 (310 NSF), Room 010 (120 
NSF), Room 011 (70 NSF), Room 
012 (165 NSF), Room 012A (89 
NSF), Room 013 (13 NSF), Room 
014 (67 NSF), Room 015 (176 NSF), 
Room 015A (7 NSF), Room 016 
(166 NSF), Room 017 (150 NSF), 
Room 018 (176 NSF), Room 019 
(176 NSF), Room 020 (180 NSF), 
Room 021 (144 NSF), Room 022 
(45 NSF), Room 024 (45 NSF), 
Room 025 (140 NSF), Room 026 
(222 NSF), Room 027 (168 NSF), 
Room 028 (262 NSF), Room 029 
(154 NSF), Room 030 (383 NSF), 
Room 031 (195 NSF), Room 032 
(144 NSF), Room 033 (150 NSF), 
Room 034 (180 NSF), Room 035 
(124 NSF), Room 036 (96 NSF), 
Room 037 (240 NSF), Room 039 
(122 NSF), Room 040 (122 NSF), 
Room 041 (195 NSF), Room 042 
(132 NSF), Room 043 (150 NSF), 
Room 044 (960 NSF), Room 045 
(176 NSF), Room 046 (176 NSF), 
Room 047 (176 NSF), Room 048 
(22 NSF), Room 048A (30 NSF), 
Room 049 (135 NSF), Room 050 
(188 NSF), Room 051 (176 NSF), 
Room 052 (176 NSF), Room 053 
(176 NSF), Room 054 (60 NSF), 
Room 055 (24 NSF), Room 056 (60 
NSF), Room 057 (112 NSF), Room 
058 (198 NSF), Room 059 (188 
NSF), Room 060 (198 NSF), Room 
061 (360 NSF), Room 062 (316 
NSF)

11,024 0 $1,311,856 $119 $0

PAGE:78 of 253 Report Date: 6/8/2021 10:16:11 AM

EDUCATIONAL PLANT FIVE YEAR SURVEY REPORT

Status:

Active Pending

Survey:

Survey: 7 - Version: 1

District:

10-CLAY COUNTY SCHOOL DISTRICT

Page 621 of 962

DRAFT



CLAY 
SUPERINTENDENT'S 
OFFICE

Parcel Building Description Total NSF Change In 
Station Count

Calculated 
Cost

Cost Per 
NSF

Cost Per 
Station

Renovation 2026 54 10 Renovating: Apply Painting, Floor 
Cover, Electrical, Plumbing, 
Windows, Lighting, Restrooms, 
HVAC Systems, Bell/Fire Alarm 
Systems, Retrofit for Technology to 
Room 1001 (949 NSF), Room 1002 
(949 NSF), Room 1003 (276 NSF), 
Room 1004 (96 NSF), Room 1005 
(252 NSF), Room 1006 (745 NSF), 
Room 1007 (54 NSF), Room 1008 
(215 NSF), Room 1009 (240 NSF), 
Room 1010 (237 NSF), Room 1011 
(260 NSF), Room 1012 (260 NSF), 
Room 1013 (42 NSF), Room 1014 
(42 NSF), Room 1015 (147 NSF), 
Room 1016 (82 NSF), Room 1017 
(389 NSF), Room 1018 (4489 NSF), 
Room 1020 (857 NSF), Room 
1020A (318 NSF), Room 1022 (919 
NSF), Room 1023 (831 NSF), Room 
1024 (276 NSF), Room 1025 (1325 
NSF), Room 1026 (949 NSF), Room 
1027 (276 NSF), Room 1028 (439 
NSF), Room 1029 (32 NSF)

15,946 0 $1,897,574 $119 $0

PAGE:79 of 253 Report Date: 6/8/2021 10:16:11 AM

EDUCATIONAL PLANT FIVE YEAR SURVEY REPORT

Status:

Active Pending

Survey:

Survey: 7 - Version: 1

District:

10-CLAY COUNTY SCHOOL DISTRICT

Page 622 of 962

DRAFT



District Name: CLAY COUNTY SCHOOL DISTRICT

Survey: Number 7 - Version 1

Facility Name: COPPERGATE ELEMENTARY

Address: 3460 Copper Colts Court, MIDDLEBURG

Existing Recommended

Capital Outlay 
Classification

1 - SCHOOL RECOMMENDED FOR 
CONTINUED USE

1 - SCHOOL RECOMMENDED FOR 
CONTINUED USE

Facility Use ELEMENTARY ELEMENTARY

Low Grade PRE-K E S E PRE-K E S E

High Grade GRADE 6 GRADE 6

Comments

Existing
Student Stations 

Added/Reduced(+ or -) Recommended

Perm. Stations 659 0 659

Reloc. Stations 66 0 66

Mod. Stations 0 0 0

Total Stations 725 0 725

Utilization Factor 100% 100%

School Capacity 725 725

COFTE Student 
Membership 516 594

Survey Annotation

Correct Site Drainage Problems. 
Construct PE Covered Play Area. 
Construct Additional Covered Walkways Where Needed.  (Other)
District-Wide Recommendations for this facility are: Improve Security Fencing and Lighting.

New Site Cost Site 
Expansion

Site 
Development

Site 
Improvement

Remodeling 
Cost

Renovation 
Cost

New 
Construction 

Cost

$0 $0 $0 $45,000 $0 $0 $138,000

Estimated Total Project Cost $183,000

COPPERGATE 
ELEMENTARY

Parcel Building Description Total NSF Change In 
Station Count

Calculated 
Cost

Cost Per 
NSF

Cost Per 
Station

New Construction 2026 New Construction: Adding 1 unit of 
ELEMENTARY COVERED PLAY 
AREA (500 NSF)

500 0 $138,000 $276 $0

PAGE:80 of 253 Report Date: 6/8/2021 10:16:11 AM

EDUCATIONAL PLANT FIVE YEAR SURVEY REPORT

Status:

Active Pending

Survey:

Survey: 7 - Version: 1

District:

10-CLAY COUNTY SCHOOL DISTRICT

Page 623 of 962

DRAFT



District Name: CLAY COUNTY SCHOOL DISTRICT

Survey: Number 7 - Version 1

Facility Name: DISCOVERY OAKS ELEMENTARY

Address: 950 OAKLEAF PLANTATION PARKWAY, ORANGE PARK

Existing Recommended

Capital Outlay 
Classification

1 - SCHOOL RECOMMENDED FOR 
CONTINUED USE

1 - SCHOOL RECOMMENDED FOR 
CONTINUED USE

Facility Use ELEMENTARY ELEMENTARY

Low Grade PRE-K E S E PRE-K E S E

High Grade GRADE 6 GRADE 6

Comments

Existing
Student Stations 

Added/Reduced(+ or -) Recommended

Perm. Stations 852 0 852

Reloc. Stations 0 0 0

Mod. Stations 0 0 0

Total Stations 852 0 852

Utilization Factor 100% 100%

School Capacity 852 852

COFTE Student 
Membership 838 792

Survey Annotation (Other)
District-Wide Recommendations for this facility are: Improve Security Fencing and Lighting.

New Site Cost Site 
Expansion

Site 
Development

Site 
Improvement

Remodeling 
Cost

Renovation 
Cost

New 
Construction 

Cost

$0 $0 $0 $15,000 $0 $0 $0

Estimated Total Project Cost $15,000

DISCOVERY OAKS 
ELEMENTARY

Parcel Building Description Total NSF Change In 
Station Count

Calculated 
Cost

Cost Per 
NSF

Cost Per 
Station

 

PAGE:81 of 253 Report Date: 6/8/2021 10:16:11 AM

EDUCATIONAL PLANT FIVE YEAR SURVEY REPORT

Status:

Active Pending

Survey:

Survey: 7 - Version: 1

District:

10-CLAY COUNTY SCHOOL DISTRICT

Page 624 of 962

DRAFT



District Name: CLAY COUNTY SCHOOL DISTRICT

Survey: Number 7 - Version 1

Facility Name: DOCTORS INLET ELEMENTARY

Address: 2634 STATE ROAD 220, DOCTORS INLET

Existing Recommended

Capital Outlay 
Classification

1 - SCHOOL RECOMMENDED FOR 
CONTINUED USE

1 - SCHOOL RECOMMENDED FOR 
CONTINUED USE

Facility Use ELEMENTARY ELEMENTARY

Low Grade PRE-K E S E PRE-K E S E

High Grade GRADE 6 GRADE 6

Comments

Existing
Student Stations 

Added/Reduced(+ or -) Recommended

Perm. Stations 401 252 653

Reloc. Stations 336 -229 107

Mod. Stations 0 0 0

Total Stations 737 23 760

Utilization Factor 100% 100%

School Capacity 737 760

COFTE Student 
Membership 640 711

Survey Annotation

Correct Site Drainage Problems.                                Construct Additional Covered Walkways 
Where Needed. 
Construct (3) Primary and  (9) Intermediate.
Renovate Building 4.                                                                    Remove 14 portables in 
excess of 20 years of age.             (Other)
District-Wide Recommendations for this facility are:  Improve Security Fencing and Lighting.

New Site Cost Site 
Expansion

Site 
Development

Site 
Improvement

Remodeling 
Cost

Renovation 
Cost

New 
Construction 

Cost

$15,000 $0 $0 $30,000 $132,288 $533,082 $6,405,588

Estimated Total Project Cost $7,115,958

DOCTORS INLET 
ELEMENTARY

Parcel Building Description Total NSF Change In 
Station Count

Calculated 
Cost

Cost Per 
NSF

Cost Per 
Station

New Construction 2026 New Construction: Adding 3 units of 
PRIMARY CLASSROOM (K-3) (882 
NSF), 9 units of 
INTERMEDIATE/MIDDLE 
CLASSROOM (4-8) (858 NSF)

13,098 252 $6,405,588 $489 $25,419

PAGE:82 of 253 Report Date: 6/8/2021 10:16:11 AM

EDUCATIONAL PLANT FIVE YEAR SURVEY REPORT

Status:

Active Pending

Survey:

Survey: 7 - Version: 1

District:

10-CLAY COUNTY SCHOOL DISTRICT

Page 625 of 962

DRAFT



DOCTORS INLET 
ELEMENTARY

Parcel Building Description Total NSF Change In 
Station Count

Calculated 
Cost

Cost Per 
NSF

Cost Per 
Station

Remodeling 2026 11 92 Removed NSF (11024), Added NSF 
(0), Difference NSF (11024), Percent 
(100%), Removed Stations (229), 
Added Stations (0) Remodeling: 
Adding  and Removing Room 837 
(745 NSF), Room 845 (744 NSF), 
Room 845A (26 NSF), Room 871 
(904 NSF), Room 871A (98 NSF), 
Room 871B (98 NSF), Room 874 
(730 NSF), Room 876 (736 NSF), 
Room 889 (745 NSF), Room 889A 
(27 NSF), Room 890 (700 NSF), 
Room 890A (27 NSF), Room 890B 
(38 NSF), Room 891 (745 NSF), 
Room 891A (27 NSF), Room 893 
(745 NSF), Room 893A (27 NSF), 
Room 894 (779 NSF), Room 896 
(750 NSF), Room 896A (26 NSF), 
Room 897 (745 NSF), Room 897A 
(27 NSF), Room 899 (386 NSF), 
Room 899A (74 NSF), Room 899B 
(312 NSF), Room 921 (736 NSF), 
Room 921A (27 NSF)

-11,024 -229 $132,288 $12 $0

Renovation 2026 11 4 Renovating: Apply Painting, Floor 
Cover, Electrical, Plumbing, 
Windows, Lighting, Restrooms, 
HVAC Systems, Bell/Fire Alarm 
Systems, Retrofit for Technology to 
Room 101 (206 NSF), Room 102 
(281 NSF), Room 103 (35 NSF), 
Room 104 (35 NSF), Room 105 (112 
NSF), Room 105B (36 NSF), Room 
106 (115 NSF), Room 107 (128 
NSF), Room 108 (382 NSF), Room 
109 (180 NSF), Room 110 (193 
NSF), Room 111 (70 NSF), Room 
112 (193 NSF), Room 113 (59 NSF), 
Room 114 (114 NSF), Room 115 (66 
NSF), Room 116 (194 NSF), Room 
117 (211 NSF), Room 118 (214 
NSF), Room 119 (162 NSF), Room 
120 (141 NSF), Room 121 (67 NSF), 
Room 122 (382 NSF), Room 123 
(286 NSF), Room 124 (2639 NSF)

6,501 0 $533,082 $82 $0

PAGE:83 of 253 Report Date: 6/8/2021 10:16:11 AM

EDUCATIONAL PLANT FIVE YEAR SURVEY REPORT

Status:

Active Pending

Survey:

Survey: 7 - Version: 1

District:

10-CLAY COUNTY SCHOOL DISTRICT

Page 626 of 962

DRAFT



District Name: CLAY COUNTY SCHOOL DISTRICT

Survey: Number 7 - Version 1

Facility Name: Elementary "R"

Address: CR 315, GREEN COVE

Existing Recommended

Capital Outlay 
Classification

1 - SCHOOL RECOMMENDED FOR 
CONTINUED USE

Facility Use ELEMENTARY

Low Grade PRE-K E S E

High Grade GRADE 6

Comments

Existing
Student Stations 

Added/Reduced(+ or -) Recommended

Perm. Stations 0 906 906

Reloc. Stations 0 0 0

Mod. Stations 0 0 0

Total Stations 0 906 906

Utilization Factor 0% 100%

School Capacity 0 906

COFTE Student 
Membership 0 872

Survey Annotation New facility.

New Site Cost Site 
Expansion

Site 
Development

Site 
Improvement

Remodeling 
Cost

Renovation 
Cost

New 
Construction 

Cost

$0 $0 $500,000 $2,200,000 $0 $0 $23,029,614

Estimated Total Project Cost $25,729,614

Elementary "R" Parcel Building Description Total NSF Change In 
Station Count

Calculated 
Cost

Cost Per 
NSF

Cost Per 
Station

New Construction 2023 New Construction: Adding 25 units 
of PRIMARY CLASSROOM (K-3) 
(882 NSF)

28,300 450 $11,438,550 $404 $25,419

New Construction 2023 New Construction: Adding 16 units 
of INTERMEDIATE/MIDDLE 
CLASSROOM (4-8) (858 NSF)

17,248 352 $8,947,488 $519 $25,419

New Construction 2023 New Construction: Adding 3 units of 
PRIMARY SKILLS LAB (K-3) (882 
NSF)

3,246 0 $0 $276 $0

PAGE:84 of 253 Report Date: 6/8/2021 10:16:11 AM

EDUCATIONAL PLANT FIVE YEAR SURVEY REPORT

Status:

Active Pending

Survey:

Survey: 7 - Version: 1

District:

10-CLAY COUNTY SCHOOL DISTRICT

Page 627 of 962

DRAFT



Elementary "R" Parcel Building Description Total NSF Change In 
Station Count

Calculated 
Cost

Cost Per 
NSF

Cost Per 
Station

New Construction 2023 New Construction: Adding 1 unit of 
ELEMENTARY P E STORAGE (315 
NSF)

315 0 $0 $276 $0

New Construction 2023 New Construction: Adding 1 unit of 
ELEMENTARY COVERED PLAY 
AREA (3240 NSF)

3,240 0 $0 $276 $0

New Construction 2023 New Construction: Adding 1 unit of 
INTERMEDIATE/MIDDLE SCIENCE 
DEMO (4-8) (814 NSF)

1,064 22 $559,218 $526 $25,419

New Construction 2023 New Construction: Adding 1 unit of 
INTERMEDIATE/MIDDLE SCIENCE 
LAB (4-8) (1122 NSF)

1,372 22 $559,218 $408 $25,419

New Construction 2023 New Construction: Adding 6 units of 
RESOURCE ROOM (290 NSF)

2,340 0 $0 $276 $0

New Construction 2023 New Construction: Adding 2 units of 
ART - ELEMENTARY (1000 NSF)

2,500 0 $0 $276 $0

New Construction 2023 New Construction: Adding 2 units of 
MUSIC - ELEMENTARY (1000 NSF)

2,540 0 $0 $276 $0

New Construction 2023 New Construction: Adding 2 units of 
E S E PRE-K (475 NSF)

1,450 10 $254,190 $175 $25,419

New Construction 2023 New Construction: Adding 2 units of 
E S E PART-TIME (975 NSF)

2,370 30 $762,570 $322 $25,419

New Construction 2023 New Construction: Adding 2 units of 
E S E FULL-TIME (950 NSF)

2,540 20 $508,380 $200 $25,419

New Construction 2023 New Construction: Adding 1 unit of E 
S E PT/OT LAB (475 NSF)

725 0 $0 $276 $0

New Construction 2023 New Construction: Adding 3 units of 
E S E RESOURCE (380 NSF)

1,560 0 $0 $276 $0

New Construction 2023 New Construction: Adding 2 units of 
E S E SUPPLEMENTARY 
INSTRUCTION (100 NSF)

400 0 $0 $276 $0

New Construction 2023 New Construction: Adding 2 units of 
E S E OBSERVATION BOOTH (150 
NSF)

300 0 $0 $276 $0

New Construction 2023 New Construction: Adding 1 unit of E 
S E TIME-OUT ROOM (40 NSF)

40 0 $0 $276 $0

New Construction 2023 New Construction: Adding 1 unit of E 
S E AUDIOLOGY LAB (250 NSF)

350 0 $0 $276 $0

New Construction 2023 New Construction: Adding 4 units of 
E S E ITINERANT (200 NSF)

1,200 0 $0 $276 $0

New Construction 2023 New Construction: Adding 1 unit of 
PRINCIPAL/DIRECTOR OFFICE 
(250 NSF)

250 0 $0 $276 $0

New Construction 2023 New Construction: Adding 3 units of 
ASSISTANT PRINCIPAL/OTHER 
OFFICE (175 NSF)

525 0 $0 $276 $0

New Construction 2023 New Construction: Adding 1 unit of 
BOOKKEEPING OFFICE (125 NSF)

125 0 $0 $276 $0

New Construction 2023 New Construction: Adding 4 units of 
SECRETARIAL SPACE (158 NSF)

632 0 $0 $276 $0

New Construction 2023 New Construction: Adding 1 unit of 
RECEPTION AREA (765 NSF)

765 0 $0 $276 $0

New Construction 2023 New Construction: Adding 1 unit of 
PRODUCTION WORKROOM (360 
NSF)

360 0 $0 $276 $0

PAGE:85 of 253 Report Date: 6/8/2021 10:16:11 AM

EDUCATIONAL PLANT FIVE YEAR SURVEY REPORT

Status:

Active Pending

Survey:

Survey: 7 - Version: 1

District:

10-CLAY COUNTY SCHOOL DISTRICT

Page 628 of 962

DRAFT



Elementary "R" Parcel Building Description Total NSF Change In 
Station Count

Calculated 
Cost

Cost Per 
NSF

Cost Per 
Station

New Construction 2023 New Construction: Adding 1 unit of 
CONFERENCE ROOM (630 NSF)

630 0 $0 $276 $0

New Construction 2023 New Construction: Adding 1 unit of 
CLINIC (270 NSF)

270 0 $0 $276 $0

New Construction 2023 New Construction: Adding 1 unit of 
GENERAL SCHOOL STORAGE 
(450 NSF)

450 0 $0 $276 $0

New Construction 2023 New Construction: Adding 1 unit of 
VAULT/STUDENT RECORDS (270 
NSF)

270 0 $0 $276 $0

New Construction 2023 New Construction: Adding 1 unit of 
SCHOOL STORE (90 NSF)

90 0 $0 $276 $0

New Construction 2023 New Construction: Adding 1 unit of 
STUDENT ACTIVITIES (450 NSF)

450 0 $0 $276 $0

New Construction 2023 New Construction: Adding 1 unit of 
COMPUTER AREA (135 NSF)

135 0 $0 $276 $0

New Construction 2023 New Construction: Adding 1 unit of 
CAREERS ROOM (270 NSF)

270 0 $0 $276 $0

New Construction 2023 New Construction: Adding 3 units of 
ITINERANT OFFICE (125 NSF)

375 0 $0 $276 $0

New Construction 2023 New Construction: Adding 1 unit of 
TEACHER PLANNING OFFICE 
(1800 NSF)

1,800 0 $0 $276 $0

New Construction 2023 New Construction: Adding 1 unit of 
TEACHER LOUNGE/DINING (360 
NSF)

360 0 $0 $276 $0

New Construction 2023 New Construction: Adding 1 unit of 
CUSTODIAL RECEIVING (1350 
NSF)

1,350 0 $0 $276 $0

New Construction 2023 New Construction: Adding 1 unit of 
FLAMMABLE STORAGE (155 NSF)

155 0 $0 $276 $0

New Construction 2023 New Construction: Adding 1 unit of 
CUSTODIAL EQUIPMENT 
STORAGE (500 NSF)

500 0 $0 $276 $0

New Construction 2023 New Construction: Adding 1 unit of 
DINING AREA (3600 NSF)

3,600 0 $0 $276 $0

New Construction 2023 New Construction: Adding 1 unit of 
KITCHEN & SERVING AREA (3960 
NSF)

3,960 0 $0 $276 $0

New Construction 2023 New Construction: Adding 1 unit of 
KITCHEN CHAIR STORAGE (180 
NSF)

180 0 $0 $276 $0

New Construction 2023 New Construction: Adding 1 unit of 
MULTIPURPOSE ROOM (DINING) 
(2790 NSF)

2,790 0 $0 $276 $0

New Construction 2023 New Construction: Adding 1 unit of 
MULTIPURPOSE ROOM CHAIR 
STORAGE (180 NSF)

180 0 $0 $276 $0

New Construction 2023 New Construction: Adding 1 unit of 
STAGE (990 NSF)

990 0 $0 $276 $0

New Construction 2023 New Construction: Adding 1 unit of 
STAGE STORAGE (450 NSF)

450 0 $0 $276 $0

New Construction 2023 New Construction: Adding 1 unit of 
STAGE DRESSING ROOM (MALE) 
(225 NSF)

225 0 $0 $276 $0

PAGE:86 of 253 Report Date: 6/8/2021 10:16:11 AM

EDUCATIONAL PLANT FIVE YEAR SURVEY REPORT

Status:

Active Pending

Survey:

Survey: 7 - Version: 1

District:

10-CLAY COUNTY SCHOOL DISTRICT

Page 629 of 962

DRAFT



Elementary "R" Parcel Building Description Total NSF Change In 
Station Count

Calculated 
Cost

Cost Per 
NSF

Cost Per 
Station

New Construction 2023 New Construction: Adding 1 unit of 
STAGE DRESSING ROOM 
(FEMALE) (225 NSF)

225 0 $0 $276 $0

New Construction 2023 New Construction: Adding 1 unit of 
CONTROL BOOTH/PROJECTION 
ROOM (100 NSF)

100 0 $0 $276 $0

New Construction 2023 New Construction: Adding 1 unit of 
TEXTBOOK STORAGE (315 NSF)

315 0 $0 $276 $0

New Construction 2023 New Construction: Adding 1 unit of 
STUDENT PERSONAL STORAGE 
(450 NSF)

450 0 $0 $276 $0

New Construction 2023 New Construction: Adding 1 unit of 
LIBRARY (READING 
ROOM/STACKS) (3330 NSF)

3,330 0 $0 $276 $0

New Construction 2023 New Construction: Adding 1 unit of 
MEDIA TECHNICAL PROCESSING 
(360 NSF)

360 0 $0 $276 $0

New Construction 2023 New Construction: Adding 1 unit of 
PROFESSIONAL LIBRARY (360 
NSF)

360 0 $0 $276 $0

New Construction 2023 New Construction: Adding 1 unit of 
AUDIO VISUAL STORAGE (540 
NSF)

540 0 $0 $276 $0

New Construction 2023 New Construction: Adding 1 unit of 
PERIODICAL STORAGE (180 NSF)

180 0 $0 $276 $0

New Construction 2023 New Construction: Adding 1 unit of 
CLOSED CIRCUIT TV LAB (630 
NSF)

630 0 $0 $276 $0

New Construction 2023 New Construction: Adding 1 unit of 
CLOSED CIRCUIT STORAGE (450 
NSF)

450 0 $0 $276 $0

New Construction 2023 New Construction: Adding 1 unit of 
MEDIA PRODUCTION LAB (450 
NSF)

450 0 $0 $276 $0

New Construction 2023 New Construction: Adding 1 unit of 
MEDIA COPYING ROOM (180 NSF)

180 0 $0 $276 $0

New Construction 2023 New Construction: Adding 1 unit of 
MEDIA SMALL GROUP ROOM (90 
NSF)

90 0 $0 $276 $0

New Construction 2023 New Construction: Adding 1 unit of 
MEDIA GROUP 
PROJECTS/INSTRUCTION (450 
NSF)

450 0 $0 $276 $0

New Construction 2023 New Construction: Adding 1 unit of 
MEDIA MAINTENANCE/REPAIR (90 
NSF)

90 0 $0 $276 $0

New Construction 2023 New Construction: Adding 2 units of 
REFERENCE (100 NSF)

200 0 $0 $276 $0

New Construction 2023 New Construction: Adding 25 units 
of MATERIAL STORAGE (100 NSF)

2,500 0 $0 $276 $0

New Construction 2023 New Construction: Adding 25 units 
of OUTSIDE STORAGE (50 NSF)

1,250 0 $0 $276 $0

New Construction 2023 New Construction: Adding 1 unit of 
PROJECT STORAGE (150 NSF)

150 0 $0 $276 $0

New Construction 2023 New Construction: Adding 25 units 
of STUDENT STORAGE (40 NSF)

1,000 0 $0 $276 $0

PAGE:87 of 253 Report Date: 6/8/2021 10:16:11 AM

EDUCATIONAL PLANT FIVE YEAR SURVEY REPORT

Status:

Active Pending

Survey:

Survey: 7 - Version: 1

District:

10-CLAY COUNTY SCHOOL DISTRICT

Page 630 of 962

DRAFT



Elementary "R" Parcel Building Description Total NSF Change In 
Station Count

Calculated 
Cost

Cost Per 
NSF

Cost Per 
Station

New Construction 2023 New Construction: Adding 25 units 
of STUDENT RESTROOM (BOTH 
SEXES) (60 NSF)

1,500 0 $0 $276 $0

New Construction 2023 New Construction: Adding 16 units 
of STUDENT RESTROOM (MALE) 
(35 NSF)

560 0 $0 $276 $0

New Construction 2023 New Construction: Adding 16 units 
of STUDENT RESTROOM 
(FEMALE) (35 NSF)

560 0 $0 $276 $0

New Construction 2023 New Construction: Adding 2 units of 
STUDENT RESTROOM & BATH 
(110 NSF)

220 0 $0 $276 $0

New Construction 2023 New Construction: Adding 2 units of 
MUSIC PRACTICE ROOM (70 NSF)

140 0 $0 $276 $0

New Construction 2023 New Construction: Adding 16 units 
of MATERIAL STORAGE (100 NSF)

1,600 0 $0 $276 $0

New Construction 2023 New Construction: Adding 16 units 
of OUTSIDE STORAGE (50 NSF)

800 0 $0 $276 $0

New Construction 2023 New Construction: Adding 3 units of 
MATERIAL STORAGE (100 NSF)

300 0 $0 $276 $0

New Construction 2023 New Construction: Adding 3 units of 
STUDENT STORAGE (40 NSF)

120 0 $0 $276 $0

New Construction 2023 New Construction: Adding 3 units of 
STUDENT RESTROOM (BOTH 
SEXES) (60 NSF)

180 0 $0 $276 $0

New Construction 2023 New Construction: Adding 1 unit of 
MATERIAL STORAGE (100 NSF)

100 0 $0 $276 $0

New Construction 2023 New Construction: Adding 1 unit of 
MATERIAL STORAGE (100 NSF)

100 0 $0 $276 $0

New Construction 2023 New Construction: Adding 1 unit of 
PROJECT STORAGE (150 NSF)

150 0 $0 $276 $0

New Construction 2023 New Construction: Adding 6 units of 
MATERIAL STORAGE (100 NSF)

600 0 $0 $276 $0

New Construction 2023 New Construction: Adding 2 units of 
MATERIAL STORAGE (100 NSF)

200 0 $0 $276 $0

New Construction 2023 New Construction: Adding 2 units of 
PROJECT STORAGE (150 NSF)

300 0 $0 $276 $0

New Construction 2023 New Construction: Adding 2 units of 
MATERIAL STORAGE (100 NSF)

200 0 $0 $276 $0

New Construction 2023 New Construction: Adding 2 units of 
MATERIAL STORAGE (100 NSF)

200 0 $0 $276 $0

New Construction 2023 New Construction: Adding 2 units of 
STUDENT STORAGE (40 NSF)

80 0 $0 $276 $0

New Construction 2023 New Construction: Adding 2 units of 
MATERIAL STORAGE (100 NSF)

200 0 $0 $276 $0

New Construction 2023 New Construction: Adding 2 units of 
STUDENT STORAGE (40 NSF)

80 0 $0 $276 $0

New Construction 2023 New Construction: Adding 2 units of 
STUDENT RESTROOM (MALE) (35 
NSF)

70 0 $0 $276 $0

New Construction 2023 New Construction: Adding 2 units of 
STUDENT RESTROOM (FEMALE) 
(35 NSF)

70 0 $0 $276 $0

New Construction 2023 New Construction: Adding 2 units of 
MATERIAL STORAGE (100 NSF)

200 0 $0 $276 $0

PAGE:88 of 253 Report Date: 6/8/2021 10:16:11 AM

EDUCATIONAL PLANT FIVE YEAR SURVEY REPORT

Status:

Active Pending

Survey:

Survey: 7 - Version: 1

District:

10-CLAY COUNTY SCHOOL DISTRICT

Page 631 of 962

DRAFT



Elementary "R" Parcel Building Description Total NSF Change In 
Station Count

Calculated 
Cost

Cost Per 
NSF

Cost Per 
Station

New Construction 2023 New Construction: Adding 2 units of 
STUDENT STORAGE (40 NSF)

80 0 $0 $276 $0

New Construction 2023 New Construction: Adding 2 units of 
STUDENT RESTROOM (MALE) (35 
NSF)

70 0 $0 $276 $0

New Construction 2023 New Construction: Adding 2 units of 
STUDENT RESTROOM (FEMALE) 
(35 NSF)

70 0 $0 $276 $0

New Construction 2023 New Construction: Adding 2 units of 
STUDENT RESTROOM & BATH 
(110 NSF)

220 0 $0 $276 $0

New Construction 2023 New Construction: Adding 1 unit of 
MATERIAL STORAGE (100 NSF)

100 0 $0 $276 $0

New Construction 2023 New Construction: Adding 1 unit of 
STUDENT STORAGE (40 NSF)

40 0 $0 $276 $0

New Construction 2023 New Construction: Adding 1 unit of 
STUDENT RESTROOM & BATH 
(110 NSF)

110 0 $0 $276 $0

New Construction 2023 New Construction: Adding 3 units of 
MATERIAL STORAGE (100 NSF)

300 0 $0 $276 $0

New Construction 2023 New Construction: Adding 3 units of 
STUDENT STORAGE (40 NSF)

120 0 $0 $276 $0

New Construction 2023 New Construction: Adding 2 units of 
MATERIAL STORAGE (100 NSF)

200 0 $0 $276 $0

New Construction 2023 New Construction: Adding 1 unit of 
MATERIAL STORAGE (100 NSF)

100 0 $0 $276 $0

New Construction 2023 New Construction: Adding 4 units of 
MATERIAL STORAGE (100 NSF)

400 0 $0 $276 $0

New Construction 2023 New Construction: Adding 16 units 
of STUDENT RESTROOM (MALE) 
(90 NSF)

1,440 0 $0 $276 $0

New Construction 2023 New Construction: Adding 16 units 
of STUDENT RESTROOM 
(FEMALE) (90 NSF)

1,440 0 $0 $276 $0

PAGE:89 of 253 Report Date: 6/8/2021 10:16:11 AM

EDUCATIONAL PLANT FIVE YEAR SURVEY REPORT

Status:

Active Pending

Survey:

Survey: 7 - Version: 1

District:

10-CLAY COUNTY SCHOOL DISTRICT

Page 632 of 962

DRAFT



District Name: CLAY COUNTY SCHOOL DISTRICT

Survey: Number 7 - Version 1

Facility Name: FLEMING ISLAND ELEMENTARY

Address: 4425 LAKESHORE DRIVE, ORANGE PARK

Existing Recommended

Capital Outlay 
Classification

1 - SCHOOL RECOMMENDED FOR 
CONTINUED USE

1 - SCHOOL RECOMMENDED FOR 
CONTINUED USE

Facility Use ELEMENTARY ELEMENTARY

Low Grade PRE-K E S E PRE-K E S E

High Grade GRADE 6 GRADE 6

Comments

Existing
Student Stations 

Added/Reduced(+ or -) Recommended

Perm. Stations 316 80 396

Reloc. Stations 596 0 596

Mod. Stations 0 0 0

Total Stations 912 80 992

Utilization Factor 100% 100%

School Capacity 912 992

COFTE Student 
Membership 718 946

Survey Annotation

Correct Site Drainage Problems.                                        Construct Additional Covered 
Walkways Where Needed. 
Renovate Buildings 1-4 and 7.
Construct Elementary Covered Play Area, (2) Intermediate Classrooms and (2) Primary 
Classrooms.                             (Other)
District-Wide Recommendations for this facility are: Improve Security Fencing and Lighting.

New Site Cost Site 
Expansion

Site 
Development

Site 
Improvement

Remodeling 
Cost

Renovation 
Cost

New 
Construction 

Cost

$0 $0 $0 $45,000 $0 $4,554,854 $2,033,520

Estimated Total Project Cost $6,633,374

PAGE:90 of 253 Report Date: 6/8/2021 10:16:11 AM

EDUCATIONAL PLANT FIVE YEAR SURVEY REPORT

Status:

Active Pending

Survey:

Survey: 7 - Version: 1

District:

10-CLAY COUNTY SCHOOL DISTRICT

Page 633 of 962

DRAFT



FLEMING ISLAND 
ELEMENTARY

Parcel Building Description Total NSF Change In 
Station Count

Calculated 
Cost

Cost Per 
NSF

Cost Per 
Station

New Construction 2026 New Construction: Adding 1 unit of 
ELEMENTARY COVERED PLAY 
AREA (2600 NSF), 2 units of 
PRIMARY CLASSROOM (K-3) (882 
NSF), 2 units of 
INTERMEDIATE/MIDDLE 
CLASSROOM (4-8) (858 NSF)

7,020 80 $2,033,520 $290 $25,419

Renovation 2026 42 1 Renovating: Apply Painting, Floor 
Cover, Electrical, Plumbing, 
Windows, Lighting, Restrooms, 
HVAC Systems, Bell/Fire Alarm 
Systems, Retrofit for Technology to 
Room 101 (475 NSF), Room 102 
(71 NSF), Room 103 (289 NSF), 
Room 104 (215 NSF), Room 105 
(133 NSF), Room 106 (450 NSF), 
Room 107 (73 NSF), Room 109 (73 
NSF), Room 110 (151 NSF), Room 
111 (150 NSF), Room 113 (310 
NSF), Room 114 (609 NSF), Room 
115 (277 NSF), Room 116 (103 
NSF), Room 117 (277 NSF), Room 
118 (135 NSF), Room 119 (357 
NSF), Room 120 (243 NSF), Room 
121 (322 NSF), Room 122 (76 NSF), 
Room 123 (352 NSF), Room 125 
(189 NSF), Room 126 (193 NSF), 
Room 127 (386 NSF), Room 128 
(304 NSF), Room 129 (163 NSF), 
Room 130 (215 NSF), Room 131 
(144 NSF), Room 132 (144 NSF), 
Room 133 (222 NSF), Room 134 
(232 NSF), Room 135 (191 NSF), 
Room 136 (190 NSF), Room 137 
(330 NSF), Room 137A (17 NSF), 
Room 138 (44 NSF), Room 139 
(287 NSF), Room 140 (109 NSF), 
Room 141 (135 NSF), Room 142 
(171 NSF)

8,807 0 $722,174 $82 $0

Renovation 2026 42 2 Renovating: Apply Painting, Floor 
Cover, Electrical, Plumbing, 
Windows, Lighting, Restrooms, 
HVAC Systems, Bell/Fire Alarm 
Systems, Retrofit for Technology to 
Room 201 (3872 NSF), Room 201A 
(2069 NSF), Room 202 (1069 NSF), 
Room 203 (91 NSF), Room 204 
(279 NSF), Room 205 (34 NSF), 
Room 206 (246 NSF), Room 207 
(287 NSF), Room 208 (153 NSF), 
Room 209 (123 NSF), Room 211 
(143 NSF), Room 212 (703 NSF), 
Room 213 (91 NSF), Room 215 
(393 NSF), Room 216 (617 NSF), 
Room 217 (330 NSF), Room 219 
(1182 NSF), Room 220 (97 NSF), 
Room 221 (118 NSF), Room 222 
(118 NSF), Room 223 (85 NSF), 
Room 224 (221 NSF), Room 225 
(15 NSF), Room 226 (295 NSF), 
Room 227 (118 NSF), Room 228 (36 
NSF), Room 229 (773 NSF), Room 
230 (204 NSF), Room 231 (249 
NSF), Room 232 (574 NSF), Room 
233 (44 NSF)

14,629 0 $1,199,578 $82 $0

PAGE:91 of 253 Report Date: 6/8/2021 10:16:11 AM

EDUCATIONAL PLANT FIVE YEAR SURVEY REPORT

Status:

Active Pending

Survey:

Survey: 7 - Version: 1

District:

10-CLAY COUNTY SCHOOL DISTRICT

Page 634 of 962

DRAFT



FLEMING ISLAND 
ELEMENTARY

Parcel Building Description Total NSF Change In 
Station Count

Calculated 
Cost

Cost Per 
NSF

Cost Per 
Station

Renovation 2026 42 3 Renovating: Apply Painting, Floor 
Cover, Electrical, Plumbing, 
Windows, Lighting, Restrooms, 
HVAC Systems, Bell/Fire Alarm 
Systems, Retrofit for Technology to 
Room 301 (252 NSF), Room 302 
(58 NSF), Room 303 (320 NSF), 
Room 304 (700 NSF), Room 305 
(226 NSF), Room 306 (60 NSF), 
Room 307 (53 NSF), Room 308 (53 
NSF), Room 309 (110 NSF), Room 
310 (260 NSF), Room 311 (263 
NSF), Room 312 (139 NSF), Room 
313 (486 NSF), Room 314 (3311 
NSF), Room 317 (327 NSF), Room 
318 (199 NSF), Room 319 (524 
NSF), Room 320 (353 NSF), Room 
321 (188 NSF), Room 322 (184 
NSF), Room 323 (767 NSF), Room 
324 (90 NSF), Room 324A (18 NSF)

8,941 0 $733,162 $82 $0

Renovation 2026 42 4 Renovating: Apply Painting, Floor 
Cover, Electrical, Plumbing, 
Windows, Lighting, Restrooms, 
HVAC Systems, Bell/Fire Alarm 
Systems, Retrofit for Technology to 
Room 400 (1903 NSF), Room 401 
(996 NSF), Room 402 (100 NSF), 
Room 403 (32 NSF), Room 404 
(179 NSF), Room 406 (996 NSF), 
Room 407 (100 NSF), Room 408 
(32 NSF), Room 409 (996 NSF), 
Room 410 (100 NSF), Room 411 (32 
NSF), Room 412 (179 NSF), Room 
414 (996 NSF), Room 415 (100 
NSF), Room 416 (32 NSF), Room 
417 (988 NSF), Room 418 (100 
NSF), Room 419 (32 NSF), Room 
420 (184 NSF), Room 422 (988 
NSF), Room 423 (100 NSF), Room 
424 (32 NSF), Room 425 (996 NSF), 
Room 426 (100 NSF), Room 427 
(32 NSF), Room 428 (179 NSF), 
Room 430 (988 NSF), Room 431 
(100 NSF), Room 432 (32 NSF), 
Room 433 (128 NSF), Room 434 
(115 NSF), Room 435 (14 NSF), 
Room 436 (48 NSF), Room 437 
(152 NSF)

12,081 0 $990,642 $82 $0

PAGE:92 of 253 Report Date: 6/8/2021 10:16:11 AM

EDUCATIONAL PLANT FIVE YEAR SURVEY REPORT

Status:

Active Pending

Survey:

Survey: 7 - Version: 1

District:

10-CLAY COUNTY SCHOOL DISTRICT

Page 635 of 962

DRAFT



FLEMING ISLAND 
ELEMENTARY

Parcel Building Description Total NSF Change In 
Station Count

Calculated 
Cost

Cost Per 
NSF

Cost Per 
Station

Renovation 2026 42 7 Renovating: Apply Painting, Floor 
Cover, Electrical, Plumbing, 
Windows, Lighting, Restrooms, 
HVAC Systems, Bell/Fire Alarm 
Systems, Retrofit for Technology to 
Room 700 (297 NSF), Room 701 
(966 NSF), Room 702 (107 NSF), 
Room 703 (146 NSF), Room 704 
(1496 NSF), Room 705 (103 NSF), 
Room 706 (49 NSF), Room 707 
(108 NSF), Room 708 (132 NSF), 
Room 709 (62 NSF), Room 711 
(1273 NSF), Room 712 (959 NSF), 
Room 713 (246 NSF), Room 714 
(136 NSF), Room 715 (289 NSF), 
Room 716 (24 NSF), Room 717 (67 
NSF), Room 718 (67 NSF), Room 
719 (80 NSF), Room 720 (34 NSF), 
Room 721 (959 NSF), Room 722 
(91 NSF), Room 724 (959 NSF), 
Room 725 (246 NSF), Room 726 
(283 NSF), Room 727 (289 NSF), 
Room 728 (34 NSF), Room 729 (80 
NSF), Room 730 (67 NSF), Room 
731 (67 NSF), Room 732 (24 NSF), 
Room 733 (959 NSF), Room 734 
(158 NSF), Room 736 (80 NSF), 
Room 738 (152 NSF)

11,089 0 $909,298 $82 $0

PAGE:93 of 253 Report Date: 6/8/2021 10:16:11 AM

EDUCATIONAL PLANT FIVE YEAR SURVEY REPORT

Status:

Active Pending

Survey:

Survey: 7 - Version: 1

District:

10-CLAY COUNTY SCHOOL DISTRICT

Page 636 of 962

DRAFT



District Name: CLAY COUNTY SCHOOL DISTRICT

Survey: Number 7 - Version 1

Facility Name: FLEMING ISLAND SENIOR HIGH

Address: 2233 VILLAGE SQUARE PARKWAY, ORANGE PARK

Existing Recommended

Capital Outlay 
Classification

1 - SCHOOL RECOMMENDED FOR 
CONTINUED USE

1 - SCHOOL RECOMMENDED FOR 
CONTINUED USE

Facility Use SENIOR HIGH SENIOR HIGH

Low Grade GRADE 9 GRADE 9

High Grade GRADE 12 GRADE 12

Comments

Existing
Student Stations 

Added/Reduced(+ or -) Recommended

Perm. Stations 1,265 0 1265

Reloc. Stations 1,270 0 1270

Mod. Stations 0 0 0

Total Stations 2,535 0 2535

Utilization Factor 95% 95%

School Capacity 2,408 2408

COFTE Student 
Membership 1,798 1,995

Survey Annotation
Correct Site Drainage Problems. 
Construct Additional Covered Walkways Where Needed.   (Other)
District-Wide Recommendations for this facility are: Improve Security Fencing and Lighting.

New Site Cost Site 
Expansion

Site 
Development

Site 
Improvement

Remodeling 
Cost

Renovation 
Cost

New 
Construction 

Cost

$0 $0 $0 $45,000 $0 $0 $0

Estimated Total Project Cost $45,000

FLEMING ISLAND 
SENIOR HIGH

Parcel Building Description Total NSF Change In 
Station Count

Calculated 
Cost

Cost Per 
NSF

Cost Per 
Station

 

PAGE:94 of 253 Report Date: 6/8/2021 10:16:11 AM

EDUCATIONAL PLANT FIVE YEAR SURVEY REPORT

Status:

Active Pending

Survey:

Survey: 7 - Version: 1

District:

10-CLAY COUNTY SCHOOL DISTRICT

Page 637 of 962

DRAFT



District Name: CLAY COUNTY SCHOOL DISTRICT

Survey: Number 7 - Version 1

Facility Name: FOOD SERVICES STORAGE

Address: 720 CENTER STREET, GREEN COVE SPRINGS

Existing Recommended

Capital Outlay 
Classification

6 - ANCILLARY RECOMMENDED FOR 
CONTINUED USE

6 - ANCILLARY RECOMMENDED FOR 
CONTINUED USE

Facility Use MULTIPLE USE SUPPORT MULTIPLE USE SUPPORT

Low Grade DISTRICT SERVICES DISTRICT SERVICES

High Grade DISTRICT SERVICES DISTRICT SERVICES

Comments

Existing
Student Stations 

Added/Reduced(+ or -) Recommended

Perm. Stations 0 0 0

Reloc. Stations 0 0 0

Mod. Stations 0 0 0

Total Stations 0 0 0

Utilization Factor 0% 0%

School Capacity 0 0

COFTE Student 
Membership 0 0

Survey Annotation No new recommendations.

New Site Cost Site 
Expansion

Site 
Development

Site 
Improvement

Remodeling 
Cost

Renovation 
Cost

New 
Construction 

Cost

$0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0

Estimated Total Project Cost $0

FOOD SERVICES 
STORAGE

Parcel Building Description Total NSF Change In 
Station Count

Calculated 
Cost

Cost Per 
NSF

Cost Per 
Station

 

PAGE:95 of 253 Report Date: 6/8/2021 10:16:11 AM

EDUCATIONAL PLANT FIVE YEAR SURVEY REPORT

Status:

Active Pending

Survey:

Survey: 7 - Version: 1

District:

10-CLAY COUNTY SCHOOL DISTRICT

Page 638 of 962

DRAFT



District Name: CLAY COUNTY SCHOOL DISTRICT

Survey: Number 7 - Version 1

Facility Name: GREEN COVE SPRINGS JUNIOR HIGH

Address: WALNUT STREET, GREEN COVE SPRINGS

Existing Recommended

Capital Outlay 
Classification

1 - SCHOOL RECOMMENDED FOR 
CONTINUED USE

1 - SCHOOL RECOMMENDED FOR 
CONTINUED USE

Facility Use MIDDLE JUNIOR HIGH

Low Grade GRADE 7 GRADE 7

High Grade GRADE 8 GRADE 8

Comments

Existing
Student Stations 

Added/Reduced(+ or -) Recommended

Perm. Stations 878 0 878

Reloc. Stations 147 0 147

Mod. Stations 0 0 0

Total Stations 1,025 0 1025

Utilization Factor 90% 90%

School Capacity 922 922

COFTE Student 
Membership 820 824

Survey Annotation
Renovate Buildings 1-9, 42 and 43.                                 Correct Site Drainage Problems.  
Construct Additional Covered Walkways Where Needed.  (Other)
District-Wide Recommendations for this facility are: Improve Security Fencing and Lighting.

New Site Cost Site 
Expansion

Site 
Development

Site 
Improvement

Remodeling 
Cost

Renovation 
Cost

New 
Construction 

Cost

$0 $0 $0 $45,000 $0 $11,929,002 $0

Estimated Total Project Cost $11,974,002

PAGE:96 of 253 Report Date: 6/8/2021 10:16:11 AM

EDUCATIONAL PLANT FIVE YEAR SURVEY REPORT

Status:

Active Pending

Survey:

Survey: 7 - Version: 1

District:

10-CLAY COUNTY SCHOOL DISTRICT

Page 639 of 962

DRAFT



GREEN COVE SPRINGS 
JUNIOR HIGH

Parcel Building Description Total NSF Change In 
Station Count

Calculated 
Cost

Cost Per 
NSF

Cost Per 
Station

Renovation 2026 2 1 Renovating: Apply Painting, Floor 
Cover, Electrical, Plumbing, 
Windows, Lighting, Restrooms, 
HVAC Systems, Bell/Fire Alarm 
Systems, Retrofit for Technology to 
Room 001 (782 NSF), Room 001A 
(85 NSF), Room 002 (782 NSF), 
Room 003 (690 NSF), Room 004 
(690 NSF), Room 005 (690 NSF), 
Room 006 (690 NSF), Room 007 
(963 NSF), Room 008 (690 NSF), 
Room 008A (50 NSF), Room 010 
(782 NSF), Room 010A (125 NSF), 
Room 011 (782 NSF), Room 012 
(690 NSF), Room 013 (690 NSF), 
Room 014 (1667 NSF), Room 014A 
(37 NSF), Room 015 (741 NSF), 
Room 015A (437 NSF), Room 015B 
(216 NSF), Room 015C (85 NSF), 
Room 016 (64 NSF), Room 017 (32 
NSF), Room 018 (85 NSF), Room 
027 (136 NSF), Room 027A (38 
NSF), Room 027B (38 NSF), Room 
027C (8 NSF), Room 027D (8 NSF), 
Room 027E (8 NSF), Room 028 
(176 NSF), Room 028A (38 NSF), 
Room 028B (38 NSF), Room 029 
(180 NSF), Room 029A (20 NSF), 
Room 029B (20 NSF), Room 052 
(96 NSF), Room 053 (50 NSF), 
Room 100 (137 NSF), Room 101 
(171 NSF), Room 103 (135 NSF), 
Room 107 (171 NSF), Room 126 
(510 NSF), Room 127 (236 NSF), 
Room 128 (47 NSF), Room 129 
(233 NSF), Room 130 (175 NSF), 
Room 131 (69 NSF), Room 132 
(168 NSF), Room 133 (168 NSF), 
Room 133A (40 NSF), Room 134 
(174 NSF), Room 135 (219 NSF), 
Room 136 (158 NSF), Room 137 
(157 NSF), Room 138 (211 NSF), 
Room 139 (147 NSF), Room 139A 
(21 NSF), Room 140 (35 NSF), 
Room 141 (276 NSF), Room 143 
(47 NSF), Room 144 (261 NSF), 
Room 144A (25 NSF), Room 145 
(172 NSF), Room 146 (155 NSF), 
Room 146A (46 NSF), Room 146B 
(28 NSF), Room 146C (170 NSF), 
Room 147 (429 NSF), Room 800 
(1775 NSF), Room 801 (515 NSF), 
Room 802 (3047 NSF), Room 803 
(638 NSF)

24,365 0 $2,607,055 $107 $0

PAGE:97 of 253 Report Date: 6/8/2021 10:16:11 AM

EDUCATIONAL PLANT FIVE YEAR SURVEY REPORT

Status:

Active Pending

Survey:

Survey: 7 - Version: 1

District:

10-CLAY COUNTY SCHOOL DISTRICT

Page 640 of 962

DRAFT



GREEN COVE SPRINGS 
JUNIOR HIGH

Parcel Building Description Total NSF Change In 
Station Count

Calculated 
Cost

Cost Per 
NSF

Cost Per 
Station

Renovation 2026 2 2 Renovating: Apply Painting, Floor 
Cover, Electrical, Plumbing, 
Windows, Lighting, Restrooms, 
HVAC Systems, Bell/Fire Alarm 
Systems, Retrofit for Technology to 
Room 016 (1196 NSF), Room 016A 
(5 NSF), Room 016B (300 NSF), 
Room 017 (1196 NSF), Room 017A 
(6 NSF), Room 018 (1196 NSF), 
Room 018A (6 NSF), Room 019 
(1196 NSF), Room 019A (5 NSF), 
Room 019B (165 NSF), Room 019C 
(118 NSF), Room 019D (9 NSF), 
Room 020 (1327 NSF), Room 020A 
(80 NSF), Room 021 (656 NSF), 
Room 021A (6 NSF), Room 021B 
(75 NSF), Room 022 (681 NSF), 
Room 022A (6 NSF), Room 023 (30 
NSF), Room 024 (30 NSF), Room 
104 (219 NSF), Room 105 (222 
NSF), Room 800 (1938 NSF), Room 
800A (10 NSF)

10,678 0 $1,142,546 $107 $0

Renovation 2026 2 3 Renovating: Apply Painting, Floor 
Cover, Electrical, Plumbing, 
Windows, Lighting, Restrooms, 
HVAC Systems, Bell/Fire Alarm 
Systems, Retrofit for Technology to 
Room 030 (688 NSF), Room 030B 
(50 NSF), Room 031 (688 NSF), 
Room 031B (84 NSF), Room 032 
(688 NSF), Room 033 (688 NSF), 
Room 034 (960 NSF), Room 035 
(960 NSF), Room 106 (171 NSF), 
Room 107 (136 NSF), Room 800 
(1190 NSF)

6,303 0 $674,421 $107 $0

Renovation 2026 2 4 Renovating: Apply Painting, Floor 
Cover, Electrical, Plumbing, 
Windows, Lighting, Restrooms, 
HVAC Systems, Bell/Fire Alarm 
Systems, Retrofit for Technology to 
Room 401 (912 NSF), Room 402 
(48 NSF), Room 403 (48 NSF), 
Room 404 (936 NSF), Room 405 
(83 NSF), Room 406 (53 NSF), 
Room 407 (877 NSF), Room 408 
(56 NSF), Room 409 (65 NSF), 
Room 410 (222 NSF), Room 411 
(1015 NSF), Room 411B (50 NSF), 
Room 412 (48 NSF), Room 413 (75 
NSF), Room 414 (62 NSF), Room 
415 (376 NSF), Room 416 (58 NSF), 
Room 417 (82 NSF), Room 418 
(324 NSF), Room 419 (80 NSF), 
Room 420 (153 NSF), Room 421 
(81 NSF), Room 422 (224 NSF), 
Room 422A (56 NSF), Room 423 
(152 NSF), Room 423A (140 NSF), 
Room 423B (28 NSF), Room 424 
(1350 NSF), Room 425 (630 NSF), 
Room 426 (201 NSF)

8,485 0 $907,895 $107 $0

PAGE:98 of 253 Report Date: 6/8/2021 10:16:11 AM

EDUCATIONAL PLANT FIVE YEAR SURVEY REPORT

Status:

Active Pending

Survey:

Survey: 7 - Version: 1

District:

10-CLAY COUNTY SCHOOL DISTRICT

Page 641 of 962

DRAFT



GREEN COVE SPRINGS 
JUNIOR HIGH

Parcel Building Description Total NSF Change In 
Station Count

Calculated 
Cost

Cost Per 
NSF

Cost Per 
Station

Renovation 2026 2 5 Renovating: Apply Painting, Floor 
Cover, Electrical, Plumbing, 
Windows, Lighting, Restrooms, 
HVAC Systems, Bell/Fire Alarm 
Systems, Retrofit for Technology to 
Room 501 (8556 NSF), Room 502 
(236 NSF), Room 503 (236 NSF), 
Room 504 (2204 NSF), Room 510 
(34 NSF), Room 511 (110 NSF), 
Room 512 (33 NSF), Room 513 (8 
NSF), Room 514 (8 NSF), Room 
515 (30 NSF), Room 516 (84 NSF), 
Room 517 (784 NSF), Room 520 
(34 NSF), Room 521 (110 NSF), 
Room 522 (33 NSF), Room 523 (8 
NSF), Room 524 (8 NSF), Room 
525 (30 NSF), Room 526 (84 NSF), 
Room 527 (1044 NSF), Room 528 
(73 NSF), Room 530 (71 NSF), 
Room 531 (75 NSF), Room 532 (39 
NSF), Room 533 (139 NSF), Room 
534 (555 NSF), Room 535 (767 
NSF), Room 540 (71 NSF), Room 
541 (75 NSF), Room 542 (39 NSF), 
Room 543 (139 NSF), Room 544 
(555 NSF), Room 545 (767 NSF)

17,039 0 $1,823,173 $107 $0

Renovation 2026 2 6 Renovating: Apply Painting, Floor 
Cover, Electrical, Plumbing, 
Windows, Lighting, Restrooms, 
HVAC Systems, Bell/Fire Alarm 
Systems, Retrofit for Technology to 
Room 101 (2286 NSF), Room 102 
(160 NSF), Room 103 (774 NSF), 
Room 104 (94 NSF), Room 105 
(104 NSF), Room 106 (104 NSF), 
Room 107 (104 NSF), Room 108 
(306 NSF), Room 109 (1228 NSF), 
Room 110 (156 NSF), Room 111 
(158 NSF), Room 112 (82 NSF), 
Room 113 (130 NSF), Room 114 
(108 NSF), Room 115 (35 NSF), 
Room 116A (38 NSF), Room 116B 
(34 NSF), Room 117 (630 NSF), 
Room 118 (78 NSF), Room 119 (52 
NSF), Room 120 (52 NSF), Room 
121 (13 NSF), Room 122 (52 NSF), 
Room 123 (47 NSF)

6,825 0 $730,275 $107 $0

PAGE:99 of 253 Report Date: 6/8/2021 10:16:11 AM

EDUCATIONAL PLANT FIVE YEAR SURVEY REPORT

Status:

Active Pending

Survey:

Survey: 7 - Version: 1

District:

10-CLAY COUNTY SCHOOL DISTRICT

Page 642 of 962

DRAFT



GREEN COVE SPRINGS 
JUNIOR HIGH

Parcel Building Description Total NSF Change In 
Station Count

Calculated 
Cost

Cost Per 
NSF

Cost Per 
Station

Renovation 2026 2 7 Renovating: Apply Painting, Floor 
Cover, Electrical, Plumbing, 
Windows, Lighting, Restrooms, 
HVAC Systems, Bell/Fire Alarm 
Systems, Retrofit for Technology to 
Room 701 (4286 NSF), Room 702 
(686 NSF), Room 703 (403 NSF), 
Room 705 (249 NSF), Room 706 
(705 NSF), Room 707 (473 NSF), 
Room 708 (579 NSF), Room 709 
(754 NSF), Room 710 (16 NSF), 
Room 711 (65 NSF), Room 712 (118 
NSF), Room 713 (129 NSF), Room 
714 (188 NSF), Room 715 (497 
NSF), Room 716 (111 NSF), Room 
717 (60 NSF), Room 718 (60 NSF), 
Room 719 (60 NSF), Room 720 (56 
NSF), Room 721 (466 NSF), Room 
722 (254 NSF), Room 723 (886 
NSF), Room 724 (145 NSF), Room 
725 (48 NSF)

11,294 0 $1,208,458 $107 $0

Renovation 2026 2 8 Renovating: Apply Painting, Floor 
Cover, Electrical, Plumbing, 
Windows, Lighting, Restrooms, 
HVAC Systems, Bell/Fire Alarm 
Systems, Retrofit for Technology to 
Room 801 (7000 NSF), Room 802 
(142 NSF), Room 803 (568 NSF), 
Room 804 (139 NSF), Room 805 
(1292 NSF), Room 806 (68 NSF), 
Room 807 (272 NSF), Room 808 
(299 NSF), Room 809 (252 NSF), 
Room 810 (287 NSF), Room 811 
(224 NSF), Room 812 (49 NSF), 
Room 813 (243 NSF), Room 814 
(1075 NSF), Room 815 (1339 NSF), 
Room 816 (457 NSF), Room 817 
(100 NSF), Room 818 (298 NSF), 
Room 819 (173 NSF), Room 820 
(362 NSF), Room 821 (18 NSF), 
Room 822 (36 NSF), Room 823 (74 
NSF), Room 824 (158 NSF), Room 
825 (140 NSF), Room 826 (255 
NSF), Room 827 (432 NSF), Room 
828 (422 NSF), Room 829 (49 NSF), 
Room 830 (49 NSF), Room 831 (68 
NSF), Room 833 (124 NSF), Room 
835 (96 NSF), Room 836 (24 NSF)

16,584 0 $1,774,488 $107 $0

PAGE:100 of 253 Report Date: 6/8/2021 10:16:11 AM

EDUCATIONAL PLANT FIVE YEAR SURVEY REPORT

Status:

Active Pending

Survey:

Survey: 7 - Version: 1

District:

10-CLAY COUNTY SCHOOL DISTRICT

Page 643 of 962

DRAFT



GREEN COVE SPRINGS 
JUNIOR HIGH

Parcel Building Description Total NSF Change In 
Station Count

Calculated 
Cost

Cost Per 
NSF

Cost Per 
Station

Renovation 2026 2 9 Renovating: Apply Painting, Floor 
Cover, Electrical, Plumbing, 
Windows, Lighting, Restrooms, 
HVAC Systems, Bell/Fire Alarm 
Systems, Retrofit for Technology to 
Room 901 (370 NSF), Room 902 
(50 NSF), Room 903 (50 NSF), 
Room 904 (1229 NSF), Room 905 
(157 NSF), Room 906 (105 NSF), 
Room 907 (154 NSF), Room 908 
(107 NSF), Room 909 (419 NSF), 
Room 910 (304 NSF), Room 911 
(110 NSF), Room 912 (70 NSF), 
Room 913 (56 NSF), Room 914 
(1985 NSF), Room 915 (188 NSF), 
Room 916 (109 NSF), Room 917 
(57 NSF), Room 918 (305 NSF), 
Room 919 (119 NSF), Room 920 (65 
NSF), Room 921 (70 NSF), Room 
922 (425 NSF), Room 923 (190 
NSF), Room 924 (167 NSF), Room 
925 (150 NSF), Room 926 (97 NSF), 
Room 927 (121 NSF), Room 928 
(192 NSF), Room 929 (80 NSF), 
Room 930 (190 NSF)

7,691 0 $822,937 $107 $0

Renovation 2026 3 42 Renovating: Apply Painting, Floor 
Cover, Electrical, Plumbing, 
Windows, Lighting, Restrooms, 
HVAC Systems, Bell/Fire Alarm 
Systems, Retrofit for Technology to 
Room 001 (182 NSF), Room 002 
(182 NSF), Room 003 (182 NSF), 
Room 004 (182 NSF), Room 005 
(224 NSF), Room 006 (224 NSF), 
Room 007 (220 NSF)

1,396 0 $149,372 $107 $0

Renovation 2026 3 43 Renovating: Apply Painting, Floor 
Cover, Electrical, Plumbing, 
Windows, Lighting, Restrooms, 
HVAC Systems, Bell/Fire Alarm 
Systems, Retrofit for Technology to 
Room 001 (77 NSF), Room 002 (77 
NSF), Room 003 (672 NSF)

826 0 $88,382 $107 $0

PAGE:101 of 253 Report Date: 6/8/2021 10:16:11 AM

EDUCATIONAL PLANT FIVE YEAR SURVEY REPORT

Status:

Active Pending

Survey:

Survey: 7 - Version: 1

District:

10-CLAY COUNTY SCHOOL DISTRICT

Page 644 of 962

DRAFT



District Name: CLAY COUNTY SCHOOL DISTRICT

Survey: Number 7 - Version 1

Facility Name: GROVE PARK ELEMENTARY

Address: 1643 MILLER STREET, ORANGE PARK

Existing Recommended

Capital Outlay 
Classification

1 - SCHOOL RECOMMENDED FOR 
CONTINUED USE

1 - SCHOOL RECOMMENDED FOR 
CONTINUED USE

Facility Use ELEMENTARY ELEMENTARY

Low Grade PRE-K E S E PRE-K E S E

High Grade GRADE 6 GRADE 6

Comments

Existing
Student Stations 

Added/Reduced(+ or -) Recommended

Perm. Stations 304 0 304

Reloc. Stations 208 -76 132

Mod. Stations 0 0 0

Total Stations 512 -76 436

Utilization Factor 100% 100%

School Capacity 512 436

COFTE Student 
Membership 464 356

Survey Annotation

Renovate Buildings 1, 2, 6, 7, 8 & 9.                                        Re-design and Construct 
Parent and Bus Pick Up and Drop Off Areas. 
Correct Site Drainage Problems.                                 
Construct Additional Covered Walkways Where Needed.   
Remove 4 portables in excess of 20 years of age.
(Other)
District-Wide Recommendations for this facility are: Improve Security Fencing and Lighting.

New Site Cost Site 
Expansion

Site 
Development

Site 
Improvement

Remodeling 
Cost

Renovation 
Cost

New 
Construction 

Cost

$0 $0 $0 $245,000 $35,952 $4,054,808 $0

Estimated Total Project Cost $4,335,760

PAGE:102 of 253 Report Date: 6/8/2021 10:16:11 AM

EDUCATIONAL PLANT FIVE YEAR SURVEY REPORT

Status:

Active Pending

Survey:

Survey: 7 - Version: 1

District:

10-CLAY COUNTY SCHOOL DISTRICT

Page 645 of 962

DRAFT



GROVE PARK 
ELEMENTARY

Parcel Building Description Total NSF Change In 
Station Count

Calculated 
Cost

Cost Per 
NSF

Cost Per 
Station

Remodeling 2026 8 92 Removed NSF (2996), Added NSF 
(0), Difference NSF (2996), Percent 
(100%), Removed Stations (76), 
Added Stations (0) Remodeling: 
Adding  and Removing Room 504 
(729 NSF), Room 507 (750 NSF), 
Room 507A (25 NSF), Room 522 
(740 NSF), Room 524 (752 NSF)

-2,996 -76 $35,952 $12 $0

Renovation 2026 8 1 Renovating: Apply Painting, Floor 
Cover, Electrical, Plumbing, 
Windows, Lighting, Restrooms, 
HVAC Systems, Bell/Fire Alarm 
Systems, Retrofit for Technology to 
Room 100 (372 NSF), Room 100A 
(85 NSF), Room 101 (282 NSF), 
Room 102 (181 NSF), Room 102A 
(30 NSF), Room 102B (12 NSF), 
Room 102C (18 NSF), Room 103 
(291 NSF), Room 103A (104 NSF), 
Room 104 (124 NSF), Room 104A 
(8 NSF), Room 105 (200 NSF), 
Room 106 (224 NSF), Room 107 
(220 NSF), Room 107A (25 NSF), 
Room 107B (20 NSF), Room 108 
(216 NSF), Room 109 (84 NSF), 
Room 109A (55 NSF), Room 110 
(2946 NSF), Room 110A (154 NSF), 
Room 110B (312 NSF), Room 110C 
(63 NSF), Room 111 (132 NSF), 
Room 112 (122 NSF), Room 113 
(408 NSF), Room 114 (201 NSF), 
Room 115 (194 NSF), Room 116 
(184 NSF), Room 118 (82 NSF), 
Room 119 (82 NSF), Room 131 (129 
NSF), Room 132 (120 NSF), Room 
133 (114 NSF), Room 134 (473 
NSF)

8,267 0 $760,564 $92 $0

Renovation 2026 8 2 Renovating: Apply Painting, Floor 
Cover, Electrical, Plumbing, 
Windows, Lighting, Restrooms, 
HVAC Systems, Retrofit for 
Technology to Room 117 (149 NSF), 
Room 120 (195 NSF), Room 120A 
(70 NSF), Room 121 (144 NSF), 
Room 122 (189 NSF), Room 123 
(906 NSF), Room 123A (154 NSF), 
Room 123B (220 NSF), Room 124 
(95 NSF), Room 125 (272 NSF), 
Room 125A (148 NSF), Room 126 
(50 NSF), Room 126A (32 NSF), 
Room 127 (50 NSF), Room 127A 
(32 NSF), Room 128 (98 NSF), 
Room 129 (3425 NSF), Room 129A 
(622 NSF), Room 129B (273 NSF), 
Room 130 (90 NSF), Room 130A 
(90 NSF), Room 131 (74 NSF), 
Room 131A (74 NSF), Room 131B 
(85 NSF), Room 134 (134 NSF)

7,671 0 $705,732 $92 $0

PAGE:103 of 253 Report Date: 6/8/2021 10:16:11 AM

EDUCATIONAL PLANT FIVE YEAR SURVEY REPORT

Status:

Active Pending

Survey:

Survey: 7 - Version: 1

District:

10-CLAY COUNTY SCHOOL DISTRICT

Page 646 of 962

DRAFT



GROVE PARK 
ELEMENTARY

Parcel Building Description Total NSF Change In 
Station Count

Calculated 
Cost

Cost Per 
NSF

Cost Per 
Station

Renovation 2026 8 6 Renovating: Apply Painting, Floor 
Cover, Electrical, Plumbing, 
Windows, Lighting, Restrooms, 
HVAC Systems, Bell/Fire Alarm 
Systems, Retrofit for Technology to 
Room 601 (993 NSF), Room 601A 
(66 NSF), Room 601B (43 NSF), 
Room 601C (140 NSF), Room 602 
(993 NSF), Room 602A (66 NSF), 
Room 602B (43 NSF), Room 602C 
(68 NSF), Room 603 (1004 NSF), 
Room 603A (69 NSF), Room 603B 
(43 NSF), Room 604 (847 NSF), 
Room 604A (118 NSF), Room 604B 
(107 NSF), Room 604E (67 NSF), 
Room 604F (24 NSF), Room 604G 
(11 NSF), Room 605 (847 NSF), 
Room 605A (118 NSF), Room 605C 
(48 NSF), Room 605D (48 NSF), 
Room 605E (67 NSF), Room 605F 
(24 NSF), Room 605G (11 NSF), 
Room 606 (846 NSF), Room 606A 
(117 NSF), Room 606C (48 NSF), 
Room 606D (48 NSF), Room 606E 
(67 NSF), Room 606F (24 NSF), 
Room 606G (11 NSF), Room 607 
(847 NSF), Room 607A (117 NSF), 
Room 607G (11 NSF), Room 608 
(846 NSF), Room 608A (117 NSF), 
Room 608G (11 NSF), Room 609 
(43 NSF), Room 610 (43 NSF), 
Room 611 (307 NSF), Room 612 
(307 NSF), Room 613 (229 NSF), 
Room 615 (104 NSF), Room 616 
(78 NSF), Room 618 (607 NSF), 
Room 619 (732 NSF), Room 620 
(470 NSF)

11,895 0 $1,094,340 $92 $0

Renovation 2026 8 7 Renovating: Apply Painting, Floor 
Cover, Electrical, Plumbing, 
Windows, Lighting, Restrooms, 
HVAC Systems, Bell/Fire Alarm 
Systems, Retrofit for Technology to 
Room 700 (710 NSF), Room 701 
(918 NSF), Room 701A (62 NSF), 
Room 701B (43 NSF), Room 701C 
(121 NSF), Room 702 (918 NSF), 
Room 702A (62 NSF), Room 702B 
(43 NSF), Room 702C (121 NSF), 
Room 703 (918 NSF), Room 703A 
(62 NSF), Room 703B (43 NSF), 
Room 704 (918 NSF), Room 704A 
(62 NSF), Room 704B (43 NSF), 
Room 705 (918 NSF), Room 705A 
(62 NSF), Room 705B (43 NSF), 
Room 705C (122 NSF), Room 706 
(918 NSF), Room 706A (62 NSF), 
Room 706B (43 NSF), Room 706C 
(122 NSF), Room 707 (965 NSF), 
Room 707A (62 NSF), Room 708 
(918 NSF), Room 708A (62 NSF), 
Room 708B (43 NSF), Room 709 
(43 NSF), Room 710 (43 NSF), 
Room 711 (307 NSF), Room 712 
(307 NSF), Room 713 (500 NSF), 
Room 715 (104 NSF), Room 716 
(78 NSF)

10,766 0 $990,472 $92 $0

PAGE:104 of 253 Report Date: 6/8/2021 10:16:11 AM

EDUCATIONAL PLANT FIVE YEAR SURVEY REPORT

Status:

Active Pending

Survey:

Survey: 7 - Version: 1

District:

10-CLAY COUNTY SCHOOL DISTRICT

Page 647 of 962

DRAFT



GROVE PARK 
ELEMENTARY

Parcel Building Description Total NSF Change In 
Station Count

Calculated 
Cost

Cost Per 
NSF

Cost Per 
Station

Renovation 2026 8 8 Renovating: Apply Painting, Floor 
Cover, Electrical, Plumbing, 
Windows, Lighting, Restrooms, 
HVAC Systems, Bell/Fire Alarm 
Systems, Retrofit for Technology to 
Room 011 (831 NSF), Room 011A 
(81 NSF), Room 144 (531 NSF), 
Room 144A (82 NSF)

1,525 0 $140,300 $92 $0

Renovation 2026 8 9 Renovating: Apply Painting, Floor 
Cover, Electrical, Plumbing, 
Windows, Lighting, Restrooms, 
HVAC Systems, Bell/Fire Alarm 
Systems, Retrofit for Technology to 
Room 001 (749 NSF), Room 002 
(763 NSF), Room 003 (763 NSF), 
Room 004 (749 NSF), Room 135 
(140 NSF), Room 135A (21 NSF), 
Room 136 (53 NSF), Room 137 (53 
NSF), Room 138 (37 NSF), Room 
139 (52 NSF), Room 140 (140 NSF), 
Room 141 (140 NSF), Room 142 
(145 NSF), Room 143 (145 NSF)

3,950 0 $363,400 $92 $0

PAGE:105 of 253 Report Date: 6/8/2021 10:16:11 AM

EDUCATIONAL PLANT FIVE YEAR SURVEY REPORT

Status:

Active Pending

Survey:

Survey: 7 - Version: 1

District:

10-CLAY COUNTY SCHOOL DISTRICT

Page 648 of 962

DRAFT



District Name: CLAY COUNTY SCHOOL DISTRICT

Survey: Number 7 - Version 1

Facility Name: HARRIS C LONG ADMINISTRATION

Address: 23 S GREEN STREET, GREEN COVE SPRINGS

Existing Recommended

Capital Outlay 
Classification

6 - ANCILLARY RECOMMENDED FOR 
CONTINUED USE

6 - ANCILLARY RECOMMENDED FOR 
CONTINUED USE

Facility Use COUNTY ADMINISTRATION COUNTY ADMINISTRATION

Low Grade COUNTY ADMINISTRATION COUNTY ADMINISTRATION

High Grade COUNTY ADMINISTRATION COUNTY ADMINISTRATION

Comments

Existing
Student Stations 

Added/Reduced(+ or -) Recommended

Perm. Stations 0 0 0

Reloc. Stations 0 0 0

Mod. Stations 0 0 0

Total Stations 0 0 0

Utilization Factor 0% 0%

School Capacity 0 0

COFTE Student 
Membership 0 0

Survey Annotation Renovate Buildings 1-5.

New Site Cost Site 
Expansion

Site 
Development

Site 
Improvement

Remodeling 
Cost

Renovation 
Cost

New 
Construction 

Cost

$0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $2,715,937 $0

Estimated Total Project Cost $2,715,937

PAGE:106 of 253 Report Date: 6/8/2021 10:16:11 AM

EDUCATIONAL PLANT FIVE YEAR SURVEY REPORT

Status:

Active Pending

Survey:

Survey: 7 - Version: 1

District:

10-CLAY COUNTY SCHOOL DISTRICT

Page 649 of 962

DRAFT



HARRIS C LONG 
ADMINISTRATION

Parcel Building Description Total NSF Change In 
Station Count

Calculated 
Cost

Cost Per 
NSF

Cost Per 
Station

Renovation 2026 30 1 Renovating: Apply Painting, Floor 
Cover, Electrical, Plumbing, 
Windows, Lighting, Restrooms, 
HVAC Systems, Bell/Fire Alarm 
Systems, Retrofit for Technology to 
Room 100 (949 NSF), Room 101 
(83 NSF), Room 103 (227 NSF), 
Room 103A (96 NSF), Room 104 
(327 NSF), Room 106 (192 NSF), 
Room 108 (327 NSF), Room 109 
(136 NSF), Room 110 (135 NSF), 
Room 110A (67 NSF), Room 111 
(156 NSF), Room 111A (56 NSF), 
Room 112 (180 NSF), Room 112A 
(64 NSF), Room 113 (154 NSF), 
Room 113A (28 NSF), Room 114 
(135 NSF), Room 115 (174 NSF), 
Room 116 (111 NSF), Room 117 
(181 NSF), Room 118 (174 NSF), 
Room 118A (67 NSF), Room 119 
(135 NSF), Room 119A (28 NSF), 
Room 120 (141 NSF), Room 120A 
(64 NSF), Room 121 (199 NSF), 
Room 121A (36 NSF), Room 122 
(167 NSF), Room 123 (150 NSF), 
Room 124 (340 NSF), Room 126 
(159 NSF), Room 126A (99 NSF), 
Room 127 (226 NSF), Room 128 
(160 NSF)

5,923 0 $704,837 $119 $0

Renovation 2026 30 2 Renovating: Apply Painting, Floor 
Cover, Electrical, Plumbing, 
Windows, Lighting, Restrooms, 
HVAC Systems, Bell/Fire Alarm 
Systems, Retrofit for Technology to 
Room 201 (307 NSF), Room 201A 
(46 NSF), Room 201B (91 NSF), 
Room 201C (11 NSF), Room 202 
(161 NSF), Room 203 (95 NSF)

711 0 $84,609 $119 $0

Renovation 2026 30 3 Renovating: Apply Painting, Floor 
Cover, Electrical, Plumbing, 
Windows, Lighting, Restrooms, 
HVAC Systems, Bell/Fire Alarm 
Systems, Retrofit for Technology to 
Room 300 (1228 NSF), Room 301 
(183 NSF), Room 301A (29 NSF), 
Room 301B (15 NSF), Room 303 
(192 NSF), Room 303A (149 NSF), 
Room 303B (23 NSF), Room 305 
(212 NSF), Room 305A (15 NSF), 
Room 307 (275 NSF), Room 309 
(620 NSF), Room 310 (688 NSF), 
Room 311 (630 NSF), Room 311A 
(90 NSF), Room 311B (163 NSF), 
Room 311C (147 NSF), Room 311D 
(147 NSF), Room 312 (686 NSF), 
Room 313 (399 NSF), Room 313A 
(132 NSF), Room 314 (125 NSF), 
Room 314A (565 NSF), Room 315 
(177 NSF)

6,890 0 $819,910 $119 $0

PAGE:107 of 253 Report Date: 6/8/2021 10:16:11 AM

EDUCATIONAL PLANT FIVE YEAR SURVEY REPORT

Status:

Active Pending

Survey:

Survey: 7 - Version: 1

District:

10-CLAY COUNTY SCHOOL DISTRICT

Page 650 of 962

DRAFT



HARRIS C LONG 
ADMINISTRATION

Parcel Building Description Total NSF Change In 
Station Count

Calculated 
Cost

Cost Per 
NSF

Cost Per 
Station

Renovation 2026 30 4 Renovating: Apply Painting, Floor 
Cover, Electrical, Plumbing, 
Windows, Lighting, Restrooms, 
HVAC Systems, Bell/Fire Alarm 
Systems, Retrofit for Technology to 
Room 401 (270 NSF), Room 402 
(64 NSF), Room 403 (63 NSF), 
Room 404 (90 NSF), Room 404A 
(1305 NSF), Room 404B (18 NSF), 
Room 405A (760 NSF), Room 405B 
(112 NSF), Room 406A (820 NSF), 
Room 406B (155 NSF), Room 406C 
(74 NSF), Room 406D (190 NSF), 
Room 406E (154 NSF), Room 407A 
(184 NSF), Room 407B (187 NSF), 
Room 407C (158 NSF), Room 407D 
(105 NSF), Room 407E (53 NSF), 
Room 408 (22 NSF), Room 409 (99 
NSF), Room 410 (20 NSF), Room 
411 (34 NSF), Room 412 (480 NSF), 
Room 413 (54 NSF), Room 413A 
(48 NSF), Room 414 (247 NSF), 
Room 414A (44 NSF), Room 415 
(105 NSF), Room 416 (1868 NSF), 
Room 417 (146 NSF), Room 418 
(679 NSF)

8,608 0 $1,024,352 $119 $0

Renovation 2026 30 5 Renovating: Apply Painting, Floor 
Cover, Electrical, Plumbing, 
Windows, Lighting, Restrooms, 
HVAC Systems, Bell/Fire Alarm 
Systems, Retrofit for Technology to 
Room 501 (79 NSF), Room 502 (53 
NSF), Room 503 (387 NSF), Room 
504 (172 NSF)

691 0 $82,229 $119 $0

PAGE:108 of 253 Report Date: 6/8/2021 10:16:11 AM

EDUCATIONAL PLANT FIVE YEAR SURVEY REPORT

Status:

Active Pending

Survey:

Survey: 7 - Version: 1

District:

10-CLAY COUNTY SCHOOL DISTRICT

Page 651 of 962

DRAFT



District Name: CLAY COUNTY SCHOOL DISTRICT

Survey: Number 7 - Version 1

Facility Name: J L WILKINSON ELEMENTARY

Address: 4965 COUNTY ROAD 218, MIDDLEBURG

Existing Recommended

Capital Outlay 
Classification

1 - SCHOOL RECOMMENDED FOR 
CONTINUED USE

1 - SCHOOL RECOMMENDED FOR 
CONTINUED USE

Facility Use ELEMENTARY ELEMENTARY

Low Grade PRE-K E S E PRE-K E S E

High Grade GRADE 6 GRADE 6

Comments

Existing
Student Stations 

Added/Reduced(+ or -) Recommended

Perm. Stations 310 50 360

Reloc. Stations 478 -182 296

Mod. Stations 0 0 0

Total Stations 788 -132 656

Utilization Factor 100% 100%

School Capacity 788 656

COFTE Student 
Membership 754 613

Survey Annotation

Re-design and Construct Parent and Bus Pick Up and Drop Off Areas. 
Construct Elementary Covered Play Area, (1) Elem Art, (1) Elem Music, (2) ESE PT and (2) 
ESE FT.
Renovate Buildings 1-5.
Correct Site Drainage Problems.                                 
Construct Additional Covered Walkways Where Needed.   
Remove 9 portables in excess of 20 years of age.
(Other)
District-Wide Recommendations for this facility are: Improve Security Fencing and Lighting.

New Site Cost Site 
Expansion

Site 
Development

Site 
Improvement

Remodeling 
Cost

Renovation 
Cost

New 
Construction 

Cost

$0 $0 $0 $295,000 $84,864 $4,953,096 $1,270,950

Estimated Total Project Cost $6,603,910

PAGE:109 of 253 Report Date: 6/8/2021 10:16:11 AM

EDUCATIONAL PLANT FIVE YEAR SURVEY REPORT

Status:

Active Pending

Survey:

Survey: 7 - Version: 1

District:

10-CLAY COUNTY SCHOOL DISTRICT

Page 652 of 962

DRAFT



J L WILKINSON 
ELEMENTARY

Parcel Building Description Total NSF Change In 
Station Count

Calculated 
Cost

Cost Per 
NSF

Cost Per 
Station

New Construction 2026 New Construction: Adding 1 unit of 
ELEMENTARY COVERED PLAY 
AREA (500 NSF), 1 unit of ART - 
ELEMENTARY (1110 NSF), 1 unit of 
MUSIC - ELEMENTARY (1560 
NSF), 2 units of E S E PART-TIME 
(975 NSF), 2 units of E S E FULL-
TIME (950 NSF)

8,600 50 $1,270,950 $148 $25,419

Remodeling 2026 29 92 Removed NSF (7072), Added NSF 
(0), Difference NSF (7072), Percent 
(100%), Removed Stations (182), 
Added Stations (0) Remodeling: 
Adding  and Removing Room 005 
(752 NSF), Room 005A (26 NSF), 
Room 007 (743 NSF), Room 007A 
(26 NSF), Room 011 (778 NSF), 
Room 012 (731 NSF), Room 016 
(750 NSF), Room 016A (26 NSF), 
Room 018 (731 NSF), Room 020 
(928 NSF), Room 020A (25 NSF), 
Room 034 (752 NSF), Room 034A 
(26 NSF), Room 043 (752 NSF), 
Room 043A (26 NSF)

-7,072 -182 $84,864 $12 $0

Renovation 2026 29 1 Renovating: Apply Painting, Floor 
Cover, Electrical, Plumbing, 
Windows, Lighting, Restrooms, 
HVAC Systems, Bell/Fire Alarm 
Systems, Retrofit for Technology to 
Room 101 (342 NSF), Room 102 
(247 NSF), Room 102A (29 NSF), 
Room 103 (235 NSF), Room 104 
(182 NSF), Room 105A (133 NSF), 
Room 105B (54 NSF), Room 106 
(253 NSF), Room 107 (281 NSF), 
Room 107A (34 NSF), Room 107B 
(33 NSF), Room 108 (457 NSF), 
Room 109 (78 NSF), Room 110 (140 
NSF), Room 111 (141 NSF), Room 
112 (126 NSF), Room 113 (291 
NSF), Room 114 (137 NSF), Room 
115 (45 NSF), Room 116 (69 NSF), 
Room 117 (65 NSF), Room 118 (100 
NSF), Room 119 (564 NSF), Room 
120 (281 NSF), Room 121 (77 NSF), 
Room 122 (356 NSF), Room 123 
(85 NSF), Room 124 (183 NSF), 
Room 125 (272 NSF), Room 126 
(48 NSF), Room 127 (235 NSF), 
Room 128 (150 NSF), Room 129 
(147 NSF), Room 131 (174 NSF), 
Room 132 (87 NSF), Room 133 
(450 NSF), Room 134 (156 NSF), 
Room 135 (138 NSF), Room 136 
(159 NSF), Room 137 (372 NSF), 
Room 138 (444 NSF), Room 139 
(148 NSF), Room 140 (3121 NSF), 
Room 142 (584 NSF), Room 143 
(371 NSF), Room 144 (241 NSF), 
Room 145 (305 NSF)

12,620 0 $1,161,040 $92 $0

PAGE:110 of 253 Report Date: 6/8/2021 10:16:11 AM

EDUCATIONAL PLANT FIVE YEAR SURVEY REPORT

Status:

Active Pending

Survey:

Survey: 7 - Version: 1

District:

10-CLAY COUNTY SCHOOL DISTRICT

Page 653 of 962

DRAFT



J L WILKINSON 
ELEMENTARY

Parcel Building Description Total NSF Change In 
Station Count

Calculated 
Cost

Cost Per 
NSF

Cost Per 
Station

Renovation 2026 29 2 Renovating: Apply Painting, Floor 
Cover, Electrical, Plumbing, 
Windows, Lighting, Restrooms, 
HVAC Systems, Bell/Fire Alarm 
Systems, Retrofit for Technology to 
Room 201 (3780 NSF), Room 201A 
(1706 NSF), Room 202 (170 NSF), 
Room 203 (60 NSF), Room 205 
(283 NSF), Room 206 (72 NSF), 
Room 207 (184 NSF), Room 208 
(458 NSF), Room 209 (611 NSF), 
Room 210 (184 NSF), Room 211 (72 
NSF), Room 212 (282 NSF), Room 
213 (66 NSF), Room 214 (60 NSF), 
Room 215 (1000 NSF), Room 216 
(408 NSF), Room 217 (638 NSF), 
Room 218 (112 NSF), Room 219 
(1121 NSF), Room 220 (225 NSF), 
Room 221 (100 NSF), Room 222 
(127 NSF), Room 223 (113 NSF), 
Room 224 (114 NSF), Room 225 
(218 NSF), Room 226 (307 NSF), 
Room 227 (15 NSF), Room 228 (73 
NSF), Room 229 (39 NSF), Room 
230 (81 NSF), Room 231 (228 NSF), 
Room 232 (93 NSF), Room 234 
(608 NSF), Room 235 (33 NSF)

13,641 0 $1,254,972 $92 $0

Renovation 2026 29 3 Renovating: Apply Painting, Floor 
Cover, Electrical, Plumbing, 
Windows, Lighting, Restrooms, 
HVAC Systems, Bell/Fire Alarm 
Systems, Retrofit for Technology to 
Room 300 (783 NSF), Room 301 
(827 NSF), Room 302 (219 NSF), 
Room 303 (108 NSF), Room 304 
(32 NSF), Room 305 (827 NSF), 
Room 306 (104 NSF), Room 307 
(32 NSF), Room 308 (122 NSF), 
Room 309 (118 NSF), Room 310 
(910 NSF), Room 311 (203 NSF), 
Room 312 (97 NSF), Room 312A 
(37 NSF), Room 312B (62 NSF), 
Room 312C (60 NSF), Room 312D 
(29 NSF), Room 313 (189 NSF), 
Room 314 (911 NSF), Room 315 (33 
NSF)

5,703 0 $524,676 $92 $0

PAGE:111 of 253 Report Date: 6/8/2021 10:16:11 AM

EDUCATIONAL PLANT FIVE YEAR SURVEY REPORT

Status:

Active Pending

Survey:

Survey: 7 - Version: 1

District:

10-CLAY COUNTY SCHOOL DISTRICT

Page 654 of 962

DRAFT



J L WILKINSON 
ELEMENTARY

Parcel Building Description Total NSF Change In 
Station Count

Calculated 
Cost

Cost Per 
NSF

Cost Per 
Station

Renovation 2026 29 4 Renovating: Apply Painting, Floor 
Cover, Electrical, Plumbing, 
Windows, Lighting, Restrooms, 
HVAC Systems, Bell/Fire Alarm 
Systems, Retrofit for Technology to 
Room 400 (1135 NSF), Room 401 
(989 NSF), Room 402 (176 NSF), 
Room 403 (121 NSF), Room 404 
(28 NSF), Room 405 (989 NSF), 
Room 406 (112 NSF), Room 407 (28 
NSF), Room 408 (989 NSF), Room 
409 (176 NSF), Room 410 (112 
NSF), Room 411 (28 NSF), Room 
412 (980 NSF), Room 413 (112 
NSF), Room 414 (28 NSF), Room 
415 (989 NSF), Room 416 (134 
NSF), Room 417 (112 NSF), Room 
418 (28 NSF), Room 419 (134 NSF), 
Room 420 (989 NSF), Room 421 
(112 NSF), Room 422 (28 NSF), 
Room 423 (812 NSF), Room 424 
(543 NSF), Room 425 (57 NSF), 
Room 426 (80 NSF), Room 427 (49 
NSF), Room 428 (543 NSF), Room 
429 (57 NSF), Room 430 (28 NSF), 
Room 431 (29 NSF)

10,727 0 $986,884 $92 $0

Renovation 2026 29 5 Renovating: Apply Painting, Floor 
Cover, Electrical, Plumbing, 
Windows, Lighting, Restrooms, 
HVAC Systems, Bell/Fire Alarm 
Systems, Retrofit for Technology to 
Room 500 (1504 NSF), Room 501 
(930 NSF), Room 502 (176 NSF), 
Room 503 (106 NSF), Room 504 
(28 NSF), Room 505 (984 NSF), 
Room 506 (106 NSF), Room 507 
(28 NSF), Room 508 (920 NSF), 
Room 509 (176 NSF), Room 510 
(106 NSF), Room 511 (28 NSF), 
Room 512 (984 NSF), Room 513 
(106 NSF), Room 514 (28 NSF), 
Room 515 (984 NSF), Room 516 
(176 NSF), Room 517 (106 NSF), 
Room 518 (28 NSF), Room 519 
(176 NSF), Room 520 (984 NSF), 
Room 521 (106 NSF), Room 522 
(28 NSF), Room 523 (984 NSF), 
Room 524 (106 NSF), Room 525 
(28 NSF), Room 526 (35 NSF), 
Room 527 (35 NSF), Room 528 
(984 NSF), Room 529 (106 NSF), 
Room 530 (28 NSF), Room 531 (43 
NSF)

11,147 0 $1,025,524 $92 $0

PAGE:112 of 253 Report Date: 6/8/2021 10:16:11 AM

EDUCATIONAL PLANT FIVE YEAR SURVEY REPORT

Status:

Active Pending

Survey:

Survey: 7 - Version: 1

District:

10-CLAY COUNTY SCHOOL DISTRICT

Page 655 of 962

DRAFT



District Name: CLAY COUNTY SCHOOL DISTRICT

Survey: Number 7 - Version 1

Facility Name: JACK L WILKINSON JUNIOR HIGH

Address: 5025 STATE ROAD 218, MIDDLEBURG

Existing Recommended

Capital Outlay 
Classification

1 - SCHOOL RECOMMENDED FOR 
CONTINUED USE

1 - SCHOOL RECOMMENDED FOR 
CONTINUED USE

Facility Use MIDDLE JUNIOR HIGH

Low Grade GRADE 7 GRADE 7

High Grade GRADE 8 GRADE 8

Comments

Existing
Student Stations 

Added/Reduced(+ or -) Recommended

Perm. Stations 674 0 674

Reloc. Stations 162 -118 44

Mod. Stations 0 0 0

Total Stations 836 -118 718

Utilization Factor 90% 90%

School Capacity 752 646

COFTE Student 
Membership 735 602

Survey Annotation

Renovate Buildings 1-9.                                                                   Correct Site Drainage 
Problems.                                 
Construct Additional Covered Walkways Where Needed.   
Remove 6 portables in excess of 20 years of age.
(Other)
District-Wide Recommendations for this facility are: Improve Security Fencing and Lighting.

New Site Cost Site 
Expansion

Site 
Development

Site 
Improvement

Remodeling 
Cost

Renovation 
Cost

New 
Construction 

Cost

$0 $0 $0 $45,000 $54,204 $10,560,365 $0

Estimated Total Project Cost $10,659,569

PAGE:113 of 253 Report Date: 6/8/2021 10:16:11 AM

EDUCATIONAL PLANT FIVE YEAR SURVEY REPORT

Status:

Active Pending

Survey:

Survey: 7 - Version: 1

District:

10-CLAY COUNTY SCHOOL DISTRICT

Page 656 of 962

DRAFT



JACK L WILKINSON 
JUNIOR HIGH

Parcel Building Description Total NSF Change In 
Station Count

Calculated 
Cost

Cost Per 
NSF

Cost Per 
Station

Remodeling 2026 20 92 Removed NSF (4517), Added NSF 
(0), Difference NSF (4517), Percent 
(100%), Removed Stations (118), 
Added Stations (0) Remodeling: 
Adding  and Removing Room 002 
(729 NSF), Room 003 (734 NSF), 
Room 004 (729 NSF), Room 005 
(750 NSF), Room 005A (25 NSF), 
Room 007 (750 NSF), Room 007A 
(25 NSF), Room 009 (750 NSF), 
Room 009A (25 NSF)

-4,517 -118 $54,204 $12 $0

Renovation 2026 20 1 Renovating: Apply Painting, Floor 
Cover, Electrical, Plumbing, 
Windows, Lighting, Restrooms, 
HVAC Systems, Bell/Fire Alarm 
Systems, Retrofit for Technology to 
Room 101 (187 NSF), Room 102 
(133 NSF), Room 103 (191 NSF), 
Room 104 (137 NSF), Room 105 
(30 NSF), Room 106 (28 NSF), 
Room 108 (126 NSF), Room 109 
(126 NSF), Room 110 (126 NSF), 
Room 111 (136 NSF), Room 112 
(165 NSF), Room 113 (206 NSF), 
Room 114 (42 NSF), Room 115 (23 
NSF), Room 116 (6 NSF), Room 117 
(253 NSF), Room 118 (156 NSF), 
Room 119 (52 NSF), Room 120 (44 
NSF), Room 122 (193 NSF), Room 
122A (10 NSF), Room 125 (176 
NSF), Room 126 (570 NSF), Room 
127 (109 NSF), Room 128 (83 NSF), 
Room 129 (23 NSF), Room 130 (27 
NSF), Room 131 (128 NSF), Room 
132 (94 NSF), Room 133 (78 NSF), 
Room 134 (75 NSF), Room 135 
(216 NSF), Room 136 (120 NSF), 
Room 137 (122 NSF), Room 138 
(226 NSF)

4,417 0 $472,619 $107 $0

Renovation 2026 20 2 Renovating: Apply Painting, Floor 
Cover, Electrical, Plumbing, 
Windows, Lighting, Restrooms, 
HVAC Systems, Bell/Fire Alarm 
Systems, Retrofit for Technology to 
Room 200 (435 NSF), Room 201 
(224 NSF), Room 202 (215 NSF), 
Room 203 (508 NSF), Room 204 
(141 NSF), Room 205 (179 NSF), 
Room 206 (26 NSF), Room 207 
(350 NSF), Room 208 (350 NSF), 
Room 209 (1329 NSF), Room 209A 
(131 NSF), Room 209B (101 NSF), 
Room 211 (4432 NSF), Room 213 
(22 NSF), Room 214 (26 NSF), 
Room 215 (93 NSF), Room 216 
(137 NSF), Room 217 (21 NSF), 
Room 218 (25 NSF), Room 219 (93 
NSF), Room 220 (157 NSF), Room 
221 (767 NSF)

9,762 0 $1,044,534 $107 $0

PAGE:114 of 253 Report Date: 6/8/2021 10:16:11 AM

EDUCATIONAL PLANT FIVE YEAR SURVEY REPORT

Status:

Active Pending

Survey:

Survey: 7 - Version: 1

District:

10-CLAY COUNTY SCHOOL DISTRICT

Page 657 of 962

DRAFT



JACK L WILKINSON 
JUNIOR HIGH

Parcel Building Description Total NSF Change In 
Station Count

Calculated 
Cost

Cost Per 
NSF

Cost Per 
Station

Renovation 2026 20 3 Renovating: Apply Painting, Floor 
Cover, Electrical, Plumbing, 
Windows, Lighting, Restrooms, 
HVAC Systems, Bell/Fire Alarm 
Systems, Retrofit for Technology to 
Room 301 (4476 NSF), Room 302 
(226 NSF), Room 303 (188 NSF), 
Room 304 (496 NSF), Room 305 
(145 NSF), Room 306 (36 NSF), 
Room 307 (36 NSF), Room 308 
(234 NSF), Room 309 (569 NSF), 
Room 310 (305 NSF), Room 311 
(353 NSF), Room 312 (169 NSF), 
Room 313 (160 NSF), Room 314A 
(132 NSF), Room 314B (78 NSF), 
Room 315 (421 NSF), Room 316 
(250 NSF), Room 317 (709 NSF), 
Room 318 (101 NSF), Room 319 
(721 NSF), Room 320 (553 NSF), 
Room 321 (270 NSF), Room 322 
(258 NSF), Room 323 (693 NSF), 
Room 324 (87 NSF), Room 325 (47 
NSF), Room 326 (93 NSF), Room 
327 (35 NSF)

11,841 0 $1,266,987 $107 $0

Renovation 2026 20 4 Renovating: Apply Painting, Floor 
Cover, Electrical, Plumbing, 
Windows, Lighting, Restrooms, 
HVAC Systems, Bell/Fire Alarm 
Systems, Retrofit for Technology to 
Room 401 (884 NSF), Room 402 
(48 NSF), Room 403A (365 NSF), 
Room 403B (180 NSF), Room 403C 
(142 NSF), Room 403D (198 NSF), 
Room 404 (50 NSF), Room 405 
(884 NSF), Room 406 (61 NSF), 
Room 407 (882 NSF), Room 408 
(62 NSF), Room 409 (96 NSF), 
Room 410 (96 NSF), Room 411 (62 
NSF), Room 412 (882 NSF), Room 
413 (63 NSF), Room 414 (882 NSF), 
Room 415 (48 NSF), Room 416 
(882 NSF), Room 417 (48 NSF), 
Room 418 (882 NSF)

7,697 0 $823,579 $107 $0

Renovation 2026 20 5 Renovating: Apply Painting, Floor 
Cover, Electrical, Plumbing, 
Windows, Lighting, Restrooms, 
HVAC Systems, Bell/Fire Alarm 
Systems, Retrofit for Technology to 
Room 500 (1430 NSF), Room 501 
(91 NSF), Room 502 (98 NSF), 
Room 503 (91 NSF), Room 504 
(1578 NSF), Room 505 (132 NSF), 
Room 506 (229 NSF), Room 507 
(152 NSF), Room 508 (1840 NSF), 
Room 509 (361 NSF), Room 510 
(240 NSF), Room 511 (87 NSF)

6,329 0 $677,203 $107 $0

PAGE:115 of 253 Report Date: 6/8/2021 10:16:11 AM

EDUCATIONAL PLANT FIVE YEAR SURVEY REPORT

Status:

Active Pending

Survey:

Survey: 7 - Version: 1

District:

10-CLAY COUNTY SCHOOL DISTRICT

Page 658 of 962

DRAFT



JACK L WILKINSON 
JUNIOR HIGH

Parcel Building Description Total NSF Change In 
Station Count

Calculated 
Cost

Cost Per 
NSF

Cost Per 
Station

Renovation 2026 20 6 Renovating: Apply Painting, Floor 
Cover, Electrical, Plumbing, 
Windows, Lighting, Restrooms, 
HVAC Systems, Bell/Fire Alarm 
Systems, Retrofit for Technology to 
Room 600 (2757 NSF), Room 601 
(208 NSF), Room 602 (208 NSF), 
Room 603 (97 NSF), Room 604 (62 
NSF), Room 605 (138 NSF), Room 
606 (310 NSF), Room 607 (876 
NSF), Room 608 (616 NSF), Room 
609 (578 NSF), Room 610 (96 NSF), 
Room 611 (205 NSF), Room 612 
(170 NSF), Room 613 (26 NSF), 
Room 614 (25 NSF)

6,372 0 $681,804 $107 $0

Renovation 2026 20 7 Renovating: Apply Painting, Floor 
Cover, Electrical, Plumbing, 
Windows, Lighting, Restrooms, 
HVAC Systems, Bell/Fire Alarm 
Systems, Retrofit for Technology to 
Room 701 (914 NSF), Room 702 
(914 NSF), Room 703 (11 NSF), 
Room 704 (11 NSF), Room 705 (11 
NSF), Room 705A (67 NSF), Room 
706 (100 NSF), Room 707 (23 NSF), 
Room 708 (40 NSF), Room 709 
(209 NSF), Room 710 (27 NSF), 
Room 711 (80 NSF), Room 712 (80 
NSF), Room 713 (199 NSF), Room 
714 (199 NSF), Room 715 (914 
NSF), Room 716 (962 NSF), Room 
717 (57 NSF), Room 718 (27 NSF), 
Room 719 (43 NSF), Room 720 (49 
NSF), Room 721 (57 NSF), Room 
722 (144 NSF), Room 724 (11 NSF), 
Room 725 (107 NSF), Room 726 
(90 NSF), Room 727 (11 NSF), 
Room 728 (265 NSF), Room 729 
(497 NSF), Room 730 (156 NSF), 
Room 731 (115 NSF), Room 732 (44 
NSF), Room 733 (958 NSF), Room 
734 (24 NSF), Room 735 (1048 
NSF), Room 736 (32 NSF), Room 
738 (2295 NSF), Room 739 (1106 
NSF), Room 740 (32 NSF), Room 
741 (11 NSF), Room 742 (1106 
NSF), Room 743 (139 NSF), Room 
743A (16 NSF), Room 744 (168 
NSF), Room 745 (81 NSF), Room 
746 (81 NSF), Room 747 (168 NSF), 
Room 748 (139 NSF), Room 748A 
(16 NSF), Room 749 (1226 NSF), 
Room 750 (11 NSF), Room 751 (81 
NSF), Room 752 (11 NSF), Room 
753 (139 NSF), Room 753A (16 
NSF), Room 754 (139 NSF), Room 
754A (16 NSF), Room 755 (11 NSF), 
Room 756 (81 NSF), Room 757 
(1226 NSF), Room 758 (1226 NSF), 
Room 759 (11 NSF), Room 760 
(1226 NSF), Room 761 (139 NSF), 
Room 761A (16 NSF), Room 762 
(168 NSF), Room 763 (81 NSF), 
Room 764 (81 NSF), Room 765 
(168 NSF), Room 766 (81 NSF), 
Room 767 (1106 NSF), Room 768 

27,530 0 $2,945,710 $107 $0

PAGE:116 of 253 Report Date: 6/8/2021 10:16:11 AM

EDUCATIONAL PLANT FIVE YEAR SURVEY REPORT

Status:

Active Pending

Survey:

Survey: 7 - Version: 1

District:

10-CLAY COUNTY SCHOOL DISTRICT

Page 659 of 962

DRAFT



(139 NSF), Room 768A (16 NSF), 
Room 769 (81 NSF), Room 770 (16 
NSF), Room 771 (139 NSF), Room 
771A (16 NSF), Room 772 (11 NSF), 
Room 773 (11 NSF), Room 774 (139 
NSF), Room 774A (16 NSF), Room 
775 (1265 NSF), Room 775A (50 
NSF), Room 776 (1106 NSF), Room 
777 (11 NSF), Room 779 (58 NSF), 
Room 780 (1265 NSF), Room 780A 
(50 NSF), Room 781 (148 NSF), 
Room 782 (11 NSF), Room 783 (106 
NSF), Room 784 (58 NSF), Room 
785 (140 NSF), Room 786 (148 
NSF), Room 787 (161 NSF), Room 
788 (106 NSF), Room 789 (155 
NSF), Room 790 (137 NSF), Room 
791 (278 NSF), Room 792 (140 
NSF), Room 794 (161 NSF), Room 
796 (278 NSF)

Renovation 2026 20 8 Renovating: Apply Painting, Floor 
Cover, Electrical, Plumbing, 
Windows, Lighting, Restrooms, 
HVAC Systems, Bell/Fire Alarm 
Systems, Retrofit for Technology to 
Room 801 (502 NSF), Room 802 
(50 NSF), Room 803 (50 NSF), 
Room 804 (1208 NSF), Room 805 
(157 NSF), Room 806 (105 NSF), 
Room 807 (154 NSF), Room 808 
(110 NSF), Room 809 (419 NSF), 
Room 810 (304 NSF), Room 811 
(110 NSF), Room 812 (70 NSF), 
Room 813 (56 NSF), Room 814 
(1985 NSF), Room 815 (188 NSF), 
Room 816 (109 NSF), Room 817 
(57 NSF), Room 818 (305 NSF), 
Room 819 (119 NSF), Room 820 (20 
NSF), Room 821 (70 NSF), Room 
822 (425 NSF), Room 823 (190 
NSF), Room 824 (167 NSF), Room 
825 (150 NSF), Room 826 (97 NSF), 
Room 827 (118 NSF), Room 828 
(189 NSF), Room 829 (80 NSF), 
Room 830 (149 NSF)

7,713 0 $825,291 $107 $0

PAGE:117 of 253 Report Date: 6/8/2021 10:16:11 AM

EDUCATIONAL PLANT FIVE YEAR SURVEY REPORT

Status:

Active Pending

Survey:

Survey: 7 - Version: 1

District:

10-CLAY COUNTY SCHOOL DISTRICT

Page 660 of 962

DRAFT



JACK L WILKINSON 
JUNIOR HIGH

Parcel Building Description Total NSF Change In 
Station Count

Calculated 
Cost

Cost Per 
NSF

Cost Per 
Station

Renovation 2026 20 9 Renovating: Apply Painting, Floor 
Cover, Electrical, Plumbing, 
Windows, Lighting, Restrooms, 
HVAC Systems, Bell/Fire Alarm 
Systems, Retrofit for Technology to 
Room 901 (9568 NSF), Room 901A 
(153 NSF), Room 901B (149 NSF), 
Room 903 (161 NSF), Room 904 
(22 NSF), Room 905 (348 NSF), 
Room 906 (946 NSF), Room 906A 
(176 NSF), Room 906B (126 NSF), 
Room 906C (237 NSF), Room 906D 
(339 NSF), Room 906E (52 NSF), 
Room 910 (201 NSF), Room 911 (35 
NSF), Room 912 (361 NSF), Room 
913 (3 NSF), Room 915 (201 NSF), 
Room 916 (35 NSF), Room 917 
(1034 NSF), Room 917A (142 NSF), 
Room 917B (113 NSF), Room 917C 
(149 NSF), Room 917D (267 NSF), 
Room 917E (32 NSF), Room 921 
(312 NSF), Room 922 (192 NSF), 
Room 922A (33 NSF), Room 923 
(34 NSF), Room 924 (187 NSF), 
Room 924A (21 NSF), Room 950 
(59 NSF), Room 950A (81 NSF), 
Room 951 (70 NSF), Room 952 
(1195 NSF)

17,034 0 $1,822,638 $107 $0

PAGE:118 of 253 Report Date: 6/8/2021 10:16:11 AM

EDUCATIONAL PLANT FIVE YEAR SURVEY REPORT

Status:

Active Pending

Survey:

Survey: 7 - Version: 1

District:

10-CLAY COUNTY SCHOOL DISTRICT

Page 661 of 962

DRAFT



District Name: CLAY COUNTY SCHOOL DISTRICT

Survey: Number 7 - Version 1

Facility Name: KEYSTONE HEIGHTS ELEMENTARY

Address: 335 S PECAN STREET, KEYSTONE HEIGHTS

Existing Recommended

Capital Outlay 
Classification

1 - SCHOOL RECOMMENDED FOR 
CONTINUED USE

1 - SCHOOL RECOMMENDED FOR 
CONTINUED USE

Facility Use ELEMENTARY ELEMENTARY

Low Grade PRE-K E S E PRE-K E S E

High Grade GRADE 6 GRADE 6

Comments

Existing
Student Stations 

Added/Reduced(+ or -) Recommended

Perm. Stations 512 0 512

Reloc. Stations 384 -108 276

Mod. Stations 0 0 0

Total Stations 896 -108 788

Utilization Factor 100% 100%

School Capacity 896 788

COFTE Student 
Membership 836 710

Survey Annotation

Previously approved in Survey 6.2:                             
Renovate Buildings 1-12.
Construct Elementary Covered Play Area                                  Expand Kitchen and Food 
Prep Area.                               
Construct Additional Covered Walkways Where Needed.   Correct Site Drainage Problems.   
Remove 6 portables in excess of 20 years of age.
(Other)
District-Wide Recommendations for this facility are: Improve Security Fencing and Lighting.

New Site Cost Site 
Expansion

Site 
Development

Site 
Improvement

Remodeling 
Cost

Renovation 
Cost

New 
Construction 

Cost

$0 $0 $0 $45,000 $55,176 $6,554,540 $408,600

Estimated Total Project Cost $7,063,316

KEYSTONE HEIGHTS 
ELEMENTARY

Parcel Building Description Total NSF Change In 
Station Count

Calculated 
Cost

Cost Per 
NSF

Cost Per 
Station

New Construction 2026 New Construction: Adding 1 unit of 
ELEMENTARY COVERED PLAY 
AREA (500 NSF)

500 0 $138,000 $276 $0

PAGE:119 of 253 Report Date: 6/8/2021 10:16:11 AM

EDUCATIONAL PLANT FIVE YEAR SURVEY REPORT

Status:

Active Pending

Survey:

Survey: 7 - Version: 1

District:

10-CLAY COUNTY SCHOOL DISTRICT

Page 662 of 962

DRAFT



KEYSTONE HEIGHTS 
ELEMENTARY

Parcel Building Description Total NSF Change In 
Station Count

Calculated 
Cost

Cost Per 
NSF

Cost Per 
Station

New Construction 2026 New Construction: Adding 1 unit of 
KITCHEN & SERVING AREA (1100 
NSF)

1,100 0 $270,600 $246 $0

Remodeling 2026 13 92 Removed NSF (4598), Added NSF 
(0), Difference NSF (4598), Percent 
(100%), Removed Stations (108), 
Added Stations (0) Remodeling: 
Adding  and Removing Room 701 
(790 NSF), Room 702 (715 NSF), 
Room 702A (25 NSF), Room 703 
(715 NSF), Room 703A (25 NSF), 
Room 704 (754 NSF), Room 704A 
(25 NSF), Room 712 (744 NSF), 
Room 712A (26 NSF), Room 774 
(754 NSF), Room 774A (25 NSF)

-4,598 -108 $55,176 $12 $0

Renovation 2026 13 1 Renovating: Apply Painting, Floor 
Cover, Electrical, Plumbing, 
Windows, Lighting, Restrooms, 
HVAC Systems, Bell/Fire Alarm 
Systems, Retrofit for Technology to 
Room 001 (1119 NSF), Room 003 
(13 NSF), Room 004 (38 NSF), 
Room 005 (8 NSF), Room 006 (4 
NSF), Room 011 (133 NSF), Room 
012 (28 NSF), Room 013 (53 NSF), 
Room 014 (23 NSF), Room 015 (23 
NSF)

1,442 0 $132,664 $92 $0

PAGE:120 of 253 Report Date: 6/8/2021 10:16:11 AM

EDUCATIONAL PLANT FIVE YEAR SURVEY REPORT

Status:

Active Pending

Survey:

Survey: 7 - Version: 1

District:

10-CLAY COUNTY SCHOOL DISTRICT

Page 663 of 962

DRAFT



KEYSTONE HEIGHTS 
ELEMENTARY

Parcel Building Description Total NSF Change In 
Station Count

Calculated 
Cost

Cost Per 
NSF

Cost Per 
Station

Renovation 2026 13 2 Renovating: Apply Painting, Floor 
Cover, Electrical, Plumbing, 
Windows, Lighting, Restrooms, 
HVAC Systems, Bell/Fire Alarm 
Systems, Retrofit for Technology to 
Room 201 (222 NSF), Room 202 
(28 NSF), Room 203 (30 NSF), 
Room 204 (264 NSF), Room 205 
(506 NSF), Room 206 (155 NSF), 
Room 207 (167 NSF), Room 208 
(34 NSF), Room 209 (66 NSF), 
Room 211 (34 NSF), Room 212 (21 
NSF), Room 213 (993 NSF), Room 
214 (123 NSF), Room 215 (121 
NSF), Room 215A (42 NSF), Room 
215B (42 NSF), Room 216 (3093 
NSF), Room 217 (149 NSF), Room 
218 (1408 NSF), Room 219 (197 
NSF), Room 220 (27 NSF), Room 
221 (11 NSF), Room 222 (54 NSF), 
Room 223 (74 NSF), Room 224 (93 
NSF), Room 225 (149 NSF), Room 
226 (149 NSF), Room 227 (176 
NSF), Room 228 (97 NSF), Room 
229 (453 NSF), Room 230 (420 
NSF), Room 231 (232 NSF), Room 
231A (42 NSF), Room 231B (42 
NSF), Room 232 (475 NSF), Room 
233 (448 NSF), Room 234 (233 
NSF), Room 234A (37 NSF), Room 
235 (317 NSF), Room 236 (363 
NSF), Room 237 (363 NSF), Room 
238 (127 NSF), Room 239 (127 
NSF), Room 240 (224 NSF), Room 
240A (128 NSF), Room 241 (523 
NSF), Room 241A (42 NSF), Room 
241B (42 NSF), Room 242 (238 
NSF), Room 243 (230 NSF), Room 
244 (256 NSF), Room 244A (48 
NSF), Room 245 (46 NSF), Room 
246 (240 NSF), Room 246A (181 
NSF), Room 246B (52 NSF), Room 
246C (51 NSF), Room 247 (358 
NSF), Room 248 (126 NSF), Room 
249 (249 NSF), Room 249A (59 
NSF)

15,297 0 $1,407,324 $92 $0

Renovation 2026 13 3 Renovating: Apply Painting, Floor 
Cover, Electrical, Plumbing, 
Windows, Lighting, Restrooms, 
HVAC Systems, Bell/Fire Alarm 
Systems, Retrofit for Technology to 
Room 001 (813 NSF), Room 002 
(806 NSF), Room 020 (27 NSF), 
Room 021 (27 NSF), Room 022 
(120 NSF), Room 023 (120 NSF)

1,913 0 $175,996 $92 $0

Renovation 2026 13 4 Renovating: Apply Painting, Floor 
Cover, Electrical, Plumbing, 
Windows, Lighting, Restrooms, 
HVAC Systems, Bell/Fire Alarm 
Systems, Retrofit for Technology to 
Room 424 (295 NSF), Room 424A 
(39 NSF), Room 424B (14 NSF), 
Room 425 (569 NSF), Room 426 
(755 NSF), Room 427 (143 NSF), 
Room 428 (110 NSF)

1,925 0 $177,100 $92 $0

PAGE:121 of 253 Report Date: 6/8/2021 10:16:11 AM

EDUCATIONAL PLANT FIVE YEAR SURVEY REPORT

Status:

Active Pending

Survey:

Survey: 7 - Version: 1

District:

10-CLAY COUNTY SCHOOL DISTRICT

Page 664 of 962

DRAFT



KEYSTONE HEIGHTS 
ELEMENTARY

Parcel Building Description Total NSF Change In 
Station Count

Calculated 
Cost

Cost Per 
NSF

Cost Per 
Station

Renovation 2026 13 5 Renovating: Apply Painting, Floor 
Cover, Electrical, Plumbing, 
Windows, Lighting, Restrooms, 
HVAC Systems, Bell/Fire Alarm 
Systems, Retrofit for Technology to 
Room 003 (845 NSF), Room 004 
(845 NSF), Room 031 (63 NSF), 
Room 032 (63 NSF), Room 033 (91 
NSF)

1,907 0 $175,444 $92 $0

Renovation 2026 13 6 Renovating: Apply Painting, Floor 
Cover, Electrical, Plumbing, 
Windows, Lighting, Restrooms, 
HVAC Systems, Bell/Fire Alarm 
Systems, Retrofit for Technology to 
Room 005 (756 NSF), Room 006 
(756 NSF), Room 036 (63 NSF), 
Room 037 (63 NSF), Room 038 (91 
NSF)

1,729 0 $159,068 $92 $0

Renovation 2026 13 7 Renovating: Apply Painting, Floor 
Cover, Electrical, Plumbing, 
Windows, Lighting, Restrooms, 
HVAC Systems, Bell/Fire Alarm 
Systems, Retrofit for Technology to 
Room 009 (845 NSF), Room 010 
(845 NSF), Room 011 (845 NSF), 
Room 012 (845 NSF), Room 013 
(845 NSF), Room 014 (845 NSF), 
Room 015 (845 NSF), Room 041 
(99 NSF), Room 042 (99 NSF), 
Room 043 (132 NSF)

6,245 0 $574,540 $92 $0

Renovation 2026 13 8 Renovating: Apply Painting, Floor 
Cover, Electrical, Plumbing, 
Windows, Lighting, Restrooms, 
HVAC Systems, Bell/Fire Alarm 
Systems, Retrofit for Technology to 
Room 007 (845 NSF), Room 008 
(845 NSF)

1,690 0 $155,480 $92 $0

Renovation 2026 13 9 Renovating: Apply Painting, Floor 
Cover, Electrical, Plumbing, 
Windows, Lighting, Restrooms, 
HVAC Systems, Bell/Fire Alarm 
Systems, Retrofit for Technology to 
Room 901 (3663 NSF), Room 903 
(177 NSF), Room 904 (133 NSF), 
Room 905 (346 NSF), Room 906 
(149 NSF), Room 907 (327 NSF), 
Room 908 (240 NSF), Room 909 
(184 NSF), Room 910 (35 NSF), 
Room 911 (35 NSF), Room 912 (79 
NSF), Room 913 (32 NSF), Room 
914 (102 NSF), Room 915 (139 
NSF), Room 916 (131 NSF), Room 
918 (683 NSF), Room 919 (513 
NSF), Room 920 (683 NSF), Room 
921 (130 NSF), Room 922 (137 
NSF), Room 923 (33 NSF), Room 
924 (108 NSF)

8,059 0 $741,428 $92 $0

PAGE:122 of 253 Report Date: 6/8/2021 10:16:11 AM

EDUCATIONAL PLANT FIVE YEAR SURVEY REPORT

Status:

Active Pending

Survey:

Survey: 7 - Version: 1

District:

10-CLAY COUNTY SCHOOL DISTRICT

Page 665 of 962

DRAFT



KEYSTONE HEIGHTS 
ELEMENTARY

Parcel Building Description Total NSF Change In 
Station Count

Calculated 
Cost

Cost Per 
NSF

Cost Per 
Station

Renovation 2026 13 10 Renovating: Apply Painting, Floor 
Cover, Electrical, Plumbing, 
Windows, Lighting, Restrooms, 
HVAC Systems, Bell/Fire Alarm 
Systems, Retrofit for Technology to 
Room 020A (25 NSF), Room 020B 
(57 NSF), Room 020C (78 NSF), 
Room 020D (39 NSF), Room 020E 
(39 NSF), Room 020F (44 NSF), 
Room 020G (44 NSF), Room 020H 
(85 NSF), Room 020J (57 NSF), 
Room 020K (25 NSF), Room 020L 
(651 NSF), Room 020M (620 NSF), 
Room 020N (1404 NSF), Room 021 
(992 NSF), Room 021A (118 NSF), 
Room 021B (84 NSF), Room 021C 
(31 NSF), Room 022 (992 NSF), 
Room 022A (118 NSF), Room 022B 
(84 NSF), Room 022C (31 NSF), 
Room 023 (992 NSF), Room 023B 
(84 NSF), Room 023C (31 NSF), 
Room 024 (992 NSF), Room 024B 
(84 NSF), Room 024C (31 NSF), 
Room 025 (992 NSF), Room 025A 
(118 NSF), Room 025B (80 NSF), 
Room 025C (31 NSF), Room 026 
(992 NSF), Room 026A (118 NSF), 
Room 026B (76 NSF), Room 026C 
(31 NSF), Room 027 (992 NSF), 
Room 027B (100 NSF), Room 027C 
(31 NSF), Room 028 (992 NSF), 
Room 028B (100 NSF), Room 028C 
(31 NSF), Room 029 (992 NSF), 
Room 029A (112 NSF), Room 029B 
(100 NSF), Room 029C (31 NSF), 
Room 030 (992 NSF), Room 030A 
(112 NSF), Room 030B (100 NSF), 
Room 030C (31 NSF), Room 031 
(992 NSF), Room 031B (100 NSF), 
Room 031C (31 NSF), Room 032 
(992 NSF), Room 032B (100 NSF), 
Room 032C (31 NSF)

17,232 0 $1,585,344 $92 $0

Renovation 2026 13 11 Renovating: Apply Painting, Floor 
Cover, Electrical, Plumbing, 
Windows, Lighting, Restrooms, 
HVAC Systems, Bell/Fire Alarm 
Systems, Retrofit for Technology to 
Room 1101 (80 NSF), Room 1102 
(127 NSF), Room 1103 (127 NSF), 
Room 1104 (60 NSF), Room 1105 
(1095 NSF), Room 1106 (60 NSF), 
Room 1107 (127 NSF), Room 1108 
(127 NSF), Room 1109 (60 NSF), 
Room 1110 (1095 NSF)

2,958 0 $272,136 $92 $0

PAGE:123 of 253 Report Date: 6/8/2021 10:16:11 AM

EDUCATIONAL PLANT FIVE YEAR SURVEY REPORT

Status:

Active Pending

Survey:

Survey: 7 - Version: 1

District:

10-CLAY COUNTY SCHOOL DISTRICT

Page 666 of 962

DRAFT



KEYSTONE HEIGHTS 
ELEMENTARY

Parcel Building Description Total NSF Change In 
Station Count

Calculated 
Cost

Cost Per 
NSF

Cost Per 
Station

Renovation 2026 13 12 Renovating: Apply Painting, Floor 
Cover, Electrical, Plumbing, 
Windows, Lighting, Restrooms, 
HVAC Systems, Bell/Fire Alarm 
Systems, Retrofit for Technology to 
Room 100 (1047 NSF), Room 1201 
(7706 NSF), Room 1202 (452 NSF), 
Room 1203 (167 NSF), Room 1204 
(205 NSF), Room 1205 (163 NSF), 
Room 1206 (315 NSF), Room 1207 
(170 NSF), Room 1208 (164 NSF), 
Room 1209 (33 NSF), Room 1210 
(426 NSF)

10,848 0 $998,016 $92 $0

PAGE:124 of 253 Report Date: 6/8/2021 10:16:11 AM

EDUCATIONAL PLANT FIVE YEAR SURVEY REPORT

Status:

Active Pending

Survey:

Survey: 7 - Version: 1

District:

10-CLAY COUNTY SCHOOL DISTRICT

Page 667 of 962

DRAFT



District Name: CLAY COUNTY SCHOOL DISTRICT

Survey: Number 7 - Version 1

Facility Name: KEYSTONE HEIGHTS JUNIOR/SENIOR HIGH

Address: 900 SW ORCHID AVENUE, KEYSTONE HEIGHTS

Existing Recommended

Capital Outlay 
Classification

1 - SCHOOL RECOMMENDED FOR 
CONTINUED USE

1 - SCHOOL RECOMMENDED FOR 
CONTINUED USE

Facility Use COMBINATION COMBINATION

Low Grade GRADE 7 GRADE 7

High Grade GRADE 12 GRADE 12

Comments

Existing
Student Stations 

Added/Reduced(+ or -) Recommended

Perm. Stations 817 0 817

Reloc. Stations 713 -225 488

Mod. Stations 0 0 0

Total Stations 1,530 -225 1305

Utilization Factor 90% 90%

School Capacity 1,377 1174

COFTE Student 
Membership 1,010 1,124

Survey Annotation

Renovate Buildings 1, 2, 4, 5, 6, 18, 20.
Correct Site Drainage Problems.                                 
Construct Additional Covered Walkways Where Needed.   
Remove 10 portables in excess of 20 years of age.
(Other)
District-Wide Recommendations for this facility are: Improve Security Fencing and Lighting.

New Site Cost Site 
Expansion

Site 
Development

Site 
Improvement

Remodeling 
Cost

Renovation 
Cost

New 
Construction 

Cost

$0 $0 $0 $45,000 $90,396 $9,980,292 $0

Estimated Total Project Cost $10,115,688

PAGE:125 of 253 Report Date: 6/8/2021 10:16:11 AM

EDUCATIONAL PLANT FIVE YEAR SURVEY REPORT

Status:

Active Pending

Survey:

Survey: 7 - Version: 1

District:

10-CLAY COUNTY SCHOOL DISTRICT

Page 668 of 962

DRAFT



KEYSTONE HEIGHTS 
JUNIOR/SENIOR HIGH

Parcel Building Description Total NSF Change In 
Station Count

Calculated 
Cost

Cost Per 
NSF

Cost Per 
Station

Remodeling 2026 14 92 Removed NSF (7533), Added NSF 
(0), Difference NSF (7533), Percent 
(100%), Removed Stations (225), 
Added Stations (0) Remodeling: 
Adding  and Removing Room 026 
(750 NSF), Room 026A (25 NSF), 
Room 052 (705 NSF), Room 052A 
(23 NSF), Room 054 (749 NSF), 
Room 054A (26 NSF), Room 059 
(740 NSF), Room 061 (740 NSF), 
Room 063 (710 NSF), Room 063A 
(30 NSF), Room 064 (757 NSF), 
Room 064A (25 NSF), Room 065 
(740 NSF), Room 078 (756 NSF), 
Room 078A (28 NSF), Room 080 
(729 NSF)

-7,533 -225 $90,396 $12 $0

PAGE:126 of 253 Report Date: 6/8/2021 10:16:11 AM

EDUCATIONAL PLANT FIVE YEAR SURVEY REPORT

Status:

Active Pending

Survey:

Survey: 7 - Version: 1

District:

10-CLAY COUNTY SCHOOL DISTRICT

Page 669 of 962

DRAFT



KEYSTONE HEIGHTS 
JUNIOR/SENIOR HIGH

Parcel Building Description Total NSF Change In 
Station Count

Calculated 
Cost

Cost Per 
NSF

Cost Per 
Station

Renovation 2026 14 1 Renovating: Apply Painting, Floor 
Cover, Electrical, Plumbing, 
Windows, Lighting, Restrooms, 
HVAC Systems, Bell/Fire Alarm 
Systems, Retrofit for Technology to 
Room 100 (322 NSF), Room 101 
(182 NSF), Room 102 (192 NSF), 
Room 103 (39 NSF), Room 104 (39 
NSF), Room 105 (65 NSF), Room 
106 (184 NSF), Room 107 (135 
NSF), Room 108 (169 NSF), Room 
109 (260 NSF), Room 110 (125 
NSF), Room 111 (125 NSF), Room 
112 (99 NSF), Room 113 (125 NSF), 
Room 114 (125 NSF), Room 115 
(213 NSF), Room 116 (40 NSF), 
Room 117 (101 NSF), Room 118 
(282 NSF), Room 119 (94 NSF), 
Room 120 (95 NSF), Room 121 
(186 NSF), Room 122 (181 NSF), 
Room 123 (93 NSF), Room 124 (88 
NSF), Room 126 (1628 NSF), Room 
127 (899 NSF), Room 127A (28 
NSF), Room 128 (142 NSF), Room 
128A (20 NSF), Room 129 (966 
NSF), Room 130 (1633 NSF), Room 
131 (296 NSF), Room 132 (59 NSF), 
Room 133 (59 NSF), Room 134 
(166 NSF), Room 135 (84 NSF), 
Room 136 (44 NSF), Room 137 (84 
NSF), Room 138 (417 NSF), Room 
139 (21 NSF), Room 140 (40 NSF), 
Room 141 (53 NSF), Room 142 
(180 NSF), Room 154 (269 NSF), 
Room 155 (140 NSF), Room 156 
(25 NSF), Room 157 (108 NSF), 
Room 158 (108 NSF), Room 160 
(5550 NSF), Room 161 (224 NSF), 
Room 162 (300 NSF), Room 163 
(476 NSF), Room 164 (100 NSF), 
Room 165 (16 NSF), Room 166 (39 
NSF), Room 167 (60 NSF), Room 
168 (266 NSF), Room 169 (381 
NSF), Room 169A (83 NSF), Room 
170 (94 NSF), Room 171 (64 NSF), 
Room 172 (366 NSF), Room 172A 
(120 NSF), Room 173 (127 NSF), 
Room 174 (233 NSF), Room 175 
(63 NSF), Room 176 (23 NSF), 
Room 177 (64 NSF), Room 178 (64 
NSF), Room 180 (1159 NSF), Room 
181 (67 NSF), Room 182 (67 NSF), 
Room 183 (92 NSF), Room 184 
(1119 NSF), Room 185 (139 NSF), 
Room 186 (92 NSF), Room 187 
(1021 NSF), Room 188 (723 NSF), 
Room 189 (142 NSF), Room 189A 
(95 NSF), Room 190 (233 NSF), 
Room 191 (850 NSF), Room 192 
(820 NSF)

26,360 0 $3,136,840 $119 $0

PAGE:127 of 253 Report Date: 6/8/2021 10:16:11 AM

EDUCATIONAL PLANT FIVE YEAR SURVEY REPORT

Status:

Active Pending

Survey:

Survey: 7 - Version: 1

District:

10-CLAY COUNTY SCHOOL DISTRICT

Page 670 of 962

DRAFT



KEYSTONE HEIGHTS 
JUNIOR/SENIOR HIGH

Parcel Building Description Total NSF Change In 
Station Count

Calculated 
Cost

Cost Per 
NSF

Cost Per 
Station

Renovation 2026 14 2 Renovating: Apply Painting, Floor 
Cover, Electrical, Plumbing, 
Windows, Lighting, Restrooms, 
HVAC Systems, Bell/Fire Alarm 
Systems, Retrofit for Technology to 
Room 062 (1093 NSF), Room 063 
(211 NSF), Room 064 (1229 NSF), 
Room 064A (221 NSF), Room 064B 
(155 NSF), Room 065 (1111 NSF), 
Room 065A (120 NSF), Room 066 
(1111 NSF), Room 066A (120 NSF), 
Room 067 (1229 NSF), Room 067A 
(257 NSF), Room 067B (155 NSF), 
Room 068 (575 NSF), Room 069 
(89 NSF), Room 070 (93 NSF), 
Room 071 (306 NSF), Room 072 
(1915 NSF), Room 073 (1365 NSF)

11,355 0 $1,351,245 $119 $0

Renovation 2026 14 4 Renovating: Apply Painting, Floor 
Cover, Electrical, Plumbing, 
Windows, Lighting, Restrooms, 
HVAC Systems, Bell/Fire Alarm 
Systems, Retrofit for Technology to 
Room 499 (769 NSF)

769 0 $91,511 $119 $0

Renovation 2026 14 5 Renovating: Apply Painting, Floor 
Cover, Electrical, Plumbing, 
Windows, Lighting, Restrooms, 
HVAC Systems, Bell/Fire Alarm 
Systems, Retrofit for Technology to 
Room 501 (8988 NSF), Room 503 
(1368 NSF), Room 504 (615 NSF), 
Room 505 (1250 NSF), Room 505A 
(112 NSF), Room 505B (124 NSF), 
Room 506 (638 NSF), Room 506A 
(33 NSF), Room 507 (638 NSF), 
Room 507A (33 NSF), Room 508 
(28 NSF), Room 509 (96 NSF), 
Room 510 (356 NSF), Room 511 
(243 NSF), Room 512 (324 NSF), 
Room 515 (673 NSF), Room 515A 
(106 NSF), Room 516 (97 NSF), 
Room 517 (1442 NSF), Room 518 
(241 NSF), Room 519 (380 NSF), 
Room 520 (194 NSF), Room 521 
(150 NSF), Room 522 (180 NSF), 
Room 523 (1130 NSF), Room 524 
(409 NSF), Room 525 (132 NSF), 
Room 526 (325 NSF), Room 527 
(22 NSF), Room 528 (139 NSF), 
Room 529 (25 NSF), Room 530 
(236 NSF), Room 531 (365 NSF), 
Room 532 (68 NSF), Room 533 (34 
NSF), Room 534 (34 NSF), Room 
535 (21 NSF), Room 536 (69 NSF), 
Room 537 (265 NSF), Room 538 
(160 NSF), Room 539 (192 NSF), 
Room 540 (1062 NSF), Room 543 
(384 NSF), Room 543A (364 NSF), 
Room 544 (110 NSF), Room 545 
(110 NSF), Room 547 (180 NSF), 
Room 548 (36 NSF), Room 549 
(230 NSF), Room 550 (36 NSF)

24,447 0 $2,909,193 $119 $0

PAGE:128 of 253 Report Date: 6/8/2021 10:16:11 AM

EDUCATIONAL PLANT FIVE YEAR SURVEY REPORT

Status:

Active Pending

Survey:

Survey: 7 - Version: 1

District:

10-CLAY COUNTY SCHOOL DISTRICT

Page 671 of 962

DRAFT



KEYSTONE HEIGHTS 
JUNIOR/SENIOR HIGH

Parcel Building Description Total NSF Change In 
Station Count

Calculated 
Cost

Cost Per 
NSF

Cost Per 
Station

Renovation 2026 14 6 Renovating: Apply Painting, Floor 
Cover, Electrical, Plumbing, 
Windows, Lighting, Restrooms, 
HVAC Systems, Bell/Fire Alarm 
Systems, Retrofit for Technology to 
Room 601 (830 NSF), Room 602 
(830 NSF), Room 603 (813 NSF), 
Room 604 (813 NSF), Room 605 
(537 NSF), Room 605A (98 NSF), 
Room 606 (548 NSF), Room 606A 
(98 NSF), Room 607 (160 NSF), 
Room 607A (98 NSF), Room 608 
(160 NSF), Room 608A (98 NSF), 
Room 609 (1469 NSF), Room 609A 
(205 NSF), Room 609B (205 NSF), 
Room 609C (156 NSF), Room 609D 
(156 NSF), Room 609E (39 NSF), 
Room 609F (43 NSF), Room 609G 
(35 NSF), Room 609H (35 NSF), 
Room 610 (72 NSF), Room 610A 
(90 NSF), Room 610B (70 NSF), 
Room 610C (50 NSF), Room 610D 
(50 NSF), Room 610E (30 NSF), 
Room 611 (72 NSF), Room 611A (70 
NSF), Room 611B (90 NSF), Room 
611C (50 NSF), Room 611D (50 
NSF), Room 611E (30 NSF)

8,150 0 $969,850 $119 $0

Renovation 2026 14 18 Renovating: Apply Painting, Floor 
Cover, Electrical, Plumbing, 
Windows, Lighting, Restrooms, 
HVAC Systems, Bell/Fire Alarm 
Systems, Retrofit for Technology to 
Room 001 (270 NSF), Room 002 
(35 NSF), Room 003 (61 NSF), 
Room 004 (30 NSF), Room 005 (74 
NSF), Room 006 (280 NSF), Room 
008 (176 NSF), Room 009 (35 NSF), 
Room 010 (2626 NSF), Room 011 
(100 NSF), Room 012 (95 NSF), 
Room 013 (120 NSF), Room 014 
(48 NSF), Room 015 (120 NSF), 
Room 016 (100 NSF), Room 017 
(2267 NSF), Room 017A (110 NSF), 
Room 017B (110 NSF), Room 018 
(127 NSF), Room 019 (275 NSF), 
Room 020 (144 NSF), Room 021 
(35 NSF), Room 024 (513 NSF)

7,751 0 $922,369 $119 $0

Renovation 2026 14 20 Renovating: Apply Painting, Floor 
Cover, Electrical, Plumbing, 
Windows, Lighting, Restrooms, 
HVAC Systems, Bell/Fire Alarm 
Systems, Retrofit for Technology to 
Room 001 (698 NSF), Room 002 
(169 NSF), Room 003 (61 NSF), 
Room 005 (56 NSF), Room 007 
(169 NSF), Room 008 (698 NSF), 
Room 009 (72 NSF), Room 010 
(133 NSF), Room 011 (60 NSF), 
Room 012 (120 NSF), Room 013 
(76 NSF), Room 014 (60 NSF), 
Room 015 (120 NSF), Room 016 
(133 NSF), Room 017 (1612 NSF), 
Room 019 (264 NSF), Room 020 
(96 NSF), Room 021 (295 NSF), 
Room 022 (72 NSF), Room 023 (72 
NSF)

5,036 0 $599,284 $119 $0

PAGE:129 of 253 Report Date: 6/8/2021 10:16:11 AM

EDUCATIONAL PLANT FIVE YEAR SURVEY REPORT

Status:

Active Pending

Survey:

Survey: 7 - Version: 1

District:

10-CLAY COUNTY SCHOOL DISTRICT

Page 672 of 962

DRAFT



PAGE:130 of 253 Report Date: 6/8/2021 10:16:11 AM

EDUCATIONAL PLANT FIVE YEAR SURVEY REPORT

Status:

Active Pending

Survey:

Survey: 7 - Version: 1

District:

10-CLAY COUNTY SCHOOL DISTRICT

Page 673 of 962

DRAFT



District Name: CLAY COUNTY SCHOOL DISTRICT

Survey: Number 7 - Version 1

Facility Name: KEYSTONE TRANSPORTATION

Address: 6800 COUNTY ROAD 315, KEYSTONE HEIGHTS

Existing Recommended

Capital Outlay 
Classification

6 - ANCILLARY RECOMMENDED FOR 
CONTINUED USE

6 - ANCILLARY RECOMMENDED FOR 
CONTINUED USE

Facility Use TRANSPORTATION TRANSPORTATION

Low Grade DISTRICT SERVICES DISTRICT SERVICES

High Grade DISTRICT SERVICES DISTRICT SERVICES

Comments

Existing
Student Stations 

Added/Reduced(+ or -) Recommended

Perm. Stations 0 0 0

Reloc. Stations 0 0 0

Mod. Stations 0 0 0

Total Stations 0 0 0

Utilization Factor 0% 0%

School Capacity 0 0

COFTE Student 
Membership 0 0

Survey Annotation No new recommendations.

New Site Cost Site 
Expansion

Site 
Development

Site 
Improvement

Remodeling 
Cost

Renovation 
Cost

New 
Construction 

Cost

$0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0

Estimated Total Project Cost $0

KEYSTONE 
TRANSPORTATION

Parcel Building Description Total NSF Change In 
Station Count

Calculated 
Cost

Cost Per 
NSF

Cost Per 
Station

 

PAGE:131 of 253 Report Date: 6/8/2021 10:16:11 AM

EDUCATIONAL PLANT FIVE YEAR SURVEY REPORT

Status:

Active Pending

Survey:

Survey: 7 - Version: 1

District:

10-CLAY COUNTY SCHOOL DISTRICT

Page 674 of 962

DRAFT



District Name: CLAY COUNTY SCHOOL DISTRICT

Survey: Number 7 - Version 1

Facility Name: LAKE ASBURY ELEMENTARY

Address: 2901 SANDRIDGE ROAD, GREEN COVE SPRINGS

Existing Recommended

Capital Outlay 
Classification

1 - SCHOOL RECOMMENDED FOR 
CONTINUED USE

1 - SCHOOL RECOMMENDED FOR 
CONTINUED USE

Facility Use ELEMENTARY ELEMENTARY

Low Grade PRE-K E S E PRE-K E S E

High Grade GRADE 6 GRADE 6

Comments

Existing
Student Stations 

Added/Reduced(+ or -) Recommended

Perm. Stations 388 81 469

Reloc. Stations 582 -117 465

Mod. Stations 0 0 0

Total Stations 970 -36 934

Utilization Factor 100% 100%

School Capacity 970 934

COFTE Student 
Membership 853 908

Survey Annotation

Correct Site Drainage Problems.                                            
Re-design and Construct Parent and Bus Pick Up and Drop Off Areas.                                     
                                    
Construct Additional Covered Walkways Where Needed. 
Renovate Buildings 1, 2, 5 and 6.
Construct (3) Intermediate Classrooms, (1) Elem Art, (1) Elem Music, (1) ESE PK  and (1) 
ESE FT.                                       Remove 8 portables in excess of 20 years of age.           
(Other)    
District-Wide Recommendations for this facility are: Improve Security Fencing and Lighting.

New Site Cost Site 
Expansion

Site 
Development

Site 
Improvement

Remodeling 
Cost

Renovation 
Cost

New 
Construction 

Cost

$0 $0 $0 $455,000 $851,598 $3,763,144 $2,058,939

Estimated Total Project Cost $7,128,681

PAGE:132 of 253 Report Date: 6/8/2021 10:16:11 AM

EDUCATIONAL PLANT FIVE YEAR SURVEY REPORT

Status:

Active Pending

Survey:

Survey: 7 - Version: 1

District:

10-CLAY COUNTY SCHOOL DISTRICT

Page 675 of 962

DRAFT



LAKE ASBURY 
ELEMENTARY

Parcel Building Description Total NSF Change In 
Station Count

Calculated 
Cost

Cost Per 
NSF

Cost Per 
Station

New Construction 2026 New Construction: Adding 3 units of 
INTERMEDIATE/MIDDLE 
CLASSROOM (4-8) (858 NSF), 1 
unit of PRIMARY SKILLS LAB (K-3) 
(882 NSF), 1 unit of ART - 
ELEMENTARY (1110 NSF), 1 unit of 
MUSIC - ELEMENTARY (1560 
NSF), 1 unit of E S E PRE-K (475 
NSF), 1 unit of E S E FULL-TIME 
(950 NSF)

9,501 81 $2,058,939 $217 $25,419

Remodeling 2026 26 92 Removed NSF (6171), Added NSF 
(0), Difference NSF (6171), Percent 
(100%), Removed Stations (117), 
Added Stations (0) Remodeling: 
Adding  and Removing Room 009 
(756 NSF), Room 009A (28 NSF), 
Room 011 (756 NSF), Room 011A 
(26 NSF), Room 012 (756 NSF), 
Room 012A (26 NSF), Room 041 
(744 NSF), Room 041A (26 NSF), 
Room 043 (754 NSF), Room 043A 
(28 NSF), Room 045 (750 NSF), 
Room 072 (757 NSF), Room 072A 
(26 NSF), Room 074 (738 NSF)

-6,171 -117 $851,598 $138 $0

Renovation 2026 26 1 Renovating: Apply Painting, Floor 
Cover, Electrical, Plumbing, 
Windows, Lighting, Restrooms, 
HVAC Systems, Bell/Fire Alarm 
Systems, Retrofit for Technology to 
Room 101 (327 NSF), Room 102 
(41 NSF), Room 103 (148 NSF), 
Room 103A (103 NSF), Room 104 
(126 NSF), Room 105 (120 NSF), 
Room 105A (107 NSF), Room 106 
(312 NSF), Room 107 (53 NSF), 
Room 108 (80 NSF), Room 109 
(189 NSF), Room 110 (148 NSF), 
Room 111 (264 NSF), Room 112 (29 
NSF), Room 113 (241 NSF), Room 
114 (203 NSF), Room 115 (241 
NSF), Room 116 (185 NSF), Room 
117 (250 NSF), Room 118 (253 
NSF), Room 119 (27 NSF), Room 
120 (27 NSF), Room 121 (67 NSF), 
Room 122 (45 NSF), Room 123 (47 
NSF), Room 124 (69 NSF), Room 
125 (450 NSF), Room 126 (411 
NSF), Room 127 (82 NSF), Room 
128 (247 NSF), Room 129 (52 NSF), 
Room 130 (126 NSF), Room 131 
(447 NSF), Room 132A (194 NSF), 
Room 132B (193 NSF), Room 133 
(303 NSF), Room 134 (213 NSF), 
Room 135 (418 NSF), Room 136 
(2957 NSF), Room 137 (124 NSF), 
Room 138 (304 NSF)

10,223 0 $838,286 $82 $0

PAGE:133 of 253 Report Date: 6/8/2021 10:16:11 AM

EDUCATIONAL PLANT FIVE YEAR SURVEY REPORT

Status:

Active Pending

Survey:

Survey: 7 - Version: 1

District:

10-CLAY COUNTY SCHOOL DISTRICT

Page 676 of 962

DRAFT



LAKE ASBURY 
ELEMENTARY

Parcel Building Description Total NSF Change In 
Station Count

Calculated 
Cost

Cost Per 
NSF

Cost Per 
Station

Renovation 2026 26 2 Renovating: Apply Painting, Floor 
Cover, Electrical, Plumbing, 
Windows, Lighting, Restrooms, 
HVAC Systems, Bell/Fire Alarm 
Systems, Retrofit for Technology to 
Room 201 (3780 NSF), Room 201A 
(50 NSF), Room 201B (45 NSF), 
Room 201C (556 NSF), Room 202 
(859 NSF), Room 202A (15 NSF), 
Room 203 (40 NSF), Room 204 
(161 NSF), Room 205 (169 NSF), 
Room 206 (479 NSF), Room 207 
(220 NSF), Room 208 (165 NSF), 
Room 209 (157 NSF), Room 210 
(46 NSF), Room 211 (362 NSF), 
Room 212 (33 NSF), Room 213 (10 
NSF), Room 214 (63 NSF), Room 
215 (54 NSF), Room 216 (93 NSF), 
Room 217 (153 NSF), Room 218 
(127 NSF), Room 219A (102 NSF), 
Room 219B (72 NSF), Room 220 
(117 NSF), Room 221 (701 NSF), 
Room 222 (39 NSF), Room 223 
(105 NSF), Room 224 (193 NSF), 
Room 225 (1199 NSF), Room 226 
(90 NSF), Room 227 (597 NSF), 
Room 228 (185 NSF)

11,037 0 $905,034 $82 $0

Renovation 2026 26 5 Renovating: Apply Painting, Floor 
Cover, Electrical, Plumbing, 
Windows, Lighting, Restrooms, 
HVAC Systems, Bell/Fire Alarm 
Systems, Retrofit for Technology to 
Room 501 (1008 NSF), Room 502 
(152 NSF), Room 503 (52 NSF), 
Room 504 (44 NSF), Room 505 (44 
NSF), Room 506 (62 NSF), Room 
507 (1008 NSF), Room 508 (1008 
NSF), Room 509 (152 NSF), Room 
510 (52 NSF), Room 511 (44 NSF), 
Room 512 (44 NSF), Room 513 (52 
NSF), Room 514 (1008 NSF), Room 
515 (1640 NSF), Room 516 (1008 
NSF), Room 517 (152 NSF), Room 
518 (52 NSF), Room 519 (44 NSF), 
Room 520 (44 NSF), Room 521 (52 
NSF), Room 522 (1008 NSF), Room 
523 (1008 NSF), Room 524 (152 
NSF), Room 525 (52 NSF), Room 
526 (44 NSF), Room 527 (44 NSF), 
Room 528 (52 NSF), Room 529 
(1008 NSF), Room 530 (124 NSF), 
Room 531 (340 NSF), Room 532 
(181 NSF), Room 533 (68 NSF), 
Room 534 (42 NSF), Room 535 
(194 NSF), Room 536 (194 NSF), 
Room 537 (42 NSF), Room 538 (44 
NSF)

12,319 0 $1,010,158 $82 $0

PAGE:134 of 253 Report Date: 6/8/2021 10:16:11 AM

EDUCATIONAL PLANT FIVE YEAR SURVEY REPORT

Status:

Active Pending

Survey:

Survey: 7 - Version: 1

District:

10-CLAY COUNTY SCHOOL DISTRICT

Page 677 of 962

DRAFT



LAKE ASBURY 
ELEMENTARY

Parcel Building Description Total NSF Change In 
Station Count

Calculated 
Cost

Cost Per 
NSF

Cost Per 
Station

Renovation 2026 26 6 Renovating: Apply Painting, Floor 
Cover, Electrical, Plumbing, 
Windows, Lighting, Restrooms, 
HVAC Systems, Bell/Fire Alarm 
Systems, Retrofit for Technology to 
Room 601 (1008 NSF), Room 602 
(152 NSF), Room 603 (96 NSF), 
Room 605 (44 NSF), Room 606 (52 
NSF), Room 607 (1008 NSF), Room 
608 (1008 NSF), Room 609 (152 
NSF), Room 610 (52 NSF), Room 
611 (44 NSF), Room 612 (44 NSF), 
Room 613 (52 NSF), Room 614 
(1008 NSF), Room 615 (1626 NSF), 
Room 616 (1008 NSF), Room 617 
(152 NSF), Room 618 (52 NSF), 
Room 619 (44 NSF), Room 620 (44 
NSF), Room 621 (52 NSF), Room 
622 (1004 NSF), Room 623 (1004 
NSF), Room 624 (152 NSF), Room 
625 (52 NSF), Room 626 (44 NSF), 
Room 628 (96 NSF), Room 629 
(1008 NSF), Room 630 (124 NSF), 
Room 631 (358 NSF), Room 632 
(181 NSF), Room 633 (68 NSF), 
Room 634 (42 NSF), Room 635 
(200 NSF), Room 636 (196 NSF), 
Room 637 (42 NSF), Room 638 (44 
NSF)

12,313 0 $1,009,666 $82 $0

PAGE:135 of 253 Report Date: 6/8/2021 10:16:11 AM

EDUCATIONAL PLANT FIVE YEAR SURVEY REPORT

Status:

Active Pending

Survey:

Survey: 7 - Version: 1

District:

10-CLAY COUNTY SCHOOL DISTRICT

Page 678 of 962

DRAFT



District Name: CLAY COUNTY SCHOOL DISTRICT

Survey: Number 7 - Version 1

Facility Name: LAKE ASBURY JUNIOR HIGH

Address: 2851 SANDRIDGE ROAD, GREEN COVE SPRINGS

Existing Recommended

Capital Outlay 
Classification

1 - SCHOOL RECOMMENDED FOR 
CONTINUED USE

1 - SCHOOL RECOMMENDED FOR 
CONTINUED USE

Facility Use MIDDLE JUNIOR HIGH

Low Grade GRADE 7 GRADE 7

High Grade GRADE 8 GRADE 8

Comments

Existing
Student Stations 

Added/Reduced(+ or -) Recommended

Perm. Stations 1,043 0 1043

Reloc. Stations 462 -44 418

Mod. Stations 0 0 0

Total Stations 1,505 -44 1461

Utilization Factor 90% 90%

School Capacity 1,354 1314

COFTE Student 
Membership 1,137 1,270

Survey Annotation

Correct site drainage problems.
Construct additional Covered Walkways where needed. Remove 2 portables in excess of 20 
years of age.
(Other)
District-Wide Recommendations for this facility are: Improve security fencing and lighting.

New Site Cost Site 
Expansion

Site 
Development

Site 
Improvement

Remodeling 
Cost

Renovation 
Cost

New 
Construction 

Cost

$0 $0 $0 $45,000 $18,828 $0 $0

Estimated Total Project Cost $63,828

PAGE:136 of 253 Report Date: 6/8/2021 10:16:11 AM

EDUCATIONAL PLANT FIVE YEAR SURVEY REPORT

Status:

Active Pending

Survey:

Survey: 7 - Version: 1

District:

10-CLAY COUNTY SCHOOL DISTRICT

Page 679 of 962

DRAFT



LAKE ASBURY JUNIOR 
HIGH

Parcel Building Description Total NSF Change In 
Station Count

Calculated 
Cost

Cost Per 
NSF

Cost Per 
Station

Remodeling 2026 28 92 Removed NSF (1569), Added NSF 
(0), Difference NSF (1569), Percent 
(100%), Removed Stations (44), 
Added Stations (0) Remodeling: 
Adding  and Removing Room 423 
(754 NSF), Room 423A (25 NSF), 
Room 424 (790 NSF)

-1,569 -44 $18,828 $12 $0

PAGE:137 of 253 Report Date: 6/8/2021 10:16:11 AM

EDUCATIONAL PLANT FIVE YEAR SURVEY REPORT

Status:

Active Pending

Survey:

Survey: 7 - Version: 1

District:

10-CLAY COUNTY SCHOOL DISTRICT

Page 680 of 962

DRAFT



District Name: CLAY COUNTY SCHOOL DISTRICT

Survey: Number 7 - Version 1

Facility Name: LAKESIDE ELEMENTARY

Address: 2752 MOODY ROAD, ORANGE PARK

Existing Recommended

Capital Outlay 
Classification

1 - SCHOOL RECOMMENDED FOR 
CONTINUED USE

1 - SCHOOL RECOMMENDED FOR 
CONTINUED USE

Facility Use ELEMENTARY ELEMENTARY

Low Grade PRE-K E S E PRE-K E S E

High Grade GRADE 6 GRADE 6

Comments

Existing
Student Stations 

Added/Reduced(+ or -) Recommended

Perm. Stations 378 0 378

Reloc. Stations 498 -230 268

Mod. Stations 0 0 0

Total Stations 876 -230 646

Utilization Factor 100% 100%

School Capacity 876 646

COFTE Student 
Membership 759 602

Survey Annotation

Renovate Buildings 1, 2, 4, 5, 6, 7.
Correct Site Drainage Problems.                                 
Construct Additional Covered Walkways Where Needed.   
Remove 14 portables in excess of 20 years of age.
(Other)
District-Wide Recommendations for this facility are: Improve Security Fencing and Lighting.

New Site Cost Site 
Expansion

Site 
Development

Site 
Improvement

Remodeling 
Cost

Renovation 
Cost

New 
Construction 

Cost

$0 $0 $0 $45,000 $130,380 $3,675,952 $0

Estimated Total Project Cost $3,851,332

PAGE:138 of 253 Report Date: 6/8/2021 10:16:11 AM

EDUCATIONAL PLANT FIVE YEAR SURVEY REPORT

Status:

Active Pending

Survey:

Survey: 7 - Version: 1

District:

10-CLAY COUNTY SCHOOL DISTRICT

Page 681 of 962

DRAFT



LAKESIDE 
ELEMENTARY

Parcel Building Description Total NSF Change In 
Station Count

Calculated 
Cost

Cost Per 
NSF

Cost Per 
Station

Remodeling 2026 18 92 Removed NSF (10865), Added NSF 
(0), Difference NSF (10865), Percent 
(100%), Removed Stations (230), 
Added Stations (0) Remodeling: 
Adding  and Removing Room 010 
(735 NSF), Room 012 (735 NSF), 
Room 012A (24 NSF), Room 016 
(735 NSF), Room 017 (735 NSF), 
Room 020 (735 NSF), Room 022 
(735 NSF), Room 023 (735 NSF), 
Room 024 (735 NSF), Room 025 
(735 NSF), Room 026 (735 NSF), 
Room 027 (735 NSF), Room 044 
(828 NSF), Room 044A (36 NSF), 
Room 047 (992 NSF), Room 047A 
(36 NSF), Room 060 (828 NSF), 
Room 060A (36 NSF)

-10,865 -230 $130,380 $12 $0

Renovation 2026 18 1 Renovating: Apply Painting, Floor 
Cover, Electrical, Plumbing, 
Windows, Lighting, Restrooms, 
HVAC Systems, Bell/Fire Alarm 
Systems, Retrofit for Technology to 
Room 101 (59 NSF), Room 102 
(240 NSF), Room 103 (41 NSF), 
Room 103A (30 NSF), Room 105 
(451 NSF), Room 106 (135 NSF), 
Room 107 (98 NSF), Room 108 
(3550 NSF), Room 108A (70 NSF), 
Room 108B (70 NSF), Room 108C 
(652 NSF), Room 109 (296 NSF), 
Room 110 (200 NSF), Room 111 
(101 NSF), Room 111A (91 NSF), 
Room 112 (139 NSF), Room 114 
(197 NSF), Room 114A (73 NSF), 
Room 115 (139 NSF)

6,632 0 $610,144 $92 $0

Renovation 2026 18 2 Renovating: Apply Painting, Floor 
Cover, Electrical, Plumbing, 
Windows, Lighting, Restrooms, 
HVAC Systems, Bell/Fire Alarm 
Systems, Retrofit for Technology to 
Room 116 (544 NSF), Room 117 
(271 NSF), Room 118 (455 NSF), 
Room 119 (307 NSF), Room 121 
(162 NSF), Room 122 (44 NSF), 
Room 123 (17 NSF), Room 124 (30 
NSF), Room 125 (83 NSF), Room 
126 (22 NSF), Room 127 (82 NSF), 
Room 128 (516 NSF), Room 129 
(126 NSF), Room 130 (105 NSF), 
Room 131 (222 NSF), Room 132 
(222 NSF), Room 134 (25 NSF), 
Room 135 (25 NSF), Room 136 
(3950 NSF), Room 136A (361 NSF), 
Room 136B (224 NSF), Room 136C 
(135 NSF), Room 137 (296 NSF), 
Room 138 (127 NSF), Room 139 
(158 NSF), Room 140 (227 NSF), 
Room 141 (180 NSF), Room 142 
(441 NSF), Room 143 (270 NSF)

9,627 0 $885,684 $92 $0

PAGE:139 of 253 Report Date: 6/8/2021 10:16:11 AM

EDUCATIONAL PLANT FIVE YEAR SURVEY REPORT

Status:

Active Pending

Survey:

Survey: 7 - Version: 1

District:

10-CLAY COUNTY SCHOOL DISTRICT

Page 682 of 962

DRAFT



LAKESIDE 
ELEMENTARY

Parcel Building Description Total NSF Change In 
Station Count

Calculated 
Cost

Cost Per 
NSF

Cost Per 
Station

Renovation 2026 18 4 Renovating: Apply Painting, Floor 
Cover, Electrical, Plumbing, 
Windows, Lighting, Restrooms, 
HVAC Systems, Bell/Fire Alarm 
Systems, Retrofit for Technology to 
Room 144 (156 NSF), Room 145 
(156 NSF), Room 146 (156 NSF), 
Room 147 (156 NSF)

624 0 $57,408 $92 $0

Renovation 2026 18 5 Renovating: Apply Painting, Floor 
Cover, Electrical, Plumbing, 
Windows, Lighting, Restrooms, 
HVAC Systems, Bell/Fire Alarm 
Systems, Retrofit for Technology to 
Room 148 (155 NSF), Room 149 
(155 NSF), Room 150 (155 NSF), 
Room 151 (155 NSF)

620 0 $57,040 $92 $0

Renovation 2026 18 6 Renovating: Apply Painting, Floor 
Cover, Electrical, Plumbing, 
Windows, Lighting, Restrooms, 
HVAC Systems, Bell/Fire Alarm 
Systems, Retrofit for Technology to 
Room 600 (1452 NSF), Room 601 
(980 NSF), Room 601A (100 NSF), 
Room 601B (65 NSF), Room 601C 
(42 NSF), Room 602 (980 NSF), 
Room 602A (100 NSF), Room 602B 
(65 NSF), Room 602C (42 NSF), 
Room 603 (980 NSF), Room 603B 
(65 NSF), Room 603C (42 NSF), 
Room 604 (980 NSF), Room 604B 
(65 NSF), Room 604C (42 NSF), 
Room 605 (980 NSF), Room 605A 
(100 NSF), Room 605B (65 NSF), 
Room 605C (42 NSF), Room 606 
(980 NSF), Room 606A (100 NSF), 
Room 606B (65 NSF), Room 606C 
(42 NSF), Room 607 (980 NSF), 
Room 607B (65 NSF), Room 607C 
(42 NSF), Room 608 (980 NSF), 
Room 608B (65 NSF), Room 608C 
(42 NSF), Room 609 (42 NSF), 
Room 610 (93 NSF), Room 611 (384 
NSF), Room 612 (149 NSF), Room 
613 (225 NSF)

11,441 0 $1,052,572 $92 $0

PAGE:140 of 253 Report Date: 6/8/2021 10:16:11 AM

EDUCATIONAL PLANT FIVE YEAR SURVEY REPORT

Status:

Active Pending

Survey:

Survey: 7 - Version: 1

District:

10-CLAY COUNTY SCHOOL DISTRICT

Page 683 of 962

DRAFT



LAKESIDE 
ELEMENTARY

Parcel Building Description Total NSF Change In 
Station Count

Calculated 
Cost

Cost Per 
NSF

Cost Per 
Station

Renovation 2026 18 7 Renovating: Apply Painting, Floor 
Cover, Electrical, Plumbing, 
Windows, Lighting, Restrooms, 
HVAC Systems, Bell/Fire Alarm 
Systems, Retrofit for Technology to 
Room 700 (1320 NSF), Room 701 
(894 NSF), Room 701A (100 NSF), 
Room 701B (70 NSF), Room 701C 
(38 NSF), Room 702 (894 NSF), 
Room 702A (100 NSF), Room 702B 
(70 NSF), Room 702C (38 NSF), 
Room 703 (980 NSF), Room 703B 
(70 NSF), Room 703C (38 NSF), 
Room 704 (980 NSF), Room 704B 
(70 NSF), Room 704C (38 NSF), 
Room 705 (980 NSF), Room 705A 
(100 NSF), Room 705B (70 NSF), 
Room 705C (38 NSF), Room 706 
(980 NSF), Room 706A (100 NSF), 
Room 706B (38 NSF), Room 706C 
(38 NSF), Room 707 (980 NSF), 
Room 707B (70 NSF), Room 708 
(980 NSF), Room 708B (70 NSF), 
Room 709 (223 NSF), Room 710 
(229 NSF), Room 711 (37 NSF), 
Room 712 (37 NSF), Room 713 
(176 NSF), Room 714 (98 NSF), 
Room 716 (68 NSF)

11,012 0 $1,013,104 $92 $0

PAGE:141 of 253 Report Date: 6/8/2021 10:16:11 AM

EDUCATIONAL PLANT FIVE YEAR SURVEY REPORT

Status:

Active Pending

Survey:

Survey: 7 - Version: 1

District:

10-CLAY COUNTY SCHOOL DISTRICT

Page 684 of 962

DRAFT



District Name: CLAY COUNTY SCHOOL DISTRICT

Survey: Number 7 - Version 1

Facility Name: LAKESIDE JUNIOR HIGH

Address: 2750 MOODY ROAD, ORANGE PARK

Existing Recommended

Capital Outlay 
Classification

1 - SCHOOL RECOMMENDED FOR 
CONTINUED USE

1 - SCHOOL RECOMMENDED FOR 
CONTINUED USE

Facility Use MIDDLE JUNIOR HIGH

Low Grade GRADE 7 GRADE 7

High Grade GRADE 8 GRADE 8

Comments

Existing
Student Stations 

Added/Reduced(+ or -) Recommended

Perm. Stations 866 0 866

Reloc. Stations 472 -252 220

Mod. Stations 0 0 0

Total Stations 1,338 -252 1086

Utilization Factor 90% 90%

School Capacity 1,204 977

COFTE Student 
Membership 843 787

Survey Annotation

Renovate Buildings 1-3, 5, 7, 8, 9.
Re-design and Construct Bus Pick Up and Drop Off Areas. 
Correct Site Drainage Problems.                                 
Construct Additional Covered Walkways Where Needed.   
Remove 12 portables in excess of 20 years of age.
(Other)
District-Wide Recommendations for this facility are: Improve Security Fencing and Lighting.

New Site Cost Site 
Expansion

Site 
Development

Site 
Improvement

Remodeling 
Cost

Renovation 
Cost

New 
Construction 

Cost

$0 $0 $0 $395,000 $118,848 $9,542,795 $0

Estimated Total Project Cost $10,056,643

PAGE:142 of 253 Report Date: 6/8/2021 10:16:11 AM

EDUCATIONAL PLANT FIVE YEAR SURVEY REPORT

Status:

Active Pending

Survey:

Survey: 7 - Version: 1

District:

10-CLAY COUNTY SCHOOL DISTRICT

Page 685 of 962

DRAFT



LAKESIDE JUNIOR HIGH Parcel Building Description Total NSF Change In 
Station Count

Calculated 
Cost

Cost Per 
NSF

Cost Per 
Station

Remodeling 2026 17 92 Removed NSF (9904), Added NSF 
(0), Difference NSF (9904), Percent 
(100%), Removed Stations (252), 
Added Stations (0) Remodeling: 
Adding  and Removing Room 704 
(750 NSF), Room 704A (25 NSF), 
Room 706 (750 NSF), Room 706A 
(25 NSF), Room 708 (653 NSF), 
Room 708A (42 NSF), Room 708B 
(42 NSF), Room 721 (735 NSF), 
Room 722 (736 NSF), Room 731 
(754 NSF), Room 731A (25 NSF), 
Room 732 (745 NSF), Room 732A 
(27 NSF), Room 733 (756 NSF), 
Room 733A (23 NSF), Room 734 
(730 NSF), Room 735 (913 NSF), 
Room 791 (1330 NSF), Room 791A 
(36 NSF), Room 791B (36 NSF), 
Room 791C (36 NSF), Room 793 
(690 NSF), Room 793A (45 NSF)

-9,904 -252 $118,848 $12 $0

Renovation 2026 17 1 Renovating: Apply Painting, Floor 
Cover, Electrical, Plumbing, 
Windows, Lighting, Restrooms, 
HVAC Systems, Bell/Fire Alarm 
Systems, Retrofit for Technology to 
Room 001 (703 NSF), Room 002 
(703 NSF), Room 003 (703 NSF), 
Room 004 (20 NSF), Room 005 
(177 NSF), Room 006 (135 NSF), 
Room 007 (40 NSF), Room 008 
(252 NSF), Room 009 (703 NSF), 
Room 010 (703 NSF), Room 011 
(703 NSF), Room 012 (1725 NSF), 
Room 018 (703 NSF), Room 019 
(659 NSF), Room 020 (703 NSF), 
Room 021 (1794 NSF), Room 022 
(20 NSF), Room 023 (177 NSF), 
Room 024 (135 NSF), Room 025 
(10 NSF), Room 026 (269 NSF), 
Room 028 (703 NSF), Room 029 
(659 NSF), Room 030 (703 NSF)

13,102 0 $1,401,914 $107 $0

Renovation 2026 17 2 Renovating: Apply Painting, Floor 
Cover, Electrical, Plumbing, 
Windows, Lighting, Restrooms, 
HVAC Systems, Bell/Fire Alarm 
Systems, Retrofit for Technology to 
Room 031 (2095 NSF), Room 034 
(20 NSF), Room 035 (177 NSF), 
Room 036 (135 NSF), Room 037 
(40 NSF), Room 038 (252 NSF), 
Room 039 (1775 NSF), Room 040 
(1850 NSF), Room 041 (116 NSF), 
Room 042 (71 NSF), Room 043 
(703 NSF), Room 044 (665 NSF), 
Room 045 (703 NSF), Room 046 
(1794 NSF), Room 047 (20 NSF), 
Room 048 (177 NSF), Room 049 
(135 NSF), Room 050 (10 NSF), 
Room 051 (252 NSF), Room 053 
(703 NSF), Room 054 (665 NSF), 
Room 055 (703 NSF)

13,061 0 $1,397,527 $107 $0

PAGE:143 of 253 Report Date: 6/8/2021 10:16:11 AM

EDUCATIONAL PLANT FIVE YEAR SURVEY REPORT

Status:

Active Pending

Survey:

Survey: 7 - Version: 1

District:

10-CLAY COUNTY SCHOOL DISTRICT

Page 686 of 962

DRAFT



LAKESIDE JUNIOR HIGH Parcel Building Description Total NSF Change In 
Station Count

Calculated 
Cost

Cost Per 
NSF

Cost Per 
Station

Renovation 2026 17 3 Renovating: Apply Painting, Floor 
Cover, Electrical, Plumbing, 
Windows, Lighting, Restrooms, 
HVAC Systems, Bell/Fire Alarm 
Systems, Retrofit for Technology to 
Room 056 (703 NSF), Room 057 
(703 NSF), Room 058 (703 NSF), 
Room 059 (1725 NSF), Room 060 
(20 NSF), Room 061 (177 NSF), 
Room 062 (135 NSF), Room 063 
(40 NSF), Room 064 (252 NSF), 
Room 066 (525 NSF), Room 067 
(1215 NSF), Room 067A (100 NSF), 
Room 067B (119 NSF), Room 067C 
(115 NSF), Room 069 (703 NSF), 
Room 070 (670 NSF), Room 071 
(696 NSF), Room 072 (1725 NSF), 
Room 073 (20 NSF), Room 074 
(177 NSF), Room 075 (135 NSF), 
Room 076 (10 NSF), Room 077 
(252 NSF), Room 079 (703 NSF), 
Room 080 (670 NSF), Room 081 
(703 NSF)

12,996 0 $1,390,572 $107 $0

PAGE:144 of 253 Report Date: 6/8/2021 10:16:11 AM

EDUCATIONAL PLANT FIVE YEAR SURVEY REPORT

Status:

Active Pending

Survey:

Survey: 7 - Version: 1

District:

10-CLAY COUNTY SCHOOL DISTRICT

Page 687 of 962

DRAFT



LAKESIDE JUNIOR HIGH Parcel Building Description Total NSF Change In 
Station Count

Calculated 
Cost

Cost Per 
NSF

Cost Per 
Station

Renovation 2026 17 5 Renovating: Apply Painting, Floor 
Cover, Electrical, Plumbing, 
Windows, Lighting, Restrooms, 
HVAC Systems, Bell/Fire Alarm 
Systems, Retrofit for Technology to 
Room 100 (256 NSF), Room 101 
(98 NSF), Room 102 (76 NSF), 
Room 103 (86 NSF), Room 104 (52 
NSF), Room 105 (247 NSF), Room 
107 (224 NSF), Room 108 (71 NSF), 
Room 109 (149 NSF), Room 110 
(1232 NSF), Room 111 (134 NSF), 
Room 111A (107 NSF), Room 112 
(121 NSF), Room 113 (373 NSF), 
Room 115 (240 NSF), Room 116 
(5050 NSF), Room 116A (610 NSF), 
Room 117 (121 NSF), Room 118 (50 
NSF), Room 120 (29 NSF), Room 
121 (42 NSF), Room 122 (29 NSF), 
Room 123 (343 NSF), Room 124 
(168 NSF), Room 125 (68 NSF), 
Room 126 (278 NSF), Room 127 
(180 NSF), Room 128 (62 NSF), 
Room 129 (516 NSF), Room 130 
(268 NSF), Room 131 (18 NSF), 
Room 132 (134 NSF), Room 133 
(56 NSF), Room 134 (236 NSF), 
Room 135 (103 NSF), Room 136 
(115 NSF), Room 137 (103 NSF), 
Room 138 (172 NSF), Room 139 
(257 NSF), Room 140 (84 NSF), 
Room 141 (57 NSF), Room 142 
(219 NSF), Room 200 (44 NSF), 
Room 203 (330 NSF), Room 204 
(38 NSF), Room 205 (75 NSF), 
Room 206 (23 NSF), Room 207 
(209 NSF), Room 208 (1180 NSF), 
Room 209 (102 NSF), Room 210 
(44 NSF), Room 211 (16 NSF), 
Room 213 (101 NSF), Room 215 
(4946 NSF), Room 216 (144 NSF), 
Room 217 (96 NSF), Room 217A 
(105 NSF), Room 217B (130 NSF), 
Room 218 (360 NSF), Room 219 
(22 NSF), Room 220 (79 NSF), 
Room 221 (155 NSF), Room 223 
(334 NSF), Room 224 (618 NSF), 
Room 226 (324 NSF), Room 227 
(180 NSF), Room 228 (275 NSF), 
Room 228A (144 NSF), Room 228B 
(156 NSF), Room 229 (577 NSF), 
Room 231 (118 NSF), Room 232 
(224 NSF), Room 233 (210 NSF), 
Room 234 (87 NSF), Room 235 (44 
NSF), Room 236 (80 NSF), Room 
238 (142 NSF), Room 239 (44 NSF), 
Room 240 (315 NSF), Room 241 
(106 NSF), Room 242 (123 NSF), 
Room 243 (138 NSF), Room 244 
(116 NSF), Room 245 (50 NSF), 
Room 246 (46 NSF), Room 247 (31 
NSF), Room 248 (52 NSF)

25,567 0 $2,735,669 $107 $0

PAGE:145 of 253 Report Date: 6/8/2021 10:16:11 AM

EDUCATIONAL PLANT FIVE YEAR SURVEY REPORT

Status:

Active Pending

Survey:

Survey: 7 - Version: 1

District:

10-CLAY COUNTY SCHOOL DISTRICT

Page 688 of 962

DRAFT



LAKESIDE JUNIOR HIGH Parcel Building Description Total NSF Change In 
Station Count

Calculated 
Cost

Cost Per 
NSF

Cost Per 
Station

Renovation 2026 17 7 Renovating: Apply Painting, Floor 
Cover, Electrical, Plumbing, 
Windows, Lighting, Restrooms, 
HVAC Systems, Bell/Fire Alarm 
Systems, Retrofit for Technology to 
Room 001 (287 NSF), Room 002 
(271 NSF), Room 003 (39 NSF)

597 0 $63,879 $107 $0

Renovation 2026 17 8 Renovating: Apply Painting, Floor 
Cover, Electrical, Plumbing, 
Windows, Lighting, Restrooms, 
HVAC Systems, Bell/Fire Alarm 
Systems, Retrofit for Technology to 
Room 801 (529 NSF), Room 802 
(50 NSF), Room 803 (50 NSF), 
Room 804 (1208 NSF), Room 805 
(157 NSF), Room 806 (105 NSF), 
Room 807 (154 NSF), Room 808 
(110 NSF), Room 809 (419 NSF), 
Room 810 (304 NSF), Room 811 
(180 NSF), Room 813 (56 NSF), 
Room 814 (1985 NSF), Room 815 
(188 NSF), Room 816 (109 NSF), 
Room 817 (57 NSF), Room 818 
(305 NSF), Room 819 (119 NSF), 
Room 820 (70 NSF), Room 821 (70 
NSF), Room 822 (425 NSF), Room 
823 (190 NSF), Room 824 (167 
NSF), Room 825 (150 NSF), Room 
826 (97 NSF), Room 827 (118 NSF), 
Room 828 (189 NSF), Room 829 
(80 NSF), Room 830 (149 NSF)

7,790 0 $833,530 $107 $0

Renovation 2026 17 9 Renovating: Apply Painting, Floor 
Cover, Electrical, Plumbing, 
Windows, Lighting, Restrooms, 
HVAC Systems, Bell/Fire Alarm 
Systems, Retrofit for Technology to 
Room 901 (9556 NSF), Room 902 
(156 NSF), Room 903 (166 NSF), 
Room 904 (25 NSF), Room 905 
(407 NSF), Room 906 (1272 NSF), 
Room 907 (246 NSF), Room 908 
(352 NSF), Room 909 (130 NSF), 
Room 910 (208 NSF), Room 911 (39 
NSF), Room 912 (301 NSF), Room 
913 (5 NSF), Room 914 (156 NSF), 
Room 915 (208 NSF), Room 916 
(39 NSF), Room 917 (1082 NSF), 
Room 917B (73 NSF), Room 918 
(180 NSF), Room 919 (275 NSF), 
Room 920 (118 NSF), Room 921 
(320 NSF), Room 922 (240 NSF), 
Room 923 (37 NSF), Room 923A 
(32 NSF), Room 924 (190 NSF), 
Room 924A (25 NSF), Room 950 
(66 NSF), Room 950A (92 NSF), 
Room 951 (76 NSF)

16,072 0 $1,719,704 $107 $0

PAGE:146 of 253 Report Date: 6/8/2021 10:16:11 AM

EDUCATIONAL PLANT FIVE YEAR SURVEY REPORT

Status:

Active Pending

Survey:

Survey: 7 - Version: 1

District:

10-CLAY COUNTY SCHOOL DISTRICT

Page 689 of 962

DRAFT



District Name: CLAY COUNTY SCHOOL DISTRICT

Survey: Number 7 - Version 1

Facility Name: MCRAE ELEMENTARY

Address: 6770 COUNTY ROAD 315, KEYSTONE HEIGHTS

Existing Recommended

Capital Outlay 
Classification

1 - SCHOOL RECOMMENDED FOR 
CONTINUED USE

1 - SCHOOL RECOMMENDED FOR 
CONTINUED USE

Facility Use ELEMENTARY ELEMENTARY

Low Grade PRE-K E S E PRE-K E S E

High Grade GRADE 6 GRADE 6

Comments

Existing
Student Stations 

Added/Reduced(+ or -) Recommended

Perm. Stations 234 199 433

Reloc. Stations 316 -159 157

Mod. Stations 0 0 0

Total Stations 550 40 590

Utilization Factor 100% 100%

School Capacity 550 590

COFTE Student 
Membership 526 541

Survey Annotation

New Construction- add (6) Primary Classrooms, (3) Intermediate Classrooms,  (1) ESE PT, 
(1) ESE FT, (1) Covered Play.                                                                      Remove 9 
portables in excess of 20 years of age.    Renovate Buildings 1, 2, 3, 5 and 6.                           
     
Correct site drainage problems.                                                
Construct additional Covered Walkways where needed. 
(Other)
District-Wide Recommendations for this facility are:  Improve security fencing and lighting.

New Site Cost Site 
Expansion

Site 
Development

Site 
Improvement

Remodeling 
Cost

Renovation 
Cost

New 
Construction 

Cost

$0 $0 $0 $45,000 $81,552 $5,122,192 $5,058,381

Estimated Total Project Cost $10,307,125

PAGE:147 of 253 Report Date: 6/8/2021 10:16:11 AM

EDUCATIONAL PLANT FIVE YEAR SURVEY REPORT

Status:

Active Pending

Survey:

Survey: 7 - Version: 1

District:

10-CLAY COUNTY SCHOOL DISTRICT

Page 690 of 962

DRAFT



MCRAE ELEMENTARY Parcel Building Description Total NSF Change In 
Station Count

Calculated 
Cost

Cost Per 
NSF

Cost Per 
Station

New Construction 2026 New Construction: Adding 1 unit of E 
S E PART-TIME (975 NSF), 1 unit of 
E S E FULL-TIME (950 NSF), 1 unit 
of ELEMENTARY COVERED PLAY 
AREA (500 NSF), 6 units of 
PRIMARY CLASSROOM (K-3) (882 
NSF)

9,747 133 $3,380,727 $347 $25,419

New Construction 2026 New Construction: Adding 2 units of 
INTERMEDIATE/MIDDLE 
CLASSROOM (4-8) (858 NSF), 1 
unit of INTERMEDIATE/MIDDLE 
CLASSROOM (4-8) (858 NSF)

3,234 66 $1,677,654 $519 $25,419

Remodeling 2026 45 92 Removed NSF (6796), Added NSF 
(0), Difference NSF (6796), Percent 
(100%), Removed Stations (159), 
Added Stations (0) Remodeling: 
Adding  and Removing Room 407 
(752 NSF), Room 407A (29 NSF), 
Room 705 (705 NSF), Room 707 
(734 NSF), Room 806 (744 NSF), 
Room 806A (26 NSF), Room 824 
(750 NSF), Room 825 (750 NSF), 
Room 825A (36 NSF), Room 826 
(750 NSF), Room 827 (750 NSF), 
Room 842 (744 NSF), Room 842A 
(26 NSF)

-6,796 -159 $81,552 $12 $0

Renovation 2026 45 1 Renovating: Apply Painting, Floor 
Cover, Electrical, Plumbing, 
Windows, Lighting, Restrooms, 
HVAC Systems, Bell/Fire Alarm 
Systems, Retrofit for Technology to 
Room 101 (475 NSF), Room 102 
(73 NSF), Room 103 (291 NSF), 
Room 104 (215 NSF), Room 105 
(130 NSF), Room 106 (378 NSF), 
Room 107 (72 NSF), Room 109 (72 
NSF), Room 110 (150 NSF), Room 
111 (150 NSF), Room 112 (898 
NSF), Room 113 (303 NSF), Room 
114 (707 NSF), Room 115 (270 
NSF), Room 116 (124 NSF), Room 
117 (256 NSF), Room 118 (143 
NSF), Room 119 (241 NSF), Room 
120 (244 NSF), Room 121 (320 
NSF), Room 122 (73 NSF), Room 
123 (145 NSF), Room 124 (44 NSF), 
Room 125 (153 NSF), Room 126 
(193 NSF), Room 127 (251 NSF), 
Room 128 (304 NSF), Room 129 
(163 NSF), Room 130 (215 NSF), 
Room 131 (142 NSF), Room 132 
(140 NSF), Room 133 (206 NSF), 
Room 134 (208 NSF), Room 135 
(191 NSF), Room 136 (190 NSF), 
Room 137 (304 NSF), Room 137A 
(14 NSF), Room 138 (43 NSF), 
Room 139 (283 NSF), Room 140 
(109 NSF), Room 141 (135 NSF), 
Room 142 (284 NSF), Room 143 
(210 NSF)

9,512 0 $875,104 $92 $0

PAGE:148 of 253 Report Date: 6/8/2021 10:16:11 AM

EDUCATIONAL PLANT FIVE YEAR SURVEY REPORT

Status:

Active Pending

Survey:

Survey: 7 - Version: 1

District:

10-CLAY COUNTY SCHOOL DISTRICT

Page 691 of 962

DRAFT



MCRAE ELEMENTARY Parcel Building Description Total NSF Change In 
Station Count

Calculated 
Cost

Cost Per 
NSF

Cost Per 
Station

Renovation 2026 45 2 Renovating: Apply Painting, Floor 
Cover, Electrical, Plumbing, 
Windows, Lighting, Restrooms, 
HVAC Systems, Bell/Fire Alarm 
Systems, Retrofit for Technology to 
Room 201 (3872 NSF), Room 201A 
(2069 NSF), Room 202 (1049 NSF), 
Room 203 (99 NSF), Room 204 
(286 NSF), Room 205 (32 NSF), 
Room 206 (171 NSF), Room 207 
(299 NSF), Room 208 (136 NSF), 
Room 209 (118 NSF), Room 211 
(138 NSF), Room 212 (778 NSF), 
Room 213 (98 NSF), Room 215 
(393 NSF), Room 216 (622 NSF), 
Room 217 (118 NSF), Room 218 
(218 NSF), Room 219 (1182 NSF), 
Room 220 (98 NSF), Room 221 (118 
NSF), Room 222 (126 NSF), Room 
223 (84 NSF), Room 224 (267 NSF), 
Room 225 (18 NSF), Room 226 
(297 NSF), Room 227 (98 NSF), 
Room 228 (38 NSF), Room 229 
(773 NSF), Room 230 (90 NSF), 
Room 231 (203 NSF), Room 232 
(557 NSF), Room 233 (45 NSF)

14,490 0 $1,333,080 $92 $0

Renovation 2026 45 3 Renovating: Apply Painting, Floor 
Cover, Electrical, Plumbing, 
Windows, Lighting, Restrooms, 
HVAC Systems, Bell/Fire Alarm 
Systems, Retrofit for Technology to 
Room 301 (252 NSF), Room 302 
(57 NSF), Room 303 (322 NSF), 
Room 304 (622 NSF), Room 304A 
(9 NSF), Room 305 (229 NSF), 
Room 306 (60 NSF), Room 307 (53 
NSF), Room 308 (53 NSF), Room 
309 (115 NSF), Room 310 (260 
NSF), Room 311 (264 NSF), Room 
312 (138 NSF), Room 313 (503 
NSF), Room 314 (3311 NSF), Room 
316 (148 NSF), Room 317 (179 
NSF), Room 318 (188 NSF), Room 
319 (551 NSF), Room 320 (348 
NSF), Room 321 (187 NSF), Room 
322 (126 NSF), Room 323 (764 
NSF), Room 324 (90 NSF), Room 
324A (15 NSF)

8,844 0 $813,648 $92 $0

PAGE:149 of 253 Report Date: 6/8/2021 10:16:11 AM

EDUCATIONAL PLANT FIVE YEAR SURVEY REPORT

Status:

Active Pending

Survey:

Survey: 7 - Version: 1

District:

10-CLAY COUNTY SCHOOL DISTRICT

Page 692 of 962

DRAFT



MCRAE ELEMENTARY Parcel Building Description Total NSF Change In 
Station Count

Calculated 
Cost

Cost Per 
NSF

Cost Per 
Station

Renovation 2026 45 5 Renovating: Apply Painting, Floor 
Cover, Electrical, Plumbing, 
Windows, Lighting, Restrooms, 
HVAC Systems, Bell/Fire Alarm 
Systems, Retrofit for Technology to 
Room 500 (1873 NSF), Room 501 
(918 NSF), Room 502 (97 NSF), 
Room 503 (32 NSF), Room 504 (88 
NSF), Room 505 (88 NSF), Room 
506 (926 NSF), Room 507 (98 NSF), 
Room 508 (33 NSF), Room 509 
(924 NSF), Room 510 (98 NSF), 
Room 511 (33 NSF), Room 512 (88 
NSF), Room 513 (88 NSF), Room 
514 (921 NSF), Room 515 (99 NSF), 
Room 516 (33 NSF), Room 517 
(918 NSF), Room 518 (98 NSF), 
Room 519 (32 NSF), Room 520 (88 
NSF), Room 521 (88 NSF), Room 
522 (919 NSF), Room 523 (98 NSF), 
Room 524 (33 NSF), Room 525 
(920 NSF), Room 526 (99 NSF), 
Room 527 (32 NSF), Room 528 (87 
NSF), Room 529 (88 NSF), Room 
530 (918 NSF), Room 531 (99 NSF), 
Room 532 (32 NSF), Room 533 
(131 NSF), Room 534 (115 NSF), 
Room 536 (37 NSF), Room 537 (211 
NSF)

11,480 0 $1,056,160 $92 $0

Renovation 2026 45 6 Renovating: Apply Painting, Floor 
Cover, Electrical, Plumbing, 
Windows, Lighting, Restrooms, 
HVAC Systems, Bell/Fire Alarm 
Systems, Retrofit for Technology to 
Room 600 (1867 NSF), Room 601 
(906 NSF), Room 602 (93 NSF), 
Room 603 (33 NSF), Room 604 (87 
NSF), Room 605 (88 NSF), Room 
606 (930 NSF), Room 607 (106 
NSF), Room 608 (33 NSF), Room 
609 (926 NSF), Room 610 (99 NSF), 
Room 611 (33 NSF), Room 612 (88 
NSF), Room 613 (87 NSF), Room 
614 (914 NSF), Room 615 (98 NSF), 
Room 616 (33 NSF), Room 617 
(919 NSF), Room 618 (100 NSF), 
Room 619 (33 NSF), Room 620 (87 
NSF), Room 621 (88 NSF), Room 
622 (914 NSF), Room 623 (99 NSF), 
Room 624 (30 NSF), Room 625 
(927 NSF), Room 626 (98 NSF), 
Room 627 (33 NSF), Room 628 (88 
NSF), Room 629 (87 NSF), Room 
630 (493 NSF), Room 631 (100 
NSF), Room 632 (33 NSF), Room 
633 (464 NSF), Room 635 (14 NSF), 
Room 636 (49 NSF), Room 637 
(145 NSF), Room 638 (128 NSF)

11,350 0 $1,044,200 $92 $0

PAGE:150 of 253 Report Date: 6/8/2021 10:16:11 AM

EDUCATIONAL PLANT FIVE YEAR SURVEY REPORT

Status:

Active Pending

Survey:

Survey: 7 - Version: 1

District:

10-CLAY COUNTY SCHOOL DISTRICT

Page 693 of 962

DRAFT



District Name: CLAY COUNTY SCHOOL DISTRICT

Survey: Number 7 - Version 1

Facility Name: MIDDLEBURG ELEMENTARY

Address: 3958 MAIN STREET, MIDDLEBURG

Existing Recommended

Capital Outlay 
Classification

1 - SCHOOL RECOMMENDED FOR 
CONTINUED USE

1 - SCHOOL RECOMMENDED FOR 
CONTINUED USE

Facility Use ELEMENTARY ELEMENTARY

Low Grade PRE-K E S E PRE-K E S E

High Grade GRADE 6 GRADE 6

Comments

Existing
Student Stations 

Added/Reduced(+ or -) Recommended

Perm. Stations 518 0 518

Reloc. Stations 132 -46 86

Mod. Stations 0 0 0

Total Stations 650 -46 604

Utilization Factor 100% 100%

School Capacity 650 604

COFTE Student 
Membership 537 541

Survey Annotation

Remove 3 portables in excess of 20 years of age.                Renovate Buildings 2, 4, & 9.        
                                         Construct additional parking. (20 spaces)                                  
Construct Elementary Covered Play.                              Correct site drainage problems.
Construct additional Covered Walkways where needed. 
(Other)
District-Wide Recommendations for this facility are: Improve security fencing and lighting.

New Site Cost Site 
Expansion

Site 
Development

Site 
Improvement

Remodeling 
Cost

Renovation 
Cost

New 
Construction 

Cost

$0 $0 $0 $195,000 $28,884 $1,602,824 $138,000

Estimated Total Project Cost $1,964,708

MIDDLEBURG 
ELEMENTARY

Parcel Building Description Total NSF Change In 
Station Count

Calculated 
Cost

Cost Per 
NSF

Cost Per 
Station

New Construction 2026 New Construction: Adding 1 unit of 
ELEMENTARY COVERED PLAY 
AREA (500 NSF)

500 0 $138,000 $276 $0

PAGE:151 of 253 Report Date: 6/8/2021 10:16:11 AM

EDUCATIONAL PLANT FIVE YEAR SURVEY REPORT

Status:

Active Pending

Survey:

Survey: 7 - Version: 1

District:

10-CLAY COUNTY SCHOOL DISTRICT

Page 694 of 962

DRAFT



MIDDLEBURG 
ELEMENTARY

Parcel Building Description Total NSF Change In 
Station Count

Calculated 
Cost

Cost Per 
NSF

Cost Per 
Station

Remodeling 2026 12 92 Removed NSF (2407), Added NSF 
(0), Difference NSF (2407), Percent 
(100%), Removed Stations (46), 
Added Stations (0) Remodeling: 
Adding  and Removing Room 024 
(738 NSF), Room 024A (25 NSF), 
Room 025 (839 NSF), Room 025A 
(25 NSF), Room 037 (755 NSF), 
Room 037A (25 NSF)

-2,407 -46 $28,884 $12 $0

Renovation 2026 12 2 Renovating: Apply Painting, Floor 
Cover, Electrical, Plumbing, 
Windows, Lighting, Restrooms, 
HVAC Systems, Bell/Fire Alarm 
Systems, Retrofit for Technology to 
Room 001 (820 NSF), Room 002 
(16 NSF), Room 003 (1101 NSF), 
Room 004 (314 NSF), Room 005 
(71 NSF), Room 006 (84 NSF), 
Room 007 (82 NSF), Room 008 (23 
NSF), Room 010 (15 NSF)

2,526 0 $232,392 $92 $0

Renovation 2026 12 4 Renovating: Apply Painting, Floor 
Cover, Electrical, Plumbing, 
Windows, Lighting, Restrooms, 
HVAC Systems, Bell/Fire Alarm 
Systems, Retrofit for Technology to 
Room 017 (749 NSF), Room 018 
(749 NSF), Room 019 (749 NSF), 
Room 020 (749 NSF), Room 021 
(749 NSF), Room 022 (749 NSF), 
Room 023 (826 NSF), Room 026 
(168 NSF), Room 027 (168 NSF), 
Room 029 (54 NSF), Room 030 
(171 NSF), Room 031 (171 NSF), 
Room 042 (593 NSF), Room 043 
(593 NSF)

7,238 0 $665,896 $92 $0

Renovation 2026 12 9 Renovating: Apply Painting, Floor 
Cover, Electrical, Plumbing, 
Windows, Lighting, Restrooms, 
HVAC Systems, Bell/Fire Alarm 
Systems, Retrofit for Technology to 
Room 101 (3312 NSF), Room 102 
(174 NSF), Room 103 (336 NSF), 
Room 104 (353 NSF), Room 105 
(122 NSF), Room 106 (283 NSF), 
Room 107 (243 NSF), Room 108 
(139 NSF), Room 109 (40 NSF), 
Room 110 (40 NSF), Room 111 (100 
NSF), Room 112 (148 NSF), Room 
113 (199 NSF), Room 114 (65 NSF), 
Room 115 (550 NSF), Room 116 
(650 NSF), Room 117 (426 NSF), 
Room 117A (96 NSF), Room 118 
(191 NSF), Room 119 (191 NSF)

7,658 0 $704,536 $92 $0

PAGE:152 of 253 Report Date: 6/8/2021 10:16:11 AM

EDUCATIONAL PLANT FIVE YEAR SURVEY REPORT

Status:

Active Pending

Survey:

Survey: 7 - Version: 1

District:

10-CLAY COUNTY SCHOOL DISTRICT

Page 695 of 962

DRAFT



District Name: CLAY COUNTY SCHOOL DISTRICT

Survey: Number 7 - Version 1

Facility Name: MIDDLEBURG SENIOR HIGH

Address: 3750 STATE ROAD 220, MIDDLEBURG

Existing Recommended

Capital Outlay 
Classification

1 - SCHOOL RECOMMENDED FOR 
CONTINUED USE

1 - SCHOOL RECOMMENDED FOR 
CONTINUED USE

Facility Use SENIOR HIGH SENIOR HIGH

Low Grade GRADE 9 GRADE 9

High Grade GRADE 12 GRADE 12

Comments

Existing
Student Stations 

Added/Reduced(+ or -) Recommended

Perm. Stations 1,554 0 1554

Reloc. Stations 955 -282 673

Mod. Stations 0 0 0

Total Stations 2,509 -282 2227

Utilization Factor 95% 95%

School Capacity 2,383 2115

COFTE Student 
Membership 1,589 1,599

Survey Annotation

Expand Dining area.                                                   Construct Parent and Bus Pick Up and 
drop off areas.                                      
Renovate Building 1.                                                                   Remove 13 portables in 
excess of 20 years of age.                                                           
Correct Site Drainage Problems.                                 
Construct Additional Covered Walkways Where Needed.
(Other)
District-Wide Recommendations for this facility are: Improve Security Fencing and Lighting.

New Site Cost Site 
Expansion

Site 
Development

Site 
Improvement

Remodeling 
Cost

Renovation 
Cost

New 
Construction 

Cost

$0 $0 $0 $480,000 $119,640 $24,840,417 $0

Estimated Total Project Cost $25,440,057

PAGE:153 of 253 Report Date: 6/8/2021 10:16:11 AM

EDUCATIONAL PLANT FIVE YEAR SURVEY REPORT

Status:

Active Pending

Survey:

Survey: 7 - Version: 1

District:

10-CLAY COUNTY SCHOOL DISTRICT

Page 696 of 962

DRAFT



MIDDLEBURG SENIOR 
HIGH

Parcel Building Description Total NSF Change In 
Station Count

Calculated 
Cost

Cost Per 
NSF

Cost Per 
Station

Remodeling 2026 22 92 Removed NSF (9970), Added NSF 
(0), Difference NSF (9970), Percent 
(100%), Removed Stations (282), 
Added Stations (0) Remodeling: 
Adding  and Removing Room 007 
(730 NSF), Room 009 (750 NSF), 
Room 009A (27 NSF), Room 034 
(734 NSF), Room 035 (734 NSF), 
Room 055 (754 NSF), Room 055A 
(36 NSF), Room 060 (754 NSF), 
Room 071 (759 NSF), Room 071A 
(26 NSF), Room 073 (764 NSF), 
Room 073A (83 NSF), Room 081 
(754 NSF), Room 082 (731 NSF), 
Room 084 (777 NSF), Room 084A 
(25 NSF), Room 086 (778 NSF), 
Room 088 (754 NSF)

-9,970 -282 $119,640 $12 $0

Renovation 2026 22 1 Renovating: Apply Painting, Floor 
Cover, Electrical, Plumbing, 
Windows, Lighting, Restrooms, 
HVAC Systems, Bell/Fire Alarm 
Systems, Retrofit for Technology to 
Room 001 (396 NSF), Room 001A 
(363 NSF), Room 002 (237 NSF), 
Room 003 (1083 NSF), Room 004A 
(74 NSF), Room 004B (148 NSF), 
Room 005 (24 NSF), Room 006 (23 
NSF), Room 007 (184 NSF), Room 
008 (160 NSF), Room 009 (30 NSF), 
Room 010 (30 NSF), Room 011 (210 
NSF), Room 012 (34 NSF), Room 
013 (36 NSF), Room 014 (375 NSF), 
Room 015 (138 NSF), Room 016 
(28 NSF), Room 017 (28 NSF), 
Room 018 (251 NSF), Room 018A 
(166 NSF), Room 019 (126 NSF), 
Room 020 (129 NSF), Room 021 
(113 NSF), Room 022 (113 NSF), 
Room 023 (130 NSF), Room 024 
(240 NSF), Room 025 (129 NSF), 
Room 026 (200 NSF), Room 027 
(44 NSF), Room 028 (44 NSF), 
Room 029 (161 NSF), Room 030 
(109 NSF), Room 031 (285 NSF), 
Room 032 (136 NSF), Room 033 
(375 NSF), Room 034 (567 NSF), 
Room 035 (136 NSF), Room 036 
(265 NSF), Room 037 (310 NSF), 
Room 038 (247 NSF), Room 039 
(170 NSF), Room 040 (77 NSF), 
Room 041 (106 NSF), Room 042 
(242 NSF), Room 043 (132 NSF), 
Room 044 (132 NSF), Room 045 
(240 NSF), Room 046 (104 NSF), 
Room 046A (104 NSF), Room 047 
(137 NSF), Room 048 (137 NSF), 
Room 049 (137 NSF), Room 050 
(324 NSF), Room 050A (109 NSF), 
Room 050B (189 NSF), Room 051 
(415 NSF), Room 052 (213 NSF), 
Room 053 (220 NSF), Room 054 
(1083 NSF), Room 055 (1437 NSF), 
Room 056 (105 NSF), Room 057 
(70 NSF), Room 058 (75 NSF), 
Room 059 (75 NSF), Room 060 
(168 NSF), Room 061 (630 NSF), 

208,743 0 $24,840,417 $119 $0

PAGE:154 of 253 Report Date: 6/8/2021 10:16:11 AM

EDUCATIONAL PLANT FIVE YEAR SURVEY REPORT

Status:

Active Pending

Survey:

Survey: 7 - Version: 1

District:

10-CLAY COUNTY SCHOOL DISTRICT

Page 697 of 962

DRAFT



Room 062 (124 NSF), Room 063 
(124 NSF), Room 064 (124 NSF), 
Room 065 (82 NSF), Room 066 (94 
NSF), Room 067 (631 NSF), Room 
068 (1287 NSF), Room 069 (786 
NSF), Room 070 (81 NSF), Room 
070A (142 NSF), Room 070B (78 
NSF), Room 070C (148 NSF), Room 
071 (325 NSF), Room 071A (112 
NSF), Room 071B (109 NSF), Room 
071C (112 NSF), Room 071D (74 
NSF), Room 072 (1168 NSF), Room 
073 (280 NSF), Room 074 (280 
NSF), Room 075 (25 NSF), Room 
076 (50 NSF), Room 077 (25 NSF), 
Room 078 (2360 NSF), Room 079 
(1640 NSF), Room 080 (35 NSF), 
Room 081 (35 NSF), Room 082 (35 
NSF), Room 083 (35 NSF), Room 
084 (35 NSF), Room 085 (35 NSF), 
Room 086 (35 NSF), Room 087 (35 
NSF), Room 088 (810 NSF), Room 
089 (810 NSF), Room 090 (810 
NSF), Room 091 (810 NSF), Room 
092 (795 NSF), Room 093 (795 
NSF), Room 094 (795 NSF), Room 
095 (397 NSF), Room 096 (1087 
NSF), Room 098 (30 NSF), Room 
099 (38 NSF), Room 100 (38 NSF), 
Room 101 (38 NSF), Room 102 (38 
NSF), Room 103 (38 NSF), Room 
104 (38 NSF), Room 106 (429 NSF), 
Room 107 (1087 NSF), Room 108 
(404 NSF), Room 108A (165 NSF), 
Room 109 (204 NSF), Room 110 
(312 NSF), Room 111 (1271 NSF), 
Room 112 (1271 NSF), Room 113 
(1105 NSF), Room 114 (783 NSF), 
Room 115 (88 NSF), Room 116 (275 
NSF), Room 117 (350 NSF), Room 
118 (250 NSF), Room 119 (795 
NSF), Room 120 (795 NSF), Room 
121 (680 NSF), Room 122 (1590 
NSF), Room 123 (96 NSF), Room 
124 (175 NSF), Room 125 (105 
NSF), Room 126 (266 NSF), Room 
127 (288 NSF), Room 128 (64 NSF), 
Room 129 (1590 NSF), Room 129A 
(1140 NSF), Room 130 (512 NSF), 
Room 132 (1152 NSF), Room 133 
(1074 NSF), Room 134 (1074 NSF), 
Room 135 (1074 NSF), Room 136 
(1136 NSF), Room 137 (1136 NSF), 
Room 138 (1936 NSF), Room 139 
(795 NSF), Room 140 (795 NSF), 
Room 141 (795 NSF), Room 142 
(795 NSF), Room 143 (75 NSF), 
Room 143A (75 NSF), Room 144 
(2205 NSF), Room 145 (2283 NSF), 
Room 147 (80 NSF), Room 148 
(3862 NSF), Room 149 (2280 NSF), 
Room 150 (253 NSF), Room 151 
(607 NSF), Room 152 (2283 NSF), 
Room 153 (128 NSF), Room 154A 
(522 NSF), Room 154B (522 NSF), 
Room 155 (128 NSF), Room 156 
(469 NSF), Room 157 (770 NSF), 
Room 158 (126 NSF), Room 159 
(610 NSF), Room 160 (336 NSF), 
Room 161 (1244 NSF), Room 162 
(145 NSF), Room 163 (372 NSF), 

PAGE:155 of 253 Report Date: 6/8/2021 10:16:11 AM

EDUCATIONAL PLANT FIVE YEAR SURVEY REPORT

Status:

Active Pending

Survey:

Survey: 7 - Version: 1

District:

10-CLAY COUNTY SCHOOL DISTRICT

Page 698 of 962

DRAFT



Room 164 (527 NSF), Room 165 
(1635 NSF), Room 166 (977 NSF), 
Room 167 (207 NSF), Room 168 
(977 NSF), Room 169 (207 NSF), 
Room 170 (513 NSF), Room 171 
(297 NSF), Room 172 (274 NSF), 
Room 173 (25 NSF), Room 174 (50 
NSF), Room 175 (25 NSF), Room 
176 (152 NSF), Room 177 (284 
NSF), Room 178 (767 NSF), Room 
179 (160 NSF), Room 180 (232 
NSF), Room 181 (830 NSF), Room 
182 (830 NSF), Room 183 (830 
NSF), Room 184 (830 NSF), Room 
185 (830 NSF), Room 186 (223 
NSF), Room 187 (1600 NSF), Room 
188 (715 NSF), Room 189 (830 
NSF), Room 190 (830 NSF), Room 
191 (830 NSF), Room 192 (830 
NSF), Room 193 (2400 NSF), Room 
194 (1984 NSF), Room 195 (1591 
NSF), Room 196 (224 NSF), Room 
197 (480 NSF), Room 198 (84 NSF), 
Room 199 (280 NSF), Room 200 
(100 NSF), Room 200B (225 NSF), 
Room 201 (140 NSF), Room 202 
(10 NSF), Room 203 (392 NSF), 
Room 204 (1536 NSF), Room 204A 
(128 NSF), Room 204B (128 NSF), 
Room 205 (45 NSF), Room 206 (36 
NSF), Room 207 (144 NSF), Room 
208 (86 NSF), Room 209 (99 NSF), 
Room 210 (208 NSF), Room 210A 
(24 NSF), Room 211 (888 NSF), 
Room 211A (46 NSF), Room 211B 
(41 NSF), Room 212 (5548 NSF), 
Room 213 (1000 NSF), Room 214 
(325 NSF), Room 215 (208 NSF), 
Room 216 (20 NSF), Room 217 
(1231 NSF), Room 218 (253 NSF), 
Room 219 (253 NSF), Room 220 
(143 NSF), Room 221 (1427 NSF), 
Room 222 (227 NSF), Room 223 
(173 NSF), Room 224 (583 NSF), 
Room 226 (1273 NSF), Room 227 
(168 NSF), Room 228 (325 NSF), 
Room 229A (84 NSF), Room 229B 
(406 NSF), Room 229C (229 NSF), 
Room 230 (129 NSF), Room 230A 
(90 NSF), Room 231 (539 NSF), 
Room 232 (135 NSF), Room 233 
(87 NSF), Room 234 (87 NSF), 
Room 234A (24 NSF), Room 235 
(683 NSF), Room 236 (66 NSF), 
Room 237 (100 NSF), Room 238 
(64 NSF), Room 239 (1250 NSF), 
Room 240 (1133 NSF), Room 241 
(1182 NSF), Room 242 (577 NSF), 
Room 243 (144 NSF), Room 244 
(131 NSF), Room 245 (100 NSF), 
Room 246 (98 NSF), Room 247 
(200 NSF), Room 247A (25 NSF), 
Room 248 (200 NSF), Room 248A 
(25 NSF), Room 249 (50 NSF), 
Room 250 (1620 NSF), Room 251 
(1063 NSF), Room 251A (168 NSF), 
Room 252 (168 NSF), Room 253 
(1097 NSF), Room 254 (858 NSF), 
Room 256 (93 NSF), Room 257 (119 
NSF), Room 258 (900 NSF), Room 
259 (961 NSF), Room 260 (120 

PAGE:156 of 253 Report Date: 6/8/2021 10:16:11 AM

EDUCATIONAL PLANT FIVE YEAR SURVEY REPORT

Status:

Active Pending

Survey:

Survey: 7 - Version: 1

District:

10-CLAY COUNTY SCHOOL DISTRICT

Page 699 of 962

DRAFT



NSF), Room 262 (733 NSF), Room 
263 (1147 NSF), Room 264 (150 
NSF), Room 265 (175 NSF), Room 
266 (262 NSF), Room 267 (100 
NSF), Room 267B (55 NSF), Room 
268 (260 NSF), Room 269 (156 
NSF), Room 270 (676 NSF), Room 
271 (160 NSF), Room 272 (242 
NSF), Room 273 (138 NSF), Room 
274 (886 NSF), Room 275 (110 
NSF), Room 275A (50 NSF), Room 
276 (185 NSF), Room 277 (192 
NSF), Room 278 (588 NSF), Room 
279 (318 NSF), Room 280 (513 
NSF), Room 281 (123 NSF), Room 
281A (35 NSF), Room 281B (22 
NSF), Room 282 (1224 NSF), Room 
283 (840 NSF), Room 283A (1170 
NSF), Room 284 (1920 NSF), Room 
284A (1164 NSF), Room 285 (12025 
NSF), Room 286 (1568 NSF), Room 
287 (76 NSF), Room 287A (76 
NSF), Room 288 (112 NSF), Room 
289 (328 NSF), Room 290 (364 
NSF), Room 291 (84 NSF), Room 
291A (40 NSF), Room 292 (44 
NSF), Room 293 (467 NSF), Room 
294 (1600 NSF), Room 295 (392 
NSF), Room 296 (50 NSF), Room 
297 (194 NSF), Room 298 (168 
NSF), Room 299 (174 NSF), Room 
300 (351 NSF), Room 301 (114 
NSF), Room 301A (114 NSF), Room 
302 (513 NSF), Room 303 (139 
NSF), Room 304 (68 NSF), Room 
305 (56 NSF), Room 306 (593 NSF), 
Room 307 (238 NSF), Room 308 
(60 NSF), Room 309 (274 NSF), 
Room 309A (32 NSF), Room 310 
(245 NSF), Room 312 (1721 NSF), 
Room 312A (113 NSF), Room 313 
(494 NSF), Room 314 (669 NSF), 
Room 315 (33 NSF), Room 316 (99 
NSF), Room 316A (33 NSF), Room 
317 (150 NSF), Room 318 (150 
NSF), Room 319 (132 NSF), Room 
320 (95 NSF), Room 321 (10 NSF), 
Room 321A (10 NSF), Room 322 
(1524 NSF), Room 323 (226 NSF), 
Room 324 (144 NSF), Room 325 
(52 NSF), Room 326 (36 NSF), 
Room 327 (78 NSF), Room 328 
(124 NSF), Room 329 (147 NSF), 
Room 330 (99 NSF), Room 331 (96 
NSF), Room 332 (96 NSF), Room 
333 (42 NSF), Room 334 (42 NSF), 
Room 335 (2092 NSF), Room 336 
(281 NSF), Room 337A (41 NSF), 
Room 337B (41 NSF), Room 338 
(217 NSF), Room 339 (1920 NSF), 
Room 340 (3423 NSF), Room 341 
(1132 NSF), Room 341A (1237 
NSF), Room 342 (456 NSF), Room 
342A (96 NSF), Room 343 (270 
NSF), Room 344 (188 NSF), Room 
345 (176 NSF), Room 346 (139 
NSF), Room 347 (123 NSF), Room 
348 (172 NSF), Room 349 (180 
NSF), Room 350 (203 NSF), Room 
351 (540 NSF), Room 352 (55 NSF), 
Room 353 (30 NSF), Room 354 

PAGE:157 of 253 Report Date: 6/8/2021 10:16:11 AM

EDUCATIONAL PLANT FIVE YEAR SURVEY REPORT

Status:

Active Pending

Survey:

Survey: 7 - Version: 1

District:

10-CLAY COUNTY SCHOOL DISTRICT

Page 700 of 962

DRAFT



(188 NSF), Room 355 (488 NSF), 
Room 356 (183 NSF), Room 357 
(147 NSF), Room 358 (1017 NSF), 
Room 358A (807 NSF), Room 359 
(119 NSF), Room 360 (3834 NSF), 
Room 361 (869 NSF), Room 361A 
(637 NSF), Room 361B (1362 NSF), 
Room 361C (120 NSF), Room 361D 
(37 NSF), Room 361E (37 NSF), 
Room 362 (180 NSF), Room 363 
(255 NSF), Room 364 (165 NSF), 
Room 365 (173 NSF), Room 366 
(293 NSF), Room 367 (2808 NSF), 
Room 368 (528 NSF), Room 369 
(120 NSF), Room 370 (252 NSF), 
Room 370A (207 NSF), Room 371 
(218 NSF), Room 372 (218 NSF), 
Room 373 (476 NSF), Room 374 
(280 NSF), Room 375 (140 NSF), 
Room 376 (30 NSF), Room 377 (30 
NSF), Room 378 (2304 NSF)

PAGE:158 of 253 Report Date: 6/8/2021 10:16:11 AM

EDUCATIONAL PLANT FIVE YEAR SURVEY REPORT

Status:

Active Pending

Survey:

Survey: 7 - Version: 1

District:

10-CLAY COUNTY SCHOOL DISTRICT

Page 701 of 962

DRAFT



District Name: CLAY COUNTY SCHOOL DISTRICT

Survey: Number 7 - Version 1

Facility Name: MIDDLEBURG TRANSPORTATION

Address: 3674 COUNTY ROAD 220, MIDDLEBURG

Existing Recommended

Capital Outlay 
Classification

6 - ANCILLARY RECOMMENDED FOR 
CONTINUED USE

6 - ANCILLARY RECOMMENDED FOR 
CONTINUED USE

Facility Use TRANSPORTATION TRANSPORTATION

Low Grade DISTRICT SERVICES DISTRICT SERVICES

High Grade DISTRICT SERVICES DISTRICT SERVICES

Comments

Existing
Student Stations 

Added/Reduced(+ or -) Recommended

Perm. Stations 0 0 0

Reloc. Stations 0 0 0

Mod. Stations 0 0 0

Total Stations 0 0 0

Utilization Factor 0% 0%

School Capacity 0 0

COFTE Student 
Membership 0 0

Survey Annotation Pave parking lot beside Administration Building.                        Add 4 maintenance bays.

New Site Cost Site 
Expansion

Site 
Development

Site 
Improvement

Remodeling 
Cost

Renovation 
Cost

New 
Construction 

Cost

$0 $0 $0 $400,000 $381,098 $0 $1,466,720

Estimated Total Project Cost $2,247,818

MIDDLEBURG 
TRANSPORTATION

Parcel Building Description Total NSF Change In 
Station Count

Calculated 
Cost

Cost Per 
NSF

Cost Per 
Station

New Construction 2026 New Construction: Adding 4 units of 
SCHOOL BUS WORK BAY (400 
NSF)

1,600 0 $569,600 $356 $0

PAGE:159 of 253 Report Date: 6/8/2021 10:16:11 AM

EDUCATIONAL PLANT FIVE YEAR SURVEY REPORT

Status:

Active Pending

Survey:

Survey: 7 - Version: 1

District:

10-CLAY COUNTY SCHOOL DISTRICT

Page 702 of 962

DRAFT



MIDDLEBURG 
TRANSPORTATION

Parcel Building Description Total NSF Change In 
Station Count

Calculated 
Cost

Cost Per 
NSF

Cost Per 
Station

New Construction 2026 New Construction: Adding 1 unit of 
ANCILLARY ADMINISTRATIVE 
OFFICE (300 NSF), 7 units of 
ANCILLARY ADMINISTRATIVE 
OFFICE (100 NSF), 1 unit of 
ANCILLARY RECEPTION AREA 
(150 NSF), 1 unit of ANCILLARY 
SECRETARIAL/CLERICAL OFFICE 
(150 NSF), 1 unit of ANCILLARY 
CONFERENCE ROOM (400 NSF), 
1 unit of OTHER ANCILLARY 
ADMINISTRATIVE SUPPORT (200 
NSF), 1 unit of ANCILLARY 
RESTROOM (MALE) (50 NSF), 1 
unit of ANCILLARY RESTROOM 
(FEMALE) (50 NSF), 1 unit of 
ANCILLARY RESTROOM 
(FEMALE) (50 NSF), 1 unit of 
ANCILLARY MEDIA COPYING 
ROOM (50 NSF), 2 units of 
ANCILLARY SUPPORT STORAGE 
(60 NSF), 2 units of INSIDE 
CIRCULATION (150 NSF)

2,520 0 $897,120 $356 $0

Remodeling 2026 36 95 Removed NSF (2141), Added NSF 
(0), Difference NSF (2141), Percent 
(100%), Removed Stations (0), 
Added Stations (0) Remodeling: 
Adding  and Removing Room 501 
(524 NSF), Room 501A (162 NSF), 
Room 501B (27 NSF), Room 502 
(387 NSF), Room 502A (120 NSF), 
Room 502B (171 NSF), Room 502C 
(28 NSF), Room 503 (580 NSF), 
Room 503A (115 NSF), Room 503B 
(27 NSF)

-2,141 0 $381,098 $178 $0

PAGE:160 of 253 Report Date: 6/8/2021 10:16:11 AM

EDUCATIONAL PLANT FIVE YEAR SURVEY REPORT

Status:

Active Pending

Survey:

Survey: 7 - Version: 1

District:

10-CLAY COUNTY SCHOOL DISTRICT

Page 703 of 962

DRAFT



District Name: CLAY COUNTY SCHOOL DISTRICT

Survey: Number 7 - Version 1

Facility Name: MONTCLAIR ELEMENTARY

Address: 2398 MOODY ROAD, ORANGE PARK

Existing Recommended

Capital Outlay 
Classification

1 - SCHOOL RECOMMENDED FOR 
CONTINUED USE

1 - SCHOOL RECOMMENDED FOR 
CONTINUED USE

Facility Use ELEMENTARY ELEMENTARY

Low Grade PRE-K E S E PRE-K E S E

High Grade GRADE 6 GRADE 6

Comments

Existing
Student Stations 

Added/Reduced(+ or -) Recommended

Perm. Stations 252 140 392

Reloc. Stations 397 -277 120

Mod. Stations 0 0 0

Total Stations 649 -137 512

Utilization Factor 100% 100%

School Capacity 649 512

COFTE Student 
Membership 473 464

Survey Annotation

Renovate Buildings 1, 2, 4.
Re-design and Construct Parent and Bus Pick Up and Drop Off Areas. 
Construct  (5) Intermediate Classrooms, (1) Elem Art, (1) Elem Music, (1) ESE PK, (1) ESE 
PT and (1) ESE FT.  
Correct Site Drainage Problems.                                 
Construct Additional Covered Walkways Where Needed.   
Remove 14 portables in excess of 20 years of age.
(Other)
District-Wide Recommendations for this facility are: Improve Security Fencing and Lighting.

New Site Cost Site 
Expansion

Site 
Development

Site 
Improvement

Remodeling 
Cost

Renovation 
Cost

New 
Construction 

Cost

$0 $0 $0 $195,000 $124,680 $2,289,328 $3,558,660

Estimated Total Project Cost $6,167,668

PAGE:161 of 253 Report Date: 6/8/2021 10:16:11 AM

EDUCATIONAL PLANT FIVE YEAR SURVEY REPORT

Status:

Active Pending

Survey:

Survey: 7 - Version: 1

District:

10-CLAY COUNTY SCHOOL DISTRICT

Page 704 of 962

DRAFT



MONTCLAIR 
ELEMENTARY

Parcel Building Description Total NSF Change In 
Station Count

Calculated 
Cost

Cost Per 
NSF

Cost Per 
Station

New Construction 2026 New Construction: Adding 5 units of 
INTERMEDIATE/MIDDLE 
CLASSROOM (4-8) (858 NSF), 1 
unit of ART - ELEMENTARY (1110 
NSF), 1 unit of MUSIC - 
ELEMENTARY (1560 NSF), 1 unit of 
E S E PRE-K (475 NSF), 1 unit of E 
S E PART-TIME (975 NSF), 1 unit of 
E S E FULL-TIME (950 NSF)

11,760 140 $3,558,660 $303 $25,419

Remodeling 2026 21 92 Removed NSF (10390), Added NSF 
(0), Difference NSF (10390), Percent 
(100%), Removed Stations (277), 
Added Stations (0) Remodeling: 
Adding  and Removing Room 024 
(754 NSF), Room 024A (25 NSF), 
Room 027 (729 NSF), Room 029 
(750 NSF), Room 029A (25 NSF), 
Room 031 (750 NSF), Room 032 
(681 NSF), Room 032A (49 NSF), 
Room 033 (729 NSF), Room 033A 
(25 NSF), Room 034 (729 NSF), 
Room 035 (729 NSF), Room 038 
(729 NSF), Room 042 (734 NSF), 
Room 043 (732 NSF), Room 044 
(729 NSF), Room 045 (735 NSF), 
Room 047 (756 NSF)

-10,390 -277 $124,680 $12 $0

Renovation 2026 21 1 Renovating: Apply Painting, Floor 
Cover, Electrical, Plumbing, 
Windows, Lighting, Restrooms, 
HVAC Systems, Bell/Fire Alarm 
Systems, Retrofit for Technology to 
Room 101 (206 NSF), Room 102 
(281 NSF), Room 103 (32 NSF), 
Room 104 (30 NSF), Room 105 (112 
NSF), Room 105A (36 NSF), Room 
106 (120 NSF), Room 107 (180 
NSF), Room 108 (382 NSF), Room 
109 (262 NSF), Room 110 (108 
NSF), Room 111 (70 NSF), Room 
112 (193 NSF), Room 113 (60 NSF), 
Room 114 (114 NSF), Room 114A 
(77 NSF), Room 115 (69 NSF), 
Room 116 (185 NSF), Room 119 
(211 NSF), Room 120 (213 NSF), 
Room 121 (178 NSF), Room 122 
(144 NSF), Room 123 (65 NSF), 
Room 124 (400 NSF), Room 125 
(174 NSF), Room 125A (100 NSF), 
Room 126 (2654 NSF)

6,656 0 $612,352 $92 $0

PAGE:162 of 253 Report Date: 6/8/2021 10:16:11 AM

EDUCATIONAL PLANT FIVE YEAR SURVEY REPORT

Status:

Active Pending

Survey:

Survey: 7 - Version: 1

District:

10-CLAY COUNTY SCHOOL DISTRICT

Page 705 of 962

DRAFT



MONTCLAIR 
ELEMENTARY

Parcel Building Description Total NSF Change In 
Station Count

Calculated 
Cost

Cost Per 
NSF

Cost Per 
Station

Renovation 2026 21 2 Renovating: Apply Painting, Floor 
Cover, Electrical, Plumbing, 
Windows, Lighting, Restrooms, 
HVAC Systems, Bell/Fire Alarm 
Systems, Retrofit for Technology to 
Room 129 (41 NSF), Room 131 
(120 NSF), Room 132 (51 NSF), 
Room 133 (686 NSF), Room 134 
(115 NSF), Room 135 (47 NSF), 
Room 137 (41 NSF), Room 138 
(3125 NSF), Room 139 (221 NSF), 
Room 140 (24 NSF), Room 142 (88 
NSF), Room 144 (558 NSF), Room 
145 (40 NSF), Room 146 (46 NSF), 
Room 147 (49 NSF), Room 150 (74 
NSF), Room 151 (75 NSF), Room 
152 (67 NSF), Room 153 (134 NSF), 
Room 154 (469 NSF)

6,071 0 $558,532 $92 $0

Renovation 2026 21 4 Renovating: Apply Painting, Floor 
Cover, Electrical, Plumbing, 
Windows, Lighting, Restrooms, 
HVAC Systems, Bell/Fire Alarm 
Systems, Retrofit for Technology to 
Room 401 (1008 NSF), Room 402 
(152 NSF), Room 403 (52 NSF), 
Room 404 (44 NSF), Room 405 (44 
NSF), Room 406 (52 NSF), Room 
407 (1008 NSF), Room 408 (1008 
NSF), Room 409 (152 NSF), Room 
410 (52 NSF), Room 411 (44 NSF), 
Room 412 (44 NSF), Room 413 (52 
NSF), Room 414 (1008 NSF), Room 
415 (1620 NSF), Room 416 (1008 
NSF), Room 417 (152 NSF), Room 
418 (52 NSF), Room 419 (44 NSF), 
Room 420 (44 NSF), Room 421 (52 
NSF), Room 422 (1008 NSF), Room 
423 (1008 NSF), Room 424 (152 
NSF), Room 425 (52 NSF), Room 
426 (44 NSF), Room 427 (44 NSF), 
Room 428 (52 NSF), Room 429 
(1008 NSF), Room 430 (124 NSF), 
Room 431 (358 NSF), Room 432 
(181 NSF), Room 433 (68 NSF), 
Room 435 (24 NSF), Room 435A 
(42 NSF), Room 436 (214 NSF), 
Room 436A (42 NSF), Room 438 
(44 NSF)

12,157 0 $1,118,444 $92 $0

PAGE:163 of 253 Report Date: 6/8/2021 10:16:11 AM

EDUCATIONAL PLANT FIVE YEAR SURVEY REPORT

Status:

Active Pending

Survey:

Survey: 7 - Version: 1

District:

10-CLAY COUNTY SCHOOL DISTRICT

Page 706 of 962

DRAFT



District Name: CLAY COUNTY SCHOOL DISTRICT

Survey: Number 7 - Version 1

Facility Name: OAKLEAF HIGH SCHOOL

Address: 4035 PLANTATION OAKS BOULEVARD, ORANGE PARK

Existing Recommended

Capital Outlay 
Classification

1 - SCHOOL RECOMMENDED FOR 
CONTINUED USE

1 - SCHOOL RECOMMENDED FOR 
CONTINUED USE

Facility Use SENIOR HIGH SENIOR HIGH

Low Grade GRADE 9 GRADE 9

High Grade GRADE 12 GRADE 12

Comments

Existing
Student Stations 

Added/Reduced(+ or -) Recommended

Perm. Stations 1,679 0 1679

Reloc. Stations 910 0 910

Mod. Stations 0 0 0

Total Stations 2,589 0 2589

Utilization Factor 95% 95%

School Capacity 2,459 2459

COFTE Student 
Membership 2,459 2,414

Survey Annotation

Correct Site Drainage Problems.                                 
Construct Additional Covered Walkways Where Needed.   
(Other)
District-Wide Recommendations for this facility are: Improve Security Fencing and Lighting.

New Site Cost Site 
Expansion

Site 
Development

Site 
Improvement

Remodeling 
Cost

Renovation 
Cost

New 
Construction 

Cost

$0 $0 $0 $45,000 $0 $0 $0

Estimated Total Project Cost $45,000

OAKLEAF HIGH 
SCHOOL

Parcel Building Description Total NSF Change In 
Station Count

Calculated 
Cost

Cost Per 
NSF

Cost Per 
Station

 

PAGE:164 of 253 Report Date: 6/8/2021 10:16:11 AM

EDUCATIONAL PLANT FIVE YEAR SURVEY REPORT

Status:

Active Pending

Survey:

Survey: 7 - Version: 1

District:

10-CLAY COUNTY SCHOOL DISTRICT

Page 707 of 962

DRAFT



District Name: CLAY COUNTY SCHOOL DISTRICT

Survey: Number 7 - Version 1

Facility Name: OAKLEAF SCHOOL

Address: 4085 PLANTATION OAKS BOULEVARD, ORANGE PARK

Existing Recommended

Capital Outlay 
Classification

1 - SCHOOL RECOMMENDED FOR 
CONTINUED USE

1 - SCHOOL RECOMMENDED FOR 
CONTINUED USE

Facility Use MIDDLE JUNIOR HIGH

Low Grade GRADE 6 GRADE 7

High Grade GRADE 8 GRADE 8

Comments

Existing
Student Stations 

Added/Reduced(+ or -) Recommended

Perm. Stations 934 0 934

Reloc. Stations 704 0 704

Mod. Stations 0 0 0

Total Stations 1,638 0 1638

Utilization Factor 90% 90%

School Capacity 1,474 1474

COFTE Student 
Membership 1,171 1,100

Survey Annotation

The District will rename this facility "Oakleaf Junior High School.                                               
                                    Correct Site Drainage Problems.                                 
Construct Additional Covered Walkways Where Needed.   
(Other)
District-Wide Recommendations for this facility are: Improve Security Fencing and Lighting.

New Site Cost Site 
Expansion

Site 
Development

Site 
Improvement

Remodeling 
Cost

Renovation 
Cost

New 
Construction 

Cost

$0 $0 $0 $45,000 $0 $0 $0

Estimated Total Project Cost $45,000

OAKLEAF SCHOOL Parcel Building Description Total NSF Change In 
Station Count

Calculated 
Cost

Cost Per 
NSF

Cost Per 
Station

 

PAGE:165 of 253 Report Date: 6/8/2021 10:16:11 AM

EDUCATIONAL PLANT FIVE YEAR SURVEY REPORT

Status:

Active Pending

Survey:

Survey: 7 - Version: 1

District:

10-CLAY COUNTY SCHOOL DISTRICT

Page 708 of 962

DRAFT



District Name: CLAY COUNTY SCHOOL DISTRICT

Survey: Number 7 - Version 1

Facility Name: OAKLEAF VILLAGE ELEMENTARY

Address: 410 OAKLEAF VILLAGE PARKWAY, ORANGE PARK

Existing Recommended

Capital Outlay 
Classification

1 - SCHOOL RECOMMENDED FOR 
CONTINUED USE

1 - SCHOOL RECOMMENDED FOR 
CONTINUED USE

Facility Use ELEMENTARY ELEMENTARY

Low Grade PRE-K E S E PRE-K E S E

High Grade GRADE 6 GRADE 6

Comments

Existing
Student Stations 

Added/Reduced(+ or -) Recommended

Perm. Stations 881 0 881

Reloc. Stations 216 -36 180

Mod. Stations 0 0 0

Total Stations 1,097 -36 1061

Utilization Factor 100% 100%

School Capacity 1,097 1061

COFTE Student 
Membership 1,032 1,047

Survey Annotation

Construct Elementary Covered Play Area.                                 Correct Site Drainage 
Problems.                                 
Construct Additional Covered Walkways Where Needed.   
Remove 2 portables in excess of 20 years of age.
(Other)
District-Wide Recommendations for this facility are: Improve Security Fencing and Lighting.

New Site Cost Site 
Expansion

Site 
Development

Site 
Improvement

Remodeling 
Cost

Renovation 
Cost

New 
Construction 

Cost

$0 $0 $0 $45,000 $18,420 $0 $138,000

Estimated Total Project Cost $201,420

OAKLEAF VILLAGE 
ELEMENTARY

Parcel Building Description Total NSF Change In 
Station Count

Calculated 
Cost

Cost Per 
NSF

Cost Per 
Station

New Construction 2026 New Construction: Adding 1 unit of 
ELEMENTARY COVERED PLAY 
AREA (500 NSF)

500 0 $138,000 $276 $0

PAGE:166 of 253 Report Date: 6/8/2021 10:16:11 AM

EDUCATIONAL PLANT FIVE YEAR SURVEY REPORT

Status:

Active Pending

Survey:

Survey: 7 - Version: 1

District:

10-CLAY COUNTY SCHOOL DISTRICT

Page 709 of 962

DRAFT



OAKLEAF VILLAGE 
ELEMENTARY

Parcel Building Description Total NSF Change In 
Station Count

Calculated 
Cost

Cost Per 
NSF

Cost Per 
Station

Remodeling 2026 55 92 Removed NSF (1535), Added NSF 
(0), Difference NSF (1535), Percent 
(100%), Removed Stations (36), 
Added Stations (0) Remodeling: 
Adding  and Removing Room 906 
(729 NSF), Room 906A (26 NSF), 
Room 907 (750 NSF), Room 907A 
(30 NSF)

-1,535 -36 $18,420 $12 $0

PAGE:167 of 253 Report Date: 6/8/2021 10:16:11 AM

EDUCATIONAL PLANT FIVE YEAR SURVEY REPORT

Status:

Active Pending

Survey:

Survey: 7 - Version: 1

District:

10-CLAY COUNTY SCHOOL DISTRICT

Page 710 of 962

DRAFT



District Name: CLAY COUNTY SCHOOL DISTRICT

Survey: Number 7 - Version 1

Facility Name: ORANGE PARK ELEMENTARY

Address: 1401 PLAINFIELD AVENUE, ORANGE PARK

Existing Recommended

Capital Outlay 
Classification

1 - SCHOOL RECOMMENDED FOR 
CONTINUED USE

1 - SCHOOL RECOMMENDED FOR 
CONTINUED USE

Facility Use ELEMENTARY ELEMENTARY

Low Grade PRE-K E S E PRE-K E S E

High Grade GRADE 6 GRADE 6

Comments

Existing
Student Stations 

Added/Reduced(+ or -) Recommended

Perm. Stations 250 153 403

Reloc. Stations 254 -164 90

Mod. Stations 0 0 0

Total Stations 504 -11 493

Utilization Factor 100% 100%

School Capacity 504 493

COFTE Student 
Membership 474 459

Survey Annotation

Correct Site Drainage Problems. Construct Additional Parking. Construct Additional Covered 
Walkways Where Needed.                                                                                       Remove 8 
portables in excess of 20 years of age.
Construct Elementary Covered Play Area, (4) Primary Classrooms, (3) Intermediate 
Classrooms, (2) Resource Rooms, Elem Music,  and (1) ESE PT.
Renovate Buildings 1-5 and 7.
(Other)
District-Wide Recommendations for this facility are: Improve Security Fencing and Lighting.

New Site Cost Site 
Expansion

Site 
Development

Site 
Improvement

Remodeling 
Cost

Renovation 
Cost

New 
Construction 

Cost

$0 $0 $0 $195,000 $73,404 $2,745,924 $3,889,107

Estimated Total Project Cost $6,903,435

PAGE:168 of 253 Report Date: 6/8/2021 10:16:11 AM

EDUCATIONAL PLANT FIVE YEAR SURVEY REPORT

Status:

Active Pending

Survey:

Survey: 7 - Version: 1

District:

10-CLAY COUNTY SCHOOL DISTRICT

Page 711 of 962

DRAFT



ORANGE PARK 
ELEMENTARY

Parcel Building Description Total NSF Change In 
Station Count

Calculated 
Cost

Cost Per 
NSF

Cost Per 
Station

New Construction 2026 New Construction: Adding 2 units of 
RESOURCE ROOM (290 NSF), 1 
unit of ELEMENTARY COVERED 
PLAY AREA (500 NSF), 1 unit of 
MUSIC - ELEMENTARY (1560 
NSF), 1 unit of E S E PART-TIME 
(975 NSF), 3 units of PRIMARY 
CLASSROOM (K-3) (882 NSF), 2 
units of INTERMEDIATE/MIDDLE 
CLASSROOM (4-8) (858 NSF), 1 
unit of PRIMARY CLASSROOM (K-
3) (882 NSF), 1 unit of 
INTERMEDIATE/MIDDLE 
CLASSROOM (4-8) (858 NSF)

12,057 153 $3,889,107 $323 $25,419

Remodeling 2026 6 92 Removed NSF (6117), Added NSF 
(0), Difference NSF (6117), Percent 
(100%), Removed Stations (164), 
Added Stations (0) Remodeling: 
Adding  and Removing Room 037 
(782 NSF), Room 038 (780 NSF), 
Room 038A (25 NSF), Room 043 
(734 NSF), Room 044 (750 NSF), 
Room 044A (25 NSF), Room 045 
(713 NSF), Room 050 (752 NSF), 
Room 050A (25 NSF), Room 051 
(752 NSF), Room 051A (25 NSF), 
Room 052 (729 NSF), Room 052A 
(25 NSF)

-6,117 -164 $73,404 $12 $0

Renovation 2026 6 1 Renovating: Apply Painting, Floor 
Cover, Electrical, Plumbing, 
Windows, Lighting, Restrooms, 
HVAC Systems, Bell/Fire Alarm 
Systems, Retrofit for Technology to 
Room 001 (212 NSF), Room 001A 
(175 NSF), Room 001B (137 NSF), 
Room 001C (109 NSF), Room 001D 
(29 NSF), Room 001E (73 NSF), 
Room 002 (210 NSF), Room 002A 
(40 NSF), Room 002B (40 NSF), 
Room 002C (309 NSF), Room 002D 
(67 NSF), Room 002E (39 NSF), 
Room 003 (185 NSF), Room 003A 
(64 NSF), Room 003B (213 NSF), 
Room 003C (7 NSF), Room 003D 
(178 NSF), Room 004 (697 NSF), 
Room 004A (87 NSF), Room 004B 
(31 NSF), Room 005 (2049 NSF), 
Room 005A (261 NSF), Room 005B 
(11 NSF), Room 006 (117 NSF), 
Room 006A (30 NSF), Room 006B 
(6 NSF), Room 007 (188 NSF), 
Room 007A (22 NSF), Room 008 
(22 NSF), Room 009 (188 NSF), 
Room 010 (53 NSF), Room 011 (137 
NSF), Room 012 (152 NSF), Room 
013 (168 NSF), Room 014 (16 NSF), 
Room 015 (28 NSF), Room 800 
(1393 NSF)

7,743 0 $712,356 $92 $0

PAGE:169 of 253 Report Date: 6/8/2021 10:16:11 AM

EDUCATIONAL PLANT FIVE YEAR SURVEY REPORT

Status:

Active Pending

Survey:

Survey: 7 - Version: 1

District:

10-CLAY COUNTY SCHOOL DISTRICT

Page 712 of 962

DRAFT



ORANGE PARK 
ELEMENTARY

Parcel Building Description Total NSF Change In 
Station Count

Calculated 
Cost

Cost Per 
NSF

Cost Per 
Station

Renovation 2026 6 2 Renovating: Apply Painting, Floor 
Cover, Electrical, Plumbing, 
Windows, Lighting, Restrooms, 
HVAC Systems, Bell/Fire Alarm 
Systems, Retrofit for Technology to 
Room 005 (801 NSF), Room 005A 
(24 NSF), Room 006 (797 NSF), 
Room 006A (24 NSF), Room 007 
(812 NSF), Room 007A (27 NSF)

2,485 0 $228,620 $92 $0

Renovation 2026 6 3 Renovating: Apply Painting, Floor 
Cover, Electrical, Plumbing, 
Windows, Lighting, Restrooms, 
HVAC Systems, Bell/Fire Alarm 
Systems, Retrofit for Technology to 
Room 008 (780 NSF), Room 008A 
(12 NSF), Room 008B (12 NSF), 
Room 009A (336 NSF), Room 009B 
(336 NSF), Room 059 (124 NSF), 
Room 060 (113 NSF), Room 061 
(311 NSF), Room 061A (22 NSF), 
Room 061B (21 NSF), Room 061C 
(65 NSF)

2,132 0 $196,144 $92 $0

Renovation 2026 6 4 Renovating: Apply Painting, Floor 
Cover, Electrical, Plumbing, 
Windows, Lighting, Restrooms, 
HVAC Systems, Bell/Fire Alarm 
Systems, Retrofit for Technology to 
Room 062 (929 NSF), Room 063 
(88 NSF), Room 063A (4 NSF), 
Room 064 (123 NSF), Room 065 
(34 NSF), Room 066 (94 NSF), 
Room 067 (112 NSF), Room 068 
(108 NSF), Room 073 (413 NSF), 
Room 080 (780 NSF), Room 080A 
(104 NSF), Room 081 (152 NSF), 
Room 082 (363 NSF), Room 083 
(2261 NSF), Room 084 (145 NSF), 
Room 085 (163 NSF), Room 086 
(184 NSF), Room 087 (859 NSF), 
Room 088 (163 NSF), Room 089 
(190 NSF), Room 090 (113 NSF), 
Room 091 (47 NSF), Room 092 
(230 NSF)

7,659 0 $704,628 $92 $0

PAGE:170 of 253 Report Date: 6/8/2021 10:16:11 AM

EDUCATIONAL PLANT FIVE YEAR SURVEY REPORT

Status:

Active Pending

Survey:

Survey: 7 - Version: 1

District:

10-CLAY COUNTY SCHOOL DISTRICT

Page 713 of 962

DRAFT



ORANGE PARK 
ELEMENTARY

Parcel Building Description Total NSF Change In 
Station Count

Calculated 
Cost

Cost Per 
NSF

Cost Per 
Station

Renovation 2026 6 5 Renovating: Apply Painting, Floor 
Cover, Electrical, Plumbing, 
Windows, Lighting, Restrooms, 
HVAC Systems, Bell/Fire Alarm 
Systems, Retrofit for Technology to 
Room 016 (807 NSF), Room 016A 
(93 NSF), Room 016B (15 NSF), 
Room 016C (15 NSF), Room 016D 
(21 NSF), Room 016E (20 NSF), 
Room 017 (807 NSF), Room 017A 
(93 NSF), Room 017B (15 NSF), 
Room 017C (15 NSF), Room 017D 
(21 NSF), Room 017E (20 NSF), 
Room 018 (807 NSF), Room 018A 
(93 NSF), Room 018B (15 NSF), 
Room 018C (15 NSF), Room 018D 
(21 NSF), Room 018E (20 NSF), 
Room 019 (807 NSF), Room 019A 
(93 NSF), Room 019B (15 NSF), 
Room 019C (15 NSF), Room 019D 
(21 NSF), Room 019E (20 NSF), 
Room 069 (200 NSF), Room 069A 
(10 NSF), Room 069B (9 NSF), 
Room 070 (154 NSF), Room 070A 
(411 NSF), Room 070B (77 NSF), 
Room 071 (200 NSF), Room 071A 
(10 NSF), Room 071B (9 NSF), 
Room 072 (35 NSF)

4,999 0 $459,908 $92 $0

Renovation 2026 7 7 Renovating: Apply Painting, Floor 
Cover, Electrical, Plumbing, 
Windows, Lighting, Restrooms, 
HVAC Systems, Bell/Fire Alarm 
Systems, Retrofit for Technology to 
Room 010 (702 NSF), Room 010A 
(49 NSF), Room 011 (702 NSF), 
Room 011A (49 NSF), Room 012 
(695 NSF), Room 012A (49 NSF), 
Room 013 (695 NSF), Room 013A 
(49 NSF), Room 014 (695 NSF), 
Room 014A (49 NSF), Room 015 
(695 NSF), Room 015A (49 NSF), 
Room 073 (112 NSF), Room 074 
(116 NSF), Room 075 (123 NSF)

4,829 0 $444,268 $92 $0

PAGE:171 of 253 Report Date: 6/8/2021 10:16:11 AM

EDUCATIONAL PLANT FIVE YEAR SURVEY REPORT

Status:

Active Pending

Survey:

Survey: 7 - Version: 1

District:

10-CLAY COUNTY SCHOOL DISTRICT

Page 714 of 962

DRAFT



District Name: CLAY COUNTY SCHOOL DISTRICT

Survey: Number 7 - Version 1

Facility Name: ORANGE PARK JUNIOR HIGH

Address: 1500 GANO AVENUE, ORANGE PARK

Existing Recommended

Capital Outlay 
Classification

1 - SCHOOL RECOMMENDED FOR 
CONTINUED USE

1 - SCHOOL RECOMMENDED FOR 
CONTINUED USE

Facility Use MIDDLE JUNIOR HIGH

Low Grade GRADE 7 GRADE 7

High Grade GRADE 8 GRADE 8

Comments

Existing
Student Stations 

Added/Reduced(+ or -) Recommended

Perm. Stations 882 0 882

Reloc. Stations 288 -101 187

Mod. Stations 0 0 0

Total Stations 1,170 -101 1069

Utilization Factor 90% 90%

School Capacity 1,053 962

COFTE Student 
Membership 755 769

Survey Annotation

Renovate Buildings 1-6.                                                                                           
Correct Site Drainage Problems.                                 
Construct Additional Covered Walkways Where Needed.   
Remove 5 portables in excess of 20 years of age.
(Other)
District-Wide Recommendations for this facility are: Improve Security Fencing and Lighting.

New Site Cost Site 
Expansion

Site 
Development

Site 
Improvement

Remodeling 
Cost

Renovation 
Cost

New 
Construction 

Cost

$0 $0 $0 $245,000 $47,328 $9,756,688 $0

Estimated Total Project Cost $10,049,016

PAGE:172 of 253 Report Date: 6/8/2021 10:16:11 AM

EDUCATIONAL PLANT FIVE YEAR SURVEY REPORT

Status:

Active Pending

Survey:

Survey: 7 - Version: 1

District:

10-CLAY COUNTY SCHOOL DISTRICT

Page 715 of 962

DRAFT



ORANGE PARK JUNIOR 
HIGH

Parcel Building Description Total NSF Change In 
Station Count

Calculated 
Cost

Cost Per 
NSF

Cost Per 
Station

Remodeling 2026 19 92 Removed NSF (3944), Added NSF 
(0), Difference NSF (3944), Percent 
(100%), Removed Stations (101), 
Added Stations (0) Remodeling: 
Adding  and Removing Room 501 
(903 NSF), Room 505 (644 NSF), 
Room 505A (51 NSF), Room 505B 
(25 NSF), Room 510 (858 NSF), 
Room 511 (727 NSF), Room 703 
(736 NSF)

-3,944 -101 $47,328 $12 $0

PAGE:173 of 253 Report Date: 6/8/2021 10:16:11 AM

EDUCATIONAL PLANT FIVE YEAR SURVEY REPORT

Status:

Active Pending

Survey:

Survey: 7 - Version: 1

District:

10-CLAY COUNTY SCHOOL DISTRICT

Page 716 of 962

DRAFT



ORANGE PARK JUNIOR 
HIGH

Parcel Building Description Total NSF Change In 
Station Count

Calculated 
Cost

Cost Per 
NSF

Cost Per 
Station

Renovation 2026 19 1 Renovating: Apply Painting, Floor 
Cover, Electrical, Plumbing, 
Windows, Lighting, Restrooms, 
HVAC Systems, Bell/Fire Alarm 
Systems, Retrofit for Technology to 
Room 101 (404 NSF), Room 102 
(84 NSF), Room 103 (84 NSF), 
Room 104 (209 NSF), Room 105 
(57 NSF), Room 106 (68 NSF), 
Room 107 (150 NSF), Room 108 
(39 NSF), Room 109 (41 NSF), 
Room 110 (65 NSF), Room 111 (48 
NSF), Room 112 (107 NSF), Room 
113 (27 NSF), Room 114 (27 NSF), 
Room 115 (335 NSF), Room 116 
(177 NSF), Room 117 (216 NSF), 
Room 118 (27 NSF), Room 119 (236 
NSF), Room 120 (173 NSF), Room 
121 (612 NSF), Room 122 (5047 
NSF), Room 123 (1296 NSF), Room 
124 (378 NSF), Room 125 (246 
NSF), Room 126 (97 NSF), Room 
127 (231 NSF), Room 128 (133 
NSF), Room 129 (73 NSF), Room 
130 (172 NSF), Room 131 (100 
NSF), Room 132 (63 NSF), Room 
133 (124 NSF), Room 133A (36 
NSF), Room 134 (103 NSF), Room 
135 (98 NSF), Room 136A (230 
NSF), Room 136B (230 NSF), Room 
136C (230 NSF), Room 136D (230 
NSF), Room 151 (295 NSF), Room 
151A (145 NSF), Room 152 (48 
NSF), Room 153 (186 NSF), Room 
154 (524 NSF), Room 155 (284 
NSF), Room 156 (35 NSF), Room 
157 (133 NSF), Room 158 (37 NSF), 
Room 159 (174 NSF), Room 160 
(70 NSF), Room 162 (89 NSF), 
Room 163 (133 NSF), Room 164 
(133 NSF), Room 165 (188 NSF), 
Room 166 (121 NSF), Room 167 
(133 NSF), Room 168 (110 NSF), 
Room 169 (111 NSF), Room 170 
(308 NSF), Room 171 (111 NSF), 
Room 172 (24 NSF), Room 173 
(246 NSF), Room 174 (25 NSF), 
Room 175 (248 NSF), Room 176 
(35 NSF), Room 177 (133 NSF), 
Room 178 (35 NSF), Room 179 
(5180 NSF), Room 180 (113 NSF), 
Room 181 (20 NSF), Room 182 (116 
NSF), Room 183 (1098 NSF), Room 
184 (246 NSF), Room 186 (280 
NSF), Room 187 (103 NSF), Room 
188 (137 NSF), Room 189 (24 NSF), 
Room 190 (31 NSF), Room 191 
(1142 NSF), Room 192 (123 NSF)

25,030 0 $2,678,210 $107 $0

PAGE:174 of 253 Report Date: 6/8/2021 10:16:11 AM

EDUCATIONAL PLANT FIVE YEAR SURVEY REPORT

Status:

Active Pending

Survey:

Survey: 7 - Version: 1

District:

10-CLAY COUNTY SCHOOL DISTRICT

Page 717 of 962

DRAFT



ORANGE PARK JUNIOR 
HIGH

Parcel Building Description Total NSF Change In 
Station Count

Calculated 
Cost

Cost Per 
NSF

Cost Per 
Station

Renovation 2026 19 2 Renovating: Apply Painting, Floor 
Cover, Electrical, Plumbing, 
Windows, Lighting, Restrooms, 
HVAC Systems, Bell/Fire Alarm 
Systems, Retrofit for Technology to 
Room 201 (25 NSF), Room 202 
(1512 NSF), Room 204 (754 NSF), 
Room 205 (81 NSF), Room 206 
(765 NSF), Room 206A (765 NSF), 
Room 206B (765 NSF), Room 209 
(24 NSF), Room 210 (52 NSF), 
Room 211 (132 NSF), Room 212 (27 
NSF), Room 213 (235 NSF), Room 
214 (160 NSF), Room 215 (8 NSF), 
Room 216 (1252 NSF), Room 217A 
(115 NSF), Room 217B (115 NSF), 
Room 252 (768 NSF), Room 253 
(866 NSF), Room 254 (768 NSF), 
Room 255 (81 NSF), Room 256 
(768 NSF), Room 257 (866 NSF), 
Room 258 (768 NSF), Room 259 
(24 NSF), Room 260 (52 NSF), 
Room 261 (132 NSF), Room 262 
(14 NSF), Room 263 (235 NSF), 
Room 264 (160 NSF), Room 265 
(1252 NSF)

13,541 0 $1,448,887 $107 $0

Renovation 2026 19 3 Renovating: Apply Painting, Floor 
Cover, Electrical, Plumbing, 
Windows, Lighting, Restrooms, 
HVAC Systems, Bell/Fire Alarm 
Systems, Retrofit for Technology to 
Room 301 (25 NSF), Room 302 
(768 NSF), Room 303 (768 NSF), 
Room 304 (768 NSF), Room 305 
(81 NSF), Room 306 (768 NSF), 
Room 307 (768 NSF), Room 308 
(768 NSF), Room 309 (24 NSF), 
Room 310 (52 NSF), Room 311 (132 
NSF), Room 312 (27 NSF), Room 
313 (235 NSF), Room 314 (160 
NSF), Room 315 (8 NSF), Room 
316 (1252 NSF), Room 317A (115 
NSF), Room 317B (115 NSF), Room 
352 (768 NSF), Room 353 (866 
NSF), Room 354 (768 NSF), Room 
355 (81 NSF), Room 356 (768 NSF), 
Room 357 (866 NSF), Room 358 
(768 NSF), Room 359 (24 NSF), 
Room 360 (52 NSF), Room 361 
(132 NSF), Room 362 (14 NSF), 
Room 363 (235 NSF), Room 364 
(160 NSF), Room 365 (1252 NSF)

13,588 0 $1,453,916 $107 $0

PAGE:175 of 253 Report Date: 6/8/2021 10:16:11 AM

EDUCATIONAL PLANT FIVE YEAR SURVEY REPORT

Status:

Active Pending

Survey:

Survey: 7 - Version: 1

District:

10-CLAY COUNTY SCHOOL DISTRICT

Page 718 of 962

DRAFT



ORANGE PARK JUNIOR 
HIGH

Parcel Building Description Total NSF Change In 
Station Count

Calculated 
Cost

Cost Per 
NSF

Cost Per 
Station

Renovation 2026 19 4 Renovating: Apply Painting, Floor 
Cover, Electrical, Plumbing, 
Windows, Lighting, Restrooms, 
HVAC Systems, Bell/Fire Alarm 
Systems, Retrofit for Technology to 
Room 401 (25 NSF), Room 402 
(768 NSF), Room 403 (1174 NSF), 
Room 403A (138 NSF), Room 403B 
(118 NSF), Room 403C (106 NSF), 
Room 405 (81 NSF), Room 406 
(768 NSF), Room 407 (768 NSF), 
Room 408 (768 NSF), Room 409 
(24 NSF), Room 410 (52 NSF), 
Room 411 (132 NSF), Room 412 (27 
NSF), Room 413 (235 NSF), Room 
414 (160 NSF), Room 415 (8 NSF), 
Room 416 (1252 NSF), Room 417A 
(115 NSF), Room 417B (115 NSF), 
Room 452 (768 NSF), Room 453 
(866 NSF), Room 454 (768 NSF), 
Room 455 (81 NSF), Room 456 
(768 NSF), Room 457 (866 NSF), 
Room 458 (768 NSF), Room 459 
(24 NSF), Room 460 (52 NSF), 
Room 461 (132 NSF), Room 462 
(27 NSF), Room 463 (235 NSF), 
Room 464 (160 NSF), Room 465 
(1252 NSF)

13,601 0 $1,455,307 $107 $0

Renovation 2026 19 5 Renovating: Apply Painting, Floor 
Cover, Electrical, Plumbing, 
Windows, Lighting, Restrooms, 
HVAC Systems, Bell/Fire Alarm 
Systems, Retrofit for Technology to 
Room 501 (10033 NSF), Room 502 
(160 NSF), Room 503 (166 NSF), 
Room 504 (25 NSF), Room 505 
(368 NSF), Room 506A (1378 NSF), 
Room 506B (245 NSF), Room 506C 
(352 NSF), Room 506D (135 NSF), 
Room 510 (199 NSF), Room 511 (41 
NSF), Room 512 (295 NSF), Room 
513 (5 NSF), Room 514 (149 NSF), 
Room 515 (208 NSF), Room 516 
(41 NSF), Room 517A (1118 NSF), 
Room 517B (292 NSF), Room 517C 
(274 NSF), Room 517D (117 NSF), 
Room 521 (304 NSF), Room 522 
(165 NSF), Room 523 (36 NSF), 
Room 524 (191 NSF), Room 550 
(68 NSF), Room 550A (75 NSF), 
Room 551 (76 NSF), Room 552 
(1195 NSF)

17,711 0 $1,895,077 $107 $0

PAGE:176 of 253 Report Date: 6/8/2021 10:16:11 AM

EDUCATIONAL PLANT FIVE YEAR SURVEY REPORT

Status:

Active Pending

Survey:

Survey: 7 - Version: 1

District:

10-CLAY COUNTY SCHOOL DISTRICT

Page 719 of 962

DRAFT



ORANGE PARK JUNIOR 
HIGH

Parcel Building Description Total NSF Change In 
Station Count

Calculated 
Cost

Cost Per 
NSF

Cost Per 
Station

Renovation 2026 19 6 Renovating: Apply Painting, Floor 
Cover, Electrical, Plumbing, 
Windows, Lighting, Restrooms, 
HVAC Systems, Bell/Fire Alarm 
Systems, Retrofit for Technology to 
Room 601 (502 NSF), Room 602 
(50 NSF), Room 603 (50 NSF), 
Room 604 (1208 NSF), Room 605 
(157 NSF), Room 606 (105 NSF), 
Room 607 (154 NSF), Room 608 
(110 NSF), Room 609 (419 NSF), 
Room 610 (304 NSF), Room 611 
(180 NSF), Room 613 (56 NSF), 
Room 614 (1985 NSF), Room 615 
(188 NSF), Room 616 (109 NSF), 
Room 617 (57 NSF), Room 618 
(305 NSF), Room 619 (119 NSF), 
Room 620 (20 NSF), Room 621 (70 
NSF), Room 622 (425 NSF), Room 
623 (190 NSF), Room 624 (167 
NSF), Room 625 (150 NSF), Room 
626 (97 NSF), Room 627 (118 NSF), 
Room 628 (189 NSF), Room 629 
(80 NSF), Room 630 (149 NSF)

7,713 0 $825,291 $107 $0

PAGE:177 of 253 Report Date: 6/8/2021 10:16:11 AM

EDUCATIONAL PLANT FIVE YEAR SURVEY REPORT

Status:

Active Pending

Survey:

Survey: 7 - Version: 1

District:

10-CLAY COUNTY SCHOOL DISTRICT

Page 720 of 962

DRAFT



District Name: CLAY COUNTY SCHOOL DISTRICT

Survey: Number 7 - Version 1

Facility Name: ORANGE PARK SENIOR HIGH

Address: 2300 KINGSLEY AVENUE, ORANGE PARK

Existing Recommended

Capital Outlay 
Classification

1 - SCHOOL RECOMMENDED FOR 
CONTINUED USE

1 - SCHOOL RECOMMENDED FOR 
CONTINUED USE

Facility Use SENIOR HIGH SENIOR HIGH

Low Grade GRADE 9 GRADE 9

High Grade GRADE 12 GRADE 12

Comments

Existing
Student Stations 

Added/Reduced(+ or -) Recommended

Perm. Stations 1,925 0 1925

Reloc. Stations 542 -100 442

Mod. Stations 0 0 0

Total Stations 2,467 -100 2367

Utilization Factor 95% 95%

School Capacity 2,343 2248

COFTE Student 
Membership 1,396 2,065

Survey Annotation

Renovate Buildings 1-4, 10, 12, 22, 24, 27, 41, 47, 49 & 51. Correct Site Drainage Problems.  
                               
Construct Additional Covered Walkways Where Needed.   
Remove 4 portables in excess of 20 years of age.
(Other)
District-Wide Recommendations for this facility are: Improve Security Fencing and Lighting.  
Security upgrade for the front office.

New Site Cost Site 
Expansion

Site 
Development

Site 
Improvement

Remodeling 
Cost

Renovation 
Cost

New 
Construction 

Cost

$0 $0 $0 $290,000 $35,832 $26,359,690 $0

Estimated Total Project Cost $26,685,522

PAGE:178 of 253 Report Date: 6/8/2021 10:16:11 AM

EDUCATIONAL PLANT FIVE YEAR SURVEY REPORT

Status:

Active Pending

Survey:

Survey: 7 - Version: 1

District:

10-CLAY COUNTY SCHOOL DISTRICT

Page 721 of 962

DRAFT



ORANGE PARK SENIOR 
HIGH

Parcel Building Description Total NSF Change In 
Station Count

Calculated 
Cost

Cost Per 
NSF

Cost Per 
Station

Remodeling 2026 10 92 Removed NSF (2986), Added NSF 
(0), Difference NSF (2986), Percent 
(100%), Removed Stations (100), 
Added Stations (0) Remodeling: 
Adding  and Removing Room 054 
(779 NSF), Room 056 (728 NSF), 
Room 059 (750 NSF), Room 060 
(729 NSF)

-2,986 -100 $35,832 $12 $0

Renovation 2026 10 1 Renovating: Apply Painting, Floor 
Cover, Electrical, Plumbing, 
Windows, Lighting, Restrooms, 
HVAC Systems, Bell/Fire Alarm 
Systems, Retrofit for Technology to 
Room 100 (8961 NSF), Room 101 
(784 NSF), Room 102 (750 NSF), 
Room 103A (650 NSF), Room 103B 
(96 NSF), Room 103C (54 NSF), 
Room 104 (7584 NSF), Room 105A 
(417 NSF), Room 105B (38 NSF), 
Room 106A (519 NSF), Room 106B 
(47 NSF), Room 106C (225 NSF), 
Room 106D (226 NSF), Room 106E 
(185 NSF), Room 106F (139 NSF), 
Room 106G (16 NSF), Room 106H 
(72 NSF), Room 107 (784 NSF), 
Room 108 (765 NSF), Room 109 
(736 NSF), Room 110 (736 NSF), 
Room 111 (758 NSF), Room 112 
(756 NSF), Room 113 (736 NSF), 
Room 114 (736 NSF), Room 115 
(756 NSF), Room 116 (1072 NSF), 
Room 116A (365 NSF), Room 116B 
(111 NSF), Room 116C (251 NSF), 
Room 117 (977 NSF), Room 117A 
(40 NSF), Room 117B (190 NSF), 
Room 118 (762 NSF), Room 119 
(736 NSF), Room 120 (736 NSF), 
Room 121 (766 NSF), Room 122 
(719 NSF), Room 123 (894 NSF), 
Room 124 (545 NSF), Room 124A 
(177 NSF), Room 125 (320 NSF), 
Room 125A (525 NSF), Room 125B 
(325 NSF), Room 125C (122 NSF), 
Room 125D (255 NSF), Room 125E 
(48 NSF), Room 126 (175 NSF), 
Room 126A (250 NSF), Room 126B 
(70 NSF), Room 127 (625 NSF), 
Room 128 (838 NSF), Room 129 
(740 NSF), Room 130 (784 NSF), 
Room 131 (2568 NSF), Room 151 
(18 NSF), Room 151A (268 NSF), 
Room 152 (40 NSF), Room 153 
(196 NSF), Room 154 (36 NSF), 
Room 155 (36 NSF), Room 156 
(196 NSF), Room 157 (40 NSF), 
Room 159 (18 NSF), Room 159A 
(268 NSF), Room 160 (18 NSF), 
Room 160A (268 NSF), Room 160C 
(22 NSF), Room 162 (196 NSF), 
Room 163 (36 NSF), Room 164 (36 
NSF), Room 165 (196 NSF), Room 
166 (40 NSF), Room 167 (18 NSF), 
Room 167A (268 NSF), Room 168 
(25 NSF), Room 180A (388 NSF), 
Room 180B (383 NSF), Room 180C 
(169 NSF), Room 180D (145 NSF), 

92,043 0 $10,953,117 $119 $0

PAGE:179 of 253 Report Date: 6/8/2021 10:16:11 AM

EDUCATIONAL PLANT FIVE YEAR SURVEY REPORT

Status:

Active Pending

Survey:

Survey: 7 - Version: 1

District:

10-CLAY COUNTY SCHOOL DISTRICT

Page 722 of 962

DRAFT



Room 180E (306 NSF), Room 180F 
(145 NSF), Room 180G (24 NSF), 
Room 180H (330 NSF), Room 180Z 
(920 NSF), Room 181A (322 NSF), 
Room 181B (100 NSF), Room 181C 
(200 NSF), Room 181E (100 NSF), 
Room 181F (200 NSF), Room 181G 
(422 NSF), Room 181H (100 NSF), 
Room 181J (201 NSF), Room 181K 
(286 NSF), Room 181M (91 NSF), 
Room 181N (103 NSF), Room 183 
(100 NSF), Room 184 (80 NSF), 
Room 185 (20 NSF), Room 186 (20 
NSF), Room 187A (154 NSF), Room 
187B (117 NSF), Room 187C (120 
NSF), Room 187D (150 NSF), Room 
187E (159 NSF), Room 187F (129 
NSF), Room 187G (202 NSF), 
Room 187H (126 NSF), Room 188 
(530 NSF), Room 188A (149 NSF), 
Room 188B (117 NSF), Room 201 
(1105 NSF), Room 202 (100 NSF), 
Room 202A (152 NSF), Room 203 
(1054 NSF), Room 204 (715 NSF), 
Room 205 (755 NSF), Room 206 
(755 NSF), Room 207 (717 NSF), 
Room 208 (900 NSF), Room 209 
(755 NSF), Room 210 (791 NSF), 
Room 211 (776 NSF), Room 212 
(716 NSF), Room 213 (716 NSF), 
Room 214 (755 NSF), Room 215 
(716 NSF), Room 216 (1157 NSF), 
Room 217 (1215 NSF), Room 217A 
(104 NSF), Room 218 (1215 NSF), 
Room 219 (1215 NSF), Room 219A 
(628 NSF), Room 219B (172 NSF), 
Room 219C (104 NSF), Room 220 
(1215 NSF), Room 221 (677 NSF), 
Room 222 (741 NSF), Room 223A 
(1129 NSF), Room 223B (100 NSF), 
Room 223C (72 NSF), Room 224A 
(1431 NSF), Room 224B (147 NSF), 
Room 224C (74 NSF), Room 225 
(800 NSF), Room 226 (1401 NSF), 
Room 226A (100 NSF), Room 226B 
(70 NSF), Room 226C (72 NSF), 
Room 227 (717 NSF), Room 228 
(755 NSF), Room 229 (755 NSF), 
Room 230 (682 NSF), Room 231 
(765 NSF), Room 232 (100 NSF), 
Room 232A (219 NSF), Room 233 
(1293 NSF), Room 234 (294 NSF), 
Room 235 (138 NSF), Room 236 
(591 NSF), Room 237 (294 NSF), 
Room 250 (40 NSF), Room 251 
(196 NSF), Room 252 (196 NSF), 
Room 253 (40 NSF), Room 254 
(196 NSF), Room 255 (196 NSF), 
Room 256 (40 NSF), Room 800 
(6360 NSF)

PAGE:180 of 253 Report Date: 6/8/2021 10:16:11 AM

EDUCATIONAL PLANT FIVE YEAR SURVEY REPORT

Status:

Active Pending

Survey:

Survey: 7 - Version: 1

District:

10-CLAY COUNTY SCHOOL DISTRICT

Page 723 of 962

DRAFT



ORANGE PARK SENIOR 
HIGH

Parcel Building Description Total NSF Change In 
Station Count

Calculated 
Cost

Cost Per 
NSF

Cost Per 
Station

Renovation 2026 10 2 Renovating: Apply Painting, Floor 
Cover, Electrical, Plumbing, 
Windows, Lighting, Restrooms, 
HVAC Systems, Bell/Fire Alarm 
Systems, Retrofit for Technology to 
Room 001 (1413 NSF), Room 002 
(183 NSF), Room 003 (415 NSF), 
Room 004 (164 NSF), Room 005 
(143 NSF), Room 006 (189 NSF), 
Room 007 (121 NSF), Room 008 
(95 NSF), Room 009 (893 NSF), 
Room 010 (74 NSF)

3,690 0 $439,110 $119 $0

Renovation 2026 10 3 Renovating: Apply Painting, Floor 
Cover, Electrical, Plumbing, 
Windows, Lighting, Restrooms, 
HVAC Systems, Bell/Fire Alarm 
Systems, Retrofit for Technology to 
Room 001 (115 NSF), Room 002 
(133 NSF), Room 003 (115 NSF), 
Room 004 (12 NSF)

375 0 $44,625 $119 $0

Renovation 2026 10 4 Renovating: Apply Painting, Floor 
Cover, Electrical, Plumbing, 
Windows, Lighting, Restrooms, 
HVAC Systems, Bell/Fire Alarm 
Systems, Retrofit for Technology to 
Room 001 (13023 NSF), Room 002 
(93 NSF), Room 003 (88 NSF), 
Room 004 (88 NSF), Room 005 
(1458 NSF), Room 005A (20 NSF), 
Room 005B (85 NSF), Room 005D 
(451 NSF), Room 005E (164 NSF), 
Room 005F (437 NSF), Room 005G 
(238 NSF), Room 005H (291 NSF), 
Room 006 (221 NSF), Room 006A 
(94 NSF), Room 007 (170 NSF), 
Room 008 (200 NSF), Room 008A 
(237 NSF), Room 009 (228 NSF), 
Room 010 (330 NSF), Room 011 
(567 NSF), Room 013 (990 NSF), 
Room 014 (93 NSF), Room 015 (88 
NSF), Room 016 (88 NSF), Room 
017 (1068 NSF), Room 017A (90 
NSF), Room 017B (76 NSF), Room 
017C (238 NSF), Room 017D (1070 
NSF), Room 017E (365 NSF), Room 
017G (20 NSF), Room 017H (292 
NSF), Room 018 (221 NSF), Room 
019 (170 NSF), Room 019A (94 
NSF), Room 019B (404 NSF), Room 
021A (1440 NSF), Room 021B (44 
NSF), Room 021C (44 NSF), Room 
021D (1460 NSF), Room 022A 
(1710 NSF), Room 022B (44 NSF), 
Room 022C (44 NSF), Room 022D 
(1460 NSF)

30,096 0 $3,581,424 $119 $0

PAGE:181 of 253 Report Date: 6/8/2021 10:16:11 AM

EDUCATIONAL PLANT FIVE YEAR SURVEY REPORT

Status:

Active Pending

Survey:

Survey: 7 - Version: 1

District:

10-CLAY COUNTY SCHOOL DISTRICT

Page 724 of 962

DRAFT



ORANGE PARK SENIOR 
HIGH

Parcel Building Description Total NSF Change In 
Station Count

Calculated 
Cost

Cost Per 
NSF

Cost Per 
Station

Renovation 2026 10 10 Renovating: Apply Painting, Floor 
Cover, Electrical, Plumbing, 
Windows, Lighting, Restrooms, 
HVAC Systems, Bell/Fire Alarm 
Systems, Retrofit for Technology to 
Room 100 (11270 NSF), Room 102 
(952 NSF), Room 103 (322 NSF), 
Room 104 (253 NSF), Room 105 
(135 NSF), Room 105A (45 NSF), 
Room 106 (218 NSF), Room 106A 
(35 NSF), Room 107 (90 NSF), 
Room 108 (302 NSF), Room 109 
(205 NSF), Room 110 (75 NSF), 
Room 111 (204 NSF), Room 112 
(204 NSF), Room 113 (39 NSF), 
Room 114 (210 NSF), Room 115 
(183 NSF), Room 116 (978 NSF), 
Room 116A (20 NSF), Room 116B 
(20 NSF), Room 117 (56 NSF), 
Room 118 (59 NSF), Room 119 (32 
NSF), Room 120 (203 NSF), Room 
121 (60 NSF), Room 122 (33 NSF), 
Room 124 (1114 NSF), Room 125 
(381 NSF), Room 126 (241 NSF), 
Room 127 (1158 NSF), Room 128 
(1870 NSF), Room 128A (142 NSF), 
Room 128B (252 NSF), Room 128C 
(302 NSF), Room 129 (644 NSF), 
Room 130 (83 NSF), Room 130A 
(33 NSF), Room 130B (33 NSF), 
Room 131 (681 NSF), Room 131A 
(33 NSF), Room 132 (121 NSF)

23,291 0 $2,771,629 $119 $0

PAGE:182 of 253 Report Date: 6/8/2021 10:16:11 AM

EDUCATIONAL PLANT FIVE YEAR SURVEY REPORT

Status:

Active Pending

Survey:

Survey: 7 - Version: 1

District:

10-CLAY COUNTY SCHOOL DISTRICT

Page 725 of 962

DRAFT



ORANGE PARK SENIOR 
HIGH

Parcel Building Description Total NSF Change In 
Station Count

Calculated 
Cost

Cost Per 
NSF

Cost Per 
Station

Renovation 2026 10 12 Renovating: Apply Painting, Floor 
Cover, Electrical, Plumbing, 
Windows, Lighting, Restrooms, 
HVAC Systems, Bell/Fire Alarm 
Systems, Retrofit for Technology to 
Room 101 (2024 NSF), Room 102 
(1320 NSF), Room 103 (208 NSF), 
Room 104 (363 NSF), Room 105 
(1418 NSF), Room 106 (1335 NSF), 
Room 107 (200 NSF), Room 108 
(162 NSF), Room 109 (168 NSF), 
Room 110 (699 NSF), Room 111 
(149 NSF), Room 112 (49 NSF), 
Room 112A (49 NSF), Room 112B 
(118 NSF), Room 113 (1755 NSF), 
Room 114 (220 NSF), Room 115 
(835 NSF), Room 116 (1840 NSF), 
Room 117 (145 NSF), Room 118 
(227 NSF), Room 119 (384 NSF), 
Room 120 (100 NSF), Room 121 
(160 NSF), Room 122 (410 NSF), 
Room 123 (19 NSF), Room 124 (17 
NSF), Room 125 (36 NSF), Room 
126 (39 NSF), Room 127 (136 NSF), 
Room 128 (136 NSF), Room 129 
(20 NSF), Room 130 (20 NSF), 
Room 131 (292 NSF), Room 132 
(443 NSF), Room 134 (1685 NSF), 
Room 135 (948 NSF), Room 136 
(229 NSF), Room 137 (206 NSF), 
Room 138 (200 NSF), Room 139 
(2171 NSF), Room 140 (640 NSF), 
Room 141 (697 NSF), Room 142 
(180 NSF), Room 143 (239 NSF), 
Room 144 (168 NSF), Room 145 
(150 NSF), Room 145A (150 NSF), 
Room 146 (325 NSF), Room 147 
(415 NSF), Room 148 (16 NSF), 
Room 149 (16 NSF), Room 150 (77 
NSF), Room 151 (77 NSF), Room 
152 (4714 NSF), Room 153 (2735 
NSF), Room 154 (608 NSF), Room 
155 (538 NSF), Room 156 (1095 
NSF), Room 157 (584 NSF), Room 
158 (150 NSF), Room 159 (100 
NSF), Room 160 (120 NSF), Room 
160A (120 NSF), Room 161A (1282 
NSF), Room 161B (1100 NSF), 
Room 161C (83 NSF), Room 162 
(133 NSF), Room 163 (150 NSF), 
Room 163A (70 NSF), Room 164 
(2268 NSF)

39,935 0 $4,752,265 $119 $0

PAGE:183 of 253 Report Date: 6/8/2021 10:16:11 AM

EDUCATIONAL PLANT FIVE YEAR SURVEY REPORT

Status:

Active Pending

Survey:

Survey: 7 - Version: 1

District:

10-CLAY COUNTY SCHOOL DISTRICT

Page 726 of 962

DRAFT



ORANGE PARK SENIOR 
HIGH

Parcel Building Description Total NSF Change In 
Station Count

Calculated 
Cost

Cost Per 
NSF

Cost Per 
Station

Renovation 2026 10 22 Renovating: Apply Painting, Floor 
Cover, Electrical, Plumbing, 
Windows, Lighting, Restrooms, 
HVAC Systems, Bell/Fire Alarm 
Systems, Retrofit for Technology to 
Room 2201 (465 NSF), Room 2202 
(735 NSF), Room 2203 (735 NSF), 
Room 2204 (172 NSF), Room 2205 
(171 NSF), Room 2206 (760 NSF), 
Room 2207 (1201 NSF), Room 
2208 (140 NSF), Room 2209 (118 
NSF), Room 2210 (49 NSF), Room 
2211 (348 NSF), Room 2212 (107 
NSF), Room 2213 (39 NSF), Room 
2214 (667 NSF), Room 2215 (304 
NSF), Room 2216 (676 NSF), Room 
2217 (285 NSF), Room 2218 (92 
NSF), Room 2219 (55 NSF), Room 
2220 (69 NSF), Room 2221 (162 
NSF)

7,350 0 $874,650 $119 $0

Renovation 2026 10 24 Renovating: Apply Painting, Floor 
Cover, Electrical, Plumbing, 
Windows, Lighting, Restrooms, 
HVAC Systems, Bell/Fire Alarm 
Systems, Retrofit for Technology to 
Room 001 (1198 NSF), Room 002 
(43 NSF), Room 003 (74 NSF), 
Room 005 (348 NSF), Room 006 
(113 NSF), Room 007 (47 NSF), 
Room 008 (47 NSF), Room 010 
(214 NSF), Room 011 (32 NSF), 
Room 012 (150 NSF), Room 013 
(37 NSF), Room 014 (30 NSF), 
Room 015 (124 NSF), Room 016 
(42 NSF), Room 017 (143 NSF), 
Room 018 (561 NSF), Room 021 
(101 NSF), Room 022 (2465 NSF), 
Room 023 (288 NSF), Room 024 
(359 NSF), Room 025 (32 NSF), 
Room 026 (75 NSF), Room 027 (50 
NSF), Room 028 (238 NSF), Room 
029 (94 NSF), Room 030 (271 NSF), 
Room 032 (423 NSF), Room 033 
(89 NSF), Room 034 (183 NSF), 
Room 035 (122 NSF)

7,993 0 $951,167 $119 $0

Renovation 2026 10 27 Renovating: Apply Painting, Floor 
Cover, Electrical, Plumbing, 
Windows, Lighting, Restrooms, 
HVAC Systems, Bell/Fire Alarm 
Systems, Retrofit for Technology to 
Room 001 (1139 NSF), Room 002 
(2339 NSF), Room 003 (2921 NSF), 
Room 004 (120 NSF), Room 005 
(52 NSF), Room 006 (99 NSF), 
Room 007 (271 NSF), Room 009 
(411 NSF), Room 010 (187 NSF), 
Room 011 (187 NSF)

7,726 0 $919,394 $119 $0

PAGE:184 of 253 Report Date: 6/8/2021 10:16:11 AM

EDUCATIONAL PLANT FIVE YEAR SURVEY REPORT

Status:

Active Pending

Survey:

Survey: 7 - Version: 1

District:

10-CLAY COUNTY SCHOOL DISTRICT

Page 727 of 962

DRAFT



ORANGE PARK SENIOR 
HIGH

Parcel Building Description Total NSF Change In 
Station Count

Calculated 
Cost

Cost Per 
NSF

Cost Per 
Station

Renovation 2026 10 41 Renovating: Apply Painting, Floor 
Cover, Electrical, Plumbing, 
Windows, Lighting, Restrooms, 
HVAC Systems, Bell/Fire Alarm 
Systems, Retrofit for Technology to 
Room 001 (362 NSF), Room 002 
(36 NSF), Room 003 (140 NSF), 
Room 004 (151 NSF), Room 005 
(151 NSF)

840 0 $99,960 $119 $0

Renovation 2026 10 47 Renovating: Apply Painting, Floor 
Cover, Electrical, Plumbing, 
Windows, Lighting, Restrooms, 
HVAC Systems, Bell/Fire Alarm 
Systems, Retrofit for Technology to 
Room 001 (360 NSF), Room 002 
(138 NSF), Room 003 (184 NSF)

682 0 $81,158 $119 $0

Renovation 2026 10 49 Renovating: Apply Painting, Floor 
Cover, Electrical, Plumbing, 
Windows, Lighting, Restrooms, 
HVAC Systems, Bell/Fire Alarm 
Systems, Retrofit for Technology to 
Room 001 (40 NSF), Room 001A 
(40 NSF), Room 002 (40 NSF), 
Room 002A (40 NSF)

160 0 $19,040 $119 $0

Renovation 2026 10 51 Renovating: Apply Painting, Floor 
Cover, Electrical, Plumbing, 
Windows, Lighting, Restrooms, 
HVAC Systems, Bell/Fire Alarm 
Systems, Retrofit for Technology to 
Room 001 (132 NSF), Room 002 
(324 NSF), Room 003 (108 NSF), 
Room 004 (62 NSF), Room 005 (62 
NSF), Room 006 (176 NSF), Room 
007 (801 NSF), Room 008 (2410 
NSF), Room 009 (269 NSF), Room 
010 (60 NSF), Room 011 (44 NSF), 
Room 012 (918 NSF), Room 012B 
(43 NSF), Room 012C (34 NSF), 
Room 013 (209 NSF), Room 014 
(108 NSF), Room 015 (45 NSF), 
Room 016 (45 NSF), Room 017 
(918 NSF), Room 017B (43 NSF), 
Room 017C (34 NSF), Room 018 
(228 NSF), Room 019 (116 NSF), 
Room 020 (70 NSF), Room 021 (70 
NSF)

7,329 0 $872,151 $119 $0

PAGE:185 of 253 Report Date: 6/8/2021 10:16:11 AM

EDUCATIONAL PLANT FIVE YEAR SURVEY REPORT

Status:

Active Pending

Survey:

Survey: 7 - Version: 1

District:

10-CLAY COUNTY SCHOOL DISTRICT

Page 728 of 962

DRAFT



District Name: CLAY COUNTY SCHOOL DISTRICT

Survey: Number 7 - Version 1

Facility Name: PLANTATION OAKS ELEMENTARY

Address: 4150 PLANTATION OAKS BOULEVARD, ORANGE PARK

Existing Recommended

Capital Outlay 
Classification

1 - SCHOOL RECOMMENDED FOR 
CONTINUED USE

1 - SCHOOL RECOMMENDED FOR 
CONTINUED USE

Facility Use ELEMENTARY ELEMENTARY

Low Grade PRE-K E S E PRE-K E S E

High Grade GRADE 6 GRADE 6

Comments

Existing
Student Stations 

Added/Reduced(+ or -) Recommended

Perm. Stations 887 0 887

Reloc. Stations 117 -44 73

Mod. Stations 0 0 0

Total Stations 1,004 -44 960

Utilization Factor 100% 100%

School Capacity 1,004 960

COFTE Student 
Membership 993 925

Survey Annotation

Remove 2 portables in excess of 20 years of age.                 Construct Elementary Covered 
Play Area.                                                                                    Correct Site Drainage 
Problems.                                 
Construct Additional Covered Walkways Where Needed.   
(Other)
District-Wide Recommendations for this facility are: Improve Security Fencing and Lighting.

New Site Cost Site 
Expansion

Site 
Development

Site 
Improvement

Remodeling 
Cost

Renovation 
Cost

New 
Construction 

Cost

$0 $0 $0 $45,000 $214,590 $0 $138,000

Estimated Total Project Cost $397,590

PLANTATION OAKS 
ELEMENTARY

Parcel Building Description Total NSF Change In 
Station Count

Calculated 
Cost

Cost Per 
NSF

Cost Per 
Station

New Construction 2026 New Construction: Adding 1 unit of 
ELEMENTARY COVERED PLAY 
AREA (500 NSF)

500 0 $138,000 $276 $0

PAGE:186 of 253 Report Date: 6/8/2021 10:16:11 AM

EDUCATIONAL PLANT FIVE YEAR SURVEY REPORT

Status:

Active Pending

Survey:

Survey: 7 - Version: 1

District:

10-CLAY COUNTY SCHOOL DISTRICT

Page 729 of 962

DRAFT



PLANTATION OAKS 
ELEMENTARY

Parcel Building Description Total NSF Change In 
Station Count

Calculated 
Cost

Cost Per 
NSF

Cost Per 
Station

Remodeling 2026 63 92 Removed NSF (1555), Added NSF 
(0), Difference NSF (1555), Percent 
(100%), Removed Stations (44), 
Added Stations (0) Remodeling: 
Adding  and Removing Room 913 
(750 NSF), Room 913A (26 NSF), 
Room 915 (754 NSF), Room 915A 
(25 NSF)

-1,555 -44 $214,590 $138 $0

PAGE:187 of 253 Report Date: 6/8/2021 10:16:11 AM

EDUCATIONAL PLANT FIVE YEAR SURVEY REPORT

Status:

Active Pending

Survey:

Survey: 7 - Version: 1

District:

10-CLAY COUNTY SCHOOL DISTRICT

Page 730 of 962

DRAFT



District Name: CLAY COUNTY SCHOOL DISTRICT

Survey: Number 7 - Version 1

Facility Name: R C BANNERMAN LEARNING RESOURCE CENTER

Address: 608 MILL STREET, GREEN COVE SPRINGS

Existing Recommended

Capital Outlay 
Classification

1 - SCHOOL RECOMMENDED FOR 
CONTINUED USE

1 - SCHOOL RECOMMENDED FOR 
CONTINUED USE

Facility Use ALTERNATIVE EDUCATION ALTERNATIVE EDUCATION

Low Grade KINDERGARTEN PRE-K E S E

High Grade GRADE 12 GRADE 12

Comments

Existing
Student Stations 

Added/Reduced(+ or -) Recommended

Perm. Stations 87 0 87

Reloc. Stations 481 -114 367

Mod. Stations 0 0 0

Total Stations 568 -114 454

Utilization Factor 100% 100%

School Capacity 568 454

COFTE Student 
Membership 286 205

Survey Annotation

Correct Site Drainage Problems.                                 
Construct Additional Covered Walkways Where Needed.   Construct parking area.                   
                             Renovate Buildings 1, 2, & 3.                                                   Remove 7 
portables in excess of 20 years of age.                      
(Other)
District-Wide Recommendations for this facility are: Improve Security Fencing and Lighting.

New Site Cost Site 
Expansion

Site 
Development

Site 
Improvement

Remodeling 
Cost

Renovation 
Cost

New 
Construction 

Cost

$0 $0 $15,000 $280,000 $61,716 $1,352,792 $0

Estimated Total Project Cost $1,709,508

PAGE:188 of 253 Report Date: 6/8/2021 10:16:11 AM

EDUCATIONAL PLANT FIVE YEAR SURVEY REPORT

Status:

Active Pending

Survey:

Survey: 7 - Version: 1

District:

10-CLAY COUNTY SCHOOL DISTRICT

Page 731 of 962

DRAFT



R C BANNERMAN 
LEARNING RESOURCE 
CENTER

Parcel Building Description Total NSF Change In 
Station Count

Calculated 
Cost

Cost Per 
NSF

Cost Per 
Station

Remodeling 2026 5 92 Removed NSF (5143), Added NSF 
(0), Difference NSF (5143), Percent 
(100%), Removed Stations (114), 
Added Stations (0) Remodeling: 
Adding  and Removing Room 005 
(712 NSF), Room 005A (25 NSF), 
Room 007 (696 NSF), Room 007A 
(36 NSF), Room 009 (691 NSF), 
Room 009A (42 NSF), Room 010 
(692 NSF), Room 010A (37 NSF), 
Room 013 (737 NSF), Room 032 
(737 NSF), Room 040 (720 NSF), 
Room 040A (18 NSF)

-5,143 -114 $61,716 $12 $0

Renovation 2026 5 1 Renovating: Apply Painting, Floor 
Cover, Electrical, Plumbing, 
Windows, Lighting, Restrooms, 
HVAC Systems, Bell/Fire Alarm 
Systems, Retrofit for Technology to 
Room 100 (149 NSF), Room 101 
(122 NSF), Room 102 (331 NSF), 
Room 103 (203 NSF), Room 104 
(172 NSF), Room 105A (6 NSF), 
Room 105B (6 NSF), Room 105C 
(12 NSF), Room 105D (361 NSF), 
Room 106 (130 NSF), Room 107 
(729 NSF), Room 107A (6 NSF), 
Room 108 (729 NSF), Room 108A 
(6 NSF), Room 109 (729 NSF), 
Room 109A (6 NSF), Room 110 
(181 NSF)

3,878 0 $461,482 $119 $0

Renovation 2026 5 2 Renovating: Apply Painting, Floor 
Cover, Electrical, Plumbing, 
Windows, Lighting, Restrooms, 
HVAC Systems, Bell/Fire Alarm 
Systems, Retrofit for Technology to 
Room 201 (228 NSF), Room 202 
(27 NSF), Room 203 (29 NSF), 
Room 204 (115 NSF), Room 205 (97 
NSF), Room 206 (88 NSF), Room 
207 (55 NSF), Room 208 (68 NSF), 
Room 209 (166 NSF), Room 210 
(380 NSF), Room 211 (153 NSF), 
Room 213 (20 NSF), Room 214 
(695 NSF), Room 215 (27 NSF), 
Room 216 (58 NSF), Room 217 
(619 NSF), Room 218 (25 NSF), 
Room 219 (667 NSF), Room 219A 
(58 NSF), Room 220 (725 NSF)

4,300 0 $511,700 $119 $0

PAGE:189 of 253 Report Date: 6/8/2021 10:16:11 AM

EDUCATIONAL PLANT FIVE YEAR SURVEY REPORT

Status:

Active Pending

Survey:

Survey: 7 - Version: 1

District:

10-CLAY COUNTY SCHOOL DISTRICT

Page 732 of 962

DRAFT



R C BANNERMAN 
LEARNING RESOURCE 
CENTER

Parcel Building Description Total NSF Change In 
Station Count

Calculated 
Cost

Cost Per 
NSF

Cost Per 
Station

Renovation 2026 5 3 Renovating: Apply Painting, Floor 
Cover, Electrical, Plumbing, 
Windows, Lighting, Restrooms, 
HVAC Systems, Bell/Fire Alarm 
Systems, Retrofit for Technology to 
Room 301 (705 NSF), Room 302 
(40 NSF), Room 303 (43 NSF), 
Room 304 (38 NSF), Room 305 (75 
NSF), Room 306 (105 NSF), Room 
307 (118 NSF), Room 308 (133 
NSF), Room 309 (133 NSF), Room 
310 (133 NSF), Room 311 (133 
NSF), Room 312 (378 NSF), Room 
313 (310 NSF), Room 314 (133 
NSF), Room 315 (129 NSF), Room 
316 (129 NSF), Room 317 (125 
NSF), Room 318 (66 NSF), Room 
319 (81 NSF), Room 320 (163 NSF), 
Room 321 (20 NSF)

3,190 0 $379,610 $119 $0

PAGE:190 of 253 Report Date: 6/8/2021 10:16:11 AM

EDUCATIONAL PLANT FIVE YEAR SURVEY REPORT

Status:

Active Pending

Survey:

Survey: 7 - Version: 1

District:

10-CLAY COUNTY SCHOOL DISTRICT

Page 733 of 962

DRAFT



District Name: CLAY COUNTY SCHOOL DISTRICT

Survey: Number 7 - Version 1

Facility Name: RIDEOUT ELEMENTARY

Address: 3065 APALACHICOLA BOULEVARD, MIDDLEBURG

Existing Recommended

Capital Outlay 
Classification

1 - SCHOOL RECOMMENDED FOR 
CONTINUED USE

1 - SCHOOL RECOMMENDED FOR 
CONTINUED USE

Facility Use ELEMENTARY ELEMENTARY

Low Grade PRE-K E S E PRE-K E S E

High Grade GRADE 6 GRADE 6

Comments

Existing
Student Stations 

Added/Reduced(+ or -) Recommended

Perm. Stations 628 0 628

Reloc. Stations 55 -50 5

Mod. Stations 0 0 0

Total Stations 683 -50 633

Utilization Factor 100% 100%

School Capacity 683 633

COFTE Student 
Membership 481 589

Survey Annotation

Renovate Buildings 1. 
Remove 3 portables in excess of 20 years of age.
Correct Site Drainage Problems.                                 
Construct Additional Covered Walkways Where Needed.   
(Other)
District-Wide Recommendations for this facility are: Improve Security Fencing and Lighting.

New Site Cost Site 
Expansion

Site 
Development

Site 
Improvement

Remodeling 
Cost

Renovation 
Cost

New 
Construction 

Cost

$0 $0 $0 $45,000 $28,248 $7,693,132 $0

Estimated Total Project Cost $7,766,380

PAGE:191 of 253 Report Date: 6/8/2021 10:16:11 AM

EDUCATIONAL PLANT FIVE YEAR SURVEY REPORT

Status:

Active Pending

Survey:

Survey: 7 - Version: 1

District:

10-CLAY COUNTY SCHOOL DISTRICT

Page 734 of 962

DRAFT



RIDEOUT ELEMENTARY Parcel Building Description Total NSF Change In 
Station Count

Calculated 
Cost

Cost Per 
NSF

Cost Per 
Station

Remodeling 2026 48 92 Removed NSF (2354), Added NSF 
(0), Difference NSF (2354), Percent 
(100%), Removed Stations (50), 
Added Stations (0) Remodeling: 
Adding  and Removing Room 012 
(754 NSF), Room 012A (25 NSF), 
Room 014 (740 NSF), Room 014A 
(36 NSF), Room 022 (703 NSF), 
Room 022A (26 NSF), Room 022B 
(26 NSF), Room 022C (44 NSF)

-2,354 -50 $28,248 $12 $0

Renovation 2026 48 1 Renovating: Apply Painting, Floor 
Cover, Electrical, Plumbing, 
Windows, Lighting, Restrooms, 
HVAC Systems, Bell/Fire Alarm 
Systems, Retrofit for Technology to 
Room 101 (829 NSF), Room 102 
(128 NSF), Room 103 (70 NSF), 
Room 104 (926 NSF), Room 105 
(70 NSF), Room 106 (168 NSF), 
Room 107 (924 NSF), Room 108 
(87 NSF), Room 109 (70 NSF), 
Room 110 (926 NSF), Room 111 
(595 NSF), Room 112 (477 NSF), 
Room 113 (924 NSF), Room 114 (52 
NSF), Room 115 (70 NSF), Room 
116 (69 NSF), Room 117 (219 NSF), 
Room 118 (69 NSF), Room 119 (70 
NSF), Room 120 (52 NSF), Room 
121 (924 NSF), Room 122 (235 
NSF), Room 123 (279 NSF), Room 
124 (70 NSF), Room 125 (926 NSF), 
Room 126 (243 NSF), Room 127 
(924 NSF), Room 128 (70 NSF), 
Room 129 (808 NSF), Room 130 
(70 NSF), Room 131 (924 NSF), 
Room 132 (120 NSF), Room 133 
(1456 NSF), Room 134 (364 NSF), 
Room 135 (83 NSF), Room 136 
(145 NSF), Room 137 (59 NSF), 
Room 138 (59 NSF), Room 139 
(127 NSF), Room 140 (70 NSF), 
Room 141 (924 NSF), Room 142 
(70 NSF), Room 143 (127 NSF), 
Room 144 (926 NSF), Room 145 
(978 NSF), Room 146 (78 NSF), 
Room 147 (42 NSF), Room 148 (42 
NSF), Room 149 (984 NSF), Room 
150 (78 NSF), Room 151 (78 NSF), 
Room 152 (984 NSF), Room 153 
(78 NSF), Room 154 (78 NSF), 
Room 155 (978 NSF), Room 156 
(42 NSF), Room 157 (42 NSF), 
Room 158 (78 NSF), Room 159 
(542 NSF), Room 201 (144 NSF), 
Room 202 (68 NSF), Room 203 
(149 NSF), Room 204 (93 NSF), 
Room 205 (122 NSF), Room 206 
(102 NSF), Room 207 (1257 NSF), 
Room 208 (621 NSF), Room 209 
(298 NSF), Room 210 (473 NSF), 
Room 211 (342 NSF), Room 212 
(122 NSF), Room 213 (75 NSF), 
Room 214 (217 NSF), Room 215 
(1840 NSF), Room 215A (3440 
NSF), Room 216 (932 NSF), Room 
217 (296 NSF), Room 218 (307 

83,621 0 $7,693,132 $92 $0

PAGE:192 of 253 Report Date: 6/8/2021 10:16:11 AM

EDUCATIONAL PLANT FIVE YEAR SURVEY REPORT

Status:

Active Pending

Survey:

Survey: 7 - Version: 1

District:

10-CLAY COUNTY SCHOOL DISTRICT

Page 735 of 962

DRAFT



NSF), Room 219 (32 NSF), Room 
220 (47 NSF), Room 221 (214 NSF), 
Room 222 (325 NSF), Room 223 
(924 NSF), Room 224 (127 NSF), 
Room 225 (70 NSF), Room 226 
(1650 NSF), Room 227 (70 NSF), 
Room 228 (70 NSF), Room 229 (42 
NSF), Room 230 (924 NSF), Room 
231 (318 NSF), Room 232 (212 
NSF), Room 233 (32 NSF), Room 
234 (57 NSF), Room 235 (307 NSF), 
Room 236 (250 NSF), Room 237 
(52 NSF), Room 238 (324 NSF), 
Room 239 (343 NSF), Room 240 
(301 NSF), Room 241 (37 NSF), 
Room 242 (16 NSF), Room 243 
(120 NSF), Room 244 (90 NSF), 
Room 301 (1104 NSF), Room 302 
(2918 NSF), Room 303 (212 NSF), 
Room 304 (185 NSF), Room 305 
(116 NSF), Room 306 (129 NSF), 
Room 307 (129 NSF), Room 308 
(484 NSF), Room 309 (180 NSF), 
Room 310 (293 NSF), Room 311 
(167 NSF), Room 312 (214 NSF), 
Room 313 (141 NSF), Room 314 
(31 NSF), Room 315 (219 NSF), 
Room 316 (232 NSF), Room 317 
(266 NSF), Room 318 (167 NSF), 
Room 319 (122 NSF), Room 320 
(122 NSF), Room 321 (222 NSF), 
Room 322 (196 NSF), Room 323 
(108 NSF), Room 324 (69 NSF), 
Room 325 (143 NSF), Room 326 
(84 NSF), Room 327 (175 NSF), 
Room 328 (337 NSF), Room 329 
(270 NSF), Room 330 (466 NSF), 
Room 331 (123 NSF), Room 332 
(30 NSF), Room 333 (30 NSF), 
Room 334 (468 NSF), Room 335 
(38 NSF), Room 336 (313 NSF), 
Room 337 (48 NSF), Room 338 (40 
NSF), Room 339 (48 NSF), Room 
340 (3480 NSF), Room 341 (464 
NSF), Room 342 (377 NSF), Room 
343 (463 NSF), Room 344 (424 
NSF), Room 345 (240 NSF), Room 
346 (250 NSF), Room 347 (273 
NSF), Room 348 (274 NSF), Room 
349 (81 NSF), Room 350 (46 NSF), 
Room 351 (44 NSF), Room 352 
(231 NSF), Room 353 (472 NSF), 
Room 354 (128 NSF), Room 355 
(214 NSF), Room 356 (44 NSF), 
Room 357 (490 NSF), Room 401 
(1107 NSF), Room 402 (130 NSF), 
Room 403 (42 NSF), Room 404 
(971 NSF), Room 405 (70 NSF), 
Room 406 (70 NSF), Room 407 
(970 NSF), Room 408 (42 NSF), 
Room 409 (42 NSF), Room 410 
(975 NSF), Room 411 (70 NSF), 
Room 412 (70 NSF), Room 413 
(1164 NSF), Room 414 (42 NSF), 
Room 415 (42 NSF), Room 416 (70 
NSF), Room 417 (975 NSF), Room 
418 (150 NSF), Room 419 (70 NSF), 
Room 420 (975 NSF), Room 421 
(42 NSF), Room 422 (1074 NSF), 
Room 423 (42 NSF), Room 424 
(975 NSF), Room 425 (70 NSF), 

PAGE:193 of 253 Report Date: 6/8/2021 10:16:11 AM

EDUCATIONAL PLANT FIVE YEAR SURVEY REPORT

Status:

Active Pending

Survey:

Survey: 7 - Version: 1

District:

10-CLAY COUNTY SCHOOL DISTRICT

Page 736 of 962

DRAFT



Room 426 (150 NSF), Room 427 
(70 NSF), Room 428 (975 NSF), 
Room 429 (42 NSF), Room 430 
(215 NSF), Room 431 (45 NSF), 
Room 432 (45 NSF), Room 433 (52 
NSF), Room 434 (966 NSF), Room 
435 (70 NSF), Room 436 (69 NSF), 
Room 437 (455 NSF), Room 438 
(69 NSF), Room 439 (70 NSF), 
Room 440 (966 NSF), Room 441 
(52 NSF), Room 442 (128 NSF), 
Room 443 (429 NSF), Room 444 
(311 NSF), Room 445 (42 NSF), 
Room 446 (975 NSF), Room 447 
(70 NSF), Room 448 (150 NSF), 
Room 449 (150 NSF), Room 450 
(975 NSF), Room 451 (42 NSF), 
Room 452 (42 NSF), Room 453 
(975 NSF), Room 454 (70 NSF), 
Room 455 (70 NSF), Room 456 (42 
NSF), Room 457 (971 NSF), Room 
458 (130 NSF), Room 459 (978 
NSF), Room 460 (78 NSF), Room 
461 (42 NSF), Room 462 (42 NSF), 
Room 463 (984 NSF), Room 464 
(78 NSF), Room 465 (78 NSF), 
Room 466 (984 NSF), Room 467 
(78 NSF), Room 468 (78 NSF), 
Room 469 (978 NSF), Room 470 
(42 NSF), Room 471 (42 NSF), 
Room 472 (78 NSF), Room 473 
(542 NSF)

PAGE:194 of 253 Report Date: 6/8/2021 10:16:11 AM

EDUCATIONAL PLANT FIVE YEAR SURVEY REPORT

Status:

Active Pending

Survey:

Survey: 7 - Version: 1

District:

10-CLAY COUNTY SCHOOL DISTRICT

Page 737 of 962

DRAFT



District Name: CLAY COUNTY SCHOOL DISTRICT

Survey: Number 7 - Version 1

Facility Name: RIDGEVIEW ELEMENTARY

Address: 421 JEFFERSON AVENUE, ORANGE PARK

Existing Recommended

Capital Outlay 
Classification

1 - SCHOOL RECOMMENDED FOR 
CONTINUED USE

1 - SCHOOL RECOMMENDED FOR 
CONTINUED USE

Facility Use ELEMENTARY ELEMENTARY

Low Grade PRE-K E S E PRE-K E S E

High Grade GRADE 6 GRADE 6

Comments

Existing
Student Stations 

Added/Reduced(+ or -) Recommended

Perm. Stations 301 98 399

Reloc. Stations 264 -112 152

Mod. Stations 0 0 0

Total Stations 565 -14 551

Utilization Factor 100% 100%

School Capacity 565 551

COFTE Student 
Membership 567 505

Survey Annotation

Renovate Buildings 1, 2, 3, & 6. 
Remove 5 portables in excess of 20 years of age.                Re-design and Construct Parent 
and Bus Pick Up and Drop Off Areas.                                                                                        
Construct additional parking.
Construct Elementary Covered Play Area, (3) Primary Classrooms,  (2) Intermediate 
Classrooms, (1) Elem Art, (1) Elem Music.

Correct Site Drainage Problems.                                 
Construct Additional Covered Walkways Where Needed.   
(Other)
District-Wide Recommendations for this facility are: Improve Security Fencing and Lighting.

New Site Cost Site 
Expansion

Site 
Development

Site 
Improvement

Remodeling 
Cost

Renovation 
Cost

New 
Construction 

Cost

$0 $0 $0 $395,000 $55,032 $3,604,468 $2,491,062

Estimated Total Project Cost $6,545,562

PAGE:195 of 253 Report Date: 6/8/2021 10:16:11 AM

EDUCATIONAL PLANT FIVE YEAR SURVEY REPORT

Status:

Active Pending

Survey:

Survey: 7 - Version: 1

District:

10-CLAY COUNTY SCHOOL DISTRICT

Page 738 of 962

DRAFT



RIDGEVIEW 
ELEMENTARY

Parcel Building Description Total NSF Change In 
Station Count

Calculated 
Cost

Cost Per 
NSF

Cost Per 
Station

New Construction 2026 New Construction: Adding 2 units of 
INTERMEDIATE/MIDDLE 
CLASSROOM (4-8) (858 NSF), 3 
units of PRIMARY CLASSROOM (K-
3) (882 NSF), 1 unit of 
ELEMENTARY COVERED PLAY 
AREA (500 NSF), 1 unit of ART - 
ELEMENTARY (1110 NSF), 1 unit of 
MUSIC - ELEMENTARY (1560 NSF)

9,242 98 $2,491,062 $270 $25,419

Remodeling 2026 23 92 Removed NSF (4586), Added NSF 
(0), Difference NSF (4586), Percent 
(100%), Removed Stations (112), 
Added Stations (0) Remodeling: 
Adding  and Removing Room 712 
(754 NSF), Room 712A (26 NSF), 
Room 715 (754 NSF), Room 715A 
(25 NSF), Room 733 (729 NSF), 
Room 751 (729 NSF), Room 754 
(754 NSF), Room 754A (25 NSF), 
Room 758 (790 NSF)

-4,586 -112 $55,032 $12 $0

Renovation 2026 23 1 Renovating: Apply Painting, Floor 
Cover, Electrical, Plumbing, 
Windows, Lighting, Restrooms, 
HVAC Systems, Bell/Fire Alarm 
Systems, Retrofit for Technology to 
Room 101 (172 NSF), Room 102 
(213 NSF), Room 103 (26 NSF), 
Room 104 (26 NSF), Room 105 (26 
NSF), Room 106 (208 NSF), Room 
107 (943 NSF), Room 108 (511 
NSF), Room 109 (237 NSF), Room 
111 (160 NSF), Room 111A (184 
NSF), Room 112 (92 NSF), Room 
113 (192 NSF), Room 113A (8 NSF), 
Room 116 (228 NSF), Room 117 
(142 NSF), Room 118 (138 NSF), 
Room 119 (110 NSF), Room 120 (65 
NSF), Room 123 (91 NSF), Room 
124 (32 NSF), Room 125 (90 NSF), 
Room 126 (221 NSF), Room 126A 
(71 NSF), Room 127 (337 NSF), 
Room 128 (138 NSF), Room 130 
(48 NSF), Room 131 (253 NSF), 
Room 132 (100 NSF), Room 133 
(2701 NSF), Room 134 (102 NSF), 
Room 135 (354 NSF)

8,219 0 $756,148 $92 $0

PAGE:196 of 253 Report Date: 6/8/2021 10:16:11 AM

EDUCATIONAL PLANT FIVE YEAR SURVEY REPORT

Status:

Active Pending

Survey:

Survey: 7 - Version: 1

District:

10-CLAY COUNTY SCHOOL DISTRICT

Page 739 of 962

DRAFT



RIDGEVIEW 
ELEMENTARY

Parcel Building Description Total NSF Change In 
Station Count

Calculated 
Cost

Cost Per 
NSF

Cost Per 
Station

Renovation 2026 23 2 Renovating: Apply Painting, Floor 
Cover, Electrical, Plumbing, 
Windows, Lighting, Restrooms, 
HVAC Systems, Bell/Fire Alarm 
Systems, Retrofit for Technology to 
Room 200 (401 NSF), Room 201 
(99 NSF), Room 202 (100 NSF), 
Room 203 (122 NSF), Room 204 
(66 NSF), Room 205 (75 NSF), 
Room 206 (119 NSF), Room 207 
(368 NSF), Room 208 (12 NSF), 
Room 209 (315 NSF), Room 210 
(915 NSF), Room 211 (96 NSF), 
Room 212 (96 NSF), Room 213 
(144 NSF), Room 214 (259 NSF), 
Room 215 (101 NSF), Room 216 
(16 NSF), Room 217 (207 NSF), 
Room 220 (3104 NSF), Room 221 
(69 NSF), Room 223 (147 NSF), 
Room 225 (123 NSF), Room 226 
(673 NSF), Room 227 (123 NSF), 
Room 229 (146 NSF), Room 231 
(69 NSF)

7,965 0 $732,780 $92 $0

Renovation 2026 23 3 Renovating: Apply Painting, Floor 
Cover, Electrical, Plumbing, 
Windows, Lighting, Restrooms, 
HVAC Systems, Bell/Fire Alarm 
Systems, Retrofit for Technology to 
Room 300 (1350 NSF), Room 301 
(107 NSF), Room 302 (160 NSF), 
Room 303 (174 NSF), Room 304 
(46 NSF), Room 305 (107 NSF), 
Room 306 (812 NSF), Room 307 
(361 NSF), Room 308 (44 NSF), 
Room 309 (32 NSF)

3,193 0 $293,756 $92 $0

PAGE:197 of 253 Report Date: 6/8/2021 10:16:11 AM

EDUCATIONAL PLANT FIVE YEAR SURVEY REPORT

Status:

Active Pending

Survey:

Survey: 7 - Version: 1

District:

10-CLAY COUNTY SCHOOL DISTRICT

Page 740 of 962

DRAFT



RIDGEVIEW 
ELEMENTARY

Parcel Building Description Total NSF Change In 
Station Count

Calculated 
Cost

Cost Per 
NSF

Cost Per 
Station

Renovation 2026 23 6 Renovating: Apply Painting, Floor 
Cover, Electrical, Plumbing, 
Windows, Lighting, Restrooms, 
HVAC Systems, Bell/Fire Alarm 
Systems, Retrofit for Technology to 
Room 601 (1039 NSF), Room 601A 
(210 NSF), Room 601B (210 NSF), 
Room 601C (35 NSF), Room 601D 
(61 NSF), Room 601E (35 NSF), 
Room 601F (60 NSF), Room 601G 
(21 NSF), Room 602 (1030 NSF), 
Room 602A (128 NSF), Room 602B 
(280 NSF), Room 602C (9 NSF), 
Room 602D (9 NSF), Room 602G 
(10 NSF), Room 603 (1039 NSF), 
Room 603A (128 NSF), Room 603G 
(21 NSF), Room 604 (1030 NSF), 
Room 604A (128 NSF), Room 604B 
(280 NSF), Room 604G (10 NSF), 
Room 605 (1251 NSF), Room 605A 
(128 NSF), Room 605B (43 NSF), 
Room 605C (30 NSF), Room 605D 
(65 NSF), Room 606 (1030 NSF), 
Room 606A (128 NSF), Room 606B 
(280 NSF), Room 606C (9 NSF), 
Room 606D (9 NSF), Room 606G 
(10 NSF), Room 607 (949 NSF), 
Room 607A (63 NSF), Room 607B 
(43 NSF), Room 607C (122 NSF), 
Room 608 (949 NSF), Room 608A 
(63 NSF), Room 608B (43 NSF), 
Room 608C (122 NSF), Room 609 
(949 NSF), Room 609A (122 NSF), 
Room 609B (43 NSF), Room 610 
(949 NSF), Room 610A (63 NSF), 
Room 610B (43 NSF), Room 611 
(949 NSF), Room 611A (63 NSF), 
Room 611B (43 NSF), Room 611C 
(61 NSF), Room 611D (95 NSF), 
Room 612 (949 NSF), Room 612A 
(63 NSF), Room 612B (43 NSF), 
Room 612C (61 NSF), Room 612D 
(95 NSF), Room 613 (253 NSF), 
Room 614 (253 NSF), Room 615 
(84 NSF), Room 616 (320 NSF), 
Room 617 (252 NSF), Room 618 
(43 NSF), Room 619 (98 NSF), 
Room 620 (204 NSF), Room 621 
(98 NSF), Room 622 (1044 NSF), 
Room 623 (732 NSF), Room 624 
(720 NSF)

19,802 0 $1,821,784 $92 $0

PAGE:198 of 253 Report Date: 6/8/2021 10:16:11 AM

EDUCATIONAL PLANT FIVE YEAR SURVEY REPORT

Status:

Active Pending

Survey:

Survey: 7 - Version: 1

District:

10-CLAY COUNTY SCHOOL DISTRICT

Page 741 of 962

DRAFT



District Name: CLAY COUNTY SCHOOL DISTRICT

Survey: Number 7 - Version 1

Facility Name: RIDGEVIEW SENIOR HIGH

Address: 466 MADISON AVENUE, ORANGE PARK

Existing Recommended

Capital Outlay 
Classification

1 - SCHOOL RECOMMENDED FOR 
CONTINUED USE

1 - SCHOOL RECOMMENDED FOR 
CONTINUED USE

Facility Use SENIOR HIGH SENIOR HIGH

Low Grade GRADE 9 GRADE 9

High Grade GRADE 12 GRADE 12

Comments

Existing
Student Stations 

Added/Reduced(+ or -) Recommended

Perm. Stations 1,225 0 1225

Reloc. Stations 1,148 -375 773

Mod. Stations 0 0 0

Total Stations 2,373 -375 1998

Utilization Factor 95% 95%

School Capacity 2,254 1898

COFTE Student 
Membership 1,422 1,671

Survey Annotation

Renovate Buildings 1, 3, 6, 7, 8, 9, & 10. 
Expand Media Center.
Remove 16 portables in excess of 20 years of age.
Correct Site Drainage Problems.                                 
Construct Additional Covered Walkways Where Needed.   
(Other)
District-Wide Recommendations for this facility are: Improve Security Fencing and Lighting.

New Site Cost Site 
Expansion

Site 
Development

Site 
Improvement

Remodeling 
Cost

Renovation 
Cost

New 
Construction 

Cost

$0 $0 $0 $45,000 $145,944 $16,682,253 $534,000

Estimated Total Project Cost $17,407,197

RIDGEVIEW SENIOR 
HIGH

Parcel Building Description Total NSF Change In 
Station Count

Calculated 
Cost

Cost Per 
NSF

Cost Per 
Station

New Construction 2026 New Construction: Adding 1 unit of 
LIBRARY (READING 
ROOM/STACKS) (1500 NSF)

1,500 0 $534,000 $356 $0

PAGE:199 of 253 Report Date: 6/8/2021 10:16:11 AM

EDUCATIONAL PLANT FIVE YEAR SURVEY REPORT

Status:

Active Pending

Survey:

Survey: 7 - Version: 1

District:

10-CLAY COUNTY SCHOOL DISTRICT

Page 742 of 962

DRAFT



RIDGEVIEW SENIOR 
HIGH

Parcel Building Description Total NSF Change In 
Station Count

Calculated 
Cost

Cost Per 
NSF

Cost Per 
Station

Remodeling 2026 25 92 Removed NSF (12162), Added NSF 
(0), Difference NSF (12162), Percent 
(100%), Removed Stations (375), 
Added Stations (0) Remodeling: 
Adding  and Removing Room 005 
(749 NSF), Room 005A (66 NSF), 
Room 005B (97 NSF), Room 011 
(730 NSF), Room 012 (754 NSF), 
Room 012A (25 NSF), Room 031 
(754 NSF), Room 031A (25 NSF), 
Room 032 (754 NSF), Room 032A 
(25 NSF), Room 033 (752 NSF), 
Room 033A (26 NSF), Room 045 
(728 NSF), Room 047 (754 NSF), 
Room 047A (27 NSF), Room 049 
(730 NSF), Room 049A (27 NSF), 
Room 050 (735 NSF), Room 051 
(730 NSF), Room 052 (699 NSF), 
Room 052A (35 NSF), Room 065 
(735 NSF), Room 066 (735 NSF), 
Room 067 (735 NSF), Room 070 
(735 NSF)

-12,162 -375 $145,944 $12 $0

PAGE:200 of 253 Report Date: 6/8/2021 10:16:11 AM

EDUCATIONAL PLANT FIVE YEAR SURVEY REPORT

Status:

Active Pending

Survey:

Survey: 7 - Version: 1

District:

10-CLAY COUNTY SCHOOL DISTRICT

Page 743 of 962

DRAFT



RIDGEVIEW SENIOR 
HIGH

Parcel Building Description Total NSF Change In 
Station Count

Calculated 
Cost

Cost Per 
NSF

Cost Per 
Station

Renovation 2026 25 1 Renovating: Apply Painting, Floor 
Cover, Electrical, Plumbing, 
Windows, Lighting, Restrooms, 
HVAC Systems, Bell/Fire Alarm 
Systems, Retrofit for Technology to 
Room 101 (593 NSF), Room 101A 
(158 NSF), Room 102 (242 NSF), 
Room 102A (397 NSF), Room 102B 
(128 NSF), Room 102C (40 NSF), 
Room 102D (289 NSF), Room 103 
(174 NSF), Room 104 (292 NSF), 
Room 105 (272 NSF), Room 105A 
(37 NSF), Room 105B (24 NSF), 
Room 106 (389 NSF), Room 106A 
(158 NSF), Room 106B (139 NSF), 
Room 106C (287 NSF), Room 106D 
(158 NSF), Room 106E (159 NSF), 
Room 107 (774 NSF), Room 108 
(195 NSF), Room 108A (190 NSF), 
Room 108B (63 NSF), Room 109 
(384 NSF), Room 110 (732 NSF), 
Room 110A (64 NSF), Room 110B 
(157 NSF), Room 110C (64 NSF), 
Room 110D (157 NSF), Room 111 
(302 NSF), Room 111A (177 NSF), 
Room 111B (176 NSF), Room 112 
(84 NSF), Room 113 (476 NSF), 
Room 114 (127 NSF), Room 115 (94 
NSF), Room 117 (122 NSF), Room 
117A (95 NSF), Room 118 (618 
NSF), Room 118A (123 NSF), Room 
118B (120 NSF), Room 119 (167 
NSF), Room 120 (348 NSF), Room 
121 (40 NSF), Room 123 (40 NSF), 
Room 124 (659 NSF), Room 125 
(348 NSF), Room 126 (125 NSF), 
Room 127 (207 NSF), Room 127A 
(111 NSF), Room 128 (187 NSF), 
Room 129 (108 NSF), Room 130 
(178 NSF), Room 131 (170 NSF), 
Room 132 (362 NSF), Room 133 
(167 NSF), Room 134 (167 NSF), 
Room 135 (335 NSF), Room 135A 
(206 NSF), Room 136 (94 NSF), 
Room 137 (95 NSF), Room 138 
(321 NSF), Room 139 (116 NSF), 
Room 140 (709 NSF), Room 140A 
(101 NSF), Room 141 (416 NSF), 
Room 142 (522 NSF), Room 143 
(291 NSF), Room 144 (660 NSF), 
Room 145 (172 NSF), Room 146 
(513 NSF), Room 147 (413 NSF), 
Room 148 (199 NSF), Room 149 
(4513 NSF), Room 150 (304 NSF), 
Room 151 (100 NSF)

22,694 0 $2,700,586 $119 $0

PAGE:201 of 253 Report Date: 6/8/2021 10:16:11 AM

EDUCATIONAL PLANT FIVE YEAR SURVEY REPORT

Status:

Active Pending

Survey:

Survey: 7 - Version: 1

District:

10-CLAY COUNTY SCHOOL DISTRICT

Page 744 of 962

DRAFT



RIDGEVIEW SENIOR 
HIGH

Parcel Building Description Total NSF Change In 
Station Count

Calculated 
Cost

Cost Per 
NSF

Cost Per 
Station

Renovation 2026 25 3 Renovating: Apply Painting, Floor 
Cover, Electrical, Plumbing, 
Windows, Lighting, Restrooms, 
HVAC Systems, Bell/Fire Alarm 
Systems, Retrofit for Technology to 
Room 301 (2848 NSF), Room 302 
(1244 NSF), Room 303 (166 NSF), 
Room 304 (95 NSF), Room 305 (73 
NSF), Room 306 (121 NSF), Room 
307 (139 NSF), Room 308 (1107 
NSF), Room 309 (210 NSF), Room 
310 (44 NSF), Room 311 (199 NSF), 
Room 313 (1654 NSF), Room 314 
(55 NSF), Room 315 (938 NSF), 
Room 316 (114 NSF), Room 317 
(214 NSF), Room 318 (49 NSF), 
Room 319 (158 NSF), Room 320 
(1039 NSF), Room 321 (98 NSF), 
Room 322 (102 NSF), Room 323 
(162 NSF), Room 324 (50 NSF), 
Room 325 (37 NSF), Room 326 (58 
NSF), Room 327 (92 NSF), Room 
328 (321 NSF), Room 329 (504 
NSF), Room 330 (99 NSF), Room 
331 (127 NSF), Room 332 (149 
NSF), Room 333 (501 NSF), Room 
334 (23 NSF), Room 335 (196 NSF), 
Room 336 (165 NSF), Room 337 
(38 NSF), Room 338 (41 NSF), 
Room 339 (64 NSF), Room 340 
(758 NSF), Room 341 (40 NSF), 
Room 342 (91 NSF), Room 343 
(214 NSF), Room 344 (38 NSF), 
Room 345 (119 NSF), Room 346 
(777 NSF), Room 347 (761 NSF), 
Room 348 (134 NSF), Room 349 
(45 NSF), Room 350 (206 NSF), 
Room 351 (66 NSF), Room 352 (28 
NSF), Room 353 (773 NSF)

17,344 0 $2,063,936 $119 $0

Renovation 2026 25 6 Renovating: Apply Painting, Floor 
Cover, Electrical, Plumbing, 
Windows, Lighting, Restrooms, 
HVAC Systems, Bell/Fire Alarm 
Systems, Retrofit for Technology to 
Room 601 (914 NSF), Room 602 
(914 NSF), Room 603 (11 NSF), 
Room 604 (11 NSF), Room 605 (100 
NSF), Room 606 (100 NSF), Room 
607 (49 NSF), Room 608 (49 NSF), 
Room 609 (27 NSF), Room 610 (27 
NSF), Room 611 (60 NSF), Room 
612 (60 NSF), Room 613 (199 NSF), 
Room 614 (199 NSF), Room 615 
(914 NSF), Room 616 (914 NSF), 
Room 617 (27 NSF), Room 618 (27 
NSF), Room 619 (49 NSF), Room 
620 (49 NSF), Room 621 (144 NSF), 
Room 622 (144 NSF), Room 623 (11 
NSF), Room 624 (11 NSF), Room 
625 (107 NSF), Room 626 (101 
NSF), Room 627 (11 NSF), Room 
628 (99 NSF), Room 629 (497 NSF), 
Room 630 (204 NSF), Room 630A 
(18 NSF), Room 631 (115 NSF), 
Room 632 (176 NSF), Room 633 
(1050 NSF), Room 634 (13 NSF), 

33,200 0 $3,950,800 $119 $0

PAGE:202 of 253 Report Date: 6/8/2021 10:16:11 AM

EDUCATIONAL PLANT FIVE YEAR SURVEY REPORT

Status:

Active Pending

Survey:

Survey: 7 - Version: 1

District:

10-CLAY COUNTY SCHOOL DISTRICT

Page 745 of 962

DRAFT



Room 635 (1004 NSF), Room 638 
(2120 NSF), Room 638A (32 NSF), 
Room 638B (32 NSF), Room 638C 
(250 NSF), Room 639 (1106 NSF), 
Room 640 (1106 NSF), Room 641 
(11 NSF), Room 642 (11 NSF), 
Room 643 (121 NSF), Room 643A 
(18 NSF), Room 644 (121 NSF), 
Room 644A (18 NSF), Room 645 
(81 NSF), Room 646 (81 NSF), 
Room 647 (168 NSF), Room 648 
(168 NSF), Room 649 (1226 NSF), 
Room 650 (1226 NSF), Room 651 
(81 NSF), Room 652 (81 NSF), 
Room 653 (121 NSF), Room 653A 
(18 NSF), Room 654 (121 NSF), 
Room 654A (18 NSF), Room 655 
(11 NSF), Room 656 (11 NSF), 
Room 657 (1226 NSF), Room 658 
(1226 NSF), Room 659 (11 NSF), 
Room 660 (11 NSF), Room 661 (121 
NSF), Room 661A (18 NSF), Room 
662 (121 NSF), Room 662A (18 
NSF), Room 663 (81 NSF), Room 
664 (81 NSF), Room 665 (168 NSF), 
Room 666 (168 NSF), Room 667 
(1106 NSF), Room 668 (1106 NSF), 
Room 669 (81 NSF), Room 670 (81 
NSF), Room 671 (121 NSF), Room 
671A (18 NSF), Room 672 (121 
NSF), Room 672A (18 NSF), Room 
673 (11 NSF), Room 674 (11 NSF), 
Room 675 (48 NSF), Room 676 
(1240 NSF), Room 676A (58 NSF), 
Room 676B (144 NSF), Room 676C 
(12 NSF), Room 676D (148 NSF), 
Room 676E (116 NSF), Room 676F 
(19 NSF), Room 677 (13 NSF), 
Room 679 (986 NSF), Room 680 
(80 NSF), Room 681 (91 NSF), 
Room 682 (82 NSF), Room 682A 
(52 NSF), Room 683 (69 NSF), 
Room 684 (982 NSF), Room 684A 
(68 NSF), Room 684B (68 NSF), 
Room 684C (50 NSF), Room 685 
(13 NSF), Room 686 (82 NSF), 
Room 686A (68 NSF), Room 687 
(137 NSF), Room 687A (52 NSF), 
Room 687B (156 NSF), Room 688 
(774 NSF), Room 688A (160 NSF), 
Room 688B (40 NSF), Room 689 
(1130 NSF), Room 689A (158 NSF), 
Room 690 (1135 NSF), Room 690A 
(47 NSF), Room 690B (306 NSF), 
Room 690C (104 NSF), Room 690D 
(104 NSF), Room 690E (104 NSF), 
Room 690F (95 NSF), Room 690G 
(65 NSF), Room 691 (942 NSF), 
Room 693 (223 NSF), Room 695 
(56 NSF), Room 697 (236 NSF)

PAGE:203 of 253 Report Date: 6/8/2021 10:16:11 AM

EDUCATIONAL PLANT FIVE YEAR SURVEY REPORT

Status:

Active Pending

Survey:

Survey: 7 - Version: 1

District:

10-CLAY COUNTY SCHOOL DISTRICT

Page 746 of 962

DRAFT



RIDGEVIEW SENIOR 
HIGH

Parcel Building Description Total NSF Change In 
Station Count

Calculated 
Cost

Cost Per 
NSF

Cost Per 
Station

Renovation 2026 25 7 Renovating: Apply Painting, Floor 
Cover, Electrical, Plumbing, 
Windows, Lighting, Restrooms, 
HVAC Systems, Bell/Fire Alarm 
Systems, Retrofit for Technology to 
Room 701 (1476 NSF), Room 702 
(181 NSF), Room 703 (69 NSF), 
Room 704 (105 NSF), Room 705 
(2038 NSF), Room 705A (70 NSF), 
Room 705B (70 NSF), Room 706 
(777 NSF), Room 707 (154 NSF), 
Room 708 (98 NSF), Room 709 (56 
NSF), Room 710 (872 NSF), Room 
711 (196 NSF), Room 712 (80 NSF), 
Room 713 (86 NSF), Room 714 
(1476 NSF), Room 715 (158 NSF), 
Room 716 (158 NSF), Room 717 
(105 NSF), Room 718 (174 NSF), 
Room 719 (174 NSF), Room 720 
(220 NSF), Room 721 (168 NSF), 
Room 722 (158 NSF), Room 723 
(100 NSF), Room 724 (1486 NSF)

10,705 0 $1,273,895 $119 $0

Renovation 2026 25 8 Renovating: Apply Painting, Floor 
Cover, Electrical, Plumbing, 
Windows, Lighting, Restrooms, 
HVAC Systems, Bell/Fire Alarm 
Systems, Retrofit for Technology to 
Room 801 (482 NSF), Room 802 
(50 NSF), Room 803 (50 NSF), 
Room 804 (1229 NSF), Room 805 
(157 NSF), Room 806 (105 NSF), 
Room 807 (154 NSF), Room 808 
(110 NSF), Room 809 (419 NSF), 
Room 810 (304 NSF), Room 811 
(110 NSF), Room 812 (70 NSF), 
Room 813 (56 NSF), Room 814 
(1985 NSF), Room 815 (188 NSF), 
Room 816 (109 NSF), Room 817 
(57 NSF), Room 818 (305 NSF), 
Room 819 (119 NSF), Room 820 (70 
NSF), Room 821 (70 NSF), Room 
822 (425 NSF), Room 823 (190 
NSF), Room 824 (167 NSF), Room 
825 (150 NSF), Room 826 (97 NSF), 
Room 827 (118 NSF), Room 828 
(189 NSF), Room 829 (80 NSF), 
Room 830 (149 NSF)

7,764 0 $923,916 $119 $0

PAGE:204 of 253 Report Date: 6/8/2021 10:16:11 AM

EDUCATIONAL PLANT FIVE YEAR SURVEY REPORT

Status:

Active Pending

Survey:

Survey: 7 - Version: 1

District:

10-CLAY COUNTY SCHOOL DISTRICT

Page 747 of 962

DRAFT



RIDGEVIEW SENIOR 
HIGH

Parcel Building Description Total NSF Change In 
Station Count

Calculated 
Cost

Cost Per 
NSF

Cost Per 
Station

Renovation 2026 25 9 Renovating: Apply Painting, Floor 
Cover, Electrical, Plumbing, 
Windows, Lighting, Restrooms, 
HVAC Systems, Bell/Fire Alarm 
Systems, Retrofit for Technology to 
Room 901 (593 NSF), Room 902 
(150 NSF), Room 903 (439 NSF), 
Room 904 (520 NSF), Room 905 
(96 NSF), Room 906 (78 NSF), 
Room 907 (130 NSF), Room 908 
(179 NSF), Room 909 (30 NSF), 
Room 910 (784 NSF), Room 911 
(13400 NSF), Room 914 (2925 
NSF), Room 916 (1569 NSF), Room 
917 (350 NSF), Room 918 (230 
NSF), Room 918A (50 NSF), Room 
919 (944 NSF), Room 920A (31 
NSF), Room 920B (90 NSF), Room 
921 (396 NSF), Room 922 (50 NSF), 
Room 923 (50 NSF), Room 924 
(1220 NSF), Room 925 (964 NSF), 
Room 926 (119 NSF), Room 927 
(120 NSF), Room 928 (170 NSF), 
Room 928B (7 NSF), Room 929 (25 
NSF), Room 930 (1241 NSF), Room 
931 (309 NSF), Room 932 (360 
NSF), Room 933 (129 NSF), Room 
934 (208 NSF), Room 935 (39 NSF), 
Room 936 (208 NSF), Room 937 
(39 NSF), Room 938 (118 NSF), 
Room 939 (283 NSF), Room 940 
(68 NSF), Room 941 (1350 NSF), 
Room 942 (72 NSF), Room 950 (69 
NSF), Room 951 (76 NSF), Room 
952 (1195 NSF)

31,473 0 $3,745,287 $119 $0

PAGE:205 of 253 Report Date: 6/8/2021 10:16:11 AM

EDUCATIONAL PLANT FIVE YEAR SURVEY REPORT

Status:

Active Pending

Survey:

Survey: 7 - Version: 1

District:

10-CLAY COUNTY SCHOOL DISTRICT

Page 748 of 962

DRAFT



RIDGEVIEW SENIOR 
HIGH

Parcel Building Description Total NSF Change In 
Station Count

Calculated 
Cost

Cost Per 
NSF

Cost Per 
Station

Renovation 2026 25 10 Renovating: Apply Painting, Floor 
Cover, Electrical, Plumbing, 
Windows, Lighting, Restrooms, 
HVAC Systems, Bell/Fire Alarm 
Systems, Retrofit for Technology to 
Room 001 (250 NSF), Room 002 
(136 NSF), Room 003 (234 NSF), 
Room 004 (1818 NSF), Room 005 
(204 NSF), Room 006 (688 NSF), 
Room 007 (329 NSF), Room 008 
(151 NSF), Room 009 (50 NSF), 
Room 010 (89 NSF), Room 011 (204 
NSF), Room 012 (688 NSF), Room 
013 (1820 NSF), Room 014 (252 
NSF), Room 015 (138 NSF), Room 
016 (236 NSF), Room 017 (2260 
NSF), Room 018 (266 NSF), Room 
019 (250 NSF), Room 020 (103 
NSF), Room 021 (1730 NSF), Room 
022 (150 NSF), Room 023 (150 
NSF), Room 024 (168 NSF), Room 
025 (168 NSF), Room 026 (110 
NSF), Room 027 (90 NSF), Room 
028 (185 NSF), Room 029 (74 NSF), 
Room 029A (11 NSF), Room 030 
(70 NSF), Room 031 (1660 NSF), 
Room 032 (151 NSF), Room 033 
(151 NSF), Room 034 (54 NSF), 
Room 035 (74 NSF), Room 036 
(750 NSF), Room 037 (795 NSF), 
Room 038 (150 NSF), Room 039 
(150 NSF)

17,007 0 $2,023,833 $119 $0

PAGE:206 of 253 Report Date: 6/8/2021 10:16:11 AM

EDUCATIONAL PLANT FIVE YEAR SURVEY REPORT

Status:

Active Pending

Survey:

Survey: 7 - Version: 1

District:

10-CLAY COUNTY SCHOOL DISTRICT

Page 749 of 962

DRAFT



District Name: CLAY COUNTY SCHOOL DISTRICT

Survey: Number 7 - Version 1

Facility Name: ROBERT M PATERSON ELEMENTARY

Address: 5400 PINE AVENUE, ORANGE PARK

Existing Recommended

Capital Outlay 
Classification

1 - SCHOOL RECOMMENDED FOR 
CONTINUED USE

1 - SCHOOL RECOMMENDED FOR 
CONTINUED USE

Facility Use ELEMENTARY ELEMENTARY

Low Grade PRE-K E S E PRE-K E S E

High Grade GRADE 6 GRADE 6

Comments

Existing
Student Stations 

Added/Reduced(+ or -) Recommended

Perm. Stations 413 0 413

Reloc. Stations 692 -36 656

Mod. Stations 0 0 0

Total Stations 1,105 -36 1069

Utilization Factor 100% 100%

School Capacity 1,105 1069

COFTE Student 
Membership 1,119 989

Survey Annotation

Renovate Buildings 1-6. 
Remove 2 portables in excess of 20 years of age.
Correct Site Drainage Problems.                                 
Construct Additional Covered Walkways Where Needed.   
(Other)
District-Wide Recommendations for this facility are: Improve Security Fencing and Lighting.

New Site Cost Site 
Expansion

Site 
Development

Site 
Improvement

Remodeling 
Cost

Renovation 
Cost

New 
Construction 

Cost

$0 $0 $0 $45,000 $18,816 $6,274,308 $0

Estimated Total Project Cost $6,338,124

PAGE:207 of 253 Report Date: 6/8/2021 10:16:11 AM

EDUCATIONAL PLANT FIVE YEAR SURVEY REPORT

Status:

Active Pending

Survey:

Survey: 7 - Version: 1

District:

10-CLAY COUNTY SCHOOL DISTRICT

Page 750 of 962

DRAFT



ROBERT M PATERSON 
ELEMENTARY

Parcel Building Description Total NSF Change In 
Station Count

Calculated 
Cost

Cost Per 
NSF

Cost Per 
Station

Remodeling 2026 27 92 Removed NSF (1568), Added NSF 
(0), Difference NSF (1568), Percent 
(100%), Removed Stations (36), 
Added Stations (0) Remodeling: 
Adding  and Removing Room 030 
(728 NSF), Room 030A (29 NSF), 
Room 045 (750 NSF), Room 045A 
(25 NSF), Room 045B (36 NSF)

-1,568 -36 $18,816 $12 $0

Renovation 2026 27 1 Renovating: Apply Painting, Floor 
Cover, Electrical, Plumbing, 
Windows, Lighting, Restrooms, 
HVAC Systems, Bell/Fire Alarm 
Systems, Retrofit for Technology to 
Room 101 (399 NSF), Room 102 
(245 NSF), Room 102A (28 NSF), 
Room 103 (235 NSF), Room 104 
(181 NSF), Room 105 (155 NSF), 
Room 106 (119 NSF), Room 107 
(255 NSF), Room 108 (460 NSF), 
Room 109 (330 NSF), Room 109A 
(35 NSF), Room 109B (35 NSF), 
Room 110 (78 NSF), Room 111 (315 
NSF), Room 112 (140 NSF), Room 
113 (120 NSF), Room 114 (126 
NSF), Room 115 (76 NSF), Room 
116 (40 NSF), Room 117 (116 NSF), 
Room 118 (58 NSF), Room 119 (140 
NSF), Room 120 (280 NSF), Room 
121 (270 NSF), Room 122 (240 
NSF), Room 124 (100 NSF), Room 
125 (532 NSF), Room 126 (380 
NSF), Room 127 (306 NSF), Room 
129 (184 NSF), Room 130 (84 NSF), 
Room 131 (70 NSF), Room 132 
(275 NSF), Room 133 (62 NSF), 
Room 134 (322 NSF), Room 135 
(377 NSF), Room 136 (213 NSF), 
Room 137 (142 NSF), Room 138 
(171 NSF), Room 139 (151 NSF), 
Room 140 (772 NSF), Room 142 
(3226 NSF), Room 143 (279 NSF), 
Room 144 (321 NSF), Room 145 
(238 NSF), Room 146 (579 NSF)

13,260 0 $1,219,920 $92 $0

PAGE:208 of 253 Report Date: 6/8/2021 10:16:11 AM

EDUCATIONAL PLANT FIVE YEAR SURVEY REPORT

Status:

Active Pending

Survey:

Survey: 7 - Version: 1

District:

10-CLAY COUNTY SCHOOL DISTRICT

Page 751 of 962

DRAFT



ROBERT M PATERSON 
ELEMENTARY

Parcel Building Description Total NSF Change In 
Station Count

Calculated 
Cost

Cost Per 
NSF

Cost Per 
Station

Renovation 2026 27 2 Renovating: Apply Painting, Floor 
Cover, Electrical, Plumbing, 
Windows, Lighting, Restrooms, 
HVAC Systems, Bell/Fire Alarm 
Systems, Retrofit for Technology to 
Room 201 (5344 NSF), Room 202 
(71 NSF), Room 203 (36 NSF), 
Room 204 (24 NSF), Room 205 
(215 NSF), Room 205A (31 NSF), 
Room 206 (123 NSF), Room 207 
(203 NSF), Room 208 (393 NSF), 
Room 209 (617 NSF), Room 209A 
(36 NSF), Room 210 (198 NSF), 
Room 211 (114 NSF), Room 212 
(235 NSF), Room 212A (31 NSF), 
Room 213 (68 NSF), Room 214 (34 
NSF), Room 215 (1006 NSF), Room 
216 (409 NSF), Room 217 (633 
NSF), Room 218 (822 NSF), Room 
219 (1348 NSF), Room 220 (224 
NSF), Room 221 (100 NSF), Room 
222 (114 NSF), Room 223 (112 
NSF), Room 224 (112 NSF), Room 
225 (76 NSF), Room 226 (331 NSF), 
Room 227 (16 NSF), Room 228 (80 
NSF), Room 229 (38 NSF), Room 
230 (82 NSF), Room 231 (223 NSF), 
Room 232 (93 NSF), Room 233 
(196 NSF), Room 234 (608 NSF), 
Room 235 (32 NSF)

14,428 0 $1,327,376 $92 $0

Renovation 2026 27 3 Renovating: Apply Painting, Floor 
Cover, Electrical, Plumbing, 
Windows, Lighting, Restrooms, 
HVAC Systems, Bell/Fire Alarm 
Systems, Retrofit for Technology to 
Room 300 (728 NSF), Room 301 
(822 NSF), Room 302 (218 NSF), 
Room 303 (102 NSF), Room 304 
(32 NSF), Room 305 (822 NSF), 
Room 306 (102 NSF), Room 307 
(32 NSF), Room 308 (120 NSF), 
Room 309 (115 NSF), Room 310 (32 
NSF), Room 311 (906 NSF), Room 
312 (202 NSF), Room 313 (97 NSF), 
Room 313A (37 NSF), Room 313B 
(62 NSF), Room 313C (60 NSF), 
Room 313D (29 NSF), Room 314 
(179 NSF), Room 315 (906 NSF)

5,603 0 $515,476 $92 $0

PAGE:209 of 253 Report Date: 6/8/2021 10:16:11 AM

EDUCATIONAL PLANT FIVE YEAR SURVEY REPORT

Status:

Active Pending

Survey:

Survey: 7 - Version: 1

District:

10-CLAY COUNTY SCHOOL DISTRICT

Page 752 of 962

DRAFT



ROBERT M PATERSON 
ELEMENTARY

Parcel Building Description Total NSF Change In 
Station Count

Calculated 
Cost

Cost Per 
NSF

Cost Per 
Station

Renovation 2026 27 4 Renovating: Apply Painting, Floor 
Cover, Electrical, Plumbing, 
Windows, Lighting, Restrooms, 
HVAC Systems, Bell/Fire Alarm 
Systems, Retrofit for Technology to 
Room 400 (1800 NSF), Room 401 
(987 NSF), Room 402 (176 NSF), 
Room 403 (110 NSF), Room 404 (28 
NSF), Room 405 (987 NSF), Room 
406 (110 NSF), Room 407 (28 NSF), 
Room 408 (987 NSF), Room 409 
(176 NSF), Room 410 (110 NSF), 
Room 411 (28 NSF), Room 412 (987 
NSF), Room 413 (110 NSF), Room 
414 (28 NSF), Room 415 (987 NSF), 
Room 416 (176 NSF), Room 417 
(110 NSF), Room 418 (28 NSF), 
Room 419 (978 NSF), Room 420 
(110 NSF), Room 421 (28 NSF), 
Room 422 (987 NSF), Room 423 
(176 NSF), Room 424 (110 NSF), 
Room 425 (28 NSF), Room 426 
(978 NSF), Room 427 (110 NSF), 
Room 428 (28 NSF), Room 429 (78 
NSF), Room 430 (49 NSF), Room 
431 (28 NSF)

11,641 0 $1,070,972 $92 $0

Renovation 2026 27 5 Renovating: Apply Painting, Floor 
Cover, Electrical, Plumbing, 
Windows, Lighting, Restrooms, 
HVAC Systems, Bell/Fire Alarm 
Systems, Retrofit for Technology to 
Room 500 (1788 NSF), Room 501 
(987 NSF), Room 502 (176 NSF), 
Room 503 (110 NSF), Room 504 (28 
NSF), Room 505 (987 NSF), Room 
506 (110 NSF), Room 507 (28 NSF), 
Room 508 (987 NSF), Room 509 
(176 NSF), Room 510 (110 NSF), 
Room 511 (28 NSF), Room 512 (987 
NSF), Room 513 (110 NSF), Room 
514 (28 NSF), Room 515 (987 NSF), 
Room 516 (176 NSF), Room 517 
(110 NSF), Room 518 (28 NSF), 
Room 519 (978 NSF), Room 520 
(110 NSF), Room 521 (28 NSF), 
Room 522 (987 NSF), Room 523 
(176 NSF), Room 524 (110 NSF), 
Room 525 (28 NSF), Room 526 
(978 NSF), Room 527 (110 NSF), 
Room 528 (28 NSF), Room 529 (78 
NSF), Room 530 (49 NSF), Room 
531 (28 NSF)

11,629 0 $1,069,868 $92 $0

PAGE:210 of 253 Report Date: 6/8/2021 10:16:11 AM

EDUCATIONAL PLANT FIVE YEAR SURVEY REPORT

Status:

Active Pending

Survey:

Survey: 7 - Version: 1

District:

10-CLAY COUNTY SCHOOL DISTRICT

Page 753 of 962

DRAFT



ROBERT M PATERSON 
ELEMENTARY

Parcel Building Description Total NSF Change In 
Station Count

Calculated 
Cost

Cost Per 
NSF

Cost Per 
Station

Renovation 2026 27 6 Renovating: Apply Painting, Floor 
Cover, Electrical, Plumbing, 
Windows, Lighting, Restrooms, 
HVAC Systems, Bell/Fire Alarm 
Systems, Retrofit for Technology to 
Room 600 (1797 NSF), Room 601 
(987 NSF), Room 602 (176 NSF), 
Room 603 (110 NSF), Room 604 (28 
NSF), Room 605 (987 NSF), Room 
606 (110 NSF), Room 607 (28 NSF), 
Room 608 (987 NSF), Room 609 
(176 NSF), Room 610 (110 NSF), 
Room 611 (28 NSF), Room 612 (987 
NSF), Room 613 (110 NSF), Room 
614 (28 NSF), Room 615 (987 NSF), 
Room 616 (176 NSF), Room 617 
(110 NSF), Room 618 (28 NSF), 
Room 619 (978 NSF), Room 620 
(110 NSF), Room 621 (28 NSF), 
Room 622 (987 NSF), Room 623 
(176 NSF), Room 624 (110 NSF), 
Room 625 (28 NSF), Room 626 
(978 NSF), Room 627 (110 NSF), 
Room 628 (28 NSF), Room 629 (78 
NSF), Room 630 (49 NSF), Room 
631 (28 NSF)

11,638 0 $1,070,696 $92 $0

PAGE:211 of 253 Report Date: 6/8/2021 10:16:11 AM

EDUCATIONAL PLANT FIVE YEAR SURVEY REPORT

Status:

Active Pending

Survey:

Survey: 7 - Version: 1

District:

10-CLAY COUNTY SCHOOL DISTRICT

Page 754 of 962

DRAFT



District Name: CLAY COUNTY SCHOOL DISTRICT

Survey: Number 7 - Version 1

Facility Name: S BRYAN JENNINGS ELEMENTARY

Address: 215 CORONA DRIVE, ORANGE PARK

Existing Recommended

Capital Outlay 
Classification

1 - SCHOOL RECOMMENDED FOR 
CONTINUED USE

1 - SCHOOL RECOMMENDED FOR 
CONTINUED USE

Facility Use ELEMENTARY ELEMENTARY

Low Grade PRE-K E S E PRE-K E S E

High Grade GRADE 6 GRADE 6

Comments

Existing
Student Stations 

Added/Reduced(+ or -) Recommended

Perm. Stations 397 95 492

Reloc. Stations 279 -164 115

Mod. Stations 0 0 0

Total Stations 676 -69 607

Utilization Factor 100% 100%

School Capacity 676 607

COFTE Student 
Membership 478 560

Survey Annotation

Renovate Buildings 1-9. 
Construct Elementary Covered Play Area, (1) Elem Art, (1) Elem Music, (1) ESE PK, (1) ESE 
FT (2) Primary Classroom and (2) Intermediate Classrooms.
Remove 8 portables in excess of 20 years of age.
Correct Site Drainage Problems.                                 
Construct Additional Covered Walkways Where Needed.   
(Other)
District-Wide Recommendations for this facility are: Improve Security Fencing and Lighting.

New Site Cost Site 
Expansion

Site 
Development

Site 
Improvement

Remodeling 
Cost

Renovation 
Cost

New 
Construction 

Cost

$0 $0 $0 $45,000 $71,868 $4,088,204 $2,414,805

Estimated Total Project Cost $6,619,877

PAGE:212 of 253 Report Date: 6/8/2021 10:16:11 AM

EDUCATIONAL PLANT FIVE YEAR SURVEY REPORT

Status:

Active Pending

Survey:

Survey: 7 - Version: 1

District:

10-CLAY COUNTY SCHOOL DISTRICT

Page 755 of 962

DRAFT



S BRYAN JENNINGS 
ELEMENTARY

Parcel Building Description Total NSF Change In 
Station Count

Calculated 
Cost

Cost Per 
NSF

Cost Per 
Station

New Construction 2026 New Construction: Adding 2 units of 
PRIMARY CLASSROOM (K-3) (882 
NSF), 2 units of 
INTERMEDIATE/MIDDLE 
CLASSROOM (4-8) (858 NSF), 1 
unit of ELEMENTARY COVERED 
PLAY AREA (500 NSF), 1 unit of 
MUSIC - ELEMENTARY (1560 
NSF), 1 unit of ART - ELEMENTARY 
(1110 NSF), 1 unit of E S E FULL-
TIME (950 NSF), 1 unit of E S E 
PRE-K (475 NSF)

10,105 95 $2,414,805 $239 $25,419

Remodeling 2026 15 92 Removed NSF (5989), Added NSF 
(0), Difference NSF (5989), Percent 
(100%), Removed Stations (164), 
Added Stations (0) Remodeling: 
Adding  and Removing Room 026 
(735 NSF), Room 027 (731 NSF), 
Room 030 (731 NSF), Room 032 
(778 NSF), Room 033 (750 NSF), 
Room 033A (25 NSF), Room 035 
(731 NSF), Room 036 (733 NSF), 
Room 037 (750 NSF), Room 037A 
(25 NSF)

-5,989 -164 $71,868 $12 $0

Renovation 2026 15 1 Renovating: Apply Painting, Floor 
Cover, Electrical, Plumbing, 
Windows, Lighting, Restrooms, 
HVAC Systems, Bell/Fire Alarm 
Systems, Retrofit for Technology to 
Room 029A (156 NSF), Room 029B 
(120 NSF), Room 030A (350 NSF), 
Room 030B (177 NSF), Room 031A 
(1321 NSF), Room 031B (2343 
NSF), Room 031C (363 NSF), Room 
031D (163 NSF), Room 031E (92 
NSF), Room 031F (9 NSF), Room 
031G (235 NSF), Room 031H (55 
NSF), Room 031J (105 NSF), Room 
031K (42 NSF), Room 031Y (222 
NSF), Room 032A (2001 NSF), 
Room 032B (790 NSF), Room 033A 
(155 NSF), Room 033B (46 NSF), 
Room 034A (156 NSF), Room 034B 
(46 NSF), Room 034C (157 NSF), 
Room 034D (44 NSF), Room 034E 
(44 NSF), Room 035A (91 NSF), 
Room 035B (94 NSF), Room 035C 
(32 NSF), Room 035D (32 NSF)

9,441 0 $868,572 $92 $0

Renovation 2026 15 2 Renovating: Apply Painting, Floor 
Cover, Electrical, Plumbing, 
Windows, Lighting, Restrooms, 
HVAC Systems, Bell/Fire Alarm 
Systems, Retrofit for Technology to 
Room 036A (218 NSF), Room 036B 
(96 NSF), Room 037A (2812 NSF), 
Room 037B (356 NSF), Room 037C 
(719 NSF), Room 038A (252 NSF), 
Room 039A (56 NSF), Room 040A 
(72 NSF)

4,581 0 $421,452 $92 $0

PAGE:213 of 253 Report Date: 6/8/2021 10:16:11 AM

EDUCATIONAL PLANT FIVE YEAR SURVEY REPORT

Status:

Active Pending

Survey:

Survey: 7 - Version: 1

District:

10-CLAY COUNTY SCHOOL DISTRICT

Page 756 of 962

DRAFT



S BRYAN JENNINGS 
ELEMENTARY

Parcel Building Description Total NSF Change In 
Station Count

Calculated 
Cost

Cost Per 
NSF

Cost Per 
Station

Renovation 2026 15 3 Renovating: Apply Painting, Floor 
Cover, Electrical, Plumbing, 
Windows, Lighting, Restrooms, 
HVAC Systems, Bell/Fire Alarm 
Systems, Retrofit for Technology to 
Room 041 (210 NSF), Room 041A 
(322 NSF), Room 041B (9 NSF), 
Room 041C (9 NSF), Room 041D 
(16 NSF), Room 041E (122 NSF), 
Room 041F (132 NSF), Room 041G 
(130 NSF), Room 041H (147 NSF), 
Room 042 (33 NSF), Room 042A 
(29 NSF), Room 042B (15 NSF), 
Room 042C (18 NSF), Room 043A 
(334 NSF), Room 043C (27 NSF), 
Room 043D (35 NSF), Room 043F 
(61 NSF), Room 043G (10 NSF), 
Room 044 (99 NSF), Room 044A 
(149 NSF), Room 044B (148 NSF), 
Room 045A (142 NSF), Room 046A 
(445 NSF), Room 047A (251 NSF), 
Room 047B (40 NSF), Room 048A 
(64 NSF)

2,997 0 $275,724 $92 $0

Renovation 2026 15 4 Renovating: Apply Painting, Floor 
Cover, Electrical, Plumbing, 
Windows, Lighting, Restrooms, 
HVAC Systems, Bell/Fire Alarm 
Systems, Retrofit for Technology to 
Room 001A (732 NSF), Room 001B 
(60 NSF), Room 001C (16 NSF), 
Room 001D (15 NSF), Room 001E 
(187 NSF), Room 001F (10 NSF), 
Room 001G (10 NSF), Room 001K 
(27 NSF), Room 001Y (20 NSF), 
Room 002A (732 NSF), Room 002B 
(59 NSF), Room 002C (16 NSF), 
Room 002D (15 NSF), Room 002J 
(8 NSF), Room 002K (19 NSF), 
Room 002Y (20 NSF), Room 003A 
(782 NSF), Room 003B (59 NSF), 
Room 003C (16 NSF), Room 003D 
(15 NSF), Room 003K (27 NSF), 
Room 003Y (20 NSF), Room 004A 
(732 NSF), Room 004B (60 NSF), 
Room 004C (16 NSF), Room 004D 
(15 NSF), Room 004E (187 NSF), 
Room 004F (10 NSF), Room 004G 
(10 NSF), Room 004J (8 NSF), 
Room 004K (18 NSF), Room 004Y 
(20 NSF), Room 005A (77 NSF), 
Room 005B (411 NSF), Room 005C 
(154 NSF)

4,583 0 $421,636 $92 $0

PAGE:214 of 253 Report Date: 6/8/2021 10:16:11 AM

EDUCATIONAL PLANT FIVE YEAR SURVEY REPORT

Status:

Active Pending

Survey:

Survey: 7 - Version: 1

District:

10-CLAY COUNTY SCHOOL DISTRICT

Page 757 of 962

DRAFT



S BRYAN JENNINGS 
ELEMENTARY

Parcel Building Description Total NSF Change In 
Station Count

Calculated 
Cost

Cost Per 
NSF

Cost Per 
Station

Renovation 2026 15 5 Renovating: Apply Painting, Floor 
Cover, Electrical, Plumbing, 
Windows, Lighting, Restrooms, 
HVAC Systems, Bell/Fire Alarm 
Systems, Retrofit for Technology to 
Room 005A (732 NSF), Room 005B 
(57 NSF), Room 005C (16 NSF), 
Room 005D (15 NSF), Room 005E 
(187 NSF), Room 005F (10 NSF), 
Room 005G (10 NSF), Room 005K 
(27 NSF), Room 005Y (20 NSF), 
Room 006A (732 NSF), Room 006B 
(62 NSF), Room 006C (16 NSF), 
Room 006D (15 NSF), Room 006J 
(7 NSF), Room 006K (17 NSF), 
Room 006Y (20 NSF), Room 007A 
(732 NSF), Room 007B (60 NSF), 
Room 007C (16 NSF), Room 007D 
(15 NSF), Room 007K (27 NSF), 
Room 007Y (20 NSF), Room 008A 
(732 NSF), Room 008B (61 NSF), 
Room 008C (16 NSF), Room 008D 
(15 NSF), Room 008E (187 NSF), 
Room 008F (10 NSF), Room 008G 
(10 NSF), Room 008J (6 NSF), 
Room 008K (18 NSF), Room 008Y 
(20 NSF), Room 009A (77 NSF), 
Room 009B (411 NSF), Room 009C 
(154 NSF)

4,530 0 $416,760 $92 $0

Renovation 2026 15 6 Renovating: Apply Painting, Floor 
Cover, Electrical, Plumbing, 
Windows, Lighting, Restrooms, 
HVAC Systems, Bell/Fire Alarm 
Systems, Retrofit for Technology to 
Room 009A (732 NSF), Room 009B 
(60 NSF), Room 009C (16 NSF), 
Room 009D (15 NSF), Room 009E 
(187 NSF), Room 009F (10 NSF), 
Room 009G (10 NSF), Room 009K 
(28 NSF), Room 009Y (20 NSF), 
Room 010A (732 NSF), Room 010B 
(60 NSF), Room 010C (16 NSF), 
Room 010D (15 NSF), Room 010J 
(8 NSF), Room 010K (14 NSF), 
Room 010Y (20 NSF), Room 011A 
(732 NSF), Room 011B (57 NSF), 
Room 011C (16 NSF), Room 011D 
(15 NSF), Room 011K (28 NSF), 
Room 011Y (20 NSF), Room 012A 
(732 NSF), Room 012B (60 NSF), 
Room 012C (16 NSF), Room 012D 
(15 NSF), Room 012E (187 NSF), 
Room 012F (10 NSF), Room 012G 
(10 NSF), Room 012J (9 NSF), 
Room 012K (19 NSF), Room 012Y 
(20 NSF), Room 013A (77 NSF), 
Room 013B (411 NSF), Room 013C 
(154 NSF)

4,531 0 $416,852 $92 $0

PAGE:215 of 253 Report Date: 6/8/2021 10:16:11 AM

EDUCATIONAL PLANT FIVE YEAR SURVEY REPORT

Status:

Active Pending

Survey:

Survey: 7 - Version: 1

District:

10-CLAY COUNTY SCHOOL DISTRICT

Page 758 of 962

DRAFT



S BRYAN JENNINGS 
ELEMENTARY

Parcel Building Description Total NSF Change In 
Station Count

Calculated 
Cost

Cost Per 
NSF

Cost Per 
Station

Renovation 2026 15 7 Renovating: Apply Painting, Floor 
Cover, Electrical, Plumbing, 
Windows, Lighting, Restrooms, 
HVAC Systems, Bell/Fire Alarm 
Systems, Retrofit for Technology to 
Room 013A (732 NSF), Room 013B 
(60 NSF), Room 013C (16 NSF), 
Room 013D (15 NSF), Room 013E 
(187 NSF), Room 013F (10 NSF), 
Room 013G (10 NSF), Room 013K 
(27 NSF), Room 013Y (20 NSF), 
Room 014A (732 NSF), Room 014B 
(60 NSF), Room 014C (16 NSF), 
Room 014D (15 NSF), Room 014J 
(8 NSF), Room 014K (18 NSF), 
Room 014Y (20 NSF), Room 015A 
(732 NSF), Room 015B (60 NSF), 
Room 015C (16 NSF), Room 015D 
(15 NSF), Room 015K (27 NSF), 
Room 015Y (20 NSF), Room 016A 
(732 NSF), Room 016B (60 NSF), 
Room 016C (16 NSF), Room 016D 
(15 NSF), Room 016E (187 NSF), 
Room 016F (10 NSF), Room 016G 
(10 NSF), Room 016J (8 NSF), 
Room 016K (19 NSF), Room 016Y 
(20 NSF), Room 017A (77 NSF), 
Room 017B (411 NSF), Room 017C 
(154 NSF)

4,535 0 $417,220 $92 $0

Renovation 2026 15 8 Renovating: Apply Painting, Floor 
Cover, Electrical, Plumbing, 
Windows, Lighting, Restrooms, 
HVAC Systems, Bell/Fire Alarm 
Systems, Retrofit for Technology to 
Room 017A (782 NSF), Room 017B 
(60 NSF), Room 017C (16 NSF), 
Room 017D (15 NSF), Room 017E 
(187 NSF), Room 017F (10 NSF), 
Room 017G (10 NSF), Room 017K 
(27 NSF), Room 017Y (20 NSF), 
Room 018A (732 NSF), Room 018B 
(60 NSF), Room 018C (16 NSF), 
Room 018D (15 NSF), Room 018J 
(7 NSF), Room 018K (18 NSF), 
Room 018Y (20 NSF), Room 019A 
(732 NSF), Room 019B (61 NSF), 
Room 019C (16 NSF), Room 019D 
(15 NSF), Room 019K (27 NSF), 
Room 019Y (20 NSF), Room 020A 
(732 NSF), Room 020B (60 NSF), 
Room 020C (16 NSF), Room 020D 
(15 NSF), Room 020E (187 NSF), 
Room 020F (10 NSF), Room 020G 
(10 NSF), Room 020J (7 NSF), 
Room 020K (18 NSF), Room 020Y 
(20 NSF), Room 021A (77 NSF), 
Room 021B (411 NSF), Room 021C 
(154 NSF)

4,583 0 $421,636 $92 $0

PAGE:216 of 253 Report Date: 6/8/2021 10:16:11 AM

EDUCATIONAL PLANT FIVE YEAR SURVEY REPORT

Status:

Active Pending

Survey:

Survey: 7 - Version: 1

District:

10-CLAY COUNTY SCHOOL DISTRICT

Page 759 of 962

DRAFT



S BRYAN JENNINGS 
ELEMENTARY

Parcel Building Description Total NSF Change In 
Station Count

Calculated 
Cost

Cost Per 
NSF

Cost Per 
Station

Renovation 2026 15 9 Renovating: Apply Painting, Floor 
Cover, Electrical, Plumbing, 
Windows, Lighting, Restrooms, 
HVAC Systems, Bell/Fire Alarm 
Systems, Retrofit for Technology to 
Room 021A (732 NSF), Room 021B 
(60 NSF), Room 021C (16 NSF), 
Room 021D (15 NSF), Room 021E 
(187 NSF), Room 021F (10 NSF), 
Room 021G (10 NSF), Room 021K 
(28 NSF), Room 021Y (20 NSF), 
Room 022A (732 NSF), Room 022B 
(59 NSF), Room 022C (16 NSF), 
Room 022D (15 NSF), Room 022J 
(8 NSF), Room 022K (18 NSF), 
Room 022Y (20 NSF), Room 023A 
(732 NSF), Room 023B (59 NSF), 
Room 023C (16 NSF), Room 023D 
(15 NSF), Room 023K (27 NSF), 
Room 023Y (20 NSF), Room 024A 
(732 NSF), Room 024B (62 NSF), 
Room 024C (16 NSF), Room 024D 
(15 NSF), Room 024E (187 NSF), 
Room 024F (90 NSF), Room 024G 
(10 NSF), Room 024H (45 NSF), 
Room 024J (8 NSF), Room 024K 
(14 NSF), Room 024Y (20 NSF), 
Room 025A (77 NSF), Room 025B 
(411 NSF), Room 025C (154 NSF)

4,656 0 $428,352 $92 $0

PAGE:217 of 253 Report Date: 6/8/2021 10:16:11 AM

EDUCATIONAL PLANT FIVE YEAR SURVEY REPORT

Status:

Active Pending

Survey:

Survey: 7 - Version: 1

District:

10-CLAY COUNTY SCHOOL DISTRICT

Page 760 of 962

DRAFT



District Name: CLAY COUNTY SCHOOL DISTRICT

Survey: Number 7 - Version 1

Facility Name: SCHOOL BUS GARAGE

Address: 800 CENTER STREET, GREEN COVE SPRINGS

Existing Recommended

Capital Outlay 
Classification

6 - ANCILLARY RECOMMENDED FOR 
CONTINUED USE

6 - ANCILLARY RECOMMENDED FOR 
CONTINUED USE

Facility Use TRANSPORTATION TRANSPORTATION

Low Grade DISTRICT SERVICES DISTRICT SERVICES

High Grade DISTRICT SERVICES DISTRICT SERVICES

Comments

Existing
Student Stations 

Added/Reduced(+ or -) Recommended

Perm. Stations 0 0 0

Reloc. Stations 0 0 0

Mod. Stations 0 0 0

Total Stations 0 0 0

Utilization Factor 0% 0%

School Capacity 0 0

COFTE Student 
Membership 0 0

Survey Annotation No new recommendations.

New Site Cost Site 
Expansion

Site 
Development

Site 
Improvement

Remodeling 
Cost

Renovation 
Cost

New 
Construction 

Cost

$0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0

Estimated Total Project Cost $0

SCHOOL BUS GARAGE Parcel Building Description Total NSF Change In 
Station Count

Calculated 
Cost

Cost Per 
NSF

Cost Per 
Station

 

PAGE:218 of 253 Report Date: 6/8/2021 10:16:11 AM

EDUCATIONAL PLANT FIVE YEAR SURVEY REPORT

Status:

Active Pending

Survey:

Survey: 7 - Version: 1

District:

10-CLAY COUNTY SCHOOL DISTRICT

Page 761 of 962

DRAFT



District Name: CLAY COUNTY SCHOOL DISTRICT

Survey: Number 7 - Version 1

Facility Name: SHADOWLAWN ELEMENTARY

Address: 2945 County Road 218, Green Cove Springs

Existing Recommended

Capital Outlay 
Classification

1 - SCHOOL RECOMMENDED FOR 
CONTINUED USE

1 - SCHOOL RECOMMENDED FOR 
CONTINUED USE

Facility Use ELEMENTARY ELEMENTARY

Low Grade PRE-K E S E PRE-K E S E

High Grade GRADE 6 GRADE 6

Comments

Existing
Student Stations 

Added/Reduced(+ or -) Recommended

Perm. Stations 845 0 845

Reloc. Stations 0 0 0

Mod. Stations 0 0 0

Total Stations 845 0 845

Utilization Factor 100% 100%

School Capacity 845 845

COFTE Student 
Membership 681 813

Survey Annotation

Correct Site Drainage Problems.                                 
Construct Additional Covered Walkways Where Needed.   
(Other)
District-Wide Recommendations for this facility are: Improve Security Fencing and Lighting.

New Site Cost Site 
Expansion

Site 
Development

Site 
Improvement

Remodeling 
Cost

Renovation 
Cost

New 
Construction 

Cost

$0 $0 $0 $45,000 $0 $0 $0

Estimated Total Project Cost $45,000

SHADOWLAWN 
ELEMENTARY

Parcel Building Description Total NSF Change In 
Station Count

Calculated 
Cost

Cost Per 
NSF

Cost Per 
Station

 

PAGE:219 of 253 Report Date: 6/8/2021 10:16:11 AM

EDUCATIONAL PLANT FIVE YEAR SURVEY REPORT

Status:

Active Pending

Survey:

Survey: 7 - Version: 1

District:

10-CLAY COUNTY SCHOOL DISTRICT

Page 762 of 962

DRAFT



District Name: CLAY COUNTY SCHOOL DISTRICT

Survey: Number 7 - Version 1

Facility Name: SUPPORT SERVICES AG LOT

Address: ROBERTS STREET, GREEN COVE SPRINGS

Existing Recommended

Capital Outlay 
Classification

6 - ANCILLARY RECOMMENDED FOR 
CONTINUED USE

6 - ANCILLARY RECOMMENDED FOR 
CONTINUED USE

Facility Use MULTIPLE USE SUPPORT MULTIPLE USE SUPPORT

Low Grade DISTRICT SERVICES DISTRICT SERVICES

High Grade DISTRICT SERVICES DISTRICT SERVICES

Comments

Existing
Student Stations 

Added/Reduced(+ or -) Recommended

Perm. Stations 0 0 0

Reloc. Stations 0 0 0

Mod. Stations 0 0 0

Total Stations 0 0 0

Utilization Factor 0% 0%

School Capacity 0 0

COFTE Student 
Membership 0 0

Survey Annotation No new recommendations.

New Site Cost Site 
Expansion

Site 
Development

Site 
Improvement

Remodeling 
Cost

Renovation 
Cost

New 
Construction 

Cost

$0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0

Estimated Total Project Cost $0

SUPPORT SERVICES AG 
LOT

Parcel Building Description Total NSF Change In 
Station Count

Calculated 
Cost

Cost Per 
NSF

Cost Per 
Station

 

PAGE:220 of 253 Report Date: 6/8/2021 10:16:11 AM

EDUCATIONAL PLANT FIVE YEAR SURVEY REPORT

Status:

Active Pending

Survey:

Survey: 7 - Version: 1

District:

10-CLAY COUNTY SCHOOL DISTRICT

Page 763 of 962

DRAFT



District Name: CLAY COUNTY SCHOOL DISTRICT

Survey: Number 7 - Version 1

Facility Name: SUPPORT SERVICES CENTER

Address: 925 W CENTER STREET, GREEN COVE SPRINGS

Existing Recommended

Capital Outlay 
Classification

6 - ANCILLARY RECOMMENDED FOR 
CONTINUED USE

6 - ANCILLARY RECOMMENDED FOR 
CONTINUED USE

Facility Use MULTIPLE USE SUPPORT MULTIPLE USE SUPPORT

Low Grade DISTRICT SERVICES DISTRICT SERVICES

High Grade DISTRICT SERVICES DISTRICT SERVICES

Comments

Existing
Student Stations 

Added/Reduced(+ or -) Recommended

Perm. Stations 0 0 0

Reloc. Stations 0 0 0

Mod. Stations 0 0 0

Total Stations 0 0 0

Utilization Factor 0% 0%

School Capacity 0 0

COFTE Student 
Membership 0 0

Survey Annotation Renovate Building 1, upstairs only.                                            
Add 50 parking spots.

New Site Cost Site 
Expansion

Site 
Development

Site 
Improvement

Remodeling 
Cost

Renovation 
Cost

New 
Construction 

Cost

$0 $0 $0 $250,000 $0 $240,856 $0

Estimated Total Project Cost $490,856

PAGE:221 of 253 Report Date: 6/8/2021 10:16:11 AM

EDUCATIONAL PLANT FIVE YEAR SURVEY REPORT

Status:

Active Pending

Survey:

Survey: 7 - Version: 1

District:

10-CLAY COUNTY SCHOOL DISTRICT

Page 764 of 962

DRAFT



SUPPORT SERVICES 
CENTER

Parcel Building Description Total NSF Change In 
Station Count

Calculated 
Cost

Cost Per 
NSF

Cost Per 
Station

Renovation 2026 32 1 Renovating: Apply Painting, Floor 
Cover, Electrical, Plumbing, 
Windows, Lighting, Restrooms, 
HVAC Systems, Bell/Fire Alarm 
Systems, Retrofit for Technology to 
Room 021 (373 NSF), Room 021A 
(66 NSF), Room 022 (129 NSF), 
Room 023 (131 NSF), Room 023A 
(15 NSF), Room 024 (133 NSF), 
Room 025 (126 NSF), Room 025A 
(2 NSF), Room 025B (8 NSF), Room 
026 (113 NSF), Room 027 (97 NSF), 
Room 028 (110 NSF), Room 029 
(238 NSF), Room 030 (152 NSF), 
Room 030A (2 NSF), Room 031 
(115 NSF), Room 031A (14 NSF), 
Room 032 (98 NSF), Room 033 (14 
NSF), Room 034 (88 NSF)

2,024 0 $240,856 $119 $0

PAGE:222 of 253 Report Date: 6/8/2021 10:16:11 AM

EDUCATIONAL PLANT FIVE YEAR SURVEY REPORT

Status:

Active Pending

Survey:

Survey: 7 - Version: 1

District:

10-CLAY COUNTY SCHOOL DISTRICT

Page 765 of 962

DRAFT



District Name: CLAY COUNTY SCHOOL DISTRICT

Survey: Number 7 - Version 1

Facility Name: SWIMMING PEN CREEK ELEMENTARY

Address: 1630 WOODPECKER LANE, MIDDLEBURG

Existing Recommended

Capital Outlay 
Classification

1 - SCHOOL RECOMMENDED FOR 
CONTINUED USE

1 - SCHOOL RECOMMENDED FOR 
CONTINUED USE

Facility Use ELEMENTARY ELEMENTARY

Low Grade PRE-K E S E PRE-K E S E

High Grade GRADE 6 GRADE 6

Comments

Existing
Student Stations 

Added/Reduced(+ or -) Recommended

Perm. Stations 430 0 430

Reloc. Stations 117 -10 107

Mod. Stations 0 0 0

Total Stations 547 -10 537

Utilization Factor 100% 100%

School Capacity 547 537

COFTE Student 
Membership 488 493

Survey Annotation

Correct Site Drainage Problems.                                 
Construct Additional Covered Walkways Where Needed.   
Remove 1 portables in excess of 20 years of age.
(Other)
District-Wide Recommendations for this facility are: Improve Security Fencing and Lighting.

New Site Cost Site 
Expansion

Site 
Development

Site 
Improvement

Remodeling 
Cost

Renovation 
Cost

New 
Construction 

Cost

$0 $0 $0 $45,000 $8,880 $0 $0

Estimated Total Project Cost $53,880

SWIMMING PEN CREEK 
ELEMENTARY

Parcel Building Description Total NSF Change In 
Station Count

Calculated 
Cost

Cost Per 
NSF

Cost Per 
Station

Remodeling 2026 53 92 Removed NSF (740), Added NSF 
(0), Difference NSF (740), Percent 
(100%), Removed Stations (10), 
Added Stations (0) Remodeling: 
Adding  and Removing Room 701 
(740 NSF)

-740 -10 $8,880 $12 $0

PAGE:223 of 253 Report Date: 6/8/2021 10:16:11 AM

EDUCATIONAL PLANT FIVE YEAR SURVEY REPORT

Status:

Active Pending

Survey:

Survey: 7 - Version: 1

District:

10-CLAY COUNTY SCHOOL DISTRICT

Page 766 of 962

DRAFT



PAGE:224 of 253 Report Date: 6/8/2021 10:16:11 AM

EDUCATIONAL PLANT FIVE YEAR SURVEY REPORT

Status:

Active Pending

Survey:

Survey: 7 - Version: 1

District:

10-CLAY COUNTY SCHOOL DISTRICT

Page 767 of 962

DRAFT



District Name: CLAY COUNTY SCHOOL DISTRICT

Survey: Number 7 - Version 1

Facility Name: THUNDERBOLT ELEMENTARY

Address: 2020 THUNDERBOLT ROAD, FLEMING ISLAND

Existing Recommended

Capital Outlay 
Classification

1 - SCHOOL RECOMMENDED FOR 
CONTINUED USE

1 - SCHOOL RECOMMENDED FOR 
CONTINUED USE

Facility Use ELEMENTARY ELEMENTARY

Low Grade PRE-K E S E PRE-K E S E

High Grade GRADE 6 GRADE 6

Comments

Existing
Student Stations 

Added/Reduced(+ or -) Recommended

Perm. Stations 683 0 683

Reloc. Stations 427 -44 383

Mod. Stations 0 0 0

Total Stations 1,110 -44 1066

Utilization Factor 100% 100%

School Capacity 1,110 1066

COFTE Student 
Membership 871 851

Survey Annotation

Renovate Building 1.                                                          
Correct Site Drainage Problems.                                 
Construct Additional Covered Walkways Where Needed.   
Remove 2 portables in excess of 20 years of age.
(Other)
District-Wide Recommendations for this facility are: Improve Security Fencing and Lighting.

New Site Cost Site 
Expansion

Site 
Development

Site 
Improvement

Remodeling 
Cost

Renovation 
Cost

New 
Construction 

Cost

$0 $0 $0 $45,000 $21,456 $8,583,048 $0

Estimated Total Project Cost $8,649,504

PAGE:225 of 253 Report Date: 6/8/2021 10:16:11 AM

EDUCATIONAL PLANT FIVE YEAR SURVEY REPORT

Status:

Active Pending

Survey:

Survey: 7 - Version: 1

District:

10-CLAY COUNTY SCHOOL DISTRICT

Page 768 of 962

DRAFT



THUNDERBOLT 
ELEMENTARY

Parcel Building Description Total NSF Change In 
Station Count

Calculated 
Cost

Cost Per 
NSF

Cost Per 
Station

Remodeling 2026 47 92 Removed NSF (1788), Added NSF 
(0), Difference NSF (1788), Percent 
(100%), Removed Stations (44), 
Added Stations (0) Remodeling: 
Adding  and Removing Room 722 
(904 NSF), Room 722A (98 NSF), 
Room 722B (36 NSF), Room 736 
(750 NSF)

-1,788 -44 $21,456 $12 $0

Renovation 2026 47 1 Renovating: Apply Painting, Floor 
Cover, Electrical, Plumbing, 
Windows, Lighting, Restrooms, 
HVAC Systems, Bell/Fire Alarm 
Systems, Retrofit for Technology to 
Room 101 (944 NSF), Room 101A 
(69 NSF), Room 101B (43 NSF), 
Room 102 (944 NSF), Room 102A 
(70 NSF), Room 102B (43 NSF), 
Room 103 (948 NSF), Room 103A 
(70 NSF), Room 103B (43 NSF), 
Room 104 (949 NSF), Room 104A 
(70 NSF), Room 104B (43 NSF), 
Room 105 (948 NSF), Room 105A 
(70 NSF), Room 105B (43 NSF), 
Room 106 (949 NSF), Room 106A 
(70 NSF), Room 106B (43 NSF), 
Room 107 (948 NSF), Room 107A 
(70 NSF), Room 107B (43 NSF), 
Room 108 (949 NSF), Room 108A 
(70 NSF), Room 108B (43 NSF), 
Room 109 (948 NSF), Room 109A 
(70 NSF), Room 109B (43 NSF), 
Room 110 (949 NSF), Room 110A 
(70 NSF), Room 110B (43 NSF), 
Room 111 (948 NSF), Room 111A 
(70 NSF), Room 111B (43 NSF), 
Room 112 (998 NSF), Room 112A 
(70 NSF), Room 113 (948 NSF), 
Room 113A (70 NSF), Room 113B 
(43 NSF), Room 114 (711 NSF), 
Room 114B (43 NSF), Room 115 
(948 NSF), Room 115A (70 NSF), 
Room 115B (43 NSF), Room 116 
(1551 NSF), Room 116A (373 NSF), 
Room 116C (48 NSF), Room 117 
(948 NSF), Room 117A (70 NSF), 
Room 117B (43 NSF), Room 118 
(949 NSF), Room 118A (70 NSF), 
Room 118B (43 NSF), Room 119 
(948 NSF), Room 119A (70 NSF), 
Room 119B (43 NSF), Room 120 
(949 NSF), Room 120A (70 NSF), 
Room 120B (43 NSF), Room 121 
(948 NSF), Room 121A (70 NSF), 
Room 121B (43 NSF), Room 122 
(43 NSF), Room 123 (836 NSF), 
Room 124 (1020 NSF), Room 125 
(238 NSF), Room 126 (130 NSF), 
Room 127 (97 NSF), Room 128 
(133 NSF), Room 129 (614 NSF), 
Room 203 (722 NSF), Room 204 
(290 NSF), Room 205 (580 NSF), 
Room 206 (200 NSF), Room 207 
(389 NSF), Room 208 (143 NSF), 
Room 209 (76 NSF), Room 210 (211 
NSF), Room 211 (211 NSF), Room 
212 (164 NSF), Room 212A (180 

93,294 0 $8,583,048 $92 $0

PAGE:226 of 253 Report Date: 6/8/2021 10:16:11 AM

EDUCATIONAL PLANT FIVE YEAR SURVEY REPORT

Status:

Active Pending

Survey:

Survey: 7 - Version: 1

District:

10-CLAY COUNTY SCHOOL DISTRICT

Page 769 of 962

DRAFT



NSF), Room 213 (372 NSF), Room 
214 (350 NSF), Room 215 (392 
NSF), Room 216 (45 NSF), Room 
217 (474 NSF), Room 218 (262 
NSF), Room 219 (149 NSF), Room 
220 (47 NSF), Room 221 (47 NSF), 
Room 222 (54 NSF), Room 223 
(340 NSF), Room 224 (120 NSF), 
Room 225 (120 NSF), Room 226 
(205 NSF), Room 227 (140 NSF), 
Room 228 (146 NSF), Room 229 
(144 NSF), Room 231 (2925 NSF), 
Room 232 (247 NSF), Room 233 
(387 NSF), Room 234 (348 NSF), 
Room 235 (92 NSF), Room 236 
(518 NSF), Room 237 (384 NSF), 
Room 238 (347 NSF), Room 238A 
(43 NSF), Room 239 (430 NSF), 
Room 240 (257 NSF), Room 241 
(102 NSF), Room 242 (48 NSF), 
Room 243 (48 NSF), Room 244 
(215 NSF), Room 245 (436 NSF), 
Room 247 (3440 NSF), Room 247A 
(59 NSF), Room 247B (1973 NSF), 
Room 248 (966 NSF), Room 248A 
(40 NSF), Room 249 (301 NSF), 
Room 250 (260 NSF), Room 251 
(89 NSF), Room 252 (213 NSF), 
Room 253 (43 NSF), Room 254 
(213 NSF), Room 255 (43 NSF), 
Room 256 (350 NSF), Room 257 
(25 NSF), Room 258 (133 NSF), 
Room 259 (654 NSF), Room 260 
(2030 NSF), Room 261 (674 NSF), 
Room 261A (101 NSF), Room 262 
(101 NSF), Room 263 (232 NSF), 
Room 264 (62 NSF), Room 265 (79 
NSF), Room 266 (110 NSF), Room 
267 (44 NSF), Room 268 (16 NSF), 
Room 269 (325 NSF), Room 270 
(227 NSF), Room 270A (117 NSF), 
Room 270B (117 NSF), Room 271 
(39 NSF), Room 271A (147 NSF), 
Room 272 (39 NSF), Room 272A 
(147 NSF), Room 301 (889 NSF), 
Room 301A (70 NSF), Room 302 
(1016 NSF), Room 302A (217 NSF), 
Room 303 (894 NSF), Room 303A 
(70 NSF), Room 304 (859 NSF), 
Room 304A (117 NSF), Room 304B 
(371 NSF), Room 304F (10 NSF), 
Room 304G (10 NSF), Room 305 
(914 NSF), Room 305A (70 NSF), 
Room 306 (859 NSF), Room 306A 
(117 NSF), Room 306G (10 NSF), 
Room 307 (914 NSF), Room 307A 
(70 NSF), Room 308 (859 NSF), 
Room 308A (117 NSF), Room 308B 
(41 NSF), Room 308C (47 NSF), 
Room 308D (47 NSF), Room 308E 
(66 NSF), Room 308F (24 NSF), 
Room 308G (10 NSF), Room 309 
(894 NSF), Room 309A (70 NSF), 
Room 310 (859 NSF), Room 310A 
(117 NSF), Room 310G (10 NSF), 
Room 311 (60 NSF), Room 311A 
(375 NSF), Room 311B (375 NSF), 
Room 312 (966 NSF), Room 312A 
(217 NSF), Room 313 (632 NSF), 
Room 313B (43 NSF), Room 314 
(966 NSF), Room 314A (217 NSF), 

PAGE:227 of 253 Report Date: 6/8/2021 10:16:11 AM

EDUCATIONAL PLANT FIVE YEAR SURVEY REPORT

Status:

Active Pending

Survey:

Survey: 7 - Version: 1

District:

10-CLAY COUNTY SCHOOL DISTRICT

Page 770 of 962

DRAFT



Room 315 (894 NSF), Room 315A 
(70 NSF), Room 316 (859 NSF), 
Room 316A (117 NSF), Room 316B 
(211 NSF), Room 316C (47 NSF), 
Room 316D (47 NSF), Room 316E 
(66 NSF), Room 316F (24 NSF), 
Room 316G (10 NSF), Room 317 
(894 NSF), Room 317A (70 NSF), 
Room 318 (859 NSF), Room 318A 
(117 NSF), Room 318G (10 NSF), 
Room 319 (894 NSF), Room 319A 
(70 NSF), Room 320 (859 NSF), 
Room 320A (117 NSF), Room 320B 
(211 NSF), Room 320C (47 NSF), 
Room 320D (47 NSF), Room 320E 
(66 NSF), Room 320F (24 NSF), 
Room 320G (10 NSF), Room 321 
(894 NSF), Room 321A (70 NSF), 
Room 322 (859 NSF), Room 322A 
(117 NSF), Room 322G (10 NSF), 
Room 323 (889 NSF), Room 323A 
(70 NSF), Room 324 (966 NSF), 
Room 324A (217 NSF), Room 325 
(149 NSF), Room 326 (87 NSF), 
Room 327 (100 NSF), Room 328 
(555 NSF), Room 400 (746 NSF), 
Room 401 (712 NSF), Room 402 
(740 NSF), Room 403 (818 NSF), 
Room 404 (795 NSF), Room 405 
(517 NSF), Room 406 (731 NSF), 
Room 407 (802 NSF), Room 408 
(909 NSF), Room 408A (130 NSF), 
Room 408B (130 NSF), Room 409 
(748 NSF), Room 410 (845 NSF), 
Room 411 (805 NSF), Room 412 
(973 NSF), Room 413 (937 NSF), 
Room 414 (841 NSF), Room 415 
(827 NSF), Room 500 (210 NSF), 
Room 501 (480 NSF), Room 502 
(677 NSF)

PAGE:228 of 253 Report Date: 6/8/2021 10:16:11 AM

EDUCATIONAL PLANT FIVE YEAR SURVEY REPORT

Status:

Active Pending

Survey:

Survey: 7 - Version: 1

District:

10-CLAY COUNTY SCHOOL DISTRICT

Page 771 of 962

DRAFT



District Name: CLAY COUNTY SCHOOL DISTRICT

Survey: Number 7 - Version 1

Facility Name: TYNES ELEMENTARY

Address: 1550 TYNES BOULEVARD, MIDDLEBURG

Existing Recommended

Capital Outlay 
Classification

1 - SCHOOL RECOMMENDED FOR 
CONTINUED USE

1 - SCHOOL RECOMMENDED FOR 
CONTINUED USE

Facility Use ELEMENTARY ELEMENTARY

Low Grade PRE-K E S E PRE-K E S E

High Grade GRADE 6 GRADE 6

Comments

Existing
Student Stations 

Added/Reduced(+ or -) Recommended

Perm. Stations 491 0 491

Reloc. Stations 495 -98 397

Mod. Stations 0 0 0

Total Stations 986 -98 888

Utilization Factor 100% 100%

School Capacity 986 888

COFTE Student 
Membership 1,036 823

Survey Annotation

Renovate Buildings 1-6.                                                     
Correct Site Drainage Problems.                                 
Construct Additional Covered Walkways Where Needed.   
Remove 7 portables in excess of 20 years of age.
(Other)
District-Wide Recommendations for this facility are: Improve Security Fencing and Lighting.

New Site Cost Site 
Expansion

Site 
Development

Site 
Improvement

Remodeling 
Cost

Renovation 
Cost

New 
Construction 

Cost

$0 $0 $0 $45,000 $65,076 $6,150,752 $0

Estimated Total Project Cost $6,260,828

PAGE:229 of 253 Report Date: 6/8/2021 10:16:11 AM

EDUCATIONAL PLANT FIVE YEAR SURVEY REPORT

Status:

Active Pending

Survey:

Survey: 7 - Version: 1

District:

10-CLAY COUNTY SCHOOL DISTRICT

Page 772 of 962

DRAFT



TYNES ELEMENTARY Parcel Building Description Total NSF Change In 
Station Count

Calculated 
Cost

Cost Per 
NSF

Cost Per 
Station

Remodeling 2026 44 92 Removed NSF (5423), Added NSF 
(0), Difference NSF (5423), Percent 
(100%), Removed Stations (98), 
Added Stations (0) Remodeling: 
Adding  and Removing Room 010 
(748 NSF), Room 044 (756 NSF), 
Room 044A (27 NSF), Room 061 
(749 NSF), Room 061A (30 NSF), 
Room 062 (737 NSF), Room 062A 
(25 NSF), Room 063 (760 NSF), 
Room 063A (25 NSF), Room 065 
(750 NSF), Room 065A (25 NSF), 
Room 068 (750 NSF), Room 068A 
(41 NSF)

-5,423 -98 $65,076 $12 $0

Renovation 2021 44 1 Renovating: Apply Painting, Floor 
Cover, Electrical, Plumbing, 
Windows, Lighting, Restrooms, 
HVAC Systems, Bell/Fire Alarm 
Systems, Retrofit for Technology to 
Room 101 (450 NSF), Room 102 
(439 NSF), Room 103 (148 NSF), 
Room 104 (617 NSF), Room 105 
(323 NSF), Room 107 (43 NSF), 
Room 108 (6 NSF), Room 109 (255 
NSF), Room 110 (184 NSF), Room 
111 (130 NSF), Room 112 (130 
NSF), Room 113 (152 NSF), Room 
114 (88 NSF), Room 115 (152 NSF), 
Room 116 (152 NSF), Room 117 
(161 NSF), Room 118 (185 NSF), 
Room 119 (256 NSF), Room 120 (75 
NSF), Room 121 (282 NSF), Room 
122 (269 NSF), Room 123 (327 
NSF), Room 124 (40 NSF), Room 
125 (69 NSF), Room 126 (297 NSF), 
Room 127 (84 NSF), Room 128 
(220 NSF), Room 129 (199 NSF), 
Room 129A (30 NSF), Room 130 
(393 NSF), Room 131 (473 NSF), 
Room 132 (274 NSF), Room 133 
(149 NSF), Room 134 (176 NSF), 
Room 135 (176 NSF), Room 136 
(136 NSF), Room 137 (313 NSF), 
Room 138 (189 NSF), Room 139 
(457 NSF), Room 139A (51 NSF), 
Room 140 (32 NSF), Room 141 (32 
NSF), Room 142 (30 NSF), Room 
143 (155 NSF), Room 144 (3253 
NSF), Room 145 (385 NSF), Room 
146 (197 NSF), Room 147 (139 
NSF), Room 148 (614 NSF), Room 
150 (455 NSF), Room 151 (375 
NSF), Room 152 (154 NSF), Room 
153 (311 NSF), Room 154 (33 NSF), 
Room 155 (36 NSF), Room 156 
(346 NSF), Room 157 (294 NSF), 
Room 158 (575 NSF)

15,966 0 $1,468,872 $92 $0

PAGE:230 of 253 Report Date: 6/8/2021 10:16:11 AM

EDUCATIONAL PLANT FIVE YEAR SURVEY REPORT

Status:

Active Pending

Survey:

Survey: 7 - Version: 1

District:

10-CLAY COUNTY SCHOOL DISTRICT

Page 773 of 962

DRAFT



TYNES ELEMENTARY Parcel Building Description Total NSF Change In 
Station Count

Calculated 
Cost

Cost Per 
NSF

Cost Per 
Station

Renovation 2026 44 2 Renovating: Apply Painting, Floor 
Cover, Electrical, Plumbing, 
Windows, Lighting, Restrooms, 
HVAC Systems, Bell/Fire Alarm 
Systems, Retrofit for Technology to 
Room 201 (5464 NSF), Room 202 
(60 NSF), Room 203 (69 NSF), 
Room 204 (227 NSF), Room 205 
(36 NSF), Room 206 (113 NSF), 
Room 207 (179 NSF), Room 208 
(1109 NSF), Room 209 (543 NSF), 
Room 210 (383 NSF), Room 211 
(122 NSF), Room 212 (187 NSF), 
Room 213 (223 NSF), Room 214 
(34 NSF), Room 215 (106 NSF), 
Room 216 (71 NSF), Room 217 
(409 NSF), Room 218 (638 NSF), 
Room 219 (25 NSF), Room 220 
(1191 NSF), Room 221 (334 NSF), 
Room 222 (83 NSF), Room 223 
(100 NSF), Room 225 (145 NSF), 
Room 226 (145 NSF), Room 227 
(97 NSF), Room 228 (303 NSF), 
Room 229 (12 NSF), Room 230 (84 
NSF), Room 231 (39 NSF), Room 
232 (81 NSF), Room 233 (222 NSF), 
Room 234 (44 NSF), Room 235 
(141 NSF), Room 237 (39 NSF), 
Room 238 (644 NSF)

13,702 0 $1,260,584 $92 $0

Renovation 2026 44 3 Renovating: Apply Painting, Floor 
Cover, Electrical, Plumbing, 
Windows, Lighting, Restrooms, 
HVAC Systems, Bell/Fire Alarm 
Systems, Retrofit for Technology to 
Room 300 (1807 NSF), Room 301 
(923 NSF), Room 302 (923 NSF), 
Room 303 (68 NSF), Room 304 (68 
NSF), Room 305 (61 NSF), Room 
306 (61 NSF), Room 307 (37 NSF), 
Room 308 (40 NSF), Room 309 
(103 NSF), Room 310 (96 NSF), 
Room 311 (203 NSF), Room 312 
(101 NSF), Room 313 (101 NSF), 
Room 314 (101 NSF), Room 315 
(926 NSF), Room 316 (925 NSF), 
Room 317 (61 NSF), Room 318 (61 
NSF), Room 319 (29 NSF), Room 
320 (30 NSF), Room 321 (137 NSF), 
Room 322 (136 NSF), Room 323 
(846 NSF), Room 324 (871 NSF), 
Room 325 (32 NSF), Room 326 (32 
NSF), Room 327 (99 NSF), Room 
328 (99 NSF), Room 329 (101 NSF), 
Room 330 (101 NSF), Room 331 
(101 NSF), Room 332 (101 NSF), 
Room 333 (847 NSF), Room 334 
(874 NSF), Room 335 (99 NSF), 
Room 336 (99 NSF), Room 337 (32 
NSF), Room 338 (32 NSF), Room 
339 (46 NSF), Room 340 (169 NSF), 
Room 341 (156 NSF), Room 342 
(76 NSF), Room 343 (11 NSF)

11,822 0 $1,087,624 $92 $0

PAGE:231 of 253 Report Date: 6/8/2021 10:16:11 AM

EDUCATIONAL PLANT FIVE YEAR SURVEY REPORT

Status:

Active Pending

Survey:

Survey: 7 - Version: 1

District:

10-CLAY COUNTY SCHOOL DISTRICT

Page 774 of 962

DRAFT



TYNES ELEMENTARY Parcel Building Description Total NSF Change In 
Station Count

Calculated 
Cost

Cost Per 
NSF

Cost Per 
Station

Renovation 2026 44 4 Renovating: Apply Painting, Floor 
Cover, Electrical, Plumbing, 
Windows, Lighting, Restrooms, 
HVAC Systems, Bell/Fire Alarm 
Systems, Retrofit for Technology to 
Room 400 (1906 NSF), Room 401 
(185 NSF), Room 402 (129 NSF), 
Room 402A (118 NSF), Room 403 
(41 NSF), Room 403A (11 NSF), 
Room 404 (995 NSF), Room 405 
(992 NSF), Room 406 (32 NSF), 
Room 407 (32 NSF), Room 408 
(107 NSF), Room 409 (108 NSF), 
Room 410 (139 NSF), Room 411 
(139 NSF), Room 412 (139 NSF), 
Room 413 (139 NSF), Room 414 
(994 NSF), Room 415 (989 NSF), 
Room 416 (108 NSF), Room 417 
(118 NSF), Room 418 (32 NSF), 
Room 419 (32 NSF), Room 420 
(1171 NSF), Room 421 (1171 NSF), 
Room 422 (32 NSF), Room 423 (32 
NSF), Room 424 (107 NSF), Room 
425 (107 NSF), Room 426 (139 
NSF), Room 427 (139 NSF), Room 
428 (139 NSF), Room 429 (139 
NSF), Room 430 (994 NSF), Room 
431 (965 NSF), Room 432 (118 
NSF), Room 433 (107 NSF), Room 
434 (33 NSF), Room 435 (32 NSF)

12,910 0 $1,187,720 $92 $0

Renovation 2026 44 5 Renovating: Apply Painting, Floor 
Cover, Electrical, Plumbing, 
Windows, Lighting, Restrooms, 
HVAC Systems, Bell/Fire Alarm 
Systems, Retrofit for Technology to 
Room 500 (1898 NSF), Room 501 
(995 NSF), Room 502 (997 NSF), 
Room 503 (32 NSF), Room 504 (32 
NSF), Room 505 (107 NSF), Room 
506 (118 NSF), Room 507 (88 NSF), 
Room 508 (88 NSF), Room 509 (88 
NSF), Room 510 (88 NSF), Room 
511 (998 NSF), Room 512 (990 
NSF), Room 513 (107 NSF), Room 
514 (108 NSF), Room 515 (33 NSF), 
Room 516 (32 NSF), Room 517 
(993 NSF), Room 518 (996 NSF), 
Room 519 (88 NSF), Room 520 (32 
NSF), Room 521 (107 NSF), Room 
522 (108 NSF), Room 523 (88 NSF), 
Room 524 (88 NSF), Room 525 (88 
NSF), Room 526 (88 NSF), Room 
527 (962 NSF), Room 528 (997 
NSF), Room 529 (107 NSF), Room 
530 (108 NSF), Room 531 (32 NSF), 
Room 532 (32 NSF), Room 533 (11 
NSF), Room 534 (128 NSF), Room 
535 (47 NSF), Room 536 (117 NSF), 
Room 537 (152 NSF)

12,168 0 $1,119,456 $92 $0

Renovation 2026 44 6 Renovating: Apply Painting, Floor 
Cover, Electrical, Plumbing, 
Windows, Lighting, Restrooms, 
HVAC Systems, Bell/Fire Alarm 
Systems, Retrofit for Technology to 
Room 991 (56 NSF), Room 995 
(232 NSF)

288 0 $26,496 $92 $0

PAGE:232 of 253 Report Date: 6/8/2021 10:16:11 AM

EDUCATIONAL PLANT FIVE YEAR SURVEY REPORT

Status:

Active Pending

Survey:

Survey: 7 - Version: 1

District:

10-CLAY COUNTY SCHOOL DISTRICT

Page 775 of 962

DRAFT



PAGE:233 of 253 Report Date: 6/8/2021 10:16:11 AM

EDUCATIONAL PLANT FIVE YEAR SURVEY REPORT

Status:

Active Pending

Survey:

Survey: 7 - Version: 1

District:

10-CLAY COUNTY SCHOOL DISTRICT

Page 776 of 962

DRAFT



District Name: CLAY COUNTY SCHOOL DISTRICT

Survey: Number 7 - Version 1

Facility Name: W E CHERRY ELEMENTARY

Address: 420 EDSON DRIVE, ORANGE PARK

Existing Recommended

Capital Outlay 
Classification

1 - SCHOOL RECOMMENDED FOR 
CONTINUED USE

1 - SCHOOL RECOMMENDED FOR 
CONTINUED USE

Facility Use ELEMENTARY ELEMENTARY

Low Grade PRE-K E S E PRE-K E S E

High Grade GRADE 6 GRADE 6

Comments

Existing
Student Stations 

Added/Reduced(+ or -) Recommended

Perm. Stations 418 0 418

Reloc. Stations 463 -36 427

Mod. Stations 0 0 0

Total Stations 881 -36 845

Utilization Factor 100% 100%

School Capacity 881 845

COFTE Student 
Membership 726 833

Survey Annotation

Renovate Buildings 1-4, 10 & 11.                                     
Correct Site Drainage Problems.                                 
Construct Additional Covered Walkways Where Needed.   
Remove 2 portables in excess of 20 years of age.
(Other)
District-Wide Recommendations for this facility are: Improve Security Fencing and Lighting.

New Site Cost Site 
Expansion

Site 
Development

Site 
Improvement

Remodeling 
Cost

Renovation 
Cost

New 
Construction 

Cost

$0 $0 $0 $45,000 $18,696 $3,125,056 $0

Estimated Total Project Cost $3,188,752

PAGE:234 of 253 Report Date: 6/8/2021 10:16:11 AM

EDUCATIONAL PLANT FIVE YEAR SURVEY REPORT

Status:

Active Pending

Survey:

Survey: 7 - Version: 1

District:

10-CLAY COUNTY SCHOOL DISTRICT

Page 777 of 962

DRAFT



W E CHERRY 
ELEMENTARY

Parcel Building Description Total NSF Change In 
Station Count

Calculated 
Cost

Cost Per 
NSF

Cost Per 
Station

Remodeling 2026 9 92 Removed NSF (1558), Added NSF 
(0), Difference NSF (1558), Percent 
(100%), Removed Stations (36), 
Added Stations (0) Remodeling: 
Adding  and Removing Room 039 
(754 NSF), Room 039A (25 NSF), 
Room 041 (754 NSF), Room 041A 
(25 NSF)

-1,558 -36 $18,696 $12 $0

Renovation 2026 9 1 Renovating: Apply Painting, Floor 
Cover, Electrical, Plumbing, 
Windows, Lighting, Restrooms, 
HVAC Systems, Bell/Fire Alarm 
Systems, Retrofit for Technology to 
Room 001 (841 NSF), Room 001A 
(54 NSF), Room 002 (841 NSF), 
Room 002A (54 NSF), Room 003 
(841 NSF), Room 003A (18 NSF), 
Room 004 (841 NSF), Room 004A 
(18 NSF), Room 005 (866 NSF), 
Room 006 (866 NSF), Room 007 
(866 NSF), Room 008 (477 NSF), 
Room 008A (389 NSF), Room 042 
(286 NSF), Room 042A (19 NSF), 
Room 042B (228 NSF), Room 043A 
(12 NSF), Room 043B (118 NSF), 
Room 043C (16 NSF), Room 043D 
(99 NSF), Room 043E (54 NSF), 
Room 044 (160 NSF), Room 044A 
(18 NSF), Room 044B (12 NSF), 
Room 045 (160 NSF), Room 046 
(270 NSF), Room 047 (270 NSF), 
Room 048 (288 NSF)

8,982 0 $826,344 $92 $0

Renovation 2026 9 2 Renovating: Apply Painting, Floor 
Cover, Electrical, Plumbing, 
Windows, Lighting, Restrooms, 
HVAC Systems, Bell/Fire Alarm 
Systems, Retrofit for Technology to 
Room 048 (118 NSF), Room 049 
(822 NSF), Room 050 (735 NSF), 
Room 051 (112 NSF), Room 052 (18 
NSF), Room 052A (18 NSF), Room 
053 (3421 NSF), Room 054 (273 
NSF), Room 054A (489 NSF), Room 
075 (177 NSF), Room 076 (54 NSF), 
Room 077 (595 NSF), Room 078 
(80 NSF), Room 079 (132 NSF)

7,044 0 $648,048 $92 $0

Renovation 2026 9 3 Renovating: Apply Painting, Floor 
Cover, Electrical, Plumbing, 
Windows, Lighting, Restrooms, 
HVAC Systems, Bell/Fire Alarm 
Systems, Retrofit for Technology to 
Room 016 (829 NSF), Room 017 
(829 NSF), Room 018 (829 NSF), 
Room 019 (829 NSF), Room 055 
(2365 NSF), Room 055A (121 NSF), 
Room 055B (414 NSF), Room 055C 
(415 NSF), Room 056 (55 NSF), 
Room 057 (55 NSF)

6,741 0 $620,172 $92 $0

PAGE:235 of 253 Report Date: 6/8/2021 10:16:11 AM

EDUCATIONAL PLANT FIVE YEAR SURVEY REPORT

Status:

Active Pending

Survey:

Survey: 7 - Version: 1

District:

10-CLAY COUNTY SCHOOL DISTRICT

Page 778 of 962

DRAFT



W E CHERRY 
ELEMENTARY

Parcel Building Description Total NSF Change In 
Station Count

Calculated 
Cost

Cost Per 
NSF

Cost Per 
Station

Renovation 2026 9 4 Renovating: Apply Painting, Floor 
Cover, Electrical, Plumbing, 
Windows, Lighting, Restrooms, 
HVAC Systems, Bell/Fire Alarm 
Systems, Retrofit for Technology to 
Room 011 (850 NSF), Room 011A 
(37 NSF), Room 012 (832 NSF), 
Room 012A (129 NSF), Room 012B 
(9 NSF), Room 013 (832 NSF), 
Room 013A (9 NSF), Room 014 
(832 NSF), Room 014A (69 NSF), 
Room 014B (9 NSF), Room 015 
(832 NSF), Room 015A (9 NSF), 
Room 020 (832 NSF), Room 021 
(823 NSF), Room 021A (9 NSF), 
Room 022 (823 NSF), Room 022A 
(9 NSF), Room 023 (823 NSF), 
Room 023A (9 NSF), Room 024 
(823 NSF), Room 024A (9 NSF), 
Room 025 (832 NSF), Room 058 
(640 NSF), Room 058A (48 NSF), 
Room 059 (55 NSF), Room 060 (90 
NSF), Room 070 (30 NSF), Room 
071 (60 NSF)

10,364 0 $953,488 $92 $0

Renovation 2026 9 10 Renovating: Apply Painting, Floor 
Cover, Electrical, Plumbing, 
Windows, Lighting, Restrooms, 
HVAC Systems, Bell/Fire Alarm 
Systems, Retrofit for Technology to 
Room 061 (81 NSF), Room 062 (9 
NSF), Room 063 (81 NSF), Room 
064 (81 NSF), Room 065 (9 NSF), 
Room 066 (81 NSF)

342 0 $31,464 $92 $0

Renovation 2026 9 11 Renovating: Apply Painting, Floor 
Cover, Electrical, Plumbing, 
Windows, Lighting, Restrooms, 
HVAC Systems, Bell/Fire Alarm 
Systems, Retrofit for Technology to 
Room 067 (255 NSF), Room 068 
(120 NSF), Room 069 (120 NSF)

495 0 $45,540 $92 $0

PAGE:236 of 253 Report Date: 6/8/2021 10:16:11 AM

EDUCATIONAL PLANT FIVE YEAR SURVEY REPORT

Status:

Active Pending

Survey:

Survey: 7 - Version: 1

District:

10-CLAY COUNTY SCHOOL DISTRICT

Page 779 of 962

DRAFT



DISTRICTWIDE RECOMMENDATIONS

The following recommendations are made on a districtwide basis and include each school or facility where applicable.

Correct deficiencies relating to safety to life, health, and sanitation as identified in the comprehensive Safety 
Inspection Report pursuant to §4.4(1), §5(1), and §5(13), SREF 2014.

1.

Necessary modifications for the physically disabled in existing buildings recommended for continued use as 
provided for in §255.21, F.S.

2.

Additional, or replacement of, equipment for existing school buildings recommended for continued use as provided 
in §2.1(9)(e), SREF 2014.

3.

Replacement of roofs at existing facilities as provided in §1.2(55) and §4.1(1)(c), SREF 2014.4.

Provide storage, custodial spaces, and sanitation facilities to serve students, staff, and the general public as provided 
in §6.1, SREF 2014, and §423.20, FBC.

5.

Provide paved auto parking areas pursuant to §5.2(f)10, SREF 2014, and §423.10.2.7, FBC.6.

Purchase sites for educational and ancillary facilities for future use beyond the projection period of this survey 
pursuant to §1.4, SREF 2014.

7.

Retrofit existing schools for technology, which may include the creation, or improvement of, cable distribution 
points (closets in telephone parlance). Provide “clean power” and convenient access to video, data, and voice signal 
wiring, the built-in equipment involved in distributing video, data, and voice signals pursuant to §5, SREF 2014. This 
recommendation does not include new construction, remodeling, or terminal equipment (workstations, terminals, 
receiving equipment, and similar items).

8.

The cost estimates for these districtwide recommendations are not included in the section on Financing the Proposed 
Program.

PAGE:237 of 253 Report Date: 6/8/2021 10:16:11 AM

EDUCATIONAL PLANT FIVE YEAR SURVEY REPORT

Status:

Active Pending

Survey:

Survey: 7 - Version: 1

District:

10-CLAY COUNTY SCHOOL DISTRICT

Page 780 of 962

DRAFT



Section 4: COFTE

PAGE:238 of 253 Report Date: 6/8/2021 10:16:11 AM

EDUCATIONAL PLANT FIVE YEAR SURVEY REPORT

Status:

Active Pending

Survey:

Survey: 7 - Version: 1

District:

10-CLAY COUNTY SCHOOL DISTRICT

Page 781 of 962

DRAFT



ANALYSIS OF STUDENT POPULATIONS

    The projection of future student population change is based on empirical evidence of historical trends in the student 
population; annually, the Office of Economic and Demographic Research (EDR) prepares COFTE enrollment projections. The 
projections do not include summer school, regular pre-kindergarten, hospital/homebound, or area vocational school adults 
attending basic and high school classes. The projections are most accurate in counties where growth and migration occur at a 
reasonably constant and predictable rate and, conversely, are least accurate if major changes in the economy and development 
of the county occur during the projection period.

Technique for Predicting COFTE Student Membership Trends

    Even though the out-year COFTE projections used for a 5-year survey period may be less (or more) than the district 
anticipates, the annual recalculation of COFTE projections assures that current, accurate data can be inserted into a new survey 
to guarantee that the most reliable projections are used for facilities planning purposes.

PAGE:239 of 253 Report Date: 6/8/2021 10:16:11 AM

EDUCATIONAL PLANT FIVE YEAR SURVEY REPORT

Status:

Active Pending

Survey:

Survey: 7 - Version: 1

District:

10-CLAY COUNTY SCHOOL DISTRICT

Page 782 of 962

DRAFT



Year PK-3 4-8 9-12 PK-12

2021 - 2022 10,751 13,928 11,745 36,425

HISTORY

Year PK-3 4-8 9-12 PK-12

2025 - 2026 11,033 14,102 11,946 37,081

PROJECTED

PK-3 4-8 9-12 PK-12

282 174 201 656

ANALYSIS OF CHANGE PROJECTED

10-CLAY COUNTY SCHOOL DISTRICTORGANIZATION:

Number 7 - Version 1SURVEY:

PAGE:240 of 253 Report Date: 6/8/2021 10:16:11 AM

EDUCATIONAL PLANT FIVE YEAR SURVEY REPORT

Status:

Active Pending

Survey:

Survey: 7 - Version: 1

District:

10-CLAY COUNTY SCHOOL DISTRICT

Page 783 of 962

DRAFT



Section 5: Student Membership

PAGE:241 of 253 Report Date: 6/8/2021 10:16:11 AM

EDUCATIONAL PLANT FIVE YEAR SURVEY REPORT

Status:

Active Pending

Survey:

Survey: 7 - Version: 1

District:

10-CLAY COUNTY SCHOOL DISTRICT

Page 784 of 962

DRAFT



FACILITY NAME PK-3 
Memb. 
Proj.

4-8 
Memb. 
Proj.

9-12 
Memb. 
Proj.

PK-3 
Memb.  
In

4-8 
Memb.  
In

9-12 
Memb.  
In

PK-3 
Memb.  
Out

4-8 
Memb.  
Out

9-12 
Memb.  
Out

PK-3 
Memb.  
Reco.

4-8 
Memb.  
Reco.

9-12 
Memb.  
Reco.

Total  
COFTE

Exist.  
Satis.  
Stud.  
Stat.

Pos.  
Remo.  
 Sta.

Neg.  
Remo.  
Sta.

New  
Const.  
Sta.

Total  
Sta.

Util.  
Fact
or

Reco.  
Capac.

Year- 
Round  
Capac.

Elementary

ARGYLE 
ELEMENTARY

475 326 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 475 326 0 801 825 0 -153 170 842 1.00 842 1,010

CHARLES E 
BENNETT 
ELEMENTARY

346 257 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 346 257 0 603 830 0 -55 0 775 1.00 775 930

CLAY HILL 
ELEMENTARY

302 152 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 302 152 0 454 474 0 -18 30 486 1.00 486 583

COPPERGATE 
ELEMENTARY

358 236 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 358 236 0 594 725 0 0 0 725 1.00 725 870

DISCOVERY 
OAKS 
ELEMENTARY

410 382 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 410 382 0 792 852 0 0 0 852 1.00 852 1,022

DOCTORS INLET 
ELEMENTARY

312 399 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 312 399 0 711 737 0 -229 252 760 1.00 760 912

Elementary "R" 0 0 0 353 519 0 0 0 0 353 519 0 872 0 0 0 906 906 1.00 906 1,087

FLEMING ISLAND 
ELEMENTARY

470 476 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 470 476 0 946 912 0 0 80 992 1.00 992 1,190

GROVE PARK 
ELEMENTARY

164 192 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 164 192 0 356 512 0 -76 0 436 1.00 436 523

J L WILKINSON 
ELEMENTARY

330 283 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 330 283 0 613 788 0 -182 50 656 1.00 656 787

KEYSTONE 
HEIGHTS 
ELEMENTARY

410 353 0 0 0 0 53 0 0 357 353 0 710 896 0 -108 0 788 1.00 788 945

LAKE ASBURY 
ELEMENTARY

518 412 0 0 0 0 0 22 0 518 390 0 908 970 0 -117 81 934 1.00 934 1,120

LAKESIDE 
ELEMENTARY

473 269 0 0 0 0 96 44 0 377 225 0 602 876 0 -230 0 646 1.00 646 775

MCRAE 
ELEMENTARY

287 254 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 287 254 0 541 550 0 -159 199 590 1.00 590 708

MIDDLEBURG 
ELEMENTARY

285 256 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 285 256 0 541 650 0 -46 0 604 1.00 604 724

MONTCLAIR 
ELEMENTARY

256 208 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 256 208 0 464 649 0 -277 140 512 1.00 512 614

OAKLEAF 
VILLAGE 
ELEMENTARY

555 492 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 555 492 0 1,047 1,097 0 -36 0 1,061 1.00 1,061 1,273

ORANGE PARK 
ELEMENTARY

284 175 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 284 175 0 459 504 0 -164 153 493 1.00 493 591

PLANTATION 
OAKS 
ELEMENTARY

455 470 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 455 470 0 925 1,004 0 -44 0 960 1.00 960 1,152

RIDEOUT 
ELEMENTARY

415 244 0 0 0 0 26 44 0 389 200 0 589 683 0 -50 0 633 1.00 633 759

RIDGEVIEW 
ELEMENTARY

262 243 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 262 243 0 505 565 0 -112 98 551 1.00 551 661

ROBERT M 
PATERSON 
ELEMENTARY

628 361 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 628 361 0 989 1,105 0 -36 0 1,069 1.00 1,069 1,282

S BRYAN 
JENNINGS 
ELEMENTARY

352 208 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 352 208 0 560 676 0 -164 95 607 1.00 607 728

SHADOWLAWN 
ELEMENTARY

602 211 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 602 211 0 813 845 0 0 0 845 1.00 845 1,014

SWIMMING PEN 
CREEK 
ELEMENTARY

346 147 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 346 147 0 493 547 0 -10 0 537 1.00 537 644

THUNDERBOLT 
ELEMENTARY

469 382 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 469 382 0 851 1,110 0 -44 0 1,066 1.00 1,066 1,279

TYNES 
ELEMENTARY

521 302 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 521 302 0 823 986 0 -98 0 888 1.00 888 1,065

W E CHERRY 
ELEMENTARY

560 273 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 560 273 0 833 881 0 -36 0 845 1.00 845 1,014

PAGE:242 of 253 Report Date: 6/8/2021 10:16:11 AM

EDUCATIONAL PLANT FIVE YEAR SURVEY REPORT

Status:

Active Pending

Survey:

Survey: 7 - Version: 1

District:

10-CLAY COUNTY SCHOOL DISTRICT

Page 785 of 962

DRAFT



FACILITY NAME PK-3 
Memb. 
Proj.

4-8 
Memb. 
Proj.

9-12 
Memb. 
Proj.

PK-3 
Memb.  
In

4-8 
Memb.  
In

9-12 
Memb.  
In

PK-3 
Memb.  
Out

4-8 
Memb.  
Out

9-12 
Memb.  
Out

PK-3 
Memb.  
Reco.

4-8 
Memb.  
Reco.

9-12 
Memb.  
Reco.

Total  
COFTE

Exist.  
Satis.  
Stud.  
Stat.

Pos.  
Remo.  
 Sta.

Neg.  
Remo.  
Sta.

New  
Const.  
Sta.

Total  
Sta.

Util.  
Fact
or

Reco.  
Capac.

Year- 
Round  
Capac.

Middle & Junior 
High

GREEN COVE 
SPRINGS 
JUNIOR HIGH

0 824 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 824 0 824 1,025 0 0 0 1,025 0.90 922 1,230

JACK L 
WILKINSON 
JUNIOR HIGH

0 702 0 0 0 0 0 100 0 0 602 0 602 836 0 -118 0 718 0.90 646 861

LAKE ASBURY 
JUNIOR HIGH

0 1,406 0 0 0 0 0 136 0 0 1,270 0 1,270 1,505 0 -44 0 1,461 0.90 1,314 1,753

LAKESIDE 
JUNIOR HIGH

0 787 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 787 0 787 1,338 0 -252 0 1,086 0.90 977 1,303

OAKLEAF 
SCHOOL

0 1,100 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 1,100 0 1,100 1,638 0 0 0 1,638 0.90 1,474 1,965

ORANGE PARK 
JUNIOR HIGH

0 769 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 769 0 769 1,170 0 -101 0 1,069 0.90 962 1,282

Senior High

CLAY HIGH 
SCHOOL

0 0 1,504 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 1,504 1,504 2,037 0 -140 0 1,897 0.95 1,802 2,276

FLEMING ISLAND 
SENIOR HIGH

23 0 1,972 0 0 0 0 0 0 23 0 1,972 1,995 2,535 0 0 0 2,535 0.95 2,408 3,042

MIDDLEBURG 
SENIOR HIGH

20 0 1,579 0 0 0 0 0 0 20 0 1,579 1,599 2,509 0 -282 0 2,227 0.95 2,115 2,672

OAKLEAF HIGH 
SCHOOL

14 0 2,400 0 0 0 0 0 0 14 0 2,400 2,414 2,589 0 0 0 2,589 0.95 2,459 3,106

ORANGE PARK 
SENIOR HIGH

17 0 2,048 0 0 0 0 0 0 17 0 2,048 2,065 2,467 0 -100 0 2,367 0.95 2,248 2,840

RIDGEVIEW 
SENIOR HIGH

34 0 1,637 0 0 0 0 0 0 34 0 1,637 1,671 2,373 0 -375 0 1,998 0.95 1,898 2,397

Combination

KEYSTONE 
HEIGHTS 
JUNIOR/SENIOR 

0 505 726 0 0 0 0 107 0 0 398 726 1,124 1,530 0 -225 0 1,305 0.90 1,174 1,566

ESE/Alternative

R C 
BANNERMAN 
LEARNING RESO

80 45 80 0 0 0 0 0 0 80 45 80 205 568 0 -114 0 454 1.00 454 544

Ancillary

ADMINISTRATIVE 
OFFICES 
ORANGE PARK A

0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 143 0 0 0 143 0.00 0 0

CLAY 
SUPERINTENDE
NT'S OFFICE

0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0.00 0 0

FOOD SERVICES 
STORAGE

0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0.00 0 0

HARRIS C LONG 
ADMINISTRATIO
N

0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0.00 0 0

KEYSTONE 
TRANSPORTATI
ON

0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0.00 0 0

MIDDLEBURG 
TRANSPORTATI
ON

0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0.00 0 0

SCHOOL BUS 
GARAGE

0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0.00 0 0

SUPPORT 
SERVICES AG 
LOT

0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0.00 0 0

PAGE:243 of 253 Report Date: 6/8/2021 10:16:11 AM

EDUCATIONAL PLANT FIVE YEAR SURVEY REPORT

Status:

Active Pending

Survey:

Survey: 7 - Version: 1

District:

10-CLAY COUNTY SCHOOL DISTRICT

Page 786 of 962

DRAFT



FACILITY NAME PK-3 
Memb. 
Proj.

4-8 
Memb. 
Proj.

9-12 
Memb. 
Proj.

PK-3 
Memb.  
In

4-8 
Memb.  
In

9-12 
Memb.  
In

PK-3 
Memb.  
Out

4-8 
Memb.  
Out

9-12 
Memb.  
Out

PK-3 
Memb.  
Reco.

4-8 
Memb.  
Reco.

9-12 
Memb.  
Reco.

Total  
COFTE

Exist.  
Satis.  
Stud.  
Stat.

Pos.  
Remo.  
 Sta.

Neg.  
Remo.  
Sta.

New  
Const.  
Sta.

Total  
Sta.

Util.  
Fact
or

Reco.  
Capac.

Year- 
Round  
Capac.

Ancillary

SUPPORT 
SERVICES 
CENTER

0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0.00 0 0

11,033 14,101 11,946 353 519 0 175 453 0 11,211 14,167 11,946 37,324 45,512 0 -4,195 2,254 43,571 41,912 52,099

out of out of out of

11,033 14,101 11,946

PAGE:244 of 253 Report Date: 6/8/2021 10:16:11 AM

EDUCATIONAL PLANT FIVE YEAR SURVEY REPORT

Status:

Active Pending

Survey:

Survey: 7 - Version: 1

District:

10-CLAY COUNTY SCHOOL DISTRICT

Page 787 of 962

DRAFT



Section 6: Financial Summary

PAGE:245 of 253 Report Date: 6/8/2021 10:16:11 AM

EDUCATIONAL PLANT FIVE YEAR SURVEY REPORT

Status:

Active Pending

Survey:

Survey: 7 - Version: 1

District:

10-CLAY COUNTY SCHOOL DISTRICT

Page 788 of 962

DRAFT



Facility Site 
Expansion 
Cost

Total Site 
Development 
Cost

Total Site 
Improvement 
Cost

Total 
Remodeling 
Cost

Total 
Renovation 
Cost

Total New 
Construction 
Cost

Overall 
Totals

Estimated  
Cost If Year 
Round 
School

Elementary

ARGYLE ELEMENTARY $0 $0 $40,000 $138,528 $0 $4,321,230 $4,499,758 $3,456,984

CHARLES E BENNETT 
ELEMENTARY

$0 $0 $535,000 $27,984 $2,451,340 $1,640,820 $4,655,144 $1,312,656

CLAY HILL ELEMENTARY $0 $0 $45,000 $8,820 $3,754,060 $762,570 $4,570,450 $610,056

COPPERGATE 
ELEMENTARY

$0 $0 $45,000 $0 $0 $138,000 $183,000 $110,400

DISCOVERY OAKS 
ELEMENTARY

$0 $0 $15,000 $0 $0 $0 $15,000

DOCTORS INLET 
ELEMENTARY

$0 $0 $45,000 $132,288 $533,082 $6,405,588 $7,115,958 $5,124,470

Elementary "R" $0 $500,000 $2,200,000 $0 $0 $23,029,614 $25,729,614 $18,423,691

FLEMING ISLAND 
ELEMENTARY

$0 $0 $45,000 $0 $4,554,854 $2,033,520 $6,633,374 $1,626,816

GROVE PARK 
ELEMENTARY

$0 $0 $245,000 $35,952 $4,054,808 $0 $4,335,760

J L WILKINSON 
ELEMENTARY

$0 $0 $295,000 $84,864 $4,953,096 $1,270,950 $6,603,910 $1,016,760

KEYSTONE HEIGHTS 
ELEMENTARY

$0 $0 $45,000 $55,176 $6,554,540 $408,600 $7,063,316 $326,880

LAKE ASBURY 
ELEMENTARY

$0 $0 $455,000 $851,598 $3,763,144 $2,058,939 $7,128,681 $1,647,151

LAKESIDE ELEMENTARY $0 $0 $45,000 $130,380 $3,675,952 $0 $3,851,332

MCRAE ELEMENTARY $0 $0 $45,000 $81,552 $5,122,192 $5,058,381 $10,307,125 $4,046,705

MIDDLEBURG 
ELEMENTARY

$0 $0 $195,000 $28,884 $1,602,824 $138,000 $1,964,708 $110,400

MONTCLAIR ELEMENTARY $0 $0 $195,000 $124,680 $2,289,328 $3,558,660 $6,167,668 $2,846,928

OAKLEAF VILLAGE 
ELEMENTARY

$0 $0 $45,000 $18,420 $0 $138,000 $201,420 $110,400

ORANGE PARK 
ELEMENTARY

$0 $0 $195,000 $73,404 $2,745,924 $3,889,107 $6,903,435 $3,111,286

PLANTATION OAKS 
ELEMENTARY

$0 $0 $45,000 $214,590 $0 $138,000 $397,590 $110,400

RIDEOUT ELEMENTARY $0 $0 $45,000 $28,248 $7,693,132 $0 $7,766,380

RIDGEVIEW ELEMENTARY $0 $0 $395,000 $55,032 $3,604,468 $2,491,062 $6,545,562 $1,992,850

ROBERT M PATERSON 
ELEMENTARY

$0 $0 $45,000 $18,816 $6,274,308 $0 $6,338,124

S BRYAN JENNINGS 
ELEMENTARY

$0 $0 $45,000 $71,868 $4,088,204 $2,414,805 $6,619,877 $1,931,844

SHADOWLAWN 
ELEMENTARY

$0 $0 $45,000 $0 $0 $0 $45,000

SWIMMING PEN CREEK 
ELEMENTARY

$0 $0 $45,000 $8,880 $0 $0 $53,880

THUNDERBOLT 
ELEMENTARY

$0 $0 $45,000 $21,456 $8,583,048 $0 $8,649,504

TYNES ELEMENTARY $0 $0 $45,000 $65,076 $6,150,752 $0 $6,260,828

W E CHERRY 
ELEMENTARY

$0 $0 $45,000 $18,696 $3,125,056 $0 $3,188,752

Middle & Junior High

GREEN COVE SPRINGS 
JUNIOR HIGH

$0 $0 $45,000 $0 $11,929,002 $0 $11,974,002

JACK L WILKINSON 
JUNIOR HIGH

$0 $0 $45,000 $54,204 $10,560,365 $0 $10,659,569

PAGE:246 of 253 Report Date: 6/8/2021 10:16:11 AM

EDUCATIONAL PLANT FIVE YEAR SURVEY REPORT

Status:

Active Pending

Survey:

Survey: 7 - Version: 1

District:

10-CLAY COUNTY SCHOOL DISTRICT

Page 789 of 962

DRAFT



Facility Site 
Expansion 
Cost

Total Site 
Development 
Cost

Total Site 
Improvement 
Cost

Total 
Remodeling 
Cost

Total 
Renovation 
Cost

Total New 
Construction 
Cost

Overall 
Totals

Estimated  
Cost If Year 
Round 
School

Middle & Junior High

LAKE ASBURY JUNIOR 
HIGH

$0 $0 $45,000 $18,828 $0 $0 $63,828

LAKESIDE JUNIOR HIGH $0 $0 $395,000 $118,848 $9,542,795 $0 $10,056,643

OAKLEAF SCHOOL $0 $0 $45,000 $0 $0 $0 $45,000

ORANGE PARK JUNIOR 
HIGH

$0 $0 $245,000 $47,328 $9,756,688 $0 $10,049,016

Senior High

CLAY HIGH SCHOOL $0 $0 $45,000 $73,284 $0 $0 $118,284

FLEMING ISLAND SENIOR 
HIGH

$0 $0 $45,000 $0 $0 $0 $45,000

MIDDLEBURG SENIOR 
HIGH

$0 $0 $480,000 $119,640 $24,840,417 $0 $25,440,057

OAKLEAF HIGH SCHOOL $0 $0 $45,000 $0 $0 $0 $45,000

ORANGE PARK SENIOR 
HIGH

$0 $0 $290,000 $35,832 $26,359,690 $0 $26,685,522

RIDGEVIEW SENIOR HIGH $0 $0 $45,000 $145,944 $16,682,253 $534,000 $17,407,197 $427,200

Combination

KEYSTONE HEIGHTS 
JUNIOR/SENIOR HIGH

$0 $0 $45,000 $90,396 $9,980,292 $0 $10,115,688

ESE/Alternative

R C BANNERMAN 
LEARNING RESOURCE CE

$0 $15,000 $280,000 $61,716 $1,352,792 $0 $1,709,508

Ancillary

ADMINISTRATIVE OFFICES 
ORANGE PARK ANNEX

$0 $0 $0 $0 $4,325,055 $0 $4,325,055

CLAY SUPERINTENDENT'S 
OFFICE

$0 $0 $200,000 $0 $3,564,764 $0 $3,764,764

FOOD SERVICES 
STORAGE

$0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0

HARRIS C LONG 
ADMINISTRATION

$0 $0 $0 $0 $2,715,937 $0 $2,715,937

KEYSTONE 
TRANSPORTATION

$0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0

MIDDLEBURG 
TRANSPORTATION

$0 $0 $400,000 $381,098 $0 $1,466,720 $2,247,818

SCHOOL BUS GARAGE $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0

SUPPORT SERVICES AG 
LOT

$0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0

SUPPORT SERVICES 
CENTER

$0 $0 $250,000 $0 $240,856 $0 $490,856

Total $0 $515,000 $8,475,000 $3,442,310 $217,425,018 $61,896,566 $291,753,894 $48,343,877

PAGE:247 of 253 Report Date: 6/8/2021 10:16:11 AM

EDUCATIONAL PLANT FIVE YEAR SURVEY REPORT

Status:

Active Pending

Survey:

Survey: 7 - Version: 1

District:

10-CLAY COUNTY SCHOOL DISTRICT

Page 790 of 962

DRAFT



PAGE:248 of 253 Report Date: 6/8/2021 10:16:11 AM

EDUCATIONAL PLANT FIVE YEAR SURVEY REPORT

Status:

Active Pending

Survey:

Survey: 7 - Version: 1

District:

10-CLAY COUNTY SCHOOL DISTRICT

Page 791 of 962

DRAFT



Section 7: Long Range 
Planning Summary

PAGE:249 of 253 Report Date: 6/8/2021 10:16:11 AM

EDUCATIONAL PLANT FIVE YEAR SURVEY REPORT

Status:

Active Pending

Survey:

Survey: 7 - Version: 1

District:

10-CLAY COUNTY SCHOOL DISTRICT

Page 792 of 962

DRAFT



No items meet the criteria.

Five Year Survey - Ten Year Capacity

6/8/2021

CLAY COUNTY SCHOOL DISTRICT

Schedule of capital outlay projects projected to ensure the availability of satisfactory student stations for the projected 
student enrollment in K - 12 programs for the future 5 years beyond the 5-year district facilities work program.

Proposed Location of Planned New, Remodeled, or New Additions to Facilities in 6 thru 10 out years (Section 28).

Five Year Survey - Ten Year Infrastructure

6/8/2021

CLAY COUNTY SCHOOL DISTRICT

Plans for closure of any school, including plans for disposition of the facility or usage of facility space, and anticipated 
revenues in the 6 thru 10 out years (Section 29).

Not Specified

Not Specified

PAGE:250 of 253 Report Date: 6/8/2021 10:16:11 AM

EDUCATIONAL PLANT FIVE YEAR SURVEY REPORT

Status:

Active Pending

Survey:

Survey: 7 - Version: 1

District:

10-CLAY COUNTY SCHOOL DISTRICT

Page 793 of 962

DRAFT



No items match the criteria.

Five Year Survey - Ten Year Maintenance

6/8/2021

CLAY COUNTY SCHOOL DISTRICT

District projects and locations regarding the projected need for major renovation, repair, and maintenance projects 
within the district in years 6 - 10 beyond the projects plans detailed in the five years covered by the work plan.

Grade Level 
Projections

 FISH Student 
Stations

Actual FISH 
Capacity

Actual 
COFTE

Actual 
Utilization

Actual new 
Student 

Capacity to be 
added/removed

Projected 
COFTE

Projected 
Utilization

Elementary - 
District Totals

21,249 21,249 18,604.49 87.55 % 0 0 0.00 %

Middle - District 
Totals

9,042 8,136 6,471.93 79.55 % 0 0 0.00 %

High - District 
Totals

14,510 13,782 10,093.28 73.24 % 0 0 0.00 %

Other - ESE, etc 711 568 353.97 62.32 % 0 0 0.00 %

45,512 43,735 35,523.67 81.22 % 0 0 0.00 %

Five Year Survey - Ten Year Utilization 

6/8/2021

CLAY COUNTY SCHOOL DISTRICT

Schedule of planned capital outlay projects identifying the standard grade groupings, capacities, and planned 
utilization rates of future educational facilities of the district for both permanent and relocatable facilities.

No comments to report.

Combination schools are included with the middle schools for student stations, capacity, COFTE and utilization 
purposes because these facilities all have a 90% utilization factor. Use this space to explain or define the grade 
groupings for combination schools. 

PAGE:251 of 253 Report Date: 6/8/2021 10:16:11 AM

EDUCATIONAL PLANT FIVE YEAR SURVEY REPORT

Status:

Active Pending

Survey:

Survey: 7 - Version: 1

District:

10-CLAY COUNTY SCHOOL DISTRICT

Page 794 of 962

DRAFT



No items match the criteria.

Five Year Survey - Twenty Year Capacity

6/8/2021

CLAY COUNTY SCHOOL DISTRICT

Schedule of capital outlay projects projected to ensure the availability of satisfactory student stations for the projected 
student enrollment in K - 12 programs for the future 11 - 20 years beyond the 5-year district facilities work program.

Proposed Location of Planned New, Remodeled, or New Additions to Facilities in the 11 through 20 out years (Section 
28). 

Five Year Survey - Twenty Year Infrastructure

6/8/2021

CLAY COUNTY SCHOOL DISTRICT

Plans for closure of any school, including plans for disposition of the facility or usage of facility space, and anticipated 
revenues in the 11 through 20 out years (Section 29). 

No items meet the criteria.

No items meet the criteria.

PAGE:252 of 253 Report Date: 6/8/2021 10:16:11 AM

EDUCATIONAL PLANT FIVE YEAR SURVEY REPORT

Status:

Active Pending

Survey:

Survey: 7 - Version: 1

District:

10-CLAY COUNTY SCHOOL DISTRICT

Page 795 of 962

DRAFT



No items match the criteria.

Five Year Survey - Twenty Year Maintenance

6/8/2021

CLAY COUNTY SCHOOL DISTRICT

District projects and locations regarding the projected need for major renovation, repair, and maintenance projects 
within the district in years 11 - 20 beyond the projects plans detailed in the five years covered by the work plan.

Grade Level 
Projections

 FISH Student 
Stations

Actual FISH 
Capacity

Actual 
COFTE

Actual 
Utilization

Actual new 
Student 

Capacity to be 
added/removed

Projected 
COFTE

Projected 
Utilization

Elementary - 
District Totals

21,249 21,249 18,604.49 87.55 % 0 0 0.00 %

Middle - District 
Totals

9,042 8,136 6,471.93 79.55 % 0 0 0.00 %

High - District 
Totals

14,510 13,782 10,093.28 73.24 % 0 0 0.00 %

Other - ESE, etc 711 568 353.97 62.32 % 0 0 0.00 %

45,512 43,735 35,523.67 81.22 % 0 0 0.00 %

Five Year Survey - Twenty Year Utilization

6/8/2021

CLAY COUNTY SCHOOL DISTRICT

Schedule of planned capital outlay projects identifying the standard grade groupings, capacities, and planned 
utilization rates of future educational facilities of the district for both permanent and relocatable facilities.

Combination schools are included with the middle schools for student stations, capacity, COFTE and utilization 
purposes because these facilities all have a 90% utilization factor. Use this space to explain or define the grade 
groupings for combination schools. 

No comments to report.

PAGE:253 of 253 Report Date: 6/8/2021 10:16:11 AM

EDUCATIONAL PLANT FIVE YEAR SURVEY REPORT

Status:

Active Pending

Survey:

Survey: 7 - Version: 1

District:

10-CLAY COUNTY SCHOOL DISTRICT

Page 796 of 962

DRAFT



School Board of Clay County

June 24, 2021 - Regular School Board Meeting

Title
D1 - Appoint One Board Member and One Citizen Member to Serve on the 2021 Value Adjustment Board (Mrs. Bolla)

Description
Florida Statute 194.015 requires that the School Board of each county annually elect one person from its membership to serve on
the Value Adjustment Board (VAB). Additionally, the School Board must appoint a citizen member to the VAB. The citizen
must own a business occupying commercial space located within the school district, may not be a member or employee of the
school district, and may not be a person who represents property owners in any administrative or judicial review of property
taxes. The VAB will meet in September to choose special magistrates, reappoint counsel and certify the tax roll so that the tax
bills may be sent out by November 1, 2021. It is anticipated that the VAB would then meet again in the first quarter of 2022 to
review the special magistrate findings on the petitions. It is possible that the VAB will also be called upon to adjudicate disputes
arising from the valuation of the portability of assessments.

Gap Analysis
Section 194.015, Florida Statutes, mandates compliance

Previous Outcomes
Year School Board Representative Citizen Member
2020 Ashley Gilhousen Joseph Wiggins
2019 Tina Bullock Leslie Dougher
2018 Ashley Gilhousen Leslie Dougher
2017 Betsy Condon Leslie Dougher
2016 Janice Kerekes Charles "Scott" Roberts
2015 Carol Studdard Charles "Scott" Roberts

 

Expected Outcomes
At the Board's discretion

Strategic Plan Goal
N/A

Recommendation
Elect one Board member to serve on the Value Adjustment Board and appoint one citizen who meets the statutory qualifications
to serve on the Value Adjustment Board.

Contact
Mary S. Bolla, Chair, School Board of Clay County

Financial Impact
None

Review Comments

Attachments

Page 797 of 962

DRAFT



School Board of Clay County

June 24, 2021 - Regular School Board Meeting

Title
D2 - Appoint One Board Member to Serve as Florida School Boards Association Advocacy Committee Representative and One
Board Member to Serve as Advocacy Committee Alternate (Mrs. Bolla)

Description
Florida School Boards Association requires that the School Board of each county annually appoint one person from its
membership to serve on the Florida School Boards Association Advocacy Committee and one person from its membership to
serve as an alternate on this committee. FSBA's committee leadership terms are July 1 - June 30 with new chair appointments
taking office on July 1.  Selections to FSBA's Advocacy Committee from each district must be submitted no later than August 1.
Roles and responsibilities of this position include:

Participation on this committee with statewide representation (one representative from each school district)-
Interaction with policymakers and stakeholders to promote public education-
The opportunity to be considered to serve on the Legislative or Federal subcommittees-
Monthly meetings (and additional meetings for subcommittees)-
Advocacy and communication leadership-
Reporting advocacy efforts back to respective boards-

Gap Analysis
Membership in Florida School Boards Association mandates compliance.

Previous Outcomes

 Year 
Advocacy Committee

Representative
Advocacy Committee

Alternate
2020 Mary Bolla Janice Kerekes
2019 Mary Bolla Janice Kerekes
2018 Mary Bolla Janice Kerekes
2017 Mary Bolla Janice Kerekes
2016 Betsy Condon Ashley Gilhousen

 

Expected Outcomes
At the Board's discretion

Strategic Plan Goal
N/A

Recommendation
Appoint one board member to serve as Advocacy Committee Representative and one board member to serve as Advocacy
Committee Alternate

Contact
Mary S. Bolla, Board Chair, mary.bolla@myoneclay.net

Financial Impact
None

Review Comments

Page 798 of 962

DRAFT



Attachments

Page 799 of 962

DRAFT



School Board of Clay County

June 24, 2021 - Regular School Board Meeting

Title
D3 - Human Resources Special Action A

Description
Florida Statutes (F.S. 1012.22(1)(9f), State Board Rules and Clay County School Board Policies require Board notification
and/or action regarding decisions and recommendations of the Superintendent related to Personnel matters.  

Gap Analysis
N/A

Previous Outcomes
N/A

Expected Outcomes
N/A

Strategic Plan Goal
Goal 5:  Develop and support great educators, support personnel, and leaders.

Recommendation
Approve the action as presented.

Contact
Brenda G. Troutman, Assistant Superintendent for Human Resources  (904) 336 6701   Brenda.Troutman@myoneclay.net

Financial Impact
None

Review Comments

Attachments

Page 800 of 962

DRAFT



School Board of Clay County

June 24, 2021 - Regular School Board Meeting

Title
D4 - 2020-21 S.R.E.F. Casualty, Safety, Sanitation, Relocatable, and Fire Safety Inspection

Description
The School District of Clay County is required to conduct an Annual Casualty, Safety, Sanitation Inspection Report as well as an
Annual Relocatable and Fire Safety Inspection by persons licensed and proficient with applicable Rules and Standards.  These
Inspection Reports were performed by licensed and qualified personnel and are available for public review.

Gap Analysis
Local fire officials and public school districts must employ or contract with an individual certified as a fire safety inspector in
compliance with Section 633.081, Florida Statutes, in order to conduct a comprehensive fire safety inspector of each public
school facility annually.  s.1013.12, F.S. and s.1013.38, F.S. became effective on July 1, 2011.

Previous Outcomes
The SREF/Fire Safety Inspections were accomplished with one inspector and completed without disrupting the school for more
than a couple of hours.  The school custodian walks the school with the inspector and takes notes on deficiencies that are also
part of the report.  The schools fixed or placed work orders for deficiencies found and returned a letter to the inspector stating all
items were completed or a work order was placed.

Expected Outcomes
The SREF/Fire Safety Inspections will be completed in compliance with Section 633.081, Florida Statutes, in order to conduct a
comprehensive fire safety inspector of each public school facility annually.  s.1013.12, F.S. and s.1013.38, F.S. 

Strategic Plan Goal
Ensure effective management of the organization, operations, and facilities to maximize the use of resources and promote a safe,
efficient, and effective learning environment for Clay County students. 

Recommendation
Approve the District 2020-2021 Casualty, Safety, Sanitation, Relocatable, and Fire Safety Inspection Report.

Contact
Bryce Ellis, Assistant Superintendent Operations, (904) 336-6853, bryce.ellis@myoneclay.net

Financial Impact
All deficiencies will be corrected at the school level or by the Maintenance department and funded by General and/or Capital
Outlay funds.

Review Comments

Attachments

Elementary SREF Inspections (Buildings).pdf

Elementary SREF Inspections (Portables) Cont..pdf

Elementary SREF Inspections (Portables) Cont. 2.pdf

Jr. High SREF Inspections (Buildings).pdf

Jr. High SREF Inspections (Portables).pdf

High School SREF Inspections (Buildings).pdf

High School SREF Inspections (Portables).pdf

Page 801 of 962

DRAFT

http://agenda.oneclay.net/content/files/elementary-sref-inspections-buildings.pdf
http://agenda.oneclay.net/content/files/elementary-sref-inspections-portables-cont.pdf
http://agenda.oneclay.net/content/files/elementary-sref-inspections-portables-cont-2.pdf
http://agenda.oneclay.net/content/files/jr-high-sref-inspections-buildings.pdf
http://agenda.oneclay.net/content/files/jr-high-sref-inspections-portables.pdf
http://agenda.oneclay.net/content/files/high-school-sref-inspections-buildings.pdf
http://agenda.oneclay.net/content/files/high-school-sref-inspections-portables.pdf


High School SREF Inspections (Portables) Cont..pdf

County Offices & Buildings SREF Inspections.pdf

Page 802 of 962

DRAFT

http://agenda.oneclay.net/content/files/high-school-sref-inspections-portables-cont.pdf
http://agenda.oneclay.net/content/files/county-offices-buildings-sref-inspections.pdf


Page 803 of 962

DRAFT



Page 804 of 962

DRAFT



Page 805 of 962

DRAFT



Page 806 of 962

DRAFT



Page 807 of 962

DRAFT



Page 808 of 962

DRAFT



Page 809 of 962

DRAFT



Page 810 of 962

DRAFT



Page 811 of 962

DRAFT



Page 812 of 962

DRAFT



Page 813 of 962

DRAFT



Page 814 of 962

DRAFT



Page 815 of 962

DRAFT



Page 816 of 962

DRAFT



Page 817 of 962

DRAFT



Page 818 of 962

DRAFT



Page 819 of 962

DRAFT



Page 820 of 962

DRAFT



Page 821 of 962

DRAFT



Page 822 of 962

DRAFT



Page 823 of 962

DRAFT



Page 824 of 962

DRAFT



Page 825 of 962

DRAFT



Page 826 of 962

DRAFT



Page 827 of 962

DRAFT



Page 828 of 962

DRAFT



Page 829 of 962

DRAFT



Page 830 of 962

DRAFT



Page 831 of 962

DRAFT



Page 832 of 962

DRAFT



Page 833 of 962

DRAFT



Page 834 of 962

DRAFT



Page 835 of 962

DRAFT



Page 836 of 962

DRAFT



Page 837 of 962

DRAFT



Page 838 of 962

DRAFT



Page 839 of 962

DRAFT



Page 840 of 962

DRAFT



Page 841 of 962

DRAFT



Page 842 of 962

DRAFT



Page 843 of 962

DRAFT



Page 844 of 962

DRAFT



Page 845 of 962

DRAFT



Page 846 of 962

DRAFT



Page 847 of 962

DRAFT



Page 848 of 962

DRAFT



Page 849 of 962

DRAFT



Page 850 of 962

DRAFT



Page 851 of 962

DRAFT



Page 852 of 962

DRAFT



Page 853 of 962

DRAFT



Page 854 of 962

DRAFT



Page 855 of 962

DRAFT



Page 856 of 962

DRAFT



Page 857 of 962

DRAFT



Page 858 of 962

DRAFT



Page 859 of 962

DRAFT



Page 860 of 962

DRAFT



Page 861 of 962

DRAFT



Page 862 of 962

DRAFT



Page 863 of 962

DRAFT



Page 864 of 962

DRAFT



Page 865 of 962

DRAFT



Page 866 of 962

DRAFT



Page 867 of 962

DRAFT



Page 868 of 962

DRAFT



Page 869 of 962

DRAFT



Page 870 of 962

DRAFT



Page 871 of 962

DRAFT



Page 872 of 962

DRAFT



Page 873 of 962

DRAFT



Page 874 of 962

DRAFT



Page 875 of 962

DRAFT



Page 876 of 962

DRAFT



Page 877 of 962

DRAFT



Page 878 of 962

DRAFT



Page 879 of 962

DRAFT



Page 880 of 962

DRAFT



Page 881 of 962

DRAFT



Page 882 of 962

DRAFT



Page 883 of 962

DRAFT



Page 884 of 962

DRAFT



Page 885 of 962

DRAFT



Page 886 of 962

DRAFT



Page 887 of 962

DRAFT



Page 888 of 962

DRAFT



Page 889 of 962

DRAFT



Page 890 of 962

DRAFT



Page 891 of 962

DRAFT



Page 892 of 962

DRAFT



Page 893 of 962

DRAFT



Page 894 of 962

DRAFT



Page 895 of 962

DRAFT



Page 896 of 962

DRAFT



Page 897 of 962

DRAFT



Page 898 of 962

DRAFT



Page 899 of 962

DRAFT



Page 900 of 962

DRAFT



Page 901 of 962

DRAFT



Page 902 of 962

DRAFT



Page 903 of 962

DRAFT



Page 904 of 962

DRAFT



Page 905 of 962

DRAFT



Page 906 of 962

DRAFT



Page 907 of 962

DRAFT



Page 908 of 962

DRAFT



Page 909 of 962

DRAFT



Page 910 of 962

DRAFT



Page 911 of 962

DRAFT



Page 912 of 962

DRAFT



Page 913 of 962

DRAFT



Page 914 of 962

DRAFT



Page 915 of 962

DRAFT



Page 916 of 962

DRAFT



Page 917 of 962

DRAFT



Page 918 of 962

DRAFT



Page 919 of 962

DRAFT



Page 920 of 962

DRAFT



Page 921 of 962

DRAFT



Page 922 of 962

DRAFT



Page 923 of 962

DRAFT



Page 924 of 962

DRAFT



Page 925 of 962

DRAFT



Page 926 of 962

DRAFT



Page 927 of 962

DRAFT



Page 928 of 962

DRAFT



Page 929 of 962

DRAFT



Page 930 of 962

DRAFT



Page 931 of 962

DRAFT



Page 932 of 962

DRAFT



Page 933 of 962

DRAFT



Page 934 of 962

DRAFT



Page 935 of 962

DRAFT



Page 936 of 962

DRAFT



Page 937 of 962

DRAFT



Page 938 of 962

DRAFT



Page 939 of 962

DRAFT



Page 940 of 962

DRAFT



Page 941 of 962

DRAFT



Page 942 of 962

DRAFT



Page 943 of 962

DRAFT



Page 944 of 962

DRAFT



Page 945 of 962

DRAFT



Page 946 of 962

DRAFT



Page 947 of 962

DRAFT



Page 948 of 962

DRAFT



Page 949 of 962

DRAFT



Page 950 of 962

DRAFT



Page 951 of 962

DRAFT



Page 952 of 962

DRAFT



Page 953 of 962

DRAFT



Page 954 of 962

DRAFT



Page 955 of 962

DRAFT



Page 956 of 962

DRAFT



Page 957 of 962

DRAFT



Page 958 of 962

DRAFT



Page 959 of 962

DRAFT



Page 960 of 962

DRAFT



Page 961 of 962

DRAFT



Page 962 of 962

DRAFT


